
COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, July 14, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No June Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.5.1 SELPA – June 14, 2021, Public Hearing 
6.5.2 SELPA – June 15, 2021, Meeting 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

7.2 Superintendent’s Salary Committee Update  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the June 8, 2021, Public Hearing  action 

8.2 Approve Minutes of the June 9, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

11.1 Discussion on Current Board Policy Regarding Budget Committee  information 

11.2 Approve Return to In‐person Board Meetings and Eliminating the  action 
  Zoom Option 

11.3 Approve the 2021‐22 Consolidated Application  action 

11.4 Approve HDV Employer Contribution Increase Recommendation 
11.4.1 Board of Education  action 
11.4.2 County Superintendent of Schools  action 

11.5 Approve Children’s Services Inventory as Surplus for Disposal  action 

11.6 Approve CSBA Dues    action 

11.7 Public Disclosure of the 2021‐22 Negotiated Agreement  information 
Between the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the 
Colusa County Education Services Professionals (CCESP) 

11.8 Public Disclosure of the 2021‐22 Negotiated Agreement  information 
Between the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the 
Educators of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
August 11, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

 

Administrative Services Update – July 2021 

 

 

Business Services completed reviews of our districts’ second interim budgets this spring and sent letters 

out attesting to CCOE’s agreement of each of their positive certifications.  The team also successfully 

completed a months-long effort to build the 2021-22 budget which was presented and passed last 

month.  The business department continues to excel at normal day to day operations, including payroll, 

accounts payable, and district support, and is taking some well-earned time off before starting work on 

closing out the books on fiscal year 2020-21, including work on CCOE’s annual audit. 

 

Human Resources has been busy preparing for the new fiscal year, by updating employee payroll and 

assignment information, and recruiting and hiring new employees.  In many ways, the pandemic has 

taken a back seat to everyday life; however, HR continues to strive to keep CCOE COVID-compliant and 

our employees safe and healthy.   

 

The Food Services team has provided nutritious meals to the children of Colusa County throughout the 

pandemic, and made it through a recent nutrition audit with zero findings.  As school let out and 

summer began, CCOE partnered with Williams USD to provide meals for Williams’ summer school 

students.  This is on top of providing drive-up grab and go breakfasts and lunches for all children 18 

years old and younger at both our Colusa and Williams locations.  The foundations of a successful 

learning day begin with a healthy meal, and our staff has performed nothing short of outstanding in 

providing this. 

 

CCOE’s Facilities department keeps our infrastructure up and running and in tiptop shape.  From 

cleaning our classrooms and offices, to troubleshooting normal maintenance issues and working on 

special projects, Facilities is the backbone of our entire operation.  During the summer, Facilities is 

taking the opportunity to complete some projects while school is out, and get things ready for everyone 

to come back better than ever in August. 

 

The Innovative Approach to Literacy (IAL) team continues the ongoing battle against illiteracy in Colusa 

County, and has done a multitude of events to help this cause.  This includes in-person book giveaways 

across the county, as well as online reading events and activities that encourage and teach our youngest 

learners how to be proficient readers.  Keep up the good work! 

 

Our Communications & Public Relations department is going through some personnel changes at the 

moment, but the transition is going smooth.  We look forward to continuing the good work done in the 

past year, and to building relationships with all of our new district leadership in the coming months.  

Change is a constant in Colusa County, and CCOE looks forward to highlighting the great things our 

districts and our own office do for the community.  Happy New Year! 

 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  June 2021 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice with Yolo County Office of Ed. 
 NHSA Director’s Leadership Academy virtual cohort. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 
 State and Federal Webinars. 
 Child Plus & NOHO data systems planning trainings to improve efficiency.  

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Planning to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 In-Service/Pre-Service planning for next program year. 
 Planning SEL Plan and implementing Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional support for 

next year. 
 Developing a Staff Wellness Plan. 
 Provide virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 
 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 
 Community recruitment events in Arbuckle, Colusa, and Williams. 
 Learning Genie Family App. 



  Educational Services Board Report 
July 2021 

  
 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• The S. William Abel Academy hosted a successful Summer Academy with the help of teacher Bob 

Kirkman.  Students created many woodworking projects and participated in sharing some of those 
projects at the Colusa Rotary Meeting.   

• The S. William Abel Academy will resume in-person instruction on August 11, 2021 
 
Colusa County Adult School 

• The Colusa County Adult School last day of class was June 30, 2021 
• The Adult School graduated 13 students in 2021 and has graduated 31 students total in its three years it 

has been offering the high school diploma program. 
• The Adult School will host a Back to School Orientation on August 23, 2021 and classes will begin on 

September 7, 2021. 
• Applications are now being accepted for the CTE Teacher and ESL Teacher Positions. 

 
Farm to School 

• Applications are now being accepted for the Farm to School Project Coordinator position. 
 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 
• The Advisory Zoom meeting took place on June 9th to review the professional development that was 

offered in the 2020-21 school year.  
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Support for Williams Upper Elementary School will resume in August 2021.  

 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Support for the districts will resume in August 2021. 
 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• LCAP technical support was provided to all four districts as well as the William Abel Academy.  The 

LCAPs have gone to the board and are awaiting final CCOE approval.  
 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 
• We provided an ESSER III Plan funding calibration “lunch and learn” to the four county consortia 

district leaders on 6/18 to review the draft template, stakeholder engagement, assurances, expenditure 
plan requirements and timeline.   

 
Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

• The Colusa SEL CoP team continues to meet monthly; however, the numbers have dwindled due to 
summer break.  Our last meeting for this fiscal year took place on 6/22 with Colusa County having 42% 
of the participants! The participants are beginning to submit their SEL Plans and it’s very rewarding to 
see how they are going to roll out this very important part of their work. 
 



Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• We are in the process of hiring a third Child Aide to expand services to preschools.  

 
Foster Youth 

• The Prevention Services Department is currently waiting for the Title IV-E and transportation MOU to 
be fully executed by the DHHS. The department will also go into an MOU with DHHS, AB 2083. 

 
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• Alejandra has been working closely with Karen’s House to ensure that children and youth who qualify 
for the McKinney-Vento Act and have witnessed or experienced domestic violence have access to an 
equitable and dignified education. The Prevention Services Department has received clearance from the 
CDE to purchase violence prevention curriculum and offer the curriculum to school districts. The 
curriculum will be purchased using American Rescue Plan funds. Additionally, Karen’s House is 
creating a Domestic Violence Countywide Task Force, which the Prevention Services Department will 
help facilitate. 

• The Prevention Services Department has partnered with the IAL team to co-host the first annual 
Countywide Community Resource Fair, which will take place at the Education Village MPR on 
November 6, 2021, from 10 am-2 pm. During the event, there will be agencies that serve all ages.  
 

• Alejandra and Estefania were recognized by the City of Williams on June 16, 2021 for their positive 
contributions to the Williams and larger community. Thank you CCOE board for supporting their efforts 
in bringing resources and supports to the county!  

 

 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• The recently hired Prevention Services Coordinator, Estefania has been partaking in intense training of 

all the Prevention Services programs. The TUPE Program training was the latest training that she 
participated in. The Prevention Services Department is working on rolling out TUPE curriculum, which 
will align with the Health Education Framework to schools, and in order to effectively build capacity. 

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 



• Recently, the district’s SRO has returned from personal leave. The Prevention Services Department is 
working with DOJ to complete their EOY budget modification, they will also be scheduling virtual 
meetings with DOJ staff to build a strategic plan to expend the TLEGP grant. In the past, the department 
has faced challenges on how to effectively spend the grant funds and are looking forward to working 
with the DOJ to more effectively spend the funds.   

 
 



Colusa County Office of Education 
June 14, 2021, Public Hearing on Annual Budget and Service Plan 
Page 1 

 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing on Annual Budget and Service Plan June 14, 2021 

 
Present: Daena Meras, Ed Conrado, Angelina Guizar, Carol Geyer, Aaron Heinz, Summer 

Shadley, Danielle Wilson, Mike West, Chuck Wayman, Argelia Casorla 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Carol Geyer called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large 
Conference Room and via Zoom. 

2.0 Public Comment on Annual Budget Plan 
No public is present, no questions or comments. 

3.0 Public Comment on Annual Service Plan 
No public is present, no questions or comments. 

4.0  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:34 p.m. 



Colusa County Office of Education 
June 15, 2021, SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
Page 1 

 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of SELPA Council Committee June 15, 2021 

 
Present: Daena Meras, Ed Conrado, Angelina Guizar, Carol Geyer, Aaron Heinz, Summer 

Shadley, Danielle Wilson, Mike West, Chuck Wayman, Argelia Casorla 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Carol Geyer called the meeting to order at 3:34 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large 
Conference Room and via Zoom. 

2.0 Approve Annual Budget Plan 
Summer moved to approve the agenda; Daena seconded; the motion passes 
unanimously. Chuck will email the signature pages to; Jeff, Summer, Carol, and Bill 
Cornelius. 

3.0 Approve Annual Service Plan 
Summer moved to approve the agenda; Aaron seconded; the motion passes 
unanimously. Chuck will email the signature pages to; Jeff, Summer, Carol, and Bill 
Cornelius. 

4.0 Other Information 
Chuck notified those present regarding next year’s meeting taking place in May instead 
of June. Doing so will allow adequate time to meet in work groups with General 
Education staff. 
 
For school year 2021/2022, there will be new Paraeducator positions added for 
incoming students requiring one on one support. The new positions will reflect on the 
October Budget Revision for 2021/2022.  

5.0  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:37 p.m. 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report July 14, 2021 

 

Colusa Unified School District has agreed to move forward with their EduNet installation 
at the Reclamation District tower and the old Pirelli Cable Plant tanks near Colusa High 
School.  We are working to secure a location with the City of Colusa to install a 
telephone pole near the Golf Course area.  This may involve a partnership with Colusa 
Rice. 
 
We are working with Maxwell Unified to try and leverage Emergency Connectivity Funds 
to provide internet access to students in Stonyford.  This may involve a partnership with 
Glenn County Office of Education.  Options are being explored. 
 
Legal has reviewed our “Permission to Install Free Internet Service Equipment and 
Waiver of Claims” form that we have created for the EduNet.  Parents will sign this form 
prior to having the district mount the external routers on students’ homes for students 
that live outside of the internal router coverage.  We have found a vendor that is 
interested in conducting the installations.  We will be working with the districts to 
coordinate planning. 
 
We have been configuring the new iBoss web filter for installation.  We have attempted 
to cutover twice, but the device requires a troubleshooting session with the vendor.  We 
have scheduled a planned outage and will have the installation completed shortly.   
 
We are preparing for all the annual renewals and purchases on July 1st.   
 
 



 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – June 8, 2021 

Board Members Present:  Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, 
Lorilee Niesen, and Michael West 

President Cristy Edwards called the Public Hearing on the 2021‐22 Local Control Accountability 
Plan and Proposed 2021‐22 CCOE Budget (Including Education Protection Account) to order at 
4:00 p.m. 

Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza and Lorilee Niesen reported on the 2021‐22 LCAP, which was written 
with input from stakeholders and includes a budget overview for parents, annual updates to 
the 2019‐20 LCAP, the Local Control Continuity Plan, a summary of both annual updates, a 
narrative, expenditure tables, and plan instructions. 

Aaron Heinz reported on the 2021‐22 Budget, saying that unlike last year’s expectations, the 
LCFF is fully restored, a COLA is expected, surplus budgets for this year and the following two 
years are projected, the Education Protection Account, and reserves will be built.  Discussion 
was held on class size reduction returning to classrooms, which is dependent upon bargaining 
unit negotiations, and on receiving part of the additional funding that the Governor has 
allocated to education. 

No public was present to comment on or ask questions about the 2021‐22 Local Control 
Accountability Plan and Proposed 2021‐22 CCOE Budget (Including Education Protection 
Account). 

The Public Hearing closed at 4:11 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered 

   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting June 9, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Marisa Apaseo, Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, 

Aaron Heinz, Angie Hernandez, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena 
Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Sheryl Parker, Karen Peters, Gabriel Rojas, 
Donna Vaughn, and Michael West  

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Jason McMullan/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one absent (Ed 
Conrado) to re‐order agenda item 11.8 to follow agenda item 5.0. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input.  Barry Morrell led discussion about continuing Zoom meetings and that 
topic will be added to the July agenda. 

 
Agenda item 11.8 was heard immediately following agenda item 5.0. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported that Zoom meetings with various organizations 

and staff are continuing to trend downward, He reported on Legislature 

releases of the 2020‐21 State Budget.  Education changes include $1.8 

billion to Proposition 98, $3.0 billion to supplemental pension payments 

with $400 Million to offset future costs, Early Education funding of $1.1 

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

billion to update State preschool programs, double the slots proposed by 

Governor’s May Revision, 5.07% provided to the LCFF formula, a 4.05% 

COLA adjustment, additional Community School support, reduction of the 

Child Nutrition reimbursement rate that will be applied to kitchen 

infrastructure and COVID related costs to nutrition operations, an 

Independent study rewrite, Special Education COLA adjustment similar to 

general education, Early Intervention Grant program inclusive of early 

education programs, and elimination of deferrals.  Michael said that 

CCSESA virtual meetings continue, with the group reviewing issues of the 

state and counties, including the Williams Settlement Act.  CCSESA is also 

revamping its governance structure to reflect a current level of 

effectiveness by primary participation in the Legislative processes.  

Michael also provided a COVID update, saying that Colusa County is still 

in the Moderate (orange) tier, CalOSHA re‐voted to reconsider their 

restrictions to mirror the Governor’s reopening proposals after June 15, 

2021, on which date the Governor may review and or rescind or reinstate 

specifics of his Executive Orders.  Michael said that with respect to Brown 

Act and the teleconferencing process, all entities may continue to rely on 

the Executive Order N‐29‐20 until further directives are issued.  Michael 

also reported that CCOE negotiations with all bargaining units were 

settled through the 2021‐2022 school year.  He spoke about changes in 

school administration throughout the county including WUSD’s new 

District Superintendent and new high school Principal and Assistant 

Principal; and CUSD’s new District Superintendent and new High School 

Principal.  Michael also spoke about his attendance at CCOE’s Adult 

Education and Colusa High School’s graduation ceremonies.  Discussion 

was held on CalOSHA’s restrictiveness, and the possibility of counties 

making a self‐determination for their schools.  Michael said that plans are 

still in place for schools to operate in‐person in the fall, but with safety 

measures.  Discussion was also held on First 5 Colusa’s Family Resource 

relocation to a WUSD campus, and on the status of CCOE’s Williams 

property sale, which is awaiting written confirmation from City of 

Williams. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No May Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Regarding his June 2021 Administrative Services report to the Board, Aaron 
Heinz said that staff have been working hard getting ready for the new year and 
closing the books on last year.  To celebrate the end of the school year and 
provide a little COVID stress release, staff held an ice cream party. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss added to her June 2021 Children’s Services written report regarding 
part‐day preschool classroom summer closures with the full‐year State program 
still operating, which has allowed piloting of new programs and technology.  The 
Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki’s report. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza added to her June 2021 Educational Services written 
report highlighting a free Healing California Dental and Vision Care event that 
will be hosted at the Education Village, and an expansion to the Second Step 
program that is being planned in collaboration with Vicki Markss. Michael West 
spoke about the Interim Director of Behavioral Health’s support of the Second 
Step program and who was instrumental in more than doubling funds for the 
program. The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria’s 
report. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Michael West reported on Chuck Waymen’s absence, and he answered their 
questions regarding the increase to Special Education funding.  Discussion was 
held on Special Education’s deficit, on the increase to its COLA, on IEPs trending 
upward from previous years, on the duration of the funding that is dependent 
upon factors including declining enrollment and increases in retirement rates. 
 
Michael West reported on Colusa County Fair activities. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans presented his June 2021 Technology Services written report to the 
Board, which centered on a Radio Frequency Mapping tool that illustrates 
EduNet coverage areas and is instrumental in ensuring that CCOE’s signals do not 
conflict with each other.  Alex said that he is applying for a supplement to eRate 
to fund students’ internet usage in their homes. Alex also answered the Board’s 
questions regarding cyber‐attacks, and he reported on CCOE’s efforts to prevent 
those.  Discussion was held on whether student Chromebooks would be 
susceptible to these attacks, and Alex said that it is not likely. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), 
one absent (Ed Conrado) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the May 12, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that the Community College District has maintained a 
restrictive stance on fall classes, but the hope is that they will return to in‐person 
classes in the fall. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on Facilities Services activities. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
10.3.1 2021 LCAP Performance Priorities 

Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reviewed the 2021 LCAP Performance Priorities 
that are submitted annually. Discussion was held on whether the 2021 
document compared to 2020 indicated growth, and Lorilee Niesen said 
that it did.  Lorilee reported on the priority development process and the 
role of this document in priority setting. 
 

10.3.2 2021‐22 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported on the 2021‐22 CCOE Annual System of 
Support Plan, which is a summary of CCOE’s continuous LCAP assistance 
to districts.  Discussion was held on monies to help with homelessness as 
well as McKinney Vento funding and professional development. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
No report. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2021‐24 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

Lorilee Niesen reported on the 2021‐24 LCAP which was written with input from 
stakeholders.  Lorilee reviewed the goals and metrics.  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
spoke about the emphasis on accountability.  Discussion was held on students 
being trained to be in the workplace. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Ed Conrado) to approve the 2021‐24 Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP). 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.2 Approve 2021‐22 Colusa County Office of Education Budget 
Aaron Heinz presented the 2021‐22 CCOE Budget.  He began by thanking 
Angelina Guizar and Sheryl Parker for their work on the budget.  He then said 
that unlike last year’s expectations, the LCFF is fully restored, a COLA is expected, 
CCOE has surplus budgets for this year and the projected subsequent two years.  
Discussion was held on the Budget Committee (of which, two Board Members 
are a subcommittee) meeting prior to budget approval per Board Policy (BP) and 
Operating Procedure (OP) 3020.  Discussion was also held on Board Budget 
Subcommittee’s role in the Budget adoption process (input vs. review).  The 
consensus was that the Subcommittee is responsible to review and understand 
the budget and to make recommendations to the rest of the Board, and it is the 
County Superintendent’s responsibility to provide input for the budget.  BP and 
OP 3020 will be brought to the July 2021 meeting for discussion. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one absent 
(Ed Conrado) to approve the 2021‐22 Colusa County Office of Education Budget. 

11.3 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐03 Colusa County Superintendent of 
Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding the 2021‐22 
Education Protection Account 
Aaron Heinz explained that Education Protection Account (EPA) funds can only 
be used for instruction. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Ed Conrado) to approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐03 Colusa County 
Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding 
the 2021‐22 Education Protection Account. 

11.4 Annual Salary Review ‐ County Superintendent – Board Discussion 
Due to an error in the salary survey information, this item was tabled to the July 
2021 Board meeting. Tina Maxwell will send salary information to the Board 
Salary Committee. 

11.5 Approve Children’s Services Inventory for Disposal 
Vicki Marks’s explained the need to dispose of a Children’s Services’ automobile. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
abstain (Jason McMullan), one absent (Ed Conrado) to approve Children’s 
Services Inventory for Disposal. 

11.6 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 from Educators of 
Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of 
ECCOE’s opening proposal. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.7 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 Educators of 
Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of his 
opening proposal to ECCOE. 

11.8 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐04 of the Colusa County Superintendent 
of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education in Recognition and 
Profound Appreciation of Distinguished Years of Service by Colusa County One‐
Stop 

Agenda item 11.8 was heard immediately following agenda item 5.0. 
 
Michael West reported on the seventeen‐year collaboration between CCOE and 
Colusa County One‐Stop.  Lorilee Niesen and Maria Arvizu Espinoza spoke about 
the partnership between the two agencies.  Michael West read aloud the 
resolution in recognition and profound appreciation of distinguished years of 
service by Colusa County One‐Stop. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Ed Conrado) to approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐04 of the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education in 
Recognition and Profound Appreciation of Distinguished Years of Service by 
Colusa County One‐Stop. 
 
Colusa County One‐Stop staff introduced themselves. 

11.9 Colusa County Consortium Plan for Serving Expelled Students July 1, 2021‐
June 30, 2024 
Lorilee Niesen reviewed the July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2024, Colusa County 
Consortium Plan for Serving Expelled Students, which she said was approved and 
signed by District Superintendents and collaborating agencies, and she 
requested the Board's approval. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes (Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Ed Conrado) to approve the Colusa County Consortium Plan for Serving 
Expelled Students July 1, 2021‐June 30, 2024. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Discussion on Current Board Policy Regarding Budget Committee 
Approve Return to In‐person Board Meetings and Eliminating the Zoom Option 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 7 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
July 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:38 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

BP  Board Policy 

CalOSHA  California Occupational Safety and Health Act 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

ECCOE  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

EPA  Education Protection Account 

IEP  Individualized Education Program 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

OP  Board Operating Procedure 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BP 3020.00 
Series 3000—Business Page 1 of 1 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that sound fiscal management requires 
anticipating financial problems and taking early corrective action.  
 
A Budget Committee shall be established to regularly review the Colusa County 
Office of Education’s financial condition, report to the Board on vital financial 
data, advise the Board regarding the maintenance of adequate reserves and 
recommend long-range fiscal policies to ensure the viability of educational 
programs, and review and recommend budget adoption and revisions. 
 
The Budget Committee shall be made up of the Superintendent, the Assistant 
Superintendent, Administrative Services, the Director of Business Services and 
two Board members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: November 10, 1994 
Reviewed: January 13, 1999 
Revised: July 12, 2006 
Revised: March 14, 2012 

11.1 



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BOP 3020.00 
Operating Procedures Page 1 of 1 
 

Purpose: To outline the process used by the Budget Committee. 
 
The Budget Committee will call meetings each year prior to budget adoption 
(June) and prior to any budget revisions (usually December), or any other times as 
needed.  Notes for each Budget Committee meeting will be attached to the fiscal 
documents covered in the meeting and maintained in the fiscal files. 
 
The Budget Committee will review in detail and receive information from the 
CCOE Administration concerning a pre-adopted budget, and the adopted budget.  
The Budget Committee will then make recommendations to the full Board when 
appropriate.  The first and second interim reports, and various budget 
adjustments that occur during the year, are taken to the full Board of Education 
for approval at a regular meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised: May 10, 2006 
Revised: July 12, 2006 

11.1 



42) Executive Order N-29-20, Paragraph 3, is withdrawn and replaced by the 
following text: 

Notwithstanding any other provision of state or local lqw (including, but 
not limited to, the Bagley-Keene Act or the Brown Act), and subject to 
the notice and accessibility requirements set forth below, a local 
legislative body or state body is authorized to hold public meetings via 
teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public 
seeking to observe and to address the local legislative body or state 
body. All requirements in both the Bagley-Keene Act and the Brown 
Act expressly or impliedly requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the body, or of the public as a condition 
of participation in or quorum for a public meeting are hereby waived. 

In particular, any otherwise-applicable requirements that 

(i) state and local bodies notice each teleconference location 
from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting; 

(ii) each teleconference location be accessible to the public; 

(iii) members of the public may address the body at each 
teleconference conference location; 

(iv) state and local bodies post agendas at a ll teleconference 
locations; 

(v) at least one member of the state body be physically present 
at the location specified in the notice of the meeting; and 

(vi) during teleconference meetings, a least a quorum of the 
members of the local body participate from locations within 
the boundaries of the territory over which the local body 
exercises jurisdiction 

are hereby suspended. 

A local legislative body or state body that holds a meeting via 
teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 
address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 
consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements set forth 
below, shall have satisfied any requirement that the body allow 
members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 
comment. Such a body need not make available any physical 
location from which members of the public may observe the meeting 
and offer public comment. 

Accessibility Requirements: If a local legislative body or state body 
holds a meeting via teleconferencing and allows members of the 
public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically, the body sha ll also: 



(i) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 
requests for reasonable modification or accommodation 
from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act and resolving any doubt whatsoever in 
favor of accessibility; and 

(ii) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the 
means by which members of the public may observe the 
meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to 
subparagraph (ii) of the Notice Requirements below. 

Notice Requirements: Except to the extent this Order expressly provides 
otherwise, each local legislative body and state body shall: 

(i) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda 
for, each public meeting according to the timeframes 
otherwise prescribed by the Bagley-Keene Act or the Brown 
Act, and using the means otherwise prescribed by the 
Bagley-Keene Act or the Brown Act, as applicable; and 

(ii) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is 
otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, also give notice of the means by which members of 
the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment. As to any instance in which there is a change in 
such means of public observation and comment, or any 
instance prior to the issuance of this Order in which the time 
of the meeting has been noticed or the agenda for the 
meeting has been posted without also including notice of 
such means, a body may satisfy this requirement by 
advertising such means using "the most rapid means of 
communication available at the time" within the meaning of 
Government Code, section 54954, subdivision (e); this shall 
include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on 
the body's Internet website. 

All of the foregoing provisions concerning the conduct of public 
meetings shall apply through September 30, 2021. 

43) Executive Order N-32-20: 

a. Paragraph 1; 
b. Paragraph 2; and 
c. Paragraph 3. 

44) Executive Order N-35-20: 
a. Paragraph 2; and 
b. Paragraph 12. 

45) Executive Order N-39-20: 

a. Paragraph 2; 
b. Paragraph 3; and 
c. Paragraph 6. 



California Dapa,lffl•nl al 

EDUCATION 

CC�,JSOUD,6.TED f\f:JDi_!C/c..TlOf\! A,!\IO REPOl�Tfr-,.,iG SYSTE\/1 (C,'\F<S) 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home E a:.·111 Certification Preview 11 Certiry Data 11 Reports 11 Users 11 Contacts 11 FAQs 

Program Information Data Entrv. Instructions 

2018-19 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 36 Months 

A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2018 through June 
30, 2021. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk r•;. 

2018-19 Title II, Part A allocation: 

Transferred-in amount: 

Transferred-out amount: 

2018-19 Total allocation: 

Professional Development Expenditures 

Professional development for teachers: 

Professional development for 
administrators: 

$638 

$0 

$0 

$638 1 Recalculate \ 

$584 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Californiao�panmanl of 

EDUCATION 

(�(J\iSC)L i [).,\T'C :J l\ �-:'F'L i r�;\Ti Qf\l ,'�\t,J [; REFJrJF�Tl f,J [J S'Y�� TEf\/1 (C:.,:\F<.S ;. 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home -,, Certification Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts FAQs 

Program Information Data Entrv. Instructions 

2019-20 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 24 Months 

A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2019 through June 
30, 2021. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk ('). 

2019-20 Title II, Part A allocation: 

Transferred-in amount: 

Transferred-out amount: 

2019-20 Total allocation: 

Professional Development Expenditures 

Professional development for teachers: 

Professional development for 
administrators: 
All .-.u ....... .., .. .._,:,..,.___,t ,..... ...,.-.1 .-1 .-. ...... ....,..,_.._ .... 

$1,576 

$0 

$0 

$1,576 !Recalculate I 

$1,551 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Coli forn IO 0•pa,1ment al 

EDUCATION 

COf\iSOLID,t,TEO ,uPP 1_1C/\Ti01\J Af'ID REPORT!f\lG SYSfEl\!1 (Ci.\H.:3:

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home ., Certification Preview 11 Certify Datn 11 Reports 11 Users 11 Contacts 

Program Information Data Entrv. Instructions 

2020-21 Title I, Part A Notification of Authorization of Schoolwide Program 

This fom1 provides notification to the California Department of Education of a school's eligibility and local board approval to 
operate under and report as Schoolwide Program. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk (*). 

School Name School Code 
Authorized 
SWP 

Local Board [ Local Board 
Low Approval Date Approval Date 
Income SWP Plan 

I 
SWP Waiver 

% (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY) 

SIG Approval 
Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 

Coastal Buttes 0136580 D =L -�i
S. William Abel Academy 0630111 D 

I Download Schools Template 11 Choose File I No file chosen 

L J. 

I Upload Schools File I 

Last Saved: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza (mespinoza), 7/1/202112:30 PM, Draft 

DRAFT



California o •• a .. manl al 

EDUCATION 

CONSOL!D,GJ ED /C\f-=> PL!CATi 0:\1 ;.\i\iD ,�Er=·oR Ti f\iG S'(STE�I] (CJ\RS) 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Hom�- 11 Oi .. n�t En�/Y .r;;. ·tu Certtficallon Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts 

Program Information Data Ent[Y. Instructions 

2020-21 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 12 Months 

A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2020 through June 
30, 2021. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk ('). 

2020-21 Title II, Part A allocation: 

Transferred-in amount: 

Transferred-out amount: 

2020-21 Total allocation: 

Professional Development Expenditures 

Professional development for teachers: 

Professional development for 
administrators: 

$881 

$0 

$0 

$881 I Recalculate I 

$0 

$870 

DRAFT



DRAFT



California Oopa,lmonl al 

EDUCATION 

·�(Ji\/ :SC)'._! C)�\TED .t\P PLi C� '-\ fl C)f\l /-\!\J [; REFJ ()F\-1! J\i C�:. �)\( S TE.'.\/l i. r::,/\F<S !

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home Certification Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts 

Program Information Data Ent[Y. Instructions 

2020-21 Homeless Education Policy, Requirements, and Implementation 

The purpose of this data collection is to meet federal requirements specified in 42 United States Code 11431 et seq. 
(Education for Homeless Children and Youths Act) and some federal requirements in Title I, Part A of the Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act (ESEA). This collection includes monitoring local educational agencies (LEAs) and their 
compliance with key provisions of the Education for Homeless Children and Youths Act including the collection of contact 
information for each required designated LEA's homeless liaison. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk (*). 

Homeless Education Certification 

The LEA hereby assures that the LEA has met the following requirements: 
1. Designated a staff person as the liaison for homeless children and youths; 
2. Developed a written policy that supports the enrollment and retention of homeless children and youths in schools of the 
LEA which: 
a) Includes policies and practices to ensure that homeless children and youths are not stigmatized or segregated on the 
basis of their status as homeless; 
b) Includes a dispute resolution process; 
c) Ensures that transportation is provided for a homeless child or youth to and from the school of origin if requested by the 
parent, guardian or homeless liaison; 
3. Disseminated public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths where such children and youths 

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



California Dapa,lmanl of 

EDUCATION 

CONSOLiDJ\TED ;:i.pr.::i uc,AriO!\[ £\i\iD REi
::J Of

f

T'![\iG SYSTEl\1 (CARS) 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home o .. il Ent . ..,' -==ur1· Certification Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts FAQs 

Program Information Data Ent!:Y. Instructions 

2021-22 Protected Prayer Certification 

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected 
prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written 
certification. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk(*). 

Protected Prayer Certification Statement 

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA 
has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set 
forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature, The ink signature copy shall be 
made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a compliance review, or a 
complaint investigation. 

• The authorized representative agrees to
the above statement: 

Authorized Representative's Full Name: 

ONo @Yes 

Maria Arvizu-Espinoza 

DRAFT



California Oepartn,en• of 

EDUCATION 

C�-Or✓ ::3,()L_! [)/-\T-t�!J �,fJ�)LJ C.f\T! 01\! A_/\j :J R,EPCJf�T! �·iG S '(STE!\/] ( (=;_l\\:;�:3 !

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home ['I rt1 E Certification Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts FAQs 

Program Information Data Ent[Y. Instructions 

2021-22 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk (•). 

Initial Application 
To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must have a 
plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply for ESSA funds for 
the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP ), the LCAP Federal Addendum 
Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in conjunction with the Addendum and the 
ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan. 

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local governing 
board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP Federal Addendum, 
that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the California Department of 
Education (COE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the COE to ensure that the Addendum addresses all 
required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying for federal education funds. 

Returning Application 
If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated Application 
and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption date used in the prior year 
·�-

DRAFT



@J _ ,cE�ucAri'o"N 

CDf'-ISOL!O/\JED .A.PPL!C,6-T!ON ,L\:\iD REFl (Y:.Hi!\i(; SYSTEM (C,i\RS) 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home Dutt, Entrv Forni, Certification Preview 11 Certify Data 

2021-22 Application for Funding 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk(*). 

Data saved successfully as a draft. 
Hide Messag§ I Ex11ort Messag§ I Clear Messag§ 

Severity Description 

Reports Users 

Warning Protected Prayer Certification must be certified before this submission. 
--1

Local Governing Board Approval 

Contacts FAQs 

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding selections 
with their local governing board. 

Date of approval by local governing board: 07/14/2021 (ex. MM/00/YYYY) 

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review 
Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, then the 
I C:A m..,,ct o.c+-ohlich o ni�trirt C::nr,li<:h I o�rnor l!..rivi�nrv r.nmmittoo /nl=I C..r.\ whir-h �h!lll roHiAw !lnrl ::irlvi�o on tho 

Data E"nt[Y. Instructions DRAFT



DRAFT



California Oopa,tmonl of 

EDUCATION 

CCJf\lSOL!DATED APPLIC!-\TION Ai\lD F.EPORT!NG SYSTEiV! (C/\RS) 

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) 

Home- DJtD Enrr·-1 '"r:,,•m� Certification Preview Certify Data Reports Users Contacts FAQs 

Program Information Data Entrv: Instructions 

2021-22 Substitute System for Time Accounting 

This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education oversight personnel when conducting 
audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute lime-and-effort system. Approval is automatically granted when the 
local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection. 

Required fields are denoted with an asterisk (*). 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate. 

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, are 
described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the web at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/. 

• 2021-22 Request for authorization: 

LEA certifies that the following is a full 
disclosure of any known deficiencies with 
the substitute system or known challenges 
with implementing the system: 
(Maximum 500 characters) 

@No 0Yes 

DRAFT



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.8054 

TO: Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees 

FROM: Serena Morrow, Director of Human Resources 

DATE: June 11, 2021 

SUBJECT: Health/Dental/Vision (H/D/V) Employer Contribution 2021-2022 

A Tentative Agreement has been signed by the County Superintendent, the Educators 
of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE), and the Colusa County Education 
Support Professionals (CCESP), to increase the annual H/D/V employer contribution 
from $10,290 annually to $10,500 annually. The increase will take effect October 1, 
2021. 

With this in mind, it my recommendation that the Board of Trustees consider taking 
action to increase the County Superintendent and Board of Trustees' annual H/DN 
employer contribution to $10,500 annually, effective July 1, 2021. 

For your consideration, I have attached a copy of the premium cost spreadsheets that 
detail the monthly cost to both the County Superintendent and Board of Trustees at the 
employer contribution rate of $10,500 annually. 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee Only 
21-22 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 

7/1/21 to 6/30/22 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 839.00 $ 699.00 $ 602.00 $ 426.00 
Dental D2 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 
Vision Plan B $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 904.00 $ 764.00 $ 667.00 $ 491.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) 
TOTAL $ 29.00 $ (111.00) $ (208.00) $ (384.00) 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 29.00 $ (111.00) $ (208.00) $ (384.00) 

*Cap is $10,500 Annually / $875.00 Monthly 

Board Member will not be compensated for underutilized annual employer contribution benefit (Cap). 

draft 6/11/21 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee +1 
21-22 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 

7/1/21 to 6/30/22 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 1,678.00 $ 1,398.00 $ 1,204.00 $ 852.00 
Dental D2 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 
Vision Plan B $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 1,799.00 $ 1,519.00 $ 1,325.00 $ 973.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) 
TOTAL $ 924.00 $ 644.00 $ 450.00 $ 98.00 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 924.00 $ 644.00 $ 450.00 $ 98.00 

*Cap is $10,500 Annually / $875.00 Monthly 

draft 6/11/21 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee + Family 
21-22 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 

7/1/21 to 6/30/22 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 2,265.00 $ 1,887.00 $ 1,625.00 $ 1,150.00 
Dental D2 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 
Vision Plan B $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 2,444.00 $ 2,066.00 $ 1,804.00 $ 1,329.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) $ (875.00) 
TOTAL $ 1,569.00 $ 1,191.00 $ 929.00 $ 454.00 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 1,569.00 $ 1,191.00 $ 929.00 $ 454.00 

*Cap is $10,500 Annually / $875.00 Monthly 

 

draft 6/11/21 



I  

I 

Max Individual out of pocket 
17,244.88 14,800.881 

14,744.88 2,300.88 
2,500.00 12,500.001 

Worst Case Family 

Medical - Empl+One 
Dental - Basic/Unlimited/3 

Vision - Plan C 
Sub Total 

Employee Pays Monthly (12 Months) $1,228.74 $191.74 

I  

I 

Max Individual out of pocket 
15,994.88 8,550.881 
1,250.00 6,250.00 

14,744.88 2,300.88 1 Worst Case Individual 

Months Covered 

Yearly Total 
CCOE Paid Annual Cap 
Employee Pays Yearly 

Plan 1A-SE1 
1,964.00 

115.45 
24.29 

2,103.74 

12 

25,244.88 
10,500.00 
14,744.88 

HDHP-3 
927.00 
115.45 
24.29 

1,066.74 

12 

12,800.88 
10,500.00 
2,300.88 

County Superintendent Premium Rate Sheet - 7/1/21 to 9/30/21 
CVT - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance - Employee +1 

CVT Plan Year for Rates is October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 

draft 6/11/21 



Plan 1A-SE1 
2,076.00 

115.45 
24.29 

2,215.74 

12 

26,588.88 
10,500.00 
16,088.88 

HDHP-3 
979.00 
115.45 

24.29 
1,118.74 

12 

13,424.88 
10,500.00 
2,924.88 

16,088.88 2,924.881 
1,250.00 6,250.00 

17,338.88 9,174.881 

16,088.88 2,924.881 
2,500.00 12,500.00 

18,588.88 15,424.881 

County Superintendent Premium Rate Sheet - 10/1/21 to 9/30/22 
CVT - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance - Employee +1 

CVT Plan Year for Rates is October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 

Medical - Empl+One 
Dental - Basic/Unlimited/3 

Vision - Plan C 
Sub Total 

Months Covered 

Yearly Total 
CCOE Paid Annual Cap 
Employee Pays Yearly 

Employee Pays Monthly (12 Months) $1,340.74 $243.74 

Worst Case Individual 
Max Individual out of pocket 

I  

1 

Max Individual out of pocket 
Worst Case Family 

draft 6/11/21 



Inventory for Disposal

July 14, 2021

345 5th Street

Tag # Manufacturer Make/Model Item/Year Serial # Original Cost Reason For Surplus

N/A Ford Windstar 2003 Gold Van  VIN 2FMZA51423BA99695 $12,820.00 Exceeded Useful Life

Intended Disposition:

Children's Services Surplus Inventory

Donate to Charity once we have a replacement.



Sincerely, 

Dr. Susan Heredia 
CSBA President 

cskoa'%', 
California School Boards Association 

May 28,2021 

Superintendent and Board President 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St., Ste. A 
Colusa, CA, 95932 

Dear Superintendent and Board President of Colusa COE: 

Please find your enclosed 2021-22 CSBA dues invoice. We greatly appreciate your membership in CSBA and the 
difference it makes for California's public schools. As we have worked together to navigate the unprecedented challenges 
of the past year, the efforts of Colusa COE and all your fellow CSBA members have been instrumental in our success. 
Thank you for all that you do, and we look forward to our continued partnership. 

In this mailing, you will find one or more of the following documents:  

• Invoice for your basic CSBA dues. 
Paying your dues makes you eligible to take advantage of a host of CSBA's optional subscription services. 

• Optional subscription payments, as listed below, will be processed after the basic dues are paid for the 2021-22 
fiscal year: 

o CSBA Educational Legal Alliance (ELA) dues 
o Online Learning Center subscription renewal (for current subscribers) 
o CCBE dues (for eligible county offices of education) 
o GAMUT subscription dues (GAMUT Meetings, GAMUT Policy/Policy Plus; if applicable) 

• Service agreements are included for GAMUT subscribers; please email signed agreements to gamu Idcsba.org,. 
• For Gamut Meetings users, additional information is also enclosed about your subscription. 

As a CSBA member, you have the opportunity to access an expansive slate of benefits, including conferences, workshops, 
trainings and our ever-expanding Online Learning Center (  \ A\ \\  .c.ba.orgjoillineleariiinO,  as well as our litany of 
resources, tools and information to help members govern through the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. 

New for 2021-22!: For school districts and county offices of education who have student board members, your student 
members are now members of CSBA at no additional cost! CSBA is excited to work with you as we expand our offerings 
for student board members in 2021-22 and beyond. 

CSBA is your organization, and we encourage you to contact us with your member needs! Our Director of Membership, 
Aaron Davis, can be reached directly at (916) 669-3274, or ada‘ csba.ory.  For reference, you are in CSBA Region 4, 
and the CSBA Regional Director providing leadership and support in your region is Renee Nash, of Eureka Union SD. 

3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 (800) 266-3382 www.csba.org  



California School Boards Association 
(916) 371-4691 

cs13a9 Please refer to your invoice number and customer 
number in all communications regarding this invoice. 

Invoice Number Invoice Date PO # 

INV-55324-SOT2B4 5/28/2021 

Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 

Ship To: 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St., Ste. A 
Colusa, CA 95932 
United States 

Product Code Description Unit Price Quantity Extended Terms 
Price 

CSBA CSBA Membership ( 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2022) $2,698.00 1.00 $2,698.00 

CCBE CCBE Membership ( 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2022) $839.00 1.00 $839.00 

ELA ELA Membership ( 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2022) $675.00 1.00 $675.00 

Dues not processed before September 15 will result in a disruption of services. Officers or 
employees of LEAs that have not paid dues by September will not be granted access to 
CSBA's Annual Education Conference and Trade Show. AEC registrations made absent 
membership dues will be canceled on September 15. Registrants will be refunded, minus 
a processing fee, and hotel reservations canceled on September 16. 

Total Invoice: $4,212.00 Total Paid: $0.00 Balance Due: $4,212.00 

PLEASE DETACH HERE AND RETURN BOTTOM STUB WITH PAYMENT 

csba 
California School Boards Association 

Customer Number Invoice Number Invoice Date Terms Balance Due 

100004 INV-55324-SOT2B4 05/28/2021 $4,212.00 

Make checks payable to: 
California School Boards Association - CSB (6744) 
c/o West America Bank 
P.O. Box 1450 
Suisun City, CA 94585-4450 

Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 



California School Boards Association 
(916) 371-4691 

cs13a9 Please refer to your invoice number and customer 
number in all communications regarding this invoice. 

Invoice Number Invoice Date PO # 
INV-57128-C6B0S7 5/28/2021 

Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 

Ship To: 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St., Ste. A 
Colusa, CA 95932 
United States 

Product Code Description Unit Price Quantity Extended Terms 
Price 

GAMUT/POLICY Gamut Policy ( 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2022) $2,525.00 1.00 $2,525.00 Net 30 

WAIT! Have you renewed your CSBA Membership for 2021/2022? Only CSBA members 
enjoy exclusive access to GAMUT and our valuable trainings and services. Don't forget to 
renew your CSBA membership by September 15 to maintain uninterrupted access. 

You should have also received a GAMUT service agreement with your renewal packet. 
Please email signed agreements to gannut@csba.org. 

Total Invoice: $2,525.00 Total Paid: $0.00 Balance Due: $2,525.00 

PLEASE DETACH HERE AND RETURN BOTTOM STUB WITH PAYMENT 

csba 
California School Boards Association 

Customer Number Invoice Number Invoice Date Terms Balance Due 

100004 INV-57128-C6B0S7 05/28/2021 Net 30 $2,525.00 

Make checks payable to: 
California School Boards Association - CSB (6744) 
c/o West America Bank 
P.O. Box 1450 
Suisun City, CA 94585-4450 

Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 



CALIFORNIA COUNTY 
BOARDS OF EDUCATION 
A Voto for EA,tcati,ori 

Benefits of Membership 

California County Boards of Education (CCBE) membership gives county board members 
access to resources that help them fulfill their unique and complex governance and 
leadership roles. CCBE is here to help its members, whether a member has been part of 
the education community for many years or is just starting out. CCBE understands support 
is necessary for its members to make thoughtful decisions that result in increased student 
achievement. CCBE is a dynamic network of members maximizing educational 
opportunities for all and is an essential part of our state's K-12 education leadership, 
providing a voice for County Boards at the state and federal levels. 

Membership to the California County Boards of Education (CCBE) is composed of only 
member county boards, including those that are both county and district boards. 
Membership is based on a fiscal year, starting July 1, and ending June 30. Membership to 
the California School Boards Association (CSBA) is a requisite to CCBE membership. 

The benefits of membership far outweigh the annual cost of membership and allow CCBE 
to continue to provide these services while covering operational costs. To learn more about 
CCBE, please view the CCBE President video at http://theccbe.org/en/Membership. Below 
are the benefits you receive as part of your membership to CCBE. 

Advocacy efforts: CCBE raises public awareness of important public education issues 
and reviews and takes positions on proposed state and federal legislation that affects 
county members and county offices of education. 

Policy services: CCBE in collaboration with CSBA, provides a series of sample board 
policies for use by county offices of education that reflect recent legislation, court decisions 
and educational trends. These sample policies are available through CSBA's Gamut Online 
and are continuously updated throughout the year in a joint effort between CCBE members 
and CSBA. 

Professional development: CCBE offers specific training for newly elected and first-term 
county board members as well as continued professional development opportunities for 
veteran members. In addition, CCBE provides county board members with the opportunity 
to focus on specific county issues, leadership development and network with other county 
board members at its Annual Conference. 

Communications: CCBE provides its members with a County Perspective section in 
CSBA's monthly California School News publication, CCBE website, and an electronic 
directory updated each spring containing contact information for CCBE, CSBA and 
CCSESA leadership and county office of education board members and superintendents. 

General Membership: The General Membership meets twice a year where member 
counties receive reports from CCBE's committees and leadership, initiate, review, amend 
and adopt organizational bylaws, policies, goals, objectives and resolutions, and elect 
nominating committee members and CCBE officers. Meetings are open to all county 
member boards that have paid in full the annual CSBA and CCBE membership dues. 

3251 Beacon Boulevard I West Sacramento, CA 95691 I (916) 669-3281 I Fax (916) 371-3407 I www.theccbe.orq  



Who we are Recent activities 

CSBA's Education Legal Alliance 

Fighting for 
public schools 

since 1992 

The California School Boards Association's 

Education Legal Alliance is a consortium of 

school districts, county offices of education, and 

Regional Occupational Centers/Programs that have 

voluntarily joined together for the past 29 years 

to create a powerful force to pursue and defend 

a broad spectrum of statewide public education 

interests before state and federal courts, state 

agencies and the Legislature. 

I/  What we do 

>> Initiate litigation on issues of statewide importance, 

such as Proposition 98 funding 

>> File amicus briefs and letters supporting school 

districts and county offices of education on issues 

of statewide importance to public schools 

->› Advocate for education-related legislation 

>) Provide information to members on ELA issues 

How we work 

An advisory committee of experienced school 

law attorneys assists in providing legal analysis 

and recommendations for ELA involvement to the 

Steering Committee. 

ELA involvement is reviewed by a broad-based 

Steering Committee consisting of school board 

members, superintendents, and statewide 

education leaders. 

Hundreds of Millions of Dollars Saved for School Districts: 

In recent years, the Eli\ settled three lawsuits brought against the 

State CSBA v. Cohen I, CSBA v. Cohen if and CSBA v. Bosler — 

resulting in repayment of $686 million to California public schools 

for underpayment in prior years. The ELA will continue to fight to 

ensure public schools receive all the funding they are entitled to, 

and to block any manipulation of Proposition 98 funds. 

Amicus Support:  The ELA's amicus work ensures courts 

understand the impact their decision vvill have on districts and 

county offices of education throughout the state, including: 

Brennon B. v West Contra Costa USD: protecting LEAs against 

excessive damages awards under the misapplication of the Unruh 

Act, which aims to protect individuals from discrimination by 

"business establishments" 

›) CP V Walnut v Fremont USD: ensuring LEAs can assess 

appropriate developer fees to build and modernize 

school facilities 

'2) Crawford v. Commission on Professional Competence of 

Jurupa USD: protecting LEAs' ability to make appropriate 

school staffing decisions when staff display immoral conduct 

›› Gordon v LAUSD: fighting unreasonable attorney's fees in 

special education litigation against LEAs 

THANK YOU 
for your support! 

Your annual contribution to Education Legal Alliance ensures 

that we can continue this vital work. For more information 

about your membership, please contact the CSBA legal 

department at  (800) 266-3382  or  legal@csba.org . 

csba California School Boards Association, Education Legal Alliance 

3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 

www.csba.org/ELA  May/2021 



Thank you for your dedication 
to your community and to 
California's public schools. 

4 

Together 
we persevere 

In 2021, CSBA continues its dedicated advocacy on behalf of public schools  as the 
COV1D-19 pandemic persists, and is working tirelessly to support our members with: 

ADVOCACY 

BROADBAND ACCESS:  As result of CSBA's advocacy, the Broadband 

for All Bond Act of 2022 (Assembly Bill 34, Muratsuchi) was introduced 

in March 2021 — a bill that would place a $10 billion bond on the 2022 

ballot to provide internet access for California's most underserved students 

and families. CSBA continues to aggressively advocate for legislation 

that bridges the digital divide, supporting several measures to increase 

broadband access. 

REOPENING:  Several concerns voiced by CSBA were reflected in the 

enacted school reopening plan (AB 86), including key vaccine provisions 

and necessary funding needed to help LEAs reopen campuses, and 

ensuring that LEAs already offering in-person instruction were reflected. 

VACCINES:  CSBA efforts in 2020 and into 2021 have helped to ensure 

that all public education employees were prioritized in vaccine distribution 

efforts. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION WEEK:  Held March 15-19, CSBA's first-ever virtual 

statewide advocacy event attracted a record number of participants — 372 

school district and county governing board members attended 98 advocacy 

meetings with local legislators. 

FEDERAL ADVOCACY:  CSBA continues to consistently engage with 

federal representatives on public education funding and key policy issues, 

including increases in special education funding and federal funding for 

broadband access in economic stimulus packages. 

2021-22 STATE BUDGET:  The January budget proposal included a 

two-year cost-of-living adjustment for the Local Control Funding Formula 

and would pay off four of the five education deferrals from the 2020-21 

budget (both are top CSBA priorities). CSBA is advocating for the use of 

higher-than-expected state revenues to eliminate all 2020-21 deferrals. 

%.  California School Boards Association I 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691  I  www.csba.org  



COMMUNICATION Pa RESOURCES 

TV AND RADIO:  CSBA officers and staff have 

appeared in more than 40 TV and radio spots 

since January 1 promoting the work of governance 

teams to support students during the pandemic 

and advocating for the resources and guidance 

needed to safely reopen schools. 

'SCHOOL BOARDS IN ACTION':  This new CSBA 

Blog series was launched in February, highlighting 

the resourcefulness of school districts and county 

offices of education in responding to COVID-19. 

SAMPLE RESOLUTIONS:  Resolution language is 

now available for members on addressing climate 

change, and condemning harassment, violence and 

hatred toward people of Asian descent. 

Webinars:  Hosted for CSBA members, 
2021 webinars have included: 

Broadband for California.  Connecting to Our Promise 

The School Reopening Bill (AB 86): Separating Fact from Fiction 

The path to reopening schools: Early research and the 

current California landscape. 

Equitable support for California students during the 

COVID-19 crisis 

School's in for Summer. Strategies for Successful Summer 

Programs and Beyond 

Extending Learning: Governance for Developing Effective 

Learning Recovery Plans 

MEMBER SERVICES AND P 

ANNUAL EDUCATION CONFERENCE:  AEC was held 

entirely virtual in 2020, with 2021 options to include both 

in person in San Diego on Dec. 2-4, and a virtual offering 

on Dec. 9-10. Registration opens June 8 — visit 

aec.csba.org  for more info. 

ONLINE LEARNING CENTER:  CSBA is providing its 

members 24/7 access to current and relevant content, with 

nine courses on COVID-19 and recently added modules 

on ethics and equity. Learn more at www.csba.org/ 

onlinelearning. 

VIRTUAL TRAININGS: 

Virtual trainings have continued in 2021 — including 

Brown Act sessions, Board Presidents Workshops and 

Institutes for New and First-Term Board Members — with 

in-person Masters in Governance courses being offered 

for the fall (pending guidance from the state allowing for 

in-person gatherings). 

Masters in Governance has a newly integrated focus on 

equity and a track specific for county offices of education. 

Added in 2021: Executive Assistant Certification Program, 

which develops the role of the executive assistant as an 

integral member of the school governance team. 

EQUITY NETWORK:  Seventy-five board members and 

superintendents from 25 LEAs are participating in a new 

four-part professional development program, building 

capacity to govern through an equity lens. 

POLICY SERVICES:  Created a variety of sample board 

policies and regulations on topics such as Title IX sexual 

harassment complaint procedures and district police/ 

security departments, and updated a number of policies 

affected by COVID-19, including employee safety, work-

related injuries, charter school renewal and high school 

graduation requirements. 

EDUCATION LEGAL ALLIANCE:  The ELA continues to 

aggressively fight to support its members throughout the 

COVID-19 pandemic, pursuing and defending public education 

interests in the courts and before state agencies. 

Our partnership with our members is what makes our work 

possible! Nearly 1,000 LEAs — school districts, county 

offices of education and ROC/Ps — rely on our wide range of 

continually expanding services, including legislative and legal 

advocacy, leadership development, board policy development 

and maintenance, policy research and guidance, media and 

community relations, district services and financial programs, 

and much more. 

Renew your CSBA membership for 2021-22. 

For more information, please contact CSBA's Director of Membership Aaron Davis 

at 916-669-3274 or adavis@csba.org  I  www.csba.org  

California School Boards Association 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 I www.csba.org  



- 

CSBA 

 \ IMUT  policy 
> Communicate, collaborate, share 

GAMUT Policy Plus software enables quick and easy links to meetings, bringing together two of the 

tools you need to effectively manage your policies online. 

Keep your board members, staff and community updated and accountable with online access to 

the latest policies and administrative procedures. 

FEATURES INCLUDE: 

Policy Management:  Manage board policies, administrative regulations, procedures and 

exhibits — all in one place. 

Legal References:  Link policies directly to related legal references and empower 

stakeholders to investigate questions on their own. 

Safety and Security:  Restrict access to draft policies with permissions for public or 

private access. 

Sample Policies:  Access hundreds of sample policies, regulations, bylaws and 

exhibits that are updated regularly throughout the year. 

And now you can host and update your school district/COE policies online 

with GAMUT Policy Plus.  Policy Plus includes ongoing policy consulting and 

gives you the option to edit and post your adopted policies directly or submit 

drafts to CSBA for review and consultation. Learn more by contacting CSBA at 

gamut@csba.org. 



CSBA 

%06.1vitn- 

IT'S TIME 
TO GO 

PAPERLESS.  

NEVER BE DEPENDENT ON A COPY MACHINE again to 
9 

produce board meeting packets. Packed with time-saving features, 

GAMUT Meetings paperless board meeting management software 

helps you streamline meeting preparation and provide easy and st) 

secure access to meeting materials. 

Features include: 

 

Multiple Meeting Types: Manage all your 

meetings types in one, convenient location 

Enhanced Printing Feature: One click 

printing of your entire board packet, 

including attachments 

  

Secure Remote Access: Develop and manage 

meetings from remote locations 

Personal Notes: Create personalized, private 

notes on individual agenda items 

Roles and Permissions: Streamline meeting 

preparation and approval 

Meeting Minutes: Create and deliver meeting 

minutes and record votes 

    

     

  

Advanced Search: Search meetings and 

quickly sort by meeting type, date and more 

NEW—Enhanced Agenda Workflow: 

Manage the routing of agenda items for 

item preparation, review and approval 

 

     

   

Safety and Security: Create public or private 

meeting and limit item visibility by role 

 

      

Subscribe today!  To learn more or schedule a free demo, please call (800) 266-3382 or email gamut@csba.org. 



Learn on  your 
schedule. 

ONLINE LEARNING FOR SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 

• to a wide variety of topics affecting 

school board members. Choose from topics including a 15-minute Brown Act course or a two-part 

course covering the closing/reopening of public schools during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

With more than 45 courses available — and new topics added regularly  you are sure to find 
the right fit for your training needs. Visit  www.csba.orgionlinelearning  to view our full list 
of courses. 

BA's 65 c 

Try a new learning experience today.  Subscribe to CSBA's Online 
Learning Center! csba.org/onlinelearning  



 
 

 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS AND THE 
COLUSA COUNTY EDUCATION SERVICES PROFESSIONALS (CCESP) 

 
Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to publicly 
disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or formats, 
but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

 
A.   Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2021 ‐ June 30, 2022 

 
B.   Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2021: 

 

 Article XVIII Salaries, 1. Unit Member:  3% increase on 2021‐2022 salary schedules 140, 

150, 151 

Adjustments to other compensation issues, effective October 1, 2021: 

 Article XIX Health and Fringe Benefits, 5. Cap:  The Superintendent’s yearly contribution 
for dental, vision, and health benefits shall be increased to ten thousand five hundred 
dollars ($10,500) annually. 

 
C.   Adjustments to non‐compensation issues:  

 Revised Paraeducator, Translator/Interpreter, and Transportation Assistant job 
descriptions, effective June 1, 2021  
 

D.   Current and subsequent sources of funding: 
 

 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the SELPA 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education on the 14th 
day of July 2021. 
 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 



 
 
 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
AND THE 

EDUCATORS OF COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (ECCOE) 

 
Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to 
publicly disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or 
formats, but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

 
A.   Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2021 ‐ June 30, 2022 

 
B.   Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2021: 

 

 Articles 20.2‐20.3:  3% increase on 2021‐2022 salary schedules 115, 115 A, 115 
B, 120, 121, 125 (salary schedule 115 B was created for Preschool Teacher 
work year of 190 days) 

 
Adjustments to other compensation issues, effective October 1, 2021: 

 Added Article 20.9 Extra Duty Outside of Contracted Workday: 
a. Must be paid normal hourly rate of pay 
b. Outdoor school service will receive a one‐time stipend of $750 per 

week 
c. Prior written approval of the Assistant Superintendent of Special 

Education must be received before extra duty service is performed 

 Appendix A, D. Cap:  The Superintendent’s yearly contribution for dental, 
vision, and health benefits shall be increased to ten thousand five hundred 
dollars ($10,500) annually. 

 
C.   Current and subsequent sources of funding: 

 
 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special 

Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the 
SELPA. 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education 
on the 14th day of July 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, August 11, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No July Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

7.2 Board Superintendent’s Salary Committee Update  information 

7.3 Board Budget Sub‐Committee Policy Update  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the July 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

10.5 Approve Return to In‐person Board Meetings and Eliminating the  action 
  Zoom Option   



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

11.1 Approve 2021‐22 Final Consolidated Application  action 

11.2 Approve Process to Sell CCOE Property ‐ Assessor’s  action 
  Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 

11.3 Approve Superintendents Salary  action 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
September 8, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  July 2021        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Cabinet meeting Strengths Discovery training. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 Completed NHSA Director’s Credential July 23, 2021. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team. 
 State and Federal Webinars. 
 Child Plus & NOHO data systems trainings. 
 Leadership Retreat Strengths Discovery training. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Continue to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 In-Service/Pre-Service for August:  Theme:  Dream BIG 
 Prepare for full enrollment and attendance. 
 Planning SEL Plan and implementing Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional support. 
 Developing a Staff Wellness Plan. 
 Provide virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Attend training for In-home childcare providers contracted with CS. 
 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 
 Community recruitment events in Arbuckle. 
 Learning Genie Family App. 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 
August 2021 

  
 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• The S. William Abel students will return to campus on August 11, 2021. 

 
Colusa County Adult School 

• The Colusa County Adult School will host the Welcome Back night for adult students on August 23, 
2021at 4:00 PM. 

• Adult Ed Classes will begin on September 7, 2021. 
• Wildland Fire Academy Applications will be released on August 2, 2021. 
• CNA Applications for the Fall Cohort are due on August 17, 2021. 

 
Farm to School 

• The Farm to School Program is looking for Farm to School Project Coordinator.  Share the word!   
 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 
• The next meetings will take place on 8/9 and 8/12.   

 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

• Technical assistance was provided to Williams USD to complete and submit their end of year CSI report  
 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Districts that were identified for DA will continue to be provided Tier I support this school year.  
 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• District LCAPs are pending CCOE approval as well as CDE approval for the S. William Abel Academy 
LCAP.  

 
North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

• On August 13, our four county consortia team leads will provide an ESSER III Plan Funding - Return to 
School Plan “lunch and learn” to discuss the draft template, stakeholder involvement, assurances, 
expenditure plan criteria, and timeline.  All district administrators are invited to attend. 

 
Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

• The Colusa SEL CoP teams are creating and submitting their SEL Plans to Educational Services, as well as 
delivering capacity building in their districts and county office departments to help kids and families. The grant 
that funds the SEL CoP expired on August 8, 2021, however there are discussions about extending financing 
for another six months.  

• Educational Services received Strengths Finder training. Each team member completed a Clifton Strengths 
evaluation to determine their own combination of 34 themes. Executing, Influencing, Relationship Building, 
and Strategic Thinking are the four domains in which the topics are organized. The domains are utilized to 
gain a deeper understanding of coworkers, including what they excel in, where they may struggle, and how 
they work together. 

 

 



Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• We are in the process of planning for the Second Step program with Children Services, Williams USD, 

and Prevention Services. On July 30, we held interviews to hire a third Child Aide to deliver Second 
Step instruction at the Arbuckle and Colusa Children's Centers. One candidate has been selected and is 
currently undergoing reference checks. 

 
Foster Youth 

• The Title IV-E MOU addendum has been fully executed. We are waiting on the transportation MOU to 
be fully executed now.  

• Quarter four invoice for Title IV-E has been sent to DHHS for reimbursement. 
• The AB 2083 MOU has also been fully executed to create positive and efficient systems of care for 

foster youth.  
• CCOE has partnered with Woodland Community College – Colusa County Campus to host a FAFSA 

night on January 21st, 2022 for any youth in the county who has missed their district’s FAFSA night. We 
are also working on partnering with Travis Credit Union to provide financial literacy at the event.  

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• McKinney-Vento and Foster youth educational rights trainings will be hosted for educators, 

administrators, secretaries, and parents/caregivers mid-August. Please see attachments.  
• Alejandra has been working closely with the business department to close out the grants for 2020-2021 

to submit expenditure reports by 7/31/2021.  
• The Prevention Services Department has been busy planning for the 2021-22 school year and are ready 

to start providing technical assistance to school districts again! 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• Estefania has been working with school districts in obtaining signed California Healthy Kids Survey 

MOUs in order to submit them to WestEd. The 2021-22 school year is a required year to complete the 
CHKS surveys.  

• The Prevention Services Department has scheduled a meeting with the Tobacco Education Program of 
the Colusa County Public Health Department and the Colusa County Sheriff’s Office to align the TUPE, 
TEP, and DOJ grants to discuss how to better serve Colusa County and reduce the impacts of Tobacco 
on the community. 

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 
• Quarter 4 progress report and expenditure report has gone out to DOJ for reimbursement.  

 
 



C O L U S A  C O U N T Y

O F F I C E  O F  E D U C A T I O N

MCKINNEY-
VENTO 101
A high-level overview of the

educational rights of children and

youth experiencing homelessness

under Subtitle VII-B of the McKinney-

Vento Homeless Assistance Act. This

provides an overview for folks familiar

with the McKinney-Vento Act, as well

as for those that are learning about it

for the first time.

Different dates and times available

To register visit:
https://linktr.ee/MV101

 

or 
 

Scan the QR Code 

 For Parents, Guardians, and Students

https://linktr.ee/MV101


O F I C I N A  D E  E D U C A C I Ó N

D E L  C O N D A D O  D E  C O L U S A

MCKINNEY-
VENTO 101

Una descripción general de alto nivel de

los derechos educativos de los niños y

jóvenes sin hogar bajo el Subtítulo VII-B

de la Ley de Asistencia para Personas

sin Hogar McKinney-Vento. Esto

proporciona una descripción general

para las personas familiarizadas con la

Ley McKinney-Vento, así como para

aquellos que están aprendiendo sobre

ella por primera vez.

Diferentes fechas y horarios disponibles

Para registrarse visite:
https://linktr.ee/MV101

 

o 
 

Escanea el código QR

Para Padres, Tutores, y Estudiantes

https://linktr.ee/MV101


C O L U S A  C O U N T Y

O F F I C E  O F  E D U C A T I O N

MCKINNEY-
VENTO &
FOSTER 101

A high-level overview of the

educational rights of children and

youth experiencing homelessness

under Subtitle VII-B of the McKinney-

Vento Homeless Assistance Act. This

provides an overview for folks familiar

with the McKinney-Vento Act, as well

as for those that are learning about it

for the first time.

Different dates and times available

To register visit:
https://linktr.ee/MV_F101

 

or 
 

Scan the QR Code 

For Administrators, Counselors, Teachers, and
Secretatries

https://linktr.ee/MV_F101


C O L U S A  C O U N T Y

O F F I C E  O F  E D U C A T I O N

FOSTER 101
FOR
CAREGIVERS
This workshop will guide caregivers in

knowing the educational rights of their

student in foster care. It will also

support caregivers with tips on how to

support their child, as well as

community resources available to them. 

To register visit:
https://tinyurl.com/Foster101 

 

or 
 

Scan the QR Code 

August 30, 2021
5:30pm to 6:30pm

https://tinyurl.com/Foster101


  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report August 11, 2021 

 

We have started the process of deploying the EduNet for Colusa Unified School District.  
We have setup the point to point on top of the Colusa High School Gym.  We also have 
setup the point to point, LTE Radio and Antenna on top of the Pirelli Tanks.  We are 
currently working on a power issue at Pirelli.  The City of Colusa is assisting us with 
changing out the power receptacle with the correct plug.  Then we should be ready to 
check the alignment of the equipment. Next week we plan to start the Colusa 
Reclamation District as well. 
 
We are working with Maxwell Unified to try and leverage Emergency Connectivity Funds 
to provide internet access to students in Stonyford.  This may involve a partnership with 
Glenn County Office of Education.  Options are still being explored. 
 
Legal has reviewed our “Permission to Install Free Internet Service Equipment and 
Waiver of Claims” form that we have created for the EduNet.  Parents will sign this form 
prior to having the district mount the external routers on students’ homes for students 
that live outside of the internal router coverage.  We have found a vendor that is 
interested in conducting the installations.  We will be working with the districts to 
coordinate planning. 
 
We have been configuring the new iBoss web filter for installation.  The new iBoss 
hardware is installed and configured.  We are optimizing it with support. 
 
Annual purchase orders have been issues for support and licensing renewals.   
 
We are in the process of setting up our new firewall. 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting July 14, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Jennifer Jelavich, Fernando 

Lomeli, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, William Mitchum, 
Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Blanca Villaruel, Chuck Wayman, 
Michael West, and Karisa Williams.  Unable to attend was Benjamin 
Perez 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Tina Maxwell spoke about the CCBE Annual Conference registration and hotel deadlines. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on four recent graduates from the Colusa County Adult 
School and the S. William Abel Academy.  Lorilee introduced the three graduates 
in attendance one at a time, presented them with diplomas, gave the graduates 
a portfolio to organize their professional papers, and asked them to share with 
the Board their plans for the future and to introduce their guests.  Lorilee 
reported on the number of students served and awarded diplomas in 2020. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West said that Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff 
are continuing to trend downward.  Regarding the districts he said that 
WUSD and CUSD Superintendent positions are filled and in place, the 
Burchfield Elementary School Principal was hired, WUSD is fully staffed 
with other districts are doing well, and fall planning Includes all options of 
instruction.  Michael reported on the $123.9 billion State Budget for Pre‐
K and K‐12 that the Governor signed, and he provided education updates 
that included a study to utilize Accelerated Learning and Universal 
Transitional Kindergarten by 2025.  Discussion was held on monies in the 
budget for teacher preparation programs.  Michael spoke about 
legislation such as AB 104 – Pupil instruction: retention, grade changes, 
and exemptions and AB/SB 130 – TK‐12 Education finance that addresses 
Independent Study (IS).  Discussion was held on high school teachers 
needing support, universities’ efforts to get students into their 
classrooms, on the funding that goes to the districts, and on IS 
coursework and engagement protocols needing to be the same as in the 
classroom.  Michael also spoke about the types of IS instruction models 
and on parental and student rights to Independent Study.  Michael 
reported on the Williams Settlement Act, on Social Emotional Learning 
and Support, on After School and Summer School Expansion, on Free 
School Nutrition for all students, on the increased number of well‐
prepared staff needed per student, and on full‐service Community 
Schools to support SEL and SES for the well‐being of students.  Discussion 
was held on free school meals for students at all income levels, funding 
for the free school meals, and the direction of Community School 
changing to an alternative education umbrella.  Michael talked about 
Federal Funding increases that include $3 billion to support children with 
disabilities and support for ESSER Fund I, II, and III templates and 
guidance. Michael provided a COVID 19 update that included 
amendments to the Governor’s Executive Orders, on three differing 
versions of guidance from the CDC, CDPH, and Cal OSHA that each have 
varying degrees of masking requirements, on a coalition of seventeen 
COEs that have agreed to sign a declaration of the flawed guidance issued 
by the Governor, CDPH, and Cal OSHA.  Discussion was held on the 
exodus of students to private education, the date for the mask mandate 
to end, other states’ masking requirements, different agencies that have 
conflicting instructions with local regulation, the potential for Cal OSHA 
enforcement, the unhealthy aspects of student masks, hypocritical mask 
requirements, and Cal OSHA’s ability to visit campuses.  Michael updated 
the Board on other fiscal matters including $3 billion one‐time monies 
given to Community School programs for support and prevention 
services, technical assistance, and a $150 million CTE incentive grant; 
$3.1 million for CAEP; and information on school employer contribution 
rates for CalSTRS (maintaining from prior but increasing next year) and 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

CalPERS (reducing from prior but increasing slightly next year).  
Discussion was held on the employee contribution rate, the monies 
helping students with Michael saying that it is not a matter of monies it is 
a matter of time and lack of staff, on staff training prior to start of school, 
on the low pool of candidates, on providing career training through CTE, 
adult education, or some other method to increase the pool of qualified 
applicants, on districts starting their own internship programs, on 
programs to have student teachers running classrooms under mentor 
teachers, and on afterschool programs.  Michael also talked about the 
continuing process and protocol for the sale of the surplus property in 
Williams, which will be brought to the Board during their August meeting 
with the expectation that bids will be brought to and accepted during the 
September meeting. Discussion was held on how the monies will be 
spent.  Michael West reported on Aaron Heinz’s absence, and he 
announced that August 4, 2021, will be Jennifer Jelavich’s last day with 
CCOE and he thanked her for her great work as Communications and 
Public Relations Director.  Michael added that Jennifer has been working 
with Alissa Maas to provide a smooth transition into the Directorship. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No June Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Serena Morrow directed the Board’s attention to Aaron Heinz’s July 2021 
Administrative Services written report and the Board did not have any questions 
or comments. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ July 
2021 Children’s Services written report. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐
Espinoza’s July 2021 Educational Services written report. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman presented the SELPA June 14 Public Hearing and the June 15 
Meeting minutes.  Discussion was held on Chuck’s excellent relationship with the 
districts and his efforts to help SELPA members understand the budget.  He then 
answered the Board’s questions about CBA enrollment and on reevaluating the 
school’s mission.  Chuck credited Connor O’Kelley for being the reason the 
program is doing so well. 

6.5.1 SELPA – June 14, 2021, Public Hearing 
No questions or comments. 

6.5.2 SELPA – June 15, 2021, Meeting 
No questions or comments. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ July 2021 
Technology Services written report and Alex added that the EduNet will be 
deployed at CUSD next Tuesday. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

7.2 Superintendent’s Salary Committee Update 
Ed Conrado reported that the Superintendent’s Salary Committee is in the 
process of reviewing the information and they hope to have information to bring 
to the Board in August. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action. Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry 
Morrell) to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the June 8, 2021, Public Hearing 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the June 9, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

No report. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that he met with architects about the Adult Education 
portable placement at the Village.  He said that plans were submitted to the DSA, 
but those were rejected and will be resubmitted on Thursday.  Discussion was 
held on the location of the portable, which will be next to the CHP office.  
Michael said that the Facilities team is moving ahead with the low water and 
maintenance landscaping project in front of the Education Village. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported CCOE’s LCAP was submitted to the CDE and the 
four district LCAPs were submitted to Aaron Heinz for a funding review.  She 
added that work has begun on ESSER III Plans. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams thanked staff 
for keeping the program going while she was on leave.  Karisa reported on grant 
activities, including 100 million words read in the F2B program, upcoming F2B 
marketing, day care provider training, virtual summer school, daycare provider 
home visits to install iPad updates and assisting children with logging on, 
Facebook story times, participation in the Children’s Services’ Children’s Fair in 
Arbuckle where they gave out literacy kits (which equaled 156 books), providing 
backpacks full of books to children at the WCC, and the iPad lending program 
(which distributed over 300 devices).  Alissa Maas reported on F2B books, 
reading levels, and literacy games.  Karisa added that IAL will be holding F2B 
training for Children’s Services staff, and that they are entering the last year of 
the IAL grant.  Michael West announced that Alissa and Karisa will present to 
Rotary next Tuesday, and that Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza submitted a suggestion to 
F2B to include Latin American nursery rhymes and her suggestion was accepted. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Discussion on Current Board Policy Regarding Budget Committee 

Cristy Edwards read aloud the Board Policy regarding the Budget Committee.  
Michael West said that it is the Board’s prerogative to either keep the 
Committee or revise the policy.  Cristy polled the Board and the following 
opinions were heard: 

Trustee  Opinion 

Jason McMullan  In favor of keeping the policy as is. 

Brenda Miller  The policy should be removed because budget information 
received should be presented as is to the entire Board at 
the same time. 

Cristy Edwards  Shared Brenda’s opinion, but encouraged training for new 
Board members on the budget. 

Barry Morrell  Shared Brenda’s opinion regarding the Board presentation 
but suggested modifying the policy instead of removing it. 

Ed Conrado  Agreed that the policy should be revised with a training 
component, but he did not believe it should be removed. 

Ed recommended a committee of Board members to review and revise the 
policy and procedure with Aaron.  Brenda and Jason will form that committee.  
Discussion was held on the budget review process. 

11.2 Approve Return to In‐person Board Meetings and Eliminating the Zoom Option 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, to return to in‐person Board 
meetings and eliminating the Zoom option, but the motion was withdrawn. 
 
Discussion was held on reasons to eliminate the Zoom option and reasons to 
keep it as is in case the pandemic ramps up again.  Tina Maxwell drew the 
Board’s attention to the Governor’s Executive order N‐08‐21, which returns the 
teleconferencing rules to pre‐pandemic Brown Act conditions as of September 
30, 2021. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

Cristy Edwards/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried five 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) 
to approve tabling the return to in‐person Board meetings and eliminating the 
Zoom option, with the flexibility to bring the Zoom option back immediately if 
necessary. 

11.3 Approve the 2021‐22 Consolidated Application 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that this is a draft because the Title I A 
application needs to be removed.  Discussion was held on applying for Title I A 
funds. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the 2021‐22 Consolidated Application. 

11.4 Approve HDV Employer Contribution Increase Recommendation 
11.4.1 Board of Education 
11.4.2 County Superintendent of Schools 
Serena Morrow reported that CCOE settled with bargaining units and the 
agreements included an HDV cap increase from $10,290 to $10,500 annually.  
Discussion was held on HDV cost increases, and all employees having the same 
HDV cap. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the recommended HDV employer contribution increase from $10,290 to 
$10,500 annually for both the Board of Education and the County 
Superintendent of Schools. 

11.5 Approve Children’s Services Inventory as Surplus for Disposal 
Vicki Markss explained the need to dispose of a Children’s Services’ van, siting 
safety issues and high maintenance costs as the cause. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one abstain (Jason 
McMullan) to approve Children’s Services inventory as surplus for disposal. 

11.6 Approve CSBA Dues 
Discussion was held on the ELA membership, continuing memberships from last 
year, the value of the memberships, and on the Board’s history with the 
memberships, and the future need for the ELA. 
 
Jason McMullan/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve paying CSBA, CCBE, and ELA membership dues. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 7 

11.7 Public Disclosure of the 2021‐22 Negotiated Agreement Between the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Education Services 
Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this document discloses to the Board and to the 
public the negotiated agreement between CCOE and the Colusa County 
Education Services Professionals (CCESP). 

11.8 Public Disclosure of the 2021‐22 Negotiated Agreement Between the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools and the Educators of Colusa County Office of 
Education (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this document discloses to the Board and to the 
public the negotiated agreement between CCOE and the Educators of Colusa 
County Office of Education (ECCOE). 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Board Superintendent’s Salary Committee Update 
Board Budget Committee Policy Update 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
August 11, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 6:13 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

CAEP  California Adult Education Program 

Cal OSHA  California Occupational Safety and Health Act 

CalPERS  California Public Employees Retirement System 

CalSTRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDC  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

CHP  California Highway Patrol 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CSBA  California School Boards Association 

CTE  Career Technical Education 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

DSA  Division of State Architecture 

ECCOE  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

ELA  Education Legal Alliance 

ESSER  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

HDV  Health, Dental, & Vision (in terms of insurance) 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

IS  Independent Study 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

SB  Senate Bill 

SEL  Social and Emotional Learning 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SES  Social and Emotional Support 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

WCC  Williams Children's Center 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



10.5





Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2018-19 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 36 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2021.

CDE Program Contact:
Arianna Bobadilla (Fiscal), Division Support Office, ABobadilla@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0208
Lisa Fassett (Program), Standards Implementation Support Office, LFassett@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-4963

2018-19 Title II, Part A allocation $638

Transferred-in amount $0

Transferred-out amount $0

2018-19 Total allocation $638

Professional Development Expenditures

Professional development for teachers

Professional development for administrators $584

All other professional development expenditures

Recruitment, Training, and Retention Expenditures

Recruitment activities

Training activities

Retention activities

All other recruitment, training, and retention expenditures

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Class size reduction

Administrative and indirect costs $54

Equitable services for nonprofit private schools

All other allowable expenditures and encumbrances

Total expenditures and encumbrances $638

2018-19 Unspent funds $0

Page 1 of 1Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2019-20 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 24 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2021.

CDE Program Contact:
Arianna Bobadilla (Fiscal), Division Support Office, ABobadilla@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0208
Lisa Fassett (Program), Standards Implementation Support Office, LFassett@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-4963

2019-20 Title II, Part A allocation $1,576

Transferred-in amount $0

Transferred-out amount $0

2019-20 Total allocation $1,576

Professional Development Expenditures

Professional development for teachers

Professional development for administrators $1,551

All other professional development expenditures

Recruitment, Training, and Retention Expenditures

Recruitment activities

Training activities

Retention activities

All other recruitment, training, and retention expenditures

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Class size reduction

Administrative and indirect costs $25

Equitable services for nonprofit private schools

All other allowable expenditures and encumbrances

Total expenditures and encumbrances $1,576

2019-20 Unspent funds $0

Page 1 of 1Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2020-21 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 12 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021.

CDE Program Contact:
Arianna Bobadilla (Fiscal), Division Support Office, ABobadilla@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0208
Lisa Fassett (Program), Standards Implementation Support Office, LFassett@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-4963

2020-21 Title II, Part A allocation $881

Transferred-in amount $0

Transferred-out amount $0

2020-21 Total allocation $881

Professional Development Expenditures

Professional development for teachers $0

Professional development for administrators $870

All other professional development expenditures $0

Recruitment, Training, and Retention Expenditures

Recruitment activities $0

Training activities $0

Retention activities $0

All other recruitment, training, and retention expenditures $0

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Class size reduction $0

Administrative and indirect costs $11

Equitable services for nonprofit private schools $0

All other allowable expenditures and encumbrances $0

Total expenditures and encumbrances $881

2020-21 Unspent funds $0

Page 1 of 1Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rina DeRose, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDerose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

CDE Program Contact: 

School Name School Code Authorized SWP Low Income % Local Board 
Approval Date 

SWP Plan 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

Local Board 
Approval Date 
SWP Waiver 

(MM/DD/YYYY)

SIG Approval 
Date 

(MM/DD/YYYY)

Coastal Buttes 0136580 N

S. William Abel Academy 0630111 N

Page 1 of 1Report Date:7/22/2021 R06

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000)

2020–21 Title I, Part A Notification of Authorization of Schoolwide Program

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza
Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

This report provides notification to the California Department of Education of a school's eligibility and local board approval to operate under and report as 
Schoolwide Program.



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca21assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Assistant Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 07/22/2021

Page 1 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 Protected Prayer Certification
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally 
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and 
provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Carrie Lopes, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, CLopes@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0126

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that 
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in 
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and 
Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Authorized Representative's Title Assistant Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/23/2021

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be 
provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must 
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply 
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in 
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP 
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the 
California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to 
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying 
for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption 
date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District 05/31/2018

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved 
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day 
the COE approved the current LCAP

Direct Funded Charter

Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Authorized Representative's Title Assistant Superintendent

Page 3 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board.

Date of approval by local governing board 07/14/2021

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

DELAC representative's full name

(non-LEA employee)

DELAC review date

Meeting minutes web address

Please enter the web address of DELAC review meeting minutes (format 
http://SomeWebsiteName.xxx). If a web address is not available, then the 
LEA must keep the minutes on file which indicate that the application was 
reviewed by the committee.

DELAC comment We do not meet the qualifications for 
a majority membership to form a 

committee.  We have a total of seven 
students enrolled in our court and 

community school.

If an advisory committee refused to review the application, or if DELAC 
review is not applicable, enter a comment. (Maximum 500 characters)

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. 
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) No

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title III English Learner No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Page 4 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Title III Immigrant No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) No

ESSA Sec. 4101
SACS 4127

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement Grant Yes

ESSA Sec. 5211 SACS 5810 
 

Program Record/Award Number beginning with S358A21 0316

If participating, then provide the additional four characters of the code that 
are specific to your LEA.

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Alternative Uses of Funds Authority 
Participation

No

Title V, Part B Subpart 2 Rural and Low-Income Grant No

ESSA Sec. 5221 SACS 4126
 

Page 5 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Colusa County Office of Education (06 10066 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Maria Arvizu-Espinoza

Date: 7/22/2021 3:00 PM

2021-22 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education oversight personnel when 
conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically 
granted when the local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the web at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2021-22 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:7/22/2021
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION PROCESS TO SELL 
COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION PROPERTY 

ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 005‐260‐002, WILLIAMS, CALIFORNIA 

August 11, 2021 

The Colusa County Office of Education (“County Office”) is the owner of certain real property at 
the Northeastern Corner of C and 4th Streets, in Williams, California, 95987 – Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 005‐260‐002 (“Property”) located within the territory of the County Office and more 
specifically described in Exhibit “A” (attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference). 

On March 12, 2014, in a regular board meeting, the Colusa County Board of Education 
(“Board”) declared the Property as surplus property and on April 3, 2014, adopted Board 
Resolution 13/14‐10 that declared the Property will not be needed for educational purposes 
and its intention to sell the Property. 

Notice of offer to sell was issued to entities as required by Government Code section 54220, et 
seq., on March 18, 2021, and no response was received. 

1.  Since no such public entities expressed an interest in purchasing the Property, the sale of 
Property to members of the public will proceed and the Property will be put out to bid in 
accordance with applicable law. 

The Board will accept bids upon the Property, pursuant to Mandatory Bid Instructions 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference).  All bids shall be accompanied by a deposit of ten thousand dollars 
($10,000) in the form of a certified check, cashier’s check, or money order and a signed copy of 
the Purchase and Sale Agreement in the form attached to Exhibit “B.”  Upon selection by the 
Board, the accepted bidder’s deposit check shall be cashed.  Deposits of rejected bids shall be 
refunded as soon as reasonably possible after rejection.  Bids in the above‐described form may 
be submitted on or before 12:00 pm, September 1, 2021.  Bids will be presented to the Board at 
a meeting of the Board on September 8, 2021.  Pursuant to Education Code 17473, before 
accepting any written bids, the Board will also call for oral bids.  Before accepting any written 
bid, the Board shall accept oral bids.  Any oral bid must be submitted by a responsible person 
for a price exceeding by at least five percent (5%) the highest written bid, after deducting the 
commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker in connection therewith.  Final 
acceptance of an oral bid shall not be made until the oral bid is reduced to writing and signed 
by the bidder.  The Board is expected to (but is not obligated to) award the bids no later than 
September 8, 2021.  The selling price to any bidder shall be a minimum based on existing 
market conditions for the Property as identified in the Mandatory Bid Instructions.  The Board 
reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 

The Board elects to authorize the payment of a 5% commission for a real estate broker acting 
on the Board’s behalf.  If a bidder uses a real estate broker, the Bid must clearly identify the 
broker and the amount of any commission to be paid to the broker out of a successful bid.  The 
Board shall determine the “highest bid,” “second highest bid,” and so on by comparing the 
value of bids less any commissions to real estate brokers. 

2.  A preliminary title report concerning the Property will be available upon request to any 
interested party.  However, the Board does not guarantee the contents of the preliminary title 
report. 

tmaxwell
Revised



Process to Sell Property 
Page 2 
August 11, 2021 

3.  All requests for bid documents and the preliminary title report should be directed to Aaron 
Heinz, Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services, Colusa County Office of Education 
(“CCOE”), 345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932 (phone) 530.458.0350, (fax) 530.458.8054, who is 
hereby authorized and directed to provide a copy of said documents to any party who so 
requests. 

4.  CCOE staff are hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the adoption of this 
Resolution by posting copies of the Resolution in three (3) public places within CCOE’s 
boundaries and at least fifteen (15) days prior to September 8, 2021, and by publication of the 
Resolution once per week for three (3) successive weeks before said date in a newspaper of 
general circulation published in the published in the County of Colusa, California. 

5.  The disposal of said Property is found to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Public Resource Code section 21084 and California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, sections 15061(b)(2) and 15312. 

6.  CCOE staff and consultants are authorized and directed to proceed with the steps necessary 
or convenient to affect the sale of the Property in accordance with law and the terms of this 
Resolution 



EXHIBIT “A” 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

That portion of Block 18 of the "Town of Williams", County of Colusa, State of California, as per 
official map or plat filed on January 19, 1876, in Book F of Patents at Page 139, in the office of 
the County Recorder of said county described as follows: 

Beginning at the northwest corner of Block 18 as per map recorded in Book 4, Page 203 of 
Record of Surveys in the said office of the County Recorder; thence along the north line of said 
Block 18, North 62° 29' 19" East 10.77 feet to the north line of said "Town of Williams"; thence 
continuing along said north line of Block 18 North 63° 36' 30" East 305.18 feet to a State of 
California concrete right‐of‐way monument with a wire; thence North 62° 02' 13" East 83.98 
feet to a ⅝ inch rebar capped LS 4968; thence South 23° 29' 44" East 100.17 feet to a ½ inch 
rebar capped R.C.E. 17809; thence South 62° 29' 19" West 199.97 feet to a ½ inch rebar capped 
R.C.E. 17809; thence along the south boundary of said Block 18 South 27° 33' 29" East 294.34 
feet to a ½ inch rebar capped R.C.E. 17809; thence South 62° 27' 54" West 192.80 feet to the 
southwest corner of said Block 18; thence along the west boundary of said Block 18 North 27° 
33' 29" West 399.64 feet to the Point of Beginning, and containing 2.23 acres. 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT “B” 

MANDATORY BID INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION PROPERTY 

The Colusa County Board of Education hereby invites bids on real property at the Northeastern 
Corner of C and 4th Streets, in Williams, California, 95987 – Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐
002 (“Property”) as further described in Resolution 13/14‐10 To Declare Intention to Sell 
Property adopted April 3, 2014. 

1.  MANDATORY INSTRUCTIONS.  These instructions are mandatory to bid on real Property 
at the Northeastern Corner of C and 4th Streets, in Williams, California, 95987 – Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 (“Property”) situated in Colusa County.  Failure to comply with one 
or more of these instructions may result in a bid being deemed non‐responsive. 

2.  BID DEPOSIT.  Each bid must be accompanied by a deposit of ten thousand dollars 
($10,000) (“Bid Deposit”).  The Bid Deposit shall be submitted in the form of a certified or 
cashier’s check or money order payable to the Colusa County Office of Education.  The deposit 
of the successful bidder shall be applied to the payment of the purchase price.  The deposit of 
unsuccessful bidders shall be refunded as soon as reasonably possible after the Board’s final 
rejection of the bid.  Interest earned on the Bid Deposit shall be retained by the Board.  Such 
interest shall not be refunded and shall not apply towards the payment for the purchase price 
of the Property by the successful bidder.  The Bid Deposit will become non‐refundable to the 
Buyer once all contingencies in section 7 are removed on or before the twenty one (21) day due 
diligence period 

3.  MINIMUM BID.  Based on the Board’s evaluation of fair market value and potential and 
existing real estate market conditions, the bid for the 950 Tharp Road property shall be for at 
least three hundred and fifteen thousand dollars ($315,000).  The bid shall be for a fee simple 
sale bid for the Property.  The bid must demonstrate adequate assurances and the ability to 
complete the purchase. 

4.  FORM OF BID.  No specific form of bid is required, except that it must include the 
minimum terms set forth herein. 

5.  TIME AND CONTENTS OF BID.  Bids may be submitted on or before 12:00 pm., 
September 1, 2021.  Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope marked “Bid Form and Bid 
Deposit for Colusa County Office of Education Property” and include the address of the 
Property bid.  The sealed envelope must include these Bid Instructions, with a signed Bidder 
Declaration, completed Bidder Information (see below), a bank or lending institution 
verification of funds, and a ten thousand dollars ($10,000) bid deposit, in the form of a certified 
check, cashier’s check, or money order, and a signed copy of the Agreement for Purchase and 
Sale of Real Property attached hereto as Attachment 1 (“Agreement”), all of which must be 
received by Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services, Colusa County 
Office of Education (“CCOE”), 345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932.  The Board elects to authorize 
the payment of a 5% commission for a real estate broker acting on the Board’s behalf.  If a 
bidder uses a real estate broker, the Bid must clearly identify the broker and the amount of any 
commission to be paid to the broker out of a successful bid.  The Board shall determine the



Exhibit “B” 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 2 

“highest bid,” “second highest bid,” and so on by comparing the value of bids less any 
commissions to real estate brokers.  Any questions regarding the bid should be directed to 
Aaron Heinz at (phone) 530.458.0350, (fax) 530.458.8054, (email) aheinz@ccoe.net. 

6.  BID OPENING AND ACCEPTANCE.  Bids will be presented to the Board at a meeting of the 
Board on September 8, 2021, or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard.   Pursuant to 
Education Code section 17473, before accepting any written bids, the Board will also call for oral 
bids. Before accepting any written bid, the Board shall accept oral bids.  Any oral bid must be 
submitted by a responsible person for a price exceeding by at least five percent (5%) the highest 
written bid, after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker in 
connection  therewith.    Final acceptance of an oral bid  shall not be made until  the oral bid  is 
reduced  to writing  and  signed  by  the  bidder.    The  Board  shall  determine  the  “highest  bid,” 
“second highest bid,” and so on by comparing the value of bids  less any commissions  to  real 
estate  brokers.    The Board  reserves  the  right  to  reject  any  and  all  bids  and  to withdraw  the 
Property from the market.  The Board reserves the right to determine who is a responsible bidder 
and also reserves the right to waive any and all defects in bids and to waive any irregularity.  In 
the event that the highest responsible bidder fails to perform, the Board may, at its discretion, 
call for new bids, or offer the property to the second highest bidder.  If the Board elects to offer 
the Property to the second highest bidder, and if the second highest bidder accepts the award, 
the deposit requirements and terms and conditions of purchase of the Property shall be the same 
as  provided  in  Exhibit  “B” Mandatory  Bid  Instructions  for  Colusa  County Office  of  Education 
Property, Section 2.  Bid Deposit. 

7.  BIDDER DECLARATION.  In addition to signing the Agreement, each bidder must sign the 
following Declaration: 

I, the undersigned Bidder, declare that I have carefully reviewed Board Resolution 
13/14‐10 To Declare Intention to Sell Property, adopted April 3, 2014, and these 
Bid Instructions.  I have completely satisfied myself as to the nature and location 
of the Property and have fully informed myself as to all conditions and matters 
which may in any way affect the purchase price of the Property.  I further declare 
that I have conducted an independent  investigation,  inspection, and analysis of 
the Property and I am not relying in any way upon any information provided by 
Board.  I declare that this Bid is genuine and not collusive. 

 

Executed this           day of                                       at                                            , California 
  Number  Month & Year  City 

   
  Signature of Bidder 
///   



Exhibit “B” 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 3 

8.  BIDDER INFORMATION.  Each bidder must provide the following information: 

Name of Bidder   
Address   
Telephone Number   
Facsimile Number   
 
And if using a Buyer’s Broker: 
 
Broker’s Name   
Broker’s License Number   
Broker’s Address   
Broker’s Telephone Number   
Broker’s Facsimile Number   



ATTACHMENT 1 

TO MANDATORY BID INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION PROPERTY 

This Agreement dated this 8th day of September 2021 (“Effective Date”), is made by and 
between the Colusa County Office of Education ("Seller") and ___________________________ 
("Buyer"). 
 
WHEREAS, Seller is the fee title owner of that certain real property described in Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference ("Property"); and 
 
WHEREAS, Seller has declared the Property to be surplus within the meaning of Government 
Code Section 54221 and Education Code Section 17485, et seq.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell the Property as described herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the sale of the Property has been studied and considered by the Seller at a regularly 
scheduled public meeting as required by Education Code Section 17466; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property was offered for sale to other public agencies as required by 
Government Code Section 54222 and Education Code Section 17464, with no interest in 
purchase expressed by said agencies within the applicable statutory deadlines; and 
 
WHEREAS, a resolution of intent to sell the Property (“Resolution”) was adopted by the Seller; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Buyer, desires to acquire the Property for other purposes through a purchase; and 
 
WHEREAS, Seller has determined that the purchase of the Property to Buyer is appropriate as 
allowed by Education Code Section 17464. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the Seller and 
Buyer agree as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE.  Subject to the terms and conditions as set forth 
herein, Seller shall sell and Buyer shall purchase the Property for a total “Purchase Price” of 

                                                                                                                     Dollars ($                             ). 

2.  PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE AND COSTS. 
  2.1  The Purchase Price for the Property shall be paid as follows: 

(a)  Buyer has submitted with Buyer’s Bid a deposit of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) 
in the form of a certified check, cashier’s check, or money order (“Bid Deposit”) which 
Seller shall deposit into an escrow account along with this Agreement. 
 



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 2 

(b)  On or before the close of escrow, as set forth in Section 3.6, Buyer shall deposit 
the balance of the Purchase Price, less the Bid Deposit, into the Escrow Account. 
 
(c)  Any commission to a real estate broker shall only be paid out of the Purchase 
Price if the identity of the broker and the amount of the commission were clearly 
identified in the Buyer’s Bid as accepted by the Board. 

 
  2.2  Withdrawal by Seller from Escrow Account 

(a)  This Bid Deposit shall become nonrefundable at the end of the Feasibility Period 
as set forth in Section 7 below.  Accordingly, the Seller may withdraw the Bid Deposit 
at any time after the Feasibility Period. 
 
(b)  The Bid Deposit shall be credited to the Purchase Price, but may be retained by 
Seller as liquidated damages pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement. 
 
(c)  Any interest that accrues in the Escrow Account shall inure to the benefit of the 
Seller and shall not be applied to the Purchase Price.  Seller may withdraw the interest 
from the Escrow Account at any time. 

 
2.3  Buyer may elect, at any time prior to close of escrow, as set forth in Section 3.6, to 
pay the balance of the Purchase Price then owing, consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement, without prepayment penalty. 

 
2.4  Buyer shall pay all closing and escrow costs, including, but not limited to, escrow fees 
and recording fees customarily paid by buyers in Colusa County.  Real property taxes shall 
not be prorated because the Property will not be assessed until Buyer acquires title.  Seller 
shall pay all closing costs customarily paid by sellers in Colusa County and documentary 
transfer taxes (to the extent applicable) and title insurance premiums. 
 

3.  ESCROW. 
3.1  This Agreement shall constitute escrow instructions to the Escrow Holder as well as 
the Agreement for the sale and purchase of the Property; provided, however, Buyer and 
Seller shall execute such supplementary instructions as may be necessary to carry out the 
terms of this Agreement or as may be reasonably requested by the Escrow Holder prior to 
the closing date. 
 
3.2  The purchase and sale of the Property shall be completed through an escrow to be 
opened at Old Republic Title Company ("Escrow Holder"). 
 
3.3  Instruments in respect to the purchase and sale shall be deposited in escrow by 
Buyer and Seller as follows: 
 

(a)  Seller shall execute, prior to close of escrow, a grant deed prepared by the 



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 3 

Escrow Holder. 
 
(b)  Buyer shall deposit the Bid Deposit plus the balance of the Purchase Price and all 
escrow fees and recording fees customary for buyers in Colusa County. 

3.4  After all of the foregoing has been deposited by Buyer and Seller respectively, and 
Escrow Holder is prepared to issue a policy of title insurance in accord with Section 4 
hereof, Escrow Holder shall: 

 
(a)  Deliver the Purchase Price, less previous payments to Seller, cost of title 
insurance and transfer taxes (as applicable), to or on the order of Seller. 
 
(b)  Record the grant deed to the Property and instruct the County Recorder to 
deliver the grant deed after recording to Buyer. 
 
(c)  Provide a pro‐forma policy of title insurance for review by Buyer and Seller 
within thirty (30) days. 
 

3.5  Buyer shall advise the Title Company prior to the close of escrow of the manner in 
which title shall vest. 
 
3.6  Escrow shall close within forty five (45) days of the fully executed agreement and after 
the Parties complete their obligations set forth in Section 7.  Upon written agreement by 
the parties, Escrow may be extended for 20 days with increased deposit of $10,000 which 
shall become non‐refundable and applicable to the purchase price.  Upon written 
agreement by the parties, Escrow may be reduced. 

 
4.  TITLE. 

4.1  The Escrow Holder shall issue to Buyer a CLTA standard coverage policy of title 
insurance with total liability in the amount of the Purchase Price showing marketable, 
insurable title to the Property vested in the Buyer subject to the Acceptable Exceptions. 
 
4.2  Seller shall convey title to the subject Property by Grant Deed in an “as is condition,” 
without warranty, express or implied, including the exact area and size of the site, the 
condition of the site or any other improvements thereon, and subject to all liens, 
easements, assessments and encumbrances thereon of any nature and kind whatsoever 
and whether of record or not and subject to the conditions of title indicated on the 
Preliminary Title Report dated June 30, 2021 (“Report”), provided to Buyer by Seller. 
 
4.3  Buyer hereby acknowledges that before it entered into this Agreement, it obtained a 
copy of the Report.  Buyer has reviewed the Report and there is no condition of title that is 
objectionable or would serve as a basis to terminate this Agreement.  Buyer acknowledges 
that Seller does not in any way guarantee the contents of the Report. 
 



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 4 

4.4  In the event that the pro‐forma title policy discloses an encumbrance not disclosed by 
the Report on the Property upon which the bid was made, Seller shall have a reasonable 
opportunity to remove the encumbrance or the Buyer may waive the encumbrance.  Any 
exception on the pro‐forma title policy not disclosed by the Report that enhances the use or 
value of the Property shall not be deemed an encumbrance.  Escrow shall be extended as 
necessary to address any such encumbrances. 

5.  LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  If, for any reason Buyer breaches this Agreement, or fails to close 
escrow within the time specified in Section 3.6, Seller will suffer damages.  The actual 
occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Seller would suffer if 
the Agreement is breached are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions which 
could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the transaction, it is impracticable 
and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages that the Seller would suffer in the 
event of such breach include loss of the proceeds of the sale, activities, costs of administration, 
inspection, supervision and the loss suffered by the public within the jurisdiction of Seller by 
reason of such breach.  Accordingly, the parties agree that Seller may retain the Bid Deposit 
already paid into the Escrow Account as liquidated damages in the event of such a breach. 
 
       
Buyer’s initials   Seller’s initials 
 
6.  ENTRY ONTO PREMISES.  Upon written notice to Seller, Buyer may perform necessary soil 
samples, engineering, surveys, etc.  Buyer shall hold Seller harmless from any and all claims 
caused by any actions undertaken pursuant to this Section 6, or actions of Buyer's employees, 
agents, or contractors; provided, however, that Buyer shall keep the Property free and clear of 
any and all liens and shall indemnify, defend, and hold Seller harmless against all liabilities, 
claims, demands, damages or costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees), resulting from 
Buyer's exercise of its rights under this Article.  Buyer's exercise of its right of entry shall not 
cause damage or become a nuisance thereon.  Buyer at its sole cost and expense shall promptly 
restore the Property to the same condition in which it existed prior to the conduct of tests and 
inspections by Buyer thereon. 
 
7.  FEASIBILITY PERIOD.  Before close of Escrow, Buyer shall have the right to review, in Buyer’s 
sole and absolute discretion, the suitability of the Property for Buyer’s use and development, 
including without limitation, any governmental land regulations, zoning ordinances, 
development costs, financial and market feasibility, all covenants, conditions and restrictions 
affecting the Property, and the physical condition of the Property, including, without limitation, 
soil and geological assessments and environmental assessments.  This review shall take no 
longer than twenty one (21) days from the Effective Date of this Agreement (“Feasibility 
Period”).  Seller shall reasonably cooperate with Buyer in any and all investigations during the 
Feasibility Period and Seller shall use its reasonable efforts to cause engineers, architects, and 
surveyors, if any, to share with Buyer at Buyer’s cost, any information or knowledge they have 
concerning the Property.  Failure by Buyer to give written notice of disapproval by the close of 
Escrow shall be deemed notice of Buyer’s approval.  If Buyer disapproves in writing to the 



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 5 

purchase and sale as specified in this Article, then Escrow shall terminate, Seller shall instruct 
Escrow Holder to return the Bid Deposit to Buyer, Escrow Holder shall then immediately return 
the Bid Deposit to Buyer without any additional instructions from Seller and Escrow Holder shall 
immediately return all other documents, instruments and monies to the Party that deposited 
them.  Buyer acknowledges that as of close of Feasibility Period, Buyer will be aware of all 
zoning regulations, other governmental requirements, site and physical conditions, and other 
matters affecting the use and condition of the Property and agrees to purchase the Property in 
the condition that it is in at close of escrow, subject only to Buyer’s right to terminate as 
otherwise provided herein.  At the end of the Feasibility Period, the Bid Deposit shall become 
non‐refundable. 

 
8.  NO WARRANTIES.  Buyer acknowledges that Buyer is purchasing the Property "as is", solely 
in reliance on Buyer's own investigation, and that no representations or warranties of any kind 
whatsoever, including but not limited to the presence or absence of hazardous or toxic 
substances on the Property, express or implied, have been made by Seller, or Seller's agents, 
with respect to the Property or its fitness for any purpose.  Buyer further acknowledges that as 
of the close of escrow, Buyer will be aware of all zoning regulations, other governmental 
requirements, site and physical conditions, and other matters affecting the use and condition of 
the Property and agrees to purchase the Property in the condition that it is in at close of 
escrow, subject only to Buyer's right to terminate as otherwise provided herein. 

 
9.  NOTICES. 

9.1  Any notice, request, demand, instruction, or other communication to be given to any 
party hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally, or sent by facsimile, email, 
registered or certified mail as follows: 
 
Seller:  Colusa County Office of Education 
  345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932 
Attn:  Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services 
  (fax) 530.458.8054, (email) aheinz@ccoe.net 

Buyer:     
     
     
     
 
The addresses for the purposes of this Section may be changed by giving written notice of 
such change in the manner provided herein for giving notice.  Unless and until such written 
notice is received, the last address and addressee as stated by written notice, or as provided 
herein if no written notice of change has been sent or received, shall be deemed to 
continue in effect for all purposes hereunder. 
 



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 6 

9.2  Notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered personally or two days 
after mailing to the above address if mailed.  No notices shall be effective unless and until 
all persons entitled to notice shall have been notified in accordance with the foregoing. 

10. FURTHER ASSURANCE.  Buyer and Seller agree that at any time, or from time to time after 
the execution of this Agreement whether before or after the close of escrow, they will, upon 
request of the other, execute and deliver such further documents and do such further acts and 
things as such party may reasonably request in order to affect fully the purposes of this 
Agreement. 
 
11. SURVIVAL OF COVENANTS.  Each of the covenants and agreements contained herein shall, 
to the extent applicable, survive the close of escrow. 
 
12. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of each of the parties hereto, and to their respective successors and assigns. 

 
13. CAPTIONS.  The captions in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience 
and for reference and in no way define the scope or extent of this Agreement or the 
construction of any provision herein or of any document or instrument referred to herein. 

 
14. TIME.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 
15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement, and the Exhibits hereto, embodies 
the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof and may not be amended, waived, or discharged except by an instrument in writing 
executed by the party against which enforcement of such amendment, waiver or discharge is 
sought.  This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and memoranda.  The invalidity of any 
one of the covenants, agreements, conditions, or provisions of the Agreement, nor any portion 
thereof, shall not affect the remaining portions thereof nor any part hereof and this Agreement 
shall be construed as if such covenant, agreement, condition, or provision had not been 
inserted herein. 

 
16. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION BY BOARD OF EDUCATION.  This Agreement shall be subject to 
approval/ratification by Board of Trustees of the Colusa County Office of Education 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 
   



Attachment 1 
Mandatory Bid Instructions for Colusa County Office of Education Property 
Page 7 

17. AUTHORITY TO SIGN.  Each person executing this Agreement on behalf of either party does 
hereby personally represent and warrant that he or she had the authority to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of and to fully bind such party. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year 
first above mentioned. 
 
Colusa County Board of Education  Colusa County Office of Education: 

By:      By:   

Its:    Board of Trustees President    Its:  Superintendent of Schools   
 

Buyer: 

By:     

Its:   



EXHIBIT “A” 
TO THE AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

That portion of Block 18 of the "Town of Williams", County of Colusa, State of California, as per 
official map or plat filed on January 19, 1876, in Book F of Patents at Page 139, in the office of 
the County Recorder of said county described as follows: 

Beginning at the northwest corner of Block 18 as per map recorded in Book 4, Page 203 of 
Record of Surveys in the said office of the County Recorder; thence along the north line of said 
Block 18, North 62° 29' 19" East 10.77 feet to the north line of said "Town of Williams"; thence 
continuing along said north line of Block 18 North 63° 36' 30" East 305.18 feet to a State of 
California concrete right‐of‐way monument with a wire; thence North 62° 02' 13" East 83.98 
feet to a ⅝ inch rebar capped LS 4968; thence South 23° 29' 44" East 100.17 feet to a ½ inch 
rebar capped R.C.E. 17809; thence South 62° 29' 19" West 199.97 feet to a ½ inch rebar capped 
R.C.E. 17809; thence along the south boundary of said Block 18 South 27° 33' 29" East 294.34 
feet to a ½ inch rebar capped R.C.E. 17809; thence South 62° 27' 54" West 192.80 feet to the 
southwest corner of said Block 18; thence along the west boundary of said Block 18 North 27° 
33' 29" West 399.64 feet to the Point of Beginning, and containing 2.23 acres. 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 
   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, September 8, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Public Hearing on Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials 

followed by the Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

4:00 p.m.  P U B L I C   H E A R I N G 

Public Hearing on Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

R E G U L A R   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma(s) – Colusa County Adult School 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – August Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

7.2 Board Budget Sub‐Committee Policy Update  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the August 11, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Accept and Review Written Bid(s), and Listen to Oral Bid(s) for  information 
  Sale of CCOE Property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 

11.2 Award Sale of CCOE Property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐002  action 

11.3 Approve Technology Services Inventory for Disposal  action 

11.4 Approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐01 of the  action 
Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa 
County Board of Education Regarding Sufficiency or 
Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2021‐22 

11.5 First Reading:  New Board Policy – BP 6171.00 Title I Programs  information 

11.6 Review Budget Sub‐Committee  action 

11.7 Review Board Member Attendance  action 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  information 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
October 13, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  August 2021        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Cabinet meeting Strengths Discovery training. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 Completed NHSA Director’s Credential July 23, 2021. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team. 
 State and Federal Webinars. 
 Child Plus data-system three-day training. 
 CCOE Beginning Day & Children’s Services In-Service/Pre-Service 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Continue to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 In-Service/Pre-Service for August:  Theme:  Dream BIG 
 Planning SEL Plan and implementing Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional support. 
 Provide virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Orientations. 

 

 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 
September 2021 

  
 

 

Dear Board of Trustees,  

As citizens who serve children and represent your communities, you face complex and demanding challenges and 
your contributions to multiple hours each year is to be commended. Whether reading reports, listening to 
concerns, or recognizing outstanding programs, you always keep your eyes on the prize: student achievement.  It 
is evident that your love of learning and caring for our students, staff, and community drive your desire to lead so 
students can thrive.   You made my stay at CCOE a very special time, and I thank you for your leadership.   

Respectfully,  
Maria Arvizu-Espinoza 

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• SWAA Students are back to in person instruction five days a week. 
• SWAA is having a month-long celebration of the creation of the U.S. Constitution. Students will be 

studying what led to the creation of our nation, as well as studying the creation of our governments 
checks and balances. This will lead up to Constitution Day in which we will watch an event hosted 
virtually by the Constitution Center in Washington D.C. 

• Students will also be studying who the founding fathers were and participating in a compare and contrast 
web of the musical Hamilton with primary sources. Students will discover how the musical helps 
support the American Dream. 

 
Colusa County Adult School 

• Colusa County Adult School hosted its Adult Back to School Night on Monday, August 23, 2021. 
• Adult Ed Classes start on September 7, 2021. 
• We would like to welcome, Sarah Norberg to the Colusa County Adult School.  She will be teaching an 

Office Skills Class beginning on September 7, 2021.   
• Any students wanting to register for adult school classes can do so at  our website at 

www.colusacountyadultschool.com. 
•  The Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) Program will be hosting its first cohort of students for Fall 2021 

on September 10th for orientation and September 13 for the start of classes. 
• CCOE’s Basic Wildland Fire Academy Applications have been released and  are due on October 1, 

2021.  Registration form can also be found at www.colusacountyadultschool.com. 
 
Farm to School 

• CCOE is still recruiting to hire a Farm to School Laboratory Supervisor.  Interested individuals can apply 
on Edjoin.org. 

 
 

 

 

 

http://www.colusacountyadultschool.com/
http://www.colusacountyadultschool.com/


Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 
• The CCFAC has held planning sessions to discuss the steps it will take to provide professional 

development for county offices. Accelerated Learning is presently available, and small county offices are 
being approved to include districts who would like to participate. 

 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

• The CDE is rolling over the schools identified for CSI for the second year due to the pandemic. The 
districts will continue to receive funding. As the school year begins, Educational Services is setting up 
meetings with Williams Upper Elementary School to continue providing technical assistance where 
opportunity gaps exist. 

 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Due to the pandemic, WUSD was identified for DA again this school year. Meetings with WUSD will 
be organized to provide assistance in areas where it is needed. 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• A meeting with the CDE occurred on Friday, August 20, 2021.  Recommendations were discussed as 
they pertained to CCOE’s 2021-24 LCAP.  The edited LCAP was resubmitted to CDE prior to the board 
meeting. 

• Highlighted changes will be shared at the board meeting once CDE grants final approval of CCOE’s 
LCAP. 

 
North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

• The NCCPLN will continue to hold one-hour or less “Lunch and Learn” sessions to provide technical 
support for upcoming CDE initiatives. 

  
Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

• At the end of September, the SEL CoP funding will come to an end. Additional funding from the 
Sacramento COE may be available for another six months. 

Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• A new child aide has been hired to provide Second Step services to the Colusa and Arbuckle preschool 

centers. Cecilia Lopez is being provided training and will begin providing services on September 1st.   
 
Foster Youth 

• Foster Education 101 will be provided to caregivers on August 30th.  
• The Independent Living Program will begin soon, which prioritizes foster youth to gain life skills, 

please contact Marisa Apaseo at mapaseo@ncen.org if you have any questions. 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• Mckinney-Vento presentations have been rolling out throughout August and will continue through 

September for parents, school personnel, and community members.  
• Technical assistance for districts has kept the Prevention Services team busy and we have had our first 

countywide district liaison meeting.  

 
 
 

mailto:mapaseo@ncen.org


Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• The Prevention Services team has been attending all back to school nights throughout Colusa County to 

promote the Prevention Services’ programs, which has resulted in an increase of outreach for our TUPE 
program.  

• All TUPE grants for 2020/2021 have been closed out from progress reports to expenditure reports.  

 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• The DOJ grant has been extended through June 30, 2023, which gives the Colusa County Sheriff’s 
Office an additional year to conduct tobacco education and enforcement throughout Colusa County.  

 



  6.5 
Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Ed Board Report 
September 9, 2021 

 

Special Ed Report 

1. Staffing- We are currently recruiting for twenty open positions  
 

2. Increase in students moving into the area   
 

3. Para Educators continue to complete monthly training courses on 
Special Education topics through our distance learning platform, 
Exceptional Child. 
 

4. Jessica Galloway-Haney will be the new Special Education Director. 
She has a wealth of knowledge and will be great in her new role.  
 

5. Kevin Douglas, CCOE Behavior Specialist, and a team at Burchfield 
Primary are participating in a statewide CAPTAIN program. 
 

6. The Program Specialists are developing PLC’s to target specific 
groups of staff and topics that are relevant to them. The first meetings 
will cover our Unique/SANDI curriculum and IEP writing. The 
materials covered during these meetings will eventually lead to a 
Teacher Resource Padlet/webpage.  
 

7. Coastal Buttes is off to a great start. We currently have 16 students 
and are looking at transitioning four students. 
 

CCOE SELPA 

1. Meeting in October. I have meet with each Superintendent 
individually to discuss Special Education need in their districts. 

STATE SELPA 

1. State SELPA is focused on the new grants to help deal with learning 
loss due to COVID-19 closures and a WestEd study that is analyzing 
spending models of SELPA’s. 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report September 8, 2021 

 

We have started the process of deploying the EduNet for Colusa Unified School District.  
We have successfully mounted and setup the equipment on the Colusa Reclamation 
District tower.  We are still working on the power issue at Pirelli with the City of Colusa.  
Upon the completion of the power issue, we will be ready to check the alignment of the 
equipment and optimize the connection.  
 
We have been assisting Pierce Joint Unified School District with their network 
bandwidth increase from 1 Gigabit to 2 Gigabits for several of their circuits.  Frontier has 
tremendously botched this project and missed deadlines.  We escalated the issue to 
their top brass and chastised 3 of the Vice Presidents in Frontier from Customer Service 
and Network Operations.  They are promising urgent and proper completion of the 
PJUSD project, an extensive network audit of all our circuits, and the escalating of our 
account to be supported by their enterprise level Network Operations Center from here 
on out.   
 
We have completed and cutover to the new iBoss web filter.  We are optimizing it with 
support. 
 
We are still in the process of setting up our new firewall.  Most of the configuration has 
been migrated.  After hour testing will be required before cutover. 
 
We are in the process of replacing all older non-supported Ruckus access points at all 
CCOE sites.  Upon completion, we will migrate the controller to the latest version of the 
firmware.  We have not been able to upgrade and leverage the new features due to 
these non-supported access points. 
 
We have done a good job of staying on top of the helpdesk during our busiest time of 
the year.  The additional support from James has made a huge difference in a allowing 
us to focus on these projects. 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting August 11, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, 

Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee 
Niesen, Chuck Wayman, Michael West, and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on districts opening throughout the county saying 
that the mood is generally positive about the return to in‐class 
instruction, with differing levels of concern about mask mandates and the 
requirement for school staff to show proof of vaccination or be subject to 
weekly testing.  Discussion was held on families who will not send their 
children to school because of the mask and vaccine mandates, the 
efficacy of the vaccine, on mandating a vaccine that has not been 
approved by the FDA, on students under the age of 12 not being eligible 
for a vaccine, on students who have challenges with wearing masks, on 
reasons for not wanting a vaccine, on districts following masking 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

guidelines, and on the Colusa County Board of Education not being a 
forum for masking or vaccine decisions.  Michael reported on Colusa 
County Public Health Officer, Dr. Gregory Burt’s indoor masking order for 
all individuals in Colusa County, on the Colusa County Board of 
Supervisors’ resolution that recommends against children wearing masks, 
on AB/SB 130 – Independent Study and AB 599 – Williams Settlement Act 
updates, on California being the first state in the nation to require either 
a vaccine or a weekly negative test result for education staff, and on the 
poor air quality in the county due to wildfires.  Regarding prior and 
upcoming events and meetings, Michael reported on continued 
discussion and planning for the Juvenile Justice Plan and Update that may 
include afterschool opportunities for students, on professional 
development to identify leadership styles using the Strength Finder 
process, on CCSESA meetings that will be held via Zoom at least until 
October, on Welcome Back Day at the Village MPR, and on his 
attendance at a Colusa County Board of Supervisors and a PJUSD Board 
meeting during which he was asked to speak about mask mandates.  
Discussion was held on whether CCOE has a mask wearing policy in place 
for its students and on Boards continuing to meet virtually.  Michael 
introduced Alissa Maas as the new Communications and Public Relations 
Director.  Michael announced that Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza accepted an 
Associate Superintendent position at Yolo COE overseeing three 
departments.  Discussion was held on Maria’s and Michael’s role in 
improving relations with the districts, and on three of the four district 
superintendents being new to the position. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No July Meeting 
Michael West reported that the first Superintendent’s Council meeting of 
2021‐22 will take place on Tuesday, August 31, 2021. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his August 2021 Administrative Services report to the 
Board and spoke about closing the books, dealing with COVID 19 regulations, 
and setting up for re‐openings.  Aaron reported that Administrative Services is 
adding a new Account Specialist position, which will be paid out of the General 
Fund and will be split equally between Business Services and Human Resources. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss presented her August 2021 Children’s Services written report to the 
Board, which included updates on Children’s Services’ staff, students, childcare 
providers, and programs.  Vicki also provided information on preparing the 
youngest children for success and Children’s Services educational approach.  She 
described theme and project‐based curriculum that includes language and 
literacy, mathematics, science, and social studies, distance learning solutions 
that integrated essential learning components and deepened family 
engagement, and she shared links to video clips from WPLC A and B and ACC 
classrooms.  Discussion was held on connecting curriculum with TK and 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

Kindergarten programs, which she said occurs at childcare centers that are 
housed on campuses and through F2B’s integration of Children’s Services 
curriculum in their programs. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐
Espinoza’s August 2021 Educational Services written report.  Discussion was held 
on Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza’s departure from CCOE. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman presented his August 2021 Special Education and SELPA report 
to the Board reporting on professional development meetings that were held 
last week, preparation for school openings, and on being flexible and creative in 
serving students during the staff shortage (24 open positions).  Discussion was 
held on enrollment and staffing at CBA, on recruiting staff, on the number of 
hours in a workday, benefits, and average class size. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans added to his August 2021 Technology Services written report saying 
that in Colusa LTE equipment is mounted on the Reclamation District tower is 
now online and that the LTE equipment on the Pirelli vertical asset currently has 
a power issue that is being resolved. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
Cristy Edwards reported that she registered for the 2021 CCBE Annual 
Conference and for two of five CCBE COE Masters in Governance courses.  Jason 
McMullan led discussion on September 17, Constitution and Citizenship Day 
activities and learned that Special Education students are served at the districts 
and would be part of those activities, Educational Services will hold similar 
activities as last year, and that Children’s Services students will do themed art 
projects. 

7.2 Board Superintendent’s Salary Committee Update 
Ed Conrado and Barry Morrell reported on their salary analysis to date.  Ed 
provided a history of trying to catch the salary up to competitive levels after five 
years of no increases during the previous administration.  He described different 
increase scenarios based on their analysis.  Barry spoke about making the salary 
competitive with other Superintendent positions.  Discussion was held on district 
superintendents’ salaries and on aligning the increase to staff increases. 

7.3 Board Budget Sub‐Committee Policy Update 
Aaron Heinz reported on efforts to coordinate a meeting with Jason McMullan 
and Brenda Miller, and both said they were available to meet with him after this 
Board meeting.   



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry 
Morrell) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the July 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West announced that a YCCD Chancellor was selected and has 
expressed interest in meeting with the Board in the future.  He also reported that 
planning has begun on fall offerings at the Village.  Jason McMullan announced 
that the Ministerial Association is opening a community health and wellness 
center next to the food pantry that is located on the WCC Colusa County Campus. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on continued discussions with architects about the Adult 
Education portable placement and plan, with new amendments to the plan 
layout to include a separate bathroom building for the classes, and that the plan 
will be submitted to the DSA for approval.  Discussion was held on facilities for 
future vocational classes, which are in CCOE’s Master Plan for the future and the 
intent is to expand those facilities as funding and resources become available. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that all LCAPs were reviewed and submitted to 
Aaron Heinz.  Discussion was held on the LCAP as a future planning tool. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities, including beginning year curriculum trainings provided by F2B 
Director of Curriculum Judy Hall; partnering with Ampla Health to provide a 
health or dental book to each patient 3rd grade and under; working with home 
day care providers on modeling F2B and providing curriculum assistance; 
providing F2B information sign‐ups, books, and family games at the Williams Flea 
Market and Bazar, and an upcoming meeting with the Maxwell Elementary 
School principal to discuss support with F2B, book sharing, and iPad lending.  
Karisa also reported on July F2B statistics. 

10.5 Approve Return to In‐person Board Meetings and Eliminating the Zoom Option 
Discussion was held on using Zoom as a public access tool to stream meetings to 
the public, but not using it as a teleconference option for Board Members.  Tina 
Maxwell will research. 

The item was tabled. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2021‐22 Final Consolidated Application 

Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the Consolidated Application that was 
approved in July was a draft pending the decision to file for Title I Funds, and this 
application is the final version. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the 2021‐22 Final Consolidated Application. 

11.2 Approve Process to Sell CCOE Property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 
Michael West reported on the process to sell CCOE’s real property in Williams 
and on the Mandatory Bid Instructions (MBI).  He explained revisions made to 
the MBI, specifically regarding oral bids.  Discussion was held on legal counsel for 
the process, who Michael said reviewed the process prior to bringing it to this 
meeting, and on handling the process during a Zoom meeting. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the process to sell CCOE property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐
002. 
 
Discussion was held on advertising the property sale. 

11.3 Approve Superintendents Salary 
The Superintendent’s Salary Committee provided recommendations for the 
Superintendent’s salary, including a 3% COLA increase to current (2020‐21) 
annual salary, plus an additional 3% one‐time annual salary compensation.  
Discussion was held. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the Superintendent’s Salary Committee recommendation of a 3% COLA 
increase to the Superintendent’s current (2020‐21) annual salary, plus an 
additional 3% one‐time annual salary compensation. 
 
Discussion was held on the salary survey information and comparison to other 
superintendents, and on the Salary Committee’s work.  Discussion was also held 
on making the increases retroactive to July 1, 2021. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve a Friendly Amendment to the motion to approve the Superintendent’s 
salary increases with the addition of making those increases retroactive to July 1, 
2021. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Information on Live Streaming Brown Act Meetings 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
September 8, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

ACC  Arbuckle Children's Center 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COE  County Office of Education 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

DSA  Division of State Architecture 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

FDA  Food and Drug Administration 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LTE  Long Term Evolution 

MPR  Muli‐Purpose Room 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SB  Senate Bill 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WPLC  Williams Preschool Learning Center 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



Technology Services Surplus Inventory
September 8, 2021

Device Manufacturer Model Serial Number Tag Reason Location

Laptop HP Stream 11 Pro G4 EE 5CD830093L 2559 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP Stream 11 Pro G4 EE 5CD8300974 2552 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP Stream 11 Pro G4 EE 5CD830095V 2553 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 4540s 2CE3392651 3516 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Printer HP LJ P1606dn VNB3G61721 3254 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 2UA125091L 2001 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC MXL1240FFF 3289 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC 2UA1241QJN 3205 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor NEC LCD9V 37105827GA 1372 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Printer HP LJ1022 CNBC58Z0KH 1717 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Tablet Apple iPad A1893 CG7Z62B2JFBJ 5189 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Tablet Apple iPad Air 2 (WiFi) DMPSGQMVHG5D 4026 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP ProBook 450 G5 5CD9165PSZ 2646 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Tablet Apple iPad Air 2 (WiFi) DMQD7AXBMF3M 14207 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119PC2C 3327 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 CNC908T0C 3114 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor Gateway FPD1775W MGM73 70P 45064 3199 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 3CQ8302G4J 3904 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 3CQ8401CFX 3118 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 3CQ8302F9H 3720 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 3CQ8242KT8 3903 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119R6H1 3410 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC115QK93 2911 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP Stream 11 Pro G3 5CD72572HB 2422 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 4540s 2CE31028ZK 3542 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119PBN7 3472 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 6470b CNU310BPVQ 2149 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 4540s 2CE3371J17 3817 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 6540b CND02027P5 3169 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP EliteBook 850 G2 5CG5222D29 3566 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119PC3P 3323 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP Stream 11 Pro G3 5CD72572C4 2418 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Fax Canon LC 510 UZY4497 3217 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP Stream 11 Pro G3 5CD72572K4 2420 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 6470b CNU310BPPL 2147 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP Stream 11 Pro G3 5CD72558D4 2425 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2241JRM 1368 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF mxl2460h4p 2446 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V84 2043 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2340BPN 4088 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V82 2047 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker



Device Manufacturer Model Serial Number Tag Reason Location

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF MXL3510NWG 2185 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP HP P223 CNK90509RN 2636 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Elite 8300 SFF MXL3230BBN 3306 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF MXL2460H8T 2429 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro Small Form Factor MXL2241JS2 3461 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V8F 2046 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2120GR3 2131 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V8Q 3250 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 645 G1 CNU410CPC2 2166 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP ProBook 6470b CNU310BQ3C 2148 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP HP Stream 11 Pro G3 5CD72572HC 2417 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP Stream 11 Pro G4 EE 5CD83009BL 2501 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Laptop HP Stream 11 Pro G4 EE 5CD8300992 5187 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119PBNS 3496 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Tablet Apple iPad A1395 (iPad 2) DN6HT9NFDFHW 3415 DBR Williams Storage Locker

Switch HP procurve switch 2824 J4903A 1774 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Server HP Proliant ML380 G6 Server MXQ0450TLS 3558 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Backup Unitrends Recovery 823 823‐305‐50014 3622 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Server HP Proliant ML380 G6 Server MXQ12302LB 3559 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Server Exacq IPZ08‐20TB‐R2‐RAID ER1330124096 3548 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP L1710 CNC908QP71 3120 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP LE1851w CNC001SJ02 3188 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Monitor HP S1933 CNC119PBNZ 3807 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 3399499776 3301 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V7W 2044 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF MXL3170FW6 2428 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF MXL3170FWC 4030 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF MXL3242VF2 4032 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

Computer HP HP Compaq 6200 Pro SFF PC MXL2210V8N 2139 Obsolete Williams Storage Locker

*DBR = Damaged beyond repair

*Obsolete = Dismantled for usable parts, not worth investing in repair, and no longer supported.



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 21/22‐01 

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT  
OF SCHOOLS AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OR INSUFFICIENCY OF TEXTBOOKS AND INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021‐22 

 
  WHEREAS, the governing board of Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE), in order to comply 
with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing which did not take 
place during or immediately following school hours, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing posted in at 
least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, information that CCOE provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at 
the public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided 
to all students, including English learners, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each 
pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete 
required homework assignments, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student, 
including English learners, in mathematics, science, history‐social science, and English/language arts, 
including the English language development component of an adopted program, consistent with the 
cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each pupil enrolled in 
foreign language or health classes, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient laboratory science equipment was provided for science laboratory classes 
offered in grades 9‐12, inclusive;  
 
  THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that for the 2021‐22 school year, the CCOE has provided each pupil 
with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks. 
  

11.4 



Board Resolution 21/22‐01 
Page 2 
September 8, 2021 
 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County Board of 
Education on the 8th day of September 2021 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 
 
 
Noes: 
 
 
Absent: 
  

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of Colusa 
County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution adopted by 
the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting and the resolution 
is on file in the of said Board. 
 

       
  (Clerk’s Signature)      (Date) 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 1 of 3 

Title I Programs 

The  Governing  Board  recognizes  that  parents/guardians  are  their  children's  first  and  most 
influential  teachers  and  that  sustained  parent/guardian  involvement  in  the  education  of  their 
children  contributes  greatly  to  student  achievement  and  a  positive  school  environment.  The 
Superintendent  or  designee  shall  work  with  parents/guardians  and  family members  to  jointly 
develop  and  agree  upon  policy  and  strategies  to  meaningfully  involve  parents/guardians  and 
family members in Colusa County Office of Education (County Office) and school activities at all 
grade levels; advisory, decision‐making, and advocacy roles; and activities to support learning at 
home. 

Parents/guardians shall be notified of their rights to be informed about and to participate in their 
children's education and of the opportunities available to them to do so. 

The County Office's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and strategies 
for parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including County Office efforts to seek 
parent/guardian  input  in  County  Office  and  school  site  decision  making  and  to  promote 
parent/guardian participation in programs for English learners, foster youth, students eligible for 
free and reduced‐price meals, and students with disabilities. 

The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  regularly  evaluate  and  report  to  the  Board  on  the 
effectiveness of the County Office's parent/guardian and family engagement efforts, including, but 
not limited to, input from parents/guardians, family members, and school staff on the adequacy 
of involvement opportunities and on barriers that may inhibit participation. 

Title I Schools 
The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  involve  parents/guardians  and  family  members  in 
establishing County Office expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family 
engagement in schools supported by Title I funding, developing strategies that describe how the 
County Office will carry out each activity listed in 20 USC 6318, as contained in the accompanying 
administrative  regulation,  and  implementing  and  evaluating  such  programs,  activities,  and 
procedures.  As  appropriate,  the  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  conduct  outreach  to  all 
parents/guardians and family members. 

When the County Office's Title I, Part A allocation exceeds the amount specified in 20 USC 6318, 
the Board shall  reserve at  least one percent of  the  funding  to  implement parent/guardian and 
family engagement activities and shall distribute at  least 90 percent of those reserved funds to 
eligible  schools,  with  priority  given  to  high‐need  schools  as  defined  in  20  USC  6631.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians and family members of participating 
students  in  decisions  regarding  how  the  County  Office's  Title  I  funds  will  be  allotted  for 
parent/guardian and family engagement activities. 

Expenditures of such funds shall be consistent with the activities specified in this policy and shall 
include at least one of the following: 

11.5 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 2 of 3 

1. Support for schools and nonprofit organizations in providing professional development for 
County  Office  and  school  staff  regarding  parent/guardian  and  family  engagement 
strategies, which may  be  provided  jointly  to  teachers,  principals,  other  school  leaders, 
specialized instructional support personnel, paraprofessionals, early childhood educators, 
and parents/guardians and family members 

2. Support for programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home, in the 
community, and at school 

3. Dissemination  of  information on best  practices  focused on  parent/guardian  and  family 
engagement,  especially  best  practices  for  increasing  the  engagement  of  economically 
disadvantaged parents/guardians and family members 

4. Collaboration,  or  the  provision  of  subgrants  to  schools  to  enable  collaboration,  with 
community‐based  or  other  organizations  or  employers  with  a  record  of  success  in 
improving and increasing parent/guardian and family engagement 

5. Any other activities and strategies that the County Office determines are appropriate and 
consistent with this policy 

If the County Office also receives funds under federal Title IV, Part E, to coordinate and enhance 
family engagement programs, the Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians and 
organizations of the existence of Title IV. 

The County Office's Board policy containing parent/guardian and family engagement strategies 
shall be incorporated into the County Office's LCAP in accordance with 20 USC 6312. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school receiving Title I funds develops a 
school‐level parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 

County  Office  and  school‐level  parent/guardian  and  family  engagement  policies  shall  be 
distributed to parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs and shall be available 
to the local community. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the policy in an understandable and 
uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language the parents/guardians can 
understand. 

Non‐Title I Schools 
The superintendent or designee shall develop and implement strategies applicable to each school 
that  does  not  receive  federal  Title  I  funds  to  encourage  the  involvement  and  support  of 
parents/guardians  in  the  education  of  their  children,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  strategies 
describing  how  the  County  Office  and  schools  will  address  the  purpose  and  goals  describe  in 
education Code 11502. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 3 of 3 

References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  6020 Parent Involvement 
Education Code 
  11502 Programs to Encourage Parental Involvement 
  11503 Written Parent and Family Engagement Program for Each School 
  11504 Policy on Parent and Family Engagement Program for Each School 
  42238.02 Apportionments and Revenue Control ‐ Local Control Funding Formula 
  52060 Local Control and Accountability Plans and the Statewide System of Support 

U.S. Code (USC) Title 20 ‐ Education 
  6312 Local Educational Agency Plans 
  6318 Eligible School Attendance Areas 
  6631 Teacher and School Leader Incentive Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  October 13, 2021 



BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 2018

No. Date Ed Virginia Nancy Brenda Barry Jason

1 1/10/18 √ √ √ ‐ √

2 2/14/18 √ √ √ √ ‐

3 3/14/18 √ √ √ √ √

4 4/11/18 √ √ ‐ √ √

5 5/9/18 √ √ √ √ √

6 5/30/18  √ √ √ √ √

7 5/31/18  √ √ √ √ √

8 6/27/18 √ √ √ √ √

9 7/11/18 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

10 8/8/18 √ √ √ ‐ √

11 9/12/18 √ √ ‐ √ √

12 10/10/18 √ √ √ √ √

13 11/14/18 √ ‐ √ ‐ √

14 12/12/18 √  √ √ √ √

     Date Codes         Attendance Codes
  Expulsion Appeal √ Attended
  Board Retreat ‐ Absent
  Special Board Meeting  Resignation from Board
 Public Hearing
 Public Hearing & Regular Meeting
 Regular Meeting & Expulsion Appeal
    Strikethrough indicates cancelled meeting

C:\Users\tmaxwell\OD\Administrative\Board CCOE\Attendance\Attendance Chart\2018



BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 2019

No. Date Lynn Ed Jason Brenda Barry

1 1/9/19 √ √ √ √ √

2 1/24/19 √ √ √ √ √

3 2/13/19 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

4 3/13/19 √ √ √ √ √

5 4/17/19 √ √ √ ‐ √

6 5/8/19 √ √ √ √ √

7 6/18/19  √ √ ‐ √ ‐

8 6/19/19 √ √ √ √ √

9 7/10/19 √ ‐ ‐ √ √

10 8/14/19 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ √

11 9/11/2019  √ √ √ √ ‐

12 10/9/19 ‐ √ √ √ ‐

13 11/13/19 ‐ √ ‐ √ √

14 12/13/19 ‐ √ √ √ √

15 12/18/19 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

     Date Codes         Attendance Codes
  Board Retreat √ Attended
  Expulsion Appeal ‐ Absent
 Public Hearing  Resignation from Board
 Public Hearing & Regular Meeting
 Regular Meeting & Expulsion Appeal
  Special Board Meeting
 Special & Regular Board Meetings
    Strikethrough indicates cancelled meeting

C:\Users\tmaxwell\OD\Administrative\Board CCOE\Attendance\Attendance Chart\2019



BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 2020

No. Date Lynn Cristy Ed Jason Brenda Barry

1 1/8/20 √ √ √ ‐ √

2 2/12/20 √ √ ‐ √ √

3 3/11/20 ‐ √ √ √ √

4 4/8/20 Z Z Z Z Z

5 5/13/20 Z Z Z Z Z

6 6/9/20  Z Z ‐ Z Z

7 6/10/20 Z √ Z √ Z

8 7/8/20 ‐ √ √ Z Z

9 8/12/20 √ √ Z Z Z

10 9/9/20  Z/‐ √ ‐ √ Z

11 9/14/20 √ √ ‐ Z Z

12 10/14/20 ‐ Z ‐ √ Z

13 11/10/20 ‐ Z Z Z Z

14 12/11/20 ‐ √ Z √ √ Z

15 12/15/20 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

     Date Codes         Attendance Codes
  Board Retreat √ Attended
  Expulsion Appeal ‐ Absent
 Public Hearing  Resignation from Board
 Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Z Attended via Zoom
 Regular Meeting & Expulsion Appeal
  Special Board Meeting
 Special & Regular Board Meetings
    Strikethrough indicates cancelled meeting

GC 1770 ‐ Absence (for a period of 3 consecutive months) and other 

reasons for creating a vacancy.

C:\Users\tmaxwell\OD\Administrative\Board CCOE\Attendance\Attendance Chart\2020



BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 2021

No. Date Ed Cristy Jason Brenda Barry

1 1/13/21 Z √ ‐ Z Z

2 2/10/21 Z √ Z Z Z

3 3/10/21 Z √ ‐ √ Z

4 4/14/21 Z √ ‐ √ √

5 5/12/21 Z √ Z Z Z

6 6/8/21 ‐ √ ‐ Z Z

7 6/9/21 ‐ √ Z √ Z

8 7/14/21 √ √ √ √ √

9 8/11/21 √ √ √ √ √

10 9/8/21

11 10/13/21

12 11/10/21

13 12/14/21

14 12/15/21

     Date Codes         Attendance Codes
  Board Retreat √ Attended
  Expulsion Appeal ‐ Absent
 Public Hearing  Resignation from Board
 Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Z Attended via Zoom
 Regular Meeting & Expulsion Appeal
  Special Board Meeting
 Special & Regular Board Meetings
    Strikethrough indicates cancelled meeting

https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Attendance/Attendance 

Chart\2021



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, October 13, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 
4.2 Letter from State Treasurer – ScholarShare 529 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – September Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the September 8, 2021, Public Hearing  action 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the September 8, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2020‐21 Unaudited Actuals  action 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐02 Gann Limits  action 

11.3 Teleconference vs Broadcast (Live Stream) Board Meetings  information 

11.4 Approve Utilizing the Teleconferencing Option Provided in AB 361  action 
for the November 10, 2021, Board Meeting Because the Board 
Determines at this Time the Meeting Will be Held During a 
Proclaimed State of Emergency, and State or Local Officials have 
Imposed or Recommended Measures to Promote Social 
Distancing 

11.5 Edits to Board Policy and Operating Procedure 3020.00 –  information 
  Budget Committee 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
November 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



TB1-2177 

September 13, 2021 

--)  ECEIIVE  [ 

L Li 
SEP 1 7 2021  

1.._./ 

 

FIONA MA, CPA 
TREASURER, 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

    

     

Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
345 5th St Ste A 
Colusa, CA 95932-2445 

Dear Members of the Board, 

 

COLUSA COUNTY 
CFACE OF EDUCATION 

  

Did you know that 91 percent of parents expect their children will attend college? And that 89 percent of 
them expect to help pay for it? The good news is you can help support your families' college dreams by 
providing the tools they need to start saving smarter. 

September is College Savings Month, so there's no better time to talk to the families in your school(s) 
about ScholarShare 529, California's state-sponsored 529 college savings plan. As the Chair of the 
ScholarShare Investment Board, which oversees ScholarShare 529, I write to respectfully seek your 
assistance in raising awareness about the importance of saving for higher education and the significant 
role that a 529 college savings plan can play in that process within your school(s). ScholarShare 529 
provides families with a valuable savings tool that offers a diverse set of low-cost investment options, tax-
deferred growth, and withdrawals free from state and federal taxes when used for qualified higher 
education expenses such as tuition and fees, books, certain room and board costs, computer equipment, 
and other required supplies. 

I know the hardest part about starting to save is, well, starting. To help kick start savings, your families 
may also be eligible to participate in the Matching Grant Program which offers a dollar-for-dollar match 
in contributions of up to $200. Plus, families who establish monthly recurring contributions of $25 or more 
when opening a new account will receive another $25! 

It's the perfect opportunity to help your families save for their child's higher education, which 
remains one of the single greatest factors in their future success and upward mobility. 

You (or your staff) as well as families in your school(s) can learn more by: 

• Visiting our website at scholarshare529.com/CSM   
• Attending our webinars on September 22 and October 6 at 11:00 a.m. Pacific Time 

(register on our website) 
• Speaking with a ScholarShare 529 representative at (800) 544-5248 

We welcome the opportunity to partner with you and your school(s) to provide information about saving 
for college to your families. If you are interested in partnering, please contact us at 
scholarshare@treasurer.ca.gov  or (916) 651-6380. 

In Peace & Friendship, 

FIONA MA, CPA 
California State Treasurer 

915 Capitol Mall, Suite 110, Sacramento, CA 95814 • P.O. Box 942809, Sacramento, CA 95814 • (916) 653-2995 • Fax: (916) 653-3125 

300S. Spring Street, Suite 8500, Los Angeles, CA 90013 • (213) 620-4467 • Fax: (213) 620-6309 

www.treasurer.ca.gov  



  6.3 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  September 2021        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Cabinet meeting Strengths Discovery training. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 Completed NHSA Director’s Credential July 23, 2021. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 State and Federal Webinars. 
 Leadership Alliance Meetings. 
 Child Plus data-system three-day training. 
 Keenan Safe Schools required trainings. 
 Family Engagement Night with Ed Services. 
 Reach out to Elementary Principals. 
 Annual Professional Development Calendar. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Continue to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 Theme:  Dream BIG 
 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative and two day Leadership Training. 
 Provide virtual parenting concepts through Learning Genie Family Engagement app.  
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Representatives for new program year. 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 
October 2021 

  
 

 

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• Students will be working on more hands-on activities during their art session with Mr. Kirkman.  
• SWAA will be hosting Back to School Night on October 6, 2021. During the event, carne asada will be 

provided for the students and their families.  
• SWAA students will be celebrating the day of the dead during the month of October, they will be 

creating a Day of the Dead Alter to celebrate passed loved ones.  
• SWAA students will be celebrating Pink October on October 15, 2021, to honor cancer patients and 

survivors. 
• Enrollment numbers have increased at SWAA this past month. 

Colusa County Adult School 
• Wildland Fire Academy applications were due October 1, 2021.  The academy can provide training to 

20 cadets.  Classes start in January 2022. 
• The 3rd CNA Cohort is entering clinicals beginning October 4th. Thank you to our clinical partners 

Colusa Medical Center and Valley West Post Acute for their partnership. 
• Positions still open include an ESL and a CTE teacher 

 
Farm to School 

• SWAA students cleared out the flower beds on the east side of campus and planted cauliflower and 
broccoli seedlings.  

• The Kitchen a la Cart was unveiled to SWAA students. They made homemade salsa with tomatoes and 
jalapenos harvested from the student garden.  

• Garden beds are being built at Egling Middle School with Teacher Heather Hamilton and her Ag class. 
• F2S Lab Supervisor position is still open. 

 
Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Webinars from CDE supporting county offices and their reporting have been frequent and helpful 

 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• DA support is being provided to the district on as needed basis. 
• New DA requirements were shared with district to use for planning purposes 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• After review from CDE and technical corrections were made, CDE has approved the CCOE LCAP for 
2021-22.   

• The updated CCOE LCAP for 2021-22 can be found on CCOE’s website 
• New Supplemental LCAP reporting to school boards will be coming soon 



• Dashboard Local Indicators have been submitted for CCOE ( they were approved at the June 2021 board 
meeting) 

• CDE indicated that in moving forward their will be one central point of contact for each COE to review 
their LCAP and provide assistance. 

 
North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

• October 1, 2021, members of the NCCPLN met with CDE personnel regarding the approval of district 
ESSER III Plans and also the new LCAP one time supplement that will be coming to boards in February 
2022.   

 
Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• During the month of September our three child aides scored and inputting student data into pre-

assessment spreadsheets.  
• All child aides started with their cohorts and have started implementing the second step curriculum.   

Foster Youth 
• The Prevention Services Department has gone through staffing changes. We have a new Prevention 

Services Supervisor, Estefania Guillen Aceves, and a new Prevention Services Coordinator, Claudia 
Deniz.   

• The department has increased their involvement in the Foster Focus Data Collection System.   
• The first Executive Advisory Committee meeting took place on 9/9/2021; The focus of the meeting was 

bylaws, memberships, and the Foster Youth Program Plan.  
• McKinney Vento/Foster 101 Trainings for school districts, administrators, teachers, counselors, parents, 

caregivers, and students have been completed.  
• The Prevention Services Department met with Child Welfare Services to discuss collaborative efforts.   

 
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• The Prevention Services Department been more involved in providing technical assistance to districts as 
schools have reopened. Technical assistance support has been centered around AB 1806/167/216, school 
of origin, and collaborative meetings.   

• The department has attended and participated in Karen’s House Board Meetings to support the 
understanding of McKinney Vento Children and Youth.   

• We are teaming up with Williams Unified School District to present at the 2021 National Association for 
the Education of Homeless Children and Youth Conference.  

• The department has received $12, 240.03 from the American Rescue Plan I- Homeless Children and 
Youth Grant.    

• We will be collaborating with the Innovative Approaches to Literacy to host a County-Wide Annual 
Resource Fair. The date of the event is November 6, 2021, at the Education Village in Williams, CA.   

 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The Colusa County Office of Education’s We are Family/Parent Engagement Initiative has been a 
monthly parent workshop that supports our programs. The first meeting was on September 8, 2021. The 
purpose of the workshop was to educate the public on the many services offered through CCOE.  

o The second workshop will be on October 6, 2021, at the Education Village in Williams, CA. 
The workshop will focus on Tobacco Use Prevention Education.   

• Red Ribbon Week SWAG will be distributed during the week of October 18 to Colusa County School 
districts. We plan on distributing SWAG to over 5000 students.    

• The Prevention Services Department attended Back to School Nights, as well tabled at the Williams Flea 
Market to promote Prevention Services Programs.   



• Colusa County School Districts will be participating in the CA Healthy Kids Survey. CA Healthy Kids 
Survey implementation will commence October 2021.  

• The TUPE Coordinator’s Monthly Meeting was attended by Prevention Services team.  
 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• Collaborative meetings between Colusa County Sheriff’s Department have been taking place to 
coordinate for this school year.   

• Activities and purchases have been discussed that are allowable for the TLEGP Grant.   
• Reporting for Q1 is due on October 15, 2021.  

 



10/1/2021

1

THE ECHO PROGRAM

CAPTAIN

• Cadre that focuses on evidence based practices to support students with Autism and 
other related disorders

• Annual Cadre meeting along with quarterly regional meetings

• CCOE has participated for 4 years and is now part of the leadership group for our 
region, Capitol CAPTAIN

• The main leadership group reached out to us specifically due to the rural nature of our 
county and our active participation with the Cadre

1

2



10/1/2021

2

CAPTAIN

• https://www.captain.ca.gov/

ECHO

• https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UFGWXDkn7PaVrMeojsGtCxSfD9pTDc1V/view

3

4



10/1/2021

3

ECHO

• Topics

• Visual Supports 

• Antecedent Based Interventions

• Reinforcement

• Functional Communication

• Self-Management

• Social Skills

COACHING STAFF AS A FOLLOW UP TO TRAINING

• Active members receive in person coaching on the evidence based practice

• Support staff and gen ed staff invited to audit the program in order to increase 
knowledge without completing requirements

• Meeting the participation guidelines may increase this type of support to schools moving 
forward

5

6



10/1/2021

4

CAPTAIN PRESENTATION 2020-2021

• https://ccoe.net/cms/one.aspx?portalId=675832&pageId=44893450

7



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report October 13, 2021 

 

We have completed ¾ of the EduNet deployment for Colusa Unified School District.  
The power issue at Pirelli has been resolved.  We would like to thank the City of Colusa 
for all their help getting the site up.  We have programmed all of the internal routers for 
CUSD and they are ready to be given to students.  We will be meeting to discuss the 
status of the deployment and options for the final radio including possible locations near 
the golf course. 
 
We have been assisting Pierce Joint Unified School District with their network 
bandwidth increase from 1 Gigabit to 2 Gigabits for several of their circuits. This project 
is now finalized.  We continue to press Frontier on issues that remain lackluster after 
our talks with their top brass. 
 
Both the new iBoss and new Firewall have been successfully put into production.  We 
have been optimizing the configurations over the past few weeks. 
 
All new CCOE wireless access points have been replaced at sites with older access 
point models.  We have successfully upgraded the firmware on the controller to the 
latest version.  We are implementing the new features into our environment.  
 
We have successfully upgraded our local helpdesk to a cloud hosted version.  The old 
version has been discontinued.   
 
We have begun planning potential Erate category 2 purchases for CCOE departments 
with aged networking equipment.   
 
We have begun the process of implementing two factor authentication (2FA) for Office 
365 for all CCOE Staff members. 
 
 



 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – September 8, 2021 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Jessica Galloway Haney, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, 
Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck 
Wayman, and Michael West 

President Cristy Edwards called the Public Hearing on the Availability of Textbooks and 
Instructional Materials to order at 4:00 p.m. 

No public was present to comment on or ask questions about the Availability of Textbooks and 
Instructional Materials. 

The Public Hearing closed at 4:01 p.m.   

Adopted and Entered 

   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting September 8, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Jessica Galloway Haney, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, Bob 
Kirkman, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, 
Lorilee Niesen, Rebecca Velazquez, Chuck Wayman, Michael West, and 
Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 11.1 to follow 4.1 
Move 11.2 to follow the moved 11.1 
Move 6.4 to follow the moved 11.2 
Move 7.2 to follow 11.6 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve movement of agenda items. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported that a recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School was not yet in attendance. 

 
Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.1. 
Agenda item 11.2 was heard immediately following the moved agenda item 11.1. 
Agenda item 6.4 was heard immediately following the moved agenda item 11.2. 
   

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided an update on the district superintendents’ 
responses to COVID 19 and in‐person instruction.  He said that the 
superintendents are doing their best to mitigate issues of illness at all 
districts and they are following the practices of Colusa County Public 
Health. Michael spoke appreciatively about Colusa County Director of 
Health and Human Services Elizabeth Kelly’s continuing support for all the 
school districts and the county as a whole.  Michael also reported on the 
final stages of State education legislation, which includes changes to 
several funding streams and programmatic areas, LCFF concentration 
grants to provide funds for hiring additional school site staff that provide 
direct services at high‐poverty schools, a Pre‐Kindergarten Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program funding, a deadline extension for the ELO 
Program, changes to the kitchen funding guarantee, an extension of time 
for students to be able to request grade changes from letter‐based 
grading to a pass/no pass grade, an increase of substitute teachers’ 
cumulative time in any one assignment to 60 days, J‐13A protection for 
losses in attendance due to quarantine, authorization of grading and 
auditing of Independent Study by employees of the LEA, allowing 
Independent Study to be used for students forced into quarantine, and 
no exemption for LEAs to meet annual minimum instructional days and 
minutes.  Michael added that all the trailer bill language must be 
approved by the legislature before midnight on Friday September 10, 
2021.  Discussion was held on areas of concern, specifically 
accountability.  Michael also reported on his participation and 
attendance in activities, such as meetings with the County, numerous 
CCSESA meetings to stay abreast of the changing horizon, visits to all 
district superintendents with CBO Aaron Heinz and PR Director Alissa 
Maas to discuss collaboration and mutual interests.  Michael announced 
the reorganization of duties and assignments for Aaron Heinz and Chuck 
Wayman.  Both will be Deputy Superintendents with Aaron over 
Administrative Services and Chuck over Student Services in charge of 
Children’s Services, Educational Services and Special Education.  Michael 
is also expanding Director of Educational Services, Lorilee Niesen’s duties.  
Chuck introduced Jessica Galloway‐Haney, Director of Special Education.  
Discussion was held on filling the HR vacant position. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – August Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
August and discussed issues and challenges with school re‐openings, 
received an update from Colusa County Director of Health and Human 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

Services Elizabeth Kelly, reviewed guidance from CDPH on sporting 
activities, and reported on vaccine/testing program challenges (shortage 
of testing kits).  Discussion was held on constantly changing rules, on 
outside of county school closures as a result of COVID, on the trajectory 
of COVID cases once weekly testing begins, and on politicizing vaccines. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his September 2021 Administrative Services report to the 
Board and spoke about Serena Morrow and HR’s work on the rapidly changing 
COVID protocols, Angelina Guizar’s work on unaudited actuals, Alissa Maas’ work 
on the Superintendent Roadshow, and SB 556 that if enacted will allow LEAs to 
rent space on light poles and telephone poles and install devices to take the 
internet signal to the last mile.  Discussion was held on getting the signal to rural 
areas and the need for vertical assets. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss answered the Board’s questions regarding her September 2021 
Children’s Services written report, about which programs are open, and on 
families’ adjustment to COVID and school attendance, which Vicki said was good.  
Vicki commended her teaching team for being there for the children and 
providing continuity.  Discussion was held on the number of vacant positions, 
which is down from twelve to five. 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Agenda item 6.4 was heard immediately following the moved agenda item 11.2. 

Lorilee Niesen added to her September 2021 Educational Services report saying 
that the Prevention Services team will be going to the National Association for 
the Education of Homeless Children conference in Atlanta in November and will 
present a component on Migrant Education outreach.  The high school graduate 
arrived, and Lorilee introduced the graduate, presented her with a diploma, gave 
the graduate a portfolio to organize her professional papers, and asked her to 
introduce her guests.  Lorilee introduced SWAA and CBA Art Teacher Bob 
Kirkman who presented information, projects, and plans for the Rainforest Art 
Project.  Lorilee spoke about Bob’s participation in Summer School.  Discussion 
was held on different types of projects, project‐based learning, bringing art into 
all subject areas, and on spreading the word to the community that the projects 
will be available for sale. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman answered the Board’s questions regarding his September 2021 
Special Education and SELPA written report, about the make‐up of most of the 
vacancies (paraeducators), staffing at CBA (down one teacher), and transitioning 
students from other districts to CBA with not many students transitioning from 
CBA to their home districts.  Chuck added that the teachers in the field are doing 
great with their students. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans answered the Board’s question regarding his September 2021 
Technology Services written report, about Alex’s conversations with three 
Frontier vice presidents.  Discussion was held on the results of those 
conversations. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
Cristy Edwards reported that she cancelled all scheduled CSBA and CCBE 
conferences and trainings because those changed from in‐person to virtual.  
Discussion was held on CSBA making those trainings available online and on 
asking a CSBA representative to present Board training to Colusa County Boards. 

7.2 Board Budget Sub‐Committee Policy Update 
Cristy Edwards moved agenda item 7.2 to be heard following agenda item 11.6. 

Discussion was held on the outcome of the Budget Sub‐Committee policy 
meeting.  Brenda Miller reported that during the meeting she and Jason 
McMullan disagreed on the policy development.  Brenda’s position was that the 
policy should not be linked to the budget process, that the budget information 
should be presented to the Board as a whole, and that the policy allows two 
people to have more control over the budget than the rest of the Board.  Brenda 
did not advocate removing the policy but editing it to address her concerns.  
Discussion was held on the need for the Board to edit the policy.  Jason’s 
position was that he believes that with a change in language the policy can be 
made flexible from year to year.  The Board members will each make edits to the 
policy and will bring those edits to the October meeting. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry 
Morrell) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the August 11, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that he will meet with WCC President Dr. Art Pimentel 
next week to discuss mutually beneficial projects between WCC and CCOE. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West spoke about continuing discussions with the architects regarding 
the Adult Education portable placement and plan. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Lorilee Niesen reported that CCOE’s LCAP was submitted to the CDE, but that the 
document was returned with written recommendations.  After meeting with the 
CDE to fully understand the edits that were needed, Lorilee resubmitted the 
LCAP.  None of the changes were financial, so the LCAP does not need to be 
brought back to the Board for approval.  Discussion was held on the CDE 
approval process. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
updated F2B data from the previous 30 days that indicated increased community 
and district usage in the areas of hours of literacy, words read, books read, and 
books written.  Karisa also reported on grant activities, including story times on 
the CCOE ALFA Facebook page; literacy kits that were provided to several local 
businesses; an upcoming delivery of iPads, which are loaded with both the F2B 
and Clever Kids University apps, to MUSD elementary school, library, and ASES 
program; F2B Director of Curriculum Judy Hall’s scheduled curriculum training 
for MES teachers to integrate F2B into their curriculum; an iPad lending program 
that is scheduled to begin in October and November for Children Services, WES, 
and First 5 Family Action Centers; and work with the Colusa County Library to 
begin presenting story times in October.  Karisa spoke about recent literacy kit 
distribution outreach opportunities at the Williams Flea Market and elementary 
Back to School nights in Williams and Colusa.  She also outlined upcoming events 
including Children’s Services Children’s Faire in Williams, the Pumpkin Festival in 
Arbuckle, and the E Center in Williams.  Karisa also reported on Stefani Silvas 
Santana’s work at the Garden Apartments parent nights to provide information 
on all the programs at CCOE, free books, and F2B sign up and assistance. 

Aaron Heinz reported that he received compliments from two individuals on the 
IAL program.  Discussion was held on the districts that are involved in F2B (CUSD 
and PJUSD), on staff integration of the F2B curriculum into their programs that 
Karisa will report on in the October meeting, on the benefit of F2B aiding in 
learning loss, on WUSD using F2B for parent support, on Children’s Services using 
it in their classrooms, on the F2B program progression and its availability 
throughout the county, on continuous F2B training, on businesses in Williams 
that have received literacy kits, and on F2B content development. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Accept and Review Written Bid(s), and Listen to Oral Bid(s) for Sale of CCOE 

Property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 
Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.1. 

President Cristy Edwards opened the only written bid that CCOE received.  The 
bid was from H&H Property Management for a purchase price of $321,000 and a 
certified check in the amount of $10,000.  The Board discussed the bid and 
sought Aaron Heinz’s and Michael West’s opinions. 

11.2 Award Sale of CCOE Property ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 
Agenda item 11.2 was heard immediately following the moved agenda item 11.1. 

Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
accept the $321,000 bid and to award the sale of CCOE property ‐ Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 005‐260‐002 – to H&H Property Management. 

11.3 Approve Technology Services Inventory for Disposal 
Alex Evans explained the need to dispose of Technology Services’ inventory, 
saying that the devices were either damaged beyond repair or obsolete as a 
result of salvaging the devices for usable parts, not worth investing in repair, or 
are no longer supported. 
 
Jason McMullan/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve Technology Services Inventory for Disposal. 

11.4 Approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐01 of the Colusa County Superintendent 
of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding Sufficiency or 
Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2021‐22 
No questions or comments. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐01 of the Colusa County Superintendent of 
Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding Sufficiency or 
Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2021‐22. 

11.5 First Reading:  New Board Policy – BP 6171.00 Title I Programs 
Lorilee Niesen explained that BP 6171.00 Title I Programs is needed to outline 
CCOE’s use of Title I Funds to bridge the achievement gap through parent 
engagement.  Discussion was held on the future of Title I funds and CCOE. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 8, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 7 

11.6 Review Budget Sub‐Committee 
Discussion was held on tabling the review of the Budget Sub‐Committee to the 
October meeting. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
table the Budget Sub‐Committee to the October meeting. 
 
Agenda item 7.2 was heard immediately following agenda item 11.6. 

11.7 Review Board Member Attendance 
Cristy Edwards reported that the Board will be committing to liaison committees 
in December and that she thought that attendance information will be helpful in 
making decisions at that time. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
take no action on Board Member Attendance. 
 
Discussion was held on live streaming. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Live Streaming Information 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
October 13, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 6:03 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

 

ALFA  And Literacy for All Initiative 

ASES  After School Education and Safety 

BP  Board Policy 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CBO  Chief Business Official 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CSBA  California School Boards Association 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

ELO  Expanded Learning Opportunities 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

HR  Human Resources 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

MES  Maxwell Elementary School 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

PR  Public Relations 

SB  Senate Bill 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

WCC  Williams Children's Center 

WES  Williams Elementary School 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



2020-2021  

Unaudited Actuals 
Presented to the Board 

October 13, 2021 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

COE Certification (Form CA) ................................................................................................. 1 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ..................................................................................... 4 

General Fund 01 ...................................................................................................................... 6 

Adult Education Fund 11 ...................................................................................................... 23 

Child Development Fund 12 ................................................................................................ 36 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 ......................................................................................................... 44 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ...................................................................................................... 49 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 ................................................................... 58 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................. 67 

       Form ESMOE .................................................................................................................... 68 

       GANN Appropriations Limit Calculation ..................................................................... 71  

 Lottery Report ................................................................................................................. 74 

       Form Asset ....................................................................................................................... 75  

Form Debt ....................................................................................................................... 76 

Indirect Cost Calculation (ICR) .................................................................................... 77  

Summary of Interfund Activities-SIAA .......................................................................... 80 

 



 

 

 

COE Certification (Form CA)  
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
Summary of Unaudited Actual Data Submission

06 10066 0000000
Form CA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ca-c (Rev 03/06/2018) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021   3:48 PM

Following is a summary of the critical data elements contained in your unaudited actual data. Since these data may have 
fiscal implications for your agency, please verify their accuracy before filing your unaudited actual financial reports.

Form Description Value

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Determination MOE Met

If MOE Not Met, the 2022-23 apportionment may be reduced by the lesser of the following two percentages:

     MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Total Expenditures

     MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Expenditures Per ADA

GANN Adjustments to Appropriations Limit Per Government Code Section 7902.1 $308,964.97

If this amount is not zero, it represents an increase to your Appropriations Limit. The Department of

Finance must be notified of increases within 45 days of budget adoption.

Adjusted Appropriations Limit $511,774.93

Appropriations Subject to Limit $511,774.93

These amounts represent the board approved Appropriations Limit and Appropriations Subject to

Limit pursuant to Government Code Section 7907 and EC 1629.

ICR Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 7.97%

Fixed-with-carry-forward indirect cost rate for use in 2022-23, subject to CDE approval.

1/15/2021

Page 2 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
County Office of Education Certification

06 10066 0000000
Form CA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ca-c (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021   3:48 PM

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT:

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

2020-21 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report is hereby prepared and filed by the 
County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code sections 41010 and 1628.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact:

For County Office of Education:

Aaron Heinz
Name

Associate Superintendent
Title

530-458-0350
Telephone

aheinz@ccoe.net
E-mail Address

Page 3 of 81



 

 

 

ANNUAL ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  9/24/2021  3:09 PM

     2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget2021-22 Budget
Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education  
      Grant ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 12.32 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00 5.00
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 12.32 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00 5.00
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.14 0.13 0.13
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 1.55 1.55 0.00 1.55 1.55
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 14.69 16.23 16.23 14.55 16.10 16.10
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 27.01 26.90 26.90 19.55 21.10 21.10
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 4.05 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  9/24/2021  3:09 PM

     2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget2021-22 Budget

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA
Estimated P-2

ADA
Estimated

Annual ADA
Estimated

Funded ADA
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

 1.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 
 2.  Charter School County Program Alternative 
      Education ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
      d. Total, Charter School County Program 
          Alternative Education ADA
          (Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 3.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County
          Program ADA
          (Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 4.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      (Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      FUND 09 or 62:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

 5.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 
 6.  Charter School County Program Alternative 
      Education ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
      d. Total, Charter School County Program
          Alternative Education ADA
          (Sum of Lines C6a through C6c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 7.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County
          Program ADA
          (Sum of Lines C7a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 8.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      (Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 9.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
      (Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND (01)   
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,213,644.91 410,372.00 2,624,016.91 2,226,334.00 405,742.00 2,632,076.00 0.3%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 2,523,068.60 2,523,068.60 0.00 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 -17.8%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 12,660.75 4,219,287.35 4,231,948.10 18,800.00 4,224,260.00 4,243,060.00 0.3%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 710,749.43 4,015,708.58 4,726,458.01 632,060.00 4,715,049.00 5,347,109.00 13.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,937,055.09 11,168,436.53 14,105,491.62 2,877,194.00 11,419,303.00 14,296,497.00 1.4%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 480,214.70 4,127,300.80 4,607,515.50 519,395.00 4,195,146.00 4,714,541.00 2.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,488,407.76 2,319,070.54 3,807,478.30 1,535,844.00 2,664,854.00 4,200,698.00 10.3%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 794,822.78 2,621,105.84 3,415,928.62 937,873.00 3,029,563.00 3,967,436.00 16.1%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 204,277.82 1,098,611.16 1,302,888.98 215,823.00 569,493.00 785,316.00 -39.7%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 389,313.26 625,943.38 1,015,256.64 589,077.00 390,064.00 979,141.00 -3.6%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 93,031.71 149,218.74 242,250.45 32,902.00 35,400.00 68,302.00 -71.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 57,126.48 57,126.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,181,122.42) 718,800.74 (462,321.68) (1,216,177.00) 706,323.00 (509,854.00) 10.3%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,268,945.61 11,717,177.68 13,986,123.29 2,614,737.00 11,590,843.00 14,205,580.00 1.6%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 668,109.48 (548,741.15) 119,368.33 262,457.00 (171,540.00) 90,917.00 -23.8%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 4,887.80 0.00 4,887.80 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 22.8%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (354,540.03) 354,540.03 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (349,652.23) 354,540.03 4,887.80 (165,540.00) 171,540.00 6,000.00 22.8%

Page 7 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) 318,457.25 (194,201.12) 124,256.13 96,917.00 0.00 96,917.00 -22.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 4,240,596.41 187,793.42 4,428,389.83 2.9%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 4,240,596.41 187,793.42 4,428,389.83 2.9%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 4,240,596.41 187,793.42 4,428,389.83 2.9%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,240,596.41 187,793.42 4,428,389.83 4,337,513.41 187,793.42 4,525,306.83 2.2%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            Stores 9712 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            Prepaid Items 9713 141,802.31 0.00 141,802.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 171,357.28 171,357.28 0.00 187,793.42 187,793.42 9.6%

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,398,988.17 0.00 3,398,988.17 3,640,922.64 0.00 3,640,922.64 7.1%

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,807,209.17 2,807,209.17

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,049,143.64 3,049,143.64

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated     

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 699,305.93 0.00 699,305.93 696,590.77 0.00 696,590.77 -0.4%

           Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 8 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

G. ASSETS

    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 3,048,061.50 (1,095,118.30) 1,952,943.20

            1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 500.00 0.00 500.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00 0.00 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 1,305,564.43 1,673,196.40 2,978,760.83

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 0.00 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 29,429.12 0.00 29,429.12

    6) Stores 9320 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 141,802.31 0.00 141,802.31

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00

    9) TOTAL, ASSETS 4,525,357.36 594,514.24 5,119,871.60

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 278,086.17 235,207.62 513,293.79

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 273.59 0.00 273.59

    4) Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 6,401.19 171,513.20 177,914.39

    6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 284,760.95 406,720.82 691,481.77

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30

Page 9 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 4 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    (must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 4,240,596.41 187,793.42 4,428,389.83

Page 10 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 5 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

LCFF SOURCES
 
  Principal Apportionment
    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,256,134.38 0.00 1,256,134.38 1,659,902.00 0.00 1,659,902.00 32.1%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 894,515.00 0.00 894,515.00 481,199.00 0.00 481,199.00 -46.2%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 (30,853.00) 0.00 (30,853.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions
    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,528.22 0.00 2,528.22 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 2.9%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 100.39 0.00 100.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes
    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 460,484.05 0.00 460,484.05 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 -0.4%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 34,173.05 0.00 34,173.05 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 -17.5%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 552.31 0.00 552.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 12,041.14 0.00 12,041.14 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 -52.3%

    Education Revenue Augmentation
     Fund (ERAF) 8045 (676.54) 0.00 (676.54) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds
     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from
     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,359.81 0.00 1,359.81 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 -0.9%

    Less: Non-LCFF
          (50%) Adjustment 8089 (679.90) 0.00 (679.90) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,629,678.91 0.00 2,629,678.91 2,637,738.00 0.00 2,637,738.00 0.3%
  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF Transfers -
     Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.0%

    All Other LCFF Transfers -
     Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (410,372.00) 410,372.00 0.00 (405,742.00) 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 11 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 6 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,213,644.91 410,372.00 2,624,016.91 2,226,334.00 405,742.00 2,632,076.00 0.3%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 830,192.71 830,192.71 0.00 898,212.00 898,212.00 8.2%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 162,589.97 162,589.97 0.00 220,373.00 220,373.00 35.5%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 187,043.05 187,043.05 0.00 128,483.00 128,483.00 -31.3%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 719.00 719.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 881.00 881.00 610.00 610.00 -30.8%

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student
   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 12 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 7 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant 
   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,
5630 8290 74,105.35 74,105.35 74,225.00 74,225.00 0.2%

  Career and Technical
   Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 1,267,537.52 1,267,537.52 0.00 752,349.00 752,349.00 -40.6%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 2,523,068.60 2,523,068.60 0.00 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 -17.8%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement
      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan
      Current Year 6500 8311 2,737,100.00 2,737,100.00 2,766,168.00 2,766,168.00 1.1%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 23,127.00 23,127.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 94,251.45 94,251.45 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 -50.1%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 6,290.00 0.00 6,290.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 55.8%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 3,522.75 1,503.82 5,026.57 4,000.00 2,400.00 6,400.00 27.3%

    Tax Relief Subventions
      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 13 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 8 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 122,772.13 122,772.13 85,000.00 85,000.00 -30.8%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive 
     Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary  7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 2,848.00 1,161,135.95 1,163,983.95 5,000.00 1,244,295.00 1,249,295.00 7.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 12,660.75 4,219,287.35 4,231,948.10 18,800.00 4,224,260.00 4,243,060.00 0.3%

Page 14 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 9 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue
    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies
         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds
       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from
       Delinquent Non-LCFF 
       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 52,229.60 52,229.60 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 -46.2%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 33,418.79 0.00 33,418.79 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 124.4%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
      of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 20,000.00 275,722.23 295,722.23 250.00 60,981.00 61,231.00 -79.3%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue
      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF

Page 15 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 10 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

            (50%) Adjustment 8691 679.90 0.00 679.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From
       Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 526,586.39 163,551.51 690,137.90 371,324.00 224,669.00 595,993.00 -13.6%

  Tuition 8710 1,388.00 3,524,205.24 3,525,593.24 10,367.00 4,401,309.00 4,411,676.00 25.1%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 128,676.35 0.00 128,676.35 175,119.00 0.00 175,119.00 36.1%

  Transfers of Apportionments
      Special Education SELPA Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments
        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%   

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 710,749.43 4,015,708.58 4,726,458.01 632,060.00 4,715,049.00 5,347,109.00 13.1%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,937,055.09 11,168,436.53 14,105,491.62 2,877,194.00 11,419,303.00 14,296,497.00 1.4%

Page 16 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 11 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 55,754.28 2,342,666.88 2,398,421.16 62,636.00 2,434,574.00 2,497,210.00 4.1%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 4,839.00 1,377,534.34 1,382,373.34 0.00 1,390,162.00 1,390,162.00 0.6%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 419,621.42 293,463.28 713,084.70 456,759.00 259,612.00 716,371.00 0.5%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 113,636.30 113,636.30 0.00 110,798.00 110,798.00 -2.5%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 480,214.70 4,127,300.80 4,607,515.50 519,395.00 4,195,146.00 4,714,541.00 2.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 1,323,465.79 1,323,465.79 0.00 1,467,251.00 1,467,251.00 10.9%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 245,834.11 383,094.23 628,928.34 265,393.00 461,711.00 727,104.00 15.6%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 556,001.43 190,072.99 746,074.42 517,042.00 168,467.00 685,509.00 -8.1%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 686,397.24 211,102.91 897,500.15 753,409.00 211,655.00 965,064.00 7.5%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 174.98 211,334.62 211,509.60 0.00 355,770.00 355,770.00 68.2%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,488,407.76 2,319,070.54 3,807,478.30 1,535,844.00 2,664,854.00 4,200,698.00 10.3%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  STRS 3101-3102 76,471.62 1,000,852.01 1,077,323.63 86,142.00 1,056,724.00 1,142,866.00 6.1%

  PERS 3201-3202 285,107.54 480,009.69 765,117.23 351,354.00 639,761.00 991,115.00 29.5%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 115,446.94 240,111.27 355,558.21 120,094.00 267,999.00 388,093.00 9.2%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 247,485.42 699,009.14 946,494.56 286,985.00 766,933.00 1,053,918.00 11.3%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 985.21 7,521.06 8,506.27 22,186.00 93,548.00 115,734.00 1260.6%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 59,326.09 193,602.67 252,928.76 61,112.00 204,598.00 265,710.00 5.1%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 9,999.96 0.00 9,999.96 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 794,822.78 2,621,105.84 3,415,928.62 937,873.00 3,029,563.00 3,967,436.00 16.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 128,487.40 733,507.91 861,995.31 181,785.00 308,314.00 490,099.00 -43.1%

Page 17 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 12 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 75,790.42 240,887.46 316,677.88 34,038.00 186,500.00 220,538.00 -30.4%

  Food 4700 0.00 124,215.79 124,215.79 0.00 74,679.00 74,679.00 -39.9%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 204,277.82 1,098,611.16 1,302,888.98 215,823.00 569,493.00 785,316.00 -39.7%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 25,967.49 35,395.98 61,363.47 81,133.00 58,307.00 139,440.00 127.2%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 35,362.33 4,759.56 40,121.89 34,172.00 4,000.00 38,172.00 -4.9%

  Insurance 5400 - 5450 108,533.70 0.00 108,533.70 115,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 6.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping
   Services 5500 73,102.67 6,812.78 79,915.45 105,000.00 11,586.00 116,586.00 45.9%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and 
   Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 94,844.38 22,403.74 117,248.12 92,446.00 23,735.00 116,181.00 -0.9%   

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (68,962.39) 68,962.39 0.00 (68,737.00) 68,737.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (296,423.18) (223,003.62) (519,426.80) (286,782.00) (334,311.00) (621,093.00) 19.6%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 287,847.45 691,673.15 979,520.60 341,111.00 548,472.00 889,583.00 -9.2%

  Communications 5900 129,040.81 18,939.40 147,980.21 175,734.00 9,538.00 185,272.00 25.2%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 389,313.26 625,943.38 1,015,256.64 589,077.00 390,064.00 979,141.00 -3.6%

Page 18 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 13 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

CAPITAL OUTLAY
 

  Land 6100 0.00 34,949.91 34,949.91 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 -14.2%

  Land Improvements 6170 11,385.00 0.00 11,385.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 25,189.85 46,345.64 71,535.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries
   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 41,456.86 67,923.19 109,380.05 32,902.00 5,400.00 38,302.00 -65.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 93,031.71 149,218.74 242,250.45 32,902.00 35,400.00 68,302.00 -71.8%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
 

  Tuition
    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 19 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 14 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

      All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 57,126.48 57,126.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

      All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service
      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 57,126.48 57,126.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (718,800.74) 718,800.74 0.00 (706,323.00) 706,323.00 0.00 0.0%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (462,321.68) 0.00 (462,321.68) (509,854.00) 0.00 (509,854.00) 10.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,181,122.42) 718,800.74 (462,321.68) (1,216,177.00) 706,323.00 (509,854.00) 10.3%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,268,945.61 11,717,177.68 13,986,123.29 2,614,737.00 11,590,843.00 14,205,580.00 1.6%

Page 20 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 15 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 4,887.80 0.00 4,887.80 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 22.8%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 4,887.80 0.00 4,887.80 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 22.8% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments
      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of
       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources
      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of
       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from
      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 21 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 16 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:11 AM

  2020-21 Unaudited Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (354,540.03) 354,540.03 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (354,540.03) 354,540.03 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) (349,652.23) 354,540.03 4,887.80 (165,540.00) 171,540.00 6,000.00 22.8%

Page 22 of 81



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND (11) 
 

 

Page 23 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 5,706.00 4,940.00 -13.4%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,120.00 8,753.00 112.5%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 256,936.06 252,958.00 -1.5%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 272,424.06 272,313.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 121,095.65 143,579.00 18.6%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 44,841.75 28,550.00 -36.3%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 32,939.55 57,655.00 75.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 34,784.92 11,862.00 -65.9%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 29,576.89 19,611.00 -33.7%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 22,691.41 0.00 -100.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 15,286.34 11,056.00 -27.7%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 301,216.51 272,313.00 -9.6%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (28,792.45) 0.00 -100.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 24 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) (28,792.45) 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 102,136.60 102,136.60 0.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 349.60 0.00 -100.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 101,787.00 102,136.60 0.3%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 25 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 95,461.65

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 25,726.41

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 177.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 349.60

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 121,714.66

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 16,734.94

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 2,843.12

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 19,578.06

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 102,136.60

Page 26 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

LCFF SOURCES

  LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 5,706.00 4,940.00 -13.4%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 5,706.00 4,940.00 -13.4%

OTHER STATE REVENUE  
  

  Other State Apportionments

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 4,120.00 8,753.00 112.5%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,120.00 8,753.00 112.5%

Page 27 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 196,930.32 190,180.00 -3.4%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 60,005.74 62,778.00 4.6%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 256,936.06 252,958.00 -1.5%

TOTAL, REVENUES 272,424.06 272,313.00 0.0%

Page 28 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 89,019.31 118,484.00 33.1%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 32,076.34 25,095.00 -21.8%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 121,095.65 143,579.00 18.6%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 26,612.55 9,517.00 -64.2%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 18,229.20 19,033.00 4.4%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 44,841.75 28,550.00 -36.3%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 11,156.44 21,170.00 89.8%

  PERS 3201-3202 3,660.09 4,378.00 19.6%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 5,157.17 11,123.00 115.7%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 7,899.44 7,254.00 -8.2%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 88.67 5,446.00 6041.9%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 4,977.74 8,284.00 66.4%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 32,939.55 57,655.00 75.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 27,918.72 10,862.00 -61.1%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 6,866.20 1,000.00 -85.4%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 34,784.92 11,862.00 -65.9%

Page 29 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 517.46 4,692.00 806.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 976.95 0.00 -100.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 1,346.57 0.00 -100.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 19,653.74 13,919.00 -29.2%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 5,184.05 1,000.00 -80.7%

  Communications 5900 1,898.12 0.00 -100.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 29,576.89 19,611.00 -33.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 22,691.41 0.00 -100.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 22,691.41 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 30 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 15,286.34 11,056.00 -27.7%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 15,286.34 11,056.00 -27.7%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 301,216.51 272,313.00 -9.6%

Page 31 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 9 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 32 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 5,706.00 4,940.00 -13.4%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,120.00 8,753.00 112.5%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 256,936.06 252,958.00 -1.5%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 272,424.06 272,313.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 162,627.90 173,370.00 6.6%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 74,674.95 72,968.00 -2.3%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 15,286.34 11,056.00 -27.7%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 48,627.32 14,919.00 -69.3%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 301,216.51 272,313.00 -9.6%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) (28,792.45) 0.00 -100.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 33 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) (28,792.45) 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 130,929.05 102,136.60 -22.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 102,136.60 102,136.60 0.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 349.60 0.00 -100.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 101,787.00 102,136.60 0.3%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:57 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Unaudited Actuals Budget

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 12,255.60 12,255.60

6391 Adult Education Program 89,531.40 89,881.00

Total, Restricted Balance 101,787.00 102,136.60

Page 35 of 81



 

 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND (12) 

 
 

Page 36 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,110,366.32 3,923,409.00 -4.5%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,524,603.53 4,310,489.00 22.3%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 212,468.54 225,402.00 6.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 7,847,438.39 8,459,300.00 7.8%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,197,784.17 1,237,384.00 3.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,472,813.08 1,637,200.00 11.2%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,070,593.78 1,337,070.00 24.9%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 488,701.83 305,096.00 -37.6%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,893,391.74 3,506,810.00 21.2%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 91,053.46 0.00 -100.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 447,035.34 498,798.00 11.6%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,661,373.40 8,522,358.00 11.2%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 186,064.99 (63,058.00) -133.9%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 37 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 186,064.99 (63,058.00) -133.9%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 80,415.28 266,480.27 231.4%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 80,415.28 266,480.27 231.4%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 80,415.28 266,480.27 231.4%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 266,480.27 203,422.27 -23.7%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 27,975.43 0.00 -100.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 234,114.66 171,056.66 -26.9%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 4,390.18 32,365.61 637.2%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 38 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 364,968.48

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 614,425.08

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 96.59

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 27,975.43

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 1,007,465.58

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 433,343.04

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 29,429.12

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 278,213.15

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 740,985.31

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 266,480.27

Page 39 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 380,117.61 332,060.00 -12.6%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 3,730,248.71 3,591,349.00 -3.7%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 4,110,366.32 3,923,409.00 -4.5%

OTHER STATE REVENUE  

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 7,440.85 9,032.00 21.4%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 706,177.26 1,155,940.00 63.7%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 1,750,260.85 1,869,792.00 6.8%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,060,724.57 1,275,725.00 20.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,524,603.53 4,310,489.00 22.3%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 3,379.19 14,143.00 318.5%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 6,875.00 4,800.00 -30.2%

      Interagency Services 8677 178,845.92 125,404.00 -29.9%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 23,368.43 81,055.00 246.9%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 212,468.54 225,402.00 6.1%

TOTAL, REVENUES 7,847,438.39 8,459,300.00 7.8%

Page 40 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 941,026.00 964,329.00 2.5%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 256,758.17 273,055.00 6.3%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,197,784.17 1,237,384.00 3.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 591,034.96 726,438.00 22.9%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 264,547.32 261,064.00 -1.3%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 240,260.40 259,673.00 8.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 376,970.40 390,025.00 3.5%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,472,813.08 1,637,200.00 11.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 230,390.80 411,011.00 78.4%

  PERS 3201-3202 333,300.25 381,958.00 14.6%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 141,819.69 140,627.00 -0.8%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 279,715.00 283,614.00 1.4%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5,241.57 33,291.00 535.1%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 80,126.47 86,569.00 8.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,070,593.78 1,337,070.00 24.9%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 287,201.66 210,982.00 -26.5%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 149,270.57 31,433.00 -78.9%

  Food 4700 52,229.60 62,681.00 20.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 488,701.83 305,096.00 -37.6%

Page 41 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 25,613.13 64,504.00 151.8%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 11,748.12 13,816.00 17.6%

  Insurance 5400-5450 3,554.00 1,732.00 -51.3%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 117,091.78 168,138.00 43.6%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 98,599.14 119,379.00 21.1%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 499,773.06 607,174.00 21.5%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 2,032,954.08 2,435,109.00 19.8%

  Communications 5900 104,058.43 96,958.00 -6.8%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2,893,391.74 3,506,810.00 21.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 20,500.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 70,553.46 0.00 -100.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 91,053.46 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 447,035.34 498,798.00 11.6%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 447,035.34 498,798.00 11.6%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,661,373.40 8,522,358.00 11.2%

Page 42 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:12 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 43 of 81



 

Forest Reserve Fund (16) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 34,930.60 41,354.00 18.4%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 428.10 200.00 -53.3%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 35,358.70 41,554.00 17.5%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 34,905.46 35,554.00 1.9%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 34,905.46 35,554.00 1.9%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 453.24 6,000.00 1223.8%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 4,887.80 6,000.00 22.8%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (4,887.80) (6,000.00) 22.8%

Page 45 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) (4,434.56) 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 39,792.26 35,357.70 -11.1%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 39,792.26 35,357.70 -11.1%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 39,792.26 35,357.70 -11.1%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 35,357.70 35,357.70 0.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 35,357.70 35,357.70 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 46 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 35,357.70

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 35,357.70

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 35,357.70

Page 47 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Forest Reserve Funds 8260 34,930.60 41,354.00 18.4%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 34,930.60 41,354.00 18.4%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Interest 8660 428.10 200.00 -53.3%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 428.10 200.00 -53.3%

TOTAL, REVENUES 35,358.70 41,554.00 17.5%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 34,905.46 35,554.00 1.9%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 34,905.46 35,554.00 1.9%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 34,905.46 35,554.00 1.9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 4,887.80 6,000.00 22.8%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 4,887.80 6,000.00 22.8%

Page 48 of 81



 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 50 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 886,180.18 904,180.18 2.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 886,180.18 904,180.18 2.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 51 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 885,180.18

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 1,000.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 886,180.18

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 886,180.18

Page 52 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

TOTAL, REVENUES 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

Page 53 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a-b+e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 54 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 55 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 6,269.67 18,000.00 187.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 879,910.51 886,180.18 0.7%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 886,180.18 904,180.18 2.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 886,180.18 904,180.18 2.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 56 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  9/22/2021  3:44 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Unaudited Actuals Budget

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00 0.00

Page 57 of 81



 

 

 

FOUNDATION TRUST FUND (73) 

 

 

Page 58 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 59 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
     NET POSITION (C + D4) 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 67,345.80 69,159.90 2.7%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 67,345.80 69,159.90 2.7%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 67,345.80 69,159.90 2.7%

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 69,159.90 72,159.90 4.3%
 
        Components of Ending Net Position 
        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 69,159.90 72,159.90 4.3%

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 60 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 69,159.90

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

    9) Fixed Assets
        a) Land 9410 0.00

        b) Land Improvements 9420 0.00

        c) Accumulated Depreciation - Land Improvements 9425 0.00

        d) Buildings 9430 0.00

        e) Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings 9435 0.00

        f) Equipment 9440 0.00

        g) Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 9445 0.00

        h) Work in Progress 9450 0.00

  10) TOTAL, ASSETS 69,159.90

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

Page 61 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

    6) Long-Term Liabilities
        a) Net Pension Liability 9663 0.00

        b) Total/Net OPEB Liability 9664 0.00

        c) Compensated Absences 9665 0.00

        d) COPs Payable 9666 0.00

        e) Capital Leases Payable 9667 0.00

        f) Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 9668 0.00

        g) Other General Long-Term Liabilities 9669 0.00

    7) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. NET POSITION

    Net Position, June 30
    (must agree with line F2) (G10 + H2) - (I7 + J2) 69,159.90

Page 62 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER STATE REVENUE  

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 787.30 500.00 -36.5%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 1,026.80 2,500.00 143.5%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

TOTAL, REVENUES 1,814.10 3,000.00 65.4%

Page 63 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 64 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 65 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:13 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Unaudited Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 66 of 81



 

MISCELLANEOUS FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

Funds 01, 09, and 62

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2020-21
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 13,986,123.29

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 2,553,011.05

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 187,509.81

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 57,126.48

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00

9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 5,038.09

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 3,525,593.24

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2. 0.00

10. Total state and local expenditures not  
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 3,775,267.62

1000-7143,

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 0.00

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1. 0.00

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 7,657,844.62

Page 68 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2020-21
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines B1d and C9)

10.67

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 717,698.65

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE
MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has
adjusted the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year
amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.)

6,611,752.84 619,658.19
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  6,611,752.84 619,658.19

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 5,950,577.56 557,692.37

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 7,657,844.62 717,698.65

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2022-23 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

Page 69 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

Page 70 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Actual

(2019-20 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA are

from county's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE.
LCFF data are from the 2019 annual LCFF Target Entitlement
Exhibit.)

PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
1. Program Portion of Prior Year Appropriations Limit

(A3 times [A6 divided by (A6 plus A7)], not to exceed A6)
Excess is added to Other Services portion. 189,494.00 189,494.00 55,979.25

2. Other Services Portion of Prior Year Appropriations 

Limit (A3 minus A1) 4,146,615.76 2,509,652.18 455,795.68

3. TOTAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Preload/Line D16, PY column) 4,336,109.76 (1,636,963.58) 2,699,146.18 511,774.93

PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA

4. Program ADA (Preload/Line B3, PY column) 10.67 10.67 10.67

5. Other ADA (Preload/Line B4, PY column) 4,466.93 4,466.93 10.67

PRIOR YEAR LCFF
6. LCFF Alternative Education Grant (Preload/Line A28,

Alternative Education Grant, 2019-20 Annual County LCFF
Calculation) 189,494.00 189,494.00 189,494.00

7. LCFF Operations Grant, (Preload/Line A1, Operations  

Grant, 2019-20 Annual County LCFF Calculation) 1,542,903.00 1,542,903.00 1,542,903.00

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT AND ADA Adjustments to 2019-20 Adjustments to 2020-21

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT

8. Reorganizations and Other Transfers
9. Temporary Voter Approved Increases
10. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases
11. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT

(Lines A8 plus A9 minus A10) 0.00 0.00

12. Adjustments to Program Portion 

([Lines A1 divided by A3] times Line A11) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13. Adjustments to Other Services Portion 

(Lines A11 minus A12) 0.00 0.00

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA
(Only for reorganizations and other transfers, and only if
adjustments to the appropriations limit amounts are entered
in Line A8 or A12 above)
14. Adjustments to Program ADA
15. Adjustments to Other ADA

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA

CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM ADA 2020-21 Annual Report 2021-22 Annual Estimate

(2020-21 data should tie to Principal Apportionment

Software Attendance reports and include ADA for 

charter schools reporting with the COE)

1. Total County Program ADA (Form A, Line B1d) 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00

2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C2d plus C6d) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Current Year ADA (Lines B1 through B2) 10.67 0.00 10.67 5.00 0.00 5.00

  2020-21 P2 Report  2021-22 P2 Estimate

CURRENT YEAR DISTRICT ADA
4. Total District Gann ADA (District Form GANN, Line B3) 10.67 5.00

C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget
AID RECEIVED 
TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 2,528.22 2,528.22 2,601.00 2,601.00

2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 100.39 100.39 0.00 0.00

3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 460,484.05 460,484.05 458,750.00 458,750.00

5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 34,173.05 34,173.05 28,192.00 28,192.00

6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 552.31 552.31 0.00 0.00

7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 12,041.14 12,041.14 5,746.00 5,746.00

8. Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) (676.54) (676.54) 0.00 0.00

9. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10. Receipts from County Bd. of Supervisors (Object 8070) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 1,359.81 1,359.81 1,348.00 1,348.00

12. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (Objects 8047 & 8625) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14. Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 71 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

16. Transfers to Charter Schools 

in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096)
17. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS 

(Lines C1 through C16) 510,562.43 0.00 510,562.43 496,637.00 0.00 496,637.00

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

18. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 

Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914)
19. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES 

(Lines C17 plus C18) 510,562.43 0.00 510,562.43 496,637.00 0.00 496,637.00

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS

20. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from objs.
3301 and 3302; do not include negotiated amounts) 0.00 0.00

OTHER EXCLUSIONS

21. Americans with Disabilities Act
22. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 
23. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates
24. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C20 through C23) 0.00 0.00

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

25. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 2,150,649.38 2,150,649.38 2,141,101.00 2,141,101.00

26. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) (30,853.00) (30,853.00) 0.00 0.00

27. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED 

(Line C25 plus C26) 2,119,796.38 0.00 2,119,796.38 2,141,101.00 0.00 2,141,101.00

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION
28. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62, objects 8000-8799) 14,105,491.62 14,105,491.62 14,296,497.00 14,296,497.00

29. Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 8660 and 8662) 33,418.79 33,418.79 75,000.00 75,000.00

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines A1 plus A12) 189,494.00 55,979.25

2. Inflation Adjustment 1.0373 1.0573

3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided 

by [A4 plus A14]) (Round to four decimal places) 1.0000 0.4686

4. PRELIMINARY PROGRAM LIMIT 

(Lines D1 times D2 times D3) 196,562.13 27,734.96

5. Revised Prior Year Other Services Limit

(Lines A2 plus A13) 2,509,652.18 455,795.68

6. Inflation Adjustment 1.0373 1.0573

7. Other Services Population Adj. (Lines B4 divided 

by [A5 plus A15]) (Round to four decimal places) 0.0024 0.4686

8. PRELIMINARY OTHER SERVICES LIMIT 

(Lines D5 times D6 times D7) 6,247.83 225,824.33

9. PRELIMINARY TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Lines D4 plus D8) 202,809.96 253,559.29

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

10. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C19) 510,562.43 496,637.00

11. Preliminary State Aid Calculation

a. Maximum State Aid in Local Limit 

(Lesser of Line C27 or [Lines D9 minus 

D10 plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

12. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes
a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Lines C29 divided by 

[C28 minus C29] times [D10 plus D11a]) 1,212.50 2,619.12

b. Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D10 plus D12a) 511,774.93 499,256.12

13. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (lesser of Line D11a or 

[Lines D9 minus D12b plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

14. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit
a. Local Revenues (Line D12b) 511,774.93

b. State Subventions (Line D13) 0.00

c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C24) 0.00

d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

(Lines D14a plus D14b minus D14c) 511,774.93

Page 72 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

15. Adjustments to the Limit Per 

Government Code Section 7902.1

(Line D14d minus D9; if negative, then zero) 308,964.97

If not zero report amount to:

Keely Bosler, Director

State Department of Finance

Attention: School Gann Limits

State Capitol, Room 1145

Sacramento, CA 95814

SUMMARY 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget

16. Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

(Lines D9 plus D15) 511,774.93 253,559.29

17. Appropriations Subject to the Limit 

(Line D14d) 511,774.93

*  Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column.

Instructed by CDE as per email on 8/25/2021 to enter this adjustment.

Aaron Heinz 530-458-0350

Gann Contact Person Contact Phone Number

Page 73 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

LOTTERY REPORT
Revenues, Expenditures and
Ending Balances  -  All Funds

06 10066 0000000
Form L

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:16 AM

Description Object Codes

Lottery:
Unrestricted

(Resource 1100)

Transferred to
Other Resources
for Expenditure

Lottery:
Instructional

Materials
(Resource 6300)* Totals

A.  AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR
     1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00 0.00 0.00
     2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 3,522.75 1,503.82 5,026.57
     3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00

     4. Transfers from Funds of
         Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00
     5. Contributions from Unrestricted
         Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 0.00 0.00
     6. Total Available
         (Sum Lines A1 through A5) 3,522.75 0.00 1,503.82 5,026.57

B.   EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
      1.  Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00
      2.  Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00
      3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00
      4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 3,522.75 1,503.82 5,026.57

      5.  a.  Services and Other Operating
                Expenditures  (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 0.00 0.00

           b.  Services and Other Operating
                Expenditures  (Resource 6300)

5000-5999, except
5100, 5710, 5800

           c.  Duplicating Costs for
                Instructional Materials
                (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
      6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00
      7.  Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 0.00
      8.  Interagency Transfers Out 
           a.   To Other Districts, County
                 Offices, and Charter Schools 7211,7212,7221,

7222,7281,7282 0.00 0.00
           b.   To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223,

7283,7299 0.00 0.00
      9.  Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399
    10.  Debt Service 7400-7499 0.00 0.00
    11.  All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00
    12.  Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
           (Sum Lines B1 through B11 ) 3,522.75 0.00 1,503.82 5,026.57

C.   ENDING BALANCE
       (Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 979Z 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D.   COMMENTS:

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act.

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the
 purchase of instructional materials only.  Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness.

Page 74 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
Schedule of Capital Assets

06 10066 0000000
Form ASSET

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: asset (Rev 01/27/2009) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:14 AM

Unaudited
 Balance
   July 1

Audit
Adjustments/
Restatements

 Audited
Balance
  July 1 Increases Decreases

Ending Balance
June 30

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land 3,621,725.00 3,621,725.00 3,621,725.00

   Work in Progress 0.00 22,691.41 22,691.41

     Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,621,725.00 0.00 3,621,725.00 22,691.41 0.00 3,644,416.41

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Land Improvements 350,867.71 350,867.71 66,835.00 417,702.71

   Buildings 19,555,753.00 19,555,753.00 25,190.00 19,580,943.00

   Equipment 965,378.85 965,378.85 226,279.00 1,191,657.85

     Total capital assets being depreciated 20,871,999.56 0.00 20,871,999.56 318,304.00 0.00 21,190,303.56

   Accumulated Depreciation for:

     Land Improvements (106,003.27) (106,003.27) (27,959.00) (133,962.27)

     Buildings (4,835,050.46) (4,835,050.46) (428,933.00) (5,263,983.46)

     Equipment (580,474.53) (580,474.53) (105,825.00) (686,299.53)

       Total accumulated depreciation (5,521,528.26) 0.00 (5,521,528.26) (562,717.00) 0.00 (6,084,245.26)

       Total capital assets being depreciated, net 15,350,471.30 0.00 15,350,471.30 (244,413.00) 0.00 15,106,058.30

Governmental activity capital assets, net 18,972,196.30 0.00 18,972,196.30 (221,721.59) 0.00 18,750,474.71

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land 0.00 0.00

   Work in Progress 0.00 0.00

     Total capital assets not being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Land Improvements 0.00 0.00

   Buildings 0.00 0.00

   Equipment 0.00 0.00

     Total capital assets being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Accumulated Depreciation for:

     Land Improvements 0.00 0.00

     Buildings 0.00 0.00

     Equipment 0.00 0.00

       Total accumulated depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

       Total capital assets being depreciated, net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Business-type activity capital assets, net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 75 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities
06 10066 0000000

Form DEBT

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: debt (Rev 02/22/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

Unaudited
 Balance
   July 1

Audit
Adjustments/
Restatements

 Audited
Balance
  July 1 Increases Decreases

Ending Balance
June 30

Amounts Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:

  General Obligation Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
  State School Building Loans Payable 0.00 0.00
  Certificates of Participation Payable 0.00 0.00
  Capital Leases Payable 0.00 0.00
  Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
  Other General Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.00
  Net Pension Liability 15,344,770.00 2,412,763.00 17,757,533.00 17,757,533.00
  Total/Net OPEB Liability 429,086.00 (3,864.00) 425,222.00 9,655.00 434,877.00 10,000.00
  Compensated Absences Payable 136,697.06 136,697.06 30,651.18 106,045.88 106,045.88

     Governmental activities long-term liabilities 15,910,553.06 2,408,899.00 18,319,452.06 9,655.00 30,651.18 18,298,455.88 116,045.88

Business-Type Activities:

  General Obligation Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
  State School Building Loans Payable 0.00 0.00
  Certificates of Participation Payable 0.00 0.00
  Capital Leases Payable 0.00 0.00
  Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00
  Other General Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.00
  Net Pension Liability 0.00 0.00
  Total/Net OPEB Liability 0.00 0.00
  Compensated Absences Payable 0.00 0.00

     Business-type activities long-term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 76 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
06 10066 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:16 AM

     Part I - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs 

     California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services 
     costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The 
     calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated
     using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage
     occupied by general administration.

     A.     Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing 

              1.   Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

                    (Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 1,051,568.81

              2.   Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll

                    a.   Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

                          contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800.
                    b.   If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
                          administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

     B.     Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities 
              1.   Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
                    (Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 10,769,353.65
 
     C.     Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration
              (Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part III, Lines A5 and A6) 9.76%
 

     Part II - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

     When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
     to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal
     or mass" separation costs. 

     Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board 
     policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs 
     may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
     costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter 
     these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool. 

     Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their
     employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden 
     Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal 
     programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 
     administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

     A.     Normal Separation Costs (optional)
              Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that 
              were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400 
              rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part III from base costs to the indirect cost pool.
              Retain supporting documentation.

     B.     Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)
              Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to 
              unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be 
              moved in Part III from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

Page 77 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
06 10066 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:16 AM

     Part III - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)
     A.     Indirect Costs

              1.    Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

                     (Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 1,233,249.97

              2.    Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

                     (Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 344,785.44
              3.    External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,
                     goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999)

19,780.00
              4.    Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
                     goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
              5.    Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

                     (Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 44,349.57
              6.    Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
                     (Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 6,190.28
              7.    Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
                     a.   Plus:  Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00

                     b.   Less:  Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00
              8.    Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 1,648,355.26
              9.    Carry-Forward Adjustment  (Part IV, Line F) (77,198.10)
            10.    Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 1,571,157.16
     B.     Base Costs

              1.    Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 5,870,855.74

              2.    Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 3,290,267.98

              3.    Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 2,033,064.19

              4.    Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 34,720.80

              5.    Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00

              6.    Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 0.00
              7.    Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,
                     minus Part III, Line A4) 405,351.35
              8.    External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
                     objects 5000-5999, minus Part III, Line A3) 0.00

              9.    Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

                     (Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
                     resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 81,482.05

            10.    Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

                     (Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals
                     except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 193,468.31
            11.    Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

                     (Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A5) 410,051.81

            12.    Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

                     (Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A6) 57,234.76
            13.    Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
                     a.   Less:  Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00
                     b.   Plus:  Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00
            14.    Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
            15.    Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 263,238.76

            16.    Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 7,071,055.00

            17.    Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00

            18.    Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00

            19.    Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B18, minus Line B13a) 19,710,790.75

     C.    Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment 
             (For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
             (Line A8 divided by Line B19) 8.36%

     D.    Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 
             (For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2022-23 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic)

             (Line A10 divided by Line B19) 7.97%

Page 78 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
06 10066 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:16 AM

     Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment

     The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect 
     cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates 
     the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the 
     approved rate was based.

     Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for 
     use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,
     or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than
     the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.

     A.     Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part III, Line A8) 1,648,355.26

     B.     Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)

              1.    Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year 110,840.31

              2.    Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 0.00

     C.     Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year

              1.    Under-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
                     cost rate (10.1%) times Part III, Line B19); zero if negative 0.00

              2.    Over-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
                     (approved indirect cost rate (10.1%) times Part III, Line B19) or (the highest rate used to
                     recover costs from any program (10.1%) times Part III, Line B19); zero if positive (231,594.30)

     D.     Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) (231,594.30)

     E.     Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year

              Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which  
              the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
              the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more 
              than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.

              Option 1.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
                                adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: 7.19%

              Option 2.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward 
                                adjustment ($-115,797.15) is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
                                ($-115,797.15) is deferred to one or more future years: 7.78%

              Option 3.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward 
                                adjustment ($-77,198.10) is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
                                ($-154,396.20) is deferred to one or more future years: 7.97%

              LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3

 3

     F.     Carry-forward adjustment used in Part III, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
             Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) (77,198.10)

Page 79 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  12:25 PM

            Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

01  COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND  
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 (519,426.80) 0.00 (462,321.68)
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 4,887.80 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 29,429.12 273.59
08 STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
09  CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
10  SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
11  ADULT EDUCATION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 19,653.74 0.00 15,286.34 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 177.00 0.00
12  CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 499,773.06 0.00 447,035.34 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 96.59 29,429.12
13  CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
14  DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
15  PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
16  FOREST RESERVE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 4,887.80
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
17  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
18  SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
19  FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
20  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
21  BUILDING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
25  CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
30  STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
35 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
40  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
53  TAX OVERRIDE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
56  DEBT SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
57  FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00

Page 80 of 81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
2020-21 Unaudited Actuals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  8/26/2021  12:25 PM

            Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

61  CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
62  CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
63  OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
66  WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
67  SELF-INSURANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
71  RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
73  FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
76  WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
95  STUDENT BODY FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00
             TOTALS 519,426.80 (519,426.80) 462,321.68 (462,321.68) 4,887.80 4,887.80 29,702.71 29,702.71

Page 81 of 81



  11.2 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 21/22‐02 

GANN LIMITS 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

 
 
WHEREAS in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, commonly 
called the Gann Amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the provisions of that amendment establish maximum appropriations limitations, 
commonly called “Gann Limits” for public agencies, including school districts and county offices; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the county schools office must establish a Gann Limit for the 2020/21 fiscal year and an 
estimated Gann Limit for the 2021/22 fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of the Gann 
Amendment and applicable statutory law; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board for the Colusa County Office of 
Education does provide public notice that the 2020/21 Gann Limit is $511,774.93, that the 2021/22 
estimated Gann Limit is $253,559.29, that the calculations were made in accordance with 
applicable Constitutional and Statutory Law, and that this Board does hereby declare that subject 
appropriations do not exceed the limitations imposed by the Gann Amendment. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office 

of Education on the 13
th day of October 2021 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

Dated this 13
th day of October 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Superintendent and Secretary 
Colusa County Board of Education, 
State of California 



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Actual

(2019-20 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA are

from county's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE.
LCFF data are from the 2019 annual LCFF Target Entitlement
Exhibit.)

PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
1. Program Portion of Prior Year Appropriations Limit

(A3 times [A6 divided by (A6 plus A7)], not to exceed A6)
Excess is added to Other Services portion. 189,494.00 189,494.00 55,979.25

2. Other Services Portion of Prior Year Appropriations 

Limit (A3 minus A1) 4,146,615.76 2,509,652.18 455,795.68

3. TOTAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Preload/Line D16, PY column) 4,336,109.76 (1,636,963.58) 2,699,146.18 511,774.93

PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA

4. Program ADA (Preload/Line B3, PY column) 10.67 10.67 10.67

5. Other ADA (Preload/Line B4, PY column) 4,466.93 4,466.93 10.67

PRIOR YEAR LCFF
6. LCFF Alternative Education Grant (Preload/Line A28,

Alternative Education Grant, 2019-20 Annual County LCFF
Calculation) 189,494.00 189,494.00 189,494.00

7. LCFF Operations Grant, (Preload/Line A1, Operations  

Grant, 2019-20 Annual County LCFF Calculation) 1,542,903.00 1,542,903.00 1,542,903.00

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT AND ADA Adjustments to 2019-20 Adjustments to 2020-21

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT

8. Reorganizations and Other Transfers
9. Temporary Voter Approved Increases
10. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases
11. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT

(Lines A8 plus A9 minus A10) 0.00 0.00

12. Adjustments to Program Portion 

([Lines A1 divided by A3] times Line A11) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13. Adjustments to Other Services Portion 

(Lines A11 minus A12) 0.00 0.00

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA
(Only for reorganizations and other transfers, and only if
adjustments to the appropriations limit amounts are entered
in Line A8 or A12 above)
14. Adjustments to Program ADA
15. Adjustments to Other ADA

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA

CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM ADA 2020-21 Annual Report 2021-22 Annual Estimate

(2020-21 data should tie to Principal Apportionment

Software Attendance reports and include ADA for 

charter schools reporting with the COE)

1. Total County Program ADA (Form A, Line B1d) 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00

2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C2d plus C6d) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Current Year ADA (Lines B1 through B2) 10.67 0.00 10.67 5.00 0.00 5.00

  2020-21 P2 Report  2021-22 P2 Estimate

CURRENT YEAR DISTRICT ADA
4. Total District Gann ADA (District Form GANN, Line B3) 10.67 5.00

C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget
AID RECEIVED 
TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 2,528.22 2,528.22 2,601.00 2,601.00

2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 100.39 100.39 0.00 0.00

3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 460,484.05 460,484.05 458,750.00 458,750.00

5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 34,173.05 34,173.05 28,192.00 28,192.00

6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 552.31 552.31 0.00 0.00

7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 12,041.14 12,041.14 5,746.00 5,746.00

8. Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) (676.54) (676.54) 0.00 0.00

9. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10. Receipts from County Bd. of Supervisors (Object 8070) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 1,359.81 1,359.81 1,348.00 1,348.00

12. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (Objects 8047 & 8625) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14. Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

16. Transfers to Charter Schools 

in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096)
17. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS 

(Lines C1 through C16) 510,562.43 0.00 510,562.43 496,637.00 0.00 496,637.00

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

18. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 

Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914)
19. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES 

(Lines C17 plus C18) 510,562.43 0.00 510,562.43 496,637.00 0.00 496,637.00

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS

20. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from objs.
3301 and 3302; do not include negotiated amounts) 0.00 0.00

OTHER EXCLUSIONS

21. Americans with Disabilities Act
22. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 
23. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates
24. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C20 through C23) 0.00 0.00

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

25. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 2,150,649.38 2,150,649.38 2,141,101.00 2,141,101.00

26. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) (30,853.00) (30,853.00) 0.00 0.00

27. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED 

(Line C25 plus C26) 2,119,796.38 0.00 2,119,796.38 2,141,101.00 0.00 2,141,101.00

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION
28. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62, objects 8000-8799) 14,105,491.62 14,105,491.62 14,296,497.00 14,296,497.00

29. Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 8660 and 8662) 33,418.79 33,418.79 75,000.00 75,000.00

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines A1 plus A12) 189,494.00 55,979.25

2. Inflation Adjustment 1.0373 1.0573

3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided 

by [A4 plus A14]) (Round to four decimal places) 1.0000 0.4686

4. PRELIMINARY PROGRAM LIMIT 

(Lines D1 times D2 times D3) 196,562.13 27,734.96

5. Revised Prior Year Other Services Limit

(Lines A2 plus A13) 2,509,652.18 455,795.68

6. Inflation Adjustment 1.0373 1.0573

7. Other Services Population Adj. (Lines B4 divided 

by [A5 plus A15]) (Round to four decimal places) 0.0024 0.4686

8. PRELIMINARY OTHER SERVICES LIMIT 

(Lines D5 times D6 times D7) 6,247.83 225,824.33

9. PRELIMINARY TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Lines D4 plus D8) 202,809.96 253,559.29

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

10. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C19) 510,562.43 496,637.00

11. Preliminary State Aid Calculation

a. Maximum State Aid in Local Limit 

(Lesser of Line C27 or [Lines D9 minus 

D10 plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

12. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes
a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Lines C29 divided by 

[C28 minus C29] times [D10 plus D11a]) 1,212.50 2,619.12

b. Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D10 plus D12a) 511,774.93 499,256.12

13. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (lesser of Line D11a or 

[Lines D9 minus D12b plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

14. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit
a. Local Revenues (Line D12b) 511,774.93

b. State Subventions (Line D13) 0.00

c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C24) 0.00

d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

(Lines D14a plus D14b minus D14c) 511,774.93



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2020-21

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations
06 10066 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: gann-c (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  8/26/2021  11:15 AM

2020-21
Calculations

2021-22
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

15. Adjustments to the Limit Per 

Government Code Section 7902.1

(Line D14d minus D9; if negative, then zero) 308,964.97

If not zero report amount to:

Keely Bosler, Director

State Department of Finance

Attention: School Gann Limits

State Capitol, Room 1145

Sacramento, CA 95814

SUMMARY 2020-21 Actual 2021-22 Budget

16. Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

(Lines D9 plus D15) 511,774.93 253,559.29

17. Appropriations Subject to the Limit 

(Line D14d) 511,774.93

*  Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column.

Instructed by CDE as per email on 8/25/2021 to enter this adjustment.

Aaron Heinz 530-458-0350

Gann Contact Person Contact Phone Number



Teleconferencing vs Broadcasting (Live Stream) Board Meetings 

● Indicates Alex Evans’ input 

Teleconference 

On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed (AB 361) that extends to January 1, 2024, agencies’ ability 

to teleconference Board meetings using rules that are more relaxed than the Brown Act.  However, it 

does not come without strings attached.  This legislation addressed the need for ADA compliance with a 

requirement that is uncertain in its implementation.  Additionally, if an agency takes advantage of AB 

361, they need to vote to continue doing so every 30 days.  This is problematic for boards that may have 

more than 30 days between meetings (for example, September 8 to October 13 = 35 days) and may 

require a special meeting to be scheduled just to continue teleconferencing. 

The following is from AB 361: 

Regarding ADA compliance: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 

modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and resolving any doubt 

whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members of the 

public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph (2) of 

subdivision (e). 

Regarding 30 Day Approval: 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to teleconference 

without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) [agenda posting regulations], the 

legislative body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 

subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the following 

findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to 

meet safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 

distancing. 

ADA compliance component ‐ We could avoid some requests for accommodation if we were able to 

provide transcription services.  The video would need to provide reliable and accurate (emphasis on 

accurate) live transcriptions in both English and Spanish (e.g., Closed Caption). 

 True transcription could not be achieved without an outside source to guarantee accuracy.  

YouTube and Zoom both have features that “try” to provide captions.  Many of their 

shortcomings are the source of several jokes on the internet.  The algorithms do their best to 

“try,” but the result would not be considered accurate by any means.  I have witnessed first‐

hand YouTube butchering one of my videos. 



 

● Indicates Alex Evans’ input 

Closed sessions – Would need to be monitored closely. 

 A protocol for closed sessions would definitely have to be built, rehearsed, and then taught to 

everyone involved or people like myself who would typically not attend a closed session 

meeting would have to attend to ensure that the protocol is followed and working properly. 

Public input needs to be equal for in‐person and virtual attendees (including translation for non‐English 

speakers. 

 Some agencies solve this with offering the ability to submit written statements.  However, it is 

unclear whether this practice is ADA or Brown Act compliant. 

Broadcast (Live Stream) 

From a legal perspective, broadcasting or live streaming a meeting by the agency is not directly 

addressed by the Brown Act. However, the Brown Act allows members of the public to 

broadcast meetings and does not explicitly prohibit broadcasting by the agency itself so many 

boards have streamed or broadcasted meetings even before the pandemic. 

Regrading Prohibition of Broadcast 

54953.6. No legislative body of a local agency shall prohibit or otherwise restrict the broadcast 

of its open and public meetings in the absence of a reasonable finding that the broadcast cannot 

be accomplished without noise, illumination, or obstruction of view that would constitute a 

persistent disruption of the proceedings. 

Because CCOE is mandated to have everything on its web page ADA compliant, we would need 

to broadcast the Board meetings via a site such as YouTube. 

Common Problems for Both Teleconference and Broadcast (Live Stream) 

CCOE’s audio quality and lack of acoustics in the conference room becomes a problem when many 

attendees are present. 

 To properly address the audio in the room would require professional equipment, installed in 

multiple locations.  The CCOE large conference room was never designed to function as a true 

video conferencing room.  We would need several wired mics with noise cancelling and a mixer 

with audio/video conferencing integration into the platform that we chose to use.  Putting a mic 

in the center of the room might help a bit, but nowhere on the level of ensuring that everyone 

can be heard clearly 100% of the time. 

Teleconference and broadcast (live stream) leave us vulnerable. 

 Regardless of our desire to resolve these known issues moving forward to the best of our 

abilities, I am concerned that an over‐zealous attorney would be able to find “holes” in our 

procedures and weaponize them.  As we would be operating under the idea of “trying our best 

to provide an additional outlet for the public to conveniently attend our meetings,” my fear now 

is that with these identified issues we could never meet 100% of all expectations in every 

meeting. 

There is a risk to posting previous meeting videos online. 

 Making video and audio content available to the world and archiving it can open everyone up to 

having one’s words used against them, either through “clip bate” snipping of things being taken 

out of context, or even during the effort of trying to properly frame a motion that meets all 

requirements. 



�������������	�
� 
������������������������������������������  !

"#����$������������%�&'����$&�(������$&��)��� ���*

+,-./�01.2-344567896:;<=9896567896:>?@A

BCDEFGHI�JHKLMNEOPJHDMKQEO REFCQ�JQEHDO�S�TGODO

U�&V�����������

��V'����


������

�

BGWDMWXEY�ZQE[M\MQMDI�]GH�̂EQEKGW]EHEWKEY

_EEDMWFO�̀WYEH�DLE�aHGbW�JKD

c(�������%���������
&���(��� ��


�"������&d�"��eUfghi�	�#����'���

�&����&��������j���&'����������

�k�������U���������k��$�"��c�&���
�l�

��m����'��������#����$�"����(�d&��"�

�����#�������&#�&��&d�����&�d��������&�

n������o�V&����'����$������"��"�'�'V���

&d���#�V����V&����#�����#���d�&'�����'&�

�&���&��V(�����&������&��&��V&"%��"�� �$��������"����&��d&�'���(

�'������"��c�&���
��"&�$"�
c�pq��&�'�������������&��&�����

"&����$�����&�d��������'����$��������n�VV�������

����&�d�������$�#�&�������o�"�&�$"�"������&d����p%�r&�������
c

pq��������������&����&���d&����(�#�V�����$���(��(��$�&�����"���

����k�������&�d�������$�#�&�������%

�"��n��d���o�d&������&�d��������'����$�������'&��"����'������

����#��ieUfghi�	�

c&����'�'V���l�����&�d��������&���&���'���V�������&�������

#�V����(��&����%

c&����'�'V���l�����&�d��������&���&���'���V���������V���&

"��#�V���%


$������'���V��#&�������������������������&�d������

�&���&��%


�m�&��'�&d�"��V&���l��'�'V����'���V��#"(������(�#�������

#�V����(��&������&���&�����"���"���$���(l��s��������&���"����"�

#�V��������&V������"��V&����'����$�����&dd���#�V�����&''��%


����&�������������$�������&�d��������'����$�'���V��V(

�&�������&d�"��#������V&����'�'V���%

�����&�d��������'����$���������������(������V�d&���eUfghi�	

V�������"������m����'����'����"���d���V&����'�'V���������&

����&�d���������&�"��'����$�d�&'�"&'���"��V&����'�'V��l�

"&'�����������������&�V��#�V����(������&������"�"��'����$

�$���������&#������#�&�"��#�V���������$�"��'����$%


�#�V�����$���(���������(��d&��&��"���������&������m����'�������

��(��&'#�������"�"��c�&���
�%

r&�������
c�pq���������&����#�V�����$���(l��V&�����&������&�"&��

����&�d��������'����$��d�&'�U�&V������������&�h���'V���p��

���p����"&�������&���$�����#�&�����$�#�V�����������&

����&�d��������&���&���&����#"(������'����$��������"���

�����'�������

�%��"��'����$����"���������$���#�&����'�������&d��'��$���(�����

����&���&����&dd�������"�����'#&����&�����&''������'�������

&�#�&'&���&�������������$t

:u895
U�&V�������

v��(�����

v��������

��(�����

����"�����

w�V����(�����

v�����(�����

h���'V�������

U�&V�������


�$�������

v��(�����

v��������

��(�����


#��������

����"�����

w�V����(�����

v�����(�����

j&��'V������	

U�&V������	

��#�'V������	


�$������	

v�������	

����"����	

w�V����(����	

h���'V������*

��#�'V������*

v�������*

��(����*

w�V����(����*

v�����(����*

h���'V������x

j&��'V������x

U�&V������x

��#�'V������x


�$������x

w&����)��iy

zG{E J\GXD�̀O THCKDMKE�JHECO JDDGHWEIO aQGF |GH}OLG~O BGWDCKD

11.4



�������������	�
� 
������������������������������������������  !

"#����$������������%�&'����$&�(������$&��)��� ���*

+,�+-�.����������.�
/��+.�

01 2��*��������.�
/��+.�

345467�89:7:

;967<6=4>�?@4A<B<@<7C�D9E

F4@4596D4E4654>�G447<6H:�I6>4E�7J4

KE9L6�M57

-(�������%���������
&���(��� ��

F9N�O<A�KP5Q�79�O5J99@�F<N:�D9E

M>R<6<:7EP79E:�P6>�F4P5J4E:


�"&���
�����!������
��"���S��

�%��"��'����$����"���������$���#�&����'�������&T��'��$���(����

"��'����$����"����T&��"��#��#&���&T�����'����$��U(�'�V&��(

�&����"�"��������������&T�"���'��$���(��'����$����#���&�

�&����#�������''�����������&�"��"���"�&����T�(�&T��������W

+.

X%��"��'����$����"���������$���#�&����'�������&T��'��$���(����

"��U&����"�������'������U(�'�V&��(��&���"��������������&T�"�

�'��$���(��'����$����#���&���&����#�������''�����������&

"��"���"�&����T�(�&T��������%


��&T�"��������$��"������&T��'��$���(����������U(�"���&����&�

��'�������������&TT�������"����Y�'#&����&�����&''�����

'��������&�#�&'&���&�������������$�Z��&�����(�#�U�����$���(�T����

����T����"��T���������'�����%�[T����"��T�������U&����T���������T�����

#�&����'�������&T��'��$���(��U������&���&����&TT�������"�����&

���&''������'��������&�#�&'&���&�������������$��"��U&�������

���&���"��������&�T�������'����$��S��#�&���U(��&��$�"�

'����$����#���&���&����#�������''�����������&�"��"���"�&�

��T�(�&T��������%��"�����"��$���&�"��-�&���
������U��������

������������U��"����&����#&������(��##�(������$������&T

�'��$���(��������������&��������������������������T����%


-�X\���'#&�����&'�������&����&���"�������&��S���������"�

�&����&�]���S#����$��S�������+����%��"�����&����&���&��(��##�(

�"������U&��������(��$�&�"&���������&�T��������'����$���"&�

����T(��$�"��Y��T���Z�������"�$"��$"�����"��U�$�����$�&T�"��� �$��


���%

�"��#�����#����&����&��������U(�
-�X\�����"����&��&�$����������&T

�'��$���(���������&����'������������&������&���&����&TT�������"���

�'#&����&�����&''������'��������&�#�&'&���&�������������$���

U&����'���'����'&�"�(�T�����$��U(�'�V&��(��&��"��

�"��U&����"������&���������"�������'�������&T�"������&T

�'��$���(��
̂ /

�"������&T��'��$���(��&�������&�������(��'#���"���U���(�&T

'�'U����&�'�����T��(����#���&��+.�����&���&����&TT������

�&������&��'#&���&�����&''����'��������&�#�&'&���&����

��������$%

�"�����"��$���$&���&��TT���+�&U������������U����U&����'�(

���&������(�'����"������_������T�����$����"���X����(��&T����T���

����&�T��������'����$�#&�̀+�&U����%��"����T�����$����������"�

T&�'�&T������&���&��"�������&�"���������_����'�������&����'��

,&�������&��a�	aXb�cbXc�����YT�����Z�Y'�����Z�&��Y��&#�Z�"��T���

�U&��%�d�����$������T�������&������&�������������&�����S#�����&�

&���##&��"&���T�������&������&�������$"����"�'����"�������&T

��(���$����"�����$�%

+������U&������&#�������&���&��"��'�����"������_������T�����$��

"��U&����'������&�������"����������������&#�"����_�����

T�����$������(�X����(��&��&������&�"&�������&�T��������'����$�

������"��������S��������%

[����"��#T���&���'�'U���"��"������_����'����&��(��##�(��T��

U&���]��'����$�������&�����&'#���������"�"��-�&���
�]�

�����&������_����'���%


-�X\�����&�������&����&����������&������#���U�&����������

#�U�����&''���U(�#"&���&������&������$�����&�T��������'����$��

[T�"��'����$�U�&��������������#����"��U&�����"���������&

T��"������&��&����'��&��"��'����$��$����������"��U�&�����

������&��������'�'U����&T�"��#�U���������$���������&��������&

"��'����$������&TT���#�U�����&''���&�"��U&���%

0��(����e

0�������e

��(����e


#�������e

����"����e

d�U����(����e

0�����(����e

/���'U������\

&̂��'U������\

+�&U������\

��#�'U������\


�$������\

0��(����\

0�������\

��(����\


#�������\

����"����\

d�U����(����\

0�����(����\

/���'U������a

&̂��'U������a

+�&U������a

��#�'U������a


�$������a


#�������a

&̂��'U�������

0��������

/���'U������X

&̂��'U������X


#�������X

����"����X

d�U����(����X

d&����)��̀f

tmaxwell
Highlight



�������������	�
� 
������������������������������������������  !

"#����$������������%�&'����$&�(������$&��)��� *��+

,- .�/��������0�
1��20�

345�67489�3:;<=>=�?@:<8�AB>B8C

3D7@@E�FBC8<BD8�G=H:E48B@I�@J�KJJL

?4>;:C�38:M=I8�3;==D7�KI�3@DB4E

N=MB4


�"&���2'���
%�O"����
&���(��� 

P;D@>BIH�6@<QC7@;C

�������������

�"�����(��,�����(��������R�

�SS����������$�'���&S�0�T�����S&�

U������&�����"��V&'��

 &���&���
W�
�����(�W"����W&���

�('#&���'�

!&�&���V&������#��

��!&�&���!��)����&����(��W
�	*	���

��'���+�*���%'%X��������%'%�

0&&'��0���&&��U���UU

�"�����(��,�����(��������R�

1����#�����!�����

 &���&���
W�
�����(�W"����W&���

�('#&���'�

!&�&���V&������#��

��!&�&���!��)����&����(��W
�	*	���

��'��������#%'%XY�*��#%'%�

0&&'��1��
�)��UU

�"�����(��,�����(��������R�

W"����Z����!�����

 &���&���
W�
�����(�W"����W&���

�('#&���'�

!&�&���V&������#��

��!&�&���!��)����&����(��W
�	*	���

��'��������#%'%XY�*��#%'%�

0&&'������W���&��U���UU

�"��[&��������&���T�����#�[�����&''����&�[����['������

��������&S�"��'����$�����'���#�&��������&##&����(�S&��#�[���

�&''������������'�%

\"����������(�'�'[����&S�"��#�[��������&�[����T������&���$����

������&����&��&S�'����$���#�[�����&''������#�[�����$���(��&��

�&���&����"��]�&���
���S���"���X#��(����������[����&��&�����

#��S&�'������S&��#�[�����&''�����T������������&���$�����&����

"���������%

\"������[&����������'���#�[�����&''���#���&����"���&''��

#���&���'�����'����&#���S&��'�'[����&S�"��#�[����&���$����

"�&�$"�������X���&������&�������������[�����&$��)��������"���'��

�&''���#���&��"������#���%

\"������[&�������&���#�[�����&''���&����#������$�������'�

��"&����'�̂�'�'��'����'��S&��"��#�[�����&''���#���&����

_����&��[����'&���&S��'�̀�'���[�����&����S&��'�'[����&S�"�

#�[����&���$�����"�&�$"�������X���&������&�������������[�

���&$��)��%

�


$�����"�����&����&�����$�����$������#���'����$������#�[���

�&''���#���&���&��(��##�(�&�����&�S��������'����$������$�"�

����̂�������&�S�������$�������������[���������
]�*R�%


�����#���S����̂�'#�����S���[&�����&���������X#���&����"���"�

�$���(a��[&���������S&����#�&#���(��$����)���'����$�����'����

"��'����$��&���&��������[���&�"��#�[����&�&[������"��'����$

����&SS���#�[�����&''�����X#���&���"��[&����'����$������

�&'#���������"�"��]�&���
�a���������#��XW2bU1X�	���T����'���%

US�������&�����'���������&��&''���&#�&�������'�����&���(�&SS����

&�"��#�[�����"��[&����'�(��&������&��&�����[��������������S�"�

����&�����'���������#���[�������"��]&���������&�����$

������$��&S�
]�*R�a������̂�������&�S�������$�#�&�������%

Z�����(����'�'[���"�������&����]�&���
����T����'������'���

��$��������&S��"�"���(&����������$�������$��&S�
]�*R��

!�[�����$�������'��������$��������������&����&S����"���$�����&�

�#������$&������$�[&����'����$�[(�#�[����(�#&���$�'����$

�$�����%

��'[����&S�"��#�[����'��������"�����������&�"��'����$��"�

�$�����'��������#�&��������&##&����(�S&��'�'[����&S�"��#�[���

&���������"��[&����������(������"���$�����'�������������S(�"�

'�����[(��"��"�'�'[����&S�"��#�[�������������"��'����$

�����&''�����"�"�����X#���&��&������������X���&#�&��&����

������X[�������������&#�&�%

Z&��S��"���T����&����#�������&��&�"������&��&����������������

�������������������������  !%

,��(��+������

��['����


������

�

c@;�3Bd�e4DQ�8@�3D7@@E�cB;C�J@<

fM>BIBC8<48@<C�4IM�c=4D7=<C

ghijklm�gnopq�rossqo


��"���̂���'���&S�"������X�������"&&��(����S��X�##�&��"���

�&'����������(���������$����������"����������'������&����&�����

&�����$����������$�����������"��S����&S�"��W2bU1X�	

#����'�����������X�"��$��$�������������$����&��%�V��������&���&#

��̂��#��S&����$��������&�"������X�������"&&��(����

tuvwx

Z&����)��Xy



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BP 3020.00 
Series 3000—Business Page 1 of 1 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that sound fiscal management requires 
anticipating financial problems and taking early corrective action.  
 
A Budget Committee shall be established to regularly review the Colusa County 
Office of Education’s financial condition, report to the Board on vital financial 
data, advise the Board regarding the maintenance of adequate reserves and 
recommend long-range fiscal policies to ensure the viability of educational 
programs, and review and recommend budget adoption and revisions. 
 
The Budget Committee shall be made up of the Superintendent, the Assistant 
Superintendent, Administrative Services, the Director of Business Services and 
two Board members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: November 10, 1994 
Reviewed: January 13, 1999 
Revised: July 12, 2006 
Revised: March 14, 2012 

 



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BOP 3020.00 
Operating Procedures Page 1 of 1 
 

Purpose: To outline the process used by the Budget Committee. 
 
The Budget Committee will call meetings each year prior to budget adoption 
(June) and prior to any budget revisions (usually December), or any other times as 
needed.  Notes for each Budget Committee meeting will be attached to the fiscal 
documents covered in the meeting and maintained in the fiscal files. 
 
The Budget Committee will review in detail and receive information from the 
CCOE Administration concerning a pre-adopted budget, and the adopted budget.  
The Budget Committee will then make recommendations to the full Board when 
appropriate.  The first and second interim reports, and various budget 
adjustments that occur during the year, are taken to the full Board of Education 
for approval at a regular meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised: May 10, 2006 
Revised: July 12, 2006 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, November 10, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Employee Recognition – Commending Outstanding Performances 
  During a School Safety Incident 

  Jessica Calderone 
  Ryan Copeland 
  Amber McKinney 
  Gina Porter 
  David Wright 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – October Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.5.1 SELPA – October Meeting 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the October 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

8.2 Second Reading:  New Board Policy – BP 6171.00 Title I Programs  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Board Policy Removal:  action 

BP 3020 Budget Committee and OP 3020 Purpose: To outline the 
process used by the Budget Committee 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision  information 
BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision (Previously titled Budget 
Adoption and Control Policy) 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 

11.3 Upcoming December Annual Organizational Meeting Considerations 
11.3.1 Draft Schedule of 2022 Regular Meetings  information 
11.3.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule  information 
11.3.3 Draft Liaison Assignments  information 

11.4 Approve Setting December 14, 2021, 4:00 pm, as the Date  action 
and Time for the Colusa County Board of Education 
Annual Organizational Meeting as Required by EC 35143 

11.5 Williams Settlement Act Report to the County Board of Education  information 

11.6 2021‐26 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan  information 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 
December 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
(Note:  Not the second Wednesday due to the EC 35143 mandated 
window of dates and the First Interim Report submission deadline) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
Contingency Meeting 
December 15, 2021, 4:00 pm 
(Note:  This meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting 
consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully 
conducted, and if so the December 15 meeting may be cancelled) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Communicate      Collaborate      Operate      Educate

Superintendent West Featured Speaker
at National Education Event

Colusa County Office of Education
N O V E M B E R  2 0 2 1  |  C O M M U N I T Y  N E W S L E T T E R

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools
Michael P. West was a featured speaker at  the
California County Superintendent Roundtable 
 that took place on October 26.  Along with
superintendents from San Benito, San
Bernardino, and Napa Counties,
Superintendent West discussed "Successful
Strategies for Addressing Learning Loss in the
Era of COVID."  Specifically, West addressed
CCOE's "And Literacy For All" (ALFA) initiative

Important Dates
 

Click underlined dates for
more information

 
November 1 & 18:

Paraeducator Assessments
 

November 3: "And Literacy
For All" Story Time, 6pm

 
November 3: We Are Family
Parent Meeting, 6-7:30pm

 
November 6: Community
Resource Fair, 10am-2pm

 
November 20 & 21: Healing
California Visit, 8am-5pm

 
 
 

 
Contact CCOE

 
Main Office

345 5th Street
Colusa, CA 95932

(530) 458-0350
 

Education Village
499 Margurite Street

Williams, CA 95987
(530) 473-1350

 

Photographs from Educational Services Pink October & Children's Services Family Night Events

and its key concepts of early and intergenerational literacy
through the Footsteps2Brilliance program.  Other aspects of ALFA
were discussed, such as the importance of family and community
engagement, the building of home libraries with bicultural books,
and the beneficial connection to one's local library.  Since 2019,
ALFA has distributed 70,523 children's books, lent 705 iPads
equipped with Footsteps2Brilliance software to county families,
and conducted over 60 virtual story times through digital
platforms.  Additionally, children have read just under 105 million
words.  As a result of these efforts, in the 2020-2021 school year
students in the preschool to 3rd grade age range achieved an
increased proficiency  across the literacy domains of phonological
awareness, phonics, logic & reasoning, language, and reading
comprehension by an average of 8%, marking an average
countywide proficiency in literacy of 81%.

http://www.ccoe.net/
https://www.facebook.com/colusacoe
http://instagram.com/colusacoe
https://twitter.com/colusacoe
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGnZ4oi5nQ1l_lrk3Ta0E4Q
https://p9cdn4static.sharpschool.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_675748/File/Human%20Resources/CODESP%20Fall%20Flyer%202021.pdf
https://www.facebook.com/CCOEANDLITERACYFORALL
https://www.facebook.com/colusacoe/photos/a.766542573438240/4389306361161825


Pink October Celebration
Welcome CCOE New Hires!

 
Paola Ayala Contreras

Teacher, Special Education
 

Kristin Draves
Paraeducator, Special Education 

 
Raymond Echavarria

Paraeducator, Special Education
 

Merry Seaver
Human Resources & Accounting

 
Airaly Rolon

Assistant Teacher, Children's Services
 

Maria Del Carmen Ibarra Landeros
Assistant Teacher, Children's Services

 

Healing California Looking for Volunteers
Prevention Sevices

Healing California, in partnership with CCOE's Prevention
Services team, plans to visit the Education Village in
Williams on November 20 & 21 from 8:00am - 5:00pm. 
 Healing California provides free, quality dental and vision
care to those in need in California through their mobile
van service.  Dental care includes cleanings, fillings, and
extractions, and vision involves eye exams and free
prescription glasses.  Colusa County residents are invited
to register for this event to take advantage of these free
services; no prerequisite to care is required.  If you are
interested in becoming a volunteer for this event or would
like to register for care, please contact Claudia Deniz at
(530) 473-1350.  No volunteer experience is needed, and
different shifts are available!  Additionally, training and
lunch will be provided.

Home-Based Program Now Taking Applications
Children's Services

PROGRAM UPDATES

Children's Services Home-Based Program is currently taking
applications for services meant for expectant mothers and
children aged birth to three.  This program provides learning
opportunities in a family's own home, and support to
expectant families through weekly visits.  Educators provide
learning materials to each family and empower parents in
their roles as their child's first teacher.  Additionally, Home-
Based offers monthly playgroups at CAPC Colusa County,
located at 131 5th Street in Colusa.  These playgroups offer
socialization opportunities for children and the chance for
families from the community to engage with one another.  If
you are interested in applying for the Home-Based program,
contact Children's Services at (530) 458-0350.

Home-Based Educators
Sonia Gil & Maria Ibarra

Educational Services
Students at S. William Abel Academy learned
about breast cancer awareness October 22 with
a presentation and discussion about cancer risk
factors for men and women.  "One in eight
women and seven percent of men get breast
cancer each year in the United States alone,"
said the Academy's Alternative Education
Teacher Patricia Pinedo. In a display of
recognition and hope, students and Educational
Services staff were invited to wear pink for the
day.  The group also enjoyed an after-lunch
dessert of pink cookies and took home breast
cancer awareness bracelets to share with family
and friends.  



After graduating from Maxwell High School in 2004, Maxwell
Unified School District Superintendent Summer Shadley attended
CSU, Chico where she earned a Bachelor of Arts degree and
teaching credential.  In 2012, Summer received a Masters in
Educational Leadership and an Administrative Services Credential.  
After teaching in Fall River Mills for three years, Shadley moved
back to Colusa County to work for Pierce Joint Unified School
District.  During those nine years at PJUSD, Summer taught second
grade and became the Vice Principal before a six-year stint as
Principal of Arbuckle Elementary.  This is her second year as
Maxwell Unified School District's Superintendent, and she also
wears the hat of Maxwell High School Principal.  This is
Superintendent Shadley's 14th year in the field of education, and
her love of the job stems from the students she works with.
Married for 12 years to her husband Rob, the pair have two children (Robert, Rachel), and a variety of
animals at their family farm.  "It's a regular funny farm!" Shadley stated.  Animals include chickens,
three ewe lambs (Jessica, Ruby, Cindy), two horses (Daisy, Gray), two un-named goats, one dog
(Gracie), and one cat (Vivi).  Summer enjoys working around the farm with her family when not at
Maxwell Unified, in addition to hunting and cheering on her kids when they play sports.

PROGRAM UPDATES

Superintendent Summer Shadley
Maxwell Unified School District

Commissioner Merced Corona
First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission
Arbuckle-native Merced Corona has had a life-long love for
education and helping those in his community.  Not only is this
reflected in his work on the First 5 Commission, but he is also the
Vice Chair for the Colusa County Board of Supervisors
representing District 1, is an active member of the Knights of
Columbus, coaches high school cross county, trains dozens of kids
at his boxing club, and referees basketball games.   "My love for
education and helping young kids extends a very long time," he
said. "My many years in law enforcement helped me to be a
resource to young students." Merced's passion for education also
extends to a great love for Colusa County, its farming and
agriculture industry, and the friendly people who live here.  When
not actively engaged in community events or projects, Merced
enjoys hobbies of coin collecting and weight lifting.

FEATURED FACES

California Department of Education STEAM Symposium
Children's Services

Four Children's Services teachers had the opportunity to
attend the California Department of Education STEAM
Symposium October 21-23.  STEAM is an approach to
teaching and advanced learning in Science, Technology,
Engineering, Arts, and Mathematics in all learning settings,
including early learning practices. The symposium sessions
combined powerful project-based learning, creativity, and
fun experiences that positively impact learning in
preschool and beyond. For more information about early
educational services that Children's Services provides,
contact the main office at (530) 458-0350.



Ginger Harlow
Executive Director

Nallely Maldonado
Administrative Program Coordinator

Kim Owens
Arbuckle Family Action Center Coordinator

First 5 Colusa's Executive Director Ginger Harlow has
worked at CCOE for 19 years.  Starting at Children's
Services as an Area Manager and the Coordinator of the
Local Child Care Planning Council, Ginger became the
Executive Director of First 5 in 2012.  Prior to working at
CCOE, Ginger obtained a degree in Child Development
from CSU, Sacramento, and worked as a preschool
teacher, center director, and social worker.  Working
with her staff and the families of Colusa County are
Ginger's favorite aspects of her job.  Seeing the fruits of
First 5's labor is also a point of pride.  "So much brain
development occurs in the first five years that the work
we do can really impact a child's development and
future," she said.  Outside of work, she enjoys spending
time with her two children (Yale, aged 5 & Lilah, aged 3),
Dachshund Watson, and the family fish Uber.  Ginger
also loves traveling, playing board games, cooking,
hiking, collecting gnomes, seeing extended family, and
can't pass up a good cup of coffee.

Betty Huson
Williams Family Action Center Coordinator

DEPARTMENT SPOTLIGHT

Yesenia Moreno
Williams Family Action Center Program Assistant

Before becoming a Program Assistant at the Williams
Family Action Center, Yesenia Moreno worked in
customer service for over six years and as a bank teller
for three.  Working with folks from different walks of life
in those positions has "given me the ability to work with
and understand the variety of people who come into our
center," she said.  She also enjoys helping the families
she meets and seeing what a positive impact First 5
makes in their lives.  When not at the WFAC, Yesenia
loves watching shows on Netflix and spending time with
her significant other of 11 years, their two-and-a-half
year-old son, and the family rabbit Verde.

We are hiring!  Full-Time, Part-Time & 
Substitute Employment Opportunities. 

Contact Human Resources at (530) 458-0350 
or scan the QR code to see current job openings!

For newsletter inquiries,
contact:

Alissa Maas at
amaas@ccoe.net

 

First 5 Colusa's Administrative Program Coordinator
Nallely Maldonado has worked at CCOE for 13 years. 
 With a Bachelor's Degree in Child Development and
Education from CSU, Sacramento, she hopes to one day
earn a Master's in Administrative Education.  Before
working at First 5, Nallely gained experiences at
Children's Services as an assistant teacher, preschool
teacher, and a Home-Based educator.  The friendships
she has created with parents First 5 serves has been one
of the most enjoyable parts of her job.  When not
working, Nallely loves working on DIY projects, crafts,
gardening, cleaning and organizing her home, and
watching Marvel or Harry Potter films.  Most of all, she
also enjoys spending time with husband Abel, and
daughters Izabel and Gizelle. 

Betty Huson has worked as the Coordinator at the Williams Family Action Center for over 15 years, and has
experience in literacy and social work.  Her experiences have helped her mold the WFAC into a warm place of
understanding, compassion, and a willingness to help families seeking services or assistance.  Betty loves the fast-
paced and ever-changing environment in which she works, and those she works with.  "I truly enjoy my coworkers,
volunteers, children, parents, families, and the community in which I am fortunate to be a part," she stated.  Outside
of the WFAC, Betty loves spending time with her two daughters, son-in-law, and six grandchildren [ages 15, 9, 8, 3,
and 6 (twins)].  She also enjoys reading, watching movies, and doing puzzles.

Kim Owens Yesenia Moreno Betty Huson

Arbuckle Family Action Center Coordinator Kim Owens
has worked with First 5 Colusa for the last 15 years, and
has a degree in Early Childhood Education.  Her
background also includes teaching opportunities at an
Elementary School in Dixon, CA, and on the other side of
the globe in India and Kazakhstan.  Kim loves working in
Colusa County, and so many aspects of her job.  "We are
able to come alongside children and their families, assist
them in their development, provide concrete support in
their time of need, and help them to build resiliency and
strength for their current and future successes, " Kim
said.  When not working, she enjoys gardening, bike
riding, and kayaking.  Kim also cherishes the time she
spends with her three children, three grandchildren,
golden Labrador retriever (Scarlet), and two cats
(Shadow & Graycie).

Nallely MaldonadoGinger Harlow

mailto:amaas@ccoe.net


  6.3 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  October 2021        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 Family Engagement Night with Ed Services. 
 Meeting with CDE Consultants. 
 Local Child Care Planning Council interviews. 
 ECE Advisory Committee with Yuba Community College. 
 CCIP (Child Care Initiative Project) training/workshop. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 No new requests. 

School Readiness: 

 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative Partnership Cohort. 
 Learning Genie Family Engagement app.  
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Representatives for new program year. 
 Attend CS Family Activity Nights. 
 Mentoring Mindful Moments training that provides providers with tools to help children 

self regulate, November 18, 2021. 

 

 



Educational Services Board Report 
November/ December 2021 

Alternative Education 

S. William Abel Academy
• SWAA first semester Parent-Teacher Conferences are being conducted in this upcoming month.
• SWAA students will be focusing on learning about the Civil War, senior students are focusing on the

importance of our government, and all students are challenging themselves in their writer’s voice.
• During the remainder of the semester, we plan on cooking projects using the mobile Kitchen a la Cart and

giving back as we celebrate the American tradition of Thanksgiving.

Colusa County Adult School 
• The Colusa County Adult School hosted its 3rd CNA Graduation on October 28th.  Seven students received

their CNA pins at the event.
• We are happy to welcome, Mike Richins to the Adult Education Team!  Mike will be teaching ESL classes

in the evenings to our adults.
• The Basic Wildland Fire Academy will be hosting its orientation for new cadets on Saturday, November

13th  at 3:00 PM at the MPR.  20 new cadets will begin their training in January 2022.

Farm to School 
• Old tires have been removed at Egling Middle School and blocks have been delivered for students to begin

building new planter beds as part of their Farm to School Program.
• CCOE is working with local districts to begin Farm to School efforts.

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Schools will not be released from CSI this year due to COVID-19.  Support continues for Colusa County

Schools identified in CSI.
• School plans to address CSI can be found in the district’s LCAP, under the CSI prompts.

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 
• Support to all districts is being provided, including any identified in DA.

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• Webinars to understand the proposed changes to the LCAP are being provided monthly by CDE.  More

information regarding the template is forthcoming

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 
• The PLN has been working to deliver services to districts in the area of social emotional learning

and support.  PD will be delivered soon to districts.



Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• Our three Child Aides have continued to share Second Step curriculum with Williams Unified School 

District, Colusa County Children’s Services, Hand in Hand, and Colusa Indian Community Council.  The 
curriculum that is currently being taught is “emotional management and listening skills”  

• The Child Aides have finished scoring and inputting students' progress on spreadsheets to support reporting 
for Q1.  

• EMHI (Early Mental Health Initiate) Q1 Report due on November 11, 2021.  
 
Foster Youth 
• The Prevention Services Department has incorporated the Foster Focus Data Collection System into practice 

with District Liaison’s in Colusa County for the purpose of identifying educational rights holders.   
• The Prevention Services Department has completed the budget for the Foster Youth Services Coordinating 

Program year 1.   
• The Prevention Services Department joined California Foster Youth Education Task Force and will be 

having monthly meetings in hopes of expanding the program.   
• The Prevention Services Department had their District Liaison meeting on October 18, 2021, where 

information on Assembly Bill: AB1055 for Foster Youth was shared.  
 
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• The Prevention Services Department had their District Liaison meeting on October 18, 2021, where 

information on Assembly Bill and Senate Bill: AB27 and SB400 was shared.   
• The first Annual Resource Fair will be on November 6, 2021, from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm. Twenty-eight 

agencies have registered to participate at the event.  
• The Prevention Services Department and members from Williams Unified School District will be attending 

the National Association for the Education of Homeless Children and Youth Conference on November 
13, 2021, to November 16, 2021. At the conference, the group will be presenting on: Harvesting Partnerships: 
Supporting Migrant Students Experiencing Homelessness.  

• The Education for Homeless Children and Youth Budget Year 2 was submitted.   
• Healing CA will be from November 20 and 21. We are looking for volunteers to support the event.   
 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• 5,200 Red Ribbon Week baggies were put together and distributed to students across the districts.   
• The Prevention Services team attended Egling’s Safety Day on October 22, 2021. During the event, the 

Prevention Services team presented on the dangers of tobacco and vaping to five grades, ranging from 4th 
through 8th grade, approximately 530 students.  

• The We Are Family Parent workshop took place on October 6, 2021. It covered Tobacco Use Prevention 

Education. 
 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 
• The progress report for Q1 was submitted.   
• The Prevention Services Department is working in conjunction with Colusa County Sheriff’s Department to 

seek ways to support progress reports and on purchasing items that will support outreach efforts for The 
Colusa County Sheriff’s Department.   

 



Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Education Board Report 

November 10th, 2021 

Special Education Report 

1. Staffing – we held the paraeducator hiring fair. We offered 5 full time positions and 2 part time 

positions to applicants. We will continue to recruit for the remaining 16 open paraeducator 

positions. We have 2 open teaching positions. 

2. Paraeducators continue to complete monthly training course on Special Education topics 

through an online format 

3. Veronica Sandoval – new program specialist. She comes to us from Egling Middle School, and 

has already been a great addition to the team. She created a 504/SST resource page for Egling 

Middle School and has transitioned that to a county resource page. 

https://sites.google.com/colusa.k12.ca.us/ccoe‐accommodations/home 

4. Rina Banuelos, mental health clinician, offered a training to all CCOE employees on dealing with 

staff stress. She also created a CCOE Staff Wellness Padlet 

https://padlet.com/rbanuelos3/y5dsrhvy6isijadg 

5. New Teacher Collaboration – Program Specialists and Director of SPED have collaborated on a 

new PLC that will begin in November of 2021. The goal will be to provide support and 

collaboration opportunities to new CCOE teachers and those who are continuing to complete 

induction.  

6. Educator Effectiveness Block Grant – $213,791. Budgeted for trainings for: 

a. Curricular‐ Sonday Reading Intervention, Unique Learning Solutions, math intervention, 

and SANDI. 

b. Identification/UDL/Inclusion– Patterns of Strengths and Weaknesses 

c. School Climate/Social/Emotional and Behavior – Series of trainings developed by CCOE, 

Training on Suite 360, Nonviolent Crisis Preventions and Interventions 

CCOE SELPA 

1. Learning Recovery Grant Expenditures – Jennifer Wayman and Veronica Sandoval, Program 

Specialists, were certified as CPI trainers to serve our LEA consortium, with Jennifer Wayman 

specializing in NCI: Trauma. The objective is to support students struggling with the return to in‐

person learning and provide training to the comprehensive general education campuses. 

State SELPA 

1. State SELPA is schedule for Nov 4‐5th in San Diego 



 SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
October 26, 2021, Minutes 
Page 1 

SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
Minutes of SELPA Council Committee October 26, 2021 

Present: Daena Meras, Ed Conrado, Mechele Coombs, Rebecca Changus, Sandra Ayon, 
Carol Geyer, Aaron Heinz, Summer Shadley, Danielle Wilson, Mike West, Melissa 
Ortiz, Chuck Wayman, Argelia Muniz 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Carol Geyer called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large 
Conference Room. 

2.0 APPROVE AGENDA 
No changes. Daena Meras moved to approve the agenda; Summer Shadley seconded; 
the motion passes unanimously. 

3.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input, no questions or comments. 

4.0 APPROVE SELPA COUNCIL MINUTES APRIL 27, 2021 
Danielle Wilson moved to approve minutes; Daena Meras seconded; the motion passes 
unanimously. 

5.0 APPROVE 2021/2022 BUDGET REVISION 
Chuck Wayman explained the increase of $70,000 for 2021/2022. New positions were 
agreed upon and added after the April meeting; 1 paraeducator, 1 teacher for Coastal 
Buttes, and 1 mental health clinician. Behavioral student needs have increased since 
school started, and several para positions have been added along with an LVN for a 
student. There are currently about 20 open positions. In 2020/2021, two years of the 
state mental health grant was spent. This year two years of the federal mental health 
grant will be used. There is a new grant, Effective Educator Block Grant, that special 
education will be able to use for TCIP participants which will decrease expenses by 
about $20,000. The AB602 per student has increased for this school year. Two behavior 
technician positions have been filled and one will be placed at Coastal Buttes Academy. 
Due to a higher need of paraeducators, AES, WES, and JJH will be the first sites provided 
with a paraeducator from today’s job fair. Currently, there are two students that will be 
placed at NPS PointQuest in the next week or two due to safety. ADR grant funds can be 
used for IEE’s and there is $30,000-40,000 budgeted each year if the need arises. The 
Learning Recovery Grant will be used for a mental health clinician and a behavior 
technician. Mike West questioned the amount that it will cost for the two NPS 
placements, Chuck answered that it would be about $100,000 for both students. In  



 SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
October 26, 2021, Minutes 
Page 2 

 
 
April, the budgeted amounts will be updated and there will be additional savings due to 
the current vacancies. There will be $15,000 used from transportation funds this year to 
pay a van after a trade-in an additional $15,000 will be used to pay off the van in 22-23 
fiscal year. There is an increase in transportation due paying overtime to staff since 
there are no drivers and the behavioral needs to adding riders to routes. Ed Conrado 
moved to approve the budget revision; Daena Meras seconded; the motion passes 
unanimously. 

6.0 CURRENT STAFFING 
Chuck Wayman discussed the need to add 2 new teachers for 2022/2023 at AES and 
WES. Melissa Ortiz asked if there is a liability on the districts if services can’t provide 
services due to staff shortage. Chuck explained that compensatory education will be 
offered once staff is hired. There could be a chance that at the time of an IEP the team 
can discuss if the services are still appropriate for a student or if student has been able 
to make it through without services. 

8.0  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:52 p.m. 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report November 10, 2021 

 

We are continuing to work on the plans for the Colusa Unified fourth EduNet radio near 
the golf course.  We are working with a vendor to secure a telephone pole and plan the 
installation.  However, due to the recent fires, the team that would normally help us are 
in high demand for recovery efforts.  We are continuing to look for other options that 
supply better coverage for the apartment buildings in Colusa.  We are also working with 
the Colusa Indian Community Council to help present support options for their internet 
access. 
 
We presented our current EduNet efforts to Senator Nielsen’s Staff. 
 
We are continuing to push Frontier for a better response from their lackluster change 
over to their Premier Support.  We are pushing for more local control. 
 
We have implemented Two Factor Authentication for all CCOE staff members in Office 
365. 
 
We successfully removed all CCOE E-waste from our storage lockers with our vendor. 
 
The CCOE phone system that we use (Mitel 5000) will become end of life shortly.  We 
are in the process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This 
purchase would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We are ensuring this 
migration will meet all needs for all CCOE sites with Mitel 5000 phone systems. 
 
We have made a change in our Adobe Licensing.  We are now using Adobe Cloud 
Creative licenses.  This change will allow us to better support Adobe products and help 
roll out digital signing for CCOE staff members.  This will help with our efforts to go 
“paperless.” 
 
We have setup Single Sign-on for Office 365, Zoom, and Adobe Cloud Creative 
products. 
 
We have begun planning potential Erate category 2 purchases for CCOE departments 
with aged networking equipment.   
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting October 13, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Kevin Douglas, Alex Evans, Jessica Galloway Haney, Angelina Guizar, 

Aaron Heinz, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, 
Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, Michael West, and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from Colusa County Adult School 
who was not in attendance. 

4.2 Letter from State Treasurer – ScholarShare 529 
Michael West reviewed the ScholarShare 529 savings plan.  Discussion was held 
on getting the word out about the scholarship opportunity. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided an update on district, county, state, and CCOE 
COVID 19 masking, vaccine, and testing protocols and activities.  Michael 
reported on recently signed state legislative bills, including: 

AB 599  Jones‐Sawyer updated Williams Settlement Act – New list of 
schools as of July 2022 

AB 309  Student Mental Health ‐ Referral process streamlined 
SB 14  Student Mental Health ‐ Similar support 
SB 224  Student Mental Health ‐ Requires more health education to 

middle and high school including mental health 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

AB 14  Broadband access ‐ Extends CASF to deploy broadband 
SB 4  Broadband access ‐ Extends CASF through 2032 
SB 28  Broadband access ‐ Expands CPUC to collect data to enforce 

cable franchises and Customer service minimum requirements 
AB 46  California Youth Empowerment Act 
AB 101  Ethnic Studies as a high school requirement for graduation 
AB 320  Teacher preparation programs – Allowance of regional 

accreditation 
AB 438  Classified School Employees layoff notice same as Certificated 

Employees 
AB 815  School Nurses credentialing 
AB 824  Allowance of pupil members on boards 
SB 488  Teacher credentialing for reading instruction 

Michael was disappointed to announce that the Governor did not sign SB 
556, which would have allowed LEAs to rent space on light and telephone 
poles to install devices to extend internet signals.  Discussion was held on 
the future of the concept behind SB 556, relaxing requirements for 
retired educators to teach while in retirement, the substitute teacher 
daily rate of pay ($170), and relaxed requirements for new substitute 
teachers.  Michael also reported on his participation and attendance in 
activities, such as meetings with County Probation and the Crime Task 
Force, during which he learned about a recent importation into Colusa 
County of massive amounts of pills that contained fentanyl.  He said that 
work is currently underway to educate countywide health professionals 
and educators about the risk and responses to fentanyl and to procure 
NARCAN™, which is a nasal spray approved for the treatment of known 
or suspected opioid overdose, for use at every school site.  Discussion 
was held on fentanyl identification, reaction, exposure, and alerting the 
community to the risk.  Michael announced that he was recently 
appointed to serve on Superintendent Thurmond’s initiative to ensure 
every California student learns to read at grade level by the third grade 
and he was also scheduled to be a panelist on a nationwide webcast that 
will outline And Literacy For All, F2B, and Early Childhood Education 
efforts in Colusa County.  Michael added that he attended meetings with 
new district superintendents to explain CCOE’s EduNet, with Senator Jim 
Nielson’s staff members and CCOE’s Alex Evans and Kyle Gehrts on the 
shortfalls of Frontier and other carriers to meet Colusa County’s internet 
needs, with CPS and Judge Olivera about truancy issues and methods of 
encouragement to reduce those numbers, and with the City Planning 
Commission to express disapproval of plans to allow retail cannabis in 
downtown Colusa.  Michael also said that he participated in the 
Children’s Services Children’s Faire at Williams City Park, the NCAEC 
Executive Meeting, and the CCSESA Legislative Committee Legislative 
Analyst interview process. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – September Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the District Superintendents in 
September and reviewed issues, challenges, testing protocols, and 
solutions related to COVID 19 and education, staffing issues that all 
education agencies face, and increased countywide ADA.  He reported 
that Chuck Wayman reviewed ESSER III, Special Education, and a 
partnership with Colusa County Behavioral Health. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his October 2021 Administrative Services report to the 
Board and spoke about Administrative Services staff participation in 
StrengthsFinders training, IAL book distribution and reading activities, Human 
Resources COVID 19 testing for staff, Angelina Guizar’s First Interim Report and 
Unaudited Actuals preparation, Food Services food distribution, and Facilities 
maintenance activities. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss answered the Board’s questions regarding her October 2021 
Children’s Services written report, about staff shortages.  She said that currently 
the department has eight full‐time open positions and is forced to operate at 
minimum levels and close classrooms when necessary, while maintaining 
cohorts.  Discussion was held on utilizing CTE students to help fill the gaps (even 
substitutes must have ECE units), recruiting from Woodland and YCC ECE 
programs, the future of the program if staff shortages continue (services would 
need to be cut), using communications to get the word out, providing incentives, 
burnout as a factor, the effect on budgets if money cannot be used (funds would 
need to be sent back, and when it comes time to re‐apply the program may not 
be eligible to receive the same amount). 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Lorilee Niesen added to her October 2021 Educational Services written report by 
announcing a donation from Woodland Joint Unified School District, through 
their affiliation with the NCAEC, of $100,000 from their Adult Education budget 
carryover to CCOE’s Adult Education program, and discussion was held on 
expressing gratitude for WJUSD’s donation.  Lorilee also reported on activities to 
fill the Administrative Assistant and Adult Education ESL teacher positions and 
recruitment for the Farm to School Supervisor position.  Lorilee answered the 
Board’s questions regarding the Kitchen a la Carte purchase, which is an 
interactive, mobile teaching kitchen, and she suggested holding a Board meeting 
at Village so that the Board may check out first‐hand the equipment that was 
purchased with grant monies. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman added to his October 2021 Special Education written report by 
describing work on a grant with Colusa County Behavioral Health to set up 
wellness centers at each district, and on an upcoming Paraeducator Career Fair 
to recruit candidates for the nearly 30% vacancy rate.  Discussion was held on 
industry‐wide staff shortages, Federal government help by changing laws (none 
at this time), vacant teacher positions (two), the number of speech and language 
teachers, psychologists, and nurses (fully staffed). 
 
Special Education’s Educational Behavior Analyst Kevin Douglas presented 
information on Colusa County’s involvement in the California Autism 
Professional Training and Information Network (CAPTAIN), which is an online 
resource for supporting students with autism return to in‐person schooling, and 
on the California ECHO™ autism virtual network improvement community.  
Discussion was held on the increase in autistic student identification (almost 
doubled each of the last two years), better identification of autistic students, 
earlier intervention, increased relocation to Colusa County due to the perception 
of rural communities having better and smaller class sizes, the grade levels and 
staffing of each team, and on the resources provided by CAPTAIN and ECHO™.  
Kevin said that the project is a one‐year grant through CAPTAIN, but he is hoping 
for a four‐year extension.  Discussion was also held on quantifying data through 
pre‐ and post‐evaluation scores, challenges such as participation, keeping costs 
down through remote opportunities, and partnering with Yuba and Sutter 
Counties. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans answered the Board’s question regarding his October 2021 
Technology Services written report, about his frustration with the failure of SB 
556, which would have allowed LEAs to rent space on light and telephone poles 
to install devices to extend internet signals. Discussion was held on unions’ 
objections to the process (fear of job loss), communication to the Governor’s 
office about the effect of the bill’s failure on Colusa County’s needs, raising 
awareness to State legislators about Frontier’s lack of support for Colusa County, 
and on the possibility of small county/small school districts’ groups providing 
assistance for this bill (Michael said that former Butte COE Superintendent and 
current SSDA CEO Tim Taylor is leading those efforts on behalf of rural 
communities). 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes, one absent (Jason McMullen) to approve the following Consent 
Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the September 8, 2021, Public Hearing 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the September 8, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that WCC President Dr. Art Pimentel and staff members 
presented to the Superintendents Council plans for the upcoming year and plans 
for an outreach with stakeholders to determine Colusa County needs.  Michael 
also reported on Colusa County student participation in WCC classes taught on 
district sites by district teachers, which increased each year since 2019‐20.  He 
said that these classes were offered at MUSD, PJUSD, and WUSD and that CUSD 
will be offering classes in the future. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on the NCAEC Executive Meeting during which Woodland 
Joint Unified School District committed a donation to CCOE’s Adult Education 
program, and on continued discussion with architects about the Adult Education 
portable placement.  Michael was pleased to announce that today he authorized 
the final communication with Swank Construction regarding Education Village 
litigation. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Lorilee Niesen reported that the CCOE LCAP was approved by the CDE, and it is 
posted on the website.  Lorilee said that she will share her experience with the 
districts.  Lorilee also reported that the State will soon add a new supplement to 
the LCAP, that all LEAs will need to provide an update or supplement to their 
boards by February 28, 2022, and that she anticipates a template revision in the 
future.  Discussion was held on the review process. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
updated F2B data from the previous 30 days that indicated increased community 
and district usage in the areas of hours of literacy, words read, books read, and 
books written.  Karisa also reported on grant activities, including story times on 
the CCOE ALFA Facebook page and on upcoming outreach activities including the 
Arbuckle Pumpkin Fest, the Maxwell Zombie Run, the Colusa Puptober event, 
Prevention Services’ We are Family Nights, Children Services’ Parent Nights, the 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

Colusa County Chamber of Commerce Trunk or Treat event, and Colusa COE’s 
First Annual Community Resource Fair.  Karisa announced that iPad lending 
program sign ups were dropped off to Williams Elementary and that all MOUs, 
except for Colusa County Library and Hand in Hand, were signed for year three of 
the IAL grant.  Discussion was held on the positive impact of CCOE’s exposure in 
the community. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2020‐21 Unaudited Actuals 

Aaron Heinz presented information from the 2020‐21 Unaudited Actuals Report, 
describing it as a snapshot in time of the condition of CCOE’s budget at the end 
of 2020‐21.  Aaron provided a review of the Unaudited Actuals beginning with 
the Certification Form that included a synopsis of the Maintenance of Effort, 
Gann Limit, and Proposed Indirect Cost Rate (7.97%).  Discussion was held on the 
ICR, which is lower than was projected during the previous year.  Aaron 
continued his review by directing the Board’s attention to the County School 
Service Fund that indicated an increased ending fund balance from prior of 
approximately $100,000.  Discussion was held on the approximately $500,000 
increase to employee benefits, which Aaron said was a combination of the 
increase to Cal STRS and PERS retirement benefits costs plus a projected increase 
to classified salaries; and on the decrease of books and supplies expenditures, 
which he said was due to technology purchases. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, 
one absent (Jason McMullen) to approve 2020‐21 Unaudited Actuals. 
 
Discussion was held on the location of the litigation funds in the budget and on a 
plan to spend the litigation monies on facilities. 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐02 Gann Limits 
Aaron Heinz reported on the history of the annual Gann Limits Resolution and 
the new direction of the State that requires the LEAs with available limit to 
decrease their limit and return that extra to the state. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Jason McMullen) to approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐02 
Gann Limits. 

11.3 Teleconference vs Broadcast (Live Stream) Board Meetings 
No questions or comments. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 7 

11.4 Approve Utilizing the Teleconferencing Option Provided in AB 361 for the 
November 10, 2021, Board Meeting Because the Board Determines at this Time 
the Meeting Will be Held During a Proclaimed State of Emergency, and State or 
Local Officials have Imposed or Recommended Measures to Promote Social 
Distancing 
The Board considered an analysis of the teleconferencing option and 
requirements of AB 361. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, 
one absent (Jason McMullen) to not utilize the teleconferencing option provided 
in AB 361 at this time, but to add the option to future agendas if the need arises. 

11.5 Edits to Board Policy and Operating Procedure 3020.00 – Budget Committee 
The Board did not provide edits to Board Policy and Operating Procedure 
3020.00 – Budget Committee.  Ed Conrado recommended considering editing 
and adopting CCBE’s policy 3100 – Budget Adoption and Revision in place of the 
Board’s Policy 3100 – Budget Approval and Control Policy.  He also suggested 
developing a glossary of budget terms to be included in the budget book, 
including specific information on whether the budget meets the Board’s priority 
and goals, and do away with the Board’s budget committee policy and 
procedure.  Discussion was held on developing the new BP 3100 and Ed and 
Brenda Miller said that they would be willing to work on the policy development 
with the CBO and bring a first reading to the Board in November. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Action Item – Remove:  Board Policy 3020 Budget Committee and Operating 
Procedure 3020 To Outline the Process Used by the Budget Committee  

Information Item – First Reading:  Revise Existing Board Policy 3100 Budget 
Approval and Control Policy to be aligned with CCBE Policy 3100 Budget 
Adoption and Revision 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
November 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 6:13 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

ADA  Average Daily Attendance 

ALFA  And Literacy for All Initiative 

BP  Board Policy 

CalPERS  California Public Employees Retirement System ‐ Also known as PERS 

CalSTRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

CAPTAIN  California Autism Professional Training and Information Network 

CASF  California Advanced Services Fund 

CBO  Chief Business Official 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CEO  Chief Executive Officer 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CPS  Colusa County Child Protective Services 

CPUC  California Public Utilities Commission 

CTE  Career Technical Education 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

ECE  Early Childhood Education 

ESL  English as a Second Language 

ESSR III  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

ICR  Indirect Cost Rate  

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

MOU  Memorandum of Understanding 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

NCAEC  North Central Adult Education Consortium 

OP  Board Operating Procedure 

PERS  Public Employees Retirement System 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SB  Senate Bill 

SSDA  Small School Districts' Association 

STRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

WCC  Williams Children's Center 

WJUSD  Woodland Joint Unified School District 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCC  Yuba Community College 

 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 1 of 3 

Title I Programs 

The  Governing  Board  recognizes  that  parents/guardians  are  their  children's  first  and  most 
influential  teachers  and  that  sustained parent/guardian  involvement  in  the education of  their 
children  contributes  greatly  to  student  achievement  and  a  positive  school  environment.  The 
Superintendent  or  designee  shall work with parents/guardians  and  family members  to  jointly 
develop  and  agree  upon  policy  and  strategies  to meaningfully  involve  parents/guardians  and 
family members  in Colusa County Office of Education (County Office) and school activities at all 
grade levels; advisory, decision‐making, and advocacy roles; and activities to support learning at 
home. 

Parents/guardians shall be notified of their rights to be informed about and to participate in their 
children's education and of the opportunities available to them to do so. 

The County Office's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and strategies 
for parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including County Office efforts to seek 
parent/guardian  input  in  County  Office  and  school  site  decision  making  and  to  promote 
parent/guardian participation in programs for English learners, foster youth, students eligible for 
free and reduced‐price meals, and students with disabilities. 

The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  regularly  evaluate  and  report  to  the  Board  on  the 
effectiveness of the County Office's parent/guardian and family engagement efforts, including, but 
not limited to, input from parents/guardians, family members, and school staff on the adequacy 
of involvement opportunities and on barriers that may inhibit participation. 

Title I Schools 
The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  involve  parents/guardians  and  family  members  in 
establishing County Office expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family 
engagement in schools supported by Title I funding, developing strategies that describe how the 
County Office will carry out each activity listed in 20 USC 6318, as contained in the accompanying 
administrative  regulation,  and  implementing  and  evaluating  such  programs,  activities,  and 
procedures.  As  appropriate,  the  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  conduct  outreach  to  all 
parents/guardians and family members. 

When the County Office's Title I, Part A allocation exceeds the amount specified in 20 USC 6318, 
the Board shall reserve at  least one percent of  the  funding  to  implement parent/guardian and 
family engagement activities and shall distribute at  least 90 percent of those reserved funds to 
eligible  schools,  with  priority  given  to  high‐need  schools  as  defined  in  20  USC  6631.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians and family members of participating 
students  in  decisions  regarding  how  the  County  Office's  Title  I  funds  will  be  allotted  for 
parent/guardian and family engagement activities. 

Expenditures of such funds shall be consistent with the activities specified in this policy and shall 
include at least one of the following: 

8.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 2 of 3 

1. Support for schools and nonprofit organizations in providing professional development for 
County  Office  and  school  staff  regarding  parent/guardian  and  family  engagement 
strategies, which may be provided  jointly  to  teachers, principals, other  school  leaders, 
specialized instructional support personnel, paraprofessionals, early childhood educators, 
and parents/guardians and family members 

2. Support for programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home, in the 
community, and at school 

3. Dissemination of  information on best practices  focused on parent/guardian and  family 
engagement,  especially  best  practices  for  increasing  the  engagement  of  economically 
disadvantaged parents/guardians and family members 

4. Collaboration,  or  the  provision  of  subgrants  to  schools  to  enable  collaboration,  with 
community‐based  or  other  organizations  or  employers  with  a  record  of  success  in 
improving and increasing parent/guardian and family engagement 

5. Any other activities and strategies that the County Office determines are appropriate and 
consistent with this policy 

If the County Office also receives funds under federal Title IV, Part E, to coordinate and enhance 
family engagement programs, the Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians and 
organizations of the existence of Title IV. 

The County Office's Board policy containing parent/guardian and  family engagement strategies 
shall be incorporated into the County Office's LCAP in accordance with 20 USC 6312. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school receiving Title I funds develops a 
school‐level parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 

County  Office  and  school‐level  parent/guardian  and  family  engagement  policies  shall  be 
distributed to parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs and shall be available 
to the local community. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the policy in an understandable and 
uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language the parents/guardians can 
understand. 

Non‐Title I Schools 
The superintendent or designee shall develop and  implement strategies applicable to each school 
that  does  not  receive  federal  Title  I  funds  to  encourage  the  involvement  and  support  of 
parents/guardians  in  the  education  of  their  children,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  strategies 
describing  how  the  County  Office  and  schools  will  address  the  purpose  and  goals  describe  in 
education Code 11502. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6171.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 3 of 3 

References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  6020 Parent Involvement 
Education Code 
  11502 Programs to Encourage Parental Involvement 
  11503 Written Parent and Family Engagement Program for Each School 
  11504 Policy on Parent and Family Engagement Program for Each School 
  42238.02 Apportionments and Revenue Control ‐ Local Control Funding Formula 
  52060 Local Control and Accountability Plans and the Statewide System of Support 

U.S. Code (USC) Title 20 ‐ Education 
  6312 Local Educational Agency Plans 
  6318 Eligible School Attendance Areas 
  6631 Teacher and School Leader Incentive Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  November 10, 2021 



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BP 3020.00 
Series 3000—Business Page 1 of 1 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that sound fiscal management requires 
anticipating financial problems and taking early corrective action.  
 
A Budget Committee shall be established to regularly review the Colusa County 
Office of Education’s financial condition, report to the Board on vital financial 
data, advise the Board regarding the maintenance of adequate reserves and 
recommend long-range fiscal policies to ensure the viability of educational 
programs, and review and recommend budget adoption and revisions. 
 
The Budget Committee shall be made up of the Superintendent, the Assistant 
Superintendent, Administrative Services, the Director of Business Services and 
two Board members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: November 10, 1994 
Reviewed: January 13, 1999 
Revised: July 12, 2006 
Revised: March 14, 2012 

 

tmaxwell
Cross-Out

tmaxwell
Text Box
Recommended for removal during the October 2021 Board Meeting.



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BOP 3020.00 
Operating Procedures Page 1 of 1 
 

Purpose: To outline the process used by the Budget Committee. 
 
The Budget Committee will call meetings each year prior to budget adoption 
(June) and prior to any budget revisions (usually December), or any other times as 
needed.  Notes for each Budget Committee meeting will be attached to the fiscal 
documents covered in the meeting and maintained in the fiscal files. 
 
The Budget Committee will review in detail and receive information from the 
CCOE Administration concerning a pre-adopted budget, and the adopted budget.  
The Budget Committee will then make recommendations to the full Board when 
appropriate.  The first and second interim reports, and various budget 
adjustments that occur during the year, are taken to the full Board of Education 
for approval at a regular meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised: May 10, 2006 
Revised: July 12, 2006 

tmaxwell
Cross-Out

tmaxwell
Text Box
Recommended for removal during the October 2021 Board Meeting.



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 1 of 3 

Budget Adoption and Revision 

The  Colusa  County  Board  of  Education  (County  Board)  recognizes  its  critical  responsibility  for 
adopting a sound budget each fiscal year which is aligned with and reflects the Colusa County Office 
of Education (County Office) vision, goals, priorities, local control and accountability plan (LCAP), and 
other comprehensive plans. The County Office budget shall guide decisions and actions throughout 
the year and shall serve as a tool for monitoring the fiscal health of the County Office. 

It is the responsibility of the County Superintendent of Schools or designee to develop a budget to 
be adopted within the time limits set by law. The budget shall show a complete plan and itemized 
statement of all proposed expenditures in each fund of the County Office, and the estimated cash 
balances and estimated revenues of the County Office for the current budget year and for the next 
two fiscal years. The budget shall include a comparison of expenditures, cash balances, and revenues 
estimated  for  the  budget  year  with  the  unaudited  actual  amounts  of  the  expenditures,  cash 
balances, and revenues for the prior fiscal year. 

The budget shall be developed in accordance with standards and criteria adopted by the State Board 
of Education. 

In  reviewing a proposed budget,  the County Board may consider past, current, and  future  fiscal 
obligations  of  the  County  Office,  stability  of  funding  sources,  the  LCAP,  enrollment  trends, 
anticipated  increases  and/or  decreases  in  the  cost  of  services  and  supplies,  use  of  one‐time 
resources, and any other factors necessary to ensure that the budget is a realistic plan for County 
Office revenues and expenditures. 

The County Office budget shall include a general fund reserve for economic uncertainty that meets 
or exceeds the requirements of 5 CCR 15474. 

Adoption of County School Service Fund Budget 
The County Board expects the County Superintendent or designee to present the proposed county 
school service fund budget to the County Board early enough in the fiscal year to allow the County 
Board sufficient time to meet the requirement to adopt the budget by July 1. The budget shall include 
the expenditures identified in the LCAP and any updates to the LCAP that will be effective for the 
budget year. 

The County Board shall hold a public hearing on the proposed budget at the same meeting as the 
public hearing on the County Office's LCAP and local control funding formula (LCFF) budget overview 
for parents/guardians. An agenda for this hearing shall be posted at least 72 hours before the hearing 
and shall indicate the location where the budget may be inspected. The proposed budget shall be 
available for public inspection at least three working days before this hearing. During the hearing, 
any taxpayer directly affected by the budget may speak to the proposed budget or any item in the 
budget. 

   

11.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 2 of 3 

At a public meeting held after the date of the public hearing but on or before July 1 of each year, the 
County Board shall adopt a county school service fund budget for the budget year. The County Board 
shall adopt the budget following  its adoption of the LCAP, or annual update to the LCAP, and the 
LCFF budget overview for parents/guardians. 

The County Board shall file the adopted budget with the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), 
the County Board of Supervisors, and the County Auditor. 

If  the  SPI  disapproves  the  county  school  service  fund  budget,  the  County  Board  and  County 
Superintendent shall  review and  respond  to  the SPI's  recommendations at a  regularly scheduled 
County Board meeting on or before October 8. That response shall include the proposed actions to 
be taken, if any, as a result of those recommendations. 

No later than 45 days after the Governor signs the annual Budget Act, it is the responsibility of the 
County Superintendent  to make available  for public  review any  revisions made  to  the budget  to 
reflect the funding made available by the Budget Act. 

Transfer of Funds 
The  County  Board  recognizes  that  the  County  Superintendent  or  designee  may  spend  funds 
appropriated in the budget within major object budget categories without County Board approval 
and may make transfers of appropriated  funds between major object budget categories to meet 
necessary expenses. Any transfer of funds between major object budget categories shall be included 
in timely financial reports to the County Board. 

Financial Reports 
The County Board  shall  review  interim budget  reports presented by  the County  Superintendent 
twice annually. The first interim report shall cover the financial and budgetary status of the County 
Office for the period ending October 31. The second  interim report shall cover the period ending 
January 31. Both reports shall be reviewed by the County Board no later than 45 days after the close 
of the period being reported. 

Budget Revision 
As defined in the California School Accounting Manual, a budget revision means a net increase or 
decrease to the budget. Any revision to the budget in excess of $25,000, whether a net increase or 
decrease in the amount of funds appropriated, shall be incorporated into the next interim financial 
report or other County Board report and presented to the County Board for discussion and approval 
at a regularly scheduled public meeting of the County Board. 

Any budget revision of $25,000 or  less may be  included  in timely  financial reports to the County 
Board but shall not be subject to County Board approval. 

A consultant's contract for $25,000 or more may constitute a budget revision requiring County Board 
approval if the contract causes a net increase or decrease to the total budget. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 3 of 3 

Unappropriated Fund Balance 
The budget may contain amounts known as the unappropriated fund balance. These funds shall be 
available for appropriation by a majority vote of the County Board. 

Increases of Salary or Retirement Benefits to Employees by County Superintendent 
The County Superintendent shall bring to the County Board at a regularly scheduled County Board 
meeting for discussion purposes only any proposed salary increase or bonus for any County Office 
employee that is $10,000 or more. The County Superintendent shall also bring to the County Board 
at  a  regularly  scheduled  meeting  for  discussion  and  approval  any  proposed  increase  to  the 
retirement benefits of any County Office employee. 

References: 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
15060 Standardized account code structure 
15440‐15451 Criteria and standards for school district budgets 
15494‐15497 Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements 

Education Code 
1040 Duties and responsibilities; county boards of education 
1042 County boards; authority 
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties 
1280 Revisions to annual budget 
1281 Hiring of consultants 
1302 Local elections 
1620‐1630 Budget requirements 
15467‐15479 Criteria and standards for county office of education budget 
33127‐33131 Standards and criteria for local budgets and expenditures 
41202 Determination of minimum level of education funding 
42103 Publication of proposed budget; hearing 
42120 Budget completion 
42122‐42129 Budget requirements 
42130‐42134 Financial reports and certifications 
42140‐42142 Public disclosure of fiscal obligations 
42238.01‐42238.07 Local control funding formula 
42238‐42251 Apportionments to districts 
42602 Use of unbudgeted funds 
42610 Appropriation of excess funds and limitation thereon 
52064.1 Local control funding formula budget overview for parents 
52060‐52077 Local control and accountability plan   

Government Code 
7900‐7914 Appropriations limit 
21710‐21716 California Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust Program     

 
Adopted:  November 10, 1994 
Reviewed:  January 13, 1999 
Revised:  September 6, 2006, March 14, 2012, December 14, 2021 



 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business Page 1 of 1 
 

Budget Approval and Control Policy 
 

Budget approval and control of all funds and accounts of the Colusa County Office 
of Education, including federal and state programs, debt service and any other 
funds and accounts under the control or responsibility of the Colusa County 
Office of Education shall rest with the Colusa County Board of Education. 
 

• The Colusa County Board of Education approves the proposed and revised 
budgets though formal adoption. 

 
• The County Office Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services 

monitors actual transactions so as not to exceed approved budgets. 
 
• Assistant Superintendents may move budgeted amounts between and 

within major object classifications 1000 through 6000, (1000 Certificated 
Salaries, 2000 Classified Salaries, 3000 Employee Benefits, 4000 Books and 
Supplies, 5000 Contracted Services and Other Expenditures, 6000 Capitol 
Outlay) within a given program, with the approval of the County 
Superintendent of Schools or designee. 

 
• The Colusa County Board of Education approves budget changes affecting 

revenues, fund balance components, or inter program reclassifications 
through the formal approval process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted: November 10, 1994 
Reviewed: January 13, 1999 
Revised: September 6, 2006 
Revised: March 14, 2012 

11.2 

tmaxwell
Cross-Out



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  Month X, 202X 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2022 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 12 – Regular Meeting 

February 9 – Regular Meeting 

March 9 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 13 – Regular Meeting 

May 11 – Regular Meeting 

June 14 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

*June 15 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 13 – Regular Meeting 

August 10 – Regular Meeting 

September 14 – Regular Meeting 

October 12 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 9 – Regular Meeting 

December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

*Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

  AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2022 is Friday, December 9 

to Saturday, December 24, 2022. Additionally, the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 15 
meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if so 
the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



Accepted December 14, 2021 COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation

YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT

2026 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Williams 3 Jason McMullan 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Board Terms/Rotation/Rotation



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2022 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 2022 
Accepted December __, 2021 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services 
2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

2021 Barry Morrell 
2022 

Administrative Services 
2021 Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Barry Morrell 
2022 

Business Services 

 
  Budget Subcommittee 

2021 Jason McMullan 

2022 
2021 Jason McMullan & Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council 
2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board 
2021 Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell 
2022 

2021 Cristy Edwards 
2022 

Special Education & SELPA Council 
2021 Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

Educational Services 
2021 Cristy Edwards 
2022 

2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

Superintendent’s Salary 
2021 Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 
2022 

2021 No Alternate 
2022 

 
 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Cristy Edwards 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Jason McMullan 

 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 1 of 5

 

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 
 

 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Charles Wayman           

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 
cwayman@ccoe.net           
(530) 473-1350 x 10806 

 
Total amount of funds received by the LEA: Date of Public Meeting prior to adoption: Date of adoption at public meeting: 
$213,791 11-10-21 12-14-21 

 
 
EC 41480  
(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this subdivision from 
the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall 
coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to support 
teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision. 
 
(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to provide 
professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus 
on any of the following areas: 
 

(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not 
limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on 
retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not 
limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills, 
improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a 
meaningful classroom teaching experience. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Colusa County Office of Education will have 
certificated staff participate in an 
induction/mentor program. Each participant will 
be assigned a mentor to provide support, 
coaching, and guidance. The supporting and 
coaching will focus on professional standards, 
social-emotional understanding of self and 
students, classroom management, parent 

$22,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 102,000.00 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=41480.&lawCode=EDC
tmaxwell
Text Box
11.6



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 2 of 5

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

engagement, and day-to-day demands of the 
job. 
Subtotal 22,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 102,000.00 
 
 

(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, 
including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer 
science. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Trainings will be conducted for certificated staff 
on the implementation and monitoring of 
Sonday Reading Intervention, Unique Learning 
Solutions,  math intervention, and Sandi. The 
programs provide assessment data and align 
instruction to standards for students. 

 $6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 21,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 21,000.00 
 
 

(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning. 
 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health 
services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

A training series will be established and 
provided to all staff. It will be a four to five part 
series focusing on trauma and social-emotional 

 $20,000 $18,000 $18,000 $15,291 71,291.00 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 3 of 5

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

learning. Staff will be provided extra 
duty/stipends to attend the trainings. 
Subtotal 0.00 20,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 15,291.00 71,291.00 
 
 

(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around implicit bias, 
providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite’s culture to one that values 
diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, and intimidation based on 
actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, 
race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Training on Suite 360 for certificated staff. Suite 
360 provides restorative justice curriculum to 
students. 

 $2,500 $2,500  $2,500 7,500.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 7,500.00 
 
 

(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early 
identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Provide trainings on proper assessments and 
identification using the PSW model of 
identification. The whole assessment team will 
receive training on the different components of 
PSW. 

 $2,000  $2,000  4,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 
 
 

(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English learners, which may 
include integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and strengthening capacity to 
increase bilingual and biliterate proficiency. 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 4 of 5

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional learning network 
to support the requirements of subdivision (c). 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7 into pupil 
instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood 
development. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Nonviolent Crisis Prevention Training (CPI) 
training will be conducted for early childhood 
staff to assist with behavioral issues and de-
escalation strategies. 

 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 8,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 8,000.00 
 
 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 5 of 5

Summary of Expenditures 
 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal Section (1) 22,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 102,000.00 

Subtotal Section (2) 0.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 21,000.00 

Subtotal Section (3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (4) 0.00 20,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 15,291.00 71,291.00 

Subtotal Section (5) 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 7,500.00 

Subtotal Section (6) 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 

Subtotal Section (7) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (10) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 8,000.00 
Totals by year 22,000.00 52,500.00 47,500.00 47,000.00 44,791.00 213,791.00 

 
Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 
213,791.00 

 
Note: 
Per EC 41480 (d)(2): On or before September 30, 2026, the LEA must report detailed expenditure information to the California Department of 
Education, including, but not limited to: 

• specific purchases made; 
• the number of the following educators who received professional development: 

o Teachers; 
o Administrators; 
o Paraprofessional educators; 
o Classified staff.



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Tuesday, December 14, 2021 

TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 

PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 
located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 

4.2 Awarding Certificates of Completion – Early Literacy Certification 

5.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
5.1 Accept President Rotation Schedule  action 

5.2 Accept the 2022 Schedule of Meetings  action 

5.3 Set 2022 Liaison Assignments  action 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

7.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
7.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
7.1.2 Superintendents Council – November Meeting 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
8.1 Board President’s Report  information 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the November 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.2 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision  action 
BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision (Previously titled Budget 
Adoption and Control Policy 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 
11.2.1 Williams Property Escrow Complete  information 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 Approve the 2021‐26 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan  action 

12.2 Approve 2021‐22 First Interim Report  action 

12.3 Cancel December 15, 2021, Contingency Meeting  action 

12.4 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision  information 
BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation of English 

    Language Learner Students 

13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
  If Not Cancelled During Item 12.3 Above – December 15, 2021 
  4:00 p.m. 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.3 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
  Pending 2022 Schedule of Meetings Approval – January 12, 2022 
  4:00 p.m. 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Accepted December 14, 2021 COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation

YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT

2026 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Williams 3 Jason McMullan 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Board Terms/Rotation/Rotation



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  Month X, 202X 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2022 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 12 – Regular Meeting 

February 9 – Regular Meeting 

March 9 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 13 – Regular Meeting 

May 11 – Regular Meeting 

June 14 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

*June 15 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 13 – Regular Meeting 

August 10 – Regular Meeting 

September 14 – Regular Meeting 

October 12 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 9 – Regular Meeting 

December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

*Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

  AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2022 is Friday, December 9 

to Saturday, December 24, 2022. Additionally, the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 15 
meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if so 
the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2022 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 2022 
Accepted December 14, 2021

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services 
2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

2021 Barry Morrell 
2022 

Administrative Services 
2021 Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Barry Morrell 
2022 

Business Services 

Budget Subcommittee 

2021 Jason McMullan 

2022 
2021 Jason McMullan & Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council 
2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

2021 Brenda Miller 
2022 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board 
2021 Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell 
2022 

2021 Cristy Edwards 
2022 

Special Education & SELPA Council 
2021 Ed Conrado 
2022 

2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

Educational Services 
2021 Cristy Edwards 
2022 

2021 Jason McMullan 
2022 

Superintendent’s Salary 
2021 Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 
2022 

2021 No Alternate 
2022 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Cristy Edwards 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Jason McMullan 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting November 10, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Jessica Calderon, Ryan Copeland, Alex Evans, Jessica Galloway Haney, 
Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, 
Amber McKinney, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Gina Porter, 
Michael West, and David Wright 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Michael West notified the Board about staff portrait sessions in December and January. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Employee Recognition – Commending Outstanding Performances During a 

School Safety Incident 
Jessica Calderon 
Ryan Copeland 
Amber McKinney 
Gina Porter 
David Wright 

Michael West reported on an October 8, 2021, incident involving a fire in the 
classroom, and presented recognition awards to staff for their quick response 
and focus on student safety during an emergency. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West said that he was pleased with staff’s reaction to the 
emergency, and he took the time thank all veterans.  Michael reported 
that all districts and the CCOE are operating efficiently, with minimal 
issues regarding COVID 19.  Michael said that he and the district 

9.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

superintendents are considering sending a letter to the Governor and 
legislative members regarding upcoming vaccination mandates for 
students.  Discussion was held on vaccine exemptions, the upcoming flu 
season, and children’s right to attend school.  Michael also reported on 
his participation and attendance in activities, such as a planning meeting 
for Superintendent Thurmond’s all Children Reading by Third Grade 
Initiative group and serving as a panelist during a nationwide webcast on 
Early Childhood Education speaking about And Literacy for All, F2B and 
ECE efforts in Colusa County, specifically on the use of internet media in 
those programs.  Discussion was held on addressing high school level 
social media usage that indoctrinates rather than educates students, CDE 
becoming more involved in curriculum, educators allowing students to 
use the internet to do research, keeping politics out of the classroom, 
critical race theory being taught in California, local school districts’ 
control over curriculum, and concern over the polarization and 
politicization of education.  Michael also reported on his participation in 
the Head Start Policy Council, the third CNA graduation ceremony, a door 
decoration contest and Halloween celebration at the Village, a meeting 
with Sheriff’s personnel on funding opportunities for a full‐time SRO for 
the county, and a K12HSN meeting that focused on the state of high‐
speed networks in California and increased attacks on computer 
networks.  Discussion was held on the morphing nature of the attacks.  
Michael spoke about his Williams Settlement Act mandated activities, 
which he said he would expand upon during agenda item 11.5. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – October Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district superintendents in 
October and discussed issues, challenges, and solutions related to COVID 
19 and education; staffing issues; student discipline and behavior issues, 
with an increase in irrational student behavior; an ethnic studies plan, 
and rural districts’ exemption from the Start School Later law.  Discussion 
was held on student disciplinary issues, and on the decrease in 
socialization and academic struggles as causes for acting out. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his November 2021 Administrative Services report to the 
Board and spoke about the monthly CCOE newsletter published by 
Communications Director Alissa Maas.  Discussion was held on the article about 
Superintendent West that also appeared in the Appeal Democrat. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ 
November 2021 Children’s Services written report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Lorilee Niesen added to her November 2021 Educational Services written report 
by providing an update on the Prevention Services team’s upcoming 
presentation on migrant education outreach during the National Association for 
the Education of Homeless Children conference in Atlanta next week.  She said 
that the group will share that presentation with the Board during Educational 
Services’ presentation in April. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman was absent, and Jessica Galloway Haney added to the November 
2021 Special Education and SELPA written report by highlighting the recent 
hiring of a Program Specialist who is creating a 504 resource web page, on the 
Mental Health Clinician’s development of a CCOE Wellness padlet, on eight new 
paraeducators recruited during an on the spot hiring event, and on the Educator 
Effectiveness and Learning Recovery grants. 

6.5.1 SELPA ‐ October Meeting 
No questions or comments. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans presented his November 2021 Technology Services report to the 
Board on cyber security, specifically phishing and ransomware.  Alex defined and 
described both concepts, and he spoke about equipment and strategies used to 
protect CCOE, including steps that users can take to protect themselves.  Alex 
answered the Board’s questions regarding cyber security, and discussion was 
held on the cost of keeping up with cyber attacks. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes, one absent (Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent 
Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the October 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
8.2 Second Reading:  New Board Policy – BP 6171.00 Title I Programs 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

No update. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on continued discussion about the Adult Education 
portable placement and plan, outlets for fill dirt needed to prepare pads for the 
portable relocation, and an action plan for low water vegetation and trees to be 
placed in front of the Education Village. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Lorilee Niesen reported on the newly released CDE template for the Annual 
Supplement that will be brought to the board in February as an information 
item.  The supplement will also be added to the LCAP and brought to the Board 
for approval in June. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
No update. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Board Policy Removal: 

BP 3020 Budget Committee and OP 3020 Purpose: To outline the process used 
by the Budget Committee 
A suggestion was made during the October 13, 2021, Board meeting to remove 
BP 3020 Budget Committee and BOP 3020 Purpose: To outline the process used 
by the Budget Committee.  The opinion was that revision of the existing BP 3100 
Budget Approval and Control Policy would make those documents unnecessary. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Jason McMullan) to approve removal of Board Policy 3020 
Budget Committee and Operating Procedure 3020 Purpose: To outline the 
process used by the Budget Committee. 

11.2 First Reading: 
Board Policy Revision – BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision (Previously 
titled Budget Adoption and Control Policy) 
Changes were made to BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision (Previously titled 
Budget Adoption and Control Policy), and the policy will be brought to the 
December 2021 Board meeting for a second reading.  Discussion was held on the 
omission of the reporting requirement to the Board of Supervisors and to the 
County Auditor due to CCOE’s fiscal independence, on the delineation of 
responsibilities, and on a budget glossary that will be brought to the Board each 
time the budget is presented. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.3 Upcoming December Annual Organizational Meeting Considerations 
11.3.1 Draft Schedule of 2022 Regular Meetings 
11.3.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule 
11.3.3 Draft Liaison Assignments 

Tina Maxwell explained that the above three documents would be on the 
December 14, 2021, Board agenda for approval.  Discussion was held on 
changing the president rotation schedule, on who would be the next 
president, on asking for an attendance commitment, on the need for 
strong leadership, on returning to the rotation if attendance improves 
during the next year, and on the commitment to the role of President.  
Regarding Liaison Committees, the Board reminded Tina to remove the 
Budget Subcommittee.  Discussion was held on the Agriculture 
Foundation and Michael West said that COVID 19 slowed activities, but 
that work is being done and he would bring information to the Board in a 
future meeting. 

11.4 Approve setting December 14, 2021, 4:00 pm, as the Date and Time for the 
Colusa County Board of Education Annual Organizational Meeting as Required 
by EC 35143 
Tina Maxwell explained that the Annual Organizational Meeting must be set at a 
regular meeting prior to the Annual Organizational meeting 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Jason McMullan) to approve setting December 14, 2021, 4:00 
pm, as the date and time for the Colusa County Board of Education Annual 
Organizational Meeting as required by EC 35143 

11.5 Williams Settlement Act Report to the County Board of Education 
Michael West distributed a written version of his annual WSA report to the 
Board and he highlighted elements including criteria for schools’ inclusion on the 
report, the District Visitations, the Uniform Complaint Procedure, the Facilities 
Inspection Tool, and the LCP and LCAP.  Michael applauded CCOE’s MOT group, 
specifically naming each member of the team.  Discussion was held on 
countywide credentials monitoring.  Michael reviewed a list of CCOE’s 
accomplishments, he spoke about the pressure on MOT and Food Services staff, 
and he emphasized the work of the IAL/ALFA.  Discussion was held on whether 
Michael would submit this report to the State, and he explained that he is not 
required to do so. 

11.6 2021‐26 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan 
Jessica Galloway Haney presented the 2021‐26 Educator Effectiveness Block 
Grant Plan, and Tina Maxwell added that the plan would be brought to the 
December Board meeting for approval. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
Annual Organizational Meeting and First Interim Report 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
(Note:  Not the second Wednesday due to the EC 35143 mandated window of 
dates and the First Interim Report submission deadline) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:38 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

504  Disabilities as defined by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 that are identified, evaluated and provided with 
appropriate accommodation, services and assistance 

ALFA  And Literacy for All Initiative 

BOP  Board Operating Procedure 

BP  Board Policy 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CNA  Certified Nursing Assistant 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

EC  Education (or Ed) Code 

ECE  Early Childhood Education 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

K12HSN  K‐12 High Speed Network 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCP  Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

MOT  Maintenance, Operations, and Transportation 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SRO  School Resource Officer 

WSA  Williams Settlement Agreement 

 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 1 of 3 

Budget Adoption and Revision 

The  Colusa  County  Board  of  Education  (County  Board)  recognizes  its  critical  responsibility  for 
adopting a sound budget each fiscal year which is aligned with and reflects the Colusa County Office 
of Education (County Office) vision, goals, priorities, local control and accountability plan (LCAP), and 
other comprehensive plans. The County Office budget shall guide decisions and actions throughout 
the year and shall serve as a tool for monitoring the fiscal health of the County Office. 

It is the responsibility of the County Superintendent of Schools or designee to develop a budget to 
be adopted within the time limits set by law. The budget shall show a complete plan and itemized 
statement of all proposed expenditures in each fund of the County Office, and the estimated cash 
balances and estimated revenues of the County Office for the current budget year and for the next 
two fiscal years. The budget shall include a comparison of expenditures, cash balances, and revenues 
estimated  for  the  budget  year  with  the  unaudited  actual  amounts  of  the  expenditures,  cash 
balances, and revenues for the prior fiscal year. 

The budget shall be developed in accordance with standards and criteria adopted by the State Board 
of Education. 

In  reviewing a proposed budget,  the County Board may consider past, current, and  future  fiscal 
obligations  of  the  County  Office,  stability  of  funding  sources,  the  LCAP,  enrollment  trends, 
anticipated  increases  and/or  decreases  in  the  cost  of  services  and  supplies,  use  of  one‐time 
resources, and any other factors necessary to ensure that the budget is a realistic plan for County 
Office revenues and expenditures. 

The County Office budget shall include a general fund reserve for economic uncertainty that meets 
or exceeds the requirements of 5 CCR 15474. 

Adoption of County School Service Fund Budget 
The County Board expects the County Superintendent or designee to present the proposed county 
school service fund budget to the County Board early enough in the fiscal year to allow the County 
Board sufficient time to meet the requirement to adopt the budget by July 1. The budget shall include 
the expenditures identified in the LCAP and any updates to the LCAP that will be effective for the 
budget year. 

The County Board shall hold a public hearing on the proposed budget at the same meeting as the 
public hearing on the County Office's LCAP and local control funding formula (LCFF) budget overview 
for parents/guardians. An agenda for this hearing shall be posted at least 72 hours before the hearing 
and shall indicate the location where the budget may be inspected. The proposed budget shall be 
available for public inspection at least three working days before this hearing. During the hearing, 
any taxpayer directly affected by the budget may speak to the proposed budget or any item in the 
budget. 

9.2



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 2 of 3 

At a public meeting held after the date of the public hearing but on or before July 1 of each year, the 
County Board shall adopt a county school service fund budget for the budget year. The County Board 
shall adopt the budget following  its adoption of the LCAP, or annual update to the LCAP, and the 
LCFF budget overview for parents/guardians. 

The County Board shall file the adopted budget with the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), 
the County Board of Supervisors, and the County Auditor. 

If  the  SPI  disapproves  the  county  school  service  fund  budget,  the  County  Board  and  County 
Superintendent shall  review and  respond  to  the SPI's  recommendations at a  regularly scheduled 
County Board meeting on or before October 8. That response shall include the proposed actions to 
be taken, if any, as a result of those recommendations. 

No later than 45 days after the Governor signs the annual Budget Act, it is the responsibility of the 
County Superintendent  to make available  for public  review any  revisions made  to  the budget  to 
reflect the funding made available by the Budget Act. 

Transfer of Funds 
The  County  Board  recognizes  that  the  County  Superintendent  or  designee  may  spend  funds 
appropriated in the budget within major object budget categories without County Board approval 
and may make transfers of appropriated  funds between major object budget categories to meet 
necessary expenses. Any transfer of funds between major object budget categories shall be included 
in timely financial reports to the County Board. 

Financial Reports 
The County Board  shall  review  interim budget  reports presented by  the County  Superintendent 
twice annually. The first interim report shall cover the financial and budgetary status of the County 
Office for the period ending October 31. The second  interim report shall cover the period ending 
January 31. Both reports shall be reviewed by the County Board no later than 45 days after the close 
of the period being reported. 

Budget Revision 
As defined in the California School Accounting Manual, a budget revision means a net increase or 
decrease to the budget. Any revision to the budget in excess of $25,000, whether a net increase or 
decrease in the amount of funds appropriated, shall be incorporated into the next interim financial 
report or other County Board report and presented to the County Board for discussion and approval 
at a regularly scheduled public meeting of the County Board. 

Any budget revision of $25,000 or  less may be  included  in timely  financial reports to the County 
Board but shall not be subject to County Board approval. 

A consultant's contract for $25,000 or more may constitute a budget revision requiring County Board 
approval if the contract causes a net increase or decrease to the total budget. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business  Page 3 of 3 

Unappropriated Fund Balance 
The budget may contain amounts known as the unappropriated fund balance. These funds shall be 
available for appropriation by a majority vote of the County Board. 

Increases of Salary or Retirement Benefits to Employees by County Superintendent 
The County Superintendent shall bring to the County Board at a regularly scheduled County Board 
meeting for discussion purposes only any proposed salary increase or bonus for any County Office 
employee that is $10,000 or more. The County Superintendent shall also bring to the County Board 
at  a  regularly  scheduled  meeting  for  discussion  and  approval  any  proposed  increase  to  the 
retirement benefits of any County Office employee. 

References: 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
15060 Standardized account code structure 
15440‐15451 Criteria and standards for school district budgets 
15494‐15497 Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements 

Education Code 
1040 Duties and responsibilities; county boards of education 
1042 County boards; authority 
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties 
1280 Revisions to annual budget 
1281 Hiring of consultants 
1302 Local elections 
1620‐1630 Budget requirements 
15467‐15479 Criteria and standards for county office of education budget 
33127‐33131 Standards and criteria for local budgets and expenditures 
41202 Determination of minimum level of education funding 
42103 Publication of proposed budget; hearing 
42120 Budget completion 
42122‐42129 Budget requirements 
42130‐42134 Financial reports and certifications 
42140‐42142 Public disclosure of fiscal obligations 
42238.01‐42238.07 Local control funding formula 
42238‐42251 Apportionments to districts 
42602 Use of unbudgeted funds 
42610 Appropriation of excess funds and limitation thereon 
52064.1 Local control funding formula budget overview for parents 
52060‐52077 Local control and accountability plan   

Government Code 
7900‐7914 Appropriations limit 
21710‐21716 California Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust Program     

 
Adopted:  November 10, 1994 
Reviewed:  January 13, 1999 
Revised:  September 6, 2006, March 14, 2012, December 14, 2021 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education BP 3100.00 
Series 3000—Business Page 1 of 1 

Budget Approval and Control Policy 

Budget approval and control of all funds and accounts of the Colusa County Office 
of Education, including federal and state programs, debt service and any other 
funds and accounts under the control or responsibility of the Colusa County 
Office of Education shall rest with the Colusa County Board of Education. 

• The Colusa County Board of Education approves the proposed and revised
budgets though formal adoption.

• The County Office Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
monitors actual transactions so as not to exceed approved budgets.

• Assistant Superintendents may move budgeted amounts between and
within major object classifications 1000 through 6000, (1000 Certificated
Salaries, 2000 Classified Salaries, 3000 Employee Benefits, 4000 Books and
Supplies, 5000 Contracted Services and Other Expenditures, 6000 Capitol
Outlay) within a given program, with the approval of the County
Superintendent of Schools or designee.

• The Colusa County Board of Education approves budget changes affecting
revenues, fund balance components, or inter program reclassifications
through the formal approval process.

Adopted: November 10, 1994 
Reviewed: January 13, 1999 
Revised: September 6, 2006 
Revised: March 14, 2012 

9.2 

tmaxwell
Cross-Out



Colusa County Office of Education 
345 5th Street, Ste A 
Colusa, CA 95932 

Date: November 17, 2021 
Please direct correspondence to: 

30 West Main St., Ste. A 
Woodland, CA 95695 

Telephone: (530)666-1213 
Fax: (530) 666-2670 
Email: ktadlock@placertitle.com  
Escrow Number: P-526867 
Property: 

APN: 005-260-002-000, Williams, CA 95987 

C E El V E 

NOV 1 8 2021 

M-5PC3 
PLACER TITLE COMPANY 

A MOTHER LODE COMPANY 

1D) 1  
rcit 
UL 

We have completed the above numbered escrow and enclose the follçwingtd  
OF- EDUCATION 

• Seller's Closing Statement - Please retain for tax purposes. 
• Check for $293,359.90 representing sellers proceeds. 

Any recorded documents to which you may be entitled, will follow under separate cover. 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to serve you. We invite you to call upon us whenever 
we can be of assistance. 

Sincerely, 

Wendy Blatnick 
for Kristen Tadlock 
Escrow Officer 

P.S. -  On Page 2 of this letter we have included certain tax information you may find helpful. 

niti SA CCUN TY 

Closing Letter - Seller 



RE: 1099 TAX FORM 

If applicable, a fully completed 1099S Reporting Form, to be retained for your tax 
records. This is important tax information and is being furnished to the Internal Revenue 
Service. If you are required to file a return, a negligence penalty or other sanction may 
be imposed on you if this income is taxable and IRS determines that it has not been 
reported. 

Closing Letter - Seller 



Placer Title Company 
30 West Main St., Ste. A 

Woodland, CA 95695 
(530)666-1213 

SELLER(S) FINAL CLOSING STATEMENT 

File Number: P-526867 

Sales Price: $321,000.00 

Close Date: 11/15/2021 

Disbursement Date: 

Date Prepared: 11/17/2021 8:38:45 AM 

Type: 
Property: 

Sale 
APN: 005-260-002-000 
WILLIAMS, CA 95987 (COLUSA) 
(005-260-002-000) 

Certified True and Correct Copy 

 

Placer Title Company 

 

Seller(s): COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
345 5th Street, Ste A 
Colusa, CA 95932 

Description P.O.C. Debit Credit , 
Deposits, Credits, Debits 

Contract sales price $321,000.00 

Deposit Funds received outside of escrow $10,000.00 

Commissions , 
5.00 % Commission to Sutter Equities in the amount of $16,050.00 

' 

Commission to Sutter Equities in the amount of , 
Commission paid at Settlement $16,050.00 

Title Charges 

Title - Owner's Title Insurance $321,000.00 Premium $1,138.00 to Placer Title Company 
' 

$1,138.00
. 

 

Government Recording and Transfer Charges . 
County tax/stamps: Deed $353.10 $353.10 

Additional Settlement Charges 

Hazard Disclosure Report to Property ID $99.00 

Totals $27,640.10 $321,000.00 

Balance Due TO Seller: $293,359.90 

Proceeds paid as: 
$293,359.90 to Colusa County Office of Education 

File Number: P-526867 1 of 1 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 1 of 5

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education   Charles Wayman         

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 
cwayman@ccoe.net   
(530) 473-1350 x 10806

Total amount of funds received by the LEA: Date of Public Meeting prior to adoption: Date of adoption at public meeting: 
$213,791 11-10-21 12-14-21

EC 41480 
(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this subdivision from 
the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall 
coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to support 
teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision. 

(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to provide
professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus
on any of the following areas:

(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not
limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on
retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not
limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills,
improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a
meaningful classroom teaching experience.

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Colusa County Office of Education will have 
certificated staff participate in an 
induction/mentor program. Each participant will 
be assigned a mentor to provide support, 
coaching, and guidance. The supporting and 
coaching will focus on professional standards, 
social-emotional understanding of self and 
students, classroom management, parent 

$22,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 102,000.00 

12.1

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=41480.&lawCode=EDC


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 2 of 5

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

engagement, and day-to-day demands of the 
job. 
Subtotal 22,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 102,000.00 
 
 

(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, 
including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer 
science. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Trainings will be conducted for certificated staff 
on the implementation and monitoring of 
Sonday Reading Intervention, Unique Learning 
Solutions,  math intervention, and Sandi. The 
programs provide assessment data and align 
instruction to standards for students. 

 $6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 21,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 21,000.00 
 
 

(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning. 
 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health 
services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

A training series will be established and 
provided to all staff. It will be a four to five part 
series focusing on trauma and social-emotional 

 $20,000 $18,000 $18,000 $15,291 71,291.00 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 3 of 5

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

learning. Staff will be provided extra 
duty/stipends to attend the trainings. 
Subtotal 0.00 20,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 15,291.00 71,291.00 
 
 

(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around implicit bias, 
providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite’s culture to one that values 
diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, and intimidation based on 
actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, 
race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Training on Suite 360 for certificated staff. Suite 
360 provides restorative justice curriculum to 
students. 

 $2,500 $2,500  $2,500 7,500.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 7,500.00 
 
 

(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early 
identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Provide trainings on proper assessments and 
identification using the PSW model of 
identification. The whole assessment team will 
receive training on the different components of 
PSW. 

 $2,000  $2,000  4,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 
 
 

(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English learners, which may 
include integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and strengthening capacity to 
increase bilingual and biliterate proficiency. 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 4 of 5

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional learning network 
to support the requirements of subdivision (c). 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7 into pupil 
instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 

(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood 
development. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Nonviolent Crisis Prevention Training (CPI) 
training will be conducted for early childhood 
staff to assist with behavioral issues and de-
escalation strategies. 

 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 8,000.00 

Subtotal 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 8,000.00 
 
 



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Colusa County Office of Education Page 5 of 5

Summary of Expenditures 
 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal Section (1) 22,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 102,000.00 

Subtotal Section (2) 0.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 21,000.00 

Subtotal Section (3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (4) 0.00 20,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 15,291.00 71,291.00 

Subtotal Section (5) 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 7,500.00 

Subtotal Section (6) 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 

Subtotal Section (7) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (10) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 8,000.00 
Totals by year 22,000.00 52,500.00 47,500.00 47,000.00 44,791.00 213,791.00 

 
Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 
213,791.00 

 
Note: 
Per EC 41480 (d)(2): On or before September 30, 2026, the LEA must report detailed expenditure information to the California Department of 
Education, including, but not limited to: 

• specific purchases made; 
• the number of the following educators who received professional development: 

o Teachers; 
o Administrators; 
o Paraprofessional educators; 
o Classified staff.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
FIRST INTERIM REPORT 
As of October 31, 2021 

 
Presented for Approval December 14, 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

General Fund Assumptions .................................................................................................... 1 

COE Certification (Form CI) ................................................................................................... 6 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ................................................................................... 10 

General Fund 01 .................................................................................................................... 12 

Multi Year Projection Report ................................................................................................ 41 

Adult Education Fund11 ....................................................................................................... 51 

Child Development Fund-Form 12 ...................................................................................... 61 

Forest Reserve Fund-Form 16 ............................................................................................... 71 

Sp. Reserve Fund 17 .............................................................................................................. 77 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund-Form 73 ......................................................... 83 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................. 91 

       Summary of Interfund Activities-Form SIAA ................................................................ 92 

       Form ESMOE .................................................................................................................... 94 

       Form CASH ...................................................................................................................... 97  

Criteria and Standards Report ............................................................................................ 99 

Budget Glossary…………………………………………………………………………………..124 

 



General Fund Financial Assumptions 

First Interim Report 

2021-22 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of the First 

Interim Report for the year 2021-22. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the governor 

signs the annual budget we will make available for public review any revisions 

made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the budget act.  We 

also report to the board at First Interim (December), and Second Interim (March) 

report periods. 

 

This Interim Report is presented by major object account classification, reflecting 

the original adopted budget in Column “A” of SACS Form.  Column “B” is the 

current Board approved operating budget.  Column “C” represents the actual 

revenue and expenditures as of October 31, 2021.  Column “D” is the projected 

year totals (First Interim), and Column “E” is the difference between the current 

adopted budget and the projected year totals.  After the interim report is 

approved by the board, the projected year totals become the adopted budget 

for the next reporting period. 

 
Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living increase based on the 

School Services Dartboard and flat attendance funding for the current and future 

two years.  Salary increases for step and column are included in these projections. 

 

Looking ahead to 2022-23 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  The 

County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce organizational costs to 

Page 1 of 154



better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the belief that the 

students we help educate today are our future tomorrow. 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well as 

transfers from other funds within the County Office. 

 

Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any known 

information on current population.  Current projections are for flat enrollment for 

the current and future years. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period with the 

most current attendance data and the latest projections from CDE.  

The LCFF 

funds consist 

of Local 

Property 

Taxes, 

Education 

Protection 

Act (Prop 30) 

Funds, and 

State Aid.  

LCFF funding 

equates to 

17% of the 

general fund 

revenue.  

 

 

 

Federal Revenue comprises 14% of the general fund revenue.  Federal revenues 

are projected to increase by $87,157.  The majority of this increase is from the 

Homeless and ESSA grants, as well as increased funds to Special Education. 

 

State Revenue is 33% of the general fund revenue. State revenues are projected 

to increase by $750,102.  This majority of this increase is an increase to Special 

Education funding. 

 

Page 2 of 154



Local Revenue makes up 35% of the general fund revenue.  Budget for Local 

Revenue decreased $14,735 from the original 2021-22 budget.  This decrease is 

due to the elimination of the K12 Strong Force grant, and reducing the budget for 

the Wildland Fire Academy. 

 

General Fund 

Expenditures 
 
 
The 2021-22 expenditures in 

the general fund are 

projected to increase 

above the 2021-22 original 

budget.  Much of the 

increase is attributed to 

Special Education 

additional staff and other 

additional grant funding 

expenditures. 

 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

Certificated salaries are 33% of all general fund expenditures.  This amount has 

increased by $257,941 due to additional positions added to Special Education. 

 
Classified salaries make up 28% of all expenditures. Classified salaries have 

increased $122,251 since 2021-22 original budget. The increase is due to several 

new positions for Special Education and one position in Administrative Services. 

 

Employer paid benefit costs are 28% of all expenditures. The benefit costs have 

increased $213,591compared to the 2021-22 original budget as a result of the  

corresponding salary increases referenced above. Continuing increases in STRS  

and PERS employer paid rates, and statutory benefit rate increases are additional 

drivers of these rising costs. 

 
Books and Supplies total 5% of all expenditures. The overall increase in program 

budgets for supplies is $41,960 more compared to the 2021-22 original budget. 

This increase is primarily due to the IAL grant, American Rescue Plan for Homeless 

Youth grant and Special Education Medi-Cal grants. 

Page 3 of 154



 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 9% of all expenditures. Budgets for 

services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by $398,604 

compared to the original 2021-22 budget.  This increase is due to increases in the 

IAL grant, Homeless grant, Special Education grants and County Safe Schools 

grant. 

 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is 0.2% of all expenditures. The original 2021-22 budget 

has decreased $38,116 since budget as plans for new equipment expenditures 

have changed.    

 

Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by over 4%.   

The negative change of $26,638 further reduced expenditures. 

 

The Indirect Cost Rate  
 
ICR for the budget year is 10.93%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program guidelines 

prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have been arranged with 

the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 2021-22 are as follows: 

  

• Special Education / First 5 – Not to exceed 7.00% 

• Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

• Ed. SVS – Not to exceed 10.93% 

• Food Services – Not to exceed 5.48% 

• IAL Services – Not to exceed 8.07% 
 

 

 

Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing as this interim 

budget update is presented, and the County Office will continue to work 

diligently to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is budgeting to spend $56,152 more than it will receive in 

revenue in the current fiscal year 2021-22.  This amount is referred to as deficit 

spending.  The Multiple Year Projection (MYP) projects deficit spending during 

2022-23 and 2023-24.  CCOE has sufficient reserves if these projections materialize. 

Page 4 of 154



 

 

The most significant fiscal concern the County Office has is the cap on LCFF 

growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, and PERS and STRS 

costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 3% for PERS and 2% for 

STRS per year.  This increase outpaces our office’s LCFF growth since the County 

Office will not be receiving the same increases to LCFF revenue in the near future.  

Educational agencies across the state are struggling with managing this 

imbalance.   

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational opportunities 

possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the Colusa County Office of 

Education is committed to finding ways to control costs without impairing services, 

and further enrich the lives of our students. 

 

Page 5 of 154



 

 

 

COE Certification Form CI  
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  12/3/2021   3:43 PM

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code sections 33129 and 42130.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the County Board of Education.

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board 
of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127.

Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 Signed:
County Superintendent of Schools

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will
not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Aaron Heinz Telephone: 530-458-0350

Title: Deputy Superintendent E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met
Not
Met

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated
programs has not changed for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years by more than two percent since budget adoption.

X

Page 7 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  12/3/2021   3:43 PM

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met
Not
Met

2 Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) Revenue

Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since budget
adoption.

X

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent
since budget adoption.

X

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more
than five percent since budget adoption.

X

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. X

5 Ongoing and Major
Maintenance Account

If applicable, changes occurring since budget adoption meet the
required contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account
(i.e., restricted maintenance account).

X

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will be positive at the
end of the current and two subsequent fiscal years. X

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at
the end of the current fiscal year. X

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since budget
adoption that may impact the budget?

X

S2 Using One-time Revenues
to Fund Ongoing
Expenditures

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded
with one-time revenues that have changed since budget adoption by
more than five percent?

X

S3 Temporary Interfund
Borrowings

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?
X

S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest
reserves)?

X

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating
deficits, changed since budget adoption by more than $20,000 and
more than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

X

Page 8 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  12/3/2021   3:43 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or

debt agreements? X

• If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2020-21) annual
payment?

X

• If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or
are they one-time sources?

X

S7a Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in OPEB
liabilities? X

S7b Other Self-insurance
Benefits

Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g.,
workers' compensation)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in self-
insurance liabilities? n/a

S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of first interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations still
unsettled for:
• Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
• Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
• Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to
have a negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the

current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school
service fund?

X

A2 Independent Position
Control

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
X

A3 County Operations Grant
ADA

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and
current fiscal year? X

A4 New Charter Schools
Impacting County Office
ADA

Are any new charter schools operating in county office boundaries
that are impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior or
current fiscal years?

X

A5 Salary Increases Exceed
COLA

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any
of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would
result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected
state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid)
health benefits for current or retired employees? X

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
If yes, provide copies to the CDE. X

A8 Change of CBO or
Superintendent

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

Page 9 of 154



 

 

 

ANNUAL ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form AI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: adai (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:47 PM

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Original
Budget

(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT

ADA
Projected Year

Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)

(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

(Col. E / B)
(F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education
      Grant ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 0.00 0%
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 0.00 0%
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 0.00 0%
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 0.00 0%
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 16.10 16.10 16.10 16.10 0.00 0%
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 21.10 21.10 21.10 21.10 0.00 0%
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51 0.00 0%
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.00 0%
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 11 of 154



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

4,024,914 4,428,391 403,477 9700

Revenue

2,632,076 2,632,076 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,118,585 1,127,562 8,977 8100 Federal Revenue

955,667 1,033,847 78,180 8200 Federal Revenue

2,845,565 3,213,153 367,588 8300 Other State Revenue

1,397,495 1,780,009 382,514 8500 Other State Revenue

760,314 658,040 102,274-8600 Other Local Revenue

4,586,795 4,674,334 87,539 8700 Other Local Revenue

6,000 6,000 8900 Other Sources

822,524 15,125,021 14,302,497 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,497,210 2,590,256 93,046 1100 Teacher Salaries

1,390,162 1,594,047 203,885 1200 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

716,371 696,113 20,258-1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

110,798 92,066 18,732-1900 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 257,941 4,972,482 4,714,541 

1,467,251 1,560,204 92,953 2100 Para Educator Salaries

727,104 746,441 19,337 2200 Classified Support

685,509 699,288 13,779 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

965,064 1,033,891 68,827 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

355,770 283,125 72,645-2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 122,251 4,322,949 4,200,698 

1,142,866 1,195,001 52,135 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

991,115 1,067,053 75,938 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

388,093 417,187 29,094 3300 Social Security/Medicare

1,053,918 1,170,185 116,267 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 1 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 13 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

115,734 59,025 56,709-3500 State Unemployment Insurance

265,710 256,676 9,034-3600 Workers Compensation

10,000 15,900 5,900 3700 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 213,591 4,181,027 3,967,436 

490,099 528,527 38,428 4300 Materials and Supplies

220,538 224,070 3,532 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

74,679 74,679 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 41,960 827,276 785,316 

139,440 135,765 3,675-5200 Travel/Conference

38,172 53,574 15,402 5300 Dues/Memberships

115,000 130,820 15,820 5400 Property/Liab.Insurance

116,586 141,189 24,603 5500 Utilities

116,181 124,507 8,326 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

621,093- 621,093-5700 Direct Costs Transfers

889,583 1,261,440 371,857 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

185,272 151,543 33,729-5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 398,604 1,377,745 979,141 

30,000 30,000-6100 Land Improvements

38,302 30,186 8,116-6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 38,116-30,186 68,302 

9,700 9,700 7200 Other Transfers Out

509,854- 546,192- 36,338-7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 26,638-536,492-509,854-

969,593 15,175,173 14,205,580 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

4,121,831 4,378,239 256,408 9700

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 2 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 14 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Total for Fund 01

Starting Balance 4,024,914 4,428,391 403,477 

Revenue 14,302,497 15,125,021 822,524 

Expense 14,205,580 15,175,173 969,593 

Ending Balance Acct Type 4,121,831 4,378,239 256,408 

Calc Ending Balance 4,121,831 4,378,239 256,408 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 3 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 15 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,632,076.00 2,632,076.00 1,796,554.92 2,632,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 111,216.43 2,161,409.00 87,157.00 4.2%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,243,060.00 4,243,060.00 1,728,458.00 4,993,162.00 750,102.00 17.7%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 5,347,109.00 5,347,109.00 2,142,431.99 5,332,374.00 (14,735.00) -0.3%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 14,296,497.00 14,296,497.00 5,778,661.34 15,119,021.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,714,541.00 4,714,541.00 1,363,584.14 4,972,482.00 (257,941.00) -5.5%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,200,698.00 4,200,698.00 1,224,459.61 4,322,949.00 (122,251.00) -2.9%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,967,436.00 3,967,436.00 973,662.06 4,181,027.00 (213,591.00) -5.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 785,316.00 785,316.00 131,948.88 827,276.00 (41,960.00) -5.3%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 979,141.00 979,141.00 664,127.73 1,377,745.00 (398,604.00) -40.7%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 68,302.00 68,302.00 13,306.05 30,186.00 38,116.00 55.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (509,854.00) (509,854.00) 0.00 (546,192.00) 36,338.00 -7.1%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 14,205,580.00 14,205,580.00 4,380,788.47 15,175,173.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 90,917.00 90,917.00 1,397,872.87 (56,152.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

Page 16 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 96,917.00 96,917.00 1,397,872.87 (50,152.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 4,024,914.00 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00 403,477.00 10.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,024,914.00 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,024,914.00 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,121,831.00 4,121,831.00 4,378,239.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 10,500.00 10,500.00 152,794.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,400,552.00 3,400,552.00 3,466,187.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,874,408.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 710,279.00 758,758.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 17 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,659,902.00 1,659,902.00 1,647,635.92 1,420,691.00 (239,211.00) -14.4%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 481,199.00 481,199.00 148,919.00 720,410.00 239,211.00 49.7%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 1,796,554.92 2,637,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.00 (5,662.00) 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,632,076.00 2,632,076.00 1,796,554.92 2,632,076.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 898,212.00 898,212.00 39,676.29 909,545.00 11,333.00 1.3%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 220,373.00 220,373.00 1,521.03 218,017.00 (2,356.00) -1.1%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 128,483.00 128,483.00 59,514.32 128,483.00 0.00 0.0%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 143.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 18 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290 74,225.00 74,225.00 10,133.79 138,572.00 64,347.00 86.7%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 752,349.00 752,349.00 228.00 766,182.00 13,833.00 1.8%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 111,216.43 2,161,409.00 87,157.00 4.2%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,766,168.00 2,766,168.00 910,468.08 3,133,756.00 367,588.00 13.3%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 47,000.00 47,000.00 3,904.37 47,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 6,400.00 6,400.00 871.48 6,400.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 85,000.00 85,000.00 6,843.54 85,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,249,295.00 1,249,295.00 806,370.53 1,631,809.00 382,514.00 30.6%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,243,060.00 4,243,060.00 1,728,458.00 4,993,162.00 750,102.00 17.7%

Page 19 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 13,400.35 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 3,422.30 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 61,231.00 61,231.00 302.00 102,869.00 41,638.00 68.0%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 595,993.00 595,993.00 26,127.77 452,081.00 (143,912.00) -24.1%

  Tuition 8710 4,411,676.00 4,411,676.00 2,086,803.00 4,499,215.00 87,539.00 2.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 175,119.00 12,376.57 175,119.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 5,347,109.00 5,347,109.00 2,142,431.99 5,332,374.00 (14,735.00) -0.3%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 14,296,497.00 14,296,497.00 5,778,661.34 15,119,021.00 822,524.00 5.8%

Page 20 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,497,210.00 2,497,210.00 686,276.69 2,590,256.00 (93,046.00) -3.7%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,390,162.00 1,390,162.00 408,332.22 1,594,047.00 (203,885.00) -14.7%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 716,371.00 716,371.00 246,207.64 696,113.00 20,258.00 2.8%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 110,798.00 110,798.00 22,767.59 92,066.00 18,732.00 16.9%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,714,541.00 4,714,541.00 1,363,584.14 4,972,482.00 (257,941.00) -5.5%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,467,251.00 1,467,251.00 362,454.69 1,560,204.00 (92,953.00) -6.3%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 727,104.00 727,104.00 221,859.76 746,441.00 (19,337.00) -2.7%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 685,509.00 685,509.00 249,572.20 699,288.00 (13,779.00) -2.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 965,064.00 965,064.00 324,412.93 1,033,891.00 (68,827.00) -7.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 355,770.00 355,770.00 66,160.03 283,125.00 72,645.00 20.4%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 4,200,698.00 4,200,698.00 1,224,459.61 4,322,949.00 (122,251.00) -2.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,142,866.00 1,142,866.00 203,891.55 1,195,001.00 (52,135.00) -4.6%

  PERS 3201-3202 991,115.00 991,115.00 279,939.27 1,067,053.00 (75,938.00) -7.7%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 388,093.00 388,093.00 108,606.23 417,187.00 (29,094.00) -7.5%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 1,053,918.00 1,053,918.00 295,018.03 1,170,185.00 (116,267.00) -11.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 115,734.00 115,734.00 11,946.59 59,025.00 56,709.00 49.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 265,710.00 265,710.00 71,910.41 256,676.00 9,034.00 3.4%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,349.98 15,900.00 (5,900.00) -59.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,967,436.00 3,967,436.00 973,662.06 4,181,027.00 (213,591.00) -5.4%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 490,099.00 490,099.00 84,366.31 528,527.00 (38,428.00) -7.8%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 220,538.00 220,538.00 14,331.69 224,070.00 (3,532.00) -1.6%

  Food 4700 74,679.00 74,679.00 33,250.88 74,679.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 785,316.00 785,316.00 131,948.88 827,276.00 (41,960.00) -5.3%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 139,440.00 139,440.00 29,171.56 135,765.00 3,675.00 2.6%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 38,172.00 38,172.00 41,322.22 53,574.00 (15,402.00) -40.3%

  Insurance 5400-5450 115,000.00 115,000.00 122,910.17 130,820.00 (15,820.00) -13.8%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 116,586.00 116,586.00 24,143.97 141,189.00 (24,603.00) -21.1%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 116,181.00 116,181.00 46,303.83 124,507.00 (8,326.00) -7.2%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (621,093.00) (621,093.00) (71,695.56) (621,093.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 889,583.00 889,583.00 450,592.83 1,261,440.00 (371,857.00) -41.8%

  Communications 5900 185,272.00 185,272.00 21,378.71 151,543.00 33,729.00 18.2%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 979,141.00 979,141.00 664,127.73 1,377,745.00 (398,604.00) -40.7%

Page 21 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 38,302.00 38,302.00 13,306.05 30,186.00 8,116.00 21.2%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 68,302.00 68,302.00 13,306.05 30,186.00 38,116.00 55.8%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (509,854.00) (509,854.00) 0.00 (546,192.00) 36,338.00 -7.1%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (509,854.00) (509,854.00) 0.00 (546,192.00) 36,338.00 -7.1%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 14,205,580.00 14,205,580.00 4,380,788.47 15,175,173.00 (969,593.00) -6.8%

Page 22 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 23 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,226,334.00 2,226,334.00 1,796,554.92 2,226,334.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 18,800.00 18,800.00 394.55 18,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 632,060.00 632,060.00 25,663.34 655,638.00 23,578.00 3.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,877,194.00 2,877,194.00 1,822,612.81 2,900,772.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 519,395.00 519,395.00 196,636.74 524,052.00 (4,657.00) -0.9%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,535,844.00 1,535,844.00 547,425.96 1,609,610.00 (73,766.00) -4.8%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 937,873.00 937,873.00 323,224.39 1,053,719.00 (115,846.00) -12.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 215,823.00 215,823.00 41,911.23 201,037.00 14,786.00 6.9%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 589,077.00 589,077.00 479,479.87 642,514.00 (53,437.00) -9.1%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 32,902.00 32,902.00 0.00 30,186.00 2,716.00 8.3%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,216,177.00) (1,216,177.00) 0.00 (1,310,734.00) 94,557.00 -7.8%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,614,737.00 2,614,737.00 1,588,678.19 2,750,384.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 262,457.00 262,457.00 233,934.62 150,388.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (165,540.00) (165,540.00) 0.00 (165,540.00)

Page 24 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 96,917.00 96,917.00 233,934.62 (15,152.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 4,014,414.00 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00 226,183.00 5.6%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,014,414.00 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,014,414.00 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,111,331.00 4,111,331.00 4,225,445.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,400,552.00 3,400,552.00 3,466,187.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,874,408.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 710,279.00 758,758.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 25 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,659,902.00 1,659,902.00 1,647,635.92 1,420,691.00 (239,211.00) -14.4%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 481,199.00 481,199.00 148,919.00 720,410.00 239,211.00 49.7%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 1,796,554.92 2,637,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.00 (5,662.00) 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (405,742.00) (405,742.00) 0.00 (405,742.00) 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,226,334.00 2,226,334.00 1,796,554.92 2,226,334.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290

Page 26 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311

      Prior Years 6500 8319

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 4,000.00 4,000.00 394.55 4,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 18,800.00 18,800.00 394.55 18,800.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 27 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 3,422.30 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 250.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 (250.00) -100.0%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 371,324.00 371,324.00 9,864.47 377,725.00 6,401.00 1.7%

  Tuition 8710 10,367.00 10,367.00 0.00 27,794.00 17,427.00 168.1%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 175,119.00 12,376.57 175,119.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

        From County Offices 6500 8792

        From JPAs 6500 8793

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

        From County Offices 6360 8792

        From JPAs 6360 8793

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 632,060.00 632,060.00 25,663.34 655,638.00 23,578.00 3.7%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,877,194.00 2,877,194.00 1,822,612.81 2,900,772.00 23,578.00 0.8%

Page 28 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 62,636.00 62,636.00 17,437.90 62,636.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 22,966.29 22,967.00 (22,967.00) New

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 456,759.00 456,759.00 156,232.55 438,449.00 18,310.00 4.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 519,395.00 519,395.00 196,636.74 524,052.00 (4,657.00) -0.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 265,393.00 265,393.00 105,025.25 296,413.00 (31,020.00) -11.7%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 517,042.00 517,042.00 190,083.34 520,831.00 (3,789.00) -0.7%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 753,409.00 753,409.00 252,817.37 792,366.00 (38,957.00) -5.2%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 (500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,535,844.00 1,535,844.00 547,425.96 1,609,610.00 (73,766.00) -4.8%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 86,142.00 86,142.00 23,226.89 67,874.00 18,268.00 21.2%

  PERS 3201-3202 351,354.00 351,354.00 129,062.74 408,355.00 (57,001.00) -16.2%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 120,094.00 120,094.00 39,728.26 134,710.00 (14,616.00) -12.2%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 286,985.00 286,985.00 104,650.53 347,821.00 (60,836.00) -21.2%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 22,186.00 22,186.00 3,259.84 19,523.00 2,663.00 12.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 61,112.00 61,112.00 20,946.15 59,536.00 1,576.00 2.6%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,349.98 15,900.00 (5,900.00) -59.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 937,873.00 937,873.00 323,224.39 1,053,719.00 (115,846.00) -12.4%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 181,785.00 181,785.00 39,342.87 163,467.00 18,318.00 10.1%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 34,038.00 34,038.00 2,568.36 37,570.00 (3,532.00) -10.4%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 215,823.00 215,823.00 41,911.23 201,037.00 14,786.00 6.9%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 81,133.00 81,133.00 8,297.48 69,755.00 11,378.00 14.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 34,172.00 34,172.00 38,180.10 49,574.00 (15,402.00) -45.1%

  Insurance 5400-5450 115,000.00 115,000.00 122,910.17 130,820.00 (15,820.00) -13.8%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 105,000.00 105,000.00 22,126.16 129,603.00 (24,603.00) -23.4%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 92,446.00 92,446.00 38,555.90 100,321.00 (7,875.00) -8.5%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (68,737.00) (68,737.00) 24,845.00 (112,240.00) 43,503.00 -63.3%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (286,782.00) (286,782.00) (71,695.56) (286,782.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 341,111.00 341,111.00 279,309.86 419,458.00 (78,347.00) -23.0%

  Communications 5900 175,734.00 175,734.00 16,950.76 142,005.00 33,729.00 19.2%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 589,077.00 589,077.00 479,479.87 642,514.00 (53,437.00) -9.1%

Page 29 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 32,902.00 32,902.00 0.00 30,186.00 2,716.00 8.3%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 32,902.00 32,902.00 0.00 30,186.00 2,716.00 8.3%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

      To County Offices 6500 7222

      To JPAs 6500 7223

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

      To County Offices 6360 7222

      To JPAs 6360 7223

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (706,323.00) (706,323.00) 0.00 (764,542.00) 58,219.00 -8.2%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (509,854.00) (509,854.00) 0.00 (546,192.00) 36,338.00 -7.1%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,216,177.00) (1,216,177.00) 0.00 (1,310,734.00) 94,557.00 -7.8%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,614,737.00 2,614,737.00 1,588,678.19 2,750,384.00 (135,647.00) -5.2%

Page 30 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) (165,540.00) (165,540.00) 0.00 (165,540.00) 0.00 0.0%

Page 31 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 111,216.43 2,161,409.00 87,157.00 4.2%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,224,260.00 4,224,260.00 1,728,063.45 4,974,362.00 750,102.00 17.8%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,715,049.00 4,715,049.00 2,116,768.65 4,676,736.00 (38,313.00) -0.8%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 11,419,303.00 11,419,303.00 3,956,048.53 12,218,249.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,195,146.00 4,195,146.00 1,166,947.40 4,448,430.00 (253,284.00) -6.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,664,854.00 2,664,854.00 677,033.65 2,713,339.00 (48,485.00) -1.8%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,029,563.00 3,029,563.00 650,437.67 3,127,308.00 (97,745.00) -3.2%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 569,493.00 569,493.00 90,037.65 626,239.00 (56,746.00) -10.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 390,064.00 390,064.00 184,647.86 735,231.00 (345,167.00) -88.5%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 35,400.00 35,400.00 13,306.05 0.00 35,400.00 100.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 706,323.00 706,323.00 0.00 764,542.00 (58,219.00) -8.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 11,590,843.00 11,590,843.00 2,792,110.28 12,424,789.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 1,163,938.25 (206,540.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00

Page 32 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 1,163,938.25 (35,000.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 10,500.00 10,500.00 187,794.00 177,294.00 1688.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 10,500.00 10,500.00 187,794.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 10,500.00 10,500.00 187,794.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 10,500.00 10,500.00 152,794.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 10,500.00 10,500.00 152,794.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 33 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 898,212.00 898,212.00 39,676.29 909,545.00 11,333.00 1.3%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 220,373.00 220,373.00 1,521.03 218,017.00 (2,356.00) -1.1%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 128,483.00 128,483.00 59,514.32 128,483.00 0.00 0.0%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 143.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290 74,225.00 74,225.00 10,133.79 138,572.00 64,347.00 86.7%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 752,349.00 752,349.00 228.00 766,182.00 13,833.00 1.8%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 111,216.43 2,161,409.00 87,157.00 4.2%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,766,168.00 2,766,168.00 910,468.08 3,133,756.00 367,588.00 13.3%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 47,000.00 47,000.00 3,904.37 47,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 2,400.00 2,400.00 476.93 2,400.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 85,000.00 85,000.00 6,843.54 85,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,244,295.00 1,244,295.00 806,370.53 1,626,809.00 382,514.00 30.7%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,224,260.00 4,224,260.00 1,728,063.45 4,974,362.00 750,102.00 17.8%

Page 35 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 13,400.35 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 60,981.00 60,981.00 302.00 102,869.00 41,888.00 68.7%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 224,669.00 224,669.00 16,263.30 74,356.00 (150,313.00) -66.9%

  Tuition 8710 4,401,309.00 4,401,309.00 2,086,803.00 4,471,421.00 70,112.00 1.6%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,715,049.00 4,715,049.00 2,116,768.65 4,676,736.00 (38,313.00) -0.8%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 11,419,303.00 11,419,303.00 3,956,048.53 12,218,249.00 798,946.00 7.0%

Page 36 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,434,574.00 2,434,574.00 668,838.79 2,527,620.00 (93,046.00) -3.8%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,390,162.00 1,390,162.00 385,365.93 1,571,080.00 (180,918.00) -13.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 259,612.00 259,612.00 89,975.09 257,664.00 1,948.00 0.8%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 110,798.00 110,798.00 22,767.59 92,066.00 18,732.00 16.9%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,195,146.00 4,195,146.00 1,166,947.40 4,448,430.00 (253,284.00) -6.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,467,251.00 1,467,251.00 362,454.69 1,560,204.00 (92,953.00) -6.3%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 461,711.00 461,711.00 116,834.51 450,028.00 11,683.00 2.5%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 168,467.00 168,467.00 59,488.86 178,457.00 (9,990.00) -5.9%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 211,655.00 211,655.00 71,595.56 241,525.00 (29,870.00) -14.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 355,770.00 355,770.00 66,660.03 283,125.00 72,645.00 20.4%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,664,854.00 2,664,854.00 677,033.65 2,713,339.00 (48,485.00) -1.8%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,056,724.00 1,056,724.00 180,664.66 1,127,127.00 (70,403.00) -6.7%

  PERS 3201-3202 639,761.00 639,761.00 150,876.53 658,698.00 (18,937.00) -3.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 267,999.00 267,999.00 68,877.97 282,477.00 (14,478.00) -5.4%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 766,933.00 766,933.00 190,367.50 822,364.00 (55,431.00) -7.2%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 93,548.00 93,548.00 8,686.75 39,502.00 54,046.00 57.8%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 204,598.00 204,598.00 50,964.26 197,140.00 7,458.00 3.6%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,029,563.00 3,029,563.00 650,437.67 3,127,308.00 (97,745.00) -3.2%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 308,314.00 308,314.00 45,023.44 365,060.00 (56,746.00) -18.4%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 186,500.00 186,500.00 11,763.33 186,500.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 74,679.00 74,679.00 33,250.88 74,679.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 569,493.00 569,493.00 90,037.65 626,239.00 (56,746.00) -10.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 58,307.00 58,307.00 20,874.08 66,010.00 (7,703.00) -13.2%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,142.12 4,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 11,586.00 11,586.00 2,017.81 11,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 23,735.00 23,735.00 7,747.93 24,186.00 (451.00) -1.9% 

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 68,737.00 68,737.00 (24,845.00) 112,240.00 (43,503.00) -63.3%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (334,311.00) (334,311.00) 0.00 (334,311.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 548,472.00 548,472.00 171,282.97 841,982.00 (293,510.00) -53.5%

  Communications 5900 9,538.00 9,538.00 4,427.95 9,538.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 390,064.00 390,064.00 184,647.86 735,231.00 (345,167.00) -88.5%

Page 37 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 5,400.00 5,400.00 13,306.05 0.00 5,400.00 100.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 35,400.00 35,400.00 13,306.05 0.00 35,400.00 100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 (9,700.00) New

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 706,323.00 706,323.00 0.00 764,542.00 (58,219.00) -8.2%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 706,323.00 706,323.00 0.00 764,542.00 (58,219.00) -8.2%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 11,590,843.00 11,590,843.00 2,792,110.28 12,424,789.00 (833,946.00) -7.2%

Page 38 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 39 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
County School Service Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

2021-22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School Breakfast, Milk, Pr50,168.00
7425 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 91,095.00
7426 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant: Paraprofessional Staff11,531.00

Total, Restricted Balance 152,794.00

Page 40 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
County School Service Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2021  2:16 PM

2021-22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School Breakfast, Milk, Pr50,168.00
7425 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 91,095.00
7426 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant: Paraprofessional Staff11,531.00

Total, Restricted Balance 152,794.00

Page 41 of 154



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,226,334.00 2.48% 2,281,547.00 3.11% 2,352,503.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 655,638.00 0.00% 655,638.00 0.00% 655,638.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) 0.00% (171,540.00) 0.00% (171,540.00)

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 2,735,232.00 2.02% 2,790,445.00 2.54% 2,861,401.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 524,052.00 531,913.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 7,861.00 7,979.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 524,052.00 1.50% 531,913.00 1.50% 539,892.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 1,609,610.00 1,690,004.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 24,144.00 25,350.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments 56,250.00 18,750.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 1,609,610.00 4.99% 1,690,004.00 2.61% 1,734,104.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,053,719.00 9.14% 1,150,032.00 3.44% 1,189,623.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 201,037.00 0.00% 201,037.00 0.00% 201,037.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 642,514.00 2.05% 655,714.00 0.00% 655,714.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,186.00 0.00% 30,186.00 0.00% 30,186.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,310,734.00) 0.94% (1,323,120.00) 0.56% (1,330,543.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 2,750,384.00 6.74% 2,935,766.00 2.87% 3,020,013.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (15,152.00) (145,321.00) (158,612.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,240,597.00 4,225,445.00 4,080,124.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,225,445.00 4,080,124.00 3,921,512.00

  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00 500.00 500.00

      b. Restricted 9740

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Assigned 9780 3,466,187.00 3,329,044.00 3,155,846.00
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,225,445.00 4,080,124.00 3,921,512.00

Page 43 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
  years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Accounting for an additional position. Assumptions are on attached excel spread sheet. Accounting for an additional position. Assumptions are on attached excel spread sheet. 

Page 44 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 405,742.00 2.48% 415,804.00 3.11% 428,736.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,161,409.00 -33.94% 1,427,828.00 0.00% 1,427,828.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,974,362.00 0.00% 4,974,362.00 0.00% 4,974,362.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,676,736.00 7.66% 5,034,900.00 3.86% 5,229,447.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 171,540.00 0.00% 171,540.00 0.00% 171,540.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 12,389,789.00 -2.95% 12,024,434.00 1.73% 12,231,913.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,448,430.00 4,310,609.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 66,726.00 64,659.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (204,547.00) 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,448,430.00 -3.10% 4,310,609.00 1.50% 4,375,268.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 2,713,339.00 2,709,247.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 40,700.00 40,639.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (44,792.00) 9,000.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,713,339.00 -0.15% 2,709,247.00 1.83% 2,758,886.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,127,308.00 4.31% 3,262,197.00 2.41% 3,340,719.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 626,239.00 -37.27% 392,863.00 0.28% 393,949.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 735,231.00 -11.66% 649,502.00 0.00% 649,502.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 9,700.00 0.00% 9,700.00 0.00% 9,700.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 764,542.00 -2.99% 741,713.00 1.83% 755,286.00
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 12,424,789.00 -2.81% 12,075,831.00 1.72% 12,283,310.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (35,000.00) (51,397.00) (51,397.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 187,794.00 152,794.00 101,397.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 152,794.00 101,397.00 50,000.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Restricted 9740 152,794.00 101,397.00 50,000.00
      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

          2. Other Commitments 9760

      d. Assigned 9780

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 152,794.00 101,397.00 50,000.00

Page 45 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790

(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve
  projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Deleting positions due to ending of a grant. Deleting positions due to ending of a grant. 

Page 46 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,632,076.00 2.48% 2,697,351.00 3.11% 2,781,239.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,161,409.00 -33.94% 1,427,828.00 0.00% 1,427,828.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,993,162.00 0.00% 4,993,162.00 0.00% 4,993,162.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 5,332,374.00 6.72% 5,690,538.00 3.42% 5,885,085.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 15,125,021.00 -2.05% 14,814,879.00 1.88% 15,093,314.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,972,482.00 4,842,522.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 74,587.00 72,638.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (204,547.00) 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,972,482.00 -2.61% 4,842,522.00 1.50% 4,915,160.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,322,949.00 4,399,251.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 64,844.00 65,989.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments 11,458.00 27,750.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 4,322,949.00 1.77% 4,399,251.00 2.13% 4,492,990.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,181,027.00 5.53% 4,412,229.00 2.68% 4,530,342.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 827,276.00 -28.21% 593,900.00 0.18% 594,986.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,377,745.00 -5.26% 1,305,216.00 0.00% 1,305,216.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,186.00 0.00% 30,186.00 0.00% 30,186.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 9,700.00 0.00% 9,700.00 0.00% 9,700.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (546,192.00) 6.45% (581,407.00) -1.06% (575,257.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 15,175,173.00 -1.08% 15,011,597.00 1.94% 15,303,323.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (50,152.00) (196,718.00) (210,009.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,428,391.00 4,378,239.00 4,181,521.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,378,239.00 4,181,521.00 3,971,512.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00 500.00 500.00

      b. Restricted 9740 152,794.00 101,397.00 50,000.00

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Assigned 9780 3,466,187.00 3,329,044.00 3,155,846.00

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,378,239.00 4,181,521.00 3,971,512.00

Page 47 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:38 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted)

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances

         (Negative resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

  4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

  1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

      For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

      special education local plan area (SELPA):

      a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation

           the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No

      b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

          education pass-through funds:
          1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

          2. Special education pass-through funds

              (Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546,

               objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for
               subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00 0.00 0.00

  2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

       Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

       (Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 15,175,173.00 15,011,597.00 15,303,323.00

  3. Calculating the Reserves
      a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 15,175,173.00 15,011,597.00 15,303,323.00

      b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
          (Line F3a plus line F3b) 15,175,173.00 15,011,597.00 15,303,323.00

      d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 4% 4% 4%

      e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 607,006.92 600,463.88 612,132.92

      f. Reserve Standard - By Amount

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00

      g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 607,006.92 600,463.88 612,132.92

      h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

Page 48 of 154



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference See supporting spreadsheets 2023-24 Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 2,632,076$              -                          65,275                     2,697,351$              65,275                     2.48% -                          83,888                     2,781,239                83,888                 3.11%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,161,409$              -                          (733,581)                  1,427,828$              (733,581)                  -33.9% -                          -                          1,427,828                -                      0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,993,162$              -                          -                          4,993,162$              -                          0.0% -                          -                          4,993,162                -                      0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 5,332,374$              -                          358,164                   5,690,538$              358,164                   6.7% -                          194,547                   5,885,085                194,547               3.4%

       TOTAL REVENUES 15,119,021$            -$                        (310,142)$                14,808,879$            (310,142)                  -$                        278,435$                 15,087,314$            278,435               

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,972,482$              74,587                     (204,547)                  4,842,522$              (129,960)                  -2.6% 72,638 4,915,160                72,638                 1.5%
    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,322,949$              64,844                     11,458                     4,399,251$              76,302                     1.8% 65,989 27,750                     4,492,990                93,739                 2.1%
    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,181,027$              308,619                   (77,417)                   4,412,229$              231,202                   5.5% 111,113 7,000                       4,530,342                118,113               2.7%
            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 827,276$                 -                          (233,376)                  593,900$                 (233,376)                  -28.2% -                          1,086                       594,986                   1,086                   0.2%
    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 1,377,745$              -                          (72,529)                   1,305,216$              (72,529)                   -5.3% -                          -                          1,305,216                -                      0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,186$                   -                          -                          30,186$                   -                          0.0% -                          -                          30,186                     -                      0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      0.0%

7400-7499 9,700$                     -                          -                          9,700$                     -                          -                          -                          9,700                       -                      
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (546,192)$                11,046                     (46,260)                   (581,407)$                (35,215)                   6.4% 5,304                       846                          (575,257)                  6,150                   -1.1%

 
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,175,173$            459,096$                 (622,671)$                15,011,597$            (163,576)                  255,044$                 36,682$                   15,303,323$            291,726               

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (56,152)$                  (459,096)$                312,530                   (202,718)$                (255,044)$                241,753                   (216,009)$                -$                    
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 6,000$                     -                          -                          6,000$                     -                          0.0% -                          -                          6,000                       -                      0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 6,000$                     -$                        -$                        6,000$                     -                          -$                        -$                        6,000$                     -                      

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (50,152)$                   (459,096)$                312,530$                  (196,718)$               -$                       (255,044)$                241,753$                 (210,009)$               -$                   

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)  
    1. Beginning Balance 4,428,391$              4,378,239 4,181,521$              
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                        -$                        -$                        
       Ending Balance 4,378,239$                4,181,521$               3,971,512$              

Econ Uncertanties 15,175,173$            758,759                   15,011,597              750,580                   15,303,323                                                 765,166                   

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Combined

2021-22 First Interim

Page 49 of 154



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference 2023-24 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 405,742$                 -                           10,062                     415,804                   10,062                     2.48% SSC Dashboard COLA 2.48% -                           12,932                     428,736                   12,932               3.11% SSC Dashboard COLA 3.11%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,161,409$              -                           (733,581)                  1,427,828                (733,581)                  -33.9% removed IAL grant (ended) -                           -                           1,427,828                -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,974,362$              -                           4,974,362                -                           0.0% -                           -                           4,974,362                -                     0.0%

    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 4,676,736$              -                           358,164                   5,034,900                358,164                   7.7%  Billback SELPA to Districts -                           194,547                   5,229,447                194,547             3.9%  Billback SELPA to Districts 
-                           -                           -                           -                     

       TOTAL REVENUES 12,218,249$            -$                         (365,355)$                11,852,894              -$                         207,479$                 12,060,373              207,479             

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,448,430                66,726                     (204,547)                  4,310,609                (137,821)                  -3.1%  Step & Column; removed IAL 64,659                     4,375,269                64,659               1.5% Step & Column

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999                  2,713,339                       40,700                     (44,792)                  2,709,247                       (4,092) -0.2%  Step & Column; removed IAL; ELO 40,639                                             9,000                  2,758,886                 49,639 1.8% Step & Column; ELO

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,127,308                227,306                   (92,417)                    3,262,197                134,889                   4.3%
 STRS & PERS Increases;
step & column; removed IAL; ELO 76,522                     2,000                       3,340,719                78,522               2.4%

 PERS Increases;
step & column; ELO 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 626,239                   (233,376)                  392,863                   (233,376)                  -37.3% removed IAL 1,086                       393,949                   1,086                 0.3% ELO

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 735,231                   (85,729)                    649,502                   (85,729)                    -11.7%  removed IAL; ELO 649,502                   -                     0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%

7400-7499 9,700                       9,700                       -                           0.0% 9,700                       -                     0.0%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 764,542                   23,431                     (46,260)                    741,713                   (22,829)                    -3.0%  removed IAL; ELO 12,727                     846                          755,286                   13,573               1.8%  ELO 
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,424,789$            358,164$                 (707,121)$                12,075,831$            194,547$                 12,932$                   12,283,310$            207,479             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (206,540)$                (358,164)$                (222,937)$                (194,547)$                (222,938)$                
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 171,540                   171,540                   -                           0.0% 171,540                   -                     

-                           
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 171,540$                 -$                         -$                         171,540$                 -                           -$                         -$                         171,540$                 -                     

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (35,000)$                   (358,164)$                -$                          (51,397)$                  (194,547)$                -$                          (51,398)$                  

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 187,794$                 152,794$                 101,397$                 
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                         
       Ending Balance 152,794$                   101,397$                  49,999$                   

salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% Other State 0.00%
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 66,726                     40,700                     Step & Col. 1.50% 64,659                     40,639                     
Indirect 7.00% Indirect 7.00%

16.92% STRS 2.18% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
22.91% PERS 3.19% 26.10% PERS 1.00% 27.10%

in Restricted Ending Balance
STRS 93,971                     STRS -                           
PERS 86,425                     PERS 27,589                     

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Restricted

2021-22 First Interim

Page 50 of 154



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference 2023-24 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 2,226,334$              -                           55,213                     2,281,547                55,213                     0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 2.48% -                           70,956                     2,352,503                70,956               0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 3.11%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 18,800$                   -                           18,800                     -                           0.0% -                           18,800                     -                     0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 655,638$                 -                           655,638                   -                           0.0% -                           655,638                   -                     0.0%

-                           -                           -                           -                     
       TOTAL REVENUES 2,900,772$              -$                         55,213$                   2,955,985                -$                         70,956$                   3,026,941                70,956               

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 524,052                   7,861                       531,913                   7,861                       1.5% Step & Column 7,979 539,891                   7,979                 1.5%  Step & Column 
    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,609,610                24,144                     56,250                     1,690,004                80,394                     5.0% Step & Column; add Literacy mgr (75%) 25,350 18,750                     1,734,104                44,100               2.6% Step & Column; add Literacy mgr (25%)

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,053,719                81,313                     15,000                     1,150,032                96,313                     9.1%
 STRS & PERS Increases;
step & column 34,592 5,000                       1,189,623                39,592               3.4%

 PERS Increases;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 201,037                   -                           -                           201,037                   -                           0.0% -                           201,037                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 642,514                   -                           13,200                     655,714                   13,200                     2.1%  Literacy ipad licenses -                           655,714                   -                     0.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,186                     -                           30,186                     -                           0.0%    -                           30,186                     -                     0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%

7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (1,310,734)               (12,386)                    (1,323,120)               (12,386)                    0.9% Step & Column (7,424)                      (1,330,543)               (7,424)                0.6% Step & Column

 -                     
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,750,384$              100,932$                 84,450$                   2,935,766$              60,497$                   23,750$                   3,020,013$              

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
Difference 150,388$                 (100,932)$                20,219                     (60,497)$                  6,929                       
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 6,000$                     -                           6,000                       -                           0.0% -                           -                           6,000                       -                     0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540)                  -                           (171,540)                  -                           -                           (171,540)                  -                     -                                                                      

+ .
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (165,540)$                -$                         -$                         (165,540)$                -                           -$                         -$                         (165,540)$                -                     

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (15,152)$                   (100,932)$                -$                          (145,321)$                (60,497)$                  -$                          (158,611)$                

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 4,240,597$              4,225,445 4,080,124$              
    2. Adjustments/Restatements
       Ending Balance 4,225,445   4,080,124$               3,921,513$              

 salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% -                           -                           Other State 0.00% -                           -                           
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary increase 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increase 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 7,861                       24,144                     Step & Col. 1.50% 7,979                       25,350                     
Indirect 10.93% Indirect 10.93%

16.92% STRS 2.18% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
22.91% PERS 3.19% 26.10% PERS 1.00% 27.10%

PY PY
STRS 11,596                     STRS -                           
PERS 53,911                     PERS 17,341                     

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Unrestricted

2021-22 First Interim

Page 51 of 154



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 

separately for revenues for the adult education 

programs. 

 

The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 

 

 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 

 

Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 

education purposes only; money received for 

programs other than adult education shall not be 

expended for adult education (Education Code 

sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 

Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 

direct instructional costs and direct support costs 

and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education has committed 

to the continued education of adult learners with 

this funding. 

Page 52 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

25,932 102,137 76,205 9700

Revenue

5,662 5,662 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

4,940 4,940 8200 Federal Revenue

8,753 8,753 8500 Other State Revenue

252,958 252,958 8600 Other Local Revenue

0 272,313 272,313 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

118,484 118,484 1100 Teacher Salaries

25,095 25,095 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 0 143,579 143,579 

9,517 9,517 2100 Para Educator Salaries

19,033 19,033 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

Total for Object 2000 0 28,550 28,550 

21,170 21,170 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

4,378 4,378 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

11,123 11,123 3300 Social Security/Medicare

7,254 7,254 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

5,446 5,446 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

8,284 8,284 3600 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 0 57,655 57,655 

10,862 10,862 4300 Materials and Supplies

1,000 1,000 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 0 11,862 11,862 

4,692 4,692 5200 Travel/Conference

13,919 13,919 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 4 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 53 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

1,000 1,000 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 0 19,611 19,611 

11,056 11,056 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

0 272,313 272,313 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

25,932 102,137 76,205 9700

Total for Fund 11

Starting Balance 25,932 102,137 76,205 

Revenue 272,313 272,313 0 

Expense 272,313 272,313 0 

Ending Balance Acct Type 25,932 102,137 76,205 

Calc Ending Balance 25,932 102,137 76,205 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 5 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 54 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,940.00 4,940.00 0.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 252,958.00 252,958.00 56,463.11 252,958.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 272,313.00 272,313.00 56,463.11 272,313.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 143,579.00 143,579.00 18,714.11 143,579.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 28,550.00 28,550.00 12,977.83 28,550.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 57,655.00 57,655.00 4,539.45 57,655.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 11,862.00 11,862.00 2,779.29 11,862.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 19,611.00 19,611.00 46,200.68 19,611.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 11,056.00 11,056.00 0.00 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 272,313.00 272,313.00 85,212.36 272,313.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (28,749.25) 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 55 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (28,749.25) 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 25,932.00 25,932.00 102,137.00 76,205.00 293.9%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 25,932.00 25,932.00 102,137.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 25,932.00 25,932.00 102,137.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 25,932.00 25,932.00 102,137.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 25,932.00 25,932.00 102,137.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 56 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 

LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 4,940.00 4,940.00 0.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 4,940.00 4,940.00 0.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 190,180.00 190,180.00 0.00 190,180.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 62,778.00 62,778.00 56,463.11 62,778.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 252,958.00 252,958.00 56,463.11 252,958.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 272,313.00 272,313.00 56,463.11 272,313.00

Page 57 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 118,484.00 118,484.00 9,879.29 118,484.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 25,095.00 25,095.00 8,834.82 25,095.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 143,579.00 143,579.00 18,714.11 143,579.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 9,517.00 9,517.00 9,071.59 9,517.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 19,033.00 19,033.00 3,906.24 19,033.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 28,550.00 28,550.00 12,977.83 28,550.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 21,170.00 21,170.00 (519.68) 21,170.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 4,378.00 4,378.00 894.93 4,378.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 11,123.00 11,123.00 1,386.88 11,123.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 7,254.00 7,254.00 1,736.32 7,254.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5,446.00 5,446.00 158.14 5,446.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 8,284.00 8,284.00 882.86 8,284.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 57,655.00 57,655.00 4,539.45 57,655.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 10,862.00 10,862.00 2,779.29 10,862.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 11,862.00 11,862.00 2,779.29 11,862.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 58 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 4,692.00 4,692.00 0.00 4,692.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 935.19 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 330.35 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 13,919.00 13,919.00 0.00 13,919.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,000.00 1,000.00 43,926.86 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 1,008.28 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 19,611.00 19,611.00 46,200.68 19,611.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 11,056.00 11,056.00 0.00 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 11,056.00 11,056.00 0.00 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 272,313.00 272,313.00 85,212.36 272,313.00  

Page 59 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 6 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 60 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:57 PM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 12,256.00

6391 Adult Education Program 89,881.00

Total, Restricted Balance 102,137.00

Page 61 of 154



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 

 
The Child Development Fund is used to 

account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues to operate child development 

programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 

fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 

 State Preschool 

      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 

 Child Development Apportionments  

 Interest 

 Child Development Parent Fees 

  

 

The Child Development Fund may be used only 

for expenditures for the operation of child 

development programs. 

 

Page 62 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

150,418 266,483 116,065 9700

Revenue

3,923,409 4,337,584 414,175 8200 Federal Revenue

4,310,489 4,372,864 62,375 8500 Other State Revenue

225,402 447,162 221,760 8600 Other Local Revenue

698,310 9,157,610 8,459,300 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

964,329 1,040,329 76,000 1100 Teacher Salaries

273,055 275,369 2,314 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 78,314 1,315,698 1,237,384 

726,438 746,438 20,000 2100 Para Educator Salaries

261,064 261,064 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

259,673 259,673 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

390,025 390,025 2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 20,000 1,657,200 1,637,200 

411,011 421,649 10,638 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

381,958 390,748 8,790 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

140,627 148,486 7,859 3300 Social Security/Medicare

283,614 305,001 21,387 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

33,291 34,141 850 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

86,569 89,669 3,100 3600 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 52,624 1,389,694 1,337,070 

210,982 311,233 100,251 4300 Materials and Supplies

31,433 47,989 16,556 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

62,681 62,681 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 116,807 421,903 305,096 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 6 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 63 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

64,504 64,504 5200 Travel/Conference

13,816 13,816 5300 Dues/Memberships

1,732 1,732 5400 Property/Liab.Insurance

168,138 168,138 5500 Utilities

119,379 119,379 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

607,174 607,174 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

2,435,109 2,666,623 231,514 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

96,958 96,958 5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 231,514 3,738,324 3,506,810 

498,798 535,136 36,338 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

535,597 9,057,955 8,522,358 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

87,360 366,138 278,778 9700

Total for Fund 12

Starting Balance 150,418 266,483 116,065 

Revenue 8,459,300 9,157,610 698,310 

Expense 8,522,358 9,057,955 535,597 

Ending Balance Acct Type 87,360 366,138 278,778 

Calc Ending Balance 87,360 366,138 278,778 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 7 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 64 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,923,409.00 3,923,409.00 1,228,672.30 4,337,584.00 414,175.00 10.6%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,310,489.00 4,310,489.00 1,793,052.83 4,372,864.00 62,375.00 1.4%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 225,402.00 225,402.00 165,042.55 447,162.00 221,760.00 98.4%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 8,459,300.00 8,459,300.00 3,186,767.68 9,157,610.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,237,384.00 1,237,384.00 418,782.48 1,323,698.00 (86,314.00) -7.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,637,200.00 1,637,200.00 505,177.98 1,657,200.00 (20,000.00) -1.2%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,337,070.00 1,337,070.00 347,699.90 1,389,694.00 (52,624.00) -3.9%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 305,096.00 305,096.00 98,707.21 419,020.00 (113,924.00) -37.3%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3,506,810.00 3,506,810.00 832,505.43 3,733,207.00 (226,397.00) -6.5%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 498,798.00 498,798.00 0.00 535,136.00 (36,338.00) -7.3%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,522,358.00 8,522,358.00 2,202,873.00 9,057,955.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (63,058.00) (63,058.00) 983,894.68 99,655.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 65 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) (63,058.00) (63,058.00) 983,894.68 99,655.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 150,418.00 150,418.00 266,483.00 116,065.00 77.2%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 150,418.00 150,418.00 266,483.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 150,418.00 150,418.00 266,483.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 87,360.00 87,360.00 366,138.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 25,700.00 25,700.00 140,572.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 61,660.00 61,660.00 225,566.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 66 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 332,060.00 332,060.00 38,315.24 332,060.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 3,591,349.00 3,591,349.00 1,190,357.06 4,005,524.00 414,175.00 11.5%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,923,409.00 3,923,409.00 1,228,672.30 4,337,584.00 414,175.00 10.6%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 9,032.00 9,032.00 2,031.00 9,032.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 1,155,940.00 1,155,940.00 577,410.00 1,157,609.00 1,669.00 0.1%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 1,869,792.00 1,869,792.00 764,503.83 1,930,498.00 60,706.00 3.2%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,275,725.00 1,275,725.00 449,108.00 1,275,725.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,310,489.00 4,310,489.00 1,793,052.83 4,372,864.00 62,375.00 1.4%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 14,143.00 14,143.00 998.34 14,143.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 4,800.00 4,800.00 0.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 125,404.00 125,404.00 161,161.29 250,564.00 125,160.00 99.8%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 81,055.00 81,055.00 2,882.92 177,655.00 96,600.00 119.2%

      All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 225,402.00 225,402.00 165,042.55 447,162.00 221,760.00 98.4%

TOTAL, REVENUES 8,459,300.00 8,459,300.00 3,186,767.68 9,157,610.00

Page 67 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 964,329.00 964,329.00 319,461.03 1,048,329.00 (84,000.00) -8.7%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 273,055.00 273,055.00 99,321.45 275,369.00 (2,314.00) -0.8%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,237,384.00 1,237,384.00 418,782.48 1,323,698.00 (86,314.00) -7.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 726,438.00 726,438.00 214,448.64 746,438.00 (20,000.00) -2.8%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 261,064.00 261,064.00 88,539.04 261,064.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 259,673.00 259,673.00 84,022.46 259,673.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 390,025.00 390,025.00 118,167.84 390,025.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,637,200.00 1,637,200.00 505,177.98 1,657,200.00 (20,000.00) -1.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 411,011.00 411,011.00 57,727.24 421,649.00 (10,638.00) -2.6%

  PERS 3201-3202 381,958.00 381,958.00 119,238.35 390,748.00 (8,790.00) -2.3%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 140,627.00 140,627.00 48,093.95 148,486.00 (7,859.00) -5.6%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 283,614.00 283,614.00 92,286.33 305,001.00 (21,387.00) -7.5%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 33,291.00 33,291.00 4,487.78 34,141.00 (850.00) -2.6%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 86,569.00 86,569.00 25,866.25 89,669.00 (3,100.00) -3.6%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,337,070.00 1,337,070.00 347,699.90 1,389,694.00 (52,624.00) -3.9%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 210,982.00 210,982.00 69,642.93 308,350.00 (97,368.00) -46.1%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 31,433.00 31,433.00 15,663.93 47,989.00 (16,556.00) -52.7%

  Food 4700 62,681.00 62,681.00 13,400.35 62,681.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 305,096.00 305,096.00 98,707.21 419,020.00 (113,924.00) -37.3%

Page 68 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 64,504.00 64,504.00 6,356.87 64,504.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 13,816.00 13,816.00 5,978.21 13,416.00 400.00 2.9%

  Insurance 5400-5450 1,732.00 1,732.00 0.00 1,732.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 168,138.00 168,138.00 32,039.28 167,921.00 217.00 0.1%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 119,379.00 119,379.00 36,213.23 118,529.00 850.00 0.7%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 607,174.00 607,174.00 71,695.56 607,174.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 2,435,109.00 2,435,109.00 654,967.52 2,663,273.00 (228,164.00) -9.4%

  Communications 5900 96,958.00 96,958.00 25,254.76 96,658.00 300.00 0.3%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 3,506,810.00 3,506,810.00 832,505.43 3,733,207.00 (226,397.00) -6.5%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 498,798.00 498,798.00 0.00 535,136.00 (36,338.00) -7.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 498,798.00 498,798.00 0.00 535,136.00 (36,338.00) -7.3%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,522,358.00 8,522,358.00 2,202,873.00 9,057,955.00  

Page 69 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 6 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 70 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Child Development Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:58 PM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca536.00

6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 132,859.00

6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account for Department of Social2,422.00

6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account for Department of Social4,755.00

Total, Restricted Balance 140,572.00

Page 71 of 154



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 

federal forest reserve funds received by offices 

of county superintendents for distribution to 

school districts and community college 

districts (Education Code Section 2300; 

Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 35,358 4,435-9700

Revenue

41,354 41,354 8200 Federal Revenue

200 200 8600 Other Local Revenue

0 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 7200 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 7600 Other Financing Uses

0 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 35,358 4,435-9700

Total for Fund 16

Starting Balance 39,793 35,358 4,435-

Revenue 41,554 41,554 0 

Expense 41,554 41,554 0 

Ending Balance Acct Type 39,793 35,358 4,435-

Calc Ending Balance 39,793 35,358 4,435-

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 8 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 73 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 32.96 41,554.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 6,000.00 6,000.00 32.96 6,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 0.00 (6,000.00)

Page 74 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 32.96 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 39,793.00 39,793.00 35,358.00 (4,435.00) -11.1%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 39,793.00 39,793.00 35,358.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 39,793.00 39,793.00 35,358.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 39,793.00 39,793.00 35,358.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 39,793.00 39,793.00 35,358.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 75 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Forest Reserve Funds 8260 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Interest 8660 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 32.96 41,554.00

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00  

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 76 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 77 of 154



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

 

 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 

Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 

the accumulation of General Fund money for 

general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 

purchases of large items such as copy 

machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 

hardware upgrades. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

897,911 886,181 11,730-9700

Revenue

18,000 18,000 8600 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

915,911 904,181 11,730-9700

Total for Fund 17

Starting Balance 897,911 886,181 11,730-

Revenue 18,000 18,000 0 

Ending Balance Acct Type 915,911 904,181 11,730-

Calc Ending Balance 915,911 904,181 11,730-

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 9 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 79 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 80 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 897,911.00 897,911.00 886,181.00 (11,730.00) -1.3%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 897,911.00 897,911.00 886,181.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 897,911.00 897,911.00 886,181.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 915,911.00 915,911.00 904,181.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 915,911.00 915,911.00 904,181.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 81 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 983.07 18,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 82 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:59 PM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 83 of 154



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 

TRUST FUND 73 

 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 

or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 

that benefit individuals, private organizations, 

or other governments and under which neither 

principal nor income may be used for purposes 

that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 

trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 

covered by a formal trust agreement should be 

accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 

the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 

be expended only for the specific purposes of 

the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 

41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

70,346 69,160 1,186-9700

Revenue

3,000 3,000 8600 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

73,346 72,160 1,186-9700

Total for Fund 73

Starting Balance 70,346 69,160 1,186-

Revenue 3,000 3,000 0 

Ending Balance Acct Type 73,346 72,160 1,186-

Calc Ending Balance 73,346 72,160 1,186-

Total for Org 001 - Colusa County Office of Education

Starting Balance 5,209,314 5,787,710 578,396 

Revenue 23,096,664 24,617,498 1,520,834 

Expense 23,041,805 24,546,995 1,505,190 

5,264,173 5,858,213 594,040 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 5,264,173 594,040 5,858,213 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Dec  3 2021 12:08PM 

Page 10 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 85 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES     

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 86 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 70,346.00 70,346.00 69,160.00 (1,186.00) -1.7%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 70,346.00 70,346.00 69,160.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 70,346.00 70,346.00 69,160.00

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 73,346.00 73,346.00 72,160.00

        Components of Ending Net Position

        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00  0.00

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 73,346.00 73,346.00  72,160.00

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 87 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 75.49 500.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

Page 88 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 89 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 90 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

06 10066 0000000
Form 73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 04/19/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:00 PM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 72,160.00

Total, Restricted Net Position 72,160.00

Page 91 of 154



 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:06 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

01I  COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 (621,093.00) 0.00 (546,192.00)
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 6,000.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
08I  STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
09I  CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
10I  SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
11I  ADULT EDUCATION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 13,919.00 0.00 11,056.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
12I  CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 607,174.00 0.00 535,136.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
13I  CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
14I  DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
15I  PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
16I  FOREST RESERVE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 6,000.00
       Fund Reconciliation
17I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
18I  SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
19I  FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
20I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
21I  BUILDING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
25I  CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
30I  STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
35I COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
40I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
53I  TAX OVERRIDE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
56I  DEBT SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
57I  FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation

Page 93 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:06 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

61I  CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
62I  CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
63I  OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
66I  WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
67I  SELF-INSURANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
71I  RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
73I  FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
76I  WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
95I  STUDENT BODY FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
             TOTALS 621,093.00 (621,093.00) 546,192.00 (546,192.00) 6,000.00 6,000.00

Page 94 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:15 PM

Funds 01, 09, and 62

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2021-22
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 15,175,173.00

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 2,154,289.00

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 30,186.00

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 9,700.00

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00

9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 812.00

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 4,499,215.00

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2.

10. Total state and local expenditures not  
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 4,539,913.00

1000-7143,

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 0.00

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1.

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 8,480,971.00

Page 95 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:15 PM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2021-22
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form AI, Column D, sum of lines B1d and C9)*

5.00

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 1,696,194.20

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year
Unaudited Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not
met, in its final determination, CDE will adjust the prior year base to 90
percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual prior year
expenditure amount.) 7,657,844.62 717,698.65
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  7,657,844.62 717,698.65

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 6,892,060.16 645,928.79

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 8,480,971.00 1,696,194.20

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2023-24 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form AI. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated
  Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

Page 96 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2021  4:15 PM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

Page 97 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  12/3/2021 4:16 PM

Beginning

Object

Balances
(Ref. Only) July August September October November December January February

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF
(Enter Month Name): Oct

A. BEGINNING CASH 1,952,943.20 2,190,657.37 2,127,125.36 2,151,424.71 2,349,574.81 2,146,328.31 2,243,081.81 2,574,894.31
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 87,062.46 315,270.50 166,351.50 315,270.50 315,270.50 315,270.50 315,270.50 52,833.00
           Property Taxes 8020-8079 200,000.00
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 (4,314.00)
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299 94,969.36 16,247.07 500,000.00 200,000.00
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599 204,390.91 184,538.72 884,340.26 455,188.11 383,088.00 383,088.00 383,088.00 383,088.00
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,082,636.23 399,661.87 17,788.44 642,345.65 373,742.00 373,742.00 373,742.00 373,742.00
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,374,089.60 899,471.09 1,163,449.56 1,429,051.33 1,072,100.50 1,272,100.50 1,567,786.50 1,009,663.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 89,652.91 425,551.41 426,912.09 421,467.73 423,125.00 423,125.00 423,125.00 423,125.00
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999 183,000.19 341,346.86 357,362.55 342,750.01 347,481.00 347,481.00 347,481.00 347,481.00
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999 118,472.36 283,330.26 289,021.95 282,837.49 340,379.00 340,379.00 340,379.00 340,379.00
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999 21,756.84 15,995.84 39,277.89 54,918.31 81,410.00 81,410.00 81,410.00 81,410.00
    Services 5000-5999 396,413.17 66,112.80 61,735.99 139,865.77 82,952.00 82,952.00 82,592.00 82,592.00
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599 13,306.05 10,987.00
    Other Outgo 7000-7499 9,700.00 (100,000.00) (50,000.00)
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 809,295.47 1,142,037.17 1,187,616.52 1,241,839.31 1,275,347.00 1,175,347.00 1,235,974.00 1,274,987.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 (500.00)
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 (2,978,760.83) 60,044.18 228,803.75 118,263.23 75,032.51
    Due From Other Funds 9310 (29,429.12)
    Stores 9320 (16,436.14)
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330 (141,802.31) 141,802.31
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL (3,166,928.40) 201,846.49 228,803.75 118,263.23 75,032.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599 (513,293.79) 528,926.45 49,769.68 (108,117.47) 64,094.43
    Due To Other Funds 9610 (273.59)
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650 (177,914.39) 177,914.39
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL (691,481.77) 528,926.45 49,769.68 69,796.92 64,094.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (2,475,446.63) (327,079.96) 179,034.07 48,466.31 10,938.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 237,714.17 (63,532.01) 24,299.35 198,150.10 (203,246.50) 96,753.50 331,812.50 (265,324.00)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 2,190,657.37 2,127,125.36 2,151,424.71 2,349,574.81 2,146,328.31 2,243,081.81 2,574,894.31 2,309,570.31

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

Page 98 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  12/3/2021 4:16 PM

Object
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

(Enter Month Name): Oct
A. BEGINNING CASH
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
           Property Taxes 8020-8079
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999
    Services 5000-5999
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599
    Other Outgo 7000-7499
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
    Due From Other Funds 9310
    Stores 9320
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599
    Due To Other Funds 9610
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E)

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

2,309,570.31 2,044,246.31 2,128,923.31 1,863,600.85

52,833.00 52,834.00 52,834.54 100,000.00 2,141,101.00 2,141,101.00
200,000.00 95,289.00 495,289.00 495,289.00

(4,314.00) (4,314.00)
200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 350,192.57 400,000.00 2,161,409.00 2,161,409.00
383,088.00 383,088.00 383,088.00 383,088.00 200,000.00 4,993,162.00 4,993,162.00
373,742.00 373,742.00 373,742.00 373,747.81 200,000.00 5,332,374.00 5,332,374.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
0.00 0.00

1,009,663.00 1,209,664.00 1,009,664.54 1,113,028.38 995,289.00 0.00 15,125,021.00 15,125,021.00

423,125.00 423,125.00 423,125.00 423,125.00 223,897.86 4,972,482.00 4,972,482.00
347,481.00 347,481.00 347,481.00 347,487.00 318,635.39 4,322,949.00 4,322,949.00
340,379.00 340,379.00 340,379.00 630,377.00 194,334.94 4,181,027.00 4,181,027.00
81,410.00 81,410.00 81,410.00 75,457.12 50,000.00 827,276.00 827,276.00
82,592.00 82,592.00 82,592.00 84,753.27 50,000.00 1,377,745.00 1,377,745.00

5,892.95 30,186.00 30,186.00
(150,000.00) (246,192.00) (536,492.00) (536,492.00)

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

1,274,987.00 1,124,987.00 1,274,987.00 1,320,900.34 836,868.19 0.00 15,175,173.00 15,175,173.00

0.00
482,143.67

0.00
0.00

141,802.31
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 623,945.98

534,673.09
0.00
0.00

177,914.39
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 712,587.48

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (88,641.50)

(265,324.00) 84,677.00 (265,322.46) (207,871.96) 158,420.81 0.00 (138,793.50) (50,152.00)
2,044,246.31 2,128,923.31 1,863,600.85 1,655,728.89

1,814,149.70

Page 99 of 154



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 1 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than
two percent since budget adoption. Projected ADA for county operated programs has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than two
percent since budget adoption.

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be
extracted for the two subsequent years; otherwise enter this data. First Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent years
into the second column.

Estimated Funded ADA

Budget Adoption First Interim

Budget Projected Year Totals

Program / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 1B-2) (Form AI) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Status

County and Charter School
Alternative Education Grant ADA
(Form A/AI, Lines B1d and C2d)

Current Year (2021-22) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

District Funded County Program ADA
(Form A/AI, Line B2g)

Current Year (2021-22) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met

County Operations Grant ADA
(Form A/AI, Line B5)

Current Year (2021-22) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met

Charter School ADA and Charter School
Funded County Program ADA
(Form A/AI, Lines C1 and C3f)

Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met

1B. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY:  Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant and county operated programs has not changed since budget adoption by more than two percent in any of the
current year or two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 101 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 2 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD:  Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than two percent
since budget adoption.

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the
two subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue  

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)  

Budget Adoption First Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 2C) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2021-22) 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,697,351.00 2,697,351.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 2,781,239.00 2,781,239.00 0.0% Met

2B. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - LCFF revenue has not changed since budget adoption by more than two percent for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

The amount for the Current Year Budget Adoption and First Interim should be $2,632,076. There was an error found in the SACS software. CDE
confirmed the error cannot be fixed.

Page 102 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 3 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five
percent since budget adoption.

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI
exists, Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data.

Salaries and Benefits
First Interim

Budget Adoption Projected Year Totals

(Form 01, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999)
Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 3B) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) Percent Change Status

Current Year (2021-22) 12,882,675.00 13,476,458.00 4.6% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 12,889,281.00 13,654,002.00 5.9% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 13,125,266.00 13,938,492.00 6.2% Not Met

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected salary and benefit costs have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent
fiscal years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Special Education additional positions were added. Distrcts in our county pay for the additional increase.

Page 103 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 4 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services
and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since budget
adoption.

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained.

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. First Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If First Interim Form MYPI
exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column.

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range.

Budget Adoption First interim

Budget Projected Year Totals  Change Is Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 4B) (Fund 01/Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (MYPI, Line A2)

Current Year (2021-22) 2,074,252.00 2,161,409.00 4.2% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,340,671.00 1,427,828.00 6.5% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,340,671.00 1,427,828.00 6.5% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

This is due to an increase in funds for Special Education and Homeless grants. 

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2021-22) 4,243,060.00 4,993,162.00 17.7% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,113,932.00 4,993,162.00 21.4% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 4,113,932.00 4,993,162.00 21.4% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increase in Special Education funding. 

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Year (2021-22) 5,347,109.00 5,332,374.00 -0.3% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5,689,750.00 5,690,538.00 0.0% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5,875,581.00 5,885,085.00 0.2% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2021-22) 785,316.00 827,276.00 5.3% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 510,756.00 593,900.00 16.3% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 510,756.00 594,986.00 16.5% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increase due to IAL grant, Homeless grant and Special Education Medi-cal grant. 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2021-22) 979,141.00 1,377,745.00 40.7% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 870,508.00 1,305,216.00 49.9% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 870,508.00 1,305,216.00 49.9% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increase due to Special Education grants, County Safe Schools grant, CALhope grant and Homeless grants. 

Page 104 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 5 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim
Object Range / Fiscal Year Budget Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenues (Section 4A)
Current Year (2021-22) 11,664,421.00 12,486,945.00 7.1% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 11,144,353.00 12,111,528.00 8.7% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 11,330,184.00 12,306,075.00 8.6% Not Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4A)
Current Year (2021-22) 1,764,457.00 2,205,021.00 25.0% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,381,264.00 1,899,116.00 37.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,381,264.00 1,900,202.00 37.6% Not Met

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating revenues have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal
years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected
operating revenues within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:

Federal Revenue

(linked from 4A

if NOT met)

This is due to an increase in funds for Special Education and Homeless grants. 

Explanation:
Other State Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increase in Special Education funding. 

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected
operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increase due to IAL grant, Homeless grant and Special Education Medi-cal grant. 

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increase due to Special Education grants, County Safe Schools grant, CALhope grant and Homeless grants. 

Page 105 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 6 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since budget adoption in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as required
pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their
normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major
Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY:  Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if Budget data does not exist. Budget data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter budget data into lines 1, if applicable, and
2. All other data are extracted.

First Interim Contribution
Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 78,442.11 171,540.00 Met

2. Budget Adoption Contribution (information only) 171,540.00
(Form 01CS, Criterion 5)

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

  Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)

  Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:

(required if NOT met

and Other is marked)

Page 106 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 7 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's
available reserves¹ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses² in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County
School Service Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted
resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its
participating members.

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

County Office's Available Reserves Percentage
(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

County Office's Deficit Standard Percentage Levels
(one-third of available reserves percentage): 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

6B. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes,
enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):
1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 

calculations for deficit spending and reserves? No
2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:

a.  Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
b.  Special Education Pass-through Funds 
     (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 
     objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00

6C. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and
second columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in Total Unrestricted Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Deficit Spending Level

(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-7999) (If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status

Current Year (2021-22) (15,152.00) 2,750,384.00 0.6% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) (145,321.00) 2,935,766.00 5.0% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) (158,612.00) 3,020,013.00 5.3% Not Met

6D. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Unrestricted deficit spending has exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons for
the deficit spending, a description of the methods and assumptions used in balancing the unrestricted budget, and what changes will be made to ensure that the budget deficits are
eliminated or are balanced within the standard.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

CCOE has substantial reserves to fund deficit spending if these projections materialize. 

Page 107 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 8 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent
fiscal years.

7A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Ending Fund Balance

County School Service Fund  

Projected Year Totals  

Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 )/(Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2021-22) 4,378,239.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,181,521.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 3,971,512.00 Met

7A-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance
County School Service Fund 

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status
Current Year (2021-22) 1,655,728.89 Met

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Page 108 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 9 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves¹ for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or
amounts as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses²:

Percentage Level³
County Office Total Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses³
5% or      $71,000 (greater of)                                  0   to             $6,317,999
4% or    $316,000 (greater of)                  $6,318,000   to           $15,794,999
3% or    $632,000 (greater of)                $15,795,000   to           $71,078,000
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of)                $71,078,001 and                 over

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

³ Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment, as
referenced in EC Section 2574, rounded to the nearest thousand.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: 15,175,173 15,011,597 15,303,323

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 4% 4% 4%

Page 109 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 10 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 15,175,173.00 15,011,597.00 15,303,323.00

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 6B, Line 2b if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line A1 plus Line A2) 15,175,173.00 15,011,597.00 15,303,323.00

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 4% 4% 4%

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line A3 times Line A4) 607,006.92 600,463.88 612,132.92

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount

(From percentage level chart above) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00
7. County Office's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line A5 or Line A6) 607,006.92 600,463.88 612,132.92

8B. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Current Year

Reserve Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic

Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in

Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative,
for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00
6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. County Office's Available Reserve Amount     

(Lines B1 thru B7) 758,758.00 750,580.00 765,166.00
9. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)

(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7): 607,006.92 600,463.88 612,132.92

Status: Met Met Met

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 110 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 11 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the budget? No

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time 
revenues that have changed since budget adoption by more than five percent? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings between funds?

(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

Page 111 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 12 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption.

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year
and two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund budget.

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard:
-5.0% to +5.0%

or -$20,000 to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter
First Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the data
will be extracted into the First Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate
button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2021-22) (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) (165,052.00) (171,540.00) 3.9% 6,488.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) (152,120.00) (171,540.00) 12.8% 19,420.00 Met

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2021-22) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns

Have capital project cost overruns occurred since budget adoption that may impact the
county school service fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d.

1a. MET - Projected contributions have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1b. MET - Projected transfers in have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Page 112 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 13 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if YES)

Page 113 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 14 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments¹ and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If Budget Adoption (Form 01CS, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b.
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no Budget Adoption data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and
enter all other data, as applicable.

1. a.  Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments?
     (If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred
     since budget adoption? No

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2021

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences 0000 Resource 105,000

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 105,000

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued): (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Payments: 0 0 0 0
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2020-21)? No No No

Page 114 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 15 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. No - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if Yes to
increase in total

annual payments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes)

Page 115 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 16 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since budget adoption, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation.

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption
and First Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office provide postemployment benefits

     other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in OPEB liabilities?

No

c.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in OPEB contributions?

No

Budget Adoption
2. OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim

a.   Total OPEB liability 425,555.00 482,821.00
b.   OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 0.00 0.00

c.   Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 425,555.00 482,821.00
d.   Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's
      estimate or an actuarial valuation? Actuarial Actuarial
e.   If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement
     date of the OPEB valuation Apr 16, 2020 Jun 02, 2021

3. OPEB Contributions
a.   OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, Budget Adoption
      per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim
          Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

b.   OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
      (Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)
          Current Year (2021-22) 10,000.00 15,900.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

c.   Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
          Current Year (2021-22) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

d.   Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
          Current Year (2021-22) 1 1
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1 1
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0 0

4. Comments:

Page 116 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 17 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption
and First Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs 
     such as workers' compensation, employee health and
     welfare, or property and liability? (Do not include OPEB,
     which is covered in Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4)

No

b.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in self-insurance liabilities? n/a

c.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in self-insurance contributions?

n/a

Budget Adoption

2. Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim

a.  Accrued liability for self-insurance programs
b.  Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs

3. Self-Insurance Contributions Budget Adoption
a.  Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim
          Current Year (2021-22)
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23)
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24)

b.  Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
          Current Year (2021-22)
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23)

          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24)

4. Comments:

Page 117 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 18 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since budget adoption, as well as new commitments provided as part of
previously ratified multiyear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of
the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded in future
fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California
Department of Education (CDE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent
of schools.

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? No

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.

If No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of certificated (non-management) full-
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 49.6 57.0 57.0 57.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 

have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. Yes

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: Jul 14, 2021

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  Jul 01, 2021 End Date:  Jun 30, 2022

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement 160,800 163,212 165,660

% change in salary schedule from prior year 3.0%

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 0

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

Page 118 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 19 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 496,685 496,685 496,685

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE)

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since Budget Adoption

Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year
settlements included in the interim? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 61,361 61,361 61,361

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

Certificated (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses,
etc.):

Page 119 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 20 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption?

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C. No
If No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of classified (non-management) FTE
positions 57.5 109.0 109.0 109.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. Yes

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: Jul 14, 2021

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  Jul 01, 2021 End Date:  Jun 30, 2022

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement 121,107 122,924 124,768

% change in salary schedule from prior year 3.0%

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

Page 120 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 21 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 418,531 418,531 418,531

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE)

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since Budget Adoption

Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year
settlements included in the interim? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 102,570 102,570 102,570

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

Page 121 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 22 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S8C. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period."  There are no
extractions in this section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? No

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.
If No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 10.0 13.0 13.0 13.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete question 2. Yes

If No, complete questions 3 and 4.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? No

If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption

2. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

Total cost of salary settlement 50,847 51,610 52,384

Change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener") 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 126,146 126,146 126,146

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP ( 10,500 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,500 per FTE)

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 13,576 13,576 13,576
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

2. Total cost of other benefits 0 0 0

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Page 122 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 23 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an
interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

1. Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to have a 
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? No

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report
for each fund.

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negative balance(s)
and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

Page 123 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 24 of 24 Printed:  12/3/2021  3:29 PM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but
may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through A8; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? (Data from Criterion 7B-1, Cash Balance, No
are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
No

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 
No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's
ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? No

A5. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that No
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

A6. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees? No

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
(If Yes, provide copies to the CDE.) No

A8. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? No

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

End of County Office First Interim Criteria and Standards Review

Page 124 of 154



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE (SACS) 
                                                                Fund –Resource-Year – Object – Goal – Function – School –Budget Rep-Type 
                                                                     X – XXXX – X – XXXX – XXXX – XXXX – XXX – XXXX-XXXX 

 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures (1000-1999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teacher’s Salaries 

1101 Teacher’s Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1105 Teacher’s Salaries – Substitutes 

1150 Teacher’s Salaries – Extended Session 

1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Regular 

1201 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1300 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators – Regular 

1311 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators’ – Extra 

1320 Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1330 Assistant Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1901 Other Certificated Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries 

 2100 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Regular 

2101 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2102 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Temps 

2105 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Substitutes 

2106 Instructional Aides’ Salaries - Overtime 

2150 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extended Session 

2200 Classified Support Salaries – Regular 

2205 Class Support Salaries – Subs 

2206 Classified Support Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2250 Classified Support Salaries – Extended Session 

2300 Classified Supervisors’ & Administrators’ Sal. – Reg. 

2316 Classified Spvr & Admin Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2320 Classified Superintendent Salaries – Regular 

2400 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Regular 

2405 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Substitutes 

2406 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2900 Other Classified Salaries – Regular 

2901 Other Class Salaries Extra/Stipends 

2905 Other Classified Salaries – Substitutes 

2906 Other Classified Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2920 Naturalists’ Salaries – Regular 

2930 Student Help Salaries – Regular 

2950 Other Classified Salaries – Extended Session 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

31XX State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

3101 STRS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3102 STRS on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

32XX Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

3201 PERS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures, Continued 

 3202 PERS  on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

33XX Social Security (OASDI)/FICA-MED/Alternate 

3311 OASDI on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3312 OSADI on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3321 FICA-MED on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3322 FICA-MED on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3331 Alternate Retirement on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3332 Alternate Retirement on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

34XX Health & Welfare Benefits 

3411 Health & Welfare on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3412 Health & Welfare on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

35XX State Unemployment Insurance 

3501 State Unemploy Ins. on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3502 State Unemploy Ins. On Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

36XX Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

3601 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3602 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

37XX Retiree Benefits 

3711 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3712 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

3751 OPEB Active Employee-Certificated (object 1XXX) 

3752 OPEB Active Employee-Classified (object 2XXX) 

39XX Other Benefits 

3911 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Cert Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3912 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Class Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3941 Employer Paid Dues-Certificated 

3942 Employer Paid Dues 

4000-4999 Books & Supplies 

4100 Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 

4200 Books Other Than Textbooks & Reference Materials 

4310 Materials & Supplies 

4340 Printing Expense 

4381 Diesel 

4400 Non-Capitalized Equipment 

4700 Food (Food Services) 

    

Page 125 of 154



 

5000-5999 Services & Other Operating Expenses 
 

5100 Sub-Agreements for Services 

5200 Travel & Conferences 

5201 Directors Council Meetings 

5202 Directors Other Travel/Conference 

5205 SPAC Conference 

5206 Other SPAC Conference 

5300 Dues & Memberships 

5400 Insurance 

5450 Other Insurance 

5500 Operations & Housekeeping Services 

5510 Water/Sewage 

5515 Pest Control 

5520 Gas/Heating Oil/Electric 

5570 Disposal Services 

5580 Laundry/Dry Cleaning 

5600 Rental, Lease & Repairs & Non-Capitalized Improvements 

5610 Equipment Rental/Lease 

5620 Facilities Rental/Lease 

5640 Contracts/Service Agreements 

5660 Equipment Repair 

5670 Vehicle Expense 

5680 Building Repairs 

5710 Direct Support Costs for Inter-program Services 

5712 Inter-program Transportation 

5713 Inter-program Contracts 

5750 Direct Costs for Interfund Services 

5751 Interfund Transportation 

5800 Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expend. 

5803 Printing (Outside Services) 

5807 Stipends to Non-Employees 

5808 Documented Reimbursable Expenses to Consultants 

5809 Contracted Services 

5810 Legal Expense 

5815 Contracted Services Outdoor Education 

5817 Pupil Transport Outdoor Education 

5820 Audit Expense 

5835 Security Service 

5842 Advertisements 

5843 Tuberculosis (TB) Testing 

5844 Fingerprinting 

5860 Federal Interest on Loans 

5885 Tuition and License Reimbursements 

5891 Data Processing Services 

5900 Communications 

5930 Postage 

5940 Telephone 

5941 Telephone Data Lines 

5943 Cell Phones 
 

5944 Internet Charges 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

6100 Land 

6110 Acquisition of Sites 

6111 Appraisals 

6112 Title/Escrow Costs 

6113 Surveys 

6170 Land Improvements 

6200 Buildings & Improvement of Buildings 

6210 New Construction 

6211 Building Purchases 

6218 Assessment & Fees 

6220 Improvements (Remodeling) 

6230 Relocatable Portables 

6281 Architect/Engineering Fees 

6282 Inspectors 

6283 Tests 

6284 Legal Fees 

6400 Equipment 

6401 Capital Leased Equipment Less Than $5,000 

6500 Equipment Replacement 

7000-7999 Other Outgo 

7100-7199 Tuition 

7141 Other Tuition Excess Costs to Districts 

7200-7299 Other Transfers Out 

7211 Transfer of Pass-Through Revenues to Districts 

7212 Transfer Pass-Thru Revenue CO OF 

7221 Transfer of Apportionments to Districts 

7222 Transfer of Apportionments County Office 

7281 All Other Transfers to Districts 

7299 All Other Transfers Out 

7300-7500 Direct Support / Indirect Costs 

7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Inter-program Charges 

7350 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Interfund Charges 

7438 Debt Service - Interest 

7439 Debt Service -Principal 

7600-7629 Interfund Transfers Out 

7611 From General Fund to Child Development Fund 

7615 Between General Fund/Special Bldg to Deferred Maint 

7619 Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 

Page 126 of 154



8010-8999 LCFF Sources 

8010-8019 Principle Apportionments 

8011 LCFF - Current Year 

8012 Education Protection Account (EPA) – Current Year 

8019 LCFF – Prior Year 

8020-8039 Tax Relief Subventions 
 

8021 Homeowners’ Exemption 
 

8029 Other Subventions/In-Lieu Tax 
 

8040-8089 County & District Taxes 
 

8041 Secured Tax Rolls 
 

8042 Unsecured Tax Rolls 

8043 Prior Years’ Taxes 

8044 Supplemental Taxes 

8045 Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 
 

8047 Community Redevelopment Funds 

8090-8099 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8091 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8096 Transfers to Charters in Lieu 

8097 Property Taxes Transfers 

8100-8299 Federal Revenues 
 

8181 Special Education Entitlement 
 

8182 Special Education Discretionary Grants 
 

8220 Child Nutrition Programs 
 

8270 Flood Control Funds 
 

8285 Interagency Contracts Between Local Educ Agencies (LEAs) 

 

8287 Pass-Through from Federal Sources 
 

8290 All Other Federal Revenues 
 

8300-8900 Other State Revenues 
 

8311 Other State Apportionments for Current Year 
 

8319 Other State Apportionments for Prior Year 
 

8520 Child Nutrition 
 

8530 Child Development Apportionments 
 

8540 Deferred Maintenance Allowance 
 

8545 School Facilities Apportionment 
 

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 
 

8560 State Lottery Revenue 
 

8587 Pass-Through Revenue from State Sources 
 

8590 All Other State Revenues 
 

8625 Community Redevelopment Fund Not Sub-Rev Limit 
 

8631 Sale of Equipment / Supplies 
 

8634 Food Service Sales 
 

8639 All Other Sales 
 

8650 Rentals & Leases 
 

8660 Interest 
 

8674 In-District Premiums/Contributions 
 

8677 Interagency Services Between Local Educ Agency (LEAs) 

8689 Other Fees/Contract Services 

8699 All Other Local Revenues 
 

8710 Other Tuition 
 

8781 All Other Transfer from District/Charter 
 

8782 All Other Transfer From COE 
 

8791 Transfer of Appt from Districts 
 

8792 Transfer of Apportionment from County Office 
 
8910-8979 Other Financing Sources 
 

8910-8929 Interfund Transfers In 
 

8911 To Child Development/From General Fund 
 

8912 Between General Fund & Special Reserve Fund 
 

8914 To General Fund/From Bond Interest & Red 
 

8915 From General Fund/Special Building to Deferred Maint 
 

8916 To Cafeteria Fund/From General Fund 
 

8919 Other Interfund Transfers In 
 
8931-8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8931 Emergency Apportionments 
 

8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 
 

8953 Proceeds from Sale/Lease Purchase of Land & Buildings 
 

8965 Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorg LEA’s 

8971 Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

8972 Proceeds from Capital Leases 
 

8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8980-8999 Contributions 
 

8980 Contribution from Unrestricted Resources 
 

8981 Contributions/Subsidies 
 

8990 Contributions/Transfers from Restricted/Unrestricted 

Page 127 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2021-22 BUDGET 
Acronyms 

 

 

A 
AAP Affirmative Action Plan 

 
AASA American Association of School Administrators 

 
AB Assembly Bill 

 
AC Administrative Code 

 
ACA Assembly Concurrent Amendment/Affordable Care Act 

 
ACE Assessments in Career Education 

 
ACEI Association of Childhood Education International 

 
ACR Assembly Concurrent Resolution 

 
ACSA Association of California School Administrators 

 
ACT American College Test 

 
ADA Average Daily Attendance or American with Disabilities 

Act 
ADM Administration 

 
ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution 

ADT Adolescent Day Treatment 

AEBG Adult Education Block Grant 

AED Automatic External Defibrillators 
 

AFDC Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
 

AFSCME American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees 

AFT American Federation of Teachers 
 

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 
 

AIR American Institutes for Research 
 

ALICE Alert, Lockdown, Inform, Counter, Evacuate 
 

ALWS Association of Low Wealth Schools 
 

AMO Annual Measurable Objective 

AMS American Management System 

AP Advanced Placement 

APE Adapted Physical Education 
 

APE-AVID Advanced Placement Expansion - AVID 

API Academic Performance Index 

APIP Advanced Placement Incentive Program 

 
 
APR Accountability Progress Report 
 
AR Accounts Receivable 
 
ARISE Addiction Research and Investigation for Science 

Educators 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
 
ASAM Alternative Schools Accountability Model 
 
ASBO Association of School Business Officials (National) 

ASCC Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 

ASCD Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development 
 
ASES After School Education and Safety Program 

ASET Academy for Special Education Teachers 

ATC Administrative Training Center 

AU Administrative Unit of a SELPA 

AV Audio Visual or Assessed Value 

AVEC Adult and Vocational Education Council 

AVID Advancement Via Individual Determination 

AYP Adequate Yearly Progress 

B 
BBA Bipartisan Budget Act 
 
BCLAD Bilingual, Crosscultural, Language, and Academic 

Development 
BCP Budget Change Proposal 
 
BCRF Beverage Container Recycling Fund 
 
BD Behavior Disorder 
 
BEA Business Education Alliance 
 
BFA Building Futures Academy 
 
BIIG Broadband Infrastructure Improvement Grant 
 
BOOF Betting on our Future 
 
BRC Budget Review Committee 
 
BRL Base Revenue Limit 
 
BTSA Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment 
 
BTTP Bilingual Teacher Training Program 

 

 
 Page 128 of 154



 
 

C 
CAASPP California Assessment of Student Performance and 

Progress 
CABE California Association for Bilingual Education CAC

 Community Advisory Committee or California 

CACE California Association for Compensatory Education 

CADS Consolidated Application Data System 

CADPE California Alcohol-Drug Prevention Education 

CAEH California Arts Education Association 

CAHSEE California High School Exit Exam 

CalCRN California Career Resource Network 
 

CalMHSA California Mental Health Services Authority 
 

CALPADS California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
 

Cal-Safe California School Age Families Education 
 

Cal-OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Act CalPERS

 California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

CalSTAT California Services for Technical Assistance and Training 

CalSTRS California State Teachers Retirement System 

CalTIDES California Longitudinal Teacher Integrated Data Education 
System 

CalWORKs California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
 

CAMSP California Mathematics and Science Partnership 
 

CAO Chief Administrative Office 
 

CAP California Assessment Program 
 

CAPA California Alternative Performance Assessment CAPIT

 Child Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment 

CAROC/P California Assoc of Regional Occupational Ctrs/Prgm. 

CARS Consolidated Application Reporting System 

CASBO California Association of School Business Officials 
 

CASCD California Association for Supervision and Curriculum 
Dev. 

CASE Computer Assisted Special Education 

CASEL Capitol Area Science Education Leaders 

CASH Coalition for Adequate School Housing 

CASEMIS California Special Education Management Info System 
 

CAT/6 California Achievement Tests, Sixth Edition Survey 

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
CBCAP Community Based Child Abuse Prevention 

CBEDS California Basic Education Data System 

CBEST California Basis Education Skills Test 

CBFRS Community Based Family Resource and Support 
 
CBO Chief Business Official 
 
CCAC Credential Counselors and Analysts of California 
 
CCC California Community Colleges or California Conservation 

Corps 
CCCP California Curriculum Consultant Project 
 
CCDF Center for Childcare and Development 
 
CCEE              California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

CCLPEP          California Civil Liberties Public Education Program 

CCMP             Central California Mathematics Project 

CCR Coordinated Compliance Review or California Code of 
Regulations 

CCS California Children’s Services CCSS

 Common Core State Standards 

CCSSO Council or Chief State School Offices 

CCPGP Childcare Professional Growth Project 
 
CCSESA Calif. County Superintendents Educational Services Assoc. 

CCTR Center Childcare & Development Fund 

CDD Child Development Division 
 
CDE California Department of Education 
 
CDRT Child Development Retention and Training 
 
CDT Children’s Day Treatment 
 
CEDR Center for Educational Development and Research 
 
CEL Centralized Eligibility List 
 
CELDT California English Language Development Test 

CELMS Centralized Eligibility List and Management System 

CFLP California Foreign Language Project 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
 
CFT California Federation of Teachers 

CH Communicatively Handicapped 

CH1 Chapter 1 Centralized Services 

Page 129 of 154



 
 

CH-SSP California History-Social Science Project 
 

CI Cognitively Impaired 
 

CIF California Interscholastic Federation 
 

CISC Curriculum and Instruction Steering Committee 
 

CLAD Cross-cultural, Language, and Academic Development 
 

CLMP California Language Minority Project 

CLRN California Learning Resource Network 

CLP California Literature Project 

CLPC Child Development Local Planning Council 
 

CLTA California Foreign Language Teachers Association 
 

CMEA California Music Educators Association 
 

CMIS Compliance Monitoring, Interventions, and Sanctions 
 

CNIPS Child Nutrition Information Payment System 
 

COE County Office of Education 

COLA Cost of Living Adjustment 

CON APP Consolidated Application 

COP Certificate of Participation 

COSA California Outdoor School Administrators 
 

COSP County Operated Schools and Programs 
 

CPDP/C California Professional Development Program/Consortium 
 

CPEC California Postsecondary Education Commission 
 

CPI Consumer Price Index 
 

CPIN California Preschool Instructional Network 
 

CPR California Performance Review 
 

CPS Child Protective Services 
 

CREEC Calif. Regional Environmental Education Community 
 

CSAC California Student Aid Commission CSAM

 California School Accounting Manual 

CSBA California School Boards Association 

CSCI California Services Communities Initiative 

CSDC California Staff Development Council 

CSEA California Schools Employees Association 

CSET California Subject Examination for Teachers 

CSF California Scholarship Federation 
 
CSFG Charter School Facility Grant 
 
CSIN California Science Implementation Network 
 
CSIS California School Information Studies 

CSLA California School Leadership Academic 

CSMP California Subject Matter Projects 

CSPDAC Comprehensive System of Personnel Development 
Advisory Committee 

CSPP California State Preschool Program 
 
CSR Class Size reduction or Comprehensive School Reform 
 
CSSC California State Steering Committee 
 
CST California Standard Test 
 
CSTP California Standards for the Teaching Profession 
 
CTA California Teachers Association 
 
CTAP California Technical Assistance Project 

CTBS Comprehensive Tests of Basic Skills 

CTC Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

CTE Career Technical Education 

CTEC Career and Technical Education Center CTEI

 Comprehensive Teacher Education Institute 

CTEIG Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

CTEL California Teachers of English Learners 

CTKS California Transitional Kindergarten Stipend 

CTO Compensatory Time Off 

CTP California Technology Project 
 
CSCI California Service Communities Initiative 
 
CWA Child Welfare and Attendance 
 
CYA California Youth Authority 
 

D 
DAC District Advisory Council 
 
DAIT District Assistance and Intervention Team 
 
DATE Drug Alcohol Tobacco Education 

DBE Developmental Bilingual Education 

DCA Discovery Challenge Academy 

Page 130 of 154



 
 

DFS Drug Free Schools Consortium 
 

DFW Drug Free Workplace 
 

DGS Department of General Services 
 

DIS Designated Instruction and Services 

DMP Deferred Maintenance Program 

DOE Department of Education 

DOF Department of Finance 
 

DOL Department of Labor 
 

DPJPA Data Processing Joint Power Agreement 
 

DPS Dropout Prevention Specialist 

DSA Division of the State Architect 

DSP Direct Support Professional 

DSS Department of Social Services 

DSSDs Direct Service School Districts 

DSSP Delta Sierra Science Project 

DWAS Dinner with a Scientist 

E 
EAAP Education Audit Appeals Panel 

 
EAF Educational Activity Field 

 
EC Education Code 

 
ECA Education Consolidation Act 

 
ECE Early Childhood Education 

 
ECIA Early Consolidation and Improvement Act (Ch I/II) 

ED Emotionally Disturbed 

EDD Employment Development Department 
 

EDGAR Education Department General Administrative Regulation 
 

ED-JOIN Education Job Opportunities Information Network 
 

EDY Emotionally Disadvantaged Youth 
 

EEO Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

EEI Educational Environmental Initiative 
 

EH Educationally Handicapped 
 

EIA Economic Impact Aid 
 

EIBT Early Intervention Behavioral Treatment 

EL English Learner (Replaces ELL and LEP) 

ELA English Language Arts 

ELAC              English Language Advisory Committee 

ELAP              English Language Acquisition Program 

ELD                English Language Development 

EO English Only 
 
EPA Education Protection Account 
 
ERAF Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 
ERIC Educational Resources Information Center 
 
ERP Economic Recovery Payment or Emergency Repair Prog. 

ERT Economic Recovery Target 

ESC Educational Service Center 
 
ESEA Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
 
ESL English as a Second Language 

ESSA Every Student Succeeds Act 

ESY Extended School Year 

ETN Educational Technology Network 
 

F 
FAPE Free and Appropriate Public Education 
 
FCMAT Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team 

FDPIR Flood Distribution Program on Indian Reservations 

FELP Family English Literacy Program 

FEP Fluent English Proficient 
 
FERPA Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
 
FFA Future Farmers of America 

FHI Federal Handicapped Index 

FIT Forestry Institute for Teachers 

FLACC Foreign Language Association of Central California 
 
FPM Federal Program Monitoring 

FRN Family Resource Network 

FRPM Free and Reduced-Price Meals 

FRR Family Resource and Referral 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

Page 131 of 154



 
 

FYS Foster Youth Services 
 

G 
G2K Goals 2000 

 
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GAAS Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

GASB Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GATE Gifted and Talented Education 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 
 

GE Grade Equivalent or General Education 
 

GED General Education Diploma 

GEMS Great Expectations Math/Science 

GF General Fund 

GLOBE Global Learning and Observations to Benefit the Envir. 

GO General Obligation (Bond) 

GPA Governor’s Performance Award Program 
 

GRASP IT Gaining Results in After School Programs Innovatively & 
Tangibly (21st Century) 

GSA Grade Span Adjustment 
 

GVCC Greater Valley Conservation Corps 
 

H 
HSA Human Services Agency 

 
HILT High Intensity Language Training 

 
H3 Hearts, Heads, Hands 

 
HOH Hard of Hearing 

 
HR Human Resources 

 
HOUSSE High Objective Uniform State Standard of Evaluation 

 
HPSGP High Priority Schools Grant Program 

 
HQT Highly Qualified Teacher 

 
HRA Health Reimbursement Arrangement 

 
HAS Health Savings Account 

 
HSEE High School Exit Exam 

 
HUD Housing and Urban Development 

 

I 
IASA Improving America’s Schools Act 

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported (i.e., insurance claims) 

ICASE Improving Capitol Area Science and Engineering 

ID and R Identification and Recruitment 

IDA Inter-District Agreement 
 
IDEA Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 
IEI Intern Evaluation Instrument 
 
IEP Individual Education Plan 
 
IFSP Individual Family Service Plan 
 
IHSS In-Home Support Services 
 
II/USP Immediate Intervention/Underperforming Schools Program 
 
IIAE Institute for Information Age Education 
 
ILP Individual Learning Plan 
 
IME Institute for Mexican Education 
 
IMFRP Instructional Materials Fund Realignment Program 
 
IMPACT Teaching Programs 
 
IPS Instructional Personnel Service 
 
IRA International Reading Association 
 
ISGI Individual and Small Group Instruction 
 
IT Information Technology 
 
ITI Integrated Thematic Instruction 

IWENS Individuals With Exceptional Needs 

ITP Individual Transitional Plan 

J 
JACS Japanese American Confinement Sites 
 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement or Joint Powers Authority 
 
JTPA Job Training Partnership Act 
 

L 
LAIF Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
LAO Legislative Analyst’s Office 
 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
LCCPC Local Childcare Commission Planning Council 
 
LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 

Page 132 of 154



 
 

LCPC Local Childcare Planning Council 
 

LCI Licensed Children’s Institution 
 

LD Learning Disability 
 

LDS Language Development Specialist 
 

LEA Local Education Agency 
 

LEP Limited English Proficient (EL Replaces ELL and LEP) 

LEP/NES Limited English Proficient/Non-English Speaking 

LGFC Local General Fund Contribution 
 

LH Learning Handicapped 
 

LHS Language Hearing Specialist 
 

LPP Lease Purchase Program 
 

LSH Language, Speech and Hearing 
 

M 
MAA Medi-CAL Administrative Agency 

 
M and O Maintenance and Operations 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MEES Migrant Education Even Start 

MEP Migrant Education Program 

MH Mental Health 
 

MIIEO Migrant Indian and International Education Office 
 

MSA Minimum State Aid 
 

MTTI Multi-District Teacher Training Institute 

MTYRE Multi-Track Year-Round Education 

MYP Multiyear Projection 

N 
NAEP National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
NBCT National Board Certified Teacher 

 
NCCRAHS National Children’s Center for Rural and Agricultural 

Health and Safety 
NCES National Center for Education Statistics 

NCFL National Center for Family Literacy 

NCLB No Child Left Behind 

NCMTC Northern California Media and Technology Consortium 
 

NEA National Education Association 

NEIS National Evaluation and Information System 
 
NGSS Next Generation Science Standards 

NON-RIS Non-Requiring Intensive Service 

NP National Percentile 

NPA Non-Public Agency 
 
NPS Non-Public Schools 
 
NPS/A Non-Public Schools/Agencies 
 
NSBA National Scholl Boards Association 
 
NSS Necessary Small Scholl or Necessary Small SELPA 

NTE National Teachers’ Examination 

O 
OAL Office of Administrative Law 
 
OCR Office of Civil Rights 
 
OH Orthopedically Handicapped 
 
OLA Office of Local Assistance 
 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
 
OME Office of Migrant Education OPEB

 Other Postemployment Benefits 

OPSC Office of Public School Construction 

OSA Office of State Architect 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
 
OSE Office of the Secretary for Education 
 
OT Occupational Therapy 
 

P 
P-1 First Principal (Apportionment) 
 
P-2 Second Principal (Apportionment) 

PAR Peer Assistance and Review 

PARS Public Agency Retirement Services 
 
PC Penal Code 
 
PCA Project Cost Account 
 
PCSGPS Public Charter School Grant Programs   _ 

PDBG Professional Development Block Grant 

PDC Professional Development Center 

Page 133 of 154



 
 

PE Physical Education 
 

PEI Prevention and Early Intervention 
 

PENT Positive Environment Network of Trainers 

PEPRA Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 

PERB Public Employees Relations Board 

PERS Public Employees Retirement System 
 

PFS Priority for Services 
 

PFT Physical Fitness Test 
 

PH Physically Handicapped 

PI Program Improvement 

PIC Private Industry Council 

PKFLP Pre-Kindergarten & Family Literacy Program 
 

PKS Particular Kinds of Services 
 

PL Public Law (Federal Law) 
 

PL 81-874 Public Law 81-874 (Federal Impact Aid) 
 

PL 94-192 Public Law 94-192 (Special Education Mandate 
Legislation) 

PMAT Personal Management Assistance Team 

PMIA Pooled Money Investment Account 

PMIB Pooled Money Investment Board 

PNCC Project Navigation Construction Change 
 

PO Probation Officer 
 

PPACA Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
 

PQR Program Quality Review 
 

PRSP Pension Rate Stabilization Plan 
 

PSA Private School Affidavit 
 

PSAA Public Schools Accountability Act 
 

PT Physical Therapy 
 

PTA Parent Teacher Association 
 

PTSA Parent/Teacher/Student Association 
 

PTTP Paraprofessional Teacher Training Program 
 

Q 
QEIA Quality Education Investment Act 

 
QRIS Quality Rating and Improvement System 

QSCB Quality School Construction Bonds 
 
QZAB Qualified Zone Academy Bond 
 

R 
RCC Regional Coordinating Council 
 
RDA Redevelopment Agency 
 
REACH Running to Embrace Attitudes, Confidence and Health 
 
REAP Rural Education Achievement Program 

REU Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

RFA Request for Application 

RFP Request for Proposal 
 
RIC Reading Implementation Center 
 
RIS Requiring Intensive Services 
 
RISE Rural Improvements in Science Education 
 
RLA Reading/Language Arts 
 
ROC/P Regional Occupation Center/Program RRMA

 Routine Restricted Maintenance Account 

RSDSS Regional System of District and School Support 

RSP Resource Specialist Program 

RSSIC Regional School Support and Improvement Center 
 
RTI Responses to Intervention 
 
RTTT Race To The Top 
 
RWPEDA Regional Workforce Preparation & Economic 

Development 
RTAC Regional Technical Assistance Center 
 

S 
S4 Statewide System of School Support 
 
SAB State Allocation Board 
 
SAC School Advisory Council 
 
SACS Standardized Account Code Structure 

SAIB Special Alternative Instructional Program 

SAIT Student Assistance and Intervention Team 

SAPID School Age Parenting and Infant Development 
 
SARB School Attendance Review Board 
 
SARC School Accountability Report Card 

Page 134 of 154



 
 

SART School Attendance Review Team 
 

SAT Scholastic Aptitude Test 
 

SAT-9 Stanford Achievement Test-9, Ninth Edition, Form T 

SB 1274 Senate Bill 1274 School/District Restructuring 

SAYES Seniors Assisting Youth Engaged in Service 

SB Senate Bill 
 

SBAC Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium 
 

SBCP School Based Coordinated Program 
 

SBE State Board of Education 
 

SCA Senate Constitutional Amendment 

SCE State Compensatory Education 

SCI OLY Science Olympiad 

SCO State Controller’s Office 
 

SCPP School Community Policing Partnership 
 

SCR Senate Concurrent Resolution 
 

SDC Special Day Class 
 

SDE State Department of Education 
 

SDI State Disability Insurance 

SEA State Education Agency 

SEE School Energy Efficiency 

SED Severely Emotional Disturbed 
 

SEIA Special Education Information System 

SEIU Service Employees International Union 

SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 

SERAF Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 

SES Socioeconomic Status 
 

SETPD Special Education Teachers Professional Development 
 

SFID School Facility Improvement District 
 

SFP School Facility Program 
 

SFSD School Fiscal Services Division of CDE 

SFSF State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 

SH Severely Handicapped (Disabled) 

SI Speech Impaired 

SIMMS Secondary Integration of Modeling in Math & Science 
 
SIG School Improvement Grant 
 
SIP School Improvement Program 
 
SJCCFC San Joaquin County Children and Families Commission 
 
SJCOE San Joaquin County Office of Education 
 
SJR Senate Joint Resolution SLC

 School Leadership Center 

SLD Specific Learning Disability 

SLIBG School and Library Improvement Block Grant 
 
SMI Serious Mental Illness 
 
SMP Subject Matter Project 
 
SMAA School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
 
SOLH Severe Oral Language Handicapped SPI

 Superintendent of Public Inspection 

SPSA Single Plan for Student Achievement 

SPURR School Project for Utility Rate Reduction 

SR Senate Resolution 

SRDC School Readiness District Coordinator 
 
SSC School Site Council 
 
SSI/SSP Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary 

Payment 
SSPI State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
 
SSR Support Service Ratio 
 
SST Student Study Team; also, Student Success Team 
 
STAR Standardized Testing and Reporting 
 
STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics 
 
STRS State Teachers Retirement System 
 
SWP Schoolwide Program 
 
SYEP Summer Youth Employment Program 
 

T 
TAG Technical Advisory Group 
 
TAH Teaching American History 
 
TANF Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
 
TAP Teacher Apprentice Program or Teaching as a Priority 

Page 135 of 154



 
 

TAPE Technical Assistance for Program Effectiveness 
 

TAS Targeted Assistance School 
 

TBE Transitional Bilingual Education 
 

TBI Traumatic Brain Injury 
 

TCSJ Teachers College of San Joaquin 
 

THG Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
 

TK Transitional Kindergarten 
 

TLC Transitional Learning Center 
 

TOPS Teaching Opportunities for Partners in Science 
 

TPE Teacher Performance Expectations 

TRANs Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 

TUPE Tobacco Use Prevention Education 

U 
UOP University of the Pacific 

 
UPP Unduplicated Pupil Percentage 

 
UR Unit Rate 

 
USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

 

V 
VAFS Venture Academy Family of Schools 

VALT Valley Language of Language Teachers 

VEA Vocational Education Act 

VH Visually Handicapped 
 

VMRC Valley Mountain Regional Center 
 

VOIP Voice Over Internet Protocol 
 

VQ Vision Quest 
 

W 
WASC Western Association of Schools and Colleges 

 
WEC Wentworth Education Center 

WIA Workforce Instrument Act 

WIC Welfare and Institutions Code 

WIC-R Writing Inquiry Collaboration - Reading 
 

WSF Weighted Student Formula 

Y 
YRE Year-Round Education 
 
YRS Year-Round Schools 

Page 136 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2021-22 Glossary of Terms 
 

A 
 

Abatement. A complete or partial cancellation of an expenditure or revenue. 
 

Abatement of expenditures. Cancellation of part or all of a charge previously made, usually 
because of refunds, rebates, resale of materials originally purchased by the local educational 
agency (LEA), or collections for loss or damage to the LEA’s property. An abatement of 
expenditure applies to current expenditures and capital outlay expenditures from all funds. 

 

Abatement of revenue. The cancellation of all or some part of any specific revenue previously 
recorded. 

 

Accounting period. A period of time for which records are maintained and at the end of 
which financial statements are prepared covering the period. 

 

Account numbers or letters. Numbers and/or letters that are assigned to the ordinary titles of 
accounts for classification of accounts and ease of reference. 

 

Accounts payable. Amounts due and owed to private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not paid. Does not include amounts due to other funds of the 
same LEA. 

 

Accounts receivable. Amounts due and owed from private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not received. Does not include amounts due from other funds of 
the same LEA. 

 

Accrual basis. Method of accounting in which revenue is recorded when earned, even though it 
has not yet been collected, and in which expenses are recorded when the liabilities are 
incurred, even if they have not been paid yet. 

 

Accrued expenditures. Expenditures incurred during the current accounting period that are not 
paid until a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accrued revenue. Revenue earned during the current accounting period that is not collected until 
a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accumulated depreciation. A contra-asset account used to report the accumulation of 
depreciation. (See also Depreciation.) 

 

Actuarial basis. A method used in computing the amount of contributions to be made 
periodically to a fund so that the total contributions plus the compounded earnings thereon 
will equal the required payments to be made out of the fund. The factors taken into account 
in arriving at the amount include the length of time over which each collection or payment is 
to be made and the rate of return compounded on such amounts over its life. 

 

Ad valorem tax. A tax based on a percentage of the value of goods or services. 
 

Agency fund. A fund consisting of resources received and held by an LEA as an agent for others. 
 

Allocation. Division or distribution in accordance with a predetermined plan. 

Page 137 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Allowable costs. Costs that meet the specific criteria of a granting agency. 
 

Allowance. A provision for valuing an asset at net, such as an allowance for bad debts. The 
allowance for bad debts would be deducted from accounts receivable to reflect the 
receivables that are likely to be collectable. 

 

Apportionment. Allocation of state or federal aid, district taxes, or other moneys among LEAs or 
other governmental units. 

 

Apportionment notice. A document notifying LEAs when moneys were deposited with the 
county treasurer. 

 

Appraisal. An estimate of property value made by the use of systematic procedures based 
on physical inspection and inventory, engineering studies, and other economic factors. 

 

Appropriation. An authorization, granted by the governing board, to make expenditures and to 
incur obligations for special purposes. An appropriation is usually limited in purpose, 
amount, and the time period during which it may be expended. 

 

Appropriation ledger. A subsidiary ledger containing an account for each appropriation. Each 
account usually shows the amount originally appropriated in the budget, budget increases or 
decreases during the year, expenditures, encumbrances, unencumbered balances, and other 
related information. 

 

Arbitrage. The profit earned (i.e., interest earnings in excess of interest costs) from the 
investments of the proceeds of lower-interest tax-exempt securities in higher yielding taxable 
securities. 

 

Assessed valuation. Value placed on personal and real property by a governmental unit for 
purposes of taxation. 

 

Assets. Resources that are held or owned by an LEA and that have monetary value. 
 

Audit. An examination of documents, records, and accounts for the purpose of (1) determining 
the propriety of transactions; (2) ascertaining whether all transactions are recorded properly; 
and (3) determining whether statements that are drawn from accounts reflect an accurate 
picture of financial operations and financial status for a given period of time. 

 

Audit finding. A weakness in internal controls or an instance of noncompliance with applicable 
laws and regulations that is presented in the audit report. 

 

Audit program. A detailed outline of work to be done and the procedures to be followed during 
an audit. 

 

Available cash. Cash that is on hand or on deposit in a given fund and that is unencumbered and 
can be used for meeting current obligations. 

 

Average daily attendance (ADA). Total approved days of attendance in the LEA divided by the 
number of days the schools in the LEA are in session for at least the required minimum day. 
(Refer to Education Code sections 46000–46014 and 46300–46380.) 

Page 138 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

B 
 

Balance sheet. A statement that shows the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or fund deficit of an entity at a specific date 
and that is properly classified to exhibit the financial condition of the entity as of that specific 
date. 

 

Basis of accounting. The time at which revenues, expenditures, transfers, and related assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are recognized in 
the accounts and are reported in the financial statements. 

 

Bond. A certificate containing a written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called the face 
value, at a fixed time in the future, called the date of maturity, and specifying interest at a 
fixed rate, usually payable periodically. 

 

Bond discount. The excess of the face value of a bond over the price for which it is acquired or 
sold. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonded debt. That portion of indebtedness represented by outstanding bonds. 
 

Bonded debt service. Expenditures for interest and redemption of bonds. 
 

Bond premium. The excess of the price at which a bond is acquired or sold over its face 
value. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonds authorized and unissued. Legally authorized bonds that have not been sold and that may 
be sold without further authorization. 

 

Book value. The cost or stated costs of assets less accumulated depreciation as shown by the 
books of accounts. 

 

Budget. A plan of financial operation consisting of an estimate of proposed revenue and 
expenditures for a given period and purpose. The term usually indicates a financial plan for a 
single fiscal year. 

 

Budgetary accounts. Those accounts that make it possible for a budgetary-type fund 
(governmental fund) to show how (1) estimated revenue and revenue realized to date 
compare; and (2) expenditures and encumbrances compare with appropriations during the 
fiscal period. The budgetary accounts are estimated revenues, appropriations, and 
encumbrances. 

 

Budgetary control. The management of financial transactions in accord with an approved plan of 
estimated revenue and expenditures. 

 

Budgeting. The process of allocating the available resources of an organization among 
potential activities to achieve the objectives of the organization; planning for the use of 
resources. 

 

Budget revision. Net increases and decreases to the budget. They may include increases due 
to new grant funds and decreases due to the need to reduce appropriations to keep 
spending within available revenues. 

Page 139 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Budget transfer. Changes among budgeted items. They do not increase or decrease the 
total budget. 

 

C 
 

Capital assets. See Fixed assets. 
 

Capital lease. A lease agreement that meets one or more of the following criteria is classified as 
a capital lease: 

 

x Ownership is transferred to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
x The agreement contains a “bargain purchase” option. 
x The lease agreement is 75 percent or more of the estimated useful life of the property. 
x The present value of the minimum lease payment is 90 percent or more of the fair 

market value of the property. 
 

Capital outlay. Amounts paid for fixed assets or additions to fixed assets, including land or 
existing buildings, the improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to 
buildings, remodeling of buildings, or initial and additional equipment. 

 

Capital projects funds. Funds established to account for financial resources that are to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

 

Cash. Currency, checks, postal and express money orders, and bankers’ drafts on hand or on 
deposit with an official or agent designated as custodian of cash and bank deposits. Any 
restriction or limitation as to the availability of cash should be indicated. 

 

Cash advance. Cash apportioned in advance of the usual apportionment period. 
 

Cash basis. Method of accounting in which revenue and expenditures are recorded only when 
cash is actually received or disbursed. The cash basis is not acceptable for use in LEAs. 

 

Cash collections awaiting deposit. Receipts on hand or moneys in a bank clearing account 
awaiting deposit in the county treasury. 

 

Cash discount. An allowance made on a purchase if payment is made within a stated 
period. (This term is not to be confused with trade discount.) 

 

Cash in bank. Balances in separate bank accounts, such as student body accounts, school farm 
accounts, and cafeteria accounts. 

 

Cash in county treasury. Cash balances on deposit in the county treasury for the various funds of 
the LEA. 

 

Categorical aid. Funds from state or federal sources that are in addition to the general-purpose 
funding to serve a specific pupil population or to provide specific services and activities. 
These funds have varying degrees of fiscal and program compliance requirements. 

 

Certificates of participation (COPs). A financing technique that provides long-term financing 
through a lease (with an option to purchase or a conditional sale agreement). 

Page 140 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Chart of accounts. A systematically arranged list of accounts that are applicable to a specific 
LEA. All account names and numbers, if any, are listed in numerical order. 

 

Check. A bill of exchange drawn on a bank and payable on demand; a written order on a bank to 
pay on demand a specific sum of money to a named person, to his or her order, or to a bearer 
out of money on deposit to the credit of the maker. A check differs from a warrant in that a 
warrant is not necessarily payable on demand and may not be negotiable; a check differs 
from a voucher in that a voucher is not an order to pay. A voucher-check combines the 
distinguishing characteristics of a voucher and a check; it shows the propriety of a payment 
and is an order to pay. 

 

Classification. The naming or identification of an item or a category, such as the designation of 
the particular account into which a receipt or an expenditure is to be recorded or the 
separation of data into acceptable groupings so that financial facts can be stated more 
clearly. 

 

Classroom unit (CU). The approximate area usually occupied by a classroom, varying from 800 
to 1,100 square feet but generally about 960 square feet. 

 

Clearing accounts. Accounts used to accumulate total receipts or expenditures for later 
distribution among the accounts to which such receipts or expenditures are properly 
allocable. 

 

Closing entries. Entries recorded at the end of each fiscal period to transfer the balances in the 
revenue and expenditure (or expense) accounts to the permanent equity accounts (fund 
balance or retained earnings) of an accounting entity. 

 

Code. (1) A distinguishing reference number or symbol; (2) a statement of the laws of a specific 
field (e.g., Education Code, Penal Code, Civil Code, and Labor Code). 

 

Compensated absences. Absences for which compensation is paid (e.g., vacation and sick leave). 
 

Component unit. An organization that is legally separate and for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of 
its relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Financial reporting consisting of three 
sections: (1) introductory section (general information on the LEA’s structure, services, and 
environment); (2) financial section (basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information, together with information on individual funds and discretely presented 
component units not reported separately in the financial statements); and (3) statistical 
section (trend and nonfinancial data useful in interpreting the basic financial statements). 

 

Contingent liabilities. Items that may become liabilities as a result of conditions undetermined at 
a given date (e.g., guarantees, pending lawsuits, judgments and appeals, and unsettled 
disputed claims). 

 

Contra account. An account to record offsetting transactions (e.g., abatements). 

Page 141 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Contract. An agreement between two or more people or entities to do something. Contracts are 
usually in writing and are enforceable by law. 

 

Contracted services. Expenditures for services rendered under contract by personnel who are not 
on the payroll of the LEA, including all related expenditures covered by the contract. 

 

Control account. A summary account, usually maintained in the general ledger, in which is 
entered the aggregate of the debit and the credit postings to a number of identical, similar, or 
related accounts called subsidiary accounts. Its balance equals the sum of the balances of the 
detail accounts. 

 

Cost. The amount of money or its equivalent value paid or agreed to be paid for property or 
services. Cost may be incurred even before money is paid; that is, as soon as a liability is 
assumed. Ultimately, however, money or its equivalent must be given in exchange. The cost 
of some property or service may in turn become part of the cost of another property or 
service. For example, the cost of materials will be reflected in the cost of articles made from 
such materials. 

 

County School Service Fund (CSSF). A fund established to control the financial operations 
of county offices of education. 

 

Credit. The right side of a double-entry posting. Credits will reduce assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, and expenditures and increase liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenue, 
and fund balance. 

 

Current assets. Assets that are available or can be made readily available to meet the cost of 
operations or to pay current liabilities. 

 

Current expense of education. The current general fund operating expenditures of an LEA for 
kindergarten and grades one through twelve, excluding expenditures for food services, 
community services, nonagency activities, fringe benefits for retired persons, acquisition and 
construction of facilities, and objects 6000 and 7000. 

 

Current liabilities. Amounts due and payable for goods and services received prior to the end of 
the fiscal year. Current liabilities should be paid within a relatively short period of time, 
usually within a year. 

 

Current loans. Loans payable in the same fiscal year in which the money was borrowed. 
 

D 
 

Debit. The left side of a double-entry posting. A debit will increase assets and expenditures and 
reduce liabilities, revenue, and fund balance. 

 

Debt limit. The maximum amount of legally permitted debt. 
 

Debt service. Expenditures for the retirement of debt and for interest on debt. 
 

Debt service funds. Funds established to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

Page 142 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Deficit. The amount by which a sum of money falls short of a required amount (e.g., 
apportionment deficits or budget deficits). 

 

Deficit financing. The amount to be provided when estimated expenditures exceed the estimated 
revenues. 

 

Deficit fund balance. The excess of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund over its 
assets and deferred outflows. 

 

Deficit spending. The excess of actual expenditures over actual revenues (also referred to as 
an operating deficit). 

 

Delinquent taxes. Taxes remaining unpaid after the close of the year in which levied. (See also 
Prior years’ taxes, in most cases the preferred term.) 

 

Depreciation. Estimated loss in value or service life of fixed assets because of wear and tear 
through use, elapse of time, inadequacy, or obsolescence. 

 

Direct expenses or costs. Expenses that can be separately identified and charged as parts of the 
cost of a product, service, or department. 

 

Direct support charges. Charges for a support program and services that directly benefit other 
programs. 

 

Disbursements. Payments by currency, check, or warrant. (The term is not synonymous with 
expenditures.) 

 

Double entry. A system of bookkeeping that requires an amount credited for every corresponding 
amount debited. Thus, the double-entry ledger maintains equality of debits and credits. 

 

E 
 

Earned interest revenue. A sum of money received or due to be received for the use of money 
loaned or invested. 

 

EDGAR (Education Department General Administrative Regulations). The regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Education incorporating certain circulars from the Office of Management 
and Budget. EDGAR is found in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, parts 75, 76, 77, 
79, 81, 82, 84, 86, 97, 98, and 99. It is defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, 
Part 77.1. 

 

Employee benefits. Amounts paid by the LEA on behalf of employees. These amounts are not 
included in the gross salary but are over and above. They are fringe-benefit payments; 
although not paid directly to employees, they are nevertheless part of the cost of salaries and 
benefits. Examples are (1) group health or life insurance payments; (2) contributions to 
employee retirement; (3) OASDI (Social Security) taxes; (4) workers’ compensation 
payments; and (5) payments made to personnel on sabbatical leave. 

 

Encroachment. The use of unrestricted moneys to support restricted program expenditures. 
 

Encumbrances. Obligations in the form of purchase orders, contracts, salaries, and other 
commitments chargeable to an appropriation for which a part of the appropriation is reserved. 

Page 143 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Enterprise funds. Funds used to account for those ongoing activities of the LEA that because 
of their income-producing character are similar to those found in the private sector. 

 

Entitlement. An apportionment that is based on specific qualifications or formula defined in 
statute. (This term should not be used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent 
balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Equity accounts. These accounts represent the difference between the assets and deferred 
outflows of resources and the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund. 

 

Estimated revenues. For revenue accounts kept on the accrual basis, this term designates the 
amount of revenue estimated to accrue during a given period regardless of whether all of it is 
to be collected during the period. 

 

Expendable trust fund. A trust fund in which principal and earnings may be expended. 
 

Expenditures. The costs of goods delivered or services rendered, whether paid or unpaid, 
including expenses, provision for debt retirement not reported as a liability of the fund 
from which retired, and capital outlay. 

 

Expenses. Charges incurred, whether paid or unpaid, for operations, maintenance, interest, and 
other charges that are presumed to benefit the current fiscal period. Expense accounts are 
used in certain trust funds and in proprietary-type funds. 

 

F 
 

Face value. As applied to securities, the amount stated in the security document. 
 

Fair value of investments. The amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

 

Fees. Amounts collected from or paid to individuals or groups for services or for use of a 
school or other facility. 

 

Fidelity bond. A form of insurance that provides for the indemnification of the LEA or other 
employer for losses arising from the theft or dishonesty of employees. 

 

Fiscal year. A period of one year, the beginning and the ending dates of which are fixed by 
statute. For LEAs, it is the period beginning July 1 and ending on June 30. 

 

Fixed assets. Assets of a permanent character having continuing value (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, furniture, and equipment), with a cost over the capitalization threshold set by the 
LEA. 

 

Full-time-equivalent (FTE). The ratio of time expended in a part-time position to that of a 
full-time position. The ratio is derived by dividing the amount of time of employment 
required in the part-time position by the amount of employed time required in a 
corresponding full-time position. 

 

Function. An act, service, or group of services proper to a person, thing, or institution and aimed 
at accomplishing a certain end. In SACS, function refers to those activities or services 
performed to accomplish a goal. 

Page 144 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Fund. A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and 
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, that are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accord with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. 

 

Fund balance. The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. The fund equity of governmental and trust funds. 

 

G 
 

General fund. The fund used to finance the ordinary operations of the LEA. It is available 
for any legally authorized purpose. 

 

General journal. A book of original entry for all entries of financial transactions that are not 
recorded in a special journal, such as a cash receipts journal, a voucher register, or a cash 
disbursements journal. 

 

General ledger. A book, file, or other device that contains the accounts needed to reflect, in 
summary and in detail, the financial position, the results of financial operations, and the 
changes in equities of a fund or an account group used by an LEA. 

 

General long-term debt. Long-term debt that is legally payable from general revenue and 
backed by the full faith and credit of an LEA. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Uniform minimum standards of, and 
guidelines to, financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the 
basic financial statements of an entity. These principles encompass the conventions, rules, 
and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practices and procedures. Generally 
accepted accounting principles provide a standard by which to measure financial 
presentations. The primary authoritative source on the application of these principles to state 
and local governments is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

Generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS). Measures of the quality of the performance of 
auditing procedures and the objectives to be attained through their use. The standards are 
concerned with the auditor’s professional qualities and with the judgment exercised in the 
performance of an audit. Generally accepted auditing standards are established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

Generally accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS). Generally accepted auditing 
standards for government are established by the U.S. Government Accountability Office and 
published in Government Auditing Standards, also known as the Yellow Book. 

 

Gift. Anything of value received from any source for which no repayment or service to the 
contributor is expected. 

 

Goal. In SACS, a goal defines an objective or a set of objectives for the LEA. It is used to 
account for the cost of instruction and other services by the instructional goals and objectives 
of an LEA. 

Page 145 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The organization established to issue 
standards of financial accounting and reporting with respect to activities and transactions of 
state and local governmental entities. It is the successor organization to the National Council 
on Governmental Accounting (NCGA). 

 

Grade level. Assigned classification of students according to age and school progress (e.g., 
kindergarten or first grade). 

 

Grant. A contribution, either in money or material goods, made by one governmental entity to 
another. Grants may be intended for specific or general purposes. (This term should not be 
used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Grants-in-aid. See Grant. 
 

H 
 

Holding accounts. Suspense accounts that are used temporarily to accumulate costs that will 
ultimately be charged to other user programs. 

 

I 
 

Income. A term used in accounting for a proprietary-type fund to represent the excess of 
revenues earned over the expenses incurred in carrying on the fund’s operations. The term 
income should not be used in lieu of revenue in governmental-type funds. 

 

Indirect cost. Elements of cost necessary in the operation of the LEA or in the performance of a 
service that are of such nature that the amount applicable to each accounting unit cannot be 
determined readily and accurately or for which the cost of such determination exceeds the 
benefit of the determination. It consists of those business and administrative costs that benefit 
the entire LEA (e.g., accounting, budgeting, personnel, purchasing). 

 

Indirect cost rate (ICR). A method for claiming reimbursement of indirect costs from federal and 
state categorical funds. It is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the indirect costs to direct 
base costs. 

 

Indirect support charges. Charges for routine services not performed as a special service for a 
particular program but allocated to user programs. 

 

In lieu of taxes. Revenue to replace the loss of tax revenue resulting from property that is 
exempted from taxation. 

 

Interest. A fee charged to a borrower for the use of money. 
 

Interfund accounts. Accounts in which transactions between funds are reflected. These include 
interfund transfer accounts and interfund receivable and payable accounts. 

 

Interfund borrowing. The movement of cash from one fund to another with the expectation that 
the borrowing is temporary and will be repaid. Interfund borrowing does not affect the fund 
balance of either the borrowing fund or the lending fund. 

 

Interfund transfers. Money that is taken from one fund under the control of the governing board 
and added to another fund under the board’s control, without the expectation for repayment. 

Page 146 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Interfund transactions other than interfund loans or borrowing, quasi-external transactions, 
and reimbursement. Interfund transfers are not revenues or expenditures. They do not 
increase the resources of the LEA as a whole but they do affect the fund balance of both 
funds. (See also Operating transfers, Residual equity transfers, and Interfund borrowing.) 

 

Interim borrowing. (1) Short-term loans to be repaid from general revenues during the course of 
a fiscal year; (2) short-term loans in anticipation of tax collections or bond issuance. 

 

Interim reports. Reports prepared as of a date or a period during the fiscal year. They include 
budgetary estimates, financial transactions during current year-to-date, and end-of-year 
projections. 

 

Internal audit. An appraisal activity within an LEA that (1) determines the adequacy of the 
system of internal control; (2) verifies and safeguards assets; (3) determines the reliability of 
the accounting and reporting system; (4) ascertains compliance with existing policies and 
procedures; and (5) appraises the performance of activities and work programs. 

 

Internal control. A plan of organization under which employees’ duties are so arranged, and 
records and procedures so designated, as to provide a system of self-checking, thereby 
enhancing accounting control over assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenditures. Under such a 
system, the employees’ work is subdivided so that no single employee performs a complete 
cycle of operation. Such procedures call for proper authorization by designated officials. 

 

Internal service funds. Funds created to render services on a cost-reimbursement basis to other 
organizational units of the LEA. Such funds are generally intended to be self-supporting. 

 

Inventory. A detailed list showing the quantities and a description of the property on hand at a 
given time. It may also include units of measure, unit prices, and values. 

 

Investments. Usually, securities and real estate held for the purpose of generating revenues, such 
as interest, dividends, or rental payments. 

 

Invoice. An itemized statement of charges for merchandise sold or services rendered to the 
purchaser. 

 

J 
 

Job account. An account established to record the accumulation of costs of a specific piece of 
work; work orders showing charges for material and labor used. 

 

Journal. Any accounting record in which the financial transactions of an LEA are formally 
recorded for the first time (e.g., the cash receipts book, check register, and general journal). 

 

Journal voucher. A form provided for the recording of certain transactions or information in 
place of, or supplementary to, the journal or registers. 

 

Judgments. Amounts due to be paid or collected by the LEA as the result of court decisions. 
 

L 
 

LEA. See Local educational agency. 

Page 147 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Lease-purchase agreements. Contractual agreements that are termed “leases” but which, in 
substance, amount to purchase contracts. 

 

Levy. The imposition of taxes or special assessments for the support of governmental activities; 
also, the total amount of taxes, special assessments, or service charges imposed by a 
governmental unit. 

 

Liabilities. Legal obligations (with the exception of encumbrances) that are unpaid. 
 

Line-item budgeting. A budget system emphasizing a “balanced budget” through comparison of 
estimated revenues with projected expenditures. Budgetary divisions are listed by 
organizational units, such as departments or activities, and expenditures are divided into 
major categories of personal services, contracted services and supplies, and capital outlay. 
For budgetary control, further breakdowns of expenditures are made through detailed object 
accounts based on the wide range of services, supplies, and equipment. 

 

Local educational agency (LEA). Typically, a local school district, county office of education, or 
joint powers agency engaged in providing educational services. 

 

Long-term debt. Debt that matures more than one year after the date of issuance. 
 

M 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). The narrative introducing the financial statements and 
providing an analytical overview of the LEA’s financial performance for the year. It should contain 
sufficient information for users of the financial statements to evaluate whether the financial position 
of the LEA has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities. 

 

Modified accrual basis. The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental fund type. Under it, 
revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and “available” to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Most expenditures are recognized (recorded) when the related 
liability is incurred. 

 

Multiyear financial plan. A plan that presents financial estimates of programs in tabular form for 
a period of years. These estimates reflect the future financial impact of current decisions. The 
data in the plan should be organized along the lines of the program structure. 

 

N 
 

Net income. A proprietary fund’s excess of revenues and operating transfers in over expenses 
and operating transfers out. 

 

Not-for-profit organization (NPO). An entity that meets the definition in the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 116, Accounting for Contribution Received and Contribution Made. An entity with the 
following characteristics that separates it from a business enterprise: 

 

x It receives contributions of significant amounts of resources from providers who 
do not expect a commensurate or proportionate pecuniary return. 

Page 148 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
x Its operating purposes are other than to provide goods or services at a profit. 
x Unlike business enterprises, it does not have an interest in ownership. 

 

O 
 

Object. As used in an expenditure classification, object applies to the article purchased or to the 
service obtained. 

 

Obligations. Amounts that the LEA may be legally required to meet from its resources. They 
include not only actual liabilities but also unliquidated encumbrances. 

 

Operating transfers. All interfund transfers other than residual equity transfers. 
 

Order (for payment). A written demand by the governing board of an LEA requiring the county 
superintendent of schools to draw his or her requisition on the county auditor for the payment 
of a claim against the LEA. 

 

Other financing sources. Governmental fund general long-term debt proceeds, operating 
transfers in, and material proceeds of fixed asset dispositions. Such amounts are 
classified separately from revenues. 

 

Other financing uses. Governmental funds’ operating transfers out. Such amounts are classified 
separately from expenditures. 

 

Overdraft. The amount by which checks, drafts, or other demands for payment on the treasury or 
on a bank account exceed the amount of the balance on which they are drawn; or the amount 
by which encumbrances and expenditures exceed the appropriation to which they are 
chargeable. 

 

Overhead. See Indirect cost. 
 

P 
 

Payroll register. A document accompanying one or more orders on a fund of an LEA for the 
payment of salaries or wages to employees; contains the names of such employees and 
provides information substantiating such orders. 

 

Payroll warrant. A document used as an order or a requisition on a fund of an LEA for the 
purpose of paying salaries or wages. 

 

Perpetual inventory. A system whereby the inventory of units of property at any date may be 
obtained directly from the records without resorting to an actual physical count. A record is 
provided for each item or group of items to be inventoried and is divided to provide a 
running record of goods ordered, received, and withdrawn and the balance on hand in units 
and cost. 

 

PERS. Public Employees’ Retirement System. Unless exempted by state law, 
classified employees, their district, and the state contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Personal property. All property except real property. (See also Real property.) 

Page 149 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Petty cash. A sum of money set aside for the purpose of making change or immediate payments 
of small amounts. (See also Revolving cash fund.) 

 

Physical inventory. The annual physical count of an LEA’s inventory. This count is often taken 
at the end of the year and observed by the LEA’s auditors. Periodically, physical inventories 
are conducted to test the accuracy of the perpetual inventory records. 

 

Posting. The act of transferring to an account in a ledger the data, either detailed or summarized, 
contained in a book of original entry. 

 

Prepaid expenses. Expenditures for which payment has been made but for which benefits have 
not been realized as of a certain date (e.g., prepaid rent, prepaid interest, and premiums on 
unexpired insurance). 

 

Prior years’ taxes. Taxes collected within the current fiscal year for levies in previous fiscal 
years. 

 

Program. A group of related activities that operate together to accomplish specific purposes or 
objectives. 

 

Program cost accounting. A method to identify program costs in a standard manner. In SACS, 
the goal field provides the framework for program cost accounting. 

 

Program structure. The hierarchical arrangement of programs that represents the 
interrelationship of activities to goals and objectives. The program structure contains 
categories of activities with common outputs and objectives. Programs may cut across 
existing departments and agencies. 

 

Project year. A field in SACS that is used to distinguish the activities of grants, sometimes 
known as special projects, whose “project year” or “reporting year” is different from the 
LEA fiscal year. 

 

Prorating. The allocating of expenditures or revenue from a single source to two or more 
accounts to show the correct distribution of charges or revenue. 

 

Purchase order. A document issued to a vendor that authorizes the delivery of specified 
merchandise or the performance of certain services and the making of a charge for them. 

 

R 
 

Real property. Property consisting of land, buildings, minerals, timber, landscaping, and all 
improvements thereto. 

 

Rebate. See Abatement or Refund. 
 

Receipts. Cash received. 
 

Reclassification. Redesignation of the current year’s revenue or expenditure items previously 
posted to one account and later determined to be more properly charged to a different 
account. 

 

Refund. An amount paid back or credit allowed because of an over-collection. 

Page 150 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Registered warrant. A warrant that is registered by the county treasurer for future 
payment because of a present lack of funds and that is to be paid with interest in the 
order of its registration. 

 

Registers. A listing of transactions of like kind that may be totaled and summarized for 
convenience in posting (e.g., payroll registers, warrant registers, and attendance 
registers). 

 

Reimbursement. Cash or other assets received as a repayment of the cost of work or services 
performed; or repayment of expenditures made for or on behalf of another governmental unit, 
fund, or department. 

 

Requisition. A document submitted initiating a purchase order to secure specified 
articles, services, or issuance of materials from stores or a warehouse. 

 

Reserve for economic uncertainties. The portion of the fund balance that has been designated (set 
aside) by the governing board to provide for emergencies or economic events, such as 
revenue shortfalls, that could not be anticipated. 

 

Reserve for encumbrances. An account used to segregate a portion of a fund balance for 
outstanding encumbrances. 

 

Residual equity transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds of the 
LEA (e.g., transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds to the general fund or 
contribution of internal service fund capital by the general fund). 

 

Resource. A field in SACS that is used to classify revenues and resulting expenditures in accord 
with restrictions or special reporting requirements placed on either aspects of LEA financial 
activities by law or regulation. Further, because such revenues frequently are not fully 
expended within a fiscal year, and related liabilities are not completely liquidated, the 
resource code is also to reflect restrictions and special reporting obligations on balance sheet 
accounts. 

 

Restricted funds. Money whose use is restricted by legal requirement or by the donor. 
 

Revenues. The increases in a fund’s financial resources other than from interfund transfers or 
debt issue proceeds. Revenues are the primary financial resource of a fund. Revenues are 
recognized when assets are increased without increasing liabilities or incurring an 
expenditure reimbursement. 

 

Revolving cash fund. An account used primarily for emergency or small disbursements and 
reimbursed periodically through properly documented expenditures, which are summarized 
and charged to proper accounting classifications. 

 

S 
 

SACS. Acronym for standardized account code structure. 
 

Schedules. Explanatory or supplementary statements that accompany the balance sheet or other 
financial statements. 

Page 151 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Secured roll. Assessed value of real property, such as land, buildings, secured personal 
property, or anything permanently attached to land, as determined by each county assessor. 

 

Securities. Bonds, notes, mortgages, or other forms of negotiable or nonnegotiable instruments. 
 

Serial annuity bonds. Serial bonds in which the annual installments of bond principal are so 
arranged that the combined payments for principal and interest are approximately the same 
each year. 

 

Serial bonds. Bonds whose principal is repaid in periodic installments over the life of the issue. 
 

Shared revenue. Revenue that is levied by one governmental unit but that is shared, usually in 
proportion to the amount collected, with another unit of government or class of governments. 

 

Short-term debt. Debt with a maturity of one year or less after the date of issuance. Short-term 
debt usually includes bond anticipation notes payable and tax and revenue anticipation notes 
(TRANs) payable. 

 

Source document. Any voucher, invoice, or other data that support an entry in the accounting 
records. 

 

Special revenue funds. Funds established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to finance particular activities other than capital 
projects or debt service and not held in trust for other individuals or entities. 

 

Standardized account code structure (SACS). A uniform, comprehensive, and minimum chart of 
accounts for classifying the financial activities of California LEAs. 

 

Statements. (1) In a general sense, all of those formal written presentations that set forth financial 
information; (2) in technical accounting, those presentations of financial data that show the 
financial position and the results of financial operations of a fund, a group of accounts, or an 
entire LEA for a particular accounting period. 

 

State School Fund. A special revenue fund within the State Treasury used for apportionments to 
school districts and county offices of education on the basis of the Local Control Funding 
Formula and certain other special-purpose apportionments. Apportionments are made by the 
State Controller and are based on certifications from the California Department of Education. 

 

Stores. Goods that are on hand in storerooms and that are subject to requisition. 
 

STRS. State Teachers’ Retirement System. State law requires certificated employees, school 
districts, and the state to contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Student body fund. An agency fund to control the receipts and the disbursements of student 
associations’ activities; it consists only of assets and liabilities. 

 

Subsidiary ledger. A supporting ledger consisting of a group of accounts, the total of which is in 
agreement with a control account (e.g., payroll ledger and appropriations ledger). 

 

Subvention. Provision of assistance or financial support, usually from a superior governmental 
unit; a grant. 

Page 152 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Supply. An item of an expendable nature that is consumed, wears out, or deteriorates in use; or 
one that loses its identity through fabrication or incorporation into a different or more 
complex unit or substance. 

 

Surety bond. A written promise to pay damages or to indemnify against losses caused by the 
party or parties named in the document, through nonperformance or through defalcation (e.g., 
a surety bond given by a contractor or by an official who handles cash or securities). 

 

Suspense account. An account that temporarily carries charges or credits pending 
the determination of the proper account or accounts. 

 

T 
 

Tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs). Notes issued in anticipation of collection of taxes, 
usually retirable only from tax collections and frequently only from the proceeds of the tax 
levy whose collection they anticipate. 

 

Tax liens. Claims by governmental units on properties for which taxes levied remain unpaid. 
 

Tax rate. The amount of tax stated in terms of a unit of the tax base. 
 

Tax rate limit. The maximum rate of tax that a governmental unit may levy. 
 

Tax redemption. Proceeds from the sale of tax-delinquent property. 
 

Tax relief subventions. Funds ordinarily paid to compensate for taxes lost because of tax relief 
measures. 

 

Tax roll. The list showing the amount of taxes levied against each taxpayer or property. 
 

Taxes. Compulsory charges levied by a governmental unit for the purpose of financing 
services performed for the common benefit. 

 

Taxes, protested. Tax money paid under protest and held by the county auditor pending 
settlement of the protest. 

 

Taxes receivable. An asset account representing the uncollected portion of taxes levied. 
 

Term bond. A bond whose entire principal matures on a single date. 
 

Trade discount. A reduction of the list price, usually expressed as a percentage and related to the 
volume of business transacted. (The term is not to be confused with Cash discount.) 

 

Transfer. Interdistrict or interfund payments or receipts not chargeable to expenditures or 
credited to revenue. (See also Budget transfer and Interfund transfers.) 

 

Trial balance. A list of the balances of the accounts in a ledger kept by double entry, with the 
debit and credit balances shown in separate columns. If the totals of the debit and credit 
columns are equal or if their net balances agree with a control account, the ledgers from 
which the figures are taken are said to be “in balance.” 

 

Trust fund. A fund used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Page 153 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Tuition. An amount charged for educational services provided to a student. 
 

U 
 

Unaudited actuals. An annual statement reporting the financial activities of the LEA in which 
the data are not yet audited. 

 

Unearned revenue. A liability for resources received prior to revenue recognition. 
 

Unencumbered balance. That portion of an appropriation or allotment not yet expended or 
obligated. 

 

Unit cost. The total expenditure for a product, program, or service divided by the total quantity 
obtained or some other quantitative measure (e.g., the total expenditure for desks divided by 
the number of desks equals the cost per desk). 

 

Unrealized revenue. Estimated revenue less revenue received to date; also, the estimated revenue 
for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

 

Unsecured roll. Assessed value of personal property other than secured property. 
 

V 
 

Voucher. A written document that evidences the propriety of transactions and usually 
indicates the amounts that are to be recorded. 

 

W 
 

Warrant. A written order, drawn by the LEA’s governing board or its authorized officer(s) or 
employee(s), approved by the county superintendent of schools and allowed by the county 
auditor, directing the county treasurer to pay a specified amount to a designated payee. 

 

Warrants payable. The amount of warrants issued, outstanding, and unpaid. 
 

Withholding. The process of deducting from a salary or wage payment an amount, specified by 
law or regulation, representing the individual’s estimated federal or state income tax that the 
employer must pay to the taxing authority. 

 

Work in process. The value of partially completed products manufactured or processed, such as a 
partially completed printing job. 

 

Work order. A written authorization for the performance of a particular job containing a 
description of the nature and location of the job and specifications for the work that is to be 
performed. Such authorizations are usually assigned job numbers, and provision is made for 
accumulating and reporting labor, material, and other costs. 

 

Workstation. Computer, personal computers, or work areas assigned for data processing 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised January 2019 Glossary 18 

Page 154 of 154



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5000.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 1 of 3 

Reclassification/Redesignation of English Language Learner 
Students 

The Colusa County Board of Education believes that all students have the right to receive an 
appropriate instructional program that will enable them to achieve to their highest potential. The 
Colusa County Office of Education (County Office) shall continue to provide additional and 
appropriate educational services to English Language Learners for the purposes of overcoming 
language barriers until the English Language Learner has: 

1. Demonstrated English Language Proficiency comparable to that of the county’s average native 
English Language speakers; and 

2. Demonstrated significant progress in all areas of the core curriculum. 

English Language Learners shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient when they are able to 
comprehend, speak, read and write English well enough to receive instruction in the regular 
program and make academic progress at a level substantially equivalent to that of students of the 
same age or grade whose primary language is English and who are in the regular course of study. 

The following criteria shall be used to determine whether an English Language Learner shall be 
reclassified as fluent English proficient:  

The procedures used to determine whether an English learner shall be reclassified as fluent English 
proficient shall include, but not be limited to: 

1. Assessment of English Language Proficiency, utilizing the California English Language 
Development Test as the primary criterion, and objective assessment of the student's English 
reading and writing skills  

1. Assessment of English language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument, 
including, but not limited to, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California 
(ELPAC). 

2. Evaluation of the student's English language proficiency and curriculum mastery by the student's 
primary teacher and any other staff with direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions  

2. Participation of the student's classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with direct 
responsibility for teaching or placement decisions related to the student. 

3. Parent/guardian opinion, consultation, and recommendation during a reclassification interview  

3. Parent/guardian involvement, including: 

   

12.4 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5000.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 2 of 3 

a. Notice to parents/guardians of language reclassification and placement, including a 
description of the reclassification process and the parent/guardian's opportunity to 
participate 

b. Encouragement of parent/guardian participation in the County Office’s reclassification 
procedure, including seeking parent/guardian opinion and consultation during the 
reclassification process 

4. Comparison of performance and other objective data in basic skills, including performance on 
the English‐Language Arts section of the California Standards Test against an empirically 
established range of performed basic skills by English Proficient students of the same age for at 
least two years  

Student performance on an objective assessment of basic skills in English that shows whether the 
student is performing at or near grade level. 

Staff shall provide a notice and a description of the reclassification process to parents/guardians, 
including their right to participate. Staff shall encourage parents'/guardians' participation in the 
process. 

The student's language proficiency assessments, the participants in the reclassification process, and 
any decisions regarding reclassification shall be retained in the student's permanent record. 

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor the progress of reclassified students to ensure their 
correct classification and placement. 

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor students for at least four years following their 
reclassification to ensure correct classification and placement and to determine whether any 
additional academic support is needed. 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide subsequent monitoring and support for reclassified 
students, including but not limited to monitoring the performance of reclassified students in the 
core curriculum in comparison with their native English speaking peers, monitoring the rate of 
reclassification, and ensuring correct classification and placement.  

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a process to monitor the effectiveness of the 
County's program for English Language Learners. The County's program shall be modified as 
needed to help ensure language and academic success for each English Language Learner.  

Procedures for implementing this policy shall follow the guidelines for reclassification of English 
Learners adopted by the California Department of Education. in October 2008. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5000.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 3 of 3 

References: 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
  11303 Multilingual and English learner education reclassification 
  11304 Multilingual and English learner education monitoring 
  11305 Multilingual and English learner education documentation 
Education Code 
  313 English Language Proficiency Assessment 
  52164 Bilingual‐Bicultural Education Act of 1976 (BBEA) 
  52164.6 BBEA Reclassification criteria 
 
Adopted:  March 11, 2009 
Revised:  January 12, 2022 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, January 12, 2022 
 
TIME:  3:45 pm  Interview(s) for Trustee Area 3 Applicant(s) 
  4:00 pm  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

3:45 pm – 4:00 pm Interview(s) for Trustee Area 3 Applicant(s) 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 
4.2 Awarding of Diploma – S. William Abel Academy 
4.3 CSBA Region 4 Update 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No December Meeting 

No Department Reports 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the December 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

8.2 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision  action 
BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation of English 

    Language Learner Students 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Accept 2020‐21 Financial Audit Report, Presented by  action 
  James Marta & Co. – Jesse Deol, CPA, ARM 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revisions  information 
11.2.1 BP 9220 Governing Board Election 
11.2.2 BP 6173 Education for Homeless Children 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
February 9, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Board of Education 

Susan Goto 
Area I 

Sergey Terebkov 
Area I 

Robert Tomasini 
Area I 

Kelli Gnile 
Areo2 

David Patterson, Ed.D. 
Area3 

Lynn Oliver 
Areo4 

E. Ken Tokutomi 
Area4 

Superintendent's Cabinet 

Phillip J. Williams 
Depucy Superinrendem 

Martin Fregoso 
Associore Superintendent 

Business Services 

Susan Con nolly 
~ssisranr Superinrendenc 

Srudem Services 

Jennifer Hicks 
Ass,sronr Superimendenr 

Educoriono! Serv,ces 

Colleen Slattery, Ed.D. 
41sisronr Superinrendenr 

Human Re1ource5 

Troy Tickle 
A!Sisrom Superimendenr 

SELPA 

Michelle Eklund 
Ch•ef CommunicoMr>s Officer 

Super,mendenr s Office 

December 15, 2021 

PCGE 
G O LD IN EDUCATION 

Gayle Garbolino-Mojica 
County Superintendent of Schools 

Dear President Edwards and Colusa County Board of Education: 

Happy Holidays to all Region 4 County Boards of Education and County Superintendents. I urge 

everyone to use the holidays to enjoy time with family and friends and personally recharge. 

Determined to be an optimist, I hope 2022 will be a brighter year for our students and families 

and all those who work so hard in our schools to serve them. As we are halfway through the 

2021-2022 school year, our schools and communities continue to face tremendous challenges; 

critical staff shortages, ongoing impacts of COVID including conflicts over masking and vaccines 

and the non-stop deluge of new plans and reports required by Sacramento. 

The Legislative Analyst Office is predicting a budget surplus of 31 BILLION DOLLARS for the 
2022-2023 year. At the same time, school districts across the state (including school districts in 
my county) are projecting severe funding shortfalls and are planning to issue layoff notices. 
How can both things be true? I have yet to find an article that fully explains the dilemma. 
However, here is a link to a CALMATTERS article titled "California schools are running out of 
money" (https://calmatters.org/newsletters/whatmatters/2021/10/california-schools
funding/l and attached to this letter is a CSBA update on legislative priorities for the upcoming 
year. 

The CSBA Annual Education Conference, held just a few weeks ago, was an excellent in-person 
conference. There were many very helpful sessions, including a strong strand for county board 

members. After two years it was good to see many of you and to learn, discuss and network with 
each other. A priority for CCBE for 2022 is supporting county board/county office governance. The 

Placer County Board of Education and County Superintendent did a joint session on our shared 

governance work that you may find helpful. More information can be found here 

http://www.placercoe.org/PCOEDocuments/PCOE/About/Board-of-Education/AEC-
Compact 2021.pdf. 

If I can be of assistance, please call or email me. 

David Patterson, Ed .D. 
Regional 4 County Representative 

cc: Mike West, Superintendent 

Placer County Office of Education 360 Nevada Street, Auburn, CA 95603 
P 530.889.8020 • F 866.840.2941 • www.placercoe.org 

Ar> 4 ,,a OpportuniryEmpl 1y~r - Printedonre,:ycledparn 



December 13, 2021 CSBA Update 

State budget blueprints forecast 

legislative priorities 

 

As the year draws to a close, the California State Senate and Assembly have unveiled 

their budget blueprints for 2022. As education stakeholders look ahead to the 

Governor’s January Budget Proposal and the beginning of negotiations between 

legislators and the Newsom administration in the new year, these documents provide 

insight into where the Legislature plans to focus funds. 

Assembly to focus on “Delivering Prosperity” and “Strengthening the Future” 

The Assembly blueprint outlines two major focuses: “Delivering Prosperity” by ensuring 

that the investments made in the 2021 budget are successful and “Strengthening the 

Future” with new targeted investments. Highlights for education include: 

• $10 billion for school facilities 

• Ensuring that increased school funding aids students facing learning loss and mental 

health struggles 

• Overseeing the implementation of universal transitional kindergarten 

• Establishing accountability measures for the Children and Youth Behavioral Initiative 

established in 2021 

• Providing broadband access to inaccessible rural and urban communities 

Senate outlines three “Key Values” 

The Senate plan is built around three “Key Values”: sustain progress, strengthen equity 

while meeting Gann limit requirements and build a more equitable economy. For 

education, the most influential of the goals the Senate lays out may be: 

https://a19.asmdc.org/sites/a19.asmdc.org/files/2021-12/2022%20Budget%20Blueprint%20FNL_0.pdf
https://sbud.senate.ca.gov/sites/sbud.senate.ca.gov/files/1208-SenateBudgetPlan-Step1.pdf


• Paying down state debts and retirement liabilities 

• Utilizing one-time funds for one-time/short-term purposes 

• Maximizing infrastructure investments, including for schools 

• Boosting 21st-century infrastructure, including education and broadband 

• Closing learning gaps and protecting local school budgets 

What’s next 

Gov. Newsom is expected to announce his January budget proposal early in the new 

year, which will mark the official start of the 2022 budget season. As CSBA looks ahead, 

recommitment to the Local Control Funding Formula, employer pension contributions, 

declining enrollment, average daily attendance growth during COVID, funding for 

education facilities, and transportation are among the top budget issues on which 

CSBA will continue to advocate. As always, the Governmental Relations team will 

continue to provide updates and opportunities for advocacy as the budget cycle moves 

forward. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting December 14, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found on Page 6 

Board Members Present: Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present: Antonio Garcia, Angelina Guizar, Ginger Harlow, Aaron Heinz, Betty Huson, 

Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, 
Kim Owens, Stefani Silvas Santana, Chase Thacker, Angelica Velazquez, 
Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 4.1 to follow 4.2 
Add 4.3 Board Correspondence 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Agenda item 4.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.2. 

4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 
Lorilee Niesen reported on two recent graduates from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the graduate in attendance (and at 4:51 pm, the 
second Adult Education graduate), presented them with a diploma, gave them a 
portfolio to organize their professional papers, and asked them to share with the 
Board their plans for the future and to introduce their guests. Lorilee also 
reported on a SWAA graduate not in attendance.  Discussion was held on 
students who attend SWAA voluntarily and on those who attend because of 
expulsion. 

4.2 Awarding of Certificates of Completion – Early Literacy Certification 
Michael West summarized the Early Literacy Certification program, and he asked 
Communications Director Alissa Maas and IAL Interim Project Director Stefani 
Silvas Santana to present Early Literacy Certificates of Completion to Kim Owens, 
Betty Huson, Angelica Velazquez.  Maria Rivas, Melissa Santillan and Gabby Silva 
were not present to receive their certificates. 

4.3 Board Correspondence 
Board President Cristy Edwards reported that she received a letter of resignation 
from Board Trustee Area 3 Jason McMullan.  She also reported on a letter that 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

she received from the Nuremberg Foundation regarding the potential liability of 
requiring COVID 19 vaccinations, and discussion was held. 

5.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
5.1 Accept President Rotation Schedule 

Because Trustee Area 3 resigned and was in line to be the 2022 Board President, 
discussion was held on nominating Brenda Miller to be President. 

Cristy Edwards/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to elect Brenda 
Miller for 2022 Board President (Attachment A). 

5.2 Accept the 2022 Schedule of Meetings 

Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to accept the 2022 
Schedule of Meetings (Attachment B). 

5.3 Set 2022 Liaison Assignments 
Discussion was held on leaving the 2022 Liaison Assignments the same as 2021 
and on leaving Trustee Area 3 assignments blank until the seat is filled.  
Discussion was also held on filling the Trustee Area 3 vacancy and the 
anticipated Trustee Area 2 vacancy. 

Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three ayes, 
one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to set 2022 Liaison 
Assignments the same as 2021 assignments and leaving Trustee Area 3 
assignments blank (Attachment C). 

At 4:51 pm, the second Adult Education graduate arrived, and the Board returned to item 4.1.  
Immediately following the awarding of his diploma, the Board moved forward to item 6.0. 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
7.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

7.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided the Board with an update on the districts.  He 
reported on his participation and attendance in activities, such as 
completion of his Williams Settlement Act responsibilities, a meeting with 
Colusa County Probation and Behavioral Health about the Inmate and 
Day Reporting Center Education Programs, a meeting with Assemblyman 
Gallagher during a Farm Bureau breakfast, the Healing California event 
that was coordinated by Estefania Aceves and hosted by Claudia Deniz, 
continued work on the CDE Literacy/Biliteracy Task Force Committee, 
sitting in on Deputy Superintendent of Administrative Services Aaron 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

Heinz’s presentation to the CASBO Sacramento Section 2021 Holiday 
Workshop on retention and promotion of staff that Aaron will also 
present during the CASBO Annual Conference, attending the Early 
Literacy Certification cohort celebration, participating with Ed Conrado in 
a Glenn COE expulsion hearing panel, and visiting all school sites as part 
of Alissa Maas’ Teacher and Employee of the Trimester recognition 
activities.  Michael provided an update on the projected budget and on 
Proposition 98 set aside dollars that included a Schools Services of 
California projection of $17,690 per student ADA; however, he said the 
Assembly wants monies dedicated to education infrastructure, full 
implementation of the TK program, student learning loss and mental 
health, and the Senate wants monies to pay down the state debt and 
retirement liabilities, education infrastructure, closing the learning gap, 
and protecting local school budgets.  Discussion was held on Special 
Education funding, including the potential dismantling of the SELPA.  
Discussion was held on Governor Newsom’s plans for dyslexia, on 
teachers personally providing supplies for their classrooms, and on 
districts leaving Title I monies on the tables. 

7.1.2 Superintendents Council – November Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
November and the group continued to review issues, challenges, and 
solutions related to COVID 19 and education, as well as discussed 
maintaining substitute teacher vaccination/testing status, and the 
upcoming schedule of meetings.  Michael said that during the meeting, 
Deputy Superintendent of Student Services Chuck Wayman hosted a 
presentation by Colusa County Department of Behavioral Health Interim 
Director Noel O’Neill on Mr. O’Neill’s pursuit of a State $2.3 million grant 
to provide a wellness center on a site in each district. 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Ed Conrado thanked Cristy Edwards for her presidency over the last year. 

8.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion 
carried three ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve 
the following Consent Agenda items: 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the November 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
9.2 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision 

BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision (Previously titled Budget Adoption and 
Control Policy 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

No update. 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on continued discussions about the Adult Education 
portable placement and plan, and on the action plan for low water vegetation 
and trees located in front of the Education Village.  Michael added that Lorilee 
Niesen and Craig Richards secured planter box bricks at a price well below cost. 

11.2.1 Williams Property Escrow Complete 
Michael West reported on the completion and closure of the Williams 
property sale. 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Lorilee Niesen reported that CDE released the new template for the next LCAP, 
and that CDE provided training and examples on the new template completion.  
Lorilee said that she is working on the Supplement to the Annual Update that 
will come to the board for approval in February, and on the districts’ timeline for 
LCAP updates. 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Alissa Maas introduced Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Interim Project 
Director Stefani Silvas Santana and Alissa reported on grant activities.  Michael 
West spoke about Stefani’s visibility in the community and her great work with 
parents. 

12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 Approve the 2021-26 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan 

Chuck Wayman reported that the 2021-26 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
Plan was brought to the Board as an information item in November, and he 
spoke about the grant.  Discussion was held on the focus on trauma and socio-
emotional needs, and Chuck spoke about bringing district counselors together to 
develop a shared vision and training. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried three ayes, 
one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve the 2021-26 
Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan. 
 
Discussion was held on recruiting people into education, on making salaries 
competitive, on credential requirements, on bridge programs from ECE to TK, 
intern limits in the classroom and services, and rural representation on 
legislative committees such as CASBO, ACSA, and CCSESA. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

12.2 Approve 2021-22 First Interim Report 
Aaron Heinz began his presentation of the First Interim Report by speaking on 
“messaging” to the legislature regarding the fiscal cliff and one-time funds, while 
schools are still fighting rising retirement costs and declining ADA.  Aaron drew 
the Board’s attention to the new glossary of account codes and terms section in 
the First Interim Report.  Aaron reported on Financial Assumptions that indicate 
the budget is in good shape and he said that the 2020-21 Audit Report indicated 
zero findings.  Aaron also spoke about the COE Certification Form that certified 
CCOE’s financial condition as positive, which means that CCOE will meet its 
financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two years.  Aaron 
reviewed the summary of unrestricted/restricted revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance that indicates expenses are more than revenues, but 
that figure does not include monies from the property sale.  Discussion was held 
on not using property sale funds for salaries and or benefits.  Aaron also 
reviewed the multi-year projections for restricted and unrestricted funds that 
indicate deficit spending in 2022-23 and 2023-24. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve the 
2021-22 First Interim Report. 

12.3 Cancel December 15, 2021, Contingency Meeting 

Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three ayes, 
one absent (Brenda Miller), one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve cancelling 
the December 15, 2021, Contingency Meeting. 

12.4 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision 
BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation of English Language Learner 
Students 
Cristy Edwards mentioned that the policy number on the draft indicates BP 5000, 
not 5122, and Tina Maxwell will correct the policy number.  Lorilee Niesen 
reported that changes were made to BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation 
of English Language Learner Students to be compliant with current law, and the 
policy will be brought forward to the January 2022 Board meeting for a second 
reading.  Lorilee also reported that an Education for Homeless Children Policy 
will be brought to the January 2022 meeting as a first reading. 

13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

• 2020-21 Financial Audit Report, Presented by James Marta & Co. 
• Second Reading of BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation of 

English Language Learner Students 
• First Reading of BP 6173.00 Education for Homeless Children 

  



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
The contingency meeting scheduled for December 15, 2021, was cancelled 
during item 12.3 above. 

13.3 Next Regular Board Meeting 
January 12, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:14 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered  Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
     
Cristy Edwards, 2021 President  Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education  and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 

ACRONYMS 
 

ACSA Association of California School Administrators 
ADA Average Daily Attendance 
BP Board Policy 
CASBO California Association of School Business Officials 
CCOE Colusa County Office of Education 
CCSESA California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 
CDE California Department of Education 
COE County Office of Education 
COVID 19 Corona Virus 2019 
ECE Early Childhood Education 
IAL Innovative Approaches to Literacy 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 
SWAA S. William Abel Academy 
TK Transitional Kindergarten 

 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation

Accepted December 14, 2021

Attachment A

YEAR LOCATION

TRUSTEE

AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION

TRUSTEE

AREA PRESIDENT

2026 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Williams 3 Vacant 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Board Terms/Rotation/Rotation.xlsx



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  December 14, 2021 

Attachment B 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2022 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 12 – Regular Meeting 

February 9 – Regular Meeting 

March 9 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 13 – Regular Meeting 

May 11 – Regular Meeting 

June 14 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

*June 15 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 13 – Regular Meeting 

August 10 – Regular Meeting 

September 14 – Regular Meeting 

October 12 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 9 – Regular Meeting 

December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

*Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

  AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2022 is Friday, December 9 

to Saturday, December 24, 2022. Additionally, the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 15 
meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if so 
the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2022 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2022 LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 
Accepted December 14, 2021 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services  Brenda Miller  Barry Morrell 

Administrative Services  Ed Conrado  Barry Morrell 

Business Services  Vacant  Brenda Miller 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council  Vacant  Brenda Miller 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board  Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell  Cristy Edwards 

Special Education & SELPA Council  Ed Conrado  Vacant 

Educational Services  Cristy Edwards  Vacant 

Superintendent’s Salary  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell  No Alternate 

 
 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Cristy Edwards 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Vacant 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5122.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 1 of 3 

Reclassification/Redesignation of English Language Learner 
Students 

The Colusa County Board of Education believes that all students have the right to receive an 
appropriate instructional program that will enable them to achieve to their highest potential. The 
Colusa County Office of Education (County Office) shall continue to provide additional and 
appropriate educational services to English Language Learners for the purposes of overcoming 
language barriers until the English Language Learner has: 

1. Demonstrated English Language Proficiency comparable to that of the county’s average native 
English Language speakers; and 

2. Demonstrated significant progress in all areas of the core curriculum. 

English Language Learners shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient when they are able to 
comprehend, speak, read and write English well enough to receive instruction in the regular 
program and make academic progress at a level substantially equivalent to that of students of the 
same age or grade whose primary language is English and who are in the regular course of study. 

The following criteria shall be used to determine whether an English Language Learner shall be 
reclassified as fluent English proficient:  

The procedures used to determine whether an English learner shall be reclassified as fluent English 
proficient shall include, but not be limited to: 

1. Assessment of English Language Proficiency, utilizing the California English Language 
Development Test as the primary criterion, and objective assessment of the student's English 
reading and writing skills  

1. Assessment of English language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument, 
including, but not limited to, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California 
(ELPAC). 

2. Evaluation of the student's English language proficiency and curriculum mastery by the student's 
primary teacher and any other staff with direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions  

2. Participation of the student's classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with direct 
responsibility for teaching or placement decisions related to the student. 

3. Parent/guardian opinion, consultation, and recommendation during a reclassification interview  

3. Parent/guardian involvement, including: 

   

8.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5122.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 2 of 3 

a. Notice to parents/guardians of language reclassification and placement, including a 
description of the reclassification process and the parent/guardian's opportunity to 
participate 

b. Encouragement of parent/guardian participation in the County Office’s reclassification 
procedure, including seeking parent/guardian opinion and consultation during the 
reclassification process 

4. Comparison of performance and other objective data in basic skills, including performance on 
the English‐Language Arts section of the California Standards Test against an empirically 
established range of performed basic skills by English Proficient students of the same age for at 
least two years  

Student performance on an objective assessment of basic skills in English that shows whether the 
student is performing at or near grade level. 

Staff shall provide a notice and a description of the reclassification process to parents/guardians, 
including their right to participate. Staff shall encourage parents'/guardians' participation in the 
process. 

The student's language proficiency assessments, the participants in the reclassification process, and 
any decisions regarding reclassification shall be retained in the student's permanent record. 

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor the progress of reclassified students to ensure their 
correct classification and placement. 

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor students for at least four years following their 
reclassification to ensure correct classification and placement and to determine whether any 
additional academic support is needed. 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide subsequent monitoring and support for reclassified 
students, including but not limited to monitoring the performance of reclassified students in the 
core curriculum in comparison with their native English speaking peers, monitoring the rate of 
reclassification, and ensuring correct classification and placement.  

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a process to monitor the effectiveness of the 
County's program for English Language Learners. The County's program shall be modified as 
needed to help ensure language and academic success for each English Language Learner.  

Procedures for implementing this policy shall follow the guidelines for reclassification of English 
Learners adopted by the California Department of Education. in October 2008. 

   



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5122.00 
Series 5000—Students  Page 3 of 3 

References: 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
  11303 Multilingual and English learner education reclassification 
  11304 Multilingual and English learner education monitoring 
  11305 Multilingual and English learner education documentation 
Education Code 
  313 English Language Proficiency Assessment 
  52164 Bilingual‐Bicultural Education Act of 1976 (BBEA) 
  52164.6 BBEA Reclassification criteria 
 
Adopted:  March 11, 2009 
Revised:  January 12, 2022 



               James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

 

                              Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 

 

 

 
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 

www.jpmcpa.com    jdeol@jpmcpa.com 

 

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED  
WITH GOVERNANCE 

 
December 14, 2021 
 
To the Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office 
of Education”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 14, 2021. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to 
our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated November 13, 2018, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the financial statements that have 
been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the 
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the County Office of 
Education solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you.  
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 
 
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence. 
 

http://www.jpmcpa.com/
mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

2 

We follow the AICPA Ethics Standard Rule 201C, in conjunction with this, we annually review with all 
engagement staff potential conflicts and obtain a conflict certification. In addition, we inquire on each 
engagement about potential conflicts with staff. We have not identified any relationships or other matters 
that in the auditor’s judgment may be reasonably thought to bear on independence. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by County Office of Education is included in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 
accounting policies or their application during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. No matters have come to 
our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used 
to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in 
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. However, 
there are new Governmental Accounting Standards that may affect the County Office of Education in future 
years. See Attachment A. 
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience 
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility 
that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the collectability of 
receivables and the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of net pension liability and net OPEB 
liability. 
 
Management’s estimate of the collectability of receivables is based on past experience with collections from 
various entities. The estimate for the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of net pension 
liabilities and net OPEB liabilities are based on respective actuarial studies. We evaluated key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 
 
Financial Statement Disclosures 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgement and are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to financial statement users. The pension disclosures included in footnote 6, required 
significant judgements to calculate the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for CalPERS and STRS.  The OPEB disclosures included in footnote 7, required significant 
judgements to calculate the County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability. 

 
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the 
audit. 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

3 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate 
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also 
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of 
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable 
opinion unit.  There were no uncorrected misstatements identified as a result of our audit procedures. 
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements 
that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. There were no audit 
adjustments identified as a result of our audit procedures. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
which could be significant to the County Office of Education’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. 
No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 
 
Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached 
letter dated December 14, 2021. See Attachment B. 
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the County Office of Education, we generally 
discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect 
the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as 
the County Office of Education’s auditors. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

4 

Other Services 
 
We have assisted management in preparing the financial statements of the County Office of Education in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by 
management.  
 
Management’s responsibilities for other services included designated qualified individuals with the skill, 
knowledge, and experience to be responsible and accountable for overseeing financial statement preparation 
and any other nonattest services we performed as part of this engagement. Management has represented that 
they have evaluated the adequacy and results of those services we performed as part of this engagement. 
Management has represented that they have evaluated the adequacy and results of those services and is 
accepted responsibility for them. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education and management of 
Colusa County Office of Education and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 14, 2021 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

5 

Attachment A – Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards 
As of June 30, 2021 
 
The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have been 
released recently and may be applicable to the Charter in the near future. We encourage management to 
review the following information and determine which standard(s) may be applicable to the Charter. For the 
complete text of these and other GASB standards, visit www.gasb.org and click on the “Standards & 
Guidance” tab. If you have questions regarding the applicability, timing, or implementation approach for 
any of these standards, please contact your audit team. 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 
 
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single 
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use 
an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible 
right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of 
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing 
activities. 
 
The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 87. 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction 
Period 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 
 
This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance 
with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are 
superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported 
in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. 
 
This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as 
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. 
 
We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

6 

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023  
 
The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by 
issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This 
Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; 
establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for 
accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by 
issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. 
 
We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 
 
GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020  
Effective dates vary  
 
The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified 
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of 
topics and includes specific provisions about the following: 
 

• The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for 
interim financial reports – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

• Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a 
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB) plan – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

• The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets 
accumulated for postemployment benefits – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

• The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 
postemployment benefit arrangements – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

• Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a 
government acquisition – Effective for the government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2020 

• Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess 
insurers – Effective for the fiscal year ending December, 2021 

• Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature 
– Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

• Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 
31, 2021 

 
The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 92. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

7 

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 
 
The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications 
that result from the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: 
 

• Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting 
termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative 
instrument’s variable payment 

• Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace 
the reference rate 

• Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, 
affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable 

• Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the 
effectiveness of an interest rate swap 

• Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as 
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest 
rate swap 

• Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended 
 
Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease 
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend. 
 
We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 
 
GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 
 
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to 
public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an 
arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or 
nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a 
nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of 
time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession 
arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects 
and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or 
approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the 
services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to 
significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. 
 
This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment 
arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government 
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or 
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 
 
We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 
 
 
 
GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance  



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

8 

Effective immediately 
 
The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other 
stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the 
effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or 
are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. 
 
The effective dates of the preceding statements have been updated to reflect the impact of the issuance of 
GASB 95. 
 
The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 95. 
 
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 
 
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement 
(1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible 
asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other 
than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures 
regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established 
in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. 
 
We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

9 

Attachment B – Management Representation Letter 

 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

10 

 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

11 

 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

12 

 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

13 

 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

14 

 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

15 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
  
 COLUSA COUNTY 

COLUSA, CALIFORNIA 
 
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 WITH 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

 

PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT        1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS        4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
  Statement of Net Position         11 
 
  Statement of Activities          12 
  
 Fund Financial Statements 
  
  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds        13 
 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
   to the Statement of Net Position        14 
 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
   in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds       15 
 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues,  
   Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the 
   Statement of Activities         16 
 
 Statement of Fiduciary Net Position         17 
 
 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position                         18 
  
 Notes to the Financial Statements               19 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
  Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual - General Fund       45 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
  Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual – Child Development Fund     46 
 
 Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability          47 
 
 Schedule of Pension Contributions             48 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 
 
 Schedule of Changes in the County Office of Education’s  
  Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios        49 
 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information –           
  Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations                   50 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
  

Combining Balance Sheet –Non-Major Funds                     52 
 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
 Changes in Fund Balances – Non-Major Funds                      53 
 
Organization           54 

 
Schedule of Instructional Time         55 

 
 Schedule of Charter Schools  56 
 
 Reconciliation of Annual and Budget Financial Report  

to Audited Financial Statements             57 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards        58 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis        60 

 
Notes to Supplementary Information         61 

  
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS       
 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with 
 State Laws and Regulations         62 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and  
 on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit  
 of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

with Government Auditing Standards         65 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on  
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance    67 

     
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS           

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs        69 
 
Status of Prior Year Recommendations        73 



                         James Marta & Company LLP 
            Certified Public Accountants 
 
              Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax  

   

 

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825     Phone: (916) 993-9494     Fax: (916) 993-9489 
 jdeol@jpmcpa.com      www.jpmcpa.com 1 

         
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
 
Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”), as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
 

mailto:jdeol@jpmcpa.com
http://www.jpmcpa.com/


 

2 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Colusa County Office of Education, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget (Non-
GAAP) and Actual for the General Fund and the Child Development Fund, Schedule of Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Pension Contributions and Schedule of Changes in the County 
Office of Education’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as 
listed in the table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the 
July 2021 Edition of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
 



 

3 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2021 
on our consideration of the County Office’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering County Office’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 14, 2021 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

4 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the 
Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) for the year ended June 30, 2021. This discussion 
has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes 
thereto which follow this section. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE PAST YEAR 
 

▪ Over the course of the year, the total net position increased by 8.12%. This includes an increase in 
capital assets and an increase in current and long-term liabilities.  

 
▪ On the Statement of Activities, total current year revenues exceeded total current year expenses by 

$872,098. 
 

▪ Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased $244,412 due to accumulated depreciation growing 
faster than acquisitions and improvements. 

 
▪ Total long-term liabilities increased 10.28% totaling $20,202,335, due to the net pension liability. 

 
▪ The County Office maintains sufficient reserves for a County Office its size.  It meets the State 

required minimum reserve for economic uncertainty of 4% of County School Service Fund 
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo). 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Financial Statements 
 
During the year the County Office presents income and expenditures to the board and the public using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  During the year end process the financial statements are converted to 
an accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 34. The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the County Office 
and its component units and were developed using this integrated approach described in Note 1. 
 
The Primary unit of the government is the Colusa County Office of Education. 
 
COUNTY OFFICE-WIDE STATEMENTS 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the County Office as a 
whole and about its activities.  These statements include all assets and liabilities of the County Office using 
the accrual basis of accounting which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.  All 
of the current year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

5 

These two statements report the County Office’s net position.  Net position is the difference between assets 
and liabilities, which is one way to measure the County Office’s financial health, or financial position.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in the County Office’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health 
is improving or deteriorating.  Other factors to consider are changes in the County Office’s property tax base 
and the condition of the County Office’s facilities. 
 
The relationship between revenues and expenses is the County Office’s operating results. Since the governing 
board’s responsibility is to provide services to our students and not to generate profit as commercial entities 
do, one must consider other factors when evaluating the overall health of the County Office. The quality of 
the education and the safety of our schools will likely be an important component in this evaluation. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the County Office activities are reported as 
follows: 
 
Governmental Activities – The County Office reports all of its services in this category. This includes the 
education of K-12 students, adult education students, the operation of child development activities, and the 
on-going effort to improve and maintain buildings and sites. These activities are financed by property taxes, 
State income taxes, user fees, interest income, and Federal, State, and local grants. 
 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the County 
Office as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.  However, 
management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes, or to 
show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money that it receives 
from the U.S. Department of Education. 
 
Governmental Funds  

 
Most of the County Office’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which determine how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  These 
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measure cash and 
all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the County Office’s general government operations and the basic service it 
provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County Office’s programs.  We describe the 
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following each governmental fund 
financial statement. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

6 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE AS A WHOLE 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 
The County Office’s combined net position, as of June 30, 2021, was $11,613,028 reflecting an increase of 
8.12% since June 30, 2020.  Of this amount, ($7,622,021) was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported 
separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and legislation that limits the governing board’s 
ability to use those assets for day-to-day operations. 
 

2020 2021
Assets
Current 6,787,612$              7,140,889$           
Capital Assets, net 18,972,198              18,727,786           
     Total Assets 25,759,810              25,868,675           

Deferred Outflows 7,569,116                8,576,667             

Liabilities
Current 1,352,434                1,422,341             
Long-Term 18,319,452              20,202,335           
     Total Liabilities 19,671,886              21,624,676           

Deferred Inflows 2,916,110                1,207,638             

     Total Net Position 10,740,930$            11,613,028$         

Governmental
Activities

Comparative Statement of Net Position

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

7 

Statement of Changes in Net Position  

 
The County Office’s total revenues increased 9.91% to $22,266,982. Charges for Services and Operating 
Grants & Contributions accounted for most of the County Office’s revenues, contributing about 85% of every 
dollar raised. Approximately 15% came from General Revenues. 
 
The total cost of all programs and services decreased approximately 7% to $21,394,884. The County Office’s 
expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. The purely administrative activities 
of the County Office accounted for 10% of total costs. 
 

2020 2021
Program Revenues

Charges for Services 3,980,318$              4,234,808$           
Operating Grants & Contributions 12,904,414              14,629,165           

General Revenues
Taxes Levied 490,865                  509,203               
Federal & State Aid 2,272,105                2,173,183             
Interest & Investment Earnings 153,755                  41,419                 
Interagency revenues 192,284                  148,676               
Miscellaneous 264,627                  530,528               

Total Revenues 20,258,368              22,266,982           

Expenses
Governmental Activities

Instruction 9,602,622                7,895,853             
Instruction-Related Services 5,992,365                6,772,668             
Pupil Services 3,202,782                2,764,091             
General Administration 2,536,537                2,213,386             
Plant Services 1,020,734                1,059,855             
Ancillary Services 21,741                    34,283                 
Other Outgo 36,483                    92,032                 
Depreciation 554,198                  562,716               

Total Expenses 22,967,462              21,394,884           

Change in Net Position (2,709,094)$             872,098$              

Governmental
Activities

Comparative Statement of Changes in Net Position

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

8 

Governmental Activities 
 
As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 12, the cost of all of our governmental activities was 
$21,394,884 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, a decrease of $1,572,578 from the 2019-20 fiscal year. 
However, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through local taxes was only 
$509,203 in 2020-21, because a portion of the cost was paid by those who benefited from the programs 
($4,234,808) or by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and 
contributions ($14,629,165).  
 
The schedule below reflects the net cost of each of the largest functions – instruction, student support, 
administration, maintenance and operations, and other costs. Included in this table are each program’s net cost 
(total cost less revenues generated by the activities). As discussed above, net cost shows the financial burden 
placed on the taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows our citizens to consider 
the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function. 
 

2020 2021 2020 2021
Governmental Activities

Instruction 9,602,622$     7,895,853$     1,721,947$     125,167$       
Instruction-Related Services 5,992,365      6,772,668      1,306,471      (757,041)        
Pupil Services 3,202,782      2,764,091      587,855         (98,566)         
General Administration 2,536,537      2,213,386      1,427,894      (872,766)        
Plant Services 1,020,734      1,059,855      426,141         (324,224)        
Ancillary Services 21,741           34,283           21,741           (4,940)           
Other Outgo 36,483           92,032           36,483           (35,825)         
Depreciation 554,198         562,716         554,198         (562,716)        

Totals 22,967,462$   21,394,884$   6,082,730$     (2,530,911)$   

Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

Comparative Schedule of Costs of Services 

 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FUNDS 
 
At the completion of the school year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$5,718,548, which was an increase of $283,370 from the previous year. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

9 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
Increase

(Decrease)

     County School Service 5,184,044$          5,314,572$        130,528$       
     Child Development 80,414                266,480            186,066        
     All Non-Major 170,720              137,496            (33,224)         

           Totals 5,435,178$          5,718,548$        283,370$       

Comparative Schedule of Fund Balances

 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The County Office’s budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Over the course of the year, the County Office revises its budget based on 
updated financial information. The original budget, approved at the end of June for July 1, is based on May 
Revise figures and updated 45 days after the State approves its final budget. In addition, the County Office 
revises its budget at First and Second Interim. The original budget, presented on page 45, includes only new 
revenues for 2020-21. 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 

2020 2021

Land 3,621,725$              3,621,725$           
Land Improvements 350,868                  417,703               
Buildings and Improvements 19,555,753              19,580,942           
Furniture and Equipment 965,380                  1,191,660             

     Subtotals 24,493,726              24,812,030           

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (5,521,528)               (6,084,244)            

     Capital Assets, net 18,972,198$            18,727,786$         

Governmental
Activities

Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

10 

Although there was an increase in capital assets (page 30) by $318,304, the total of capital assets (net of 
depreciation) decreased by $244,412 due to acquisitions and improvements growing at a slower rate than 
accumulated depreciation, asset disposals, and adjustments. 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 

2020 2021

Net Pension Liability 17,757,533$            19,613,468$         
Net OPEB Liability 425,222                  482,821               
Compensated Absences 136,697                  106,046               

     Totals 18,319,452$            20,202,335$         

Governmental
Activities

Comparative Schedule of Long Term Liabilities

 
 
Although there was a slight decrease in liabilities due to capital leases being retired, the total long-term 
liabilities increased by $1,882,883 (10.28%) to reflect the increase in the net pension and Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability. This number will continue to climb as county offices are required to 
recognize the impact of the liability for OPEB, CalPERS and STRS. 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial presentation and contain more 
detailed information as to interest, principal, retirement amounts, and future debt retirement dates. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS BEARING ON THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FUTURE 
 

➢ Student enrollment and attendance are primary factors in the computation of most funding formulas 
for public schools in the State of California. Due to COVID-19, a hold harmless on enrollment 
funding to 2019-20 figures will keep funding relatively stable in fiscal year 2021-22. 

➢ However, the cost of ongoing salary and increases in CalPERS and STRS are outpacing the flat 
funding that the State provides to County Offices of Education. 

➢ Future predictions require management to plan carefully and prudently to provide resources to meet 
student needs over the next several years. 

 
CONTACTING THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. 
If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial information, contact the Colusa 
County Office of Education, 345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa, California 95932. 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 11 

Governmental
Activities

Cash and cash equivalents 3,334,412$     
Receivables 3,619,914       
Prepaid expenses 170,127         
Inventory 16,436           
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 18,727,786     

Total Assets 25,868,675     

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions (note 6) 8,510,834       
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB (note 7) 65,833           

Total Deferred Outflows 8,576,667       

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 963,371         
Unearned revenue 458,970         
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 106,046         
Due in more than one year 20,096,289     

Total Liabilities 21,624,676     

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (note 6) 1,199,749       
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (note 7) 7,889             

Total Deferred Inflows 1,207,638       

Net investment in capital assets 18,727,786     
Restricted 507,263         
Unrestricted (7,622,021)      

Total Net Position 11,613,028$   

NET POSITION

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 12 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities

Instruction 7,895,853$    2,386,289$    5,634,731$    -$             125,167$                  
Instruction - related services:
   Instructional supervision and
       administration 4,844,687      306,702        4,590,835      -               52,850                      
   School site administration 1,927,981      316,721        801,369        -               (809,891)                   
Pupil Services:
   Home-to-school transportation 56,948          -               -               -               (56,948)                     
   Food services 881,226        64,234          887,228        -               70,236                      
   All other pupil services 1,825,917      739,843        974,220        -               (111,854)                   
General administration:
   Centralized data processing 518,982        -               113,501        -               (405,481)                   
   All other general administration 1,694,404      266,114        961,005        -               (467,285)                   
Plant services 1,059,855      99,203          636,428        -               (324,224)                   
Ancillary services 34,283          19,074          10,269          -               (4,940)                      
Other outgo 92,032          36,628          19,579          -               (35,825)                     
Depreciation (unallocated) 562,716        -               -               -               (562,716)                   

Total governmental activities 21,394,884$  4,234,808$    14,629,165$  -$             (2,530,911)$               

General Revenues
Taxes and subventions:
   Taxes levied for general purposes 509,203                    
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 2,173,183                  
Interest and investment earnings 41,419                      
Interagency revenues 148,676                    
Miscellaneous 530,528                    

Total General Revenues 3,403,009                  

Change in Net Position 872,098                    
Net Position - beginning July 1, 2020 10,740,930                
Net Position, June 30, 2021 11,613,028$              

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) 
Revenues 

and Changes in Net 
Position 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 13 

County School Child Non-Major
Service Development Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total

Cash and cash equivalents 2,838,624$       364,968$         130,820$         3,334,412$       
Accounts receivable 2,979,762         614,425           25,727             3,619,914         
Due from other funds 29,429             97                   177                 29,703             
Prepaid expenses 141,802           27,975             350                 170,127           
Stores inventory 16,436             -                  -                  16,436             

Total Assets 6,006,053$       1,007,465$       157,074$         7,170,592$       

Liabilities
Accounts payable 513,293$         433,343$         16,735$           963,371$         
Due to other funds 274                 29,429             -                  29,703             
Unearned revenue 177,914           278,213           2,843               458,970           

Total Liabilities 691,481           740,985           19,578             1,452,044         

Fund balances
Nonspendable 158,738           27,975             350                 187,063           
Restricted 171,360           234,115           101,788           507,263           
Assigned 4,285,168         4,390               35,358             4,324,916         
Unassigned 699,306           -                  -                  699,306           

Total Fund Balances 5,314,572         266,480           137,496           5,718,548         

Total liabilities and fund balances 6,006,053$       1,007,465$       157,074$         7,170,592$       

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITON 

 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 14 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 5,718,548$     

Capital assets at historical cost: 24,812,030$   
Accumulated depreciation: (6,084,244)      
Net: 18,727,786     

Net OPEB liability 482,821$        
Net pension liability 19,613,468     
Compensated absences payable 106,046         
Net: (20,202,335)    

Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 65,833           
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (7,889)            

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 8,510,834       
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (1,199,749)      

Total net position, governmental activities: 11,613,028$   

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In
governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future
periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources relating to pensions are reported. 

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are
reported. In the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-
term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities relating to
governmental activities consist of:

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different from amounts reported in
governmental funds because:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported.
In the statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital
assets and accumulated depreciation.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to other
postemployment benefits (OPEB): In governmental funds, deferred
outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are not reported
because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 15 

 

County School Child All
Service Development Non-Major

Fund Fund Funds Total
REVENUES
            Total Revenue LimitLCFF sources 2,624,015$       -$                5,662$             2,629,677$       

Federal revenue 2,523,070         4,110,366 40,637             6,674,073         
Other state revenues 4,231,949         3,524,603 4,120               7,760,672         
Other local revenues 4,732,728         212,472 257,364           5,202,564         

            Total RevenuesTotal revenues 14,111,762       7,847,441         307,783           22,266,986       

EXPENDITURES
    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 4,607,516         1,197,788 121,095           5,926,399         
    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 3,807,477         1,472,815 44,842             5,325,134         
    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 3,415,928         1,070,592 32,940             4,519,460         
    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 1,302,888         488,700 34,786             1,826,374         
    Services and Other OperatingServices and other operating expenditures 1,015,258         2,893,391 29,574             3,938,223         
    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 242,251           91,053 22,691             355,995           
    Other OutgoOther outgo (405,196)          447,036           50,191             92,031             

            Total ExpendituresTotal expenditures 13,986,122       7,661,375         336,119           21,983,616       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 125,640           186,066           (28,336)            283,370           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 4,888               -                  -                  4,888               
Operating transfers out -                  -                  (4,888)             (4,888)             

            Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)Total other financing sources (uses) 4,888               -                  (4,888)             -                  

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances 130,528           186,066           (33,224)            283,370           

Fund balances, July 1, 2020 5,184,044         80,414 170,720           5,435,178         

Fund balances, June 30, 2021 5,314,572$       266,480$         137,496$         5,718,548$       



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 16 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds 283,370$     

Expenditures for capital outlay: 318,304$     
Depreciation expense: (562,716)      (244,412)      

30,651         

(23,803)        

826,292       

Total change in net position - governmental activities 872,098$     

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are
reported as expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the
statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between
capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Pensions: In government funds, pension costs are recognized when
employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, pension
costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference
between accrual-basis pension costa and actual employer contributions
was:

Compensated absences in governmental funds are measured by the
amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned. The difference between
compensated absences paid and compensated absences earned was:

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB): In government funds, OPEB
expenses are recognized when employer OPEB contributions are made. In
the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual
basis. This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual
employer OPEB contributions was:

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 17 

 

Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

Scholarship Fund

ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury 69,160$                      
Accounts receivable -                             

Total Assets 69,160                        

NET POSITION
Restricted 69,160$                      



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 18 

 

Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

Scholarship Fund

ADDITIONS
Other local 1,027$                        
Investment earnings 787
Total Additions 1,814                          

DEDUCTIONS
Student Activities -                             
Total Deductions -                             

Change in Net Position 1,814

Net Position - Beginning 67,346

Net Position - Ending 69,160$                      
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

19 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. HISTORY OF THE ORGANIZATION 
 

The Colusa County Office of Education (the "County Office") is a public educational agency 
operating under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California. It is governed by a 
five-member Governing Board elected by registered voters of the County Office, which comprises 
an area in Colusa County. The County Office serves students in pre-kindergarten, grades nine 
through twelve and adults. 
 

B. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The County Office was organized under the laws of the State of California. It is a public agency 
operating a variety of programs for children, youth, and families, and supporting schools with 
academic, business, consulting and vocational services. 
 
The County Office educates children with special needs, children who are referred by other public 
agencies, and youth who are wards of the Juvenile Court. The County Office programs also provide 
educational services for adults, preschool children and youth through specific categorical programs. 
As the intermediary between the California Department of Education and local school districts, the 
Colusa County Office of Education represents the local districts on appropriate matters before the 
State government, and carries out responsibilities mandated by statutes and regulations.  
 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County Office is financially 
accountable. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the 
County Office, in that the County Office approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the 
levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally separate organizations for 
which the County Office is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the 
organization’s relationship with the County Office is such that exclusion would cause the County 
Office’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The County Office has no component 
units. 
 

C. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) accounts for its financial statements in 
accordance with policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s California School 
Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the County Office conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 
 

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This differs from the manner in which governmental 
fund financial statements are prepared.  
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

20 

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 
 
The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses, both direct 
and indirect, of the County Office and for each governmental function, and excludes fiduciary 
activity. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or 
department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. The County Office does 
not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.  Program revenues 
include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general 
revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each 
program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County 
Office. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.  
 
Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. The net position restricted for other activities results from special revenue funds and the 
restrictions on their net position use. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fund financial statements report detailed information about the County Office. The focus of 
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting 
funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated 
and presented in a single column. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, 
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources (revenues and other 
financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. 
This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include 
reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide financial statements, prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, and the governmental fund financial statements, prepared using the 
flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 

 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements because they do not represent resources of the County Office. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

21 

E. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements. Government -wide financial statements are prepared using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Revenues (Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions) 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially 
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual 
basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become 
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year, or are 
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal 
year. Generally, available is defined as collectible within 45 to 60 days. However, to achieve 
comparability of reporting among California districts and so as not to distort normal revenue 
patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement grants and corrections to State-aid apportionments, 
the California Department of Education has defined available for districts as collectible within one 
year. The following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal 
year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain grants, and other local sources. 
 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the County Office receives value without directly giving 
equal value in return, include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue 
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from 
certain grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include time and purpose restrictions. On 
a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it 
can be recognized. 
 
Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the 
“measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period or when resources are 
received by the County Office prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent 
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the County Office has a legal 
claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and 
revenue is recognized. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures – On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time 
they are incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net 
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in 
the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Principal and 
interest on long-term obligations, which has not matured, are recognized when paid in the 
governmental funds. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized 
in the governmental funds.   
                                             



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

22 

F. FUND ACCOUNTING 
 

The accounts of the County Office are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered 
to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set 
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and 
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. County Office resources are allocated to and accounted 
for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by 
which spending activities are controlled. The County Office's accounts are organized into major, 
non-major, and fiduciary funds as follows: 
 
Major Governmental Funds 

 
General Fund – The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County Office. It is used to 
account for the ordinary operations of the County Office. All transactions, except those accounted 
for in another fund, are accounted for in this fund. 

 
Child Development Fund – This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local 
revenues to operate child development programs. All moneys received by the County Office for, or 
from the operation of, child development services covered under the Child Care and Development 
Services Act (Education Code Section 8200 et seq.) is deposited into this fund. The moneys may be 
used only for expenditures for the operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in 
the maintenance and operation of child development services shall be paid from this fund, with 
accounting to reflect specific funding sources (Education Code Section 8328). 

 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 

  
Adult Education Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues received and expenditures 
made to operate the County Office's adult education. 
 
County School Facilities Fund – This fund is established pursuant to Education Code Section 
17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1A), 
the 2002 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School Facilities Fund 
(Proposition 55) authorized by the State Allocation Board for new school facility construction, 
modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene School 
Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.). 

 
Forest Reserve Fund (County Offices) – This fund exists to account separately for federal forest 
reserve funds received by offices of county superintendents for distribution to school districts and 
community college districts (Education Code Section 2300; Government Code Section 29484). 

 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets for which the County Office acts as a fiduciary. The 
County Office maintains the following fiduciary fund: 

 
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund: The Scholarship Fund is used to account separately for 
gifts or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 that benefit individuals, private organizations, 
or other governments and under which neither principal nor income may be used for purposes that 
support the County Office's own programs. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

23 

G. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
   

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires 
the governing board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of 
each year. The County Office governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is 
subject to amendment throughout the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and 
expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time of budget adoption with the legal 
restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object account. 
 
The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the 
amount when the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted 
amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been 
accounted for. For budget purposes, on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and 
expenditures as required under generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
H. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
The County Office’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition. Cash equivalents also include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the 
statement of cash flows. 
 

I.          INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments held at June 30, 2021, with original maturities greater than one year, are stated at fair 
value. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not 
required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost. Fair values of investments 
in county and state investment pools are determined by the program sponsor. 
 
Governmental agencies in the State of California are authorized under California Government 
Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. 
Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. 
Government or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed 
with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase 
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest by diversified management 
companies; certificates of participation; obligations with first priority security; and collateralized 
mortgage obligations. Investments of debt proceeds held by trustees are governed by the provisions 
of the applicable agreements rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

24 

J. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENDITURES 
 
Inventories are recorded using the consumption method, in that the cost is recorded as expenditure 
at the time individual inventory items are withdrawn from stores inventory for consumption. 
Inventories in the applicable funds consist primarily of expendable supplies held for consumption. 
Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that these 
amounts are not “available for appropriation and expenditure” even though they are a component of 
net position. 
 
The County Office has the option of reporting expenditures for prepaid items in governmental 
funds either when paid or during the benefiting period. The County Office has chosen to report the 
expenditure during the benefiting period. 

 
K. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

 
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are 
determined by its measurement focus. Capital assets are long-lived assets of the County Office. The 
County Office maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The County Office does not possess 
any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that 
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized, but are 
expenses as incurred. 
 
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and 
capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets is historical cost, or where historical cost 
is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs. Donated capital assets are 
capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. 
 
Depreciation is computed and recorded using the straight-line method. 
 

Asset Class  Estimated Useful Life (in years) 
Buildings and Improvements  5-50 

Furniture and Equipment  2-15 
Vehicles  8 

   
L. INTERFUND BALANCES 

 
On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans 
are classified as “interfund receivables/payables”. These amounts are eliminated in the 
governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the 
net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented 
as internal balances. 
 

M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. 
Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the County Office. The County 
Office's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken, since such 
benefits do not vest, nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable 
service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

25 

N. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide 
and fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, 
once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported 
as obligations of the governmental funds. 
 
However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and 
contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported 
as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for 
payment during the current year. Bonds, capital leases, and other long-term obligations are 
recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements when due. 

 
O. NET POSITION 

 
Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations 
imposed on their use either through enabling legislation adopted by the County Office or through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws and regulations of other governments. 
The County Office first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

 
P. PROPERTY TAX 

 
Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable 
in two installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and 
April 10, respectively. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 
31. The County of Colusa bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the County Office. Local 
property tax revenues are recorded when received. 
 

Q. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

 
R. PENSIONS  

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Colusa 
County Office of Education’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and 
California State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions 
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 
by CalPERS and CalSTRS, respectively. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

26 

S. FUND BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, "Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, the County Office is required to 
report fund balances in the following categories: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned 
and/or Unassigned.   
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance reflects assets not in spendable form, either because they will never 
convert to cash (e.g. prepaid expense) or must remain intact pursuant to legal or contractual 
requirements. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 
 
Committed Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority: the 
Superintendent. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions 
approved by the Superintendent. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance reflects amounts intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Under the County 
Office’s adopted policy, only the Superintendent is authorized to assign amounts for specific 
purposes. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance represents the residual classification for the government's general fund 
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 

 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes of which restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned fund balances are available, the County Office considers committed funds to have been 
spent first, followed by assigned and finally, unassigned, as needed, unless the governing board has 
provided for otherwise in its commitment or assignment functions. 
 
The governing board maintains a minimum fund balance policy for the County School Service 
Fund in order to protect the County Office against revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time 
expenditures. The policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties consisting of unassigned 
amounts equal to no less than five percent of County School Service Fund expenditures and other 
financing uses. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

27 

S. DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  
 

T. POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
 

For purposes of measuring the County Office of Education’s OPEB liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the County Office of Education’s OPEB Plan (OPEB Plan) and 
additions to/deductions from the County Office of Education’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB 
Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and participating 
interest earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or 
less, which are reported at cost. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

28 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 consist of the following: 
 
 

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Activities Total

Cash in County Treasury 3,333,912$    69,160$         3,403,072$    
Cash in Revolving Fund 500               -               500               

Totals 3,334,412$    69,160$         3,403,572$    
 

 

A. Cash in County Treasury 
 

County pool investments consist of County Office’s cash held by the Colusa County Treasury that 
is invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the County Office’s investment in the 
pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the County Office’s pro-
rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to 
the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The weighted average maturity of the pool is 2,399 days. 
The pool is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s. 
 

Interest Rate Risk.  California Government Code Section 53601 limits the County Office’s 
investments to maturities of five years.  The County Office does not have a formal investment 
policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses 
arising from increasing interest rates. 
 

Credit Risk.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented in the next page is the actual rating as of the 
year-end for each investment type. 
 

A. Cash in Revolving Funds 
 

Cash in revolving fund consists of all cash maintained in commercial bank accounts that are used 
as revolving funds.  Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

29 

3. INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
  

Interfund activity is reported as loans, service-provided reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues 
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers among governmental or proprietary funds are netted as 
part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Due From/Due to Other Funds 
 
Amounts Due From/Due To other funds, at June 30, 2021, were as follows: 
 

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables

Major Funds
County School Service Fund 29,429$           274$               
Child Development Fund 97                   29,429             

Nonmajor Funds
Adult Education Fund 177                 -                 

Totals 29,703$           29,703$            
 
Interfund Transfers 
 
Amounts transferred, for the year ended June 30, 2021, were as follows: 
 

4,888$              

Total 4,888$              

Transfer from Forest Reserve Fund to the General Fund for the forest 
reserve apportionment.

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

30 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows: 
 

Additions Deductions
Balance and and Balance

July 1, 2020 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2021
Non-depreciable assets:

Land 3,621,725$    -$             -$             3,621,725$    
Work in progress -               -               -               -               

3,621,725      -               -               3,621,725      
Depreciable assets:

Land improvements 350,868         66,835          -               417,703         
Building and improvements 19,555,753    25,189          -               19,580,942    
Furniture and equipment 965,380         226,280         -               1,191,660      

20,872,001    318,304         -               21,190,305    

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (106,003)       (27,959)         -               (133,962)       
Building and improvements (4,835,050)     (428,933)       -               (5,263,983)     
Furniture and equipment (580,475)       (105,824)       -               (686,299)       

(5,521,528)     (562,716)       -               (6,084,244)     

Depreciable assets, net 15,350,473    (244,412)       -               15,106,061    

Capital assets, net 18,972,198$   (244,412)$      -$             18,727,786$   
 

 
The entire amount of depreciation expense was unallocated. 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

31 

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The changes in the County Office’s long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following: 
 

Due
Balance Balance Within

July 1, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021 One Year

Compensated Absences 136,697$        -$             30,651$        106,046$        106,046$      
Net Pension Liability 17,757,533      1,855,935     -              19,613,468      -              
Net OPEB Liability 425,222          57,599          -              482,821          -              

Totals 18,319,452$    1,913,534$    30,651$        20,202,335$    106,046$      
 

 
Payments on the compensated absences, pensions and other postemployment benefits are made from 
the fund for which the related employee worked. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

32 

6. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained 
by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' 
Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 
 
Plan Description 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 
 
The County Office of Education contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee 
retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively 
amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive 
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 
Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Headquarters, 400 
Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811. 
 
State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 
 
The County Office of Education contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 
administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to 
beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within 
the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS 
annual financial report may be obtained from the STRS Headquarters, 100 Waterfront Place, West 
Sacramento, California 95605. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 
 

Hire date
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 7% 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rates 20.700% 20.700% 16.15% 16.15%

On or after 
January 1, 2013

Prior to
January 1, 2013

Prior to
January 1, 2013

On or after 
January 1, 2013

CalPERS CalSTRS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

33 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 
Contributions  
 
CalPERS 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are 
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is 
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The County Office of Education is 
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. 
 
STRS 
 
Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and 
Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level 
percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the contributions reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as follows: 
 

CalPERS STRS Total

1,162,994$     825,120$        1,988,114$     
-                486,982         486,982         

1,162,994$     1,312,102$     2,475,096$     

Contributions - employer

Total
On behalf contributions - state

 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education’s reported net pension liabilities for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows: 
 

Proportionate Share 
of Net Pension Liability

CalPERS 11,266,213$                     
STRS 8,347,255                        

Total Net Pension Liability 19,613,468$                     
  

 
The County Office of Education’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 
30, 2020, and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard 
update procedures. The County Office of Education’s proportion of the net pension liability was based 
on a projection of the County Office of Education’s long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

34 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 

The County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of 
June 30, 2019 and 2020 measurement dates was as follows. 
 

Fiscal Year CalPERS STRS

2019-20 0.03533% 0.00826%
2020-21 0.03672% 0.00861%

Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00139% 0.00035%

Measurement 
Dates

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020

  
 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education recognized pension expense of 
$826,292. At June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 
 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

1,162,994$   -$            1,312,102$   -$            2,475,096$   -$            

160,289        134,354        15,495         229,651        175,784        364,005        

504,714        -              2,532,316     -              3,037,030     -              

951,596        -              49,245         510,049        1,000,841     510,049        

563,010        -              1,044,651     168,366        1,607,661     168,366        

214,422        -              -              157,329        214,422        157,329        
Total 3,557,025$   134,354$      4,953,809$   1,065,395$   8,510,834$   1,199,749$   

Net differences between projected 
and actual investment earnings on 
pension plan investments

Change in employer's proportion 
and differences between the 
employer’s contributions and the 
employer’s proportionate share of 
contributions

Differences between Expected 
and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Difference between proportionate 
share of aggregate employer 
contributions and actual 
contributions for 2019-20

Pension contributions subsequent 
to measurement date

CalPERS STRS Total

 
 
 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 
30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

1,103,551$        382,588$           1,486,139$        
719,227             613,040             1,332,267          
360,544             646,286             1,006,830          
76,355              493,020             569,375             

-                   310,000             310,000             
-                   131,378             131,378             

2,259,677$        2,576,312$        4,835,989$        

CalPERS STRS

Total Deferred 
Outflows/

(Inflows) of 
Resources

Year Ended
June 30

2025

Thereafter
Total

2022
2023
2024

2026

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

35 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuations were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 
 

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.10%
Inflation 2.50% 2.75%
Payroll Growth Rate 2.75% 3.50%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return (1) 7.15% 7.10%
Mortality

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

Derived using CalPERS' 
Membership Data for all Funds

Derived using STRS' 
Membership Data for all Funds

 
 
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details 
on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS 
demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
CalSTRS changed the mortality assumptions based on the July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018, 
experience study adopted by the board in January 2020. STRS uses a generational mortality 
assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality table and projection scales to reflect expected 
annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases in life expectancies each year into 
the future. The base mortality tables are STRS custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality 
among our members. The projection scale was set equal to 110% of the ultimate improvement factor 
from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table issued by the Society of Actuaries. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

36 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
CalPERS 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 7.15%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from Plan members will be 
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
and forecasted information for all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded 
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the 
one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 
expenses. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 
 

Assumed
Asset Real Return Real Return

Allocation Years 1 - 10 (a) Years 11+ (b)

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

Asset Class

CalPERS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

37 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
STRS 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%, which was unchanged from 
prior fiscal year. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members and employers are made at statutory contribution rates in accordance 
with the rate increases actuarially determined. Projected inflows from investment earnings were 
calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return of 7.10% and assume that 
contributions, benefit payments and administrative expenses occur midyear. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The long-term investment rate of return assumption was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges 
were developed using capital market assumptions from STRS investment staff and investment 
consultants as inputs to the process. 
 
The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the board in January 2020 in 
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, STRS’ 
independent consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on 
the most current capital market assumptions. Best estimates of expected 20-year geometrically linked 
real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class as of the June 30, 2020 
measurement date, are summarized in the following table. 
 

Long-Term
Assumed Expected

Asset Real Rate of
Allocation Return (a)

Public Equity 42.0% 4.80%
Real Estate 15.0% 3.60%
Private Equity 13.0% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12.0% 1.30%
Risk Mitigating Strategies 10.0% 1.80%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 3.30%
Cash/Liquidity 2.0% -0.40%
Total 100%

(a) 20-year average

Asset Class

STRS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

38 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the County Office of 
Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 16,197,236$           11,266,213$           7,173,712$             

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 12,611,540$           8,347,255$             4,826,488$             

CalPERS

STRS

 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  
 
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued CalPERS and STRS comprehensive annual financial reports available on the CalPERS’ and 
STRS’ websites.  
 

Payable to the Pension Plan 
 

As of June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education had no outstanding required contributions to the 
pension plans. 

 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

39 

7. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 

General Information About the OPEB PLAN 
 
Plan description: The plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan. The plan provides other 
postemployment benefits for eligible certificated, classified and management employees of the County 
Office of Education. The authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements 
are governed by collective bargaining agreements with plan members. No assets are accumulated in a 
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75. The Plan does not issue financial 
statements. 
 
Benefits provided: The postretirement health plans and the County Office of Education’s obligation 
vary by employee group as described below: 
 

Benefit types provided
Duration of Benefits
Required Service
Minimum Age
Maximum Age
Dependent Coverage
County Office Contribution %
County Office Cap

Not more than 63 at the end of the school year of retirement

$50,000 prorated over period from retirement to age 65

Certificated

100% of cap
Yes

55
20 years

To age 65
Medical, dental, and vision

 
 
Contributions: The contribution requirements of Plan member and the County Office of Education are 
established and may be amended by the County Office of Education and the Educators of the Colusa 
County Office of Education (ECCOE). The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go 
financing requirements. For fiscal year 2020/21, the County Office of Education contributed $10,000 to 
the Plan, of which $10,000 was used for current premiums. 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 2           
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -        
Active employees 38         

40         
 

Net OPEB Liability 
 
The County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total 
OPEB liability was used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

40 

7.  OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

 
Salary Increases 2.75% per year
Inflation 2.75% per year
Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates 4% per year

2.20% per year net of expenses based on the 
Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index

 
 

The discount rate of 2.2% is based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. We assumed that contributions 
would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. The mortality 
assumptions are based on the 2009 CalSTRS mortality table created by CalSTRS. CalSTRS 
periodically studies mortality for participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are 
modified versions of commonly used tables. This table incorporates mortality projection as deemed 
appropriate based on CalPERS analysis. 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2020 425,222$          -$                425,222$          
Expected changes for the year:

Service cost 16,378             -                  16,378             
Interest 14,603             -                  14,603             
Contributions - employer -                  28,012             (28,012)            
Net investment income -                  -                  -                  
Benefit payments (28,012)            (28,012)            -                  
Expected minus actual benefit payments (4,367)              -                  (4,367)              
Administrative expense -                  -                  -                  

Net expected changes (1,398)              -                  (1,398)              
Expected balances at June 30, 2021 423,824           -                  423,824           
Actual changes for the year:

Experience (gains)/losses -                  -                  -                  
Changes in assumptions 58,997             -                  58,997             
Changes in benefit terms -                  -                  -                  

Net actual changes 58,997             -                  58,997             
Actual balance at June 30, 2021 482,821$          -$                482,821$          

Increase (Decrease)
Net OPEB 

Liability
Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Total OPEB 
Liability

 
 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates: 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County Office of Education, as well as what the 
County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.2 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (3.2 percent) that the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 
  

Net OPEB liability (asset) 526,130$            482,821$            435,480$            

1% Increase 
(3.20%)

Discount Rate 
(2.20%)

1% Decrease 
(1.20%)

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

41 

7.  OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following 
presents the net OPEB liability of the County Office of Education, as well as what the County Office of 
Education’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 
1-percentage-point lower (3.0 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (5.0 percent) that the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 482,821$            482,821$            482,821$            

1% Decrease 
(3.0%)

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

(4.0%)
1% Increase 

(5.0%)

 
 

OPEB plan fiduciary net position: The plan has no assets. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education recognized OPEB expense of 
$23,803. At June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

-$              7,889$           
55,833           -                

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
OPEB plan investments -                -                

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 10,000           -                
Total 65,833$          7,889$           

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

 
 

The County Office of Education will recognize the contributions made subsequent to the measurement 
date in the next fiscal year. In addition, future recognition of these deferred resources is shown below: 
 

Year Ended
June 30

2022 2,822$                     
2023 2,822                      
2024 2,822                      
2025 2,822                      
2026 2,822                      

Thereafter 33,834                     
Total 47,944$                   

Total Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) 

of Resources

 
 

Payable to the OPEB Plan 
 

At June 30, 2021, the County Office of Education had no outstanding amount of contributions to 
the OPEB plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

42 

8. FUND BALANCES 
 

The County Office reports fund balances in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 54. All fund balance categories are reported in the aggregate on the face of the 
balance sheet. All components of those fund balances and specific purposes are identified as follows: 
 

County School Child
Service Development Non-Major

Fund Funds Funds Total
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 141,802$         27,975$           350$               170,127$         
Stores 16,436             -                  -                  16,436             
Revolving Cash 500                 -                  -                  500                 

Total Nonspendable 158,738           27,975             -                  187,063           

Restricted:
Adult Education: Adults in Correctional Facilities -                  -                  12,256             12,256             
Adult Education: Adult Education Program -                  -                  89,532             89,532             
Child Nutrition: School Programs 33,733             -                  -                  33,733             
Child Nutrition: CFP Claims-Centers and 

Family Day Care Homes -                  536                 -                  536                 
Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account -                  192,921           -                  192,921           
Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account -                  5,418               -                  5,418               
Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account -                  4,755               -                  4,755               
Child Development: CRRSA Act - One-time Stipend -                  30,485             -                  30,485             
Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 124,095           -                  -                  124,095           
Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant:

Paraprofessional Staff 13,532             -                  -                  13,532             
Total Restricted 171,360           234,115           101,788           507,263           

Assigned:
Solar Payoff 75,000             -                  -                  75,000             
Technology Upgrades 100,000           -                  -                  100,000           
Community School Set Aside 316,779           -                  -                  316,779           
Deferred Maintenance 100,000           -                  -                  100,000           
CCOE 2,807,209         -                  -                  2,807,209         
Other Assignments 886,180           4,390               35,358             925,928           

Total Assigned 4,285,168         4,390               35,358             4,324,916         

Unassigned:
699,306           -                  -                  699,306           

Total Unassigned 699,306           -                  -                  699,306           

Total Fund Balances 5,314,572$       266,480$         137,146$         5,718,548$       

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

43 

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

The County Office has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review 
and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances 
under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement would not be material. 
 

10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The County Office is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County 
Office’s risk management activities are recorded in the County School Service Fund. The County 
Office participates in various public entity risk pools (JPAs) for its health and welfare benefits, 
workers’ compensations benefits, and property/liability insurance. Refer to Note 11 for additional 
information regarding the JPAs. 
 

11. JOINT VENTURES 
 

The County Office participates in three joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPAs); the North 
Valley Schools Insurance Group (NVSIG) for worker’s compensation coverage, the Schools Excess 
Liability Fund (SELF) for excess liability coverage, and the Tri-County School Insurance Group for 
property and liability coverage. The relationships between the County Office and the JPAs are such that 
the JPAs are not component units of the County Office for financial reporting purposes. 
 
These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and 
their financial statements are not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions 
between the entities and the County Office are included in these statements. Audited financial 
statements are available from the respective entities. 
 
Condensed financial information for the JPAs is as follows: 
 

Tri-Counties SIG NVSIG SELF
June 30, 2020* June 30, 2020* June 30, 2020*

Total Assets 31,162,833$     3,462,129$       174,621,313$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources 193,233           -                  312,483           

Total Liabilities 9,491,036         1,470,494         141,193,559     

Deferred Inflows of Resources 79,963             -                  64,325             

Net Position 21,785,067$     1,991,635$       33,675,912$     

Revenues 46,777,391$     14,333,771$     77,945,029$     
Expenditures 44,211,743       14,073,808       64,133,389       

Change in Net Position 2,565,648$       259,963$          13,811,640$      
 
 * Most recent information available. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

44 

12. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The County Office of Education incurred unanticipated expenditures in excess of appropriations in 
expenditure classifications for which the budget was not revised. 
 
Excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows: 
 

Excess
Expenditures

County School Services Fund
Other outgo 150,464$         

 
 

The excess is not in accordance with Education Code 42600. The excess expenditures are primarily due 
to the budgets not being revised for a one-time payment to El Dorado County Office of Education and 
grants in Fund 12 being underspent at year-end close. 
 

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) a global 
pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. This contagious disease 
outbreak, which has continued to spread, and any related adverse public health developments, has 
adversely affected public education, workforces, economies, and financial markets globally, potentially 
leading to an economic downturn. It has also disrupted the normal operations of many businesses and 
organizations. It is not possible for management to predict the duration or magnitude of the adverse 
results of the outbreak and its disruptive effects on the County Office’s operations and financial results 
at this time. 
 
The County Office’s management has reviewed its financial statements and evaluated subsequent 
events for the period of time from its year ended June 30, 2021 through December 14, 2021, the date 
the financial statements were issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events, other than 
those described above, that would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

 
GENERAL FUND 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

45 

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
LCFF revenue 2,495,351$       2,624,685$       2,624,015$       (670)$              
Federal revenue 1,614,407         2,525,114         2,523,070         (2,044)             
Other state revenues 3,967,083         4,370,206         4,231,949         (138,257)          
Other local revenues 4,867,436         5,104,513         4,732,728         (371,785)          

Total revenues 12,944,277       14,624,518       14,111,762       (512,756)          

EXPENDITURES
    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 4,408,988         4,659,121         4,607,516         51,605             
    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 3,672,523         4,220,151         3,807,477         412,674           
    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 3,523,589         3,528,761         3,415,928         112,833           
    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 593,293           1,310,034         1,302,888         7,146               

Services and other operating expenditures 1,417,471         1,809,285         1,015,258         794,027           
    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 36,432             323,857           242,251           81,606             
    Other OutgoOther outgo (449,350)          (555,660)          (405,196)          (150,464)          

Total expenditures 13,202,946       15,295,549       13,986,122       1,309,427         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (258,669)          (671,031)          125,640           796,671           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in (6,000)             (6,000)             4,888               10,888             

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,000)             (6,000)             4,888               10,888             

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances (264,669)          (677,031)          130,528           807,559           

Fund balances, July 1, 2020 5,184,044         5,184,044         5,184,044         -                  

Fund balances, June 30, 2021 4,919,375$       4,507,013$       5,314,572$       807,559$         

Budget



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

 
CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

46 

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Federal revenue 3,316,918$       4,701,620$       4,110,366$       (591,254)$        
Other state revenues 3,763,300         4,222,359         3,524,603         (697,756)          
Other local revenues 206,247           450,081           212,472           (237,609)          

Total revenues 7,286,465         9,374,060         7,847,441         (1,526,619)       

EXPENDITURES
    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 1,198,056         1,273,928         1,197,788         76,140             
    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 1,583,038         1,663,747         1,472,815         190,932           
    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 1,282,873         1,310,991         1,070,592         240,399           
    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 177,879           609,006           488,700           120,306           

Services and other operating expenditures 2,574,357         3,736,277         2,893,391         842,886           
    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 30,000             253,999           91,053             162,946           
    Other OutgoOther outgo 440,262           539,947           447,036           92,911             

Total expenditures 7,286,465         9,387,895         7,661,375         1,726,520         

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances -                  (13,835)            186,066           199,901           

Fund balances, July 1, 2020 80,414             80,414             80,414             -                  

Fund balances, June 30, 2021 80,414$           66,579$           266,480$         199,901$         

Budget

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

47 

0.03615% 0.03550% 0.03514% 0.03321% 0.03342% 0.03533% 0.03672%
4,103,985$     5,232,628$     6,939,299$     7,929,087$     8,911,759$     10,295,564$    11,266,213$    
3,688,854$     3,904,896$     3,595,752$     3,787,393$     3,790,782$     4,481,421$     6,642,459$     

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of covered payroll 111.25% 134.00% 192.99% 209.35% 235.09% 229.74% 169.61%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability (asset) 83.38% 79.43% 73.90% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05% 70.00%

434,215$        462,613$        499,378$        588,220$        684,691$        883,781$        1,374,989$     

0.00798% 0.00638% 0.00691% 0.00740% 0.00756% 0.00826% 0.00861%
4,660,857$     4,296,519$     5,590,612$     6,847,798$     6,948,017$     7,461,969$     8,347,255$     
3,300,439$     2,451,407$     2,938,227$     3,421,275$     3,566,910$     4,227,959$     5,221,040$     

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of covered payroll 141.22% 175.27% 190.27% 200.15% 194.79% 176.49% 159.88%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability (asset) 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56% 71.82%

293,079$        263,036$        369,629$        493,690$        580,693$        722,981$        843,198$        

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.
(2) Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.
(3)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

The Plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the employer during the measurement period. The Plan's
proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on the Plan's proportion of fiduciary net position as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions
made by the employer during the measurement period.

June 30, 
2019 (1)

June 30, 
2019 (1)

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions (3)

Covered payroll (2)

June 30, 
2014 (1)

June 30, 
2017 (1)

June 30, 
2017 (1)

June 30, 
2016 (1)

June 30, 
2015 (1)

June 30, 
2018 (1)

June 30, 
2018 (1)

June 30, 
2016 (1)

June 30, 
2020 (1)

June 30, 
2020 (1)

June 30, 
2015 (1)

Covered payroll (2)

CalPERS

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions (3)

STRS
June 30, 
2014 (1)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

48 

434,215$        462,613$        499,378$        588,220$        684,691$        883,781$        1,374,989$     
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution (2) (460,668)        (500,579)        (586,447)        (690,542)        (886,986)        (1,047,351)      (1,162,994)      
(26,453)$        (37,966)$        (87,069)$        (102,322)$       (202,295)$       (163,570)$       211,995$        

3,688,854$     3,904,896$     3,595,752$     3,787,393$     3,790,782$     4,481,421$     6,642,459$     

11.771% 11.847% 13.888% 15.531% 18.062% 19.721% 20.700%

293,079$        263,036$        369,629$        493,690$        580,693$        722,981$        843,198$        
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution (2) (285,487)        (370,510)        (496,687)        (582,388)        (704,778)        (819,688)        (825,120)        
7,592$           (107,474)$       (127,058)$       (88,698)$        (124,085)$       (96,707)$        18,078$          

3,300,439$     2,451,407$     2,938,227$     3,421,275$     3,566,910$     4,227,959$     5,221,040$     

8.880% 10.730% 12.580% 14.430% 16.280% 17.100% 16.150%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.
(2)

(3) Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.

Fiscal Year 
2017-18 (1)

Contractually required contribution (2)

CalPERS
Fiscal Year 
2014-15 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2015-16 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2016-17 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2014-15 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2017-18 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2016-17 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2015-16 (1)

Covered payroll (3)

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll (3)

Covered payroll (3)

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll (3)

Contractually required contribution (2)

Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the contractually required contributions. However, some employers may choose to make additional contributions
towards their side fund or their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plans exceed the contractually required contributions. CalPERS has determined that
employer obligations referred to as "side funds" do not conform to the circumstances described in paragraph 120 of GASB 68, therefore are not considered separately
financed specific liabilities.

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Fiscal Year 
2020-21 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2020-21 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2019-20 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2019-20 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2018-19 (1)

Fiscal Year 
2018-19 (1)

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

STRS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION’S 
NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

49 

2021* 2020* 2019* 2018*

Total OPEB liability
Service cost 16,378$       12,953$       13,398$       13,039$       
Interest 14,603         14,448         14,271         12,477         
Changes of benefit terms -              37,602         -              -              
Differences between expected and actual experience -              (18,409)        -              -              
Changes of assumptions 58,997         11,812         (12,382)        -              
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (32,379)        (13,860)        (6,930)         (6,663)         

Net change in total OPEB liability 57,599         44,546         8,357           18,853         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 425,222       380,676       372,319       353,466       
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 482,821$     425,222$     380,676$     372,319$     

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 28,012$       28,018$       6,930$         6,663$         
Net investment income -              -              -              -              
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (28,012)        (28,018)        (6,930)         (6,663)         
Administrative expense -              -              -              -              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -              -              -              -              
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -              -              -              -              
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -$            -$            -$            -$            

County Office's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 482,821$     425,222$     380,676$     372,319$     

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 10,784,657$ 10,110,478$ 9,242,384$   8,467,656$   

District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 4.5% 4.2% 4.1% 4.4%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

* GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. Since this is the fourth year of implementation, 
only results for fiscal years 2018 through 2021 are shown in this table.  
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

50 

1. PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 

A. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget (Non-
GAAP) and Actual – General Fund and Child Development Fund 

 
The County Office employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation 
accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year 
by the Board of Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally 
exceed appropriations by major object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets 
for the General Fund and the Child Development Fund are presented as Required 
Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP. 
 

B    - Schedule of Changes  in the County Office of Education’s Net OPEB Liability and Related 
Ratios 
 
GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. 
Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown. 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
The investment rate of return changed from 3.5% to 2.2%. 
 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
There were no changes to benefits.  
 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal (EAN) cost method

Amortization method Level percentage of pay

Amortization period 17.7 years

Asset valuation method There are no plan assets

Inflation 2.75% per year

Healthcare cost trend rates 4% per year

Salary increases 2.75% per year

Investment rate of return

Retirement age Minimum retirement age of 55

Mortality Certificated: 2009 CalSTRS Mortality

2.20% per year net of expenses based on the 
Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index

Classified: 2014 CalPERS Retiree Mortality for 
Miscellaneous Employees  

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

51 

1. PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 
 
C    - Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

 
This schedule presents information on the County Office of Education's proportionate share 
of the net pension liability (NPL), the Plans' fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the 
State's proportionate share of the NPL associated with the County Office of Education. In the 
future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented. 
 
Changes in Assumptions  
There were no changes in the assumptions used in the calculation of both the PERS and 
STRS collective net pension liabilities.  
 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for both CalPERS and 
CalSTRS. 

 
Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 

 
 D    - Schedule of Pension Contributions 

 
If an employer's contributions to the plans are actuarially determined or based on statutory or 
contractual requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension 
plans (or, if applicable, its statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's 
actual contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined 
contributions (or statutorily or contractually required), and a ratio of the actual contributions 
divided by covered-employee payroll. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of 
information will be presented. 
 
Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 
 
 

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.10%
Inflation 2.50% 2.75%
Payroll Growth Rate 2.75% 3.50%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return (1) 7.15% 7.10%
Mortality

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

Derived using CalPERS' 
Membership Data for all Funds

Derived using STRS' 
Membership Data for all Funds

 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
 

NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

52 

Adult Forest
Education Reserve 

Fund Fund Total

Cash and cash equivalents 95,462$           35,358$           130,820$         
Accounts receivable 25,727             -                  25,727             
Prepaid Expenses 350                 -                  350                 
Due from other funds 177                 -                  177                 

Total Assets 121,716$         35,358$           157,074$         

Liabilities
Accounts payable 16,735$           -$                16,735$           
Unearned revenue 2,843               -                  2,843               

Total Liabilities 19,578             -                  19,578             

Fund balances
Nonspendable 350                 -                  350                 
Restricted 101,788           -                  101,788           
Assigned -                  35,358             35,358             

Total Fund Balances 102,138           35,358             137,496           

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 121,716$         35,358$           157,074$         

FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES AND

ASSETS



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

 
NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

 
JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

53 

Adult Forest
Education Reserve

Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
            Total Revenue LimitLCFF sources 5,662$             -$                5,662$             

Federal revenue 5,706               34,931             40,637             
Other state revenues 4,120               -                  4,120               
Other local revenues 256,936 428                 257,364           

            Total RevenuesTotal revenues 272,424           35,359             307,783           

EXPENDITURES
    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 121,095 -                  121,095           
    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 44,842 -                  44,842             
    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 32,940 -                  32,940             
    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 34,786 -                  34,786             

Services and other operating expenditures 29,574 -                  29,574             
    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 22,691 -                  22,691             
    Other OutgoOther outgo 15,286             34,905             50,191             

            Total ExpendituresTotal expenditures 301,214           34,905             336,119           

            Excess of Revenues OverExcess (deficiency) of revenues 
                Expendituresover expenditures (28,790)            454                 (28,336)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out -                  (4,888)             (4,888)             

            Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)Total other financing sources (uses) -                  (4,888)             (4,888)             

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances (28,790)            (4,434)             (33,224)            

Fund balances, July 1, 2020 130,928 39,792             170,720           

Fund balances, June 30, 2021 102,138$         35,358$           137,496$         



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

ORGANIZATION 
 

JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

54 

The Colusa County Office of Education is a public agency operating a variety of programs for children, 
youth, and families, and supporting schools with academic, business, consulting and vocational services. 
 
The Colusa County Office of Education educates children with special needs, children who are referred by 
other public agencies, and youth who are wards of the Juvenile Court. County Office programs also provide 
educational services for adults, preschool children and youth through specific categorical programs. As the 
intermediary between the California Department of Education and local school districts, the Colusa County 
Office of Education represents the local districts on appropriate matters before the State government, and 
carries out responsibilities mandated by statutes and regulations. 
 
 GOVERNING BOARD 
       Term Expires 
 Name   Office   December  
 
Cristy J. Edwards   President   2022 
 
Ed Conrado   Vice President   2022 
 
Brenda Miller   Member   2024 
 
Jason McMullan   Member   2022 
 
Barry Morrell   Member   2024 

 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
Michael P. West 
Superintendent 

 
Aaron Heinz 

Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 55 

This schedule is not required for County Offices of Education for the year ended June 30, 2021.  

  
 
 
     
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 56 

The County Office is not the sponsoring local educational agency for any charter schools. 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL AND BUDGET FINANCIAL 
REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 57 

 
There were no adjustments made to any funds of the County Office. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 58 

Pass-
Through

Assistance Entity
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through California Department of Education

Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
84.027 Special Education:  Basic Local Assistance 13379 830,193$        
84.173 Special Education: IDEA Preschool Grants 13430 27,864           

84.027A Special Education: IDEA Mental Health Allocation 15197 51,516           
84.173A Special Education: IDEA Preschool Staff Development 13431 1,000             
84.181 Special Ed: IDEA Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761 82,210           

Subtotal Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 992,783          

84.425 Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Fund: 
Learning Loss Mitigation 15517 8,597             

84.010 ESEA (ESSA): Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 14329 719                
84.010 ESEA: ESSA School Improvement (CSI) Funding for COEs 15439 14,006           
84.367 ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants 14341 881                

84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ELA 14508 1,736             
84.002 Adult Education: Adult Secondary Education 13978 2,870             
84.002 Adult Education: Institutionalized Adults 13971 1,100             

84.215G Innovative Approaches to Literacy Program ** 1,085,711       
84.358A Small Rural Achievement Grant ** 21,011           
84.196 ESEA (ESSA): Education for Homeless Children and Youth, **

Subtitle VII-B Mckinney-Vento Act 14332 60,099           

Total U.S. Department of Education 2,189,513       

U.S. Department of the Treasury
Passed through California Department of Education

21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF): Learning Loss Mitigation 25516 152,219          

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 152,219          

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through California Department of Education

10.558 Child Care Food Program 13666 436,167          
10.558 FDCH Food Administration 13393 51,825           
10.553 Child Nutrition: School Programs (NSL Sec 4) 13523 79,170           
10.665 Forest Reserve Funds 10044 34,931           

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 602,093           
 

(continued) 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 59 

Pass-
Through

Assistance Entity
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through California Department of Education

Child Care Development Cluster
93.596 Child Development: Federal Child Care Center Bases 13609 195,562          
93.596 Child Development: Local Planning Councils 15136 58,507           
93.575 Child Development: Quality Improvement Activities 13942 46,816           
93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment Stage III 13881 221,815          
93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment 13694 492,546          
93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment Stage II 14178 40,606           
93.575 Child Dev: Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 

Appropriations (CRRSA) Act - One-time Stipend 15555 197,899          
93.575 Child Development: CARES Act Federal Alternative Payment 

(Contract Prefix CAPP) 15511 199,605          

Subtotal Child Care Development Cluster 1,453,356       

93.600 Head Start 10016 * 2,274,908       
93.778 Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) 10060 1,984             

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 3,730,248       

      Total Federal Programs 6,674,073$     

* Tested as a major program.

** Pass-Through Entity Identifying Number not available
 

 

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 60 

Adopted
Budget Actuals Actuals Actuals

2021/2022 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019
County School Services Fund

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources 14,302,497$    14,110,381$    12,619,156$    11,200,288$    

Expenditures 14,205,580      13,986,122 12,142,144      10,815,322      
Other Uses and Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total Outgo 14,205,580      13,986,122      12,142,144      10,815,322      

Change in Fund Balance 96,917            124,259          477,012          384,966          

Ending Fund Balance 4,387,293$      4,290,376$      4,166,117$      3,689,105$      

Available Reserves 696,591$         699,306$         607,108$         540,766$         

Reserve for Economic
Uncertainties 696,591$         699,306$         607,108$         540,766$         

Unassigned Fund Balance -$               -$               -$               -$               

Available Reserves as a 
Percentage of Total Outgo 5% 5% 5% 5%

Total Long-Term Debt 20,096,289$    20,202,335$    18,319,452$    16,361,927$    

Average Daily Attendance at P-2 15 15 15 15
 

   

This schedule reflects only the County School Service Fund on a budgetary fund basis, which does not 
include the changes in fund balance of the Deferred Maintenance Fund and Special Revenue for Other Than 
Capital Outlay Fund. 
 
The fund balance for the General Fund has increased $986,237 over the past three years. The fiscal year 2021-
22 projects a fund balance an increase of $96,917. For a County Office this size, the state recommends 
available reserves of at least 4% of total general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses. The County 
Office met this requirement. 
 
The County School Service Fund had an operating surplus in all of the previous three years. 
 
Long-term debt has increased over the past two years by $3,840,408 primarily due to increases in the net 
pension liability and increases to the Net OPEB liability. 
 
Average Daily Attendance has not increased over the past two years and the ADA budgeted to remain 
consistent for 2021-22.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

61 

1. Schedule of Instructional Time 
 

This schedule is not required for County Offices of Education for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 

2. Schedule of Charter Schools 
  

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial 
reporting by Charter Schools. 

 
3. Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 

 
This schedule provides information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Fund Financial 
Reports to the audited financial statements. 

 
4. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity of the 
County Office and is presented under the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The July 2021 
Edition of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 
requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all federally funded programs.  This schedule was 
prepared to comply with the Uniform Guidance and state requirements.  Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts used in the preparation of the general purpose 
financial statements. The County Office has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost 
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

  
5. Schedule of Financial Trends And Analysis 

 
This schedule discloses the County Office's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with 
current year budget information.  These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the County 
Office's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 



 James Marta & Company LLP 
           Certified Public Accountants 
 

                 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825     Phone: (916) 993-9494     Fax: (916) 993-9489 
 jdeol@jpmcpa.com      www.jpmcpa.com 62 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 

WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
 
Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa, California   
 
Report on Compliance for Each State Program 
 
We have audited the compliance of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the State of California’s 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (the “Audit Guide”) to the state laws and 
regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2021.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations is the responsibility of County Office’s 
management.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County Office’s compliance based on our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of California’s 2020-21 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the state 
laws and regulations listed below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
County Office’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the County Office’s compliance with those requirements. 
 

Procedures
Performed

Attendance and Distance Learning Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance No, see below
Instructional Time No, see below
Instructional Materials

General Requirements Yes
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers No, see below

Description

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

 

mailto:jdeol@jpmcpa.com
http://www.jpmcpa.com/


 

63 

Procedures
Performed

Classroom Teacher Salaries No, see below
Early Retirement Incentive No, see below
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment No, see below
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction No, see below
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice No, see below

Procedures
Performed

California Clean Energy Jobs Act No, see below
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes

Procedures
Performed

Independent Study-Course Based No, see below
Attendance No, see below
Mode of Instruction No, see below
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study No, see below
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction No, see below
Charter School Facility Grant Program No, see below

Description

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools

Description

Charter Schools

Description

 
 

We did not perform any procedures related to Kindergarten Continuance because the County Office does not 
report ADA for this program  
 
We did not perform any procedures related to Instructional Time for School Districts, Ratio of 
Administrative Employees to Teachers, Classroom Teacher Salaries, K-3 Grade Span Adjustment, and 
District of Choice because these compliance requirements do not apply to County Offices of Education.  
 
We did not perform any procedures related to California Clean Energy Jobs Act as the projects was already 
completed and the final project completion report was submitted in the previous years. 
 
We did not perform any procedures related to Early Retirement Incentive Program and Apprenticeship: 
Related and Supplemental Instruction because the County Office did not offer these programs. 
 



 

64 

We did not perform any procedures related to Independent Study-Course Based for Charter Schools, 
Attendance Reporting for Charter Schools, Mode of Instruction for Charter Schools, Nonclassroom-Based 
Instruction/Independent Study for Charter Schools, Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based 
Instruction for Charter Schools, and Charter School Facility Grant Program because the County Office did 
not have any charter schools. 
 
Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 
 

In our opinion, Colusa County Office of Education complied, in all material respects, with the state laws and 
regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 14, 2021 
 
 



                James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

  

 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825     Phone: (916) 993-9494     Fax: (916) 993-9489 
 jdeol@jpmcpa.com      www.jpmcpa.com 65 

 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON  
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County 
Office”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 14, 2021.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered County Office's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of County Office’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County Office’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
 

mailto:jdeol@jpmcpa.com
http://www.jpmcpa.com/


 

66 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County Office's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 14, 2021 
 
  



                James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

  

 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825     Phone: (916) 993-9494     Fax: (916) 993-9489 
 jdeol@jpmcpa.com      www.jpmcpa.com 67 

 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE  

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
Board of Education 
Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the July 2021 Edition of the OMB Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the County Office’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2021.  The County Office’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County Office’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the July 2021 Edition of the Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County Office’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County Office’s compliance. 
 

mailto:jdeol@jpmcpa.com
http://www.jpmcpa.com/


 

68 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the County Office complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Internal Control Over Compliance  
 
Management of the County Office is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the County Office’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
County Office’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
December 14, 2021 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

69 

Section I – Summary of Audit Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued:  Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting:  
 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 
 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
 noted?     Yes  X   No 
 

Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No  
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
 for major programs: Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
 be reported in accordance with the Uniform  
 Guidance Section 200.516(a)?     Yes  X   No 
 

Identification of major programs: 
 

  CFDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
  93.600 Head Start Cluster 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
 Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  X   Yes     No 
 
State Awards 
 
Internal control over state programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
 for state programs:  Unmodified 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

70 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
No matters were reported.    
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

71 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
No matters were reported. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 

72 

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

No matters were reported. 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

73 

 
No matters were reported. 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9220.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 1 

Governing Board Elections 

The membership of the Colusa County Board of Education shall be composed of five members elected 
in  trustee areas established by  the County Clerk  following  the decennial United States  census. Each 
trustee area must have equal or nearly equal numbers of electors. 

Governing Board election procedures shall be conducted  in accordance with the California Education 
Code and Elections Code. 

Board Member Qualifications 
Any person is eligible to be a Board member, without further qualifications, if s/he is eighteen years of 
age or older, a citizen of the State, an resident elector of one of the trustee areas established by the 
County Clerk following the decennial United States census, a registered voter and not legally disqualified 
from holding civil office. 

A Colusa County Office of Education employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her position before 
being sworn in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office. 

Statement of Qualifications 
The  Board  shall  assume  no  part  of  the  cost  of  printing,  handling,  translating  or mailing  candidate 
statements.  All costs of the candidate's statement will be paid by the candidate, and that no candidate 
may submit statement in excess of 200 words 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to 
the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and 
place where lots shall be cast to determine the winner. 

References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  9110 Regular and Student Members; Terms of Office 
Education Code 

5016 Elections procedure to settle tie votes 
5322 Order and call of elections 
1000‐1017 County Boards of Education election and jurisdiction 
35107 School district governing boards membership 

Elections Code 
20 Ineligible to hold office due to felony conviction 
10509 Notice of election by secretary 
13307 Candidate's Statement of Qualifications 

Government Code 
1770 Resignations and Vacancies 

Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed: March 10, 1999 
Revised:  February 13, 2008, July 14, 2010, February 9, 2022 

11.2.1



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6173.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 1 of 2 

Education for Homeless Children 

The Colusa County Board of Education recognizes the barrier students experiencing homelessness 
face.    As  a  result,  the  governing  board  ensure  compliance  to  the  McKinney‐Vento  Homeless 
Assistance Act, which requires the Governing Board desires to ensure that homeless students have 
equal  access  to  the  same  free,  and  appropriate  public  education,  including  public  preschool 
education,  as  provided  to  other  students within  the Colusa County Office  of  Education  (County 
Office). As  federal  law,  the McKinney‐Vento Act  supersedes  state and  local educational  law and 
policy.    Thus,  the  County  Office  of  Education  shall  provide  homeless  students  with  access  to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic 
standards as other students. 

Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status 
as homeless and shall not be stigmatized in any way. 

The  Colusa  County  Superintendent  of  Schools  (Superintendent)  or  designee  shall  ensure  that 
placement decisions for homeless students are based on the student's best interest as defined in law 
and administrative regulation policies and procedures. 

The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  identify  and  remove  barriers  to  the  identification  and 
enrollment of students who are homeless and to the retention of students who are homeless due to 
absences or outstanding fees or fines. 

When  there  are  at  least  15  homeless  students  in  a  school,  the  county’s  local  control  and 
accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve student achievement 
and other outcomes of homeless students. 

Transportation 
The County Office of Education  shall provide  transportation  for a homeless  student  to and  from 
his/her school of origin when the parent/guardian requests that such transportation be provided.  If 
the student moves outside of County Office of Education boundaries but continues to attend his/her 
school of origin within this County Office of Education, the Superintendent or designee shall consult 
with the superintendent of the district in which the student is now residing to agree upon a method 
to apportion the responsibility and costs of the transportation, in accordance with the law.  (42 USC 
11432) 
 
 
References: 
Superintendents Policies and Procedures 
  6173 Education for Homeless Children 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
  4600‐4687 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
Education Code 
  48850 Education rights; participation in extracurricular activities 

11.2.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6173.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 2 of 2 

  48852.5 Notice of education rights of homeless students 
  48852.7 Enrollment of homeless students 
  48915.5 Recommendations for expulsion, homeless students with disabilities 
  48918.1 Notice of recommended expulsion homeless youth 
  51225.1 – 51225.3 Graduation requirements 
  52052 Public School Performance Accountability Program 
  52060 – 52077   Local Control and Accountability Plan 
U.S. Code (USC) Title 42 
  11431‐11435 McKinney‐Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  March 11, 2015 
Revised:  February 9, 2022 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 
   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, February 9, 2022 
 
TIME:  3:30 pm  Board Portrait Session 
  4:00 pm  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
3.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 3  action 

3.2 Administer Oath of Office to Trustee Area 3  action 

4.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
4.1 Colusa County Elementary Spelling Competition – Alissa Maas  information 

5.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

7.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
7.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
7.1.2 Superintendents Council – No January Meeting 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 9, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
7.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

7.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

7.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 

7.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

7.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
8.1 Board President’s Report  information 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the January 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.2 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision BP 6173 Education for  action 
  for Homeless Children 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 
11.3.1 LCAP Supplement to the 2021‐22 Annual Update 
11.3.2 2021‐22 LCAP Goals, Metrics, Actions and Services Update 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 Approve School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the 2020‐21  action 

School Year 
12.1.1 Coastal Buttes Academy 
12.1.2 S. William Abel Academy 

12.2 Approve 2022‐23 Year Three Funding Application for Federal Assistance  action 

13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
2nd Interim Report 
March 9, 2022, 4:00 pm 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT 







Please join us at the…

2022 Colusa County 

Elementary Spelling Bee
for 4th-6th graders

Tuesday, March 1, 2022 at 3:30pm
CCOE Education Village Multi-Purpose Room

499 Margurite Street in Williams, CA

Winners of Colusa County Elementary Spelling Bee
will be eligible to participate in the

California State Elementary Spelling Bee Championship 
on May 14, 2022 in Stockton, CA.



  7.3 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  January 2022        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 Family Engagement Night with Ed Services. 
 Meeting with CDE/OHS Consultants. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance meeting. 
 ECE Advisory Committee with Yuba Community College. 
 Child Development Hiring Fair. 
 Student Support Services meeting. 
 Leadership Alliance meeting. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 CDE CCTR Expansion Grant. 

School Readiness: 

 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative Partnership Cohort. 
 Learning Genie Family Engagement app.  
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 
 Children’s Services All Staff In-Service Day Planning for March event. 
 Self-Assessment of program strengths/improvements. 
 CLASS observations. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Representatives/Policy Council Meeting 
 Plan virtual CS Family Activity Night 

 

 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 
January/ February 2022 

  
 

 

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• The S. William Abel Academy has doubled in size since last semester. There are now nine students in 

person and six on independent study. Three of the students are expected to graduate by May and one is 
expected to graduate in February.  

• The S. William Abel Academy students are working hard on English and Algebra this month, along with 
learning U.S. history from the 1920s.  

• There are two field trips planned in February for SWAA students. One of the field trips will be to the 
Colusa County Farm Show and another to Top Golf in Roseville, CA.  

 
Colusa County Adult School 

• The Wildland Fire Academy is in full swing. WFA Coordinator Jeremiah Karlonas and Assistant Ben 
Mayes are working every weekend to ensure that cadets have the necessary skills and training to be 
employed by CALFIRE or whichever agency they choose upon graduation. 

• Career Technical Education Courses are being offered once again by teacher, Jill Wright.  Classes are 
held on Tuesdays and Wednesdays. Visit the www.colusacountyadultschool.org webpage to see the list 
of courses. 

• Colusa County Adult School has hired Alena Anberg as our new CTE teacher. Alena will be offering 
evening classes to adults beginning in February 2022. 

 
Farm to School 

• Plans are underway for the Spring Plant Sale at Griff’s Feed and Seed on Saturday, April 9th, 2022!  There 
will also be a pre-order opportunity for CCOE employees to place their pre-orders and have plants reserved 
specifically according to their orders. There is a $30.00 minimum for this request and plants are sold at 
$3.00 each.  

• SWAA students are in the process of starting the seeds in the greenhouse under the direction of Farm to 
School Lab Supervisor, Tanner Bloom. 
 

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Work to support our school in CSI is ongoing and provided as needed.  
 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 
• Continued support of our district in DA includes monthly meetings with the superintendent. 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• The LCAP Supplement to the Annual Update, and the update on the Goals, Metrics, and Actions/ 

Services will be presented in person to the CCOE Board at the February 9th Board Meeting. 
• Administration has been meeting with each District Superintendent to provide support in preparing for 

their LCAP Supplement and update of Goals, Metrics, and Actions/Services. All districts are in the 

http://www.colusacountyadultschool.org/


process of preparing their individual presentations to their school boards according to the method they 
feel is best to deliver their information. 

Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• Monthly check-in meetings have been established to best support our Early Mental Health Initiative 

Child Aides.  
• Child Aides have continued implementation of the Second Step Curriculum.  
• Second Step Curriculum has expanded to Burchfield primary in Colusa, CA. 

 
Foster Youth 

• Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program Expenditure 1 has been submitted.  
• Assembly Bill 130 budget has been approved thus allowing the Prevention Services Department to 

hire a Foster Youth Mentor to support Colusa County Foster Youth with both personal and 
educational needs. 

• Collaborative countywide FAFSA Nights have been scheduled for February 9, 2022 and February 
23, 2022 from 5:30 pm to 7:30 pm. The events will be in collaboration with Pierce Joint Unified 
School District, Colusa Unified School District, Williams School District, Woodland Community 
College, and Colusa Community College.  

• Caring Youth Counts event has been scheduled for March 24, 2022. 
 
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• Prevention Services Department has continued to host monthly District Liaison Meetings, where 
technical support, as well as legislative updates, are provided.  

• We are Family Parent Engagement Initiative has hosted four workshops thus far. The next 
workshop will be covering the topic of Self-Care and will take place on February 16, 2022.  

• The Prevention Services Team is now holding two positions in the nonprofit organization, Karen’s 
House. The Prevention Services Supervisor is the Vice President, and the Prevention Services 
Coordinator is the Secretary. 

• The Prevention Services Department is working on distributing VSP gift certificates to Colusa 
County students with the support of district administrative assistants.  

• The Prevention Services Department has reached out to Healing CA to schedule another 
Vision/Dental Clinic for 2022. 

 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The Prevention Services Department is working on getting a list of events for all school districts to 
provide outreach to the districts.  

• The team has been receiving training on CDE-approved curriculum to support school districts with 
implementation of needed intervention programs. 

• A survey will be distributed early February to assess the district’s needs for intervention programs.  
 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• The TLEGP Quarter 2 Progress Report was submitted.  
• The Prevention Services Department is working with Colusa County Sheriff’s Department to create 

a logo that can be utilized for outreach materials.  
• Colusa County Sheriff’s Department has continued their work with the TLEGP grant. 

 



  7.5 

Colusa County Office of Education 
SELPA/Special Ed Board Report 

February 9, 2022 
 

Special Ed Report 

1. Staffing- We have been able to fill our translator, transportation 
assistant, and health aide positions. There are still 2 teacher 
openings and 13 Para Educator openings. 

2. The results will be released in February to see if we were rewarded 
the MHSA grant to establish wellness centers in each district starting 
in 2022-2023 school year. 

3. Veronica Sandoval is the new Program Specialist, taking the position 
vacated by Jessica Haney when she became Special Education 
Director. 

4. We are researching Touch Math, a math intervention program that 
would help Special Education students with gaining math skills that 
they may have lost during the pandemic. This would be implemented 
next school year. 

5. Staff has been extremely flexible and creative during the staffing 
shortage. 
 

CCOE SELPA 

1. No meeting scheduled until April. I have had meetings individually 
with each Superintendent discussing the upcoming changes to 
Special Education funding. 

STATE SELPA 

1. State SELPA is focused on the impacts the proposed changes in 
Special Education funding could have on SELPA’s.  
  
 



Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report November 10, 2021 

 

The CCOE Technology Department has moved to the Colusa County Library Building 
and is occupying our old offices where our datacenter is located.  We have been 
organizing our equipment. 

We are continuing to work on the plans for the Colusa Unified fourth EduNet radio near 
the golf course.  We are still working with a vendor to secure a telephone pole and plan 
the installation.  However, due to the recent fires, the team that would normally help us 
are in high demand for recovery efforts.  We are continuing to look for other options that 
supply better coverage for the apartment buildings in Colusa.  We are also working with 
the Colusa Indian Community Council to help present support options for their internet 
access. 
 
The CCOE phone system that we use (Mitel 5000) will become end of life shortly.  We 
are in the process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This 
purchase would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We are ensuring this 
migration will meet all needs for all CCOE sites with Mitel 5000 phone systems. 
 
We have been rolling out Everbridge as an emergency notification system for CCOE 
Cabinet.  We will finalize the installation and begin the training process for staff shortly.   
 
We are in the process of re-inventorying all CCOE equipment.  Once the inventory has 
been completed, we will be giving each CCOE Department a list of computers that will 
not support Windows 11.  We will begin the process of phasing these computers out 
prior to the Windows 10 End of Life in 2025.  
 
We have begun planning potential Erate category 2 purchases for CCOE departments 
with aged networking equipment. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting January 12, 2022 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Jesse Deol, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, Autumn Humphrey, 

Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Lorilee Niesen, Briana Norman, 
Stefani Silvas Santana, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

3:45 pm – 4:00 pm Interview(s) for Trustee Area 3 Applicant(s) 
President Brenda Miller called the Special Interview meeting to order at 3:45 p.m. in the 345 
5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Discussion was held on the Board vacancy interview process.  One candidate, Tim Wright, was 
interviewed for the Colusa County Board of Education Trustee Area 3 vacancy, and discussion 
was held on the merit of the candidate.  The motion to appoint Trustee Area 3 will be heard 
during the February 9, 2022, Regular Board meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:56 p.m. 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the Regular meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 
5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 11.1, Accept 2020‐21 Financial Audit Report to follow 4.2, Awarding of Diplomas. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the graduate, presented her with a diploma, gave her 
a portfolio to organize her professional papers, and asked her to share with the 
Board her plans for the future and to introduce her guests. 
 

4.2 Awarding of Diploma – S. William Abel Academy 
Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from the S. William Abel Academy.  
Lorilee introduced the graduate, presented her with a diploma, and asked her to 
share with the Board her plans for the future and to introduce her guests. 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.2. 
   

9.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

4.3 CSBA Region 4 Update 
Michael West presented a letter from David Patterson, Ed.D. CSBA Region 4 
County Representative. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided a school district COVID 19 update, including 
MUSD’s recent outbreak, home testing kits provided by the State for all 
students, and masks provided for all students and staff.  Michael 
reported on his participation and attendance in activities, such as his 
continued review of the WestEd Special Education Governance and 
Accountability (SEGA) report, participation in CCSESA sub committee 
meetings to seek legislation for relief from CalSTRS issues, including that 
agency’s refusal to address mistakes on their part for overpayment, and 
his participation in CUSD’s DART and he highlighted CUSD’s evaluation of 
SARB enforcement with the goal of encouraging student and parent 
cooperation to reduce truancy.  Discussion was held on Colusa County’s 
current Chief Probation Officer, Michael Rodgers. 

Michael West provided an overview of the Governor’s proposed budget 
to be presented to the legislature.  Beginning with an anticipated budget 
surplus of $45 billion, he summarized the following: 

 Significant boost to LCFF and categorical programs, including a 5.33% 
and a $3.3 billion ongoing funds to include COEs 

 An ADA calculation change aimed at smoothing the fiscal effects of 
multi‐year declines in ADA by basing it on the average of three prior 
years’ ADA 

 Small adjustments to Independent Study Rules 

 Continued investment to TK and SPS Programs including $639.2 
million to expand eligibility for transitional kindergarten, beginning in 
2022‐23, $383 million to add a certificated or classified staff to each 
transitional kindergarten classroom, $600 million for increases to SPS 
adjustment and infrastructure for early education programs, and 
providers who have served all eligible three‐and four‐year‐olds will be 
permitted to enroll two‐year‐old children 

 Improving literacy for children with learning disabilities, including 
$500 million one‐time funds for literacy coaches and reading 
specialists, a $200 million grant to expand multi‐lingual libraries, $10 
million for books for children, $2 million for early identification of 
students with disabilities into the state preschool system 

 Further Implementation of the ELO Program, including $3.4 billion to 
offer services including art and music 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

 Over $2 billion for special education paired with fairly modest policy 
changes and several significant special education funding proposals, 
including $500 million to the special education funding formula with 
no change to the AB 602 funding formula, $500 million one‐time 
funds for infrastructure to support inclusive classrooms through the 
Inclusive Early Education Expansion Program, $1 billion to strengthen 
the transition of young children from regional centers to school 
districts (includes multiple programs), and a 5.33 % COLA (concerns 
about policy changes include calculating special education funding at 
the LEA level, not a SELPA level with no proposal to allocate the funds 
directly to LEAs, and consolidating the current extraordinary cost 
pools to simplify the funding formula) 

 Funding to support California’s educator workforce needs, including 
$24 million one‐time funds to waive specified teacher examination 
fees, $12 million one‐time funds to extend the waiver of specified 
credentials fees, $5.5 million to re‐establish the Personnel 
Management Assistance Teams that will assist local educational 
agencies in hiring and recruitment practices, $5 million one‐time 
funds to support the CCTC Credentialing Partnership Program within 
the California community colleges, $1.4 million for the CCTC, and 
extension of the statute authorizing those with a substitute teaching 
credential or permit issued by the CCTC to hold any one‐assignment 
for up to 120 cumulative days 

 Significant investments to develop college and career pathways 

 Expansion of the State’s role in school facilities, including $1.4 billion 
one‐time funds for new construction 

 $1.5 billion for electric buses 

 $1.3 billion for universal meal programs, requiring all public schools 
to provide two free meals per day, regardless of eligibility, beginning 
in 2022‐23 

 $2.7 Billion dedicated to COVID 19 Emergency Response 

Discussion was held on trailer bills and the benefits of education 
associations, the amount of monies trickling down to children with a lot 
of vested interests vying for those monies, recruiting young students to 
go into education, waiving fees for teaching credentials, relying upon 
interns to fill gaps, monies to resolve the pension costs, and the increase 
to cost of living and inflation. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No December Meeting 

No Department Reports 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action. Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes, one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve the following Consent Agenda 
items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the December 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
8.2 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision 

BP 5122.00 Reclassification/Redesignation of English Language Learner 
Students 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

No report.  Discussion was held on community colleges in the State budget. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Alex Evans reported that Technology Services relocated to the 146 7th Street, 
Colusa, offices. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Lorilee Niesen reported that she is working on the supplement to the LCAP 
Annual Update that will include metrics, actions and services, and goals, and she 
will bring that to the Board in February.  Lorilee said that she worked with 
district superintendents on their supplements as well.  Discussion was held on 
the stability of the document.  Lorilee announced that she will hold an LCAP 
Educational Partner meeting next week.  Discussion was also held on state‐level 
involvement with the LCAPs, and Lorilee said they review the documents for 
compliance. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Interim Project Director Stefani Silvas Santana 
reported on grant activities, including the launch of the iPad lending program at 
WES for TK through grade 3.  She said that the iPads include F2B and Clever Kids 
University apps, and that IAL doubled the number of iPads in student hands from 
the prior year.  Stefani said that she has been collaborating with local medical 
and dental offices in Colusa and Arbuckle to provide one bilingual book to each 
child who visits those offices, as well as providing bilingual books for BPS and 
MES kindergarten backpacks.  Discussion was held on getting the bilingual books 
to both Spanish language only and English language only students. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.2. 

11.1 Accept 2020‐21 Financial Audit Report, Presented by James Marta & Co. – 
Jesse Deol, CPA, ARM 
Jesse Deol presented the Independent Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year that 
ended June 30, 2021.  He began with the Governance Letter and talked about its 
purpose and its opinion, which was unmodified, saying that it is the best opinion 
that can be issued.  Jesse spoke about the challenging year to coordinate an 
audit, but that CCOE staff has systems in place that made it work.  Jesse reported 
on the Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices, Results of the Audit (no 
issues and no findings), Management Discussion and Analysis, Summary 
Statement of Net Position, Summary Statement of Activities, 2020‐21 County 
School Services Fund Revenues and Expenses, Financial Trends and Analysis that 
indicate long term debt is trending up over the next three years with no 
anticipated change to ADA and that reserves are in good shape, and the 
Comparative Statements of Net Position that indicates that CCOE is second only 
to Sutter county for financial condition.  Jesse spoke about the three 
corresponding communications, or reports, in which no matters were reported.  
In conclusion he said the financial condition of the CCOE is improving while 
benefitting from sound financial management decisions.  Discussion was held on 
the new financial system that Jesse said he believes it is working out well and 
that it is auditor friendly, and on the frequency of audits showing no findings 
(approximately 85%), and on ADA. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to accept the 2020‐21 Financial Audit Report. 
 
Discussion was also held on communicating to CCOE staff the good job they did 
on the audit. 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision 
11.2.1  BP 9220 Governing Board Elections 

Non‐material changes were made to BP 9220 Governing Board Elections, 
so the policy does not need to be brought forward for a second reading. 

11.2.2  BP 6173 Education for Homeless Children 
Changes were made to BP 6173 Education for Homeless Children, and the 
policy will be brought forward to the February 9, 2022, Board meeting for 
a second reading. 
 
Discussion was held on removing transportation language from the Board 
Policy because transportation is the district’s responsibility, and on the 
Superintendent’s Policy providing implementation details about the 
program. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 12, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Add Board portrait session prior to the Regular Meeting 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
February 9, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:29 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

ADA  Average Daily Attendance 

BP  Board Policy 

BPS  Burchfield Primary School 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CCTC  California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (also known as CTC) 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19 Corona Virus 2019 

CSBA  California School Boards Association 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

DART  District Attendance Review Team 

ELO  Expanded Learning Opportunities 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

MES  Maxwell Elementary School 

SARB  School Attendance Review Board 

SEGA  Special Education Governance and Accountability  

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SPS  State Preschool 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

WES  Williams Elementary School 

 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6173.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 1 of 2 

Education for Homeless Children 

The Colusa County Board of Education recognizes the barrier students experiencing homelessness 
face.    As  a  result,  the  governing  board  ensure  compliance  to  the  McKinney‐Vento  Homeless 
Assistance Act, which requires the Governing Board desires to ensure that homeless students have 
equal  access  to  the  same  free,  and  appropriate  public  education,  including  public  preschool 
education,  as  provided  to  other  students within  the Colusa County Office  of  Education  (County 
Office). As  federal  law,  the McKinney‐Vento Act  supersedes  state and  local educational  law and 
policy.    Thus,  the  County  Office  of  Education  shall  provide  homeless  students  with  access  to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic 
standards as other students. 

Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status 
as homeless and shall not be stigmatized in any way. 

The  Colusa  County  Superintendent  of  Schools  (Superintendent)  or  designee  shall  ensure  that 
placement decisions for homeless students are based on the student's best interest as defined in law 
and administrative regulation policies and procedures. 

The  Superintendent  or  designee  shall  identify  and  remove  barriers  to  the  identification  and 
enrollment of students who are homeless and to the retention of students who are homeless due to 
absences or outstanding fees or fines. 

When  there  are  at  least  15  homeless  students  in  a  school,  the  county’s  local  control  and 
accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve student achievement 
and other outcomes of homeless students. 

Transportation 
The County Office of Education  shall provide  transportation  for a homeless  student  to and  from 
his/her school of origin when the parent/guardian requests that such transportation be provided.  If 
the student moves outside of County Office of Education boundaries but continues to attend his/her 
school of origin within this County Office of Education, the Superintendent or designee shall consult 
with the superintendent of the district in which the student is now residing to agree upon a method 
to apportion the responsibility and costs of the transportation, in accordance with the law.  (42 USC 
11432) 
 
 
References: 
Superintendents Policies and Procedures 
  6173 Education for Homeless Children 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 5 ‐ Education 
  4600‐4687 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
Education Code 
  48850 Education rights; participation in extracurricular activities 

9.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 6173.00 
Series 6000—Instruction  Page 2 of 2 

  48852.5 Notice of education rights of homeless students 
  48852.7 Enrollment of homeless students 
  48915.5 Recommendations for expulsion, homeless students with disabilities 
  48918.1 Notice of recommended expulsion homeless youth 
  51225.1 – 51225.3 Graduation requirements 
  52052 Public School Performance Accountability Program 
  52060 – 52077   Local Control and Accountability Plan 
U.S. Code (USC) Title 42 
  11431‐11435 McKinney‐Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  March 11, 2015 
Revised:  February 9, 2022 



2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Colusa County Office of Education Page 1 of 5

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational Services          

 
lniesen@ccoe.net           
5304731350 

 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the 
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts. 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided through the 
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

 

Educational Partners were provided with an update of expenditures at the LCAP Educational Partner meeting on January 20, 2022 and were 
asked for input regarding  future LCFF monies. Those in attendance were also provided  an update on each goal, action, metric and 
expenditure that relates to  CCOE's Local Control Accountability Plan. The  LCAP for 2021-22 includes the current funding and no changes 
have been made. The Colusa County Office of Education did not receive any additional funds provided through the Budget Act of 2021, such 
as ESSER III or Concentration Grant Add-on Funds, but did receive funds from the American Rescue Plan for our Homeless Student 
Population. These funds as well as all services to homeless are discussed monthly at the District Liaison Meetings hosted by our Prevention 
Services Team.  The Educational Partners at the District Liaison Meetings include the district liaison from each of the four districts, and 
representatives from CCOE  Children's Services and SELPA  Departments. Each month presenters are invited to these meetings to share 
resources that benefit students  Presenters usually represent community agencies such as the  Department of Health and Human Services, 
Behavioral Health, etc.  The continued engagement of all partners is a priority at CCOE. 

 

A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent. 

 

Not Applicable as Colusa County Office of Education received no additional Concentration Grant add-on funds. 

 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to 
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 

 



2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Colusa County Office of Education Page 2 of 5

Colusa County Office of Education had received monies from the CARES Act- GEER I funding to support the purchase of PPE and Testing 
to ensure student safety.  Educational Partners provided input through the review of the CCOE Comprehensive Safety Plan  and the COVID-
19 Addendum to the Plan.  No additional federal monies have been received to support recovery from the COVID-19 Pandemic at this time. 

 

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation. 

 

Colusa County Office of Education did not received any ESSER III funds in 2021. It did receive almost $12,000 in ARP I Funds to support 
homeless students.  As of this date, only  $492 of the ARP I funds have been expended on the purchase of materials for outreach efforts..  
While Prevention Services Staff are hoping to participate in more outreach to educate homeless students and their families, the purchase of 
materials to explain the rights of homeless students is a necessary expense.  Prevention Services Staff meets monthly with other district 
liaisons to discuss better ways to serve the homeless population.  With COVID-19, it has been a challenge expending the monies as 
outreach has been limited due to lack of events, or access to students. 

 

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 

 

Colusa County Office of Education is expending its fiscal resources according to the goals, actions and services outlined in the 2021-22 
LCAP. While there is no ESSER III Expenditure Plan to align the LCAP to, one can see a through line between the school's SARC and 
LCAP.  CCOE also takes into consideration the safety and well-being of students and staff by referencing and updating its Comprehensive 
Safety Plan as needed. The LCAP Executive Summary presented to the CCOE Board of Education on February 9, 2022 outlines the current 
status of the 2021-22 LCAP and also charts the path of what actions and services still need to be addressed. 

 



2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Colusa County Office of Education Page 3 of 5

Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan Year 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs 
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021–22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following: 

The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 

When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best 
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational 
partners. 
The 2021–22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022–23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included 
with the LCAP as follows: 

The 2022–23 Budget Overview for Parents 
The 2021–22 Supplement 
The 2022–23 LCAP 
The Action Tables for the 2022–23 LCAP 
The Instructions for the LCAP Template 

As such, the 2021–22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA’s 2022–23 LCAP. 

Instructions 
Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct 
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and 
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents. 

In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to 



2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Colusa County Office of Education Page 4 of 5

reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as 
a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found. 

Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided 
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).” 

In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA 
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget 
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of 
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021–22 LCAP, provide this explanation. 

Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” 

If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation. 

Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code 
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide 
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enrollment, as compared to schools with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. 

In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students 
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff 
providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are 
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.” 

If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on 
students, provide this explanation. 

Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet 
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place 
related to state funds. 

Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 
School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.” 



2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Colusa County Office of Education Page 5 of 5

If an LEA does not receive ESSER III funding, provide this explanation. 

Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the 
continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges. 

Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with 
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update.” 

Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans 
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe 
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 

California Department of Education 
November 2021



 
Colusa County Office of 

Education 
2021-22 LCAP Executive Summary 

Goal 1 
 

Goal 1: S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and 

instruction and will be measured through formative and summative assessments. 

 Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 1 

State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

1A. Properly Credentialed 
Teachers 

2020‐21 shows no teacher 
misassignments 

(CALPADS Data) 

In progress  CCOE will maintain fully 
credentialed teachers. 

1B. Student access to 
standards based instructional 
materials 

2020‐21 shows 100% of 
students have access to 
standards based instructional 
materials 

(2020‐21 SARC Report) 

100% of all SWAA students 
have access to Standards 
Based instructional 
Materials. 

Maintain 

100% of students  will have 
access to standards based 
instructional materials 

2A. State Board Adopted 
academic content and 
performance standards fully 
implemented 

2020‐21 

100% of online courses are 
aligned to state standards 

(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

100% of Edmentum Courses 
are aligned to state 
standards. 

100% of  all courses will be 
aligned with to state 
standards and frameworks 

2B. How programs and 
services will enable EL’s 
access to CCSS and ELD 
standards 

2020‐21 

100% of online curriculum 
are aligned to meet 
Designated and Integrated 
ELD standards 

ELD standards are embedded 
in Edmentum Coursework. 

100% of new curriculum will 
align to CCSS and designated 
& integrated ELD standards 

7A. All students, including 
unduplicated pupils and 
individuals with exceptional 
needs will have access to a 
broad course of study that 
includes all subject areas 
defined in Ed Code 51210 
and 51220: 

2020‐21 

100% of students have 
access to a broad course of 
study through the curriculum 
used for instruction 

100% of SWAA students have 
access to a broad course of 
study. 

 

100% of students have 
access to a broad course of 
study through curriculum 
used for instruction 



 
Actions and Services 

Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

1.1  SWAA Teacher 
Highly qualified 
instructor to meet 
the academic needs 
of all students that 
has CLAD or SDAIE 
authorization 

 

  No  $34,898.50  $0  $50,920.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Personnel expenses reflect costs as of December 17, 2021. 

1.2  Assessment 
Program 
Implement a new 
assessment program 
to determine 
student levels and 
targeted areas for 
support 

  Yes  $0  $0  $5,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

In progress of purchasing and implementing NWEA’s MAP program for assessment.    
 
Navigate360 was purchased to assess students’ knowledge of SEL resources. The purchase was made with 
monies from CAL‐HOPE FEMA Grant.  

1.3  Curriculum 
Provide students 
with a culturally 
responsive, relevant, 
curriculum aligned to 
California Standards 
(Common Core) with 
an emphasis on 
English Language 
Development, 
academic 
vocabulary, and 
reading proficiency 
Explore science and 
math curriculum 
replacement 

  Yes  $0  $885.50 
 

$25,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

The SWAA Teacher is working with Discovery curriculum staff to pilot Science Curriculum for grades 9‐12. 

 Edmentum License Renewal 

 Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased using CAL‐HOPE FEMA monies, $9,197.20. 

1.4  Staff Professional 
Development 
Staff participation in 
professional 
development events 
that build capacity in 
providing engaging, 

  No  $0  $100 
 

$1,000.00 



Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

educational learning 
experiences 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

The SWAA Admin. Assistant attended virtual Aeries SIS training.  
 
The Educational Services Staff participated in SEL training on August 4, 2021, which was paid for by utilizing funds 
from the CAL‐HOPE FEMA Grant 

1.5  ELD Strategies 
Staff participation in 
professional learning 
intentionally 
designed to assist 
English Learners in 
core content and 
advancing in English 
language proficiency 
areas 

  Yes  $0  $100 
 

$500.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

The administration participated in EL Road Map training sessions to develop an EL plan for students. 

Goal 2 
 
Goal 2: Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness. 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 2 

State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

5E.High school graduation 
rate 

 

2019‐20 

The graduation rate at the S. 
William Abel Community 
School during the 2019‐2020 
school year was 40% 
measured using the DASS 
Graduation Rate formula 

These numbers fluctuate 
based on enrollment. 

2020‐21 

Only one 12th grade student 
was enrolled in SWAA, but 
transferred to a different 
school prior to the end of 
the year, thus resulting in a 
graduation rate of 0. 

As of December 17, 2021, 
SWAA has graduated two 
out of the nine enrolled 
students,  one 
underclassman, and a senior. 
There are three additional 
students, who are on track 
to graduate by May 27, 
2022.  
 
Zero Students have 
transferred to the Colusa 
County Adult School at this 
point. 

Increase the 2020‐21 high 
school graduation rate  
28%. 
 
Transition of students, 18 
years and older to the  
Colusa County Adult School 
at the end of the school year 
to assist in graduating 

8. Pupil Outcomes Percent of 
students participating in a 
CTE course 

2019‐2020  
26.09% of the SWACS 
students participated in a 
CTE course measured by 
CALPADS Data 

56 % of students have 
participated in a CTE course 
as of December 17, 2021 

100% of students participate 
in a CTE course 

 



Actions and Services 

Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐
Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

2.1  Individualized 
Learning Plans 
Use Individualized 
Learning Plans (ILP) 
and Student Success 
Plans to provide 
feedback on student 
progress to student, 
parent, and teachers 
to career and college 
ready skills and 
credits toward 
graduation. 

  No  $0  $0  $0 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

All SWAA Students have ILP plans in place and conferences have been held during the first week of school 
(August 6‐11), September 19, the week of November 1‐5 and December 17, 2021, to meet with students 
and parents. 

2.2  CTE and College 
Readiness 
Experiences 
Develop a continuum 
of experiences in CTE 
and college readiness 
for students that 
promote soft skills 
training, personal 
planning and field 
trips to business and 
college visits 

  Yes  $0  $9,397.11 
 

$31,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Students attended a field trip/tour to learn about local business and possible job opportunities in their 
community on November 23, 2021, to Sun Valley Rice.  Additional trips to the Wildlife Refuge on November 
16, 2021. 
 
CTE supplies were purchased, which will be utilized for graphic design and for woodworking during SWAA’s 
weekly art class session.  
 
A Farm to School Kitchen a la Cart was purchased using funds from the CAL‐HOPE FEMA Grant, $12,951.35. 
As a result of this purchase, SWAA Students were ServSafe certified in order to ensure proper handling of 
food.  
 

2.3  Summer School 
Academy 
Continue the Summer 
School Academy with 
an emphasis on 
project‐based 
learning experiences 

  Yes  $0  $0  $8,356.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Plans are in place to offer SWAA Students a Summer School Academy following the end of the regular 
school year. 



Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐
Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

2.4  Course Offerings 
Provide course 
offering access to all 
students which may 
include classes at 
comprehensive 
schools, community 
college dual 
enrollment, and 
online learning classes 
to meet student’s 
academic goals 

  No  $0  $1,234.36  $1000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

All students have access to dual enrollment courses at Woodland Community College, which is adjacent to 
the Education Village. 
 
 

Goal 3 
 
Goal 3: Develop and implement a multi‐tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that 
improves social emotional health and student engagement. 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 3 

State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

1C. Facilities are properly 
maintained in “good or 
exemplary” repair 

 

 

2019‐20 

Education Village Sites 
received an  overall rating of 
“Good”  in FIT Report 

(Annual FIT Report) 

December 10, 2021, Facility 
Inspection Tool (FIT) Report 
revealed an overall rating of 
94.79% indicating “Good”. 

Maintain 

Education Village sites 
receive an  overall rating of 
“Good”  in FIT Report 

 

3A, B, C: Facilitate parent 
involvement through 
multiple opportunities 
including parents of 
unduplicated pupils and 
individuals with exceptional 
needs 

 

Measured by 
participation/attendance of 
parents to  the scheduled 
events through sign in 
sheets or survey completion 

 

Individualized Learning plan 
meetings and Parent 
Teacher Conferences  were 
held on 8/03/20; 9/14/20; 
9/15/20; 9/20/20; 12/15/20; 
02/09/21; 5/18/21 

Parents were invited to 
attend the LCAP Stakeholder 
Meeting on February 25, 
2021.  

ILP meetings have been held 
on 9/19/2021 and 
12/17/2021. 
 
Parent Teacher Conferences 
were held during the weeks 
of Aug 6‐11, 2021 and Nov 
1‐5, 2021. 
 
Parents were invited to Back 
to School Night on October 
6th , 2021. Dinner  was 
provided and the agenda 
focused  on their students’ 
education and classroom 
expectations and activities 
for the semester. 
 

 



State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

Parents were invited to 
participate in the CHKS 
Survey:14% of parents 
completed the survey 

Parents were surveyed May 
2020 and May 2021. 71.4% 
of parents completed the 
surveys. 

100% were pleased with the 
transition to the  school 
Distance Learning/Hybrid 
Program. 

Parent Contact:  86% prefer 
face‐to‐face meetings; 14% 
prefer Zoom 

Rating of Food Program: 
43%   extremely effective, 
43% very effective, 14% 
slightly effective. 

ILP meetings every six 
weeks promote 
participation of students 
with exceptional needs 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Letters were sent out to all 
parents on January 11, 2022 
to invite them to the LCAP 
Educational Partner Meeting 
on January 20, 2022. 

5A. Maintain the school 
attendance rate above 75%  

85.3% attendance rate for 
2019‐20 

(Aeries Data) 

School attendance rate as of 
December 17, 2021, was 
86.4. 
(Aeries Data) 

87% attendance rate for 
2023‐24 

5B. Decrease the chronic 
absenteeism rate by 3 %  

Chronic absenteeism rate 
was 56.52% in 2019‐20 
measured by CALPADS Data 

Chronic absenteeism rate 
was 55.56% as of December 
17 , 2021. 

53% chronic absentee rate 
in 2023‐24 

5C. Middle school dropout 
rate 

  

2020‐21 

There was a zero dropout 
rate for middle school 
students measured by 
CALPADS Data 

As of December 17, 2021, 
there were no middle school 
students enrolled in SWAA. 

Zero middle school dropout 
rate 

 

 

5D. High school dropout 
rate 

 

2020‐21  

High school dropout rate 
was zero measured by 
CALPADS Data 

The high school dropout 
rate as of December 17, 
2021, was zero. 

Zero high school dropout 
rate 

 

6A. Reduce the number of 
students who are 
suspended annually 

2020‐21 

Zero students were 
suspended measured by 
CALPADS Data 

Three students were 
suspended as of December 
17, 2021. 

Suspension rate of zero 

Measured by CALPADS data 



State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

6B. Pupil Expulsion Rate 

 

2020‐21 

No expulsions occurred at 
SWAA, thus resulting in zero 
expulsion rate measured by 
CALPADS Data 

Zero students have been 
expelled from SWAA. 

Maintain Expulsion rates at 
zero 

Measured by CALPADS data 

6C. Student surveys on 
safety and school 
connectedness  

2020‐21 

Due to the COVID‐19 
pandemic,  initial student 
surveys focused on how to 
improve services during 
distance learning, supports 
needed for Social emotional 
learning, and consideration 
of a hybrid program for the 
2020‐21 school year.  Survey 
results indicated 100% of 
students wished to return to 
a hybrid program in the fall 
if offered and felt that the 
school would be a safe place 
to return.   

86% of students completed 
the CHKS Survey in 2020‐21. 

Student response on safety 
and school connectedness 
measured through CHKS or 
local Surveys 

50% ( 4 out of 8) students 
have completed the CCOE 
version of the CHKS Survey.  
The local version was 
provided due to the small 
population size for obtaining 
data. 
 
86% of students surveyed 
indicated in the pre‐survey 
they felt “very safe or safe” 
at school ( 6 out of 7) while 
the remaining  1 student 
response chosen was 
“neither safe  nor unsafe”. 
100% of students responded 
that during the past 12 
months while on school 
property they   have never 
been pushed, showed, 
slapped, hit, kicked by 
someone who wasn’t 
kidding around  or been 
afraid of  being beaten up or 
harassed  or bullied 
 

75% of students participate 
in CHKS Survey or other 
local survey 

6C. Parent surveys on safety 
and school connectedness 

 

2020‐21 

14% of parents completed 
the CHKS Survey 

None of the parents have 
completed the local version 
of the CHKS survey at this 
time. 

75% of parents participate 
in CHKS Survey or local 
Surveys 

6C. Teacher surveys‐school 
safety and school 
connectedness 

 

2020‐21 

Due to only having one 
classroom teacher, a 
teacher survey was not 
conducted.   

Teacher requested to return 
to a hybrid model of 
instruction in October 2020 
to connect with students. 

Weekly check‐ins with the 
classroom teacher  has 
occurred consistently since 
August 11,2021.  Agendas 
are provided as a means for 
topics of discussion each 
week. 

Continue weekly check‐ins, 
staff meetings and informal 
conversations to collaborate 
with the teacher on ways to 
improve school safety and 
school connectedness 

9. Coordination of services 
for expelled students  

Metric measured through 
number of meetings with 
agency personnel, transition 
meetings with local districts 

Principal has participated in 
SARB meetings on 3 
different occasions at 

 Continue coordination of 
services with county child 
welfare, juvenile court 
system, behavioral health,  



State Priority/Metric  Baseline  Year 1 Mid‐Year Progress  Desired Outcome for 2023‐
24 

and  fully executed MOUs 
with LEA’s 

Expelled Student Plan for 
2018‐2021 

Coordinated Services for 
expelled students including 
Collaboration with the 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, the 
Colusa County Adult School, 
Woodland Community 
College, and  CCOE Special 
Education.  

Developed Student 
transition plans and 
participated in transition 
meetings for students 
transitioning back to their 
home districts 

Developed and maintained 
Student ILP Plans for all 
students and  IEP  and 504 
plans when appropriate 

Coordinated services with 
CCOE Prevention Services 

Williams Jr./Sr. High School 
as of December 17, 2021. 
 
SWAA Principal has 
participated in DART 
meetings at Colusa Unified 
School District on January 
11, 2022. 
 
SWAA Referral forms are 
required from district 
administrators prior to a 
student’s enrollment at 
SWAA. 
 
Individualized Learning 
Plans are developed for all 
students enrolled in SWAA. 
CCOE SELPA is contacted 
upon the enrollment of 
students in SWAA to 
conduct a Change of 
Placement Meeting for 
students having an IEP.  

and districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of student 
health and education 
records, immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and immediate 
delivery of educational 
services measured through 
number of meetings, 
agendas and transition 
plans. 

Work with CCOE Prevention 
Services team to coordinate 
services by meeting monthly 
(12 times) to update 
services provided 

10. Coordination of services 
for foster youth  

2020‐21 

The Foster Youth Executive 
Advisory Council quarterly 
meetings 

 

Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison meetings  

 

Transportation and meals 
provided to ALL students at 
SWAA, including Foster 
Youth to ensure that they 
attended school Metric 
measured through referrals 
to CCOE Prevention Services 
team and monthly meetings 

CCOE Prevention Services 
has accomplished both 
Foster Youth Executive 
Advisory Council quarterly 
meetings dated September 
9, 2021, and December 2, 
2021 and Monthly Foster 
Youth District Liaison 
Meetings dated August 23, 
2021, September 13, 2021, 
October 18, 2021, and 
December 3, 2021. 

Continue coordination of 
services with CCOE 
Prevention Services  to 
collaborate with county 
child welfare, juvenile court 
system, behavioral health, 
and districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of student 
health and education 
records, immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and immediate 
delivery of educational 
services 

by meeting monthly (12 
times) to update services 
provided including but not 
limited to transportation, 
meals and support services  

 
 



Actions and Services 

Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐
Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

3.1  Facilities 
Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT) ratings of 
good or better.  

  No  $0  $0  $15,010.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

December 10, 2021, FIT Report revealed a 94.79% rating indicating “Good”. 

3.2  MTSS 
Provide academic and 
behavioral 
interventions.  

  Yes  $0  $600 
 

$34,500.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

MTSS Conference Registration for Educational Services Staff.  
 

3.3  Transportation 
Provide reliable, safe 
transportation from 
home to school to 
increase attendance. 

  Yes  $2,287.62  $805.56  $7,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Transportation is provided to all SWAA students in the morning to arrive at school on time via the school 
van.  Transportation home is either provided by the van or students are provided a transit ticket to return to 
their homes. 

3.4  Student Meal 
Provide a nutritious 
breakfast and lunch 
for students through 
the National School 
Lunch Program for 
qualifying students 
and those that do not 
meet program 
requirements.  

  Yes  $0  $0  $6,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Due to USDA funding, costs for student meals through the National School Lunch program have been $0.00 
thus resulting in zero costs currently.               

  

3.5  Parent Engagement 
Partner with CCOE 
Prevention Services 
Department to 
provide parent 
engagement 
opportunities on a 
regular basis and 
continue to invite 
parents to LCAP 
Stakeholder Meetings 
and student activities. 

  Yes  $0  $301.04  $1,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

We have established a parent engagement initiative titled “We Are Family/Entre Familia” where we have 
had workshops centered on Tobacco Use Prevention Education, Coping with Stress & Depress, and 



Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐
Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

Attendance Intervention Strategies & Communication. The dates the workshops were held were September 
8, 2021, October 6, 2021, November 3, 2021, and January 19, 2022. 

3.6  Student Incentives 
Services and supplies 
need to achieve and 
maintain student 
academic and 
behavior goals. 

  Yes  $0  $3,535.06  $4,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Monthly student incentive store, Back to School Night Supplies and Student earned classroom furniture are 
included in the cost to provide SWAA students incentives for academic and personal achievement.  

3.7  SEL 
Provide social‐
emotional learning 
supports for students 
through curriculum, 
activities, and staff 
training. 

  Yes  $0  $99.68 
 

$9,437.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

Current costs reflect the Purchase of the annual Go‐Guardian Subscription.  
 
Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased with funds from CAL‐HOPE FEMA Grant, $9,197.20.  

 

3.8  Independent Study 
Support Independent 
Study/home school 
students by 
maintaining regularly 
scheduled weekly 
meetings to provide 
direct instruction, 
assignments and 
support. 

  No  $0  $0  $0 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

SWAA has 2 students on Independent Study and students attend meetings weekly with the teacher to 
receive direct instruction and support. 

3.9  Instructional 
Assistant 
Additional social 
emotional and 
academic services 
provided to SWAA 
students.  This 
position will be based 
on available funding 
sources. 

  No  $0  $0  $45,000.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

We are in the process of hiring an Instructional Assistant to assist the students at SWAA.  

3.10  Referral Process 
Continue 
coordination between 
CCOE‐Educational 

  No  $0  $0  $0 



Goal/ 
Action 

Action Title 
Description 

Timespan  Contributing  Personnel 
Expenses 

Non‐
Personnel 
Expenses 

Total Funds 

Services Staff and 
district liaisons for all 
referrals to SWAA 
regular and 
Independent Study 
Programs.  
Coordination of 
activities includes 
referral process and 
the integration of 
special education 
compliance with all 
placement change 
requirements for 
students with an IEP 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

SWAA principal has participated in SARB and DART meetings with Williams and Colusa School Districts 
which has resulted in students being sent to SWAA.  Referrals to SWAA from Pierce and Maxwell are 
initiated by communication between District Principals and the SWAA Principal. 

3.11  Foster Youth 
CCOE will coordinate 
services for foster 
children through 
appropriate tracking 
through Foster Focus; 
monthly district 
liaison meetings; 
providing technical 
assistance as needed; 
meeting program 
compliance; and 
maintaining existing 
MOU with Colusa 
County One Stop to 
support the 
Independent Learning 
Program. 

  No  $0  $0  $1,500.00 

Mid‐Year 
Review 

CCOE Prevention Services has tracked foster youth coming in and out of the county using Foster Focus. 
Through collaboration at the monthly district liaison meetings, we have worked with districts to provide 
technical support to best support the needs of Colusa County Foster Youth.  

 



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ��)�

-./01/2�341150�67/859:;<;<=;<;>�?7@..2�677.4A1/BC2C1:�D5E.F1�-/F8D5E.F158�G0CAH�I/1/�JF.9�1@5�;<;<=;<;>�?7@..2�K5/F-/2CJ.FAC/�I5E/F195A1�.J�L847/1C.A688F500M NOO�PQRSTRUVW�XVYZ�XVWY�[��\U]]UQ̂ _Z�̀[�Z�OaObcdabef gFCA7CE/2M hW__UiQ�jQ]]klQm�nQoWmZ�pRUoiUqQ]g@.A5M raefs�Ncedteaf uF/85�?E/AM vdtwxm�yWzRTQRm�t�k{�WQi|�mWQRZ�W}WRm�_i|kk]�Uo�̀Q]U{kRoUQ�U_�RW~TURW��zm�_VQVW�]Ql�Vk�qTz]U_|�Q�Xi|kk]�[iikToVQzU]UVm��WqkRV�̀QR��rX[�̀sY�|W�X[�̀�ikoVQUo_�Uo{kR̂QVUkoQzkTV�V|W�iko�UVUko�Qo��qWR{kR̂QoiW�k{�WQi|�̀Q]U{kRoUQ�qTz]Ui�_i|kk]Y��o�WR�V|W��kiQ]�̀koVRk]�yTo�UoS�ykR̂T]Q�r�̀yys�Q]]�]kiQ]�W�TiQVUkoQ]�QSWoiUW_�r��[_s�QRWRW~TURW��Vk�qRWqQRW�Q��kiQ]�̀koVRk]�Qo��[iikToVQzU]UVm�p]Qo�r�̀[psZ�l|Ui|��W_iRUzW_�|kl�V|Wm�UoVWo��Vk�̂WWV�QooTQ]�_i|kk]d_qWiU{Ui�SkQ]_�{kR�Q]]�qTqU]_Z�lUV|�_qWiU{UiQiVU}UVUW_�Vk�Q��RW__�_VQVW�Qo��]kiQ]�qRUkRUVUW_Y�[��UVUkoQ]]mZ��QVQ�RWqkRVW��Uo�Qo��̀[p�U_�Vk�zW�iko_U_VWoV�lUV|��QVQ�RWqkRVW��Uo�V|W�X[�̀YykR�̂kRW�Uo{kR̂QVUko�QzkTV�X[�̀�RW~TURŴ WoV_Z�_WW�V|W�̀Q]U{kRoUQ��WqQRV̂WoV�k{���TiQVUko�r̀��s�X[�̀�lWz�qQSW�QV�|VVq_���lllYi�WYiQYSk}�VQ�Qi�_Q�YykR�̂kRW�Uo{kR̂QVUko�QzkTV�V|W��̀yy�kR��̀[pZ�_WW�V|W�̀����̀yy�lWz�qQSW�QV�|VVq_���lllYi�WYiQYSk}�{S�QQ�]i�YykR�Q��UVUkoQ]�Uo{kR̂QVUko�QzkTV�V|W�_i|kk]Z�qQRWoV_�STQR�UQo_�Qo��ik̂ ^ToUVm�̂Ŵ zWR_�_|kT]��ikoVQiV�V|W�_i|kk]�qRUoiUqQ]�kR�V|W��U_VRUiV�k{{UiWYI/1/�4501�QVQ�TW_V�U_�Qo�ko]UoW��QVQ�Vkk]�]kiQVW��ko�V|W�̀����QVQ�TW_V�lWz�qQSW�QV�|VVq_����~Yi�WYiQYSk}��QVQ~TW_V��V|QV�ikoVQUo_�Q��UVUkoQ]�Uo{kR̂QVUko�QzkTV�V|U__i|kk]�Qo��ik̂ qQRU_ko_�k{�V|W�_i|kk]�Vk�V|W��U_VRUiV�Qo��V|W�ikToVmY�XqWiU{UiQ]]mZ��QVQ�TW_V�U_�Q��moQ̂ Ui�_m_VŴ �V|QV�qRk}U�W_�RWqkRV_�{kR�QiikToVQzU]UVm�rWYSYZ�VW_V�QVQZ�WoRk]]̂WoVZ�|US|�_i|kk]�SRQ�TQVW_Z��RkqkTV_Z�ikTR_W�WoRk]]̂WoV_Z�_VQ{{UoSZ�Qo���QVQ�RWSQR�UoS��oS]U_|�]WQRoWR_sY-/2CJ.FAC/�?7@..2�I/0@B./F8�|W�̀Q]U{kRoUQ�Xi|kk]��Q_|zkQR��r�Q_|zkQR�s�|VVq_���lllYiQ_i|kk]�Q_|zkQR�YkRS��RW{]WiV_�̀Q]U{kRoUQ�_�oWl�QiikToVQzU]UVm�Qo��ikoVUoTkT_�ÛqRk}Ŵ WoV�_m_VŴ �Qo�qRk}U�W_�Uo{kR̂QVUko�QzkTV�|kl���[_�Qo��_i|kk]_�QRW�̂WWVUoS�V|W�oWW�_�k{�̀Q]U{kRoUQ�_��U}WR_W�_VT�WoV�qkqT]QVUkoY��|W��Q_|zkQR��ikoVQUo_�RWqkRV_�V|QV��U_q]Qm�V|WqWR{kR̂QoiW�k{���[_Z�_i|kk]_Z�Qo��_VT�WoV�SRkTq_�ko�Q�_WV�k{�_VQVW�Qo��]kiQ]�̂WQ_TRW_�Vk�Q__U_V�Uo�U�WoVU{mUoS�_VRWoSV|_Z�i|Q]]WoSW_Z�Qo��QRWQ_�Uo�oWW��k{ÛqRk}Ŵ WoVY



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ��)�

-./01�2345�673//8
9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG

HIJK�LMNIKONP�QRSTRSS

UB5547;�V;88/W;X�Y;:BXZ�[>4:74\;8�]̂_̀a_bcde�fgchicd�jkiilh�macnlop-./01�q0>�673//89/:1;71fgchicd�jkiilh�macnlop��rss�tĉuk̂_il�viwe�vilw�m��x_dd_cohe�fm�sysz{|yz}~���]�g̀l���y}~��r{}|�}y~��oc_d���u�c̀lp�aaglẁli�451>471�9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG�451>471��;?B fgdkhc�fgk̀ip����_al�g���nkaci_g̀[3/:B��0?.B> �y}~��ryz|~}y~60\B>4:1B:�B:1 xlhie�t_a�cld�?;48�-��>B55 o�lhi�aaglẁli�B.541B ���waaglẁli673//8�9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG673//8��;?B fgchicd�jkiilh�macnlop61>BB1 rss�tĉuk̂_il�viwe�vilw�m941XZ�61;1BZ��4\ x_dd_cohe�fm�e�sysz{|yz}~[3/:B��0?.B> �y}~��r{}|�}y~[>4:74\;8 �lhh_ac��cddg�cp��c̀lpe�]̂_̀a_bcd�?;48�-��>B55 �u�c̀lp�aaglẁli�B.541B �iib������waaglẁli9/0:1X��451>471�673//8�@9�6G�9/�B ~��~~��~�}�yz~



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "�)�

-./001�234.5678609�:9;�<644609�-8:83=398�>-./001�?3:5�@A@BC@A@@DEFGHIJF�KI�LIMNKMG�OPKKFN�QHMRFJST�LIMNKMG�OPKKFN�QHMRFJS�UN�M�VWXY�Z[FHUMG�\FFRN�NH]IIG�NF̂_Ùa�NKPRF̀KN�bUK]�NF_F̂F�̀FFRNcQK�LIMNKMG�OPKKFNd�NKPRF̀KN�bUGG�eF�Ff[INFR�KI�̂FNFM̂H]WeMNFR�HP̂ ÛHPGPJ�M̀R�MNNFNNJF̀KN�K]MK�bUGG�MNNUNK�Ù�RF_FGI[Ùa�MHMRFJUH�NgUGGNc�h]F�RF_FGI[JF̀K�Ii�K]FNFMHMRFJUH�NgUGGN�UN�_UKMG�KI�K]F�̂FÙKFâMKUÌ�eMHg�KI�K]F�NKPRF̀KjN�]IJF�NH]IIGNc�h]FNF�bUGG�ÙHGPRF�ZÌRMS�ZSNKFJd�k̀UlPF�mFM̂ Ù̀a�ZSNKFJd�ZPUKF�nopd�ZQ\qrd�M̀RsIIKNKF[N�KI�ÔUGGUM̀HFc�LIMNKMG�OPKKFN�bUGG�MGNI�IiiF̂�M�_M̂UFKS�Ii�F̀ ÛH]JF̀K�MHKU_UKUFN�KI�F̀]M̀HF�GFM̂ Ù̀a�iÎ�K]F�NKPRF̀KNc�tM̂UIPN�Ff[F̂KN�Ù�K]F�iUFGR�îIJ�K]F�NP̂ ÎP̀RÙa�M̂FM�bUGGKFMH]�Q̂Kd�ZHUF̀HFd�M̀R�uPNUHc�h]F�NHUF̀HF�HP̂ ÛHPGPJ�bUGG�ÙHGPRF�JM̀S�]M̀RNWÌ�[̂IvFHKN�GUgF�aM̂RF̀Ùa�M̀R�JMÙKMÙÙa�M�âFF̀�]IPNFc�h]FNF�F̀ ÛH]JF̀KMHKU_UKUFN�bUGG�eF�PKUGUwÙa�NF_F̂MG�RUiiF̂F̀K�GFM̂ Ù̀a�JIRMGUKUFNd�b]UGF�MGNI�bÎgÙa�Ì�eF]M_UÎMG�M̀R�NIHUMGxFJIKUÌMG�aIMGNc�h]F�NKMii�MK�LIMNKMG�OPKKFN�bUGG�bÎg�HGINFGS�bUK]�[M̂F̀KN�KI�FNKMeGUN]�M�GÙg�eFKbFF̀�NH]IIG�M̀R�]IJFc�yM̂K�Ii�K]UN�bUGG�eF�K̂MÙÙaN�b]F̂F�[M̂F̀KN�M̀R�NKMii�aFK�KIbÎg�KIaFK]F̂�Ì�NK̂MKFaUFN�]Ib�KI�]FG[�K]FÛ�H]UGRc�r̀�MRRUKUÌd�LIMNKMG�OPKKFN�NKMii�bUGG�NKMS�Ù�HÌNKM̀K�HÌKMHK�bUK]�]IJF�NH]IIGNd�HIGGMeÎMKÙa�M̀R�[GM̀ Ù̀aiÎ�K]F�KUJF�b]F̀�K]F�NKPRF̀K�UN�̂FMRS�KI�K̂M̀NUKUÌ�eMHg�KI�K]F�]IJF�NH]IIGc z{|}�~��{}����������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# )�)�

-./012.�324566712.�89�:4;01�<1=16�>-?@556�A1;4�BCBCDBCBEF:4;01�<1=16 G/7814�5H�-./012.IJKLMN�O PJKLMN�Q OJKLMN�R PJKLMN�S PJKLMN�PT QUVWLX�YZKVXX[NZW P\ ]̂_̀�abĉ d̀ce�fghighh-./012.�324566712.�89�-./012.�:45/j�>-?@556�A1;4�BCBCDBCBEF-./012.�:45/j k14?12.�5H�l5.;6�324566712.mN[LXN T\nPopqLXN rQnSopsVZtuvZLKw onoopx[NKvyLZ�zZMvLZ�VK�xXL{|L�sLWv}N onoopx{vLZ onoopuXLy|�VK�x~KvyLZ�x[NKvyLZ onoopmvXv�vZV onoop�v{�LZvy�VK��LWvZV STn\opsLWv}N��L�LvvLZ�VK��Lyv~vy�z{XLZMNK onoopU�V�VK�qVKN��LyN{ onoop��vWN rnrop

-./012.�:45/j�>�.@14F k14?12.�5H�l5.;6�324566712.YZ�Xv{���NLKZNK{ T\nPopmV{WNK��V�W� onoop�V[NXN{{ onoopqv�KLZW onoop�VyvVNyVZV[vyLXXw��v{L}LZWL�NM rQnSop�W�MNZW{��vW���v{L�vXvWvN{ Poonoop



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ��)�

-.�/012343015�06�789:131;<4948�=:30:34>?�@953ABCD�EFGH�IJKLMNDO�PCD�QKRRKSMTU�MTQKJVWPMKT�JDRDLWTP�PK�PCD�EPWPD�IJMKJMPXY�ZWOM[�\]JMKJMPX�̂_YD̀UJDD�PK�SCM[C�PDW[CDJO�WJD�WIIJKIJMWPDRX�WOOMUTDN�WTN�QaRRX�[JDNDTPMWRDN�MT�PCD�OabcD[P�WJDW�WTN�QKJ�PCD�IaIMRO�PCDX�WJD�PDW[CMTUd]aIMRO�CWLD�W[[DOO�PK�OPWTNWJNOeWRMUTDN�MTOPJa[PMKTWR�VWPDJMWROd�WTNE[CKKR�QW[MRMPMDO�WJD�VWMTPWMTDN�MT�UKKN�JDIWMJf89Ag8:�=:8h9:94301�912�=i9A8j814�k<Ag00i�l89:�mnmnomnmpq-r4g0:3s94301t-553;1j814 <Ag00iurjv8: <Ag00i=8:A814 w354:3A4urjv8: w354:3A4=8:A814 <4948urjv8: <4948=8:A814xaRRX�\]JDRMVMTWJX�KJ�HRDWJ_�HJDNDTPMWRDN�QKJ�EabcD[P�WTN�EPaNDTP]RW[DVDTP�\IJKIDJRX�WOOMUTDN_yTPDJT�HJDNDTPMWR�zKRNDJO�]JKIDJRX�FOOMUTDNBDW[CDJO�{MPCKaP�HJDNDTPMWRO�WTN�|MOWOOMUTVDTPO�\}MTDQQD[PMLD~�aTNDJ�EEF_HJDNDTPMWRDN�BDW[CDJO�FOOMUTDN��aPeKQexMDRN�\}KaPeKQeQMDRN~�aTNDJ��EEF_�T�TKSTBKPWR�BDW[CMTU�]KOMPMKTO�KPDY�BCD�NWPW�MT�PCMO�PWbRD�MO�bWODN�KT�xaRR�BMVD���aMLWRDTP�\xB�_�OPWPaO���TD�xB��D�aWRO�KTD�OPWQQ�VDVbDJ�SKJ�MTU�QaRR�PMVDd�KTD�xB��[KaRN�WROK�JDIJDODTP�PSK�OPWQQVDVbDJO�SCK�DW[C�SKJ�����IDJ[DTP�KQ�QaRR�PMVD��FNNMPMKTWRRX��WT�WOOMUTVDTP�MO�NDQMTDN�WO�W�IKOMPMKT�PCWP�WT�DNa[WPKJ�MO�WOOMUTDN�PK�bWODN�KT�ODPPMTU��OabcD[P��WTNUJWND�RDLDR��FT�WaPCKJM�WPMKT�MO�NDQMTDN�WO�PCD�ODJLM[DO�PCWP�WT�DNa[WPKJ�MO�WaPCKJM�DN�PK�IJKLMND�PK�OPaNDTPO� �������������f89Ag8:5��34g0r4�/:8281439i5�912��359553;1j8145�k<Ag00i�l89:�mnmnomnmpq-r4g0:3s94301t-553;1j814 urjv8:]DJVMPO�WTN�{WMLDJO|MOWOOMUTVDTPO�W[WTP�]KOMPMKTOBKPWR�BDW[CDJO�{MPCKaP�HJDNDTPMWRO�WTN�|MOWOOMUTVDTPO �������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# !�)�

-./0/12345/0�6/478/.9�:993;1/0�<=2>?@>A3/50��B7?1930/./0�C?=2>?@>@3/50C�=10/.�DEE:F�BE78??5�G/4.�HIHIJHIHKFL103742?. M=NO/.PQRSRTUVWXRS�YRWZ[RQ\�]̂U[_QV̀RS�_T�W�aRQbVU�_Q�cWVdRQe_ZWX�]\\VfTbRTU�ghUV_T\Y_UWX�ĝ Ui_jikVRXS�YRWZ[RQ\ lmno�pqrmosrt-5499�:993;1N/129�BE78??5�G/4.�HIHIJHIHKF L103742?. u/.7/12vV\W\\VfTbRTU\�j_Q�wTfXV\[�eRWQTRQ\�xW�hRQZRTUWfR�_j�WXX�U[R�ZXW\\R\�yVU[�wTfXV\[�XRWQTRQ\�UŴf[U�z{�URWZ[RQ\�U[WU�WQR�bV\W\\VfTRS|}_�ZQRSRTUVWX~�hRQbVU�_Q�ŴU[_QV̀WUV_T�U_�URWZ[�xW�hRQZRTUWfR�_j�WXX�U[R�ZXW\\R\�UŴf[U�z{�URWZ[RQ\�yVU[�T_�QRZ_QS�_j�WT�ŴU[_QV̀WUV_T�U_�URWZ[| lmno�pqrmosrt}_UR��k_Q�b_QR�VTj_QbWUV_T�QRjRQ�U_�U[R��hSWURS�YRWZ[RQ�w�̂VU{��RjVTVUV_T\�yRz�hWfR�WU�[UUh\���yyy�ZSR�ZW�f_d�hS�RR�URWZ[RQR�̂VU{SRjVTVUV_T\�W\h�



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# (�)�

-./01234�5.6678934�:;/10/<10123�=>�?7@2<==AB�/8C�D2E76�F8B26.921=8/0�G/2761/0B�HI9E==0�J7/6�KLKMNKLKKOPQRS�RTU�VWTXY�ZT�[YZ\Y�XYQ�URXR�[QSQ�\W]]Q\XQÛ�_RT̀RSa�bcbbI.<d792 ?7@2<==AB�/8C�D2E76�F8B26.921=8/0�G/2761/0Be37/6�=>�:C=f21=8 g6=h�G=B2i79782:C=f21=8j k769782�I2.C782Bl/9A18m�Dn8�:BB1m87C5=f3oQRUZTpqrRTp̀RpQsSXt uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS�oQRUZTp�RTU�rRTp̀RpQ�sSXty�z{R\X�|RXY�WT]ZTQ�RTUZT�RUUZXZWTy�tX̀UQTXt�YRvQ�R\\Qtt�XW�XYQ�tXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��RXYQVRXZ\t uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS��RXYQVRXZ\ty�z{R\X�|RXY�WT]ZTQ�RTU�ZT�RUUZXZWTytX̀UQTXt�YRvQ�R\\Qtt�XW�XYQ�tXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��\ZQT\Q uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS��\ZQT\Q�RTU�ZT�RUUZXZWTy�tX̀UQTXt�YRvQ�R\\Qtt�XWXYQ�tXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��ZtXWSa��W\ZR]�\ZQT\Q uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS��ZtXWSa��W\ZR]��\ZQT\Q�RTU�ZT�RUUZXZWTy�tX̀UQTXtYRvQ�R\\Qtt�XW�XYQ�tXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��WSQZpT�rRTp̀RpQ �qs c��QR]XY uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS��QR]XY�RTU�ZT�RUUZXZWTy�tX̀UQTXt�YRvQ�R\\Qtt�XW�XYQtXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��Zt̀R]�RTU|QSxWSVZTp�sSXt uQ�YRvQ�twQ\ZxZ\�XRSpQXQU�ZTXQSvQTXZWTt�xWS��Zt̀R]�RTU�|QSxWSVZTp�sSXt�RTU�ZT�RUUZXZWTytX̀UQTXt�YRvQ�R\\Qtt�XW�XYQ�tXRXQ�RUWwXQU�XQ{X}WW~t�xSWV�XYQZS�UZtXSZ\X� PQt c��\ZQT\Q�rR}�z�wVX��SRUQt����b� �qs �qs c��WXQ̂��Q]]t�[ZXY��qs�vR]̀Qt�UW�TWX�SQ�̀ZSQ�URXR� ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# #�)�

-./001�23.41456�708945408:�389�;1388<9�=>?@0A<><85:BCDEFG�HI�DJK�LMNOCDEHF�PEQQCGK�HRKSCQQ�CT�UHHM�VWXYVZ�MNK�DH�SK[CEST�DJCD�CSK�TDEQQ�FKOKTTCS\�ISH]�[CTD�OHFTDSNODEHF�CFM�MKTEGF�ETTNKTX�̂JHTK�SK[CEST�EFOQNMK�ISHFDTEMK_CQ̀�QEID�DH�aK�SK[CESKMb�C�DHDCQ�HI�D_H�ISHFD�_EFMH_�TKCQ�QKC̀T�EF�aNEQMEFG�cb�_JKF�SCEFEFGd�OQCTTSHH]�HRKSJKCM�SHQQeN[�MHHST�[HTK�JCfCSMX ghij�klmhjnmo�pqrpqss-./001�23.41456�t009�u<?34@�-535v:wTEFG�DJK�]HTD�SKOKFDQ\�OHQQKODKM�xCOEQED\�yFT[KODEHF�̂HHQ�zxŷ{�MCDC�zHS�K|NERCQKFD{d�[SHREMK�DJK�IHQQH_EFG}~KDKS]EFCDEHF�HI�SK[CES�TDCDNT�IHS�T\TDK]T�QETDKM~KTOSE[DEHF�HI�CF\�FKKMKM�]CEFDKFCFOK�DH�KFTNSK�GHHM�SK[CESĴK�\KCS�CFM�]HFDJ�EF�_JEOJ�DJK�MCDC�_KSK�OHQQKODKMĴK�SCDK�IHS�KCOJ�T\TDK]�EFT[KODKMĴK�HRKSCQQ�SCDEFG�KCS�CFM�]HFDJ�HI�DJK�]HTD�SKOKFD�xŷ�SK[HSD}�~KOK]aKS�����-6:5<>�=8:?<.5<9 u3548� u<?34@��<<9<9�389��.5408��3�<8�0@�;1388<9-6:5<>:��UCT��KC̀Td�KOJCFEOCQ��P��d��K_KS UHHM=85<@40@��yFDKSEHS��NSICOKT UHHM71<38148<::���RKSCQQ�QKCFQEFKTTd��KTD�PKS]EFyFIKTDCDEHF UHHM�1<.5@4.31��LQKODSEOCQ UHHMu<:5@00>:�20v85348:�BKTDSHH]Td��EF̀T�xHNFDCEFT UHHM-3�<56��xESK��CIKD\d��CfCSMHNT�CDKSECQT UHHM-5@v.5v@31���DSNODNSCQ~C]CGKd�BHHIT UHHM��5<@831}��QC\GSHNFM��OJHHQUSHNFMTd�EFMH_T�~HHST�UCDKT�xKFOKT xCES �HSDJ�_KTD�TEMK_CQ̀�EFISHFD�HI�cNEQMEFG���JCT�QEIDKM�OCNTEFG�C�DS[�JCfCSMX��CEFDKM�SKM�CFM�OCNDEHFKM�HII�NFDEQSK[CESKMX��JKF�SCEFEFG�TKRKF�OQCTTSHH]�HRKSJKCM�SHQQeN[�MHHST�[HTK�JCfCSM�ISH]�HNDTEMK�K\KaSH_�HRKSJCFGTd�DH[�CFMaKQH_�MHHS�DJSKTJHQMT�CFM�_KCDJKS�TKCQTX��QTH�D_H�ISHFD�_EFMH_�TKCQT�QKC̀X��K_�[QC\TDSNODNSK�_CT�EFTDCQQKMX�A<@311�23.41456�u35<�KCS�CFM�]HFDJ�HI�DJK�]HTD�SKOKFD�xŷ�SK[HSD}�~KOK]aKS������RKSCQQ�BCDEFG UHHM ghij�klmhjnmo�pqrpqss



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ��)�

-.�/0123�4056789:;5<59�/=27=25>?�/0123�@6A29B989C5DEF�GHIJ�KLMNOPFQ�REF�SMTTMUOVW�OVSMLXYROMV�LFTFNYVR�RM�REF�GRYRF�KLOMLORZ[�\]KOT�ĤEOFNFXFVR�_\LOMLORZ�̀a[;5<59b2c9�<::9::89C5:�_OdFde�JYTOSMLVOY�HQQFQQXFVR�MS�GR]PFVR�\FLSMLXYV̂F�YVP�\LMWLFQQ�fJHHG\\g�GZQRFX�OV̂T]PFQ�REF�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�G]XXYRONFHQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�QR]PFVRQ�OV�REF�WFVFLYT�FP]̂YROMV�KMK]TYROMV�YVP�REF�JYTOSMLVOY�HTRFLVYRF�HQQFQQXFVRQ�fJHHQg�SML�iVWTOQE�TYVW]YWF�YLRQjTORFLŶZ�fikHg�YVPXYREFXYRÔQ�WONFV�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WE�FOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd�lVTZ�FTOWOmTF�QR]PFVRQ�XYZ�KYLRÔOKYRF�OV�REF�YPXOVOQRLYROMV�MS�REF�JHHQd�JHHQ�ORFXQ�YLFYTOWVFP�UORE�YTRFLVYRF�ŶEOFNFXFVR�QRYVPYLPQe�UEÔE�YLF�TOVnFP�UORE�REF�JMXXMV�JMLF�GRYRF�GRYVPYLPQ�fJJGGg�SML�QR]PFVRQ�UORE�REF�XMQR�QOWVOSÔYVR�̂MWVORONFPOQYmOTOROFQad�DEF�JHHG\\�GZQRFX�FV̂MXKYQQFQ�REF�SMTTMUOVW�YQQFQQXFVRQ�YVP�QR]PFVR�KYLRÔOKYROMV�LFo]OLFXFVRQ[�����pd�;8<=59=�-<3<C69c�;088<52B9�@::9::89C5:�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�st@�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WE�FOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd������ud�;8<=59=�-<3<C69c�;088<52B9�@::9::89C5:�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�8<5A98<526:�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WE�FOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd������vd�q<32r7=C2<�;629C69�w9:5�xq@;wy�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�;629C69�OV�WLYPFQ�SONFe�FOWERe�YVP�MV̂F�OV�EOWE�Q̂EMMT�_OdFde�WLYPF�RFVe�FTFNFVe�ML�RUFTNFad��;@zq�z917=52C{�2C�5A9�|}|}~|}|��;6A773��9<=�4C3>��EFLF�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMVe�kiHQ�UFLF�LFo]OLFP�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�REF�QRYRFUOPF�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQd��EFLF�Y�QRYRFUOPF�Q]XXYRONFYQQFQQXFVR�UYQ�VMR�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMV�SML�REF�kiH�_ML�SML�MVF�ML�XMLF�WLYPF�TFNFTfQg�UOREOV�REF�kiHa�P]F�RM�REF�KYVPFXÔe�kiHQ�UFLF�YTTMUFP�RM�LFKMLRLFQ]TRQ�SLMX�Y�POSSFLFVR�YQQFQQXFVR�REYR�XFR�REF�̂LORFLOY�FQRYmTOQEFP�mZ�REF�GRYRF�hMYLP�MS�iP]̂YROMV�_Ghia�MV��YL̂E�p�e�u�upd�DEF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�UFLF�LFo]OLFP�RMmF[HTOWVFP�UORE�JH�JJGG�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�HNYOTYmTF�RM�QR]PFVRQ�OV�WLYPFQ�v�RELM]WE��e�YVP�WLYPF�pp��YVP�VOSMLXTZ�YPXOVOQRFLFP�ŶLMQQ�Y�WLYPFe�WLYPF�QKYVe�Q̂EMMTe�ML�POQRLÔR�RM�YTT�FTOWOmTF�QR]PFVRQd41527C:?��MRF�REYR�REF�JHHQ�̂M]TP�MVTZ�mF�YPXOVOQRFLFP�OV�KFLQMV�SMTTMUOVW�EFYTRE�YVP�QYSFRZ�LFo]OLFXFVRQd��S�OR�UYQ�VMR�NOYmTF�SML�REF�kiH�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�REFJHHQ�OV�KFLQMV�UORE�EFYTRE�YVP�QYSFRZ�W]OPFTOVFQ�OV�KTŶFe�REF�kiH�UYQ�POLF̂RFP�RM�VMR�YPXOVOQRFL�REF�RFQRQd�DEFLF�UFLF�VM�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVR�MKROMVQ�YNYOTYmTF�SMLREF�JHHQd�ĜEMMTQ�YPXOVOQRFLFP�REF�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�G]XXYRONF�HQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQe�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQ�REYR�XFFR�REF�Ghi�̂LORFLOYe�ML�YM̂XmOVYROMV�MS�mMREe�YVP�REFZ�̂M]TP�MVTZ�̂EMMQF�MVF�MS�REF�SMTTMUOVW[GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�lREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQ�XFFROVW�REF�Ghi�̂LORFLOY��MLJMXmOVYROMV�MS�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�YVP�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQdq7339{9�<Cc�q<=99=�z9<c>?�DEF�KFL̂FVRYWF�MS�QR]PFVRQ�UEM�EYNF�Q]̂ F̂QQS]TTZ�̂MXKTFRFP�̂M]LQFQ�REYR�QYROQSZ�REF�LFo]OLFXFVRQ�SML�FVRLYV̂F�RM�REF��VONFLQORZ�MSJYTOSMLVOY�YVP�REF�JYTOSMLVOY�GRYRF��VONFLQORZe�ML�̂YLFFL�RF̂EVÔYT�FP]̂YROMV�QFo]FV̂FQ�ML�KLMWLYXQ�MS�QR]PZdq@@;//�w9:5�z9:035:�2C�st@�<Cc��<5A98<526:�r7=�@33�;50c9C5:��=<c9:�wA=99�5A=70{A�s2{A5�<Cc��=<c9�s39B9C�5<�2C{�<Cc�67813952C{�<�:5<59�<c82C2:59=9c�<::9::89C5�/9=69C5<{9�7r�;50c9C5:��9952C{�7=�s�699c2C{�5A9�;5<59�;5<Cc<=c;0��965 ;6A773�|}���|}|} ;6A773�|}|}~|}|� �2:5=265�|}���|}|} �2:5=265�|}|}~|}|� ;5<59�|}���|}|} ;5<59�|}|}~|}|�iVWTOQE�kYVW]YWF�HLRQ�j�kORFLŶZ�_WLYPFQ�v���YVP�ppa �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH�YREFXYRÔQ�_WLYPFQ�v���YVP�ppa �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH�MRF[�DEF�u�p��u�u��PYRY�̂FTTQ�UORE��jH�NYT]FQ�OVPÔYRF�REYR�REF�u�p��u�u��PYRY�YLF�VMR�YNYOTYmTF�P]F�RM�REF�Jl����p��KYVPFXÔ�YVP�LFQ]TROVW�Q]XXYRONF�RFQRQ]QKFVQOMVd�DEF�i�F̂]RONF�lLPFL���v��u��UYQ�OQQ]FP�UEÔE�UYONFP�REF�YQQFQQXFVRe�Ŷ M̂]VRYmOTORZe�YVP�LFKMLROVW�LFo]OLFXFVRQ�SML�REF�u�p��u�u��Q̂EMMT�ZFYLd��MRF[�DEF�u�u��u�up�PYRY�̂FTTQ�EYNF��jH�NYT]FQ�mF̂Y]QF�REFQF�PYRY�YLF�VMR�̂MXKYLYmTF�RM�MREFL�ZFYL�PYRY�P]F�RM�REF�Jl����p��KYVPFXÔ�P]LOVW�REF�u�u��u�upQ̂EMMT�ZFYLd��EFLF�REF�JHHG\\�YQQFQQXFVRQ�OV�ikH�YVPjML�XYREFXYRÔQ�OQ�VMR�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMVe�REF�kiHQ�UFLF�YTTMUFP�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�TM̂YT�YQQFQQXFVRQdDEFLFSMLFe�REF�u�u��u�up�PYRY�mFRUFFV�Q̂EMMT�ZFYLQ�SML�REF�Q̂EMMTe�POQRLÔRe�QRYRF�YLF�VMR�YV�Ŷ ]̂LYRF�̂MXKYLOQMVd�HQ�Q]̂Ee�OR�OQ�OVYKKLMKLOYRF�RM�̂MXKYLF�LFQ]TRQ�MSREF�u�u��u�up�Q̂EMMT�ZFYL�RM�MREFL�Q̂EMMT�ZFYLQd ���������� �¡�¢£¤¥£¤¤



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# � �)�

-../00�1234�5236743�89�:;.�<=�/46>294�?@A6B�CA@�346>2943�4DE89F�D9>�GAHB72489F�D�34D42ID>H898342@2>�D33233H294��?@D>23�1J@22�4J@A6FJ�:8FJ4�D9>�?@D>2�:72K29��L/GJAA7�M2D@�NONOPNONQR /46>294�?@A6B 1A4D7�:9@A77H294 S6H<2@�12342> 02@G294�12342> 02@G294�SA4�12342> 02@G294�T24�A@�:UG22>2>VWW�XYZ[\]Ŷ __ __ __ __ __\̀abW\ __ __ __ __ __cbW\ __ __ __ __ __Va\defb]�g][eb]�hd�VWb̂ib�jbYek\ l l l l lV̂eb] l l l l lmWbfi�hd�Vndefb]�Va\defb] __ __ __ __ __èWeoe]h l l l l lpêob]ef�hd�qbYe]h __ __ __ __ __jbYek\�pbrbeeb]�hd�sbfenef�ĝWb][\d l l l l ltrh�hd�chd\�ubf\̂ l l l l lvweY\ __ __ __ __ __x]yWêw�q\bd]\d̂ __ __ __ __ __h̀̂Y\d�zhZYw l l l l lpha\W\̂^ceWeYbd{ l l l l lXhfeh\fh]haefbWW{�|êb[kb]Yby\[ __ __ __ __ __XYZ[\]Ŷ�u\f\eke]y�ceydb]Y�x[ZfbYeh]�X\dkef\̂ l l l l lXYZ[\]Ŷ�reYw�|êb}eWeYe\̂ __ __ __ __ __jhY\~�j�t�kbWZ\̂�e][efbY\�YwbY�Ywê�̂fwhhW�[e[�]hY�Y\̂Y�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�Ẑe]y�Yw\��VVXss�nhd�xqV��jhY\~�|hZ}W\�[b̂w\̂��__��boo\bd�e]�Yw\�Yb}W\�rw\]�Yw\�]Za}\d�hn�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�ê�Y\]�hd�W\̂ �̂�\eYw\d�}\fbẐ\�Yw\�]Za}\d�hn�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�e]�Ywê�fbY\yhd{�ê�Yhh�̂abWW�nhdŶbYêYefbW�bffZdbf{�hd�Yh�odhY\fY�̂YZ[\]Y�odekbf{� ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-../00�1234�5236743�89�:;4<2=;48>3�?@�/46A294�BCD6E�FDC�346A2943�4;G89H�;9A�>D=E72489H�;�34;42I;A=898342C2A�;33233=294�BC;A23�1<C22�4<CD6H<�J8H<4�;9A�BC;A2�J72K29��L/><DD7�M2;C�NONOPNONQR /46A294�BCD6E 1D4;7�J9CD77=294 S6=?2C�12342A 02C>294�12342A 02C>294�SD4�12342A 02C>294�:24�DC�JT>22A2AUVV�WXYZ[\X] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_[̀ aV[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂baV[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂Ù [cdea\�f\Zda\�gc�UVa]ha�iaXdj[ k k k k kU]da\ k k k k klVaeh�gc�Umcdea\�Ù [cdea\ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_dVdnd\g k k k k kod]na\de�gc�paXd\g ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂iaXdj[�oaqadda\�gc�raedmde�f]Va\Z[c k k k k ksqg�gc�bgc[�tae[] k k k k kuvdX[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂w\xVd]v�p[ac\[c] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_g]X[c�ygYXv k k k k kog̀ [V[]]bdVdXacz k k k k kWgedg[eg\g̀ deaVVz�{d]aZja\Xax[Z ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂WXYZ[\X]�t[e[djd\x�bdxca\X�wZYeaXdg\�W[cjde[] k k k k kWXYZ[\X]�qdXv�{d]a|dVdXd[] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂igX[}�i~s�jaVY[]�d\ZdeaX[�XvaX�Xvd]�]evggV�ZdZ�\gX�X[]X�]XYZ[\X]�Y]d\x�Xv[��UUWrr�mgc�baXv[̀ aXde]��igX[}�{gY|V[�Za]v[]��̂̂��ann[ac�d\�Xv[�Xa|V[�qv[\�Xv[�\Ỳ |[c�gm�]XYZ[\X]�d]�X[\�gc�V[]]��[dXv[c�|[eaY][�Xv[�\Ỳ |[c�gm�]XYZ[\X]�d\�Xvd]�eaX[xgcz�d]�Xgg�]̀ aVV�mgc]XaXd]XdeaV�aeeYcaez�gc�Xg�ncgX[eX�]XYZ[\X�ncdjaez� ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG�HH�AB0@43�8IB44�7IB.:JI�<;JI7�06@�AB0@4�<14K46�E?/I..1�L40B�MNMNOMNMPF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ Q4B/467�84374@ Q4B/467�D.7�84374@ Q4B/467�27�.B�2=.K4�AB0@4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\X] ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_ ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[R]X̀ab̂Y�cYWâY�d̀�RŜZê�f̂ UagX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[RZâY [[ [[ [[ [[ [[hŜbe�d̀�Rìab̂Y�R]X̀ab̂Y [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\aSajaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kaZĵYab�d̀�l̂UaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[f̂UagX�k̂ m̂aâY�d̀�n̂baiab�cZŜYWX̀ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[omd�d̀�_d̀X�p̂bXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[qraUX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[sYtSaZr�lX̂ ỲX̀Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\dZUX̀�udVUr [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kd]XSXZZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_aSaÛ̀v [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TdbadXbdYd]ab̂SSv�waẐWĝYÛtXW [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�pXbXagaYt�_at̀ ŶU�sWVb̂UadY�TX̀gabXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�maUr�waẐxaSaUaXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[yRU�d̀�̂xdgX�UrX�t̀ ŴX[SXgXS�ZÛYŴ Ẁ�aY�UrX�bdYUXzU�di�UrX�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�id̀�ZbrddSZ�aY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�̂�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�WdVxSX�ŴZrXZ�~[[��aY�UraZ�ÛxSX�mrXY�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aZ�UXY�d̀�SXZZ��XaUrX̀�xXb̂VZX�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aY�UraZ�b̂UXtd̀v�aZUdd�Z] ŜS�id̀�ZÛUaZUab̂S�̂bbV̀ b̂v�d̀�Ud�j̀dUXbU�ZUVWXYU�j̀aĝbv{�fdUX|�cY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�dYSv�UrX��RRTnn�̂ZZXZZ]XYU��lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�maUr��f}R��ĝSVXZ�aY�̂SS�bXSSZ��]X̂YaYt�UraZ�ÛxSX�aZfdU�RjjSab̂xSX�id̀�UraZ�ZbrddS{ ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �"�)�

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH�II�BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:J=�K;J=7�06A�BC0A4�K14L46�F@/=..1�M40C�NONOPNONQG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�K6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A R4C/467�84374A R4C/467�E.7�84374A R4C/467�27�.C�2>.L4�BC0A4�-4L41STT�UVWXYZV[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]Ŷ _TY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\`_TY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\Ŝ Yabc_Z�dZXb_Z�ea�ST_[f_�g_VbhY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\S[b_Z \\ \\ \\ \\ \\iT_cf�ea�Sjabc_Z�Ŝ Yabc_Z \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]bTbkbZe \\ \\ \\ \\ \\lb[k_Zbc�ea�m_VbZe \\ \\ \\ \\ \\g_VbhY�l_n_bb_Z�ea�o_cbjbc�d[T_ZXYa \\ \\ \\ \\ \\pne�ea�̀eaY�q_cY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\rsbVY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\tZuTb[s�mY_aZYa[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]e[VYa�veWVs \\ \\ \\ \\ \\lê YTY[[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\`bTbV_aw \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UecbeYceZê bc_TTw�xb[_Xh_ZV_uYX \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UVWXYZV[�qYcYbhbZu�̀bua_ZV�tXWc_VbeZ�UYahbcY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UVWXYZV[�nbVs�xb[_ybTbVbY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\zSV�ea�_yehY�VsY�ua_XY\TYhYT�[V_ZX_aX�bZ�VsY�ceZVY{V�ej�VsY�Tec_T�_[[Y[[̂ YZV�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX|�geVY}�mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�Vsb[�V_yTY�jea�[cseeT[�bZ�c_[Y[�nsYaY�VsY�[cseeT�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX�_�Tec_T�_[[Y[[̂ YZV|�geVY}�mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�XeWyTY�X_[sY[��\\��bZ�Vsb[�V_yTY�nsYZ�VsY�ZŴ yYa�ej�[VWXYZV[�b[�VYZ�ea�TY[[��YbVsYa�yYc_W[Y�VsY�ZŴ yYa�ej�[VWXYZV[�bZ�Vsb[�c_VYueaw�b[Vee�[̂ _TT�jea�[V_Vb[Vbc_T�_ccWa_cw�ea�Ve�kaeVYcV�[VWXYZV�kabh_cw|�geVY}�dZ�c_[Y[�nsYaY�VsY�[cseeT�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX�eZTw�VsY��SSUoo�_[[Y[[̂ YZV��mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�Vsb[�V_yTY�nbVs��g~S��h_TWY[�bZ�_TT�cYTT[��̂Y_ZbZu�Vsb[�V_yTY�b[geV�SkkTbc_yTY�jea�Vsb[�[cseeT| ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �)�)�

-../00�1234�5236743�89�/:829:2�;<=�.77�/46>2943�?=@>23�A8B2C�D8EF4�@9>�G8EF�/:F<<7�02=:294@E2�<;�/46>2943�H22489E�<=�DI:22>89E�4F2�/4@42�/4@9>@=>/6JK2:4 /:F<<7�LMNOPLMLM /:F<<7�LMLMQLMLN R834=8:4�LMNOPLMLM R834=8:4�LMLMQLMLN /4@42�LMNOPLMLM /4@42�LMLMQLMLNSTUVWTV�XYZ[\V]�̂_�̀_�[W\�aUYa�]Tabbcd efg hh efg hh efg ìjkieblVm�naV�iopqrioio�\[l[�TVcc]�sUla�efg�t[cuV]�UW\UT[lV�la[l�laV�iopqrioio�\[l[�[ZV�Wbl�[t[Uc[vcV�\uV�lb�laV�wxyz{hpq�|[W\V}UT�[W\�ZV]uclUWY�]u}}[lUtV�lV]lUWY]u]|VW]UbWj�naV�~�VTulUtV�xZ\VZ�eh�ohio�s[]�U]]uV\�saUTa�s[UtV\�laV�[]]V]]}VWl_�[TTbuWl[vUcUl�_�[W\�ZV|bZlUWY�ZV�uUZV}VWl]��bZ�laV�iopqrioio�]Tabbc��V[Zj�eblVm��bZ�[W��ioiorioip�\[l[�TVcc]�sUla�efn�t[cuV]�UW\UT[lV�la[l�laU]�]Tabbc�\U\�Wbl�lV]l�]lu\VWl]�u]UWY�laV�wggS���STUVWTVj ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-../00�1234�5236743�89�/:829:2�;<�/46=294�>?@6A�>?B=23�C8D2E�F8GH4�B9=�I8GH�/:H@@7�J/:H@@7�K2B?�LMLMNLMLOP/46=294�>?@6A 1@4B7�F9?@77Q294 R6Q;2?�12342= 02?:294�12342= 02?:294�R@4�12342= 02?:294�S24�@?�FT:22=2=UVV�WXYZ[\X] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_[̀ aV[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂baV[ c c c c cÙ [defa\�g\Zea\�hd�UVa]ia�jaXek[ c c c c cU]ea\ c c c c clVafi�hd�Umdefa\�Ù [defa\ c c c c c_eVene\h c c c c coe]na\ef�hd�paXe\h c c c c cjaXek[�oaqaeea\�hd�rafemef�g]Va\Z[d c c c c csqh�hd�bhd[�taf[] c c c c cuveX[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂w\xVe]v�p[ad\[d] c c c c c_h]X[d�yhYXv c c c c coh̀ [V[]]beVeXadz c c c c cWhfeh[fh\h̀ efaVVz�{e]aZka\Xax[Z c c c c cWXYZ[\X]�t[f[eke\x�bexda\X�wZYfaXeh\�W[dkef[] c c c c cWXYZ[\X]�qeXv�{e]a|eVeXe[] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂jhX[}�j~s�kaVY[]�e\ZefaX[�XvaX�Xve]�]fvhhV�ZeZ�\hX�X[]X�]XYZ[\X]�Y]e\x�Xv[��UUWrr�mhd�Wfe[\f[� ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �!�)�

-./00/�1023452.6�7892.:5;4�<-17=�>/;?/.@A�<B23;;6�C0./�DEDEFDEDG=HIJ KLMN�OPQLNRQS�TUVTUWW-./00/�1023452.6�7892.:5;4�<-17=�>./:525X.:5;4�<B23;;6�C0./�DEDEFDEDG=Y0.A9/0 -17�>/;?/.@�>./:525X.:5;4HZ[\]̂�_̀�aZbcde�af̂gchcbfgcij�ci�klm nna]̂h]ig�_̀�aZbcde�gofg�k_[bd]g]�f�klm�â_ĵf[�fip�mf̂i�f�qcjo�rho__d�scbd_[f nna]̂h]ig�_̀�klm�k_Ẑe]e�gofg�f̂]�r]tZ]ih]p�_̂�ĴgchZdfg]p�u]gv]]i�go]�rho__d�fip�wiegcgZgc_ie�_̀�a_ege]h_ipf̂x�mpZhfgc_i nnKLMN�OPQLNRQS�TUWyUWW-;9/A0�74/;66@04:z-;@X60:5;4�;{�|45}0/A5:~�;{�-.65{;/45.�<|-=�.48z;/�-.65{;/45.�B:.:0�|45}0/A5:~�<-B|=��8@5AA5;4��0�95/0@04:A|-z-B|�-;9/A0�Y0.A9/0 >0/204:����������aZbcde�mî_dd]p�ci�k_Ẑe]e��]tZĉ]p�̀_̂��kIkr��Jp[ceec_i ���������n������̂fpZfg]e��o_�k_[bd]g]p�Jdd�k_Ẑe]e��]tZĉ]p�̀_̂��kIkr��Jp[ceec_i nnKLMN�OPQLNRQS�TUWyUWW



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �(�)�

-./.0�123423.56�7.802�19:3;�79.<4=0>?@A�BCDE�FGHIJKAL�M@A�NHOOHPJQR�JQNHGSTMJHQ�GAOAITQM�MH�M@A�BMTMA�FGJHGJMUV�WM@AG�XYFJO�WYMZHSAL�[XGJHGJMU�\]VXYFJO�HYMZHSAL�JQ�M@A�LŶ_AZM�TGAT�HN�F@ULJZTO�AKYZTMJHQ/̀;3a42b3/�185>3</;�c3.b0>>�d0>.�e0>9;.>�f-<844;�g0/2�hihijhihklm2/n0�o0p0; 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�c492�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n> 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�c3p0�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n> 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�-3s�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n>t uvC uvC uvCw uvC uvC uvCx uvC uvC uvCuHMAV�yYA�MH�M@A�EWz{y|}x�ZGJLJL~�M@A�X@ULJZTO��JMQALL�?ALM�PTL�LYLFAQKAK�KYGJQR�M@A���������}�LZ@HHO�UATG�TQK�M@AGANHGA�QH�KTMT�TGA�GAFHGMAK� ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �#�)�

-.�/01213430565253�789:895;<�7283052=�>0?:=?34305@AB�CDEF�GHIJKLBM�NAB�OIPPIQKRS�KROIHTUNKIR�HBPBJURN�NI�NAB�CNUNB�GHKIHKNVW�XUHBRNUP�YRJIPJBTBRN�ZXHKIHKNV�[\W]OOIHNM�NAB�M̂AIIP�LKMNHK̂N�TU_BM�NI�MBB_�GUHBRN�KRG̀N�KR�TU_KRS�LB̂KMKIRM�OIH�NAB�M̂AIIP�LKMNHK̂N�URL�BÛA�M̂AIIP�MKNBabb:85c09593d�e:8�7283052=�>0?:=?34305�f6gh::=�i328�jkjlmjkjjnXUHBRNM�UHB�GHIJKLBL�S̀KLBPKRBMo�GHÎBL̀HBM�URL�p̀BMNKIRRUKHBM�NI�̀GLUNB�MNUOO�IR�̂̀ HHBRN�MǸLBRN�MNUǸM�UN�NAB�qBSKRRKRS�IO�BÛA�VBUH�IH�GPÛBTBRNr�DRR̀UPPVoGUHBRNM�GUHNK̂KGUNB�KR�NABKH�MǸLBRNM�YRLKJKL̀UPKsBL�]L̀ ÛNKIR�XHISHUT�UM�QBPP�UM�GUHBRNtNBÛABH�̂IROBHBR̂BM�UM�RBBLBLr�XUHBRNM�UHB�̂IRNÛNBL�LUKPV�URLtIH�QBB_PVHBSUHLKRS�MǸLBRN�GHISHBMM�qV�GAIRBo�BTUKP�IH�NBuN�GHBOBHBR̂B�IO�GUHBRNMr�XUHBRNM�UHB�UPMI�KRJKNBL�NI�UNNBRL�FITT R̀KNV�DLJKMIHV�FITTKNNBB�ZFDF\�TBBNKRSMQAK̂A�GHITINB�̂ITT R̀KNV�UQUHBRBMM�URL�M̀GGIHN�NAHÌSA�QIH_MAIGM�URL�KROIHTUNKIRUP�TBBNKRSMr�@HURMPUNIHM�UHB�UJUKPUqPB�IR�MKNBr



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-./.0�123423.56�17839�:;</<0=0;.>?@�ABCD�EFGHIJ@K�L?@�MGNNGOIPQ�IPMGFRSLIGP�F@N@HSPL�LG�L?@�ALSL@�EFIGFILTU�VWEIN�XPQSQ@R@PL�YVFIGFILT�Z[U\IQ?�K]?GGN�JFGEGWL�FSL@K̂�SPJ\IQ?�K]?GGN�QFSJWSLIGP�FSL@KD?FGPI]�B_K@PL@@IKR2̀4847.�a/.0�/;b�c2/b7/.34;�a/.0�de472fg0/2�h4i42.�a/.0jk;b3l/.42 -li449�mnopfmnoq -li449�mnoqfmnmn -li449�mnmnrmnmo 3̀s.23l.�mnopfmnoq 3̀s.23l.�mnoqfmnmn 3̀s.23l.�mnmnrmnmo -./.0�mnopfmnoq -./.0�mnoqfmnmn -./.0�mnmnrmnmotFGEGWL�CSL@ uu uu uu vwxyz{ uu uu |xzz{ }x|z{ |xyz{~FSJWSLIGP�CSL@ uu uu uu yZxZz{ wwx�z{ �zzxzz{ }yxZz{ }yx�z{ }vxwz{



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# � �)�

-./01/2345�6/27�89�:210752�-.41;�<=41.>?7/.�@4A4.2�6/27B�<:CA44D�?7/.�EFEFGEFEHB :210752�-.41; I1J87.�4K�:210752L�35�@4A4.2 I1J87.�4K�@4A4.2�-./01/27L @4A4.2�-./01/2345�6/27MNN�OPQRSTPU V V VWVXSYZNS V V VWV[ZNS V V VWV\]T̂_̀TZab V V VWVMYSàcZT�dTR̀ZT�]a�MNZUeZ�\ZP̀fS V V VWVMÙZT V V VWV_NZce�]a�MgàcZT�MYSàcZT V V VWVX̀Ǹh̀T] V V VWVìUhZT̀c�]a�jZP̀T] V V VWV\ZP̀fS�iZkZ̀̀ZT�]a�lZc̀g̀c�dUNZTRSa V V VWVmk]�]a�[]aS�nZcSU V V VWVop̀PS V V VWVqTrǸUp�jSZaTSaU V V VWVX]UPSa�s]QPp V V VWVi]YSNSUU V V VWVO]c̀]Sc]T]Yc̀ZNNb�t̀UZRfZTPZrSR V V VWVOPQRSTPU�nScS̀f̀Tr�[r̀aZTP�qRQcZP̀]T�OSaf̀cSU V V VWVOPQRSTPU�k̀Pp�t̀UZùǸP̀SU V V VWVX]a�̀Tg]aYZP̀]T�]T�PpS�X]QâsSZa�MRvQUPSR�w]p]aP�xaZRQZP̀]T�nZPS�yMwxnz{�f̀ÙP�PpS�wtq�MRvQUPSR�w]p]aP�xaZRQZP̀]T�nZPS�kSu�hZrS�ZPpPPhU|}}kkkWcRSWcZWr]f}RU}ZR}ZcràTg]WZUhW ~������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-./0123�45671877269�5:�;8<=718�>/0<?�@;3.00A�B7C/�DEDEFDEDGH;8<=718�>/0<? -<9<AC82I7�J1/0AA9718 -./0123�45671877269�JA2K25A7�J1/0AA9718 -./0123�45671877269�-0<18 -./0123�45671877269�LC87MNN�OPQRSTPU VW VW W XYZX[S\]NS X X X V̂ Ẑ̂_]NS V̀ V̀ ` aaZaM\Sbcd]T�eTRc]T�fb�MN]Ug]�h]PciS ^ ^ ^ aaZaMUc]T ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂jN]dg�fb�Mkbcd]T�M\Sbcd]T V V ^ Ẑ̂[cNclcTf ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂mcUl]Tcd�fb�n]PcTf V̀ V̀ o àZah]PciS�m]p]cc]T�fb�q]dckcd�eUN]TRSb ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂rpf�fb�_fbS�s]dSU ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂tucPS a a V aaZavTwNcUu�nS]bTSbU ` ` a x̂Ẑ[fUPSb�yfQPu ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂mf\SNSUU z z ^ Ẑ̂OfdcfSdfTf\cd]NN{�|cU]Ri]TP]wSR Vz Vz x `̂ẐOPQRSTPU�sSdScicTw�_cwb]TP�vRQd]PcfT�OSbicdSU ^ ^ ^ Ẑ̂OPQRSTPU�pcPu�|cU]}cNcPcSU VW VW W XYZX~������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-./.0�123423.56�-78449�:93;/.0<=>�?@AB�CDEFGH>I�J=>�KELLEMGNO�GNKEDPQJGEN�D>L>FQNJ�JE�J=>�?JQJ>�CDGEDGJRS�?T=EEL�BLGPQJ>�UVDGEDGJR�WXSVYCGL�IYIC>NIGEN�DQJ>IZVYCGL�>[CYLIGEN�DQJ>IZ�QNH\J=>D�LETQL�P>QIYD>I�EN�J=>�I>NI>�EK�IQK>JR-]̂_0̀ 3̂4̀ �̂/̀a�bc_]9̂34̀ �̂da/./�749907.0a�e0.f00̀�g]95�.824]h8�g]̀0i�0/78�j]99�̂78449�50/2�20̂_07.3k095lm/.0 -78449�nopqrnops -78449�nonotnonp u3̂.237.�nopqrnops u3̂.237.�nonotnonp -./.0�nopqrnops -./.0�nonotnonp?YIC>NIGENI vwvvx ywzWx zvw{|x |w}vx |w~}x vwzvx�[CYLIGENI vwvvx vwvvx vwvvx vwvvx vwv{x vwvvx�EJ>S��QJQ�TELL>TJ>H�HYDGNO�J=>�zvzv�z��IT=EEL�R>QD�PQR�NEJ��>�TEPCQDQ�L>�JE�>QDLG>D�R>QDI�EK�J=GI�TELL>TJGEN�HY>�JE�HGKK>D>NT>I�GN�L>QDNGNO�PEH>�GNIJDYTJGEN�GND>ICENI>�JE�J=>�B\�������CQNH>PGTw-]̂_0̀ 3̂4̀ �̂/̀a�bc_]9̂34̀ �̂j42�-78449��0/2�nops�nono��̀ 95�da/./�749907.0a�e0.f00̀�g]95�.824]h8��0e2]/25i�_/2.3/9�̂78449�50/2�a]0�.4�.80�:���urps�_/̀a0;37lm/.0 -78449�nopsrnono u3̂.237.�nopsrnono -./.0�nopsrnono?YIC>NIGENI vwvvx }wyvx zw~yx�[CYLIGENI vwvvx vwvvx vwvyx�EJ>S�<=>�zv���zvzv�IYIC>NIGENI�QNH�>[CYLIGENI�DQJ>�HQJQ�QD>�NEJ�TEPCQDQ�L>�JE�EJ=>D�R>QD�HQJQ��>TQYI>�J=>�zv���zvzv�IT=EEL�R>QD�GI�Q�CQDJGQL�IT=EEL�R>QD�HY>�JEJ=>�B\�������TDGIGIw�@I�IYT=��GJ�MEYLH��>�GNQCCDECDGQJ>�JE�PQ�>�QNR�TEPCQDGIENI�GN�DQJ>I�EK�IYIC>NIGENI�QNH�>[CYLIGENI�GN�J=>�zv���zvzv�IT=EEL�R>QD�TEPCQD>H�JEEJ=>D�IT=EEL�R>QDIw ���������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �"�)�

-./012/342/�526�780.9/342/�:;�-<.612<�=>4.0�?-@A449�B15>�CDCDECDCFG -<.612<�=>4.0 -./012/342/�H5<1 780.9/342/�H5<1IJJ�KLMNOPLQ RSTU VWOXYJO V VZYJO USU[ V\]P̂_̀PYab V VIXOàcYP�dPǸYP�]a�IJYQeY�\YL̀fO V VIQ̀YP V V_JYce�]a�IgàcYP�IXOàcYP V VẀJ̀h̀P] V VìQhYP̀c�]a�jYL̀P] USU[ V\YL̀fO�iYkỲ̀YP�]a�lYc̀g̀c�dQJYPNOa V Vmk]�]a�Z]aO�nYcOQ V Vop̀LO V VqPrJ̀Qp�jOYaPOaQ V VW]QLOa�s]MLp V Vi]XOJOQQ V VK]c̀]Oc]P]Xc̀YJJb�t̀QYNfYPLYrON uSvv VKLMNOPLQ�nOcÒf̀Pr�Zr̀aYPL�qNMcYL̀]P�KOaf̀cOQ V VKLMNOPLQ�k̀Lp�t̀QYẁJ̀L̀OQ RSTU V xyz{�|}~y{�~�-@A449�-5�1<;��952�?-@A449�B15>�CDCF�CDCCG�]JMQY��]MPLb��gg̀cO�]g�qNMcYL̀]P�Q��]XhaOpOPQ̀fO�KYgOLb�lJYP�pYQ�wOOP�NOfOJ]hON�YPN�aOf̀OkON�wb�LpO�KYgOLb�lJYPP̀Pr��]XXL̀LOO�kp̀cp�̀PcJMNON�LpOg]JJ]k̀Pr�XOXwOaQ��ZYàY�Iaf̀�M̂qQh̀P]�Y��IQQ̀QLYPL�KMhOàPLOPNOPL���Of̀P�t]MrJYQ��qNMcYL̀]PYJ�_OpYf̀]a�IPYJbQL��KYaY�tMPP��mOYcpOa���pàQ�WYPLJ��lYaOPL��m̀ggYPbWOaPYPNO���Icc]MPLYPL��aYPL�KhOc̀YJ̀QL��IPrOJY�WMJcpOa��W]]N�KOaf̀cO�KMhOaf̀Q]a���Ogg��̀JwOaL���YhLỲP�oJ̀J̀YXQ�ẀaO�tOhYaLXOPL��IYa]P�iÒP���IQQ]c̀YLOKMhOàPLOPNOPL������q��_aYPN]P��̀PrQJOb���]JMQY��]MPLb�la]wYL̀]P��gg̀cOa��IJO�YPNaY�j]hO���laOfOPL̀]P�KOaf̀cOQ�KMhOaf̀Q]a��IJ̀QQY�ZYYQ��dPP]fYL̀fO�Ihha]YcpOQL]�j̀LOaYcb�KhOc̀YJ̀QL��j]àJOO�\̀OQOP��t̀aOcL]a�]g�qNMcYL̀]PYJ�KOaf̀cOQ��lYLàc̀Y�l̀PON]��mOYcpOa���OQMQ�nYX]Q��INXP̀̀QLaYL̀fO�IQQ̀QLYPL���YaON�n]ẁPOLL��WYc̀J̀L̀OQKMhOaf̀Q]a���pMce�oYbXYP��IQQ̀QLYPL�KMhOàPLOPNOPL���KqjlI�t̀aOcL]a���OPP̀gOa�oYbXYP��KqjlI�la]raYX�KhOc̀YJ̀QLS��mpO�c]XXL̀LOO�c]PQMJLON�YPN�c]]aǸPYLON�k̀Lp�QYgOLb�hJYPP̀Pr�ra]MhQ�ga]X�]LpOa�Qcp]]JQ�̀P�NOfOJ]h̀Pr�LpO�hJYP�YQ�Yhha]hàYLOS��mpO�hJYP�̀Q�L]�wO�YXOPNON�YQ�POONONS�dL�QpYJJ�wO�MhNYLON�YPPMYJJb�k̀Lp�aOf̀Ok�YPN�Yhha]fYJ�NMO�wb�ZYacp��S�I�c]hb�]g�LpO�cMaaOPL�hJYP�k̀JJ�wO�eOhL�]P�pYPN�̀PLpO�Qcp]]J�]gg̀cO�YPN�XYNO�YfỲJYwJO�g]a�̀PQhOcL̀]P�Mh]P�aO�MOQLS xyz{�|}~y{�~���������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �)�)�

-.�/0123�4567�89:;3<=08;9>?@�ABCDEFGHADB�AB�H?AI�I@JHADB�AI�E@KLAE@M�HD�N@�AB�H?@�OPQR�NLH�AI�BDH�ABJSLM@M�AB�H?@�IHGH@�TEADEAHA@I�CDE�URVVW5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2�=9]�7Z=[[�48\2�-8[038̂_08;9�̀aZ2<290=3bc�4d1;;Z�e2=3�fghijfghkl3=]2�m2X2Z 5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2 n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ohpfg n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ofhpqf n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�qqrstuvwxy tWzz t{H?@E|| z|�}LFN@E�DC�JSGII@I�ABMAJGH@I�?D~�FGB��JSGII@I�CGSS�ABHD�@GJ?�IA�@�JGH@�DE���G�EGB�@�DC�HDHGS�IHLM@BHI�T@E�JSGII�W||��{H?@E��JGH@�DE��AI�CDE�FLSHA��EGM@�S@�@S�JSGII@IW5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2�=9]�7Z=[[�48\2�-8[038̂_08;9�̀aZ2<290=3bc�4d1;;Z�e2=3�fghkjfgfgl3=]2�m2X2Z 5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2 n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ohpfg n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ofhpqf n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�qqrstuvwx vWzz ty{H?@E|||�}LFN@E�DC�JSGII@I�ABMAJGH@I�?D~�FGB��JSGII@I�CGSS�ABHD�@GJ?�IA�@�JGH@�DE���G�EGB�@�DC�HDHGS�IHLM@BHI�T@E�JSGII�W||��{H?@E��JGH@�DE��AI�CDE�FLSHA��EGM@�S@�@S�JSGII@IW



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@A4/B/9<10CD�6EF??4�G/10�HIHIJHIHKL01:/�M/./4 -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHI N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHKQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRSTUVWXYZ[\]̂_̀̀ Yabb U�̀cdef̂_�gh�ijkll̂l�mnomik\̂l�]gp�eknq�ijkll̂l�hkjj�mn\g�̂ki]�lmr̂�ik\̂sg_q�tk�_knŝ�gh�\g\kj�l\dôn\l�û_�ijkllva`̀�w[\]̂_w�ik\̂sg_q�ml�hg_�edj\mxs_kô�ĵŷj�ijkll̂la-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIKz{HIK|D6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml]�k\]�im̂nî�gimkj��im̂nî�̀cdef̂_�gh�ijkll̂l�mnomik\̂l�]gp�eknq�ijkll_ggel�hkjj�mn\g�̂ki]�lmr̂�ik\̂sg_q�tk�_knŝ�gh�\g\kj�l\dôn\l�û_�ijkll_ggeva��\�\]̂�l̂ignok_q�li]ggj�ĵŷj��\]mlmnhg_ek\mgn�ml�_̂ug_\̂o�fq�ldf�̂i\�k_̂k�_k\]̂_�\]kn�s_kô�ĵŷja-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIK|{HIHID6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml]�k\]�im̂nî�gimkj��im̂nî�̀cdef̂_�gh�ijkll̂l�mnomik\̂l�]gp�eknq�ijkll_ggel�hkjj�mn\g�̂ki]�lmr̂�ik\̂sg_q�tk�_knŝ�gh�\g\kj�l\dôn\l�û_�ijkll_ggeva��\�\]̂�l̂ignok_q�li]ggj�ĵŷj��\]mlmnhg_ek\mgn�ml�_̂ug_\̂o�fq�ldf�̂i\�k_̂k�_k\]̂_�\]kn�s_kô�ĵŷja-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIHIJHIHKD6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml]�k\]�im̂nî�gimkj��im̂nî ����������������������̀cdef̂_�gh�ijkll̂l�mnomik\̂l�]gp�eknq�ijkll_ggel�hkjj�mn\g�̂ki]�lmr̂�ik\̂sg_q�tk�_knŝ�gh�\g\kj�l\dôn\l�û_�ijkll_ggeva��\�\]̂�l̂ignok_q�li]ggj�ĵŷj��\]mlmnhg_ek\mgn�ml�_̂ug_\̂o�fq�ldf�̂i\�k_̂k�_k\]̂_�\]kn�s_kô�ĵŷja



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �!�)�

-./01�12�345067�/1�89.:;<09�=14>7;61?�@A9B116�C;.?�DEDEFDEDGHI0/6; -./01JKLMNO�PQ�RSTUVWMS�XQKYOVNQZ[ \]̂_̀�abĉ d̀ce�fgfghh[�iYV�jKNN�PMWV�VkKMlTNVYP�mnopq�VkKTNO�QYV�OPTjj�WVWrVZ�sQZtMYu�jKNN�PMWVv�QYV�nop�SQKNU�TNOQ�ZVLZVOVYP�PsQ�OPTjj�WVWrVZO�swQ�VTSw�sQZt�x\�LVZSVYP�Qj�jKNN�PMWVyA/4:;>/�A4551?/�A;?z09;7�A/.22�@A9B116�C;.?�DEDEFDEDGHI0/6; {4<|;?�12�}I~��8770�>;:�/1�A9B116XQKYOVNQZ�mRSTUVWMS���QSMTN��VwTlMQZTN�QZ�XTZVVZ��VlVNQLWVYPq \y\\�MrZTZ���VUMT�oVTSwVZ�m�MrZTZMTYq \y\\�MrZTZ���VUMT��VZlMSVO��PTjj�mJTZTLZQjVOOMQYTNq \y\\JO�SwQNQuMOP \y\\�QSMTN��QZtVZ \y\\�KZOV \y\\�LVVSw��TYuKTuV��VTZMYu��LVSMTNMOP \y\\�VOQKZSV��LVSMTNMOP�mYQY�PVTSwMYuq \y\\iPwVZ \y�\ ]̂_̀�abĉ d̀ce�fgfghh[�iYV�jKNN�PMWV�VkKMlTNVYP�mnopq�VkKTNO�QYV�OPTjj�WVWrVZ�sQZtMYu�jKNN�PMWVv�QYV�nop�SQKNU�TNOQ�ZVLZVOVYP�PsQ�OPTjj�WVWrVZO�swQ�VTSw�sQZt�x\�LVZSVYP�Qj�jKNN�PMWVy~�5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506�.>:�A9B116�A0/;�I;.9B;?�A.6.?0;7�@}079.6�C;.?�DEG�FDEDEH�;z;6 I1/.6�~�5;>:0/4?;7�3;?34506 ~�5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506@-;7/?09/;:H ~�5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506@�>?;7/?09/;:H 8z;?.�;�I;.9B;?A.6.?��SwQQN��MPV �x\�\�y\\ �x\�\�y\\ �\y\\ �����xy\\�MOPZMSP ��R ��R �\y\\ ��x���y\\JVZSVYP��MjjVZVYSV����SwQQN��MPV�TYU�MOPZMSP ��R ��R �\\y\\� �yx\��PTPV ��R ��R �����y�� ��JVZSVYP��MjjVZVYSV����SwQQN��MPV�TYU�PTPV ��R ��R �\\y\\� ��y\\�]̂_̀�abĉ d̀ce��gfg���QPV��XVNNO�sMPw���R�lTNKVO�UQ�YQP�ZVkKMZV�UTPTy



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �(�)�

-./01�23�40567801�9:;<0<�=9718>?�@0>5�ABABCABADEFGH IJKL�MNOJLPOQ�RSTSRR-0>8U05�>;<�V<W7;71X5>X760�4>?>5701�=9718>?�@0>5�ABDYZABABE[>X0\25. ]71X578X�VW2:;X 4X>X0�V605>\0�925�]71X578X1�̂;�4>W0�[>X0\25._̀abccbca�d̀efg̀h�iejehk ll llmbnloecà�d̀efg̀h�iejehk ll llpbag̀qr�d̀efg̀h�iejehk ll llHs̀heà�thbcfbuej�iejehk�vwj̀x c̀rehky ll llHs̀heà�thbcfbuej�iejehk�vmbnnj̀y ll llHs̀heà�thbcfbuej�iejehk�vpbagy ll llizùhbcr̀cǹcr�iejehk ll llt̀hf̀cr�{|�_znàr�|{h�d̀efg̀h�iejehb̀q ll llt̀hf̀cr�{|�_znàr�|{h�Hnxbcbqrherbs̀�iejehb̀q ll ll}{h�ǹrebj̀n�bc|{hxerb{c�{c�qejehb̀q~�q̀ �̀rg̀���w��̀hrb|bfer̀n�iejehb̀q���_̀c̀|brq��̀��ueà�er�grruq�GG����fǹ�fe�a{sGnqG|nGfqG�
IJKL�MNOJLPOQ



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# �#�)�

-./0123.�450236317�8-49�:;<=>3>�8?2@;;5�A30=�BCBCDBCBE943=2317�;F�?7<.317>�G1�-4�:;<=>3>�HIHHJ?<KL327 M<6K3=�;F�-4�:;<=>3>�NFF3=3.OPQRSTUVW�XYZV[YV H\[]̂Z_̀ HaZ[V�b[c�dVWeQWRZ[]�fWU_ HaQWVZ][�gb[]Tb]V HhbÙVRbUZY_ HXYZV[YV HXQYZb̂�XYZV[YV HiQUb̂�fd�PQTW_V_�jeeVWVck HIHHJ lmno�pqrmosrt�uvwvuuk�x V̀WV�ÙVWV�bWV�_UTcV[U�YQTW_V�V[WQ̂̂RV[U_�Qe�bU�̂Vb_U�Q[V�_UTcV[UI4=;F3>>G;105�y3/35;z6317 {30><=3 BCE|}BCBC BCBC~BCBE BCBE}BCBB�TR�VW�Qe�_ỲQQ̂�cb�_�cVcZYbUVc�UQ�XUbee��V�V̂QSRV[U�b[c�PQ[UZ[TQT_��RSWQ�VRV[U � � �



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ���)�

-../0.1234�5678�9:;�<=<9;�>?@�AB7CDEF4CB�G>B>@�HEBFI�ED�JI6KB>CE4�LGHJM�I@>@FNC4@I�>?B>�>?@�AB7CDEF4CB�O@PBF>N@4>�ED�JI6KB>CE4�LAOJM�QC77�6R@�>?@�GSTA�U@V�SPP7CKB>CE4�BR>?@�N@K?B4CRN�>E�KE4I6K>�B�E4@W>CN@�IB>B�KE77@K>CE4�ED�>?@�XJSW7@Y@7�BZZF@ZB>@�>@R>�F@R67>R�ED�B77�RK?EE7[R�7EKB7�BRR@RRN@4>R�BINC4CR>@F@I�I6FC4Z�>?@�<=<=\<=<9RK?EE7�8@BF�C4�EFI@F�>E�N@@>�>?@�D@I@FB7�JY@F8�G>6I@4>R�G6KK@@IR�SK>�LJGGSM�F@PEF>C4Z�F@]6CF@N@4>�DEF�>?@�XEKB7�JI6KB>CE4B7�SZ@4K8�SKKE64>BVC7C>8�T@PEF>�ABFIRLXSTARM̂�JBK?�7EKB7�@I6KB>CE4B7�BZ@4K8�LXJSM�CR�F@RPE4RCV7@�DEF�PF@PBFC4Z�B4I�PER>C4Z�>?@CF�B446B7�XSTA�C4�BKKEFIB4K@�QC>?�>?@�D@I@FB7�JGGŜ�SR�B�KE6F>@R8;�>?@�AOJ�PF@PBF@RB4I�PER>R�>?@�XSTAR�E4�V@?B7D�ED�B77�XJSR̂�3478�DEF�>?@�<=<=\<=<9�RK?EE7�8@BF�B4I�>?@�<=<=\<=<9�XSTAR;�XJSR�BF@�F@]6CF@I�>E�F@PEF>�>?@CF�BZZF@ZB>@�7EKB7�BRR@RRN@4>R�>@R>�F@R67>R�B>�>?@�XJSW7@Y@7�>E�>?@�AOJV8�PEP67B>C4Z�>?@�>BV7@R�V@7EQ�YCB�>?@�GSTA�U@V�SPP7CKB>CE4̂�_?@R@�IB>B�QC77�V@�6R@I�>E�N@@>�>?@�XJSR[�D@I@FB7�F@]6CF@N@4>�DEF�>?@CF�XSTAR̂�̀E>@�>?B>�C>�CR�>?@F@RPE4RCVC7C>8�ED�>?@�RK?EE7�B4I�XJS�>E�@4R6F@�>?B>�B77�R>6I@4>�PFCYBK8�B4I�R6PPF@RRCE4�F67@R�BF@�C4�P7BK@�Q?@4�F@PEF>C4Z�IB>B�C4�_BV7@R�a�B4I�:�C4�>?@�SII@4I6N;�BRBPP7CKBV7@̂�_?@�>BV7@R�V@7EQ�BF@�4E>�PBF>�ED�>?@�GHJ�BPPFEY@I�<=<=\<=<9�GSTA�>@NP7B>@�V6>�FB>?@F�BF@�>?@�N@K?B4CRN�V8�Q?CK?�>?@R@�F@]6CF@I�IB>B�QC77�V@�KE77@K>@I�DFEN�XJSR̂�bEF�P6FPER@R�ED�>?@�XSTA�B4I�>?@�DE77EQC4Z�>BV7@R;�B4�XJS�CR�I@DC4@I�BR�B�RK?EE7�ICR>FCK>;�B�KE64>8�EDDCK@�ED�@I6KB>CE4;�EF�B�ICF@K>�D64I@I�K?BF>@F�RK?EE7̂�



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# " �)�

-./0-1213�4//566�7189�:18;398�<=�.-/�>?�59;@1=9�ABC;D��ECB�89;@1=98�9FG<=H�F=@�ICJD319<=H�F�89F910F@J<=<891B1@�F88188J1=9�ABF@18�7KB11�9KBC;HK�.<HK9�F=@�ABF@1�.3121=�L5IKCC3�M1FB�NONOPNONQR59;@1=9�ABC;D 7C9F3�.=BC33J1=9 S;J>1B�71891@ 61BI1=9�71891@ 61BI1=9�SC9�71891@ 61BI1=9�T19�CB�.UI11@1@VWXYZ[\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]\̂_ à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]b à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]X_\cZd̀e�fe[Z̀e�gc�Xàhì�j̀ kZl\ m m m m mXhZ̀e m m m m mnàdi�gc�XocZd̀e�X_\cZd̀e ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ẐaZpZeg m m m m mqZhp̀eZd�gc�V̀kZeg ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]j̀kZl\�q̀ ỲZZ̀e�gc�r̀dZoZd�fhàe[\c m m m m msYg�gc�bgc\�t̀d\h m m m m muvZk\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]WewaZhv�V\̀ce\ch ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ĝhk\c�xgykv m m m m mqg_\a\hhbZaZk̀cz m m m m m{gdZg\dgeg_Zd̀aaz�|Zh̀[l̀ek̀w\[ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�t\d\ZlZew�bZwc̀ek�W[yd̀kZge�{\clZd\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�YZkv�|Zh̀}ZaZkZ\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]jgk\~�j�s�l̀ay\h�Ze[Zd̀k\�kv̀k�kv\�hdvggah�Ze�kvZh�VWX�[Z[�egk�k\hk�hky[\ekh�yhZew�kv\��XX{rr�ogc�WVX��jgk\~�|gy}a\�[̀hv\h��]]��̀pp\̀c�Ze�kv\�k̀}a\�Yv\e�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Zh�k\e�gc�a\hh��\Zkv\c�}\d̀yh\�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Ze�kvZh�d̀k\wgcz�Zh�kgg�h_ àa�ogchk̀kZhkZd̀a�̀ddyc̀dz�gc�kg�pcgk\dk�hky[\ek�pcZl̀dz� ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "��)�

-./0-1213�4//566�7189�:18;398�<=�>?9@1A?9<B8�CD�59;E1=9�FGH;I��JHG�89;E1=98�9?K<=L�?=E�BHAI319<=L�?�89?910?EA<=<891G1E�?88188A1=9�FG?E18�7@G11�9@GH;L@�.<L@9�?=E�FG?E1�.3121=�M5B@HH3�N1?G�OPOPQOPORS59;E1=9�FGH;I 7H9?3�.=GH33A1=9 T;AC1G�71891E 61GB1=9�71891E 61GB1=9�TH9�71891E 61GB1=9�>19�HG�.UB11E1EVWXYZ[\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]\̂_ à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]b à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]X_\cZd̀e�fe[Z̀e�gc�Xàhì�j̀ kZl\ m m m m mXhZ̀e m m m m mnàdi�gc�XocZd̀e�X_\cZd̀e ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ẐaZpZeg m m m m mqZhp̀eZd�gc�V̀kZeg ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]j̀kZl\�q̀ ỲZZ̀e�gc�r̀dZoZd�fhàe[\c m m m m msYg�gc�bgc\�t̀d\h m m m m muvZk\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]WewaZhv�V\̀ce\ch ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ĝhk\c�xgykv m m m m mqg_\a\hhbZaZk̀cz m m m m m{gdZg\dgeg_Zd̀aaz�|Zh̀[l̀ek̀w\[ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�t\d\ZlZew�bZwc̀ek�W[yd̀kZge�{\clZd\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�YZkv�|Zh̀}ZaZkZ\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]jgk\~�j�s�l̀ay\h�Ze[Zd̀k\�kv̀k�kv\�hdvggah�Ze�kvZh�VWX�[Z[�egk�k\hk�hky[\ekh�yhZew�kv\��XX{rr�ogc�b k̀v\_ k̀Zdh��jgk\~�|gy}a\�[̀hv\h��]]��̀pp\̀c�Ze�kv\�k̀}a\�Yv\e�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Zh�k\e�gc�a\hh��\Zkv\c�}\d̀yh\�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Ze�kvZh�d̀k\wgcz�Zh�kgg�h_ àa�ogchk̀kZhkZd̀a�̀ddyc̀dz�gc�kg�pcgk\dk�hky[\ek�pcZl̀dz� ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "��)�

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E�/77177819:�F681G7H�00�CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[Y\]̂Y ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ_]̂Y ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZU\ỲWa]b�cbXW]b�d̀�Û]ef]�g]hWiY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZUeW]b ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZĵ]af�d̀�Uk̀Wa]b�U\ỲWa]b ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[ŴWlWbd ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZmWel]bWa�d̀�S]hWbd ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZg]hWiY�m]V]WW]b�d̀�n]aWkWa�cê]bXỲ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZoVd�d̀�_d̀Y�p]aYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZqrWhY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZTbŝWer�SY]̀bỲe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[dehỲ�tduhr ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZmd\ŶYee ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ_ŴWh]̀v ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwdaWdYadbd\Wa]̂̂v�xWe]Xi]bh]sYX ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwhuXYbhe�pYaYWiWbs�_Ws̀]bh�TXua]hWdb�wỲiWaYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwhuXYbhe�VWhr�xWe]yŴWhWYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZzUh�d̀�]ydiY�hrY�s̀]XYẐYiŶ�eh]bX]̀X�Wb�hrY�adbhY{h�dk�hrY�̂da]̂�]eeYee\Ybh�]X\WbWehỲYX|�gdhY}�STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�hrWe�h]ŷY�kd̀�eardd̂e�Wb�a]eYe�VrỲY�hrY�eardd̂�]X\WbWehỲYX�]�̂da]̂�]eeYee\Ybh|�gdhY}�STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�XduŷY�X]erYe��ZZ��Wb�hrWe�h]ŷY�VrYb�hrY�bu\yỲ�dk�ehuXYbhe�We�hYb�d̀�̂Yee��YWhrỲ�yYa]ueY�hrY�bu\yỲ�dk�ehuXYbhe�Wb�hrWe�a]hYsd̀v�Wehdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀�eh]hWehWa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhYah�ehuXYbh�l̀Wi]av|�gdhY}�cb�a]eYe�VrỲY�]̂̂�hrY�eardd̂e�Wb�hrWe�STU�]X\WbWehỲYX�db̂v�hrY��UUwnn�kd̀�TSU�]eeYee\Ybh��STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�hrWe�h]ŷY�VWhr��g~U��i]̂uYe�Wb�]̂̂�aŶ̂e�\Y]bWbs�hrWe�h]ŷY�We�gdh�Ull̂Wa]ŷY�kd̀�hrWe�STU| ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ""�)�

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wdgcc�d[\]]�jc_�dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d�[Y\aWar�gqWd�g\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ")�)�

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wdgcc�d[\]]�jc_�dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d�[Y\aWar�gqWd�g\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "��)�

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wdgcc�d[\]]�jc_�dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d�[Y\aWar�gqWd�g\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "!�)�

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H�CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wdgcc�d[\]]�jc_�dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d�[Y\aWar�gqWd�g\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "(�)�

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�00�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\Z] _̂Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[` _̂Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[V]ZaXb̂c�dcYX̂c�ea�V_̂fĝ�ĥ iXjZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[VfX̂c [[ [[ [[ [[ [[k_̂bg�ea�VlaXb̂c�V]ZaXb̂c [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\X_XmXce [[ [[ [[ [[ [[nXfm̂cXb�ea�T̂iXce [[ [[ [[ [[ [[ĥiXjZ�n̂ ŴXX̂c�ea�ôbXlXb�df_̂cYZa [[ [[ [[ [[ [[pWe�ea�̀eaZ�q̂bZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[rsXiZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[Uct_Xfs�TẐacZaf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\efiZa�uevis [[ [[ [[ [[ [[ne]Z_Zff [[ [[ [[ [[ [[`X_Xîaw [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xebXeZbece]Xb̂__w�yXf̂YĵcîtZY [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xivYZcif�qZbZXjXct�̀Xtâci�UYvb̂iXec�xZajXbZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xivYZcif�WXis�yXf̂zX_XiXZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[{Vi�ea�̂zejZ�isZ�tâYZ[_ZjZ_�fîcŶaY�Xc�isZ�beciZ|i�el�isZ�_eb̂_�̂ffZff]Zci�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY}�heiZ~�TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�isXf�îz_Z�lea�fbsee_f�Xc�b̂fZf�WsZaZ�isZ�fbsee_�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY�̂�_eb̂_�̂ffZff]Zci}�heiZ~�TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�Yevz_Z�ŶfsZf��[[��Xc�isXf�îz_Z�WsZc�isZ�cv]zZa�el�fivYZcif�Xf�iZc�ea�_Zff��ZXisZa�zZb̂vfZ�isZ�cv]zZa�el�fivYZcif�Xc�isXf�b̂iZteaw�Xfiee�f] _̂_�lea�fîiXfiXb̂_�̂bbvâbw�ea�ie�maeiZbi�fivYZci�maXĵbw}�heiZ~�dc�b̂fZf�WsZaZ�̂__�isZ�fbsee_f�Xc�isXf�TUV�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY�ec_w�isZ��VVxoo�lea�̀ îsZ] îXbf�̂ffZff]Zci��TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�isXf�îz_Z�WXis��h�V��ĵ_vZf�Xc_̂_�bZ__f��]ẐcXct�isXf�îz_Z�Xf�hei�Vmm_Xb̂z_Z�lea�isXf�TUV} ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "#�)�

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xehdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀�eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb]̂̂�aẐ̂e��\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# "��)�

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J��DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xehdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀�eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb]̂̂�aẐ̂e��\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# ) �)�

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xehdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀�eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb]̂̂�aẐ̂e��\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



�������������	
 ������	�������������������������

����������������������������������� !�  !! �"!�# �� � $� ��%����&	'("��)"$*�� $)' ($��')$( +("�,	��# )��)�

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J��DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xehdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀�eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb]̂̂�aẐ̂e��\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ��+'

-.�/011023�4561�4728639:;:;<:;:=�-7>??1�477?@AB25010B9�C6D?EB�F2E8C6D?EB68�GH0AI�J2B2�KE?3�B>6�:;:;<:;:=�-7>??1�L62EF210K?EA02�J6D2EB36AB�?K�M8@72B0?A488E6HHN OPP�QRSTUSVWX�YWZ��[V\\VR] _̂�̀a�_�PbPcdebcfb gE0A70D21N Q Ẑ�hiSV\XX�jVX̂Xk_�lSVkmVnR\opVSXmWiSg>?A6N qbrst�Odrefrbs uE286�-D2AN defvwx�yXzSURSx�f�i{�XRm|�xXRS_�X}XSx�̂m|ii\�Vk�̀R\V{iSkVR�V̂�SX~UVSX��zx�̂WRWX�\R��Wi�nUz\V̂|�R�Ym|ii\�ammiUkWRzV\VWx��XniSW�̀RS��qYa�̀tZ�|X�Ya�̀�mikWRVk̂�Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�W|Xmik�VWVik�Rk��nXS{iS]RkmX�i{�XRm|�̀R\V{iSkVR�nUz\Vm�̂m|ii\Z��k�XS�W|X�himR\�̀ikWSi\�yUk�VkT�yiS]U\R�qh̀yyt�R\\�\imR\�X�UmRWVikR\�RTXkmVX̂�qh�ât�RSX�SX~UVSX��Wi�nSXnRSX�R�himR\ìkWSi\�Rk��ammiUkWRzV\VWx�l\Rk�qh̀alt_��|Vm|��X̂mSVzX̂�|i��W|Xx�VkWXk��Wi�]XXW�RkkUR\�̂m|ii\ênXmV{Vm�TiR\̂�{iS�R\\�nUnV\̂_��VW|�̂nXmV{Vm�RmWV}VWVX̂�Wi�R��SX̂ �̂̂WRWX�Rk��\imR\nSViSVWVX̂Z�a��VWVikR\\x_��RWR�SXniSWX��Vk�Rk�h̀al�V̂�Wi�zX�mik̂V̂WXkW��VW|��RWR�SXniSWX��Vk�W|X�Ya�̀ZyiS�]iSX�Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�Ya�̀�SX~UVSX]XkŴ_�̂XX�W|X�̀R\V{iSkVR�pXnRSW]XkW�i{���UmRWVik�q̀p�t�Ya�̀��Xz�nRTX�RW�|WWn̂�oo���Zm�XZmRZTi}oWRoRmôRoZyiS�]iSX�Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�W|X�h̀yy�iS�h̀al_�̂XX�W|X�̀p��h̀yy��Xz�nRTX�RW�|WWn̂�oo���Zm�XZmRZTi}o{ToRRo\moZyiS�R��VWVikR\�Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�W|X�̂m|ii\_�nRSXkŴoTURS�VRk̂�Rk��mi]]UkVWx�]X]zXŜ�̂|iU\��mikWRmW�W|X�̂m|ii\�nSVkmVnR\�iS�W|X��V̂WSVmW�i{{VmXZJ2B2�@6HBpRWR�UX̂W�V̂�Rk�ik\VkX��RWR�Wii\�\imRWX��ik�W|X�̀p��pRWR�UX̂W��Xz�nRTX�RW�|WWn̂�oo�~Zm�XZmRZTi}o�RWR~UX̂Wo�W|RW�mikWRVk̂�R��VWVikR\�Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�W|V̂�̂m|ii\�Rk�mi]nRSV̂ik̂�i{�W|X�̂m|ii\�Wi�W|X��V̂WSVmW�Rk��W|X�miUkWxZ�YnXmV{VmR\\x_�pRWR�UX̂W�V̂�R��xkR]Vm�̂x̂WX]�W|RW�nSi}V�X̂�SXniSŴ�{iS�RmmiUkWRzV\VWx�qXZTZ_�WX̂W��RWR_�XkSi\\]XkW_�|VT|m̂|ii\�TSR�URWX̂_��SiniUŴ_�miUŜX�XkSi\\]XkŴ_�̂WR{{VkT_�Rk���RWR�SXTRS�VkT��kT\V̂|�\XRSkXŜtZF210K?EA02�-7>??1�J2H>5?2E8�|X�̀R\V{iSkVR�Ym|ii\�pR̂|ziRS��qpR̂|ziRS�t�|WWn̂�oo���ZmR̂m|ii\�R̂|ziRS�ZiSTo�SX{\XmŴ�̀R\V{iSkVR�̂�kX��RmmiUkWRzV\VWx�Rk��mikWVkUiÛ�V]nSi}X]XkW�̂x̂WX]�Rk��nSi}V�X̂Vk{iS]RWVik�RziUW�|i��h�â�Rk��̂m|ii\̂�RSX�]XXWVkT�W|X�kXX�̂�i{�̀R\V{iSkVR�̂��V}XŜX�̂WU�XkW�ninU\RWVikZ��|X�pR̂|ziRS��mikWRVk̂�SXniSŴ�W|RW��V̂n\Rx�W|X�nXS{iS]RkmX�i{�h�â_m̂|ii\̂_�Rk��̂WU�XkW�TSiUn̂�ik�R�̂XW�i{�̂WRWX�Rk��\imR\�]XR̂USX̂�Wi�R̂ V̂̂W�Vk�V�XkWV{xVkT�̂WSXkTW|̂_�m|R\\XkTX̂_�Rk��RSXR̂�Vk�kXX��i{�V]nSi}X]XkWZ



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ��+'

-./01�2345�673//8

9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG

HIJK�LMNIKONP�QRSTRSS

U5V�W/>48BB�X4B5B:Y�Z>4:74[;8\]4>B71/>�̂_̀ab̀cdef�gh�ièèdj�klme�kbdnmjo-./01�p0>�673//8qrm�steuvd�stuawo�xyỳbm�ty�znubdẁta�tyym_v�d�{dvw�d__do�ty�mnubdẁtade�vm_{̀bmv�wt�vwunmawv�ty�dee�d|mvh�qrm�gh�ièèdj�klme�kbdnmjo�}gikk~�̀v�etbdwmn�dw�wrm�znubdẁta��̀eed|mà�ièèdjv�dan�c_t{̀nmv�dewm_adẁ{m�emd_àa|�tcct_wuàẁmv�yt_�vwunmawv�̀a�|_dnmv�������rt�d_m�m�cmeemn�y_tj�vbrtte�ǹvw_̀bwvf�btu_w�t_nm_mnf�t_�nmmjmn��dw�c_tjv̀m��otuwrhgwunmawv�rd{m�wrm�tcct_wuàwo�wt�dwwman�̀a�vbrtte�bedvvmv�ỳ{m�ndov�cm_��mm��t_�wrm�vbrtte�devt�c_t{̀nmv�da��anmcmanmaw�gwuno�̂_t|_dj�dv�datwrm_�dewm_adẁ{mh�qrm�vbrtte�v�jd̀ajv̀v̀ta�̀v�wt�b_mdwm�d�vjttwr�dan�vubbmvvyue�w_dav̀ẁta�yt_�vwunmawv�wt�_mwu_a�wt�wrm̀_�rtjm�ǹvw_̀bwvh��dao�vucct_wv�d_m�̀a�cedbm�wt�rmec�b_mdwm�wr̀v�w_dav̀ẁtah�̂��g�vw_dwm|̀mv�d_muvmn�wt�b_mdwm�d�ctv̀ẁ{m�buewu_m�dw�wrm�vbrtteh�kbdnmjb̀�dan�vtb̀t�mjtẁtade�vucct_w�d_m�devt�c_t{̀nmn�wt�m{m_o�vwunmawh��̀men�w_̀cv�d_m�cedaamn�yt_�vwunmawv�wt�m�cet_m�bteem|mdan�bd_mm_�tcẁtavh�gwunmawv�bda�m�cm_̀mabm�emdnm_vr̀c�_temv�wr_tu|r�wrm�jtawreo�gwunmaw�gwd�mrtenm_��mmẁa|v�dan�vm_{̀a|�dv�da�̀awm_{̀m�m_�ta�znubdẁtade�gm_{̀bmv�̂m_vtaame�awm_{̀m�vh��a�dnǹẁta�wt�tcct_wuàẁmv�wt�cd_ẁb̀cdwm�dv�d�|_tucf�mdbr�vwunmaw�nm{metcv�da��aǹ{̀nude��md_àa|�̂eda�wt�jmmw�wrm̀_�vcmb̀ỳb�ammnv�dan�|tdevh�qrm�ceda�̀v�{̀v̀wmnjueẁcem�ẁjmv�wr_tu|rtuw�wrm�omd_h�ir̀em�cd_w�ty�wrm�vwunmaw�v�emd_àa|�ceda�ytbuvmv�ta�dbdnmjb̀�|tdevf�gikk�mavu_mv�wrdw�wrm�bu__̀bueuj�tyym_mn�̀v�dè|amn�wt�vwdwm�vwdand_nvh�a�dnǹẁtaf�gikk�rtenv�r̀|r�vwdand_nv�yt_�̀wv�vwunmawv�vt�wrdw�̀w��̀ee�btaẁaum�wt�_mjd̀a�d�ikgs�kbb_mǹwmn�gbrtteh�iẁr�wrm�steuvd�stuawo��_dabr�ty�ittnedan�stjjuàwosteem|m�lm̀a|�dn�dbmaw�wt�gikkf�vwunmawv�d_m�tyym_mn�wrm�tcct_wuàwo�ty�ma_teèa|�̀a�dn{dabmn�mnubdẁta�btu_vmvf�wruv�b_mdẁa|�nude�ma_teejmaw�tcct_wuàẁmvh�steuvd�stuawo�v�d_j�wt�gbrtte�̂_t|_djf��r̀br�̀v�devt�rtuvmn�dw�wrm�znubdẁta��̀eed|mf�dyyt_nv�wrm�vwunmawv�wrm�tcct_wuàwo�wt��t_��tuwv̀nm�dan�|_t��y_mvr�{m|mwdlemv�yt_�wrmjvme{mv�dan�wrm̀_bdymwm_̀dh�gikk�dwwmjcwv�wt�mavu_m�vwunmaw�vubbmvv�lo�c_t{̀ǹa|�btuavmèa|f�jmdevf�w_davct_wdẁtaf�dbdnmjb̀�dn{̀v̀a|f�dan�d�ctv̀ẁ{m�vbrtte�buewu_mh9/:1;71gh�ièèdj�klme�kbdnmjo�������d_|u_̀wm�gwh��ièèdjvf�sk��������������̂rtam��}���~����������zjd̀e��eàmvma�bbtmhamw]451>471�9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG]451>471�X;?B steuvd�stuawo�xyỳbm�ty�znubdẁtaZ3/:B�X0?.B> }���~���������60[B>4:1B:�B:1 imvwf��b̀rdme�?;48�-��>B55 j�mvw�bbtmhamw�B.541B ���hbbtmhamw673//8�9/:1;71�<:=/>?;14/:�@673//8�AB;>�CDCEFCDCCG673//8�X;?B gh�ièèdj�klme�kbdnmjo61>BB1 �����d_|u_̀wm�gwh941�Y�61;1BY��4[ ièèdjvf�sk�f�����������Z3/:B�X0?.B> }���~���������Z>4:74[;8 �vh��t_̀emm��̀mvmaf�̂_̀ab̀cde��̀_mbwt_�?;48�-��>B55 eàmvma�bbtmhamw�B.541B rwwc������hbbtmhamw9/0:1��]451>471�673//8�@9]6G�9/�B � ���  � �����



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "�+'

-./001�234.5678609�:9;�<644609�-8:83=398�>-./001�?3:5�@A@BC@A@@DEFG�HI�JKLLKMN�OPGL�OQMRGNS�KT�MU�MQQVGRKWGR�MLWGVUMWKXG�TQFYYL�ZVKNMVKLS�RGTK[UGR�WY�TGVXG�G\ZGLLGR�MUR�MW]ZVYNKTG�SŶWFI�EFG�QYNN ÛKWS�TQFYYL�MRNKWT�G\ZGLLGR�TŴRGUWT_VYN�QŶUWS�TQFYYL�RKTWVKQWT̀�HOabcdOaE�VG_GVVMLT̀�MUR�TŴRGUWT�UGGRKU[�M�NYVG�TWV̂QŴVGR�GUXKVYUNGUWI�OLL�QVGRKWT�GMVUGR�MVG�WVMUT_GVMPLG�WY�ẐPLKQ�TQFYYLTI�efHHfgh�HEOEieihEj�kEY�ZVYXKRG�MU�GR̂QMWKYUML�ZVY[VMN�lFKQF�VGKU_YVQGT�WFG�ZFSTKQML̀�GNYWKYUML̀�MUR�KUWGLLGQŴML�[VYlWF�Y_�MLL�TŴRGUWT̀�MT�lGLL�MT�ÛVŴVKU[�M�LYXG�Y_�LGMVUKU[WFMW�ZVYR̂QGT�ZYTKWKXG�MUR�ZVYR̂QWKXG�NGNPGVT�Y_�TYQKGWSIm�nfHfgh�HEOEieihEj�OW�HJOÒ�HŴRGUWT�MVG�GNZYlGVGR�lFKLG�lYVoKU[�WYlMVR�OQMRGNKQ̀�pYLLG[G�MUR�pMVGGV�aGMRKUGTT�ĤQQGTT�qgOrHj�EFG�[YMLT�Y_�WFG�HI�JKLLKMN�OPGL�OQMRGNS�MVG�WFG�_YLLYlKU[js�fNZVYXG�MLL�TŴRGUWTk�MPKLKWS�WY�LGMVÙ�lYVo�KU�M�QYYZGVMWKXG�NMUUGV�lKWF�YWFGVT̀�MUR�T̂QQGGR�KU�TQFYYLIs�ĤQQGTT_̂LLS�VGKUWG[VMWG�TŴRGUWT�KUWY�WFGKV�FYNG̀�ẐPLKQ�TQFYYLIs�b̂KLR�ZGVTYUML�VGTZYUTKPKLKWS�MUR�M�TGUTG�Y_�QYNN ÛKWS�lKWF�WFG�TŴRGUW�PYRSIs�fUTWKLL�M�TGUTG�Y_�WYLGVMUQG�MUR�GNZMWFS�_YV�YWFGVTIs�tVGZMVG�TŴRGUWT�_YV�WFG�lYVLR�Y_�lYVo�MUR�FK[FGV�GR̂QMWKYU uvwx�yz{vx|{}�~������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +�+'

-./012.�324566712.�89�:4;01�<1=16�>-?@556�A1;4�BCBCDBCBEF:4;01�<1=16 G/7814�5H�-./012.IJKLMN�O PJKLMN�PQ RJKLMN�PS PTUVLW�XYKUWWZNYV [
\]̂_�̀ab]_cbd�efghfgg-./012.�324566712.�89�-./012.�:45/i�>-?@556�A1;4�BCBCDBCBEF-./012.�:45/i j14?12.�5H�k5.;6�324566712.lNZLWN PmnoQpqLWN rRn[QpsUYtuvYLKw QnQQpxZNKvyLY�zYMvLY�UK�xWL{|L�sLVv}N QnQQpx{vLY QnQQpuWLy|�UK�x~KvyLY�xZNKvyLY QnQQplvWv�vYU QnQQp�v{�LYvy�UK��LVvYU [PnmQpsLVv}N��L�LvvLY�UK��Lyv~vy�z{WLYMNK QnQQpT�U�UK�qUKN��LyN{ QnQQp��vVN Srn�Qp

-./012.�:45/i�>�.@14F j14?12.�5H�k5.;6�324566712.XY�Wv{���NLKYNK{ Srn�QplU{VNK��U�V� PmnoQp�UZNWN{{ mSnOQpqv�KLYV PmnoQp�UyvUNyUYUZvyLWWw��v{L}LYVL�NM rRn[Qp�V�MNYV{��vV���v{L�vWvVvN{ R[nPQp



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ��+'

-.�/012343015�06�789:131;<4948�=:30:34>?�@953ABCD�EFGH�IJKLMNDO�PCD�QKRRKSMTU�MTQKJVWPMKT�JDRDLWTP�PK�PCD�EPWPD�IJMKJMPXY�ZWOM[�\]JMKJMPX�̂_YD̀UJDD�PK�SCM[C�PDW[CDJO�WJD�WIIJKIJMWPDRX�WOOMUTDN�WTN�QaRRX�[JDNDTPMWRDN�MT�PCD�OabcD[P�WJDW�WTN�QKJ�PCD�IaIMRO�PCDX�WJD�PDW[CMTUd]aIMRO�CWLD�W[[DOO�PK�OPWTNWJNOeWRMUTDN�MTOPJa[PMKTWR�VWPDJMWROd�WTNE[CKKR�QW[MRMPMDO�WJD�VWMTPWMTDN�MT�UKKN�JDIWMJf89Ag8:�=:8h9:94301�912�=i9A8j814�k<Ag00i�l89:�mnmnomnmpq-r4g0:3s94301t-553;1j814 <Ag00iurjv8: <Ag00i=8:A814 w354:3A4urjv8: w354:3A4=8:A814 <4948urjv8: <4948=8:A814xaRRX�\]JDRMVMTWJX�KJ�HRDWJ_�HJDNDTPMWRDN�QKJ�EabcD[P�WTN�EPaNDTP�]RW[DVDTP\IJKIDJRX�WOOMUTDN_yTPDJT�HJDNDTPMWR�zKRNDJO�]JKIDJRX�FOOMUTDNBDW[CDJO�{MPCKaP�HJDNDTPMWRO�WTN�|MOWOOMUTVDTPO�\}MTDQQD[PMLD~�aTNDJ��EEF_HJDNDTPMWRDN�BDW[CDJO�FOOMUTDN��aPeKQexMDRN�\}KaPeKQeQMDRN~�aTNDJ��EEF_�T�TKSTBKPWR�BDW[CMTU�]KOMPMKTO�KPDY�BCD�NWPW�MT�PCMO�PWbRD�MO�bWODN�KT�xaRR�BMVD���aMLWRDTP�\xB�_�OPWPaO���TD�xB��D�aWRO�KTD�OPWQQ�VDVbDJ�SKJ�MTU�QaRR�PMVDd�KTD�xB��[KaRN�WROK�JDIJDODTP�PSK�OPWQQ�VDVbDJO�SCKDW[C�SKJ�����IDJ[DTP�KQ�QaRR�PMVD��FNNMPMKTWRRX��WT�WOOMUTVDTP�MO�NDQMTDN�WO�W�IKOMPMKT�PCWP�WT�DNa[WPKJ�MO�WOOMUTDN�PK�bWODN�KT�ODPPMTU��OabcD[P��WTN�UJWND�RDLDR��FT�WaPCKJM�WPMKT�MONDQMTDN�WO�PCD�ODJLM[DO�PCWP�WT�DNa[WPKJ�MO�WaPCKJM�DN�PK�IJKLMND�PK�OPaNDTPO� �������������f89Ag8:5��34g0r4�/:8281439i5�912��359553;1j8145�k<Ag00i�l89:�mnmnomnmpq-r4g0:3s94301t-553;1j814 urjv8:]DJVMPO�WTN�{WMLDJO|MOWOOMUTVDTPO�W[WTP�]KOMPMKTOBKPWR�BDW[CDJO�{MPCKaP�HJDNDTPMWRO�WTN�|MOWOOMUTVDTPO �������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! !�+'

-./0/12345/0�6/478/.9�:993;1/0�<=2>?@>A3/50��B7?1930/./0�C?=2>?@>@3/50C�=10/.�DEE:F�BE78??5�G/4.�HIHIJHIHKFL103742?. M=NO/.PQRSRTUVWXRS�YRWZ[RQ\�]̂U[_QV̀RS�_T�W�aRQbVU�_Q�cWVdRQe_ZWX�]\\VfTbRTU�ghUV_T\Y_UWX�ĝ Ui_jikVRXS�YRWZ[RQ\ lmno�pqrmosrt-5499�:993;1N/129�BE78??5�G/4.�HIHIJHIHKF L103742?. u/.7/12vV\W\\VfTbRTU\�j_Q�wTfXV\[�eRWQTRQ\�xW�hRQZRTUWfR�_j�WXX�U[R�ZXW\\R\�yVU[�wTfXV\[�XRWQTRQ\�UŴf[U�z{�URWZ[RQ\�U[WU�WQR�bV\W\\VfTRS|}_�ZQRSRTUVWX~�hRQbVU�_Q�ŴU[_QV̀WUV_T�U_�URWZ[�xW�hRQZRTUWfR�_j�WXX�U[R�ZXW\\R\�UŴf[U�z{�URWZ[RQ\�yVU[�T_�QRZ_QS�_j�WT�ŴU[_QV̀WUV_T�U_�URWZ[| lmno�pqrmosrt}_UR��k_Q�b_QR�VTj_QbWUV_T�QRjRQ�U_�U[R��hSWURS�YRWZ[RQ�w�̂VU{��RjVTVUV_T\�yRz�hWfR�WU�[UUh\���yyy�ZSR�ZW�f_d�hS�RR�URWZ[RQR�̂VU{SRjVTVUV_T\�W\h�



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ,�+'

-./01234�5.6678934�:;/10/<10123�=>�?7@2<==AB�/8C�D2E76�F8B26.921=8/0�G/2761/0B�HI9E==0�J7/6�KLKMNKLKKOPQRS�RTU�VWTXY�ZT�[YZ\Y�XYQ�URXR�[QSQ�\W]]Q\XQÛ�_RT̀RSa�bcbdI.<e792 ?7@2<==AB�/8C�D2E76�F8B26.921=8/0�G/2761/0Bf37/6�=>�:C=g21=8 h6=i�G=B2j79782�:C=g21=8k l769782�I2.C782B�m/9A18nDo8�:BB1n87C�5=g3pQRUZTqrsRTq̀RqQtSXu vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQx�wT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu���vTq]ZuY���tr����vTq]ZuY���tr����vTq]ZuY���tr����vTq]ZuY�dc�tr����vTq]ZuY�dd�tr����vTq]ZuY�db�tr��W]X�tUR|XQU��TXQSR\XZ}Q�pQRUQSu�yẀSuQu�dx�
PQu c�

�RXYQVRXZ\u vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQx�wT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu���RXY���tr�����RXY���tr����t]qQzSR�d�tr����t]qQzSR�b�tr����yWTùVQS��RXYQVRXZ\u����~QWVQXSa�tr�
PQu c�

�\ZQT\Q vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQxwT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu�RTU��~����\ZQT\Q��XRTURSUu���\ZQT\Q���tr������\ZQT\Q���tr�����vRSXY�RTU��|R\Q��\ZQT\Q�tr����YauZ\R]��\ZQT\Q�tr������ZW]Wqa�tr�����sZ�Q��\ZQT\Q�tr�
PQu c�

�ZuXWSax�W\ZR]�\ZQT\Q vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQxwT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu��yR]Z�WSTZR��WS]U��ZuXWSa�RTU�~QWqSR|Yâ��QUZQ}R]���vRS]a��WUQST��ZVQu���tr�����ZUU]Q��\YWW]�����ZuXWSa�tr����yR]Z�WSTZR��WS]U��ZuXWSa��ỳ]X̀SQ�RTU�~QWqSR|Ya�tr����������ZuXWSa�tr����v\WTWVZ\u��������~W}QSTVQTX
PQu c�

�WSQZqT�sRTq̀RqQ ��tt�UWQu�TWX�W��QS��WSQZqT�sRTq̀RqQ�yẀSuQu��z̀X�uX̀UQTXu�ZTXQSQuXQU�ZT�XYZu�RSQR�YR}Q�R\\Quu�XW�WWU]RTU�yWVV T̀ZXa�yW]]QqQ�XW�QTSW]]�ZT�ù\Y�\ẀSuQu� PQu c��QR]XY vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQxwT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu���QR]XY�RTU��QSuWTR]��Q]]TQuu PQu c��ZùR]�RTU�QS�WSVZTq�tSXu vUVQTX̀V�wT]ZTQxwT]ZTQ�ỳSSZ\̀]̀V�ZT�R]]�\WSQ�ùz{Q\X�RSQRu�XYRX�Zu�R||SW}QU�XW�VQQX�tx~pQ�̀ZSQVQTXu���TXSWÙ\XZWT�XW��ZùR]�tSXu���tSX��R]���~]QT\WQ PQu c��\ZQT\Q�sRz�v�|VX�~SRUQu��xdb� �rt �rt c��WXQ̂�yQ]]u�[ZXY��rt�}R]̀Qu�UW�TWX�SQ�̀ZSQ�URXR� ���������� �¡�¢£¤¥£¤¤



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! 	�+'

-./001�23.41456�708945408:�389�;1388<9�=>?@0A<><85:BCDEF�GH�IJE�KCLMNMIO�PHDQELIMGH�RGGN�SKPRTU�QVEQCVEF�WO�IJE�XXYZ�KCLMNIMED�[\QEV]MDGVU�XGN\DC�XG\HIO�Ŷ M̂LE�Ĝ�ZF\LCIMGH�VELEM]EF�CH�G]EVCNN�VCIMH_�Ĝ�̀abc̀d�MHFMLCIMH_�IJE�DLJGGNVCIMH_�eCD�fYYgb�Y\V�̂CLMNMIO�VELEM]EF�IJE�VCIMH_�Ĝ�fYYg�MH�CNN�CVECD�EhLEQI�MH�IJE�XCIE_GVO�Ĝ�iMHFGeDjgGGVDjfCIEDj�KEHLEDb klmn�opqlnrqs�tuvwuvv-./001�23.41456�x009�y<?34@�-535z:{DMH_�IJE�|GDI�VELEHINO�LGNNELIEF�KCLMNMIO�PHDQELIMGH�RGGN�SKPRT�FCIC�SGV�E}\M]CNEHITU�QVG]MFE�IJE�̂GNNGeMH_~gEIEV|MHCIMGH�Ĝ�VEQCMV�DICI\D�̂GV�DODIE|D�NMDIEFgEDLVMQIMGH�Ĝ�CHO�HEEFEF�|CMHIEHCHLE�IG�EHD\VE�_GGF�VEQCMVRJE�OECV�CHF�|GHIJ�MH�eJMLJ�IJE�FCIC�eEVE�LGNNELIEFRJE�VCIE�̂GV�ECLJ�DODIE|�MHDQELIEFRJE�G]EVCNN�VCIMH_�ECV�CHF�|GHIJ�Ĝ�IJE�|GDI�VELEHI�KPR�VEQGVI~�gELE|WEV�����-6:5<>�=8:?<.5<9 y3548� y<?34@��<<9<9�389��.5408��3�<8�0@�;1388<9-6:5<>:��fCD��EC�DU�ELJCHMLCNj���XU�[EeEV fGGF=85<@40@��PHIEVMGV�[\V̂CLED fGGF71<38148<::��Y]EVCNN�XNECHNMHEDDU�EDIj�EV|MH�PĤEDICIMGH fGGF�1<.5@4.31��ZNELIVMLCN fGGFy<:5@00>:�20z85348:���EDIVGG|DU[MH�DjKG\HICMHD fGGF-3�<56��KMVE�[ĈEIOU��C�CVFG\D�CIEVMCND fGGF-5@z.5z@31��[IV\LI\VCN�gC|C_EU�GĜD fGGF��5<@831~��NCO_VG\HFj[LJGGNfVG\HFDUiMHFGeDjgGGVDjfCIEDjKEHLED �GGV iJEH�VCMHMH_U�DG|E�LNCDDVGG|�G]EVJECF�VGNN�\Q�FGGVD�QGDE�JC�CVF�̂VG|�G\IDMFE�EOEWVGe�G]EVJCH_DU�IGQ�CHF�WENGe�FGGVIJVEDJJGNFD�CHF�eECIJEV�DECNDb��NDGU�IeG�WCL��eMHFGe�DECND�NEC�b��Ee�MHIEVMGV�CHF�EhIEVMGV��Zg�NM_JIMH_�JCD�WEEH�MHDICNNEFb�GVIJ�eEDI�DMFEeCN��MH�̂VGHI�Ĝ�B\MNFMH_���JCD�NM̂IEF�LC\DMH_�C�IVMQ�JC�CVFb��CMHIEF�VEF�CHF�LC\IMGHEF�Ĝ �̂\HIMN�VEQCMVEFb�A<@311�23.41456�y35<�ECV�CHF�|GHIJ�Ĝ�IJE�|GDI�VELEHI�KPR�VEQGVI~�gELE|WEV�����Y]EVCNN��CIMH_ fGGF klmn�opqlnrqs�tuvwuvv



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! '�+'

-.�/0123�4056789:;5<59�/=27=25>?�/0123�@6A29B989C5DEF�GHIJ�KLMNOPFQ�REF�SMTTMUOVW�OVSMLXYROMV�LFTFNYVR�RM�REF�GRYRF�KLOMLORZ[�\]KOT�ĤEOFNFXFVR�_\LOMLORZ�̀a[;5<59b2c9�<::9::89C5:�_OdFde�JYTOSMLVOY�HQQFQQXFVR�MS�GR]PFVR�\FLSMLXYV̂F�YVP�\LMWLFQQ�fJHHG\\g�GZQRFX�OV̂T]PFQ�REF�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�G]XXYRONF�HQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�QR]PFVRQOV�REF�WFVFLYT�FP]̂YROMV�KMK]TYROMV�YVP�REF�JYTOSMLVOY�HTRFLVYRF�HQQFQQXFVRQ�fJHHQg�SML�iVWTOQE�TYVW]YWF�YLRQjTORFLŶZ�fikHg�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�WONFV�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WEFOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd�lVTZ�FTOWOmTF�QR]PFVRQ�XYZ�KYLRÔOKYRF�OV�REF�YPXOVOQRLYROMV�MS�REF�JHHQd�JHHQ�ORFXQ�YLF�YTOWVFP�UORE�YTRFLVYRF�ŶEOFNFXFVR�QRYVPYLPQe�UEÔE�YLF�TOVnFPUORE�REF�JMXXMV�JMLF�GRYRF�GRYVPYLPQ�fJJGGg�SML�QR]PFVRQ�UORE�REF�XMQR�QOWVOSÔYVR�̂MWVORONF�POQYmOTOROFQad�DEF�JHHG\\�GZQRFX�FV̂MXKYQQFQ�REF�SMTTMUOVW�YQQFQQXFVRQ�YVP�QR]PFVR�KYLRÔOKYROMV�LFo]OLFXFVRQ[�����pd�;8<=59=�-<3<C69c�;088<52B9�@::9::89C5:�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�st@�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WE�FOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd������ud�;8<=59=�-<3<C69c�;088<52B9�@::9::89C5:�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�8<5A98<526:�OV�WLYPFQ�RELFF�RELM]WE�FOWER�YVP�WLYPF�FTFNFVd������vd�q<32r7=C2<�;629C69�w9:5�xq@;wy�<Cc�q@@:�r7=�;629C69�OV�WLYPFQ�SONFe�FOWERe�YVP�MV̂F�OV�EOWE�Q̂EMMT�_OdFde�WLYPF�RFVe�FTFNFVe�ML�RUFTNFad��;@zq�z917=52C{�2C�5A9�|}|}~|}|��;6A773��9<=�4C3>��EFLF�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMVe�kiHQ�UFLF�LFo]OLFP�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�REF�QRYRFUOPF�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQd��EFLF�Y�QRYRFUOPF�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVR�UYQVMR�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMV�SML�REF�kiH�_ML�SML�MVF�ML�XMLF�WLYPF�TFNFTfQg�UOREOV�REF�kiHa�P]F�RM�REF�KYVPFXÔe�kiHQ�UFLF�YTTMUFP�RM�LFKMLR�LFQ]TRQ�SLMX�Y�POSSFLFVR�YQQFQQXFVRREYR�XFR�REF�̂LORFLOY�FQRYmTOQEFP�mZ�REF�GRYRF�hMYLP�MS�iP]̂YROMV�_Ghia�MV��YL̂E�p�e�u�upd�DEF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�UFLF�LFo]OLFP�RM�mF[HTOWVFP�UORE�JH�JJGG�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�HNYOTYmTF�RM�QR]PFVRQ�OV�WLYPFQ�v�RELM]WE��e�YVP�WLYPF�pp��YVP�VOSMLXTZ�YPXOVOQRFLFP�ŶLMQQ�Y�WLYPFe�WLYPF�QKYVe�Q̂EMMTe�ML�POQRLÔR�RM�YTT�FTOWOmTF�QR]PFVRQd41527C:?��MRF�REYR�REF�JHHQ�̂M]TP�MVTZ�mF�YPXOVOQRFLFP�OV�KFLQMV�SMTTMUOVW�EFYTRE�YVP�QYSFRZ�LFo]OLFXFVRQd��S�OR�UYQ�VMR�NOYmTF�SML�REF�kiH�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�REF�JHHQ�OV�KFLQMVUORE�EFYTRE�YVP�QYSFRZ�W]OPFTOVFQ�OV�KTŶFe�REF�kiH�UYQ�POLF̂RFP�RM�VMR�YPXOVOQRFL�REF�RFQRQd�DEFLF�UFLF�VM�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVR�MKROMVQ�YNYOTYmTF�SML�REF�JHHQd�ĜEMMTQYPXOVOQRFLFP�REF�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�G]XXYRONF�HQQFQQXFVRQ�SML�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQe�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQ�REYR�XFFR�REF�Ghi�̂LORFLOYe�ML�Y�̂MXmOVYROMV�MS�mMREe�YVP�REFZ�̂M]TPMVTZ�̂EMMQF�MVF�MS�REF�SMTTMUOVW[GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�lREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQ�XFFROVW�REF�Ghi�̂LORFLOY��MLJMXmOVYROMV�MS�GXYLRFL�hYTYV̂FP�ikH�YVP�XYREFXYRÔQ�Q]XXYRONF�YQQFQQXFVRQ�YVP�MREFL�YQQFQQXFVRQdq7339{9�<Cc�q<=99=�z9<c>?�DEF�KFL̂FVRYWF�MS�QR]PFVRQ�UEM�EYNF�Q]̂ F̂QQS]TTZ�̂MXKTFRFP�̂M]LQFQ�REYR�QYROQSZ�REF�LFo]OLFXFVRQ�SML�FVRLYV̂F�RM�REF��VONFLQORZ�MS�JYTOSMLVOY�YVPREF�JYTOSMLVOY�GRYRF��VONFLQORZe�ML�̂YLFFL�RF̂EVÔYT�FP]̂YROMV�QFo]FV̂FQ�ML�KLMWLYXQ�MS�QR]PZdq@@;//�w9:5�z9:035:�2C�st@�<Cc��<5A98<526:�r7=�@33�;50c9C5:��=<c9:�wA=99�5A=70{A�s2{A5�<Cc��=<c9�s39B9C�5<�2C{�<Cc�67813952C{�<�:5<59�<c82C2:59=9c�<::9::89C5�/9=69C5<{9�7r�;50c9C5:��9952C{�7=�s�699c2C{�5A9�;5<59�;5<Cc<=c;0��965 ;6A773�|}���|}|} ;6A773�|}|}~|}|� �2:5=265�|}���|}|} �2:5=265�|}|}~|}|� ;5<59�|}���|}|} ;5<59�|}|}~|}|�iVWTOQE�kYVW]YWF�HLRQ�j�kORFLŶZ�_WLYPFQ�v���YVP�ppa �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH�YREFXYRÔQ�_WLYPFQ�v���YVP�ppa �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH �jH�MRF[�DEF�u�p��u�u��PYRY�̂FTTQ�UORE��jH�NYT]FQ�OVPÔYRF�REYR�REF�u�p��u�u��PYRY�YLF�VMR�YNYOTYmTF�P]F�RM�REF�Jl����p��KYVPFXÔ�YVP�LFQ]TROVW�Q]XXYRONF�RFQR�Q]QKFVQOMVd�DEFi�F̂]RONF�lLPFL���v��u��UYQ�OQQ]FP�UEÔE�UYONFP�REF�YQQFQQXFVRe�Ŷ M̂]VRYmOTORZe�YVP�LFKMLROVW�LFo]OLFXFVRQ�SML�REF�u�p��u�u��Q̂EMMT�ZFYLd��MRF[�DEF�u�u��u�up�PYRY�̂FTTQ�EYNF��jH�NYT]FQ�mF̂Y]QF�REFQF�PYRY�YLF�VMR�̂MXKYLYmTF�RM�MREFL�ZFYL�PYRY�P]F�RM�REF�Jl����p��KYVPFXÔ�P]LOVW�REF�u�u��u�up�Q̂EMMT�ZFYLd��EFLFREF�JHHG\\�YQQFQQXFVRQ�OV�ikH�YVPjML�XYREFXYRÔQ�OQ�VMR�REF�XMQR�NOYmTF�MKROMVe�REF�kiHQ�UFLF�YTTMUFP�RM�YPXOVOQRFL�TM̂YT�YQQFQQXFVRQd�DEFLFSMLFe�REF�u�u��u�up�PYRY�mFRUFFVQ̂EMMT�ZFYLQ�SML�REF�Q̂EMMTe�POQRLÔRe�QRYRF�YLF�VMR�YV�Ŷ ]̂LYRF�̂MXKYLOQMVd�HQ�Q]̂Ee�OR�OQ�OVYKKLMKLOYRF�RM�̂MXKYLF�LFQ]TRQ�MS�REF�u�u��u�up�Q̂EMMT�ZFYL�RM�MREFL�Q̂EMMT�ZFYLQd���������� �¡�¢£¤¥£¤¤



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-../00�1234�5236743�89�:;.�<=�/46>294�?@A6B�CA@�346>2943�4DE89F�D9>�GAHB72489F�D�34D42ID>H898342@2>�D33233H294��?@D>23�1J@22�4J@A6FJ�:8FJ4�D9>�?@D>2�:72K29��L/GJAA7�M2D@�NONOPNONQR /46>294�?@A6B 1A4D7�:9@A77H294 S6H<2@�12342> 02@G294�12342> 02@G294�SA4�12342> 02@G294�T24�A@�:UG22>2>VWW�XYZ[\]Ŷ __ __ __ __ __\̀abW\ __ __ __ __ __cbW\ __ __ __ __ __Va\defb]�g][eb]�hd�VWb̂ib�jbYek\ __ __ __ __ __V̂eb] __ __ __ __ __lWbfi�hd�Vmdefb]�Va\defb] __ __ __ __ __èWene]h __ __ __ __ __oênb]ef�hd�pbYe]h __ __ __ __ __jbYek\�obqbeeb]�hd�rbfemef�ĝWb][\d __ __ __ __ __sqh�hd�chd\�tbf\̂ __ __ __ __ __uveY\ __ __ __ __ __w]xWêv�p\bd]\d̂ __ __ __ __ __h̀̂Y\d�yhZYv __ __ __ __ __oha\W\̂^ __ __ __ __ __ceWeYbdz __ __ __ __ __Xhfeh\fh]haefbWWz�{êb[kb]Ybx\[ __ __ __ __ __XYZ[\]Ŷ�t\f\eke]x�cexdb]Y�w[ZfbYeh]�X\dkef\̂ __ __ __ __ __XYZ[\]Ŷ�qeYv�{êb|eWeYe\̂ __ __ __ __ __jhY\}�j~s�kbWZ\̂�e][efbY\�YvbY�Yvê�̂fvhhW�[e[�]hY�Y\̂Y�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�Ẑe]x�Yv\��VVXrr�mhd�wpV��jhY\}�{hZ|W\�[b̂v\̂��__��bnn\bd�e]�Yv\�Yb|W\�qv\]�Yv\�]Za|\d�hm�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�ê�Y\]�hd�W\̂ �̂�\eYv\d�|\fbẐ\�Yv\�]Za|\d�hm�̂YZ[\]Ŷ�e]�Yvê�fbY\xhdz�ê�Yhh�̂abWW�mhd�̂YbYêYefbW�bffZdbfz�hdYh�ndhY\fY�̂YZ[\]Y�ndekbfz� ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-../00�1234�5236743�89�:;4<2=;48>3�?@�/46A294�BCD6E�FDC�346A2943�4;G89H�;9A�>D=E72489H�;�34;42I;A=898342C2A�;33233=294�BC;A23�1<C22�4<CD6H<�J8H<4�;9A�BC;A2�J72K29��L/><DD7�M2;C�NONOPNONQR /46A294�BCD6E 1D4;7�J9CD77=294 S6=?2C�12342A 02C>294�12342A 02C>294�SD4�12342A 02C>294�:24�DC�JT>22A2AUVV�WXYZ[\X] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_[̀ aV[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂baV[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂Ù [cdea\�f\Zda\�gc�UVa]ha�iaXdj[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂U]da\ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂kVaeh�gc�Ulcdea\�Ù [cdea\ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_dVdmd\g ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂nd]ma\de�gc�oaXd\g ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂iaXdj[�napadda\�gc�qaedlde�f]Va\Z[c ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂rpg�gc�bgc[�sae[] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂tudX[ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂v\wVd]u�o[ac\[c] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂_g]X[c�xgYXu ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ng̀ [V[]] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂bdVdXacy ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂Wgedg[eg\g̀ deaVVy�zd]aZja\Xaw[Z ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂WXYZ[\X]�s[e[djd\w�bdwca\X�vZYeaXdg\�W[cjde[] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂WXYZ[\X]�pdXu�zd]a{dVdXd[] ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂igX[|�i}r�jaVY[]�d\ZdeaX[�XuaX�Xud]�]euggV�ZdZ�\gX�X[]X�]XYZ[\X]�Y]d\w�Xu[�~UUWqq�lgc�baXu[̀ aXde]��igX[|�zgY{V[�Za]u[]��̂̂��amm[ac�d\�Xu[�Xa{V[�pu[\�Xu[�\Ỳ {[c�gl�]XYZ[\X]�d]�X[\�gc�V[]]��[dXu[c�{[eaY][�Xu[�\Ỳ {[c�gl�]XYZ[\X]�d\�Xud]�eaX[wgcy�d]�Xgg�]̀ aVV�lgc�]XaXd]XdeaV�aeeYcaey�gcXg�mcgX[eX�]XYZ[\X�mcdjaey� ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG�HH�AB0@43�8IB44�7IB.:JI�<;JI7�06@�AB0@4�<14K46�E?/I..1�L40B�MNMNOMNMPF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ Q4B/467�84374@ Q4B/467�D.7�84374@ Q4B/467�27�.B�2=.K4�AB0@4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\X] ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_ ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[R]X̀ab̂Y�cYWâY�d̀�RŜZê�f̂ UagX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[RZâY [[ [[ [[ [[ [[hŜbe�d̀�Rìab̂Y�R]X̀ab̂Y [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\aSajaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kaZĵYab�d̀�l̂UaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[f̂UagX�k̂ m̂aâY�d̀�n̂baiab�cZŜYWX̀ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[omd�d̀�_d̀X�p̂bXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[qraUX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[sYtSaZr�lX̂ ỲX̀Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\dZUX̀�udVUr [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kd]XSXZZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_aSaÛ̀v [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TdbadXbdYd]ab̂SSv�waẐWĝYÛtXW [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�pXbXagaYt�_at̀ ŶU�sWVb̂UadY�TX̀gabXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�maUr�waẐxaSaUaXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[yRU�d̀�̂xdgX�UrX�t̀ ŴX[SXgXS�ZÛYŴ Ẁ�aY�UrX�bdYUXzU�di�UrX�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�id̀�ZbrddSZ�aY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�̂�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�WdVxSX�ŴZrXZ�~[[��aY�UraZ�ÛxSX�mrXY�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aZ�UXY�d̀�SXZZ��XaUrX̀�xXb̂VZX�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aY�UraZ�b̂UXtd̀v�aZ�Udd�Z] ŜS�id̀ZÛUaZUab̂S�̂bbV̀ b̂v�d̀�Ud�j̀dUXbU�ZUVWXYU�j̀aĝbv{�fdUX|�cY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�dYSv�UrX��RRTnn�̂ZZXZZ]XYU��lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�maUr��f}R��ĝSVXZ�aY�̂SS�bXSSZ��]X̂YaYt�UraZ�ÛxSX�aZ�fdU�RjjSab̂xSXid̀�UraZ�ZbrddS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �"�+'

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG�HH�AB0@43�8IB44�7IB.:JI�<;JI7�06@�AB0@4�<14K46�E?/I..1�L40B�MNMNOMNMPF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ Q4B/467�84374@ Q4B/467�D.7�84374@ Q4B/467�27�.B�2=.K4�AB0@4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\X] ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_ ŜX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[R]X̀ab̂Y�cYWâY�d̀�RŜZê�f̂ UagX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[RZâY [[ [[ [[ [[ [[hŜbe�d̀�Rìab̂Y�R]X̀ab̂Y [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\aSajaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kaZĵYab�d̀�l̂UaYd [[ [[ [[ [[ [[f̂UagX�k̂ m̂aâY�d̀�n̂baiab�cZŜYWX̀ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[omd�d̀�_d̀X�p̂bXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[qraUX [[ [[ [[ [[ [[sYtSaZr�lX̂ ỲX̀Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\dZUX̀�udVUr [[ [[ [[ [[ [[kd]XSXZZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[_aSaÛ̀v [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TdbadXbdYd]ab̂SSv�waẐWĝYÛtXW [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�pXbXagaYt�_at̀ ŶU�sWVb̂UadY�TX̀gabXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[TUVWXYUZ�maUr�waẐxaSaUaXZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[yRU�d̀�̂xdgX�UrX�t̀ ŴX[SXgXS�ZÛYŴ Ẁ�aY�UrX�bdYUXzU�di�UrX�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�id̀�ZbrddSZ�aY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�̂�Sdb̂S�̂ZZXZZ]XYU{�fdUX|�lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�WdVxSX�ŴZrXZ�~[[��aY�UraZ�ÛxSX�mrXY�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aZ�UXY�d̀�SXZZ��XaUrX̀�xXb̂VZX�UrX�YV]xX̀�di�ZUVWXYUZ�aY�UraZ�b̂UXtd̀v�aZ�Udd�Z] ŜS�id̀ZÛUaZUab̂S�̂bbV̀ b̂v�d̀�Ud�j̀dUXbU�ZUVWXYU�j̀aĝbv{�fdUX|�cY�b̂ZXZ�mrX̀X�UrX�ZbrddS�̂W]aYaZUX̀XW�dYSv�UrX��RRTnn�̂ZZXZZ]XYU��lsRZ}ZbrddSZ�maSS�jdjVŜUX�UraZ�ÛxSX�maUr��f}R��ĝSVXZ�aY�̂SS�bXSSZ��]X̂YaYt�UraZ�ÛxSX�aZ�fdU�RjjSab̂xSXid̀�UraZ�ZbrddS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �+�+'

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG��AB0@43�8HB44�7HB.:IH�<;IH7�06@�AB0@4�<14J46�E?/H..1�K40B�LMLMNLMLOF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ P4B/467�84374@ P4B/467�D.7�84374@ P4B/467�27�.B�2=.J4�AB0@4�-4J41QRR�STUVWXTYZW[\RW]\RWQ[Ŵ_̀\X�aXV_\X�b̂�QR\Yc\�d\T_eWQY_\XfR\̀c�b̂�Qĝ_̀\X�Q[Ŵ_̀\XZ_R_h_Xbi_Yh\X_̀�b̂�j\T_Xbd\T_eW�i\k\__\X�b̂�l\̀_g_̀�aYR\XVŴmkb�b̂�]b̂W�n\̀WYop_TWqXrR_Yp�jW\̂XŴYZbYTŴ�sbUTpib[WRWYY]_R_T\̂tSb̀_bẀbXb[_̀\RRt�u_Y\Ve\XT\rWVSTUVWXTY�nẀW_e_Xr�]_r̂\XT�qVÙ\T_bX�SŴe_̀WYSTUVWXTY�k_Tp�u_Y\v_R_T_WYwQT�b̂�\vbeW�TpW�r̂\VWxRWeWR�YT\XV\̂V�_X�TpW�̀bXTWyT�bg�TpW�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXT�\V[_X_YTŴWVz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�gb̂�ỲpbbRY�_X�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�\�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXTz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�VbUvRW�V\YpWY�}xx~�_X�Tp_Y�T\vRW�kpWX�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_Y�TWX�b̂�RWYY��W_TpŴ�vẀ\UYW�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_X�Tp_Y�̀\TWrb̂t�_Y�Tbb�Y[\RR�gb̂YT\T_YT_̀\R�\̀ Ù̂\̀t�b̂�Tb�ĥbTẀT�YTUVWXT�ĥ_e\̀tz�dbTW{�aX�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�bXRt�TpW��QQSll�\YYWYY[WXT��jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�k_Tp��d|Q��e\RUWY�_X�\RR�̀WRRY��[W\X_Xr�Tp_Y�T\vRW�_Y�dbT�QhhR_̀\vRWgb̂�Tp_Y�ỲpbbRz ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG��AB0@43�8HB44�7HB.:IH�<;IH7�06@�AB0@4�<14J46�E?/H..1�K40B�LMLMNLMLOF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ P4B/467�84374@ P4B/467�D.7�84374@ P4B/467�27�.B�2=.J4�AB0@4�-4J41QRR�STUVWXTYZW[\RW]\RWQ[Ŵ_̀\X�aXV_\X�b̂�QR\Yc\�d\T_eWQY_\XfR\̀c�b̂�Qĝ_̀\X�Q[Ŵ_̀\XZ_R_h_Xbi_Yh\X_̀�b̂�j\T_Xbd\T_eW�i\k\__\X�b̂�l\̀_g_̀�aYR\XVŴmkb�b̂�]b̂W�n\̀WYop_TWqXrR_Yp�jW\̂XŴYZbYTŴ�sbUTpib[WRWYY]_R_T\̂tSb̀_bẀbXb[_̀\RRt�u_Y\Ve\XT\rWVSTUVWXTY�nẀW_e_Xr�]_r̂\XT�qVÙ\T_bX�SŴe_̀WYSTUVWXTY�k_Tp�u_Y\v_R_T_WYwQT�b̂�\vbeW�TpW�r̂\VWxRWeWR�YT\XV\̂V�_X�TpW�̀bXTWyT�bg�TpW�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXT�\V[_X_YTŴWVz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�gb̂�ỲpbbRY�_X�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�\�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXTz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�VbUvRW�V\YpWY�}xx~�_X�Tp_Y�T\vRW�kpWX�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_Y�TWX�b̂�RWYY��W_TpŴ�vẀ\UYW�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_X�Tp_Y�̀\TWrb̂t�_Y�Tbb�Y[\RR�gb̂YT\T_YT_̀\R�\̀ Ù̂\̀t�b̂�Tb�ĥbTẀT�YTUVWXT�ĥ_e\̀tz�dbTW{�aX�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�bXRt�TpW��QQSll�\YYWYY[WXT��jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�k_Tp��d|Q��e\RUWY�_X�\RR�̀WRRY��[W\X_Xr�Tp_Y�T\vRW�_Y�dbT�QhhR_̀\vRWgb̂�Tp_Y�ỲpbbRz ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �!�+'

-./01�2334335467�8437�943:173�;6�<-2�=>�?7:@467�AB.:C�2334335467�D054E3FG��AB0@43�8HB44�7HB.:IH�<;IH7�06@�AB0@4�<14J46�E?/H..1�K40B�LMLMNLMLOF?7:@467�AB.:C 8.701�<6B.115467 D:5=4B�84374@ P4B/467�84374@ P4B/467�D.7�84374@ P4B/467�27�.B�2=.J4�AB0@4�-4J41QRR�STUVWXTYZW[\RW]\RWQ[Ŵ_̀\X�aXV_\X�b̂�QR\Yc\�d\T_eWQY_\XfR\̀c�b̂�Qĝ_̀\X�Q[Ŵ_̀\XZ_R_h_Xbi_Yh\X_̀�b̂�j\T_Xbd\T_eW�i\k\__\X�b̂�l\̀_g_̀�aYR\XVŴmkb�b̂�]b̂W�n\̀WYop_TWqXrR_Yp�jW\̂XŴYZbYTŴ�sbUTpib[WRWYY]_R_T\̂tSb̀_bẀbXb[_̀\RRt�u_Y\Ve\XT\rWVSTUVWXTY�nẀW_e_Xr�]_r̂\XT�qVÙ\T_bX�SŴe_̀WYSTUVWXTY�k_Tp�u_Y\v_R_T_WYwQT�b̂�\vbeW�TpW�r̂\VWxRWeWR�YT\XV\̂V�_X�TpW�̀bXTWyT�bg�TpW�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXT�\V[_X_YTŴWVz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�gb̂�ỲpbbRY�_X�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�\�Rb̀\R�\YYWYY[WXTz�dbTW{�jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�VbUvRW�V\YpWY�}xx~�_X�Tp_Y�T\vRW�kpWX�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_Y�TWX�b̂�RWYY��W_TpŴ�vẀ\UYW�TpW�XU[vŴ�bg�YTUVWXTY�_X�Tp_Y�̀\TWrb̂t�_Y�Tbb�Y[\RR�gb̂YT\T_YT_̀\R�\̀ Ù̂\̀t�b̂�Tb�ĥbTẀT�YTUVWXT�ĥ_e\̀tz�dbTW{�aX�̀\YWY�kpŴW�TpW�ỲpbbR�\V[_X_YTŴWV�bXRt�TpW��QQSll�\YYWYY[WXT��jqQY|ỲpbbRY�k_RR�hbhUR\TW�Tp_Y�T\vRW�k_Tp��d|Q��e\RUWY�_X�\RR�̀WRRY��[W\X_Xr�Tp_Y�T\vRW�_Y�dbT�QhhR_̀\vRWgb̂�Tp_Y�ỲpbbRz ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �,�+'

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH�II�BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:J=�K;J=7�06A�BC0A4�K14L46�F@/=..1�M40C�NONOPNONQG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�K6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A R4C/467�84374A R4C/467�E.7�84374A R4C/467�27�.C�2>.L4�BC0A4�-4L41STT�UVWXYZV[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]Ŷ _TY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\`_TY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\Ŝ Yabc_Z�dZXb_Z�ea�ST_[f_�g_VbhY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\S[b_Z \\ \\ \\ \\ \\iT_cf�ea�Sjabc_Z�Ŝ Yabc_Z \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]bTbkbZe \\ \\ \\ \\ \\lb[k_Zbc�ea�m_VbZe \\ \\ \\ \\ \\g_VbhY�l_n_bb_Z�ea�o_cbjbc�d[T_ZXYa \\ \\ \\ \\ \\pne�ea�̀eaY�q_cY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\rsbVY \\ \\ \\ \\ \\tZuTb[s�mY_aZYa[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\]e[VYa�veWVs \\ \\ \\ \\ \\lê YTY[[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\`bTbV_aw \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UecbeYceZê bc_TTw�xb[_Xh_ZV_uYX \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UVWXYZV[�qYcYbhbZu�̀bua_ZV�tXWc_VbeZ�UYahbcY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\UVWXYZV[�nbVs�xb[_ybTbVbY[ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\zSV�ea�_yehY�VsY�ua_XY\TYhYT�[V_ZX_aX�bZ�VsY�ceZVY{V�ej�VsY�Tec_T�_[[Y[[̂ YZV�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX|�geVY}�mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�Vsb[�V_yTY�jea�[cseeT[�bZ�c_[Y[�nsYaY�VsY�[cseeT�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX�_�Tec_T�_[[Y[[̂ YZV|�geVY}�mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�XeWyTY�X_[sY[��\\��bZ�Vsb[�V_yTY�nsYZ�VsY�ZŴ yYa�ej�[VWXYZV[�b[�VYZ�ea�TY[[��YbVsYa�yYc_W[Y�VsY�ZŴ yYa�ej�[VWXYZV[�bZ�Vsb[�c_VYueaw�b[�Vee�[̂ _TT�jea[V_Vb[Vbc_T�_ccWa_cw�ea�Ve�kaeVYcV�[VWXYZV�kabh_cw|�geVY}�dZ�c_[Y[�nsYaY�VsY�[cseeT�_X̂ bZb[VYaYX�eZTw�VsY��SSUoo�_[[Y[[̂ YZV��mtS[~[cseeT[�nbTT�kekWT_VY�Vsb[�V_yTY�nbVs��g~S��h_TWY[�bZ�_TT�cYTT[��̂Y_ZbZu�Vsb[�V_yTY�b[�geV�SkkTbc_yTYjea�Vsb[�[cseeT| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �	�+'

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH��BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:I=�J;I=7�06A�BC0A4�J14K46�F@/=..1�L40C�MNMNOMNMPG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�J6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A Q4C/467�84374A Q4C/467�E.7�84374A Q4C/467�27�.C�2>.K4�BC0A4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ[X\]SX^]SXR\X_̀a]Y�bYẀ]Y�c_�RS]Zd]�e]ÙfXRZ̀]YgS]ad�c_�Rh_̀a]Y�R\X_̀a]Y[̀S̀ìYcj̀Zi]Ỳa�c_�k]ÙYce]ÙfX�j]l]̀̀]Y�c_�m]àh̀a�bZS]YWX_nlc�c_�̂c_X�o]aXZpq̀UXrYsS̀Zq�kX]_YX_Z[cZUX_�tcVUqjc\XSXZZ^S̀̀U]_uTcàcXacYc\à]SSu�v̀Z]Wf]YU]sXWTUVWXYUZ�oXaX̀f̀Ys�̂ s̀_]YU�rWVa]ÙcY�TX_f̀aXZTUVWXYUZ�l̀Uq�v̀Z]ẁS̀ÙXZxRU�c_�]wcfX�UqX�s_]WXySXfXS�ZU]YW]_W�̀Y�UqX�acYUXzU�ch�UqX�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�hc_�ZaqccSZ�̀Y�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�]�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�WcVwSX�W]ZqXZ�~yy��̀Y�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�lqXY�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Z�UXY�c_�SXZZ��X̀UqX_�wXa]VZX�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Y�Uq̀Z�a]UXsc_u�̀Z�Ucc�Z\]SS�hc_ZU]ÙZÙa]S�]aaV_]au�c_�Uc�i_cUXaU�ZUVWXYU�i_̀f]au{�ecUX|�bY�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�cYSu�UqX��RRTmm�]ZZXZZ\XYU��krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�l̀Uq��e}R��f]SVXZ�̀Y�]SS�aXSSZ��\X]ỲYs�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�̀Z�ecU�RiiS̀a]wSXhc_�Uq̀Z�ZaqccS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �'�+'

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH��BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:I=�J;I=7�06A�BC0A4�J14K46�F@/=..1�L40C�MNMNOMNMPG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�J6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A Q4C/467�84374A Q4C/467�E.7�84374A Q4C/467�27�.C�2>.K4�BC0A4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ[X\]SX^]SXR\X_̀a]Y�bYẀ]Y�c_�RS]Zd]�e]ÙfXRZ̀]YgS]ad�c_�Rh_̀a]Y�R\X_̀a]Y[̀S̀ìYcj̀Zi]Ỳa�c_�k]ÙYce]ÙfX�j]l]̀̀]Y�c_�m]àh̀a�bZS]YWX_nlc�c_�̂c_X�o]aXZpq̀UXrYsS̀Zq�kX]_YX_Z[cZUX_�tcVUqjc\XSXZZ^S̀̀U]_uTcàcXacYc\à]SSu�v̀Z]Wf]YU]sXWTUVWXYUZ�oXaX̀f̀Ys�̂ s̀_]YU�rWVa]ÙcY�TX_f̀aXZTUVWXYUZ�l̀Uq�v̀Z]ẁS̀ÙXZxRU�c_�]wcfX�UqX�s_]WXySXfXS�ZU]YW]_W�̀Y�UqX�acYUXzU�ch�UqX�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�hc_�ZaqccSZ�̀Y�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�]�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�WcVwSX�W]ZqXZ�~yy��̀Y�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�lqXY�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Z�UXY�c_�SXZZ��X̀UqX_�wXa]VZX�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Y�Uq̀Z�a]UXsc_u�̀Z�Ucc�Z\]SS�hc_ZU]ÙZÙa]S�]aaV_]au�c_�Uc�i_cUXaU�ZUVWXYU�i_̀f]au{�ecUX|�bY�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�cYSu�UqX��RRTmm�]ZZXZZ\XYU��krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�l̀Uq��e}R��f]SVXZ�̀Y�]SS�aXSSZ��\X]ỲYs�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�̀Z�ecU�RiiS̀a]wSXhc_�Uq̀Z�ZaqccS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH��BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:I=�J;I=7�06A�BC0A4�J14K46�F@/=..1�L40C�MNMNOMNMPG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�J6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A Q4C/467�84374A Q4C/467�E.7�84374A Q4C/467�27�.C�2>.K4�BC0A4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ[X\]SX^]SXR\X_̀a]Y�bYẀ]Y�c_�RS]Zd]�e]ÙfXRZ̀]YgS]ad�c_�Rh_̀a]Y�R\X_̀a]Y[̀S̀ìYcj̀Zi]Ỳa�c_�k]ÙYce]ÙfX�j]l]̀̀]Y�c_�m]àh̀a�bZS]YWX_nlc�c_�̂c_X�o]aXZpq̀UXrYsS̀Zq�kX]_YX_Z[cZUX_�tcVUqjc\XSXZZ^S̀̀U]_uTcàcXacYc\à]SSu�v̀Z]Wf]YU]sXWTUVWXYUZ�oXaX̀f̀Ys�̂ s̀_]YU�rWVa]ÙcY�TX_f̀aXZTUVWXYUZ�l̀Uq�v̀Z]ẁS̀ÙXZxRU�c_�]wcfX�UqX�s_]WXySXfXS�ZU]YW]_W�̀Y�UqX�acYUXzU�ch�UqX�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�hc_�ZaqccSZ�̀Y�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�]�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�WcVwSX�W]ZqXZ�~yy��̀Y�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�lqXY�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Z�UXY�c_�SXZZ��X̀UqX_�wXa]VZX�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Y�Uq̀Z�a]UXsc_u�̀Z�Ucc�Z\]SS�hc_ZU]ÙZÙa]S�]aaV_]au�c_�Uc�i_cUXaU�ZUVWXYU�i_̀f]au{�ecUX|�bY�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�cYSu�UqX��RRTmm�]ZZXZZ\XYU��krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�l̀Uq��e}R��f]SVXZ�̀Y�]SS�aXSSZ��\X]ỲYs�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�̀Z�ecU�RiiS̀a]wSXhc_�Uq̀Z�ZaqccS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-./01�23343354678437�943:173�;6�<07=4507;/3�>?�@7:A467�BC.:D�2334335467�E054F3GH��BC0A43�8=C44�7=C.:I=�J;I=7�06A�BC0A4�J14K46�F@/=..1�L40C�MNMNOMNMPG@7:A467�BC.:D 8.701�J6C.115467 E:5>4C�84374A Q4C/467�84374A Q4C/467�E.7�84374A Q4C/467�27�.C�2>.K4�BC0A4�-4K41RSS�TUVWXYUZ[X\]SX^]SXR\X_̀a]Y�bYẀ]Y�c_�RS]Zd]�e]ÙfXRZ̀]YgS]ad�c_�Rh_̀a]Y�R\X_̀a]Y[̀S̀ìYcj̀Zi]Ỳa�c_�k]ÙYce]ÙfX�j]l]̀̀]Y�c_�m]àh̀a�bZS]YWX_nlc�c_�̂c_X�o]aXZpq̀UXrYsS̀Zq�kX]_YX_Z[cZUX_�tcVUqjc\XSXZZ^S̀̀U]_uTcàcXacYc\à]SSu�v̀Z]Wf]YU]sXWTUVWXYUZ�oXaX̀f̀Ys�̂ s̀_]YU�rWVa]ÙcY�TX_f̀aXZTUVWXYUZ�l̀Uq�v̀Z]ẁS̀ÙXZxRU�c_�]wcfX�UqX�s_]WXySXfXS�ZU]YW]_W�̀Y�UqX�acYUXzU�ch�UqX�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�hc_�ZaqccSZ�̀Y�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�]�Sca]S�]ZZXZZ\XYU{�ecUX|�krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�WcVwSX�W]ZqXZ�~yy��̀Y�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�lqXY�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Z�UXY�c_�SXZZ��X̀UqX_�wXa]VZX�UqX�YV\wX_�ch�ZUVWXYUZ�̀Y�Uq̀Z�a]UXsc_u�̀Z�Ucc�Z\]SS�hc_ZU]ÙZÙa]S�]aaV_]au�c_�Uc�i_cUXaU�ZUVWXYU�i_̀f]au{�ecUX|�bY�a]ZXZ�lqX_X�UqX�ZaqccS�]W\Ỳ̀ZUX_XW�cYSu�UqX��RRTmm�]ZZXZZ\XYU��krRZ}ZaqccSZ�l̀SS�iciVS]UX�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�l̀Uq��e}R��f]SVXZ�̀Y�]SS�aXSSZ��\X]ỲYs�Uq̀Z�U]wSX�̀Z�ecU�RiiS̀a]wSXhc_�Uq̀Z�ZaqccS{ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-../00�1234�5236743�89�/:829:2�;<=�.77�/46>2943�?=@>23�A8B2C�D8EF4�@9>�G8EF�/:F<<7�02=:294@E2�<;�/46>2943�H22489E�<=�DI:22>89E�4F2�/4@42�/4@9>@=>/6JK2:4 /:F<<7�LMNOPLMLM /:F<<7�LMLMQLMLN R834=8:4�LMNOPLMLM R834=8:4�LMLMQLMLN /4@42�LMNOPLMLM /4@42�LMLMQLMLNSTUVWTV�XYZ[\V]�̂_�̀_�[W\�aUYa�]Tabbcd efg eh efg ii efg j̀kljebmVn�haV�jopqrjojo�\[m[�TVcc]�sUma�efg�t[cuV]�UW\UT[mV�ma[m�maV�jopqrjojo�\[m[�[ZV�Wbm�[t[Uc[vcV�\uV�mb�maV�wxyz{ipq�|[W\V}UT�[W\�ZV]ucmUWY�]u}}[mUtV�mV]mUWY�]u]|VW]UbWk�haV~�VTumUtV�xZ\VZ�ei�oijo�s[]�U]]uV\�saUTa�s[UtV\�maV�[]]V]]}VWm_�[TTbuWm[vUcUm�_�[W\�ZV|bZmUWY�ZV�uUZV}VWm]��bZ�maV�jopqrjojo�]Tabbc��V[Zk�ebmVn��bZ�[W��jojorjojp�\[m[�TVcc]�sUma�efh�t[cuV]�UW\UT[mV�ma[m�maU]�]Tabbc�\U\�Wbm�mV]m�]mu\VWm]�u]UWY�maV�wggS���STUVWTVk ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �"�+'

-../00�1234�5236743�89�/:829:2�;<�/46=294�>?@6A�>?B=23�C8D2E�F8GH4�B9=�I8GH�/:H@@7�J/:H@@7�K2B?�LMLMNLMLOP/46=294�>?@6A 1@4B7�F9?@77Q294 R6Q;2?�12342= 02?:294�12342= 02?:294�R@4�12342= 02?:294�S24�@?�FT:22=2=UVV�WXYZ[\X] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂[̀abV[ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂cbV[ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂Ua[defb\�g\Zeb\�hd�UVb]ib�̂bXej[ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂U]eb\ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂kVbfi�hd�Uldefb\�Ua[defb\ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂èVeme\h _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ne]mb\ef�hd�obXe\h _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂b̂Xej[�nbpbeeb\�hd�qbfelef�g]Vb\Z[d _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂_ph�hd�chd[�rbf[] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂steX[ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂u\vVe]t�o[bd\[d] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂h̀]X[d�whYXt _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂nha[V[]] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ceVeXbdx _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂Whfeh[fh\haefbVVx�ye]bZjb\Xbv[Z _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂WXYZ[\X]�r[f[eje\v�cevdb\X�uZYfbXeh\�W[djef[] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂WXYZ[\X]�peXt�ye]bzeVeXe[] _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ _̂ĥX[{�̂|_�jbVY[]�e\ZefbX[�XtbX�Xte]�]fthhV�ZeZ�\hX�X[]X�]XYZ[\X]�Y]e\v�Xt[�}UUWqq�lhd�Wfe[\f[~ ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �+�+'

-./00/�1023452.6�7892.:5;4�<-17=�>/;?/.@A�<B23;;6�C0./�DEDEFDEDG=HIJ�KL�KMJ�INOPIJ�NQKIRJ�LS�KMJ�TU�VOWWOQX�YZJW�Y[Q\JX]�̂TVYY_�QN\�KMJ�XLZOWOK]�LS�KMJ�̀KI\JNK̀�aML�QKKJN\�OKb�KMJ�̀[MLLW�MQ̀�IKOWOcJ\�[QRJJR�KJ[MNO[QW�RJ̀LIR[J̀�KL�dRLeO\J�QXIWKOKI\J�LS�LddLRKINOKOJ̀�SLR�[QRJJR�JfdWLRQKOLNU�gLKM�XO\\WJ�̀[MLLW�QN\�MOhM�̀[MLLW�̀KI\JNK̀�MQeJ�KMJ�[MQN[J�KL�JfdWLRJ�Q�eQROJK]�LS�ON\ÌKR]�̀J[KLR̀�LeJR�KMJ�[LIR̀J�LS�KMJORKOXJ�QK�TVYYU�iMJ�̀[MLLW�dRLeO\J̀�jJK�kL[ÌJ\b�TKQ]�kL[ÌJ\�XQKJROQẀ�SLR�̀KI\JNK̀�KL�[RJQKJ�Q�̀LWO\�SLIN\QKOLN�SLR�[QRJJR�JfdWLRQKOLNU�lWJ[KOeJ̀�QN\�MQN\̀mLN�Q[KOeOKOJ̀�QRJ\J̀OhNJ\�KL�LSSJR�Q�RQNhJ�LS�LdKOLǸ�SLR�̀KI\JNK̀U�TKI\JNK̀�MQeJ�KMJ�LddLRKINOK]�KL�hQON�[JRKOSO[QKOLN�ON�TJReTQSJ�QN\�HROeJRǹ�l\I[QKOLN�aMO[M�aOWW�Q̀ Ò̀K�KMJX�ON�ZJONh�dRJdQRJ\SLR�KMJ�aLRW\�LS�aLRoUpN�Q\\OKOLNb�KMJ�kQRX�KL�T[MLLW�qRLhRQXb�QẀL�MLÌJ\�QK�KMJ�l\I[QKOLN�rOWWQhJb�dRLeO\J̀�XIWKOdWJ�LddLRKINOKOJ̀�SLR�̀KI\JNK̀�KL�JfdWLRJ�QhRO[IWKIRJb�̀dJ[OSO[QWW]�MLRKO[IWKIRJb�aOKMsMQN\̀mLNs�Q[KOeOKOJ̀U�iMJ�RQÒJ\�hQR\JN�ZJ\̀�ZIOWK�Z]�̀KI\JNK̀�[LXZONJ\�aOKM�KMJ�XL\JRN�hRJJNMLÌJ�QWWLa�̀KI\JNK̀�KL�hQON�QhRO[IWKIRJ�JfdJROJN[J�aMOWJ�QKKJN\ONh�TVYYU�iMJkQRX�KL�T[MLLW�TKQoJMLW\JR�tJJKONh̀�̀JReJ�Q̀�Q\eÒLR]�[LXXOKKJJ�XJJKONh̀�SLR�KMJ�kQRX�KL�T[MLLWuYhRO[IWKIRJ�qQKMaQ]U�iMJ�pN\ÌKR]�̀J[KLR̀�RJdRJ̀JNKJ\�Z]�KMJ̀J�ON\OeO\IQẀON[WI\J�YhRO[IWKIRJb�gÌONJ̀ �̀v�kONQN[Jb�wJQWKMb�QN\�Y\eQN[J\�tQNISQ[KIRONhU�xQRJJR�kQOR̀b�SOJW\�KROd̀�QN\�hIJ̀K�̀dJQoJR̀�dRLeO\J�̀KI\JNK̀�KMJ�LddLRKINOK]�KL�dQRKO[OdQKJ�ONaLRomZQ̀J\�WJQRNONh�Q[KOeOKOJ̀UiMJ�xLWÌQ�xLINK]�ySSO[J�LS�l\I[QKOLN�ZJhQN�Q�xJRKOSOJ\�zIR̀ONh�Ỳ Ò̀KQNK�̂xzY_�qRLhRQX�WQ̀K�]JQRU��iMJ�dRLhRQX�Ò�LdJN�KL�̀KI\JNK̀�QKKJN\ONh�TVYY�KMQK�QRJ�{|�]JQR̀�LR�LW\JRUTKI\JNK̀�aÒMONh�KL�dIR̀IJ�Q�[QRJJR�ON�KMJ�wJQWKM�xQRJ�SOJW\�QRJ�JN[LIRQhJ\�KL�QKKJN\�QN\�KMJOR�JNRLWWXJNK�Ò�dQO\�Z]�TVYYUTON[J�KMJ�̀KI\JNK�dLdIWQKOLN�QK�TVYY�Ò�KRQǸOJNK�QN\�KMJ�JNRLWWXJNK�̀XQWWb�OK�Ò�\OSSO[IWK�KL�LSSJR�[QRJJR�dQKMaQ]�̀JPIJN[J\�[LIR̀J̀�QN\�KMJRJSLRJb�\OSSO[IWK�KL�MQeJ�dRLhRQX[LXdWJKJR̀U�VMOWJ�xil�[WQ̀ J̀̀�QRJ�QWOhNJ\�KL�xil�tL\JW�xIRRO[IWIX�TKQN\QR\̀b�KMJ�̀KI\JNK̀�JN}L]�KMJ�LddLRKINOK]�KL�dQRKO[OdQKJ�ON�KMJ�sMQN\̀mLNs�WJQRNONh�JNeORLNXJNKU~�������������������-./00/�1023452.6�7892.:5;4�<-17=�>./:525�.:5;4�<B23;;6�C0./�DEDEFDEDG=�0.A9/0 -17�>/;?/.@�>./:525�.:5;4zIXZJR�LS�qIdOẀ�qQRKO[OdQKONh�ON�xil |qJR[JNK�LS�qIdOẀ�KMQK�xLXdWJKJ�Q�xil�qRLhRQX�QN\�lQRN�Q�wOhM�T[MLLW�HOdWLXQ mmqJR[JNK�LS�xil�xLIR̀J̀�KMQK�QRJ�TJPIJN[J\�LR�YRKO[IWQKJ\�gJKaJJN�KMJ�T[MLLW�QN\�pǸKOKIKOLǸ�LS�qL̀K̀J[LN\QR]�l\I[QKOLN mm~�������������������-;9/A0�74/;66@04:�-;@�60:5;4�;���45�0/A5:��;��-.65�;/45.�<�-=�.48�;/�-.65�;/45.�B:.:0��45�0/A5:��<-B�=��8@5AA5;4��0�95/0@04:A�-�-B��-;9/A0��0.A9/0 >0/204:��������{�qIdOẀ�lNRLWWJ\�ON�xLIR̀J̀��JPIORJ\�SLR��xuxT��Y\XÒ̀OLN �U�����{�m�����jRQ\IQKJ̀�VML�xLXdWJKJ\�YWW�xLIR̀J̀��JPIORJ\�SLR��xuxT��Y\XÒ̀OLN �U���~��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ���+'

-./.0�123423.56�7.802�19:3;�79.<4=0>?@A�BCDE�FGHIJKAL�M@A�NHOOHPJQR�JQNHGSTMJHQ�GAOAITQM�MH�M@A�BMTMA�FGJHGJMUV�WM@AG�XYFJO�WYMZHSAL�[XGJHGJMU�\]VXYFJO�HYMZHSAL�JQ�M@A�LŶ_AZM�TGAT�HN�F@ULJZTO�AKYZTMJHQ/̀;3a42b3/�185>3</;�c3.b0>>�d0>.�e0>9;.>�f-<844;�g0/2�hihijhihklm2/n0�o0p0; 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�c492�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n> 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�c3p0�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n> 102<0b./q0�4a�-.9n0b.>�r00.3bq�-3s�4a�-3s�c3.b0>>�-./bn/2n>t uvC uvC uvCw uvC uvC uvCx uvC uvC uvCuHMAV�yYA�MH�M@A�EWz{y|}x�ZGJLJL~�M@A�X@ULJZTO��JMQALL�?ALM�PTL�LYLFAQKAK�KYGJQR�M@A���������}�LZ@HHO�UATG�TQK�M@AGANHGA�QH�KTMT�TGA�GAFHGMAK� ���������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �!�+'

-.�/01213430565253�789:895;<�7283052=�>0?:=?34305@AB�CDEF�GHIJKLBM�NAB�OIPPIQKRS�KROIHTUNKIR�HBPBJURN�NI�NAB�CNUNB�GHKIHKNVW�XUHBRNUP�YRJIPJBTBRN�ZXHKIHKNV�[\W]OOIHNM�NAB�M̂AIIP�LKMNHK̂N�TU_BM�NI�MBB_�GUHBRN�KRG̀N�KR�TU_KRS�LB̂KMKIRM�OIH�NAB�M̂AIIP�LKMNHK̂N�URL�BÛA�M̂AIIP�MKNBabb:85c09593d�e:8�7283052=�>0?:=?34305�f6gh::=�i328�jkjlmjkjjnXUHBRNM�UHB�KRJKNBL�NI�GUHNK̂KGUNB�KR�M̂AIIP�ÛNKJKNKBM�URL�UHB�UPMI�KRJIPJBL�KR�NABKH�MǸLBRNoM�PBUHRKRS�GHISHBMM�UN�NAB�Cp�qKPPKUT�DrBP�D̂ULBTVp�XUHBRN�KRJIPJBTBRN�KR�GUHBRNÎROBHBR̂BMs�tÛ_�NI�ĈAIIP�uKSANs�Y]XvMs�CǸLBRN�CǸLV�@BUT�TBBNKRSMs�wFDX�FITTKNNBB�xBBNKRSMs�URL�NAB�IGGIHǸRKNV�NI�JIP̀RNBBH�KR�NAB�̂PUMMHIIT�UHB�ỳMN�U�OBQ�QUVM�GUHBRNMGUHNK̂KGUNBp�XUHBRN�̂IROBHBR̂BM�rBSKR�UN�NAB�rBSKRRKRS�IO�NAB�M̂AIIP�VBUH�QKNA�UR�KRNU_B�TBBNKRSs�OIPPIQBL�KTTBLKUNBPV�QKNA�CǸLBRN�YRLKJKL̀UPKzBL�wBUHRKRS�XPUR�ZYwX\�TBBNKRSMQAK̂A�NABR�Î^̀H�BJBHV�MK{�QBB_M�URL�U�̂IROBHBR̂B�UONBH�BÛA�SHULKRS�GBHKILp�qABR�GUHBRNM�UHB�̀RUrPB�NI�UNNBRLs�U�OIPPIQ�̀G�TBBNKRS�KM�HBM̂ABL̀PBL�URL|IH�GAIRB�̂UPPM�UHBTULB�NI�̂ITT R̀K̂UNB�NAB�KROIHTUNKIRp�}ITB�JKMKNM�UHB�M̂ABL̀PBL�IR�UR�UM�RBBLBL�rUMKMp�XUHBRN�BRSUSBTBRN�BJBRNM�QBHB�BMNUrPKMABL�NKNPBL�~qB�DHB��UTKPV|]RNHB��UTKPKUp��DNNABMB�BJBRNMs�GUHBRNM�URL�̂ITT R̀KNV�TBTrBHM�UHB�KRJKNBL�NI�GUHNK̂KGUNB�KR�QIH_MAIGM�SBUHBL�NI�GHIJKLB�KROIHTUNKIR�NI�rBNNBH�ABPG�QKNA�NABKH�MǸLBRNvM�BL̀ ÛNKIRp�@HURMPUNKIRURL�KRNBHGHBNUNKIR�UHB�UJUKPUrPB�OIH�NAIMB�GUHBRNM�QAI�LI�RIN�MGBU_�]RSPKMAp�DPP�MǸLBRNM�URL�GUHBRNM�HB̂BKJB�U�CǸLBRN�}URLrII_�UN�NAB�KRKNKUP�KRNU_B�TBBNKRS�ABPL�UN�NABrBSKRRKRS�IO�NAB�M̂AIIP�VBUHp�XUHBRNM�UHB�KRJKNBL�NI�GUHNK̂KGUNB�KR�OKBPL�NHKGM�UPMIp��GGIHǸRKNV�OIH�OBBLrÛ_�IR�AIQ�NI�KTGHIJB�NAB�Cp�qKPPKUT�DrBP�D̂ULBTV�KM�GHIJKLBL�NAHÌSAM̀HJBVM�UM�QBPP�UM�UN�wFDX�CNU_BAIPLBH�xBBNKRSMp�̀ B�NI�NAB�NHURMKBR̂V�IO�NAB�MǸLBRN�GIG̀PUNKIR�U�M̂AIIP�MKNB�̂ÌR̂KP�KM�LKOOK̂̀ PN�NI�TUKRNUKRs�r̀N�QKPP�rB�U�ÒǸHB�OÎ M̀�IO�CqDDp



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �,�+'

-./.0�123423.56�17839�:;</<0=0;.>?@�ABCD�EFGHIJ@K�L?@�MGNNGOIPQ�IPMGFRSLIGP�F@N@HSPL�LG�L?@�ALSL@�EFIGFILTU�VWEIN�XPQSQ@R@PL�YVFIGFILT�Z[U\IQ?�K]?GGN�JFGEGWL�FSL@K̂�SPJ\IQ?�K]?GGN�QFSJWSLIGP�FSL@KD?FGPI]�B_K@PL@@IKR2̀4847.�a/.0�/;b�c2/b7/.34;�a/.0�de472fg0/2�h4i42.�a/.0jk;b3l/.42 -li449�mnopfmnoq -li449�mnoqfmnmn -li449�mnmnrmnmo 3̀s.23l.�mnopfmnoq 3̀s.23l.�mnoqfmnmn 3̀s.23l.�mnmnrmnmo -./.0�mnopfmnoq -./.0�mnoqfmnmn -./.0�mnmnrmnmotFGEGWL�CSL@ uvwxyz {{w{{z {xw|}z uvwxyz {{w{{z {xw|}z }wyyz ~w}yz }wxyz�FSJWSLIGP�CSL@ xZwZyz vvw�yz {yywyyz xZwZyz vvw�yz {yywyyz ~xwZyz ~xw|yz ~uwvyz



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �	�+'

-./01/2345�6/27�89�:210752�-.41;�<=41.>?7/.�@4A4.2�6/27B�<:CA44D�?7/.�EFEFGEFEHB :210752�-.41; I1J87.�4K�:210752L�35�@4A4.2 I1J87.�4K�@4A4.2�-./01/27L @4A4.2�-./01/2345�6/27MNN�OPQRSTPU VV VV VVWSXYNS Z Z Z[Z\YNS VV VV VV]̂ TV_̀TYab Z Z Z[ZMXSàcYT�dTR̀YT�̂a�MNYUeY�]YP̀fS Z Z VVMÙYT Z Z Z[ZZ_NYce�̂a�MgàcYT�MXSàcYT Z Z Z[ZZẀǸh̀T̂ Z Z ZìUhYT̀c�̂a�jYP̀T̂ VV VV VV]YP̀fS�iYkỲ̀YT�̂a�lYc̀g̀c�dUNYTRSa Z Z Zmk̂ �̂a�\ âS�nYcSU Z Z Zop̀PS VV VV VVqTrǸUp�jSYaTSaU Z Z ZŴUPSa�ŝQPp Z Z Zî XSNSUU VV VV VVÔc̀̂ SĉT̂Xc̀YNNb�t̀UYRfYTPYrSR VV VV VVOPQRSTPU�nScS̀f̀Tr�\r̀aYTP�qRQcYP̀̂T�OSaf̀cSU Z Z ZOPQRSTPU�k̀Pp�t̀UYùǸP̀SU Z Z ZŴa�̀TĝaXYP̀̂T�̂T�PpS�ŴQaVsSYa�MRvQUPSR�ŵ p̂aP�xaYRQYP̀̂T�nYPS�yMwxnz{�f̀ÙP�PpS�wtq�MRvQUPSR�ŵ p̂aP�xaYRQYP̀̂T�nYPS�kSu�hYrS�YP�pPPhU|}}kkk[cRS[cY[r̂f}RU}YR}YcràTĝ[YUh[~������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! �'�+'

-./0123�45671877269�5:�;8<=718�>/0<?�@;3.00A�B7C/�DEDEFDEDGH ;8<=718�>/0<? -<9<AC82I7�J1/0AA9718 -./0123�45671877269�JA2K25A7�J1/0AA9718 -./0123�45671877269�-0<18 -./0123�45671877269�LC87MNN�OPQRSTPU V V W XYZ[\S] N̂S _ _ _ _[[Z[` N̂S X X Y X_ZaM]Sbcd̂T�eTRĉT�fb�MN̂Uĝ�ĥ PciS [ [ [ X_ZaMUĉT [ [ [ [Z[jN̂dg�fb�Mkbcd̂T�M]Sbcd̂T [ [ [ [Z[\cNclcTf [ [ [ [Z[mcUl̂Tcd�fb�n̂PcTf W W Y VoZoĥPciS�m̂ p̂cĉT�fb�q̂dckcd�eUN̂TRSb [ [ [ [Z[rpf�fb�̀fbS�ŝdSU [ [ [ [Z[tucPS v v _ Y[Z[wTxNcUu�nŜbTSbU o o o _[[Z[\fUPSb�yfQPu _ _ _ _[[Z[mf]SNSUU o o o _[[Z[OfdcfSdfTf]cd̂NNz�{cÛRîTP̂xSR X X W VYZXOPQRSTPU�sSdScicTx�̀cxb̂TP�wRQd̂PcfT�OSbicdSU _ _ _ _[[Z[OPQRSTPU�pcPu�{cÛ|cNcPcSU a a v Y[Z[}~������~����



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "��+'

-./.0�123423.56�-78449�:93;/.0<=>�?@AB�CDEFGH>I�J=>�KELLEMGNO�GNKEDPQJGEN�D>L>FQNJ�JE�J=>�?JQJ>�CDGEDGJRS�?T=EEL�BLGPQJ>�UVDGEDGJR�WXSVYCGL�IYIC>NIGEN�DQJ>IZVYCGL�>[CYLIGEN�DQJ>IZ�QNH\J=>D�LETQL�P>QIYD>I�EN�J=>�I>NI>�EK�IQK>JR-]̂_0̀ 3̂4̀ �̂/̀a�bc_]9̂34̀ �̂da/./�749907.0a�e0.f00̀�g]95�.824]h8�g]̀0i�0/78�j]99�̂78449�50/2�20̂_07.3k095lm/.0 -78449�nopqrnops -78449�nonotnonp u3̂.237.�nopqrnops u3̂.237.�nonotnonp -./.0�nopqrnops -./.0�nonotnonp?YIC>NIGENI vwxywz yxyyz {yx|}z }xwyz }x~wz yx{yz�[CYLIGENI yxyyz yxyyz yxyyz yxyyz yxy|z yxyyz�EJ>S��QJQ�TELL>TJ>H�HYDGNO�J=>�{y{y�{v�IT=EEL�R>QD�PQR�NEJ��>�TEPCQDQ�L>�JE�>QDLG>D�R>QDI�EK�J=GI�TELL>TJGEN�HY>�JE�HGKK>D>NT>I�GN�L>QDNGNO�PEH>�GNIJDYTJGEN�GN�D>ICENI>�JE�J=>B\����v��CQNH>PGTx-]̂_0̀ 3̂4̀ �̂/̀a�bc_]9̂34̀ �̂j42�-78449��0/2�nops�nono��̀ 95�da/./�749907.0a�e0.f00̀�g]95�.824]h8��0e2]/25i�_/2.3/9�̂78449�50/2�a]0�.4�.80�:���urps�_/̀a0;37lm/.0 -78449�nopsrnono u3̂.237.�nopsrnono -./.0�nopsrnono?YIC>NIGENI yxyyz wx�yz {x~�z�[CYLIGENI yxyyz yxyyz yxy�z�EJ>S�<=>�{yv��{y{y�IYIC>NIGENI�QNH�>[CYLIGENI�DQJ>�HQJQ�QD>�NEJ�TEPCQDQ�L>�JE�EJ=>D�R>QD�HQJQ��>TQYI>�J=>�{yv��{y{y�IT=EEL�R>QD�GI�Q�CQDJGQL�IT=EEL�R>QD�HY>�JE�J=>�B\����v�TDGIGIx�@I�IYT=��GJ�MEYLH��>�GNQCCDECDGQJ>�JE�PQ�>�QNR�TEPCQDGIENI�GN�DQJ>I�EK�IYIC>NIGENI�QNH�>[CYLIGENI�GN�J=>�{yv��{y{y�IT=EEL�R>QD�TEPCQD>H�JE�EJ=>D�IT=EEL�R>QDIx���������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "��+'

-./012/342/�526�780.9/342/�:;�-<.612<�=>4.0�?-@A449�B15>�CDCDECDCFG -<.612<�=>4.0 -./012/342/�H5<1 780.9/342/�H5<1IJJ�KLMNOPLQ R RSOTUJO R RVUJO R RWXPYZ[PU\] R RITO\[̂UP�_PN[UP�X\�IJUQ̀U�WUL[aO R RIQ[UP R RZJÛ �̀X\�Ib\[̂UP�ITO\[̂UP R RS[J[c[PX R Rd[QcUP[̂�X\�eUL[PX R RWUL[aO�dUfU[[UP�X\�gÛ[b[̂�_QJUPNO\ R RhfX�X\�VX\O�iÛOQ R Rjk[LO R RlPmJ[Qk�eOU\PO\Q R RSXQLO\�nXMLk R RdXTOJOQQ R RKX̂[XÔXPXT[̂UJJ]�o[QUNaUPLUmON R RKLMNOPLQ�iÔO[a[Pm�V[m\UPL�lNM̂UL[XP�KO\a[̂OQ R RKLMNOPLQ�f[Lk�o[QUp[J[L[OQ R R qrst�uvwrtxwy-@A449�-5z1<;�{952�?-@A449�B15>�CDCF|CDCCGhkO�}XTc\OkOPQ[aO�K̂kXXJ�KUbOL]�gJUP�bX\�~R~��fUQ�Ucc\XaON�XP�SOp\MU\]�~���~R~���hkO�~R~�Y~~�K̂kXXJ�KUbOL]�gJUP�[Q�Q̂kONMJON�LX�pO�N[Q̂MQQON�UPN�\ÔXTTOPNON�̂kUPmOQTUNO�XP��UPMU\]�~���~R~~���cNULOQ�LX�LkO�QUbOL]�cJUP�[P̂JMN[Pm�}��_oY���KUbOL]�g\XLX̂XJQ�U\O�pO[Pm�UNNON��hkO�QUbOL]�cJUP�[P̂JMNOQ�̂X\O�[PbX\TUL[XP�\OmU\N[Pm�LkO�Q̂kXXJ��[LQĴ[TULO��UPN�LkO�NOTXm\Uck[̂Q�Xb�LkO�Q̂kXXJ��_P�UNN[L[XP��LkO�̀O]�OJOTOPLQ�Xb�LkO�cJUP�[P̂JMNO����g\X̂ONM\OQ���g\ÛL[̂OQ����h\U[P[Pm���g\OcU\UL[XP���}XTTMP[̂UL[XP���eX̂ ǸXfPQ����KkOJLO\Y[PYcJÛO����laÛMUL[XPQ���S[\O�o\[JJQ����ÎL[aO�KkXXLO\�K[LMUL[XPQ����}k[JN�IpMQO�iOcX\L[Pm�g\X̂ONM\OQ����lU\Lk�MÙOQ����KMQcOPQ[XP�l�cMJQ[XP�gXJ[̂[OQ����o[Q̂\[T[PUL[XP�gXJ[̂[OQ����KO�MUJ�dU\UQQTOPL�gXJ[̂[OQ����ZMJJ][Pm�g\OaOPL[XP�����P[bX\T�}XTcJU[PL�g\X̂ONM\OQ����g\XpJOT�iOQXJML[XP����o\OQQ�}XNO����}UTcMQ�_Pm\OQQ�UPN�lm\OQQ����K̂kXXJ�o[Q̂[cJ[PO����KMccX\L[Pm�VOPLUJ�dOUJLk�WOONQ qrst�uvwrtxwy��������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "��+'

-.�/0123�4567�89:;3<=08;9>?@�ABCDEFGHADB�AB�H?AI�I@JHADB�AI�E@KLAE@M�HD�N@�AB�H?@�OPQR�NLH�AI�BDH�ABJSLM@M�AB�H?@�IHGH@�TEADEAHA@I�CDE�URVVW5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2�=9]�7Z=[[�48\2�-8[038̂_08;9�̀aZ2<290=3bc�4d1;;Z�e2=3�fghijfghkl3=]2�m2X2Z 5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2 n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ohpfg n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ofhpqf n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�qqrs tWtt t t tu tWtt t t tv tWtt t t tw tWtt t t tx tWtt t t ty tWtt t t tz tWtt t t t{H?@E|| tWtt t t t|�}LFN@E�DC�JSGII@I�ABMAJGH@I�?D~�FGB��JSGII@I�CGSS�ABHD�@GJ?�IA�@�JGH@�DE���G�EGB�@�DC�HDHGS�IHLM@BHI�T@E�JSGII�W||��{H?@E��JGH@�DE��AI�CDE�FLSHA��EGM@�S@�@S�JSGII@IW5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2�=9]�7Z=[[�48\2�-8[038̂_08;9�̀aZ2<290=3bc�4d1;;Z�e2=3�fghkjfgfgl3=]2�m2X2Z 5X23=Y2�7Z=[[�48\2 n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ohpfg n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�ofhpqf n_< 2̂3�;:�7Z=[[2[�qqrs tWtt t t tu tWtt t t tv tWtt t t tw tWtt t t tx tWtt t t ty tWtt t t tz tWtt t t t{H?@E|| tWtt t t t|�}LFN@E�DC�JSGII@I�ABMAJGH@I�?D~�FGB��JSGII@I�CGSS�ABHD�@GJ?�IA�@�JGH@�DE���G�EGB�@�DC�HDHGS�IHLM@BHI�T@E�JSGII�W||��{H?@E��JGH@�DE��AI�CDE�FLSHA��EGM@�S@�@S�JSGII@IW



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ""�+'

-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@A4/B/9<10CD�6EF??4�G/10�HIHIJHIHKL01:/�M/./4 -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHI N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHKQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRST UVUU U U UW UVUU U U UX UVUU U U UY UVUU U U UZ UVUU U U U[ UVUU U U U\ UVUU U U U]̂_̀abb UVUU U U Ub�cdef̀a�gh�ijkll̀l�mnomik̂̀ l�_gp�eknq�ijkll̀l�hkjj�mn̂g�̀ki_�lmr̀�ik̂̀ sgaq�tk�akns̀�gh�̂ĝkj�l̂dòn̂l�ùa�ijkllvVbb�w]̂_̀aw�ik̂̀ sgaq�ml�hga�edĵmxsakò�j̀ỳj�ijkll̀lV-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIKz{HIK|D6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml_ YVUU � U U�k̂_ ZVUU Z U U�im̀nì YVUU Z U U�gimkj��im̀nì YVUU � U Ub�cdef̀a�gh�ijkll̀l�mnomik̂̀ l�_gp�eknq�ijkllaggel�hkjj�mn̂g�̀ki_�lmr̀�ik̂̀ sgaq�tk�akns̀�gh�̂ĝkj�l̂dòn̂l�ùa�ijkllaggevV��̂�̂_̀�l̀ignokaq�li_ggj�j̀ỳj��̂_ml�mnhgaek̂mgn�ml�àugầofq�ldf�̀î�kàk�ak̂_̀a�̂_kn�sakò�j̀ỳjV-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIK|{HIHID6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml_ XVUU WU U U�k̂_ XVUU � U U�im̀nì XVUU [ U U�gimkj��im̀nì XVUU � U Ub�cdef̀a�gh�ijkll̀l�mnomik̂̀ l�_gp�eknq�ijkllaggel�hkjj�mn̂g�̀ki_�lmr̀�ik̂̀ sgaq�tk�akns̀�gh�̂ĝkj�l̂dòn̂l�ùa�ijkllaggevV��̂�̂_̀�l̀ignokaq�li_ggj�j̀ỳj��̂_ml�mnhgaek̂mgn�ml�àugầofq�ldf�̀î�kàk�ak̂_̀a�̂_kn�sakò�j̀ỳjV-./012/�34155�678/�19:�34155�678/�;75<07=><7?9�@6/E?9:10CD�@6EF??4�G/10�HIHIJHIHKD6>=}/E< -./012/�34155�678/ N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PKQHH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�PHRQRH N>B=/0�?O�34155/5�RRS~nsjml_ XVUU \ U U�k̂_ XVUU Z U U�im̀nì WVUU Z U U�gimkj��im̀nì WVUU [ U U���������������������b�cdef̀a�gh�ijkll̀l�mnomik̂̀ l�_gp�eknq�ijkllaggel�hkjj�mn̂g�̀ki_�lmr̀�ik̂̀ sgaq�tk�akns̀�gh�̂ĝkj�l̂dòn̂l�ùa�ijkllaggevV��̂�̂_̀�l̀ignokaq�li_ggj�j̀ỳj��̂_ml�mnhgaek̂mgn�ml�àugầofq�ldf�̀î�kàk�ak̂_̀a�̂_kn�sakò�j̀ỳjV



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "+�+'

-./01�12�345067�/1�89.:;<09�=14>7;61?�@A9B116�C;.?�DEDEFDEDGHI0/6; -./01JKLMNO�PQ�RSTUVWMS�XQKYOVNQZ[ \]̂_̀abc�defacgfh�ijijkk[�lYV�mKNN�PMWV�VnKMoTNVYP�pqrst�VnKTNO�QYV�OPTmm�WVWuVZ�vQZwMYx�mKNN�PMWVy�QYV�qrs�SQKNU�TNOQ�ZVLZVOVYP�PvQ�OPTmm�WVWuVZO�vzQ�VTSz�vQZw�{\�LVZSVYP�Qm�mKNN�PMWV]A/4:;>/�A4551?/�A;?|09;7�A/.22�@A9B116�C;.?�DEDEFDEDGHI0/6; }4<~;?�12��I���8770�>;:�/1�A9B116XQKYOVNQZ�pRSTUVWMS���QSMTN��VzToMQZTN�QZ�XTZVVZ��VoVNQLWVYPt \]̂_�MuZTZ���VUMT�rVTSzVZ�p�MuZTZMTYt \]\\�MuZTZ���VUMT��VZoMSVO��PTmm�pJTZTLZQmVOOMQYTNt \]\\JO�SzQNQxMOP \]\\�QSMTN��QZwVZ \]\\�KZOV \]\\�LVVSz��TYxKTxV��VTZMYx��LVSMTNMOP \]\\�VOQKZSV��LVSMTNMOP�pYQY�PVTSzMYxt \]\\lPzVZ \]�\ àbc�defacgfh�ijijkk[�lYV�mKNN�PMWV�VnKMoTNVYP�pqrst�VnKTNO�QYV�OPTmm�WVWuVZ�vQZwMYx�mKNN�PMWVy�QYV�qrs�SQKNU�TNOQ�ZVLZVOVYP�PvQ�OPTmm�WVWuVZO�vzQ�VTSz�vQZw�{\�LVZSVYP�Qm�mKNN�PMWV]��5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506�.>:�A9B116�A0/;�I;.9B;?�A.6.?0;7�@�079.6�C;.?�DEG�FDEDEH�;|;6 I1/.6���5;>:0/4?;7�3;?34506 ��5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506@-;7/?09/;:H ��5;>:0/4?;7�3;?�34506@�>?;7/?09/;:H 8|;?.�;�I;.9B;?A.6.?��SzQQN��MPV �̂\���]�� �\]\\ �̂\���]�� �{_̂��]̂��MOPZMSP ��R ��R �̂\���]�� �{_̂��]̂�JVZSVYP��MmmVZVYSV����SzQQN��MPV�TYU�MOPZMSP ��R ��R \]\\� \]\\��PTPV ��R ��R ��__�]�� ��JVZSVYP��MmmVZVYSV����SzQQN��MPV�TYU��PTPV ��R ��R �{]��� �_�]���àbc�defacgfh�ij��j���QPV �XVNNO�vMPz���R�oTNKVO�UQ�YQP�ZVnKMZV�UTPT]



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "��+'

-./01�23�40567801�9:;<0<�=9718>?�@0>5�ABABCABADEFGHIJKL�LHGMN�GKM�OPJQQ�QNRNQO�ST�NGUV�OWXMNKW�GW�WVN�YZ�[JQQJG\�]̂NQ�]UGMN\I�HN_XJHN�WVGW�WVN�WNGUVNH�MNRNQS̀�JKMJRJMXGQJaNM�QNGHKJKL�S̀ S̀HWXKJWJNOZ�bVN�cKMJRJMXGQJaNM�dNGHKJKLeQGKO�fcdegOh�GHN�UHJWJUGQ�JK�̀HSRJMJKL�G�UVGQQNKLJKL�GKM�HNQNRGKW�NMXUGWJSK�UXOWS\JaNM�TSH�NGUV�JKMJRJMXGQ�OWXMNKWZ�bVN�cde�JO�HNRJNiNM�NRNHI�OJj�iNNPO�iJWV�OWXMNKWO�GKM�̀GHNKWOZkK�G�\SKWVQI�̂GOJOl�OWGTT�\NNWO�iJWV�JKMJRJMXGQ�OWXMNKWO�WS�HNRJNi�̀HSLHNOO�WSiGHMO�LHGMXGWJSK�GKM�WS�\SMJTI�cdeOZ�mXHWVNH\SHNl�G�̀GHNKWnWNGUVNHnOWXMNKW�USKTNHNKUN�JO�VNQM�GWWVN�NKM�ST�NGUV�LHGMJKL�̀NHJSM�WS�HNRJNi�̀HSLHNOO�GKM�LSGQO�GUUS\ Q̀JOVNMZ�bVN�UQGOOHSS\�WNGUVNH�\GJKWGJKO�X̀MGWNM�UHNMJW�HǸSHWO�TSH�OWXMNKWgO�̀HSLHNOO�GKM�̀HSRJMNOLHGMXGWJSK�OWGWXO�HǸSHWO�WS�OWXMNKWO�USKOJOWNKWQIZ]�USXKONQSH�JO�̀HSRJMNM�WS�Y[]]�OWXMNKWO�TSH�GUGMN\JU�GO�iNQQ�GO�OSUJSoN\SWJSKGQ�OX̀ S̀HWZ�bVN�USXKONQSH�̀HSRJMNO�X̀MGWNMp�qorNGH�eQGKOp�GW�WVN�NKM�ST�NGUV�ON\NOWNH�WS�NGUVOWXMNKW�WS�MJOUXOO�USXHON�HN_XJHN\NKWO�TSH�LHGMXGWJSK�GKM�TXWXHN�̀QGKOZ�bVN�USXKONQSH�GQOS�̀HSRJMNO�SKNoSKoSKN�OX̀ S̀HW�TSH�NGUV�Y[]]�OWXMNKWZbVN�WNGUVNH�GKM�̀HJKUJ̀GQ�iSHP�USQQĜSHGWJRNQI�WS�JKMJRJMXGQJaN�NGUV�OWXMNKWgO�QNGHKJKL�̀QGK�̂GONM�SK�NRGQXGWJSK�ST�WHGKOUHJ̀WOl�OPJQQ�QNRNQl�QNGHKJKL�\SMGQJWJNO�GKM�JKWNHNOWOZYWXMNKWO�VGRN�GUUNOO�WS�sM\NKWX\l�GK�SKQJKN�UXHHJUXQX\�WVGW�̀HSRJMNO�JKOWHXUWJSK�GW�GQQ�QNRNQO�GKM�̀HSTJUJNKUJNOZ�bVN�WNGUVNH�UGK�̂QNKM�JKOWHXUWJSK�OS�WVGW�OWXMNKWO�UGK�XON�̂SWVWNUVKSQSLI�GKM�WHGMJWJSKGQ�JKOWHXUWJSKGQ�\GWNHJGQO�WS�\NNW�WVNJH�QNGHKJKL�KNNMOZ�]K�cKMǸNKMNKW�YWXMI�k̀ WJSK�JO�GRGJQĜQN�WS�OWXMNKWO�iJOVJKL�WS�US\ Q̀NWN�WVNJH�USXHON�iSHPSXWOJMN�ST�WVN�MGJQI�UQGOOHSS\�ONWWJKLZ�WVN�cKMǸNKMNKW�YWXMI�eHSLHG\�̂NLJKO�iJWV�G�USKTNHNKUN�̂NWiNNK�WVN�WNGUVNHl�OWXMNKWl�̀GHNKWl�GKM�GM\JKJOWHGWSH�WS�MNWNH\JKN�iVNWVNHWVJO�̀QGUN\NKW�iJQQ�̂N�NTTNUWJRN�TSH�WVN�OWXMNKWZ��]�USKWHGUW�JO�UHNGWNMl�iNNPQI�UVNUPoJKO�GHN�NOWĜQJOVNM�GKM�RJOJWO�WS�WVN�USKWHGUW�WS�MNWNH\JKN�OWXMNKW�OXUUNOO�JO�MSKN�THN_XNKWQIZtXN�WS�ukFcto�vw�YVNQWNHoJKoeQGUN�kHMNHO�JK�xGHUV�yzyzl�GQQ�OWXMNKWO�iNHN�̀HSRJMNM�MNRJUNO�GKM�cKWNHKNW�USKKNUWJRJWIZ�bVNON�MNRJUNO�GHN�OWJQQ�̂NJKL�XONM�̂I�OWXMNKWO�WS�USKWJKXNWS�LGJK�UHNMJWO�GKM�iSHP�THS\�VS\N�iVNK�OUVSSQ�JO�KSW�JK�ONOOJSKZ {|}~����|~�����������-0>8�05�>;<��<�7;71�5>�760�4>?>5701�=9718>?�@0>5�ABD��ABABE�>�0�25. �71�578����2:;� 4�>�0��605>�0�925��71�578�1��;�4>�0��>�0�25.�NLJKKJKL�bNGUVNH�YGQGHI �q�qz�Zzz ooxJMo�GKLN�bNGUVNH�YGQGHI ��yz��Zzz oo�JLVNOW�bNGUVNH�YGQGHI ����qyZzz oo]RNHGLN�eHJKUJ̀GQ�YGQGHI�fsQN\NKWGHIh �zZzz oo]RNHGLN�eHJKUJ̀GQ�YGQGHI�fxJMMQNh �w��z�Zzz oo]RNHGLN�eHJKUJ̀GQ�YGQGHI�f�JLVh �w��z�Zzz ooYX̀NHJKWNKMNKW�YGQGHI �v�yq��Zzz ooeNHUNKW�ST��XMLNW�TSH�bNGUVNH�YGQGHJNO zZzz� ooeNHUNKW�ST��XMLNW�TSH�]M\JKJOWHGWJRN�YGQGHJNO zZzz� oomSH�MNWGJQNM�JKTSH\GWJSK�SK�OGQGHJNOl�ONN�WVN�uts�uNHWJTJUGWNM�YGQGHJNO����NKNTJWO�iN̂�̀GLN�GW�VWẀO�nniiiZUMNZUGZLSRnMOnTMnUOnZ
{|}~����|~���



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "!�+'

-./0123.�450236317�8-49�:;<=>3>�8?2@;;5�A30=�BCBCDBCBE943=2317�;F�?7<.317>�G1�-4�:;<=>3>�HIHHJ?<KL327 M<6K3=�;F�-4�:;<=>3>�NFF3=3.OPQRSTUVW�XYZV[YV H\[]̂Z_̀ HaZ[V�b[c�dVWeQWRZ[]�fWU_ HaQWVZ][�gb[]Tb]V HhbÙVRbUZY_ HXYZV[YV HXQYZb̂�XYZV[YV HiQUb̂�fd�PQTW_V_�jeeVWVck HIHHJ lmno�pqrmosrt�uvwxvwwk�y V̀WV�ÙVWV�bWV�_UTcV[U�YQTW_V�V[WQ̂̂RV[U_�Qe�bU�̂Vb_U�Q[V�_UTcV[UI4=;F3>>G;105�z3/35;{6317 |30><=3 BCE}~BCBC BCBC�BCBE BCBE~BCBB�TR�VW�Qe�_ỲQQ̂�cb�_�cVcZYbUVc�UQ�XUbee��V�V̂QSRV[U�b[c�PQ[UZ[TQT_��RSWQ�VRV[U � � �



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ",�+'

-../0.1234�5678�9:;�<=<9;�>?@�AB7CDEF4CB�G>B>@�HEBFI�ED�JI6KB>CE4�LGHJM�I@>@FNC4@I�>?B>�>?@�AB7CDEF4CB�O@PBF>N@4>�ED�JI6KB>CE4�LAOJM�QC77�6R@�>?@�GSTA�U@V�SPP7CKB>CE4�BR�>?@�N@K?B4CRN�>EKE4I6K>�B�E4@W>CN@�IB>B�KE77@K>CE4�ED�>?@�XJSW7@Y@7�BZZF@ZB>@�>@R>�F@R67>R�ED�B77�RK?EE7[R�7EKB7�BRR@RRN@4>R�BINC4CR>@F@I�I6FC4Z�>?@�<=<=\<=<9�RK?EE7�8@BF�C4�EFI@F�>E�N@@>�>?@D@I@FB7�JY@F8�G>6I@4>R�G6KK@@IR�SK>�LJGGSM�F@PEF>C4Z�F@]6CF@N@4>�DEF�>?@�XEKB7�JI6KB>CE4B7�SZ@4K8�SKKE64>BVC7C>8�T@PEF>�ABFIR�LXSTARM̂�JBK?�7EKB7�@I6KB>CE4B7�BZ@4K8�LXJSM�CR�F@RPE4RCV7@�DEF�PF@PBFC4Z�B4I�PER>C4Z�>?@CF�B446B7�XSTA�C4�BKKEFIB4K@�QC>?�>?@�D@I@FB7�JGGŜ�SR�B�KE6F>@R8;�>?@�AOJ�PF@PBF@R�B4I�PER>R�>?@XSTAR�E4�V@?B7D�ED�B77�XJSR̂�3478�DEF�>?@�<=<=\<=<9�RK?EE7�8@BF�B4I�>?@�<=<=\<=<9�XSTAR;�XJSR�BF@�F@]6CF@I�>E�F@PEF>�>?@CF�BZZF@ZB>@�7EKB7�BRR@RRN@4>R�>@R>�F@R67>R�B>�>?@�XJSW7@Y@7�>E�>?@�AOJ�V8�PEP67B>C4Z>?@�>BV7@R�V@7EQ�YCB�>?@�GSTA�U@V�SPP7CKB>CE4̂�_?@R@�IB>B�QC77�V@�6R@I�>E�N@@>�>?@�XJSR[�D@I@FB7�F@]6CF@N@4>�DEF�>?@CF�XSTAR̂�̀E>@�>?B>�C>�CR�>?@�F@RPE4RCVC7C>8�ED�>?@�RK?EE7�B4I�XJS>E�@4R6F@�>?B>�B77�R>6I@4>�PFCYBK8�B4I�R6PPF@RRCE4�F67@R�BF@�C4�P7BK@�Q?@4�F@PEF>C4Z�IB>B�C4�_BV7@R�a�B4I�:�C4�>?@�SII@4I6N;�BR�BPP7CKBV7@̂�_?@�>BV7@R�V@7EQ�BF@�4E>�PBF>�ED�>?@�GHJ�BPPFEY@I�<=<=\<=<9�GSTA�>@NP7B>@�V6>�FB>?@F�BF@�>?@�N@K?B4CRN�V8�Q?CK?�>?@R@�F@]6CF@I�IB>B�QC77�V@�KE77@K>@I�DFEN�XJSR̂�bEF�P6FPER@R�ED�>?@�XSTA�B4I�>?@�DE77EQC4Z�>BV7@R;�B4�XJS�CR�I@DC4@I�BR�B�RK?EE7�ICR>FCK>;�B�KE64>8�EDDCK@�ED�@I6KB>CE4;�EF�B�ICF@K>�D64I@I�K?BF>@F�RK?EE7̂�



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "	�+'

-./0-1213�4//566�7189�:18;398�<=�.-/�>?�59;@1=9�ABC;D��ECB�89;@1=98�9FG<=H�F=@�ICJD319<=H�F�89F910F@J<=<891B1@�F88188J1=9�ABF@18�7KB11�9KBC;HK�.<HK9�F=@�ABF@1�.3121=�L5IKCC3�M1FB�NONOPNONQR59;@1=9�ABC;D 7C9F3�.=BC33J1=9 S;J>1B�71891@ 61BI1=9�71891@ 61BI1=9�SC9�71891@ 61BI1=9�T19�CB�.UI11@1@VWXYZ[\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]\̂_ à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]b à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]X_\cZd̀e�fe[Z̀e�gc�Xàhì�j̀ kZl\ m m m m mXhZ̀e m m m m mnàdi�gc�XocZd̀e�X_\cZd̀e ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ẐaZpZeg m m m m mqZhp̀eZd�gc�V̀kZeg ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]j̀kZl\�q̀ ỲZZ̀e�gc�r̀dZoZd�fhàe[\c m m m m msYg�gc�bgc\�t̀d\h m m m m muvZk\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]WewaZhv�V\̀ce\ch ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ĝhk\c�xgykv m m m m mqg_\a\hhbZaZk̀cz m m m m m{gdZg\dgeg_Zd̀aaz�|Zh̀[l̀ek̀w\[ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�t\d\ZlZew�bZwc̀ek�W[yd̀kZge�{\clZd\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�YZkv�|Zh̀}ZaZkZ\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]jgk\~�j�s�l̀ay\h�Ze[Zd̀k\�kv̀k�kv\�hdvggah�Ze�kvZh�VWX�[Z[�egk�k\hk�hky[\ekh�yhZew�kv\��XX{rr�ogc�WVX��jgk\~�|gy}a\�[̀hv\h��]]��̀pp\̀c�Ze�kv\�k̀}a\�Yv\e�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Zh�k\e�gc�a\hh��\Zkv\c�}\d̀yh\�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Ze�kvZh�d̀k\wgcz�Zh�kgg�h_ àa�ogc�hk̀kZhkZd̀a�̀ddyc̀dz�gckg�pcgk\dk�hky[\ek�pcZl̀dz� ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! "'�+'

-./0-1213�4//566�7189�:18;398�<=�>?9@1A?9<B8�CD�59;E1=9�FGH;I��JHG�89;E1=98�9?K<=L�?=E�BHAI319<=L�?�89?910?EA<=<891G1E�?88188A1=9�FG?E18�7@G11�9@GH;L@�.<L@9�?=E�FG?E1�.3121=�M5B@HH3�N1?G�OPOPQOPORS59;E1=9�FGH;I 7H9?3�.=GH33A1=9 T;AC1G�71891E 61GB1=9�71891E 61GB1=9�TH9�71891E 61GB1=9�>19�HG�.UB11E1EVWXYZ[\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]\̂_ à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]b à\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]X_\cZd̀e�fe[Z̀e�gc�Xàhì�j̀ kZl\ m m m m mXhZ̀e m m m m mnàdi�gc�XocZd̀e�X_\cZd̀e ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ẐaZpZeg m m m m mqZhp̀eZd�gc�V̀kZeg ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]j̀kZl\�q̀ ỲZZ̀e�gc�r̀dZoZd�fhàe[\c m m m m msYg�gc�bgc\�t̀d\h m m m m muvZk\ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]WewaZhv�V\̀ce\ch ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]ĝhk\c�xgykv m m m m mqg_\a\hhbZaZk̀cz m m m m m{gdZg\dgeg_Zd̀aaz�|Zh̀[l̀ek̀w\[ ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�t\d\ZlZew�bZwc̀ek�W[yd̀kZge�{\clZd\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]{ky[\ekh�YZkv�|Zh̀}ZaZkZ\h ]] ]] ]] ]] ]]jgk\~�j�s�l̀ay\h�Ze[Zd̀k\�kv̀k�kv\�hdvggah�Ze�kvZh�VWX�[Z[�egk�k\hk�hky[\ekh�yhZew�kv\��XX{rr�ogc�b k̀v\_ k̀Zdh��jgk\~�|gy}a\�[̀hv\h��]]��̀pp\̀c�Ze�kv\�k̀}a\�Yv\e�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Zh�k\e�gc�a\hh��\Zkv\c�}\d̀yh\�kv\�ey_}\c�go�hky[\ekh�Ze�kvZh�d̀k\wgcz�Zh�kgg�h_ àa�ogc�hk̀kZhkZd̀a�̀ddyc̀dz�gckg�pcgk\dk�hky[\ek�pcZl̀dz� ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +��+'

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E�/77177819:�F681G7H�00�CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[Y\]̂Y ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ_]̂Y ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZU\ỲWa]b�cbXW]b�d̀�Û]ef]�g]hWiY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZUeW]b ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZĵ]af�d̀�Uk̀Wa]b�U\ỲWa]b ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[ŴWlWbd ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZmWel]bWa�d̀�S]hWbd ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZg]hWiY�m]V]WW]b�d̀�n]aWkWa�cê]bXỲ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZoVd�d̀�_d̀Y�p]aYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZqrWhY ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZTbŝWer�SY]̀bỲe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ[dehỲ�tduhr ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZmd\ŶYee ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ_ŴWh]̀v ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwdaWdYadbd\Wa]̂̂v�xWe]Xi]bh]sYX ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwhuXYbhe�pYaYWiWbs�_Ws̀]bh�TXua]hWdb�wỲiWaYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZwhuXYbhe�VWhr�xWe]yŴWhWYe ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZ ZZzUh�d̀�]ydiY�hrY�s̀]XYẐYiŶ�eh]bX]̀X�Wb�hrY�adbhY{h�dk�hrY�̂da]̂�]eeYee\Ybh�]X\WbWehỲYX|�gdhY}�STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�hrWe�h]ŷY�kd̀�eardd̂e�Wb�a]eYe�VrỲY�hrY�eardd̂�]X\WbWehỲYX�]�̂da]̂�]eeYee\Ybh|�gdhY}�STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�XduŷY�X]erYe��ZZ��Wb�hrWe�h]ŷY�VrYb�hrY�bu\yỲ�dk�ehuXYbhe�We�hYb�d̀�̂Yee��YWhrỲ�yYa]ueY�hrY�bu\yỲ�dk�ehuXYbhe�Wb�hrWe�a]hYsd̀v�We�hdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀eh]hWehWa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhYah�ehuXYbh�l̀Wi]av|�gdhY}�cb�a]eYe�VrỲY�]̂̂�hrY�eardd̂e�Wb�hrWe�STU�]X\WbWehỲYX�db̂v�hrY��UUwnn�kd̀�TSU�]eeYee\Ybh��STUe~eardd̂e�VŴ̂�ldlû]hY�hrWe�h]ŷY�VWhr��g~U��i]̂uYe�Wb�]̂̂�aŶ̂e��\Y]bWbs�hrWeh]ŷY�We�gdh�Ull̂Wa]ŷY�kd̀�hrWe�STU| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +��+'

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wd�gcc�d[\]]�jc_dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d��[Y\aWar�gqWdg\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +��+'

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wd�gcc�d[\]]�jc_dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d��[Y\aWar�gqWdg\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +"�+'

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H��CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wd�gcc�d[\]]�jc_dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d��[Y\aWar�gqWdg\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! ++�+'

-./0-1213�-4563�/77177819:�;17:�<17=3:7�>9�.-/�?@�A:=B19:�CD4=E��/77177819:�F681G7H�CD6B17�;ID11�:ID4=JI�.>JI:�69B�CD6B1�.31219�KA5I443�L16D�MNMNOMNMPQA:=B19:�CD4=E ;4:63�.9D433819: F=8?1D�;17:1B R1D519:�;17:1B R1D519:�F4:�;17:1B R1D519:�/:�4D�/?421�CD6B1�-1213STUVWXYZY[\]Y^\]YU[Y_Ẁ\a�baXW\a�c_�U]\de\�f\gWhYUdW\ai]\̀e�c_�Uj_Ẁ\a�U[Y_Ẁ\aZW]WkWaclWdk\aẀ�c_�S\gWacf\gWhY�l\V\WW\a�c_�m\̀WjẀ�bd]\aXY_nVc�c_�̂c_Y�o\̀YdpqWgYTar]Wdq�SY\_aY_dZcdgY_�sctgqlc[Y]Ydd^W]Wg\_uvc̀WcỲcac[Ẁ\]]u�wWd\Xh\ag\rYXvgtXYagd�oỲYWhWar�̂Wr_\ag�TXt̀\gWca�vY_hẀYdvgtXYagd�VWgq�wWd\xW]WgWYdyUg�c_�\xchY�gqY�r_\XYz]YhY]�dg\aX\_X�Wa�gqY�̀cagY{g�cj�gqY�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag�\X[WaWdgY_YX|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�jc_�d̀qcc]d�Wa�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�gqY�d̀qcc]�\X[WaWdgY_YX�\�]c̀\]�\ddYdd[Yag|�fcgY}�STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�Xctx]Y�X\dqYd��zz��Wa�gqWd�g\x]Y�VqYa�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wd�gYa�c_�]Ydd��YWgqY_�xỲ\tdY�gqY�at[xY_�cj�dgtXYagd�Wa�gqWd�̀\gYrc_u�Wd�gcc�d[\]]�jc_dg\gWdgẀ\]�\̀ t̀_\̀u�c_�gc�k_cgỲg�dgtXYag�k_Wh\̀u|�fcgY}�ba�̀\dYd�VqY_Y�\]]�gqY�d̀qcc]d�Wa�gqWd�STU�\X[WaWdgY_YX�ca]u�gqY��UUvmm�jc_�TSU�\ddYdd[Yag��STUd~d̀qcc]d�VW]]�kckt]\gY�gqWd�g\x]Y�VWgq��f~U��h\]tYd�Wa�\]]�̀Y]]d��[Y\aWar�gqWdg\x]Y�Wd�fcg�Ukk]Ẁ\x]Y�jc_�gqWd�STU| ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +��+'

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�00�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\Z] _̂Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[` _̂Z [[ [[ [[ [[ [[V]ZaXb̂c�dcYX̂c�ea�V_̂fĝ�ĥ iXjZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[VfX̂c [[ [[ [[ [[ [[k_̂bg�ea�VlaXb̂c�V]ZaXb̂c [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\X_XmXce [[ [[ [[ [[ [[nXfm̂cXb�ea�T̂iXce [[ [[ [[ [[ [[ĥiXjZ�n̂ ŴXX̂c�ea�ôbXlXb�df_̂cYZa [[ [[ [[ [[ [[pWe�ea�̀eaZ�q̂bZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[rsXiZ [[ [[ [[ [[ [[Uct_Xfs�TẐacZaf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[\efiZa�uevis [[ [[ [[ [[ [[ne]Z_Zff [[ [[ [[ [[ [[`X_Xîaw [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xebXeZbece]Xb̂__w�yXf̂YĵcîtZY [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xivYZcif�qZbZXjXct�̀Xtâci�UYvb̂iXec�xZajXbZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[xivYZcif�WXis�yXf̂zX_XiXZf [[ [[ [[ [[ [[{Vi�ea�̂zejZ�isZ�tâYZ[_ZjZ_�fîcŶaY�Xc�isZ�beciZ|i�el�isZ�_eb̂_�̂ffZff]Zci�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY}�heiZ~�TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�isXf�îz_Z�lea�fbsee_f�Xc�b̂fZf�WsZaZ�isZ�fbsee_�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY�̂�_eb̂_�̂ffZff]Zci}�heiZ~�TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�Yevz_Z�ŶfsZf��[[��Xc�isXf�îz_Z�WsZc�isZ�cv]zZa�el�fivYZcif�Xf�iZc�ea�_Zff��ZXisZa�zZb̂vfZ�isZ�cv]zZa�el�fivYZcif�Xc�isXf�b̂iZteaw�Xf�iee�f] _̂_�leafîiXfiXb̂_�̂bbvâbw�ea�ie�maeiZbi�fivYZci�maXĵbw}�heiZ~�dc�b̂fZf�WsZaZ�̂__�isZ�fbsee_f�Xc�isXf�TUV�̂Y]XcXfiZaZY�ec_w�isZ��VVxoo�lea�̀ îsZ] îXbf�̂ffZff]Zci��TUVf�fbsee_f�WX__�memv_̂iZ�isXf�îz_Z�WXis��h�V��ĵ_vZf�Xc�̂__�bZ__f�]ẐcXct�isXf�îz_Z�Xf�hei�Vmm_Xb̂z_Z�lea�isXf�TUV} ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +!�+'

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xe�hdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb�]̂̂�aẐ̂e�\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +,�+'

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J��DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xe�hdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb�]̂̂�aẐ̂e�\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +	�+'

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J�DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xe�hdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb�]̂̂�aẐ̂e�\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



������������	�
� ������
�����������������������

�������������������� ��������������!���!!�!"���������#����$ ���%&'"(��)(#)�'*#+'�(#	"(&#�)	�(���,��! +'�+'

-./0-1213�/441445167�8147�914:374�;6�<=7>15=7;?4�@A�B7:C167�DEF:G�/441445167�H=51I4J��DE=C14�8>E11�7>EF:K>�.;K>7�=6C�DE=C1�.31216�LB?>FF3�M1=E�NONOPNONQRB7:C167�DEF:G 8F7=3�.6EF335167 H:5@1E�81471C S1E?167�81471C S1E?167�HF7�81471C S1E?167�/7�FE�/@F21�DE=C1�-1213TUVWXYZ[Z\]̂Z_]̂ZV\Z̀Xa]b�cbYX]b�d̀�V̂]ef]�g]hXiZVeX]bĵ]af�d̀�Vk̀Xa]b�V\Z̀Xa]b[X̂XlXbdmXel]bXa�d̀�T]hXbdg]hXiZ�m]W]XX]b�d̀�n]aXkXa�cê]bYZ̀oWd�d̀�_d̀Z�p]aZeqrXhZUbŝXer�TZ]̀bZ̀e[dehZ̀�tduhrmd\ẐZee_X̂Xh]̀vwdaXdZadbd\Xa]̂̂v�xXe]Yi]bh]sZYwhuYZbhe�pZaZXiXbs�_Xs̀]bh�UYua]hXdb�wZ̀iXaZewhuYZbhe�WXhr�xXe]yX̂XhXZezVh�d̀�]ydiZ�hrZ�s̀]YZ{̂ZiẐ�eh]bY]̀Y�Xb�hrZ�adbhZ|h�dk�hrZ�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�kd̀�eardd̂e�Xb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�hrZ�eardd̂�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�]�̂da]̂�]eeZee\Zbh}�gdhZ~�TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�YduŷZ�Y]erZe��{{��Xb�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WrZb�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xe�hZb�d̀�̂Zee��ZXhrZ̀�yZa]ueZ�hrZ�bu\yZ̀�dk�ehuYZbhe�Xb�hrXe�a]hZsd̀v�Xe�hdd�e\]̂̂�kd̀eh]hXehXa]̂�]aaù]av�d̀�hd�l̀dhZah�ehuYZbh�l̀Xi]av}�gdhZ~�cb�a]eZe�WrZ̀Z�]̂̂�hrZ�eardd̂e�Xb�hrXe�TUV�]Y\XbXehZ̀ZY�db̂v�hrZ��VVwnn�kd̀�_]hrZ\]hXae�]eeZee\Zbh��TUVe�eardd̂e�WX̂̂�ldlû]hZ�hrXe�h]ŷZ�WXhr��g�V��i]̂uZe�Xb�]̂̂�aẐ̂e�\Z]bXbs�hrXe�h]ŷZ�Xe�gdh�Vll̂Xa]ŷZ�kd̀�hrXe�TUV} ��������������������



* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application:

* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

* a. Legal Name:

* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): * c. Organizational DUNS:

* Street1:

Street2:

* City:

County/Parish:

* State:

Province:

* Country:

* Zip / Postal Code:

Department Name: Division Name:

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

Title:

Organizational Affiliation:

* Telephone Number: Fax Number:

* Email:

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify):

State Use Only:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

d. Address:

e. Organizational Unit:

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

New

Continuation

Revision

OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

956846828

09CH011054

CA: California

946002149

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

(530) 458-0350 x10313

Ste B

Markss

09CH011054

N/A

USA: UNITED STATES

Colusa

Colusa County

345 5th St

Director

95932-2445

Vicki

vmarkss@ccoe.net



* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:

* Other (specify):

* 10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:

* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:

* Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Head Start and Early Head Start Year Four Funding Application

Other (specify)

N/A

County Office of Education

93.600

Not Applicable

eGrants-N/A

Head Start

ACF-Head Start

Not Applicable

Colusa County



* a. Federal

* b. Applicant

* c. State

* d. Local

* e. Other

* f.  Program Income

* g. TOTAL

.

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

* Title:

* Telephone Number:

* Email:

Fax Number:

* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to
comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims  may
subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency
specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* a. Applicant

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

 b. Program/Project

* a. Start Date: * b. End Date:

16. Congressional Districts Of:

17. Proposed Project:

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

Yes No

** I AGREE

* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

If "Yes", provide explanation and attach

2,073,561

2,591,951

CA-003

mwest@ccoe.net

Mr.

West

CA-003

(530) 458-0350 x10365

07/01/2022

518,390

Michael

Superintendent of Schools

06/30/2023



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC HEARING, SPECIAL MEETING, AND REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, March 9, 2022 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Public Hearing and Action on Colusa County Board of Education Trustee 

Areas Based Upon the 2020 Census followed by Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

4:00 p.m. 
Public Hearing and Action on Colusa County Board of Education Trustee Areas Based Upon the 
2020 Census 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 DISCUSS AND APPROVE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  action 
  TRUSTEE AREAS MAP 

3.0 ADJOURNMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma(s) – Colusa County Adult School  information 
4.2 Resignation from the Board – Paul Timothy Wright  information 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No February Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the February 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Second Interim Report  action 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision  information 
    BP 9270.00 Conflict of Interest (State Mandated Even‐Year 
    Review/Revision) 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Agenda 
Page 3 

11.3 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700 due April 1, 2022  Information 

11.4 Approve Nominees for Delegate Assembly Elections  action 
11.4.1 CCBE County Delegate Region 4 (Glenn, Tehama, Butte, 
  Colusa, Sutter, Yuba, Nevada, Placer, and Sierra Counties) 
  One nominee ‐ David Patterson (Placer CBOE) 
11.4.2 CSBA Subregion 4‐C (Colusa Sutter and Yuba Counties) 
  No nominees – May Write in Vote 

11.5 Letter of Support for MUSD’s SARB letter  action 

11.6 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23 from  information 
  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 

11.7 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23  information 
  from Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
April 13, 2022, 4:00 pm 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Public Hearing



 

 

                                                                                                                              February 10, 2022 

 

 

To:  Mike West Colusa County Superintendent of Schools   

From: Paul Timothy Wright  

 

Mike, 

I will not be able to serve on the Colusa County Office of Education board or trustees due to a conflict 

with my current employment. 

 

Sorry for the confusion and I am thankful for the opportunity, but I hereby resign from CCOE board 

effective 2/10/2022. 

 

You might have to redo the 3 action items that I voted on last night. 

 

Best regards, 

Paul Timothy Wright “Tim”  

 

  



6.3.1

CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director            February 2022        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team.
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission.
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars.
 Content Area Planning meeting.
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings.
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent.
 Meeting with CDE/OHS Consultants.
 Region Cluster Meeting.
 Recruitment with Resource & Referral.
 Emergency Bridge Program.
 Covid-19 Protocol revisions.
 Planning for Migrant season.
 Social Emotional Learning – Community of Practice.

Grant Opportunities:   

 CDE CCTR Expansion Grant.
 Office of Head Start Refunding Application:  Due April 1.

School Readiness: 

 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative Partnership Cohort.
 Learning Genie Family Engagement app.
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance

learning strategies.
 Children’s Services All Staff In-Service Day Planning for March event.
 Self-Assessment of program strengths/improvements.
 Kindergarten transition.

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Representatives/Policy Council Meeting
 Family Fair Planning for April – Month of the Young Child
 Provider Retreat: Professional Development trainings for child care providers in April



  Educational Services Board Report 
March 2022 

  
 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy (SWAA) 
• The SWAA students are focusing on learning about scientific methods and experimentation. The 

students will be utilizing more project-based learning to create hands-on approaches to learning.  
• The SWAA students have begun new team-building skills to help them learn to work together and will 

be creating a final project, which will showcase everyone’s talents. 
 
Colusa County Adult School 

• The Colusa County Adult School has enrolled 164 students this year and has provided 6628 hours of 
instruction thus far to adults in our community. Our ESL class has grown to 39 students and our HS 
Diploma class has enrolled 43 students. 

• Educational Services is happy to welcome Michelle Bingham to our staff to serve as our new Inmate 
Education and Day Reporting Center Teacher.   

 
Farm to School 

• Seeds have been planted in the greenhouse and students have been taking care of plants for the upcoming 
Plant Sale.  Presale orders totaled over $600. 

• Just a reminder, Spring Plant Sale at Griff’s Feed and Seed on Saturday, April 9th, 2022!   
 

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• CSI Support has been provided to the district on an as needed basis. 

 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Continued support for the district in DA includes monthly meetings with the superintendent. 
 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• Changes to the LCAP Template was discussed at a recent “Lunch and Learn” Session.  Changes include 

updates to the Expenditure Table and Increased Services section. 
• Support to the districts regarding updates to their LCAP is ongoing. 

 
Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• The Prevention Services Department along with the Ed. Services Child Aides have established monthly 

meetings to check in and establish future program goals. 
• The Ed. Services Child Aides have continued to provide Second Step curriculum with Williams USD, 

Colusa County Children’s Services, Hand in Hand, and Colusa Indian Community Council.  
• For the month of March, the Ed. Services Child Aides have concentrated on teaching “Problem Solving” 

and “Bullying Prevention Unit” where students learn skills on problem-solving and the meaning of 
bullying.  

• The EMHI Q2 Report was submitted on February 15, 2022. 
 
 
 



Foster Youth 
• The Prevention Services Department has continued to utilize Foster Focus to provide technical 

assistance to Colusa County Districts and other California counties.  
• On February 9, 2022, and February 23, 2022, the Prevention Services Department, in with Colusa 

County Districts, coordinated a countywide FAFSA Nights to provide technical assistance to all seniors, 
who are filling out FAFSA applications.  

• The February District Liaison Meeting was held on February 14, 2022. Ampla Health was the presenter 
and they provided the District Liaisons with health care resources.  

• The January District Liaison Meeting was held on January 24, 2022. Shores of Hope of Sacramento was 
the presenter and they provided information on curriculum for students relating to healthy relationships.  

• The Foster Youth Services Region 3 meeting was held on February 4, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department has started organizing the 2022 Caring Youth Count. The date set 

for the event is March 31, 2022, from 6:00 pm – 8:30 pm. The nominations and flyers have been sent 
out to all educational agencies.  

 
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• The Prevention Services Department Supervisor in conjunction with the Director of Educational 
Services and Executive Administrative Assistant updated the Superintendent’s Policies and Operating 
Procedures for Education Homeless Children.   

• The Prevention Services Department has established meetings with other counties to support their 
learning and networking. These meetings are also intended to discuss topics such as, how other counties 
are expending funds to meet and address the needs of McKinney Vento students.  

• The We are Family, Parent Engagement Initiative held a Self-Care Workshop on February 16, 2022, and 
an Attendance Intervention and Communication Strategies Workshop on January 19, 2022, in 
conjunction with the Director of Support Services within Children’s Services. 

• The Prevention Services Department has started planning for the Migrant Resource Fair. The date for 
this event is May 6, 2022, from 4:00 pm to 6:30 pm.  
 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• The Prevention Services Department Coordinator will start conducting outreach activities to promote all 

programs at school districts during their parent-teacher conferences and other school events.  
• The Prevention Services Department will start administering Brief Intervention Alternative to 

Suspension at school districts who need the service. The curriculum will be implemented with students 
who are caught smoking/vaping on school grounds.  

o The surveys were sent out on 02/14/2022 
o The program is currently waiting on responses from administrators. 

• The Prevention Services Department took part in TUPE Monthly Meeting on February 9, 2022. 
 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• The Prevention Services Department facilitated a meeting with Colusa County Sheriff’s Department on 
February 17, 2022, where the fiscal portion of the grant was discussed in length.  

• There was a plan established to better support the following:  
o Completion of duties and scope of work  
o Quarterly Progress Reports 
o Outreach Purchases 



6.4

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report March 9, 2022 

We are continuing to work on the plans for the Colusa Unified fourth EduNet radio near 
the golf course.  We have received quotes for the telephone pole with mounts and we 
are currently working with our installer to get a quote.   

We are also helping Pierce Joint Unified School District with EduNet prepare for the 
deployment of some external routers for their students on their homes 

The CCOE phone system that we use (Mitel 5000) will become end of life shortly.  We 
are in the process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This 
purchase would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We are ensuring this 
migration will meet all needs for all CCOE sites with Mitel 5000 phone systems.  We 
have received 1 quote.  We are in the process of aligning the other vendors for an 
apples to apples comparison. 

We have been rolling out Everbridge as an emergency notification system for CCOE 
Cabinet.  All staff members that were selected have the application installed on their 
phones and a test has been conducted to ensure that it works properly.  We will begin 
the training process for staff shortly and alter any needed safety plans.   

We are in the process of re-inventorying all CCOE equipment.  Once the inventory has 
been completed, we will be giving each CCOE Department a list of computers that will 
not support Windows 11.  We will begin the process of phasing these computers out 
prior to the Windows 10 End of Life in 2025.  

We are currently looking for a new network monitoring solution for CCOE.  Our previous 
vendor Auvik using dynamic billing which has created some problems.  We have sat 
through demonstrations for Intermapper, PRTG, Nagios, and Datto.  We still are 
comparing features and prices. 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting February 9, 2022 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, 

Tina Maxwell, Susan Meeker, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Stefani 
Silvas Santana, Chuck Wayman, Michael West, and Tim Wright 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
3.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 3 

The Board considered candidate Paul Timothy (Tim) Wright. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously to approve and certify appointment of Paul Timothy (Tim) Wright. 

3.2 Administer Oath of Office to Trustee Area 3 
Board President Brenda Miller administered the Oath of Office to Paul Timothy 
(Tim) Wright ‐ Trustee Area 3. 

4.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
4.1 Colusa County Elementary Spelling Competition – Alissa Maas 

CCOE Director of Communications and Public Relations Alissa Maas presented 
information on the 2022 Colusa County Spelling Competition that will be held on 
March 1, at 3:30 pm in the Village Multi‐purpose room. 

5.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
Michael West drew the Board’s attention to the following letters and publications: 
  CCBE Region 4 County Representative letter to the Board 
  CSBA Delegate Assembly election materials 
  CCBE Delegate Assembly election materials 
  CAPC publication “It Takes a Village” 
  YCCD publication “2020‐21 Report to the Community” 

Discussion was held on the materials, and the CSBA and CCBE Delegate Assembly 
Elections will be added to the March 2022 Board agenda as an action item. 

  

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
7.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

7.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided a school district update, including MUSD 
Superintendent Summer Shadley’s Letter to the District Attorney 
regarding truancy issues and the need for SARB. Michael spoke about his 
participation in CUSD’s DART with several high‐profile Colusa County 
representatives to encourage student and parent cooperation in reducing 
truancy. Discussion was held on writing a letter of support for MUSD’s 
SARB efforts, and Michael will draft a letter to bring to the Board for 
approval in the March Board meeting. Discussion was also held on 
truancy causes. 

Michael West reported on his review of Board Trustee Area boundaries, 
which he will bring to the March meeting for a public hearing and 
possible approval. Michael updated the Board on mask mandate 
milestones including February 15, 2022, marking the end of the mandate 
for fully vaccinated people in public areas, and the hope that the removal 
of masks in districts and COEs to soon follow, with some counties 
instituting “one‐way” masking that encourages those who feel a need for 
a mask to wear one. Discussion was held on home schooling and Charter 
Schools in the wake of COVID 19, the number of people leaving the state 
for in‐person instruction, and more employees working virtually. 

Michael West provided an overview of the Governor’s proposed budget 
including: 

 Trailer bills supplying more details of the budget 

 COLA may be as much as 6.17% up from 5.33%; however, these will 
become more defined closer to the May revise 

 AB 1667 that pushes for CalSTRS reforms in accounting and 
accountability 

 Proposed changes to the LCFF with emphasis on keeping local control 
of our funding 

Michael West reported on his attendance at the SSC Governor’s Budget 
Workshop in Sacramento, the CCSESA Quarterly Meeting via Zoom, and 
meetings about changes in the funding of Special Education and its 
transition into the future. Michael spoke about his continued 
participation in SSPI Tony Thurmond’s Literacy/Biliteracy Task Force, and 
his review and consideration of policies relating to the delivery of 
NARCAN nasal spray to treat opioid or fentanyl exposure at CCOE and 
district facilities. Discussion was held on writing a letter of thanks to 
Davison’s Drug and Stationery for their donation of the product. Michael 
spoke to the Board about the use of surety bond claims to encourage 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

elected officials to make decisions favorable to groups’ causes. Michael 
said that CCSESA and CSBA are researching the concept to get a 
consensus from the State and other COEs responding to these claims, and 
discussion was held on motives behind the movement. Michael said that 
he met with Lorilee Niesen and Estefania Guillen Aceves about 
Prevention Services team’s presentation on migrant education outreach 
during the National Association for the Education of Homeless Children 
conference in Atlanta. Michael said that the group will share that 
presentation with the Board during a future meeting. Michael announced 
his review of the possibility of purchasing the 345 5th Street, Colusa, 
complex, and Aaron Heinz provided information on the affordability of 
the concept and the value of the property. 

7.1.2 Superintendents Council – No January Meeting 

7.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his February 2022 Administrative Services report to the 
Board. The report entitled “Who we are, what we do” summarized the activities 
of groups in Administrative Services including Facilities, Food Services, innovative 
Approaches to Literacy, Communications and Public Relations, Human 
Resources, and Business Services. 

7.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss added to her February 2022 Children’s Services written report by 
announcing that April is the Month of the Young Child, and Children’s Services 
celebrates it by holding their Family Fair, for which they are currently planning. 

7.4 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Lorilee Niesen added to her February 2022 Educational Services written report, 
by providing information on the Farm to School plant sale. 

7.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman answered the Board’s questions regarding his February 2022 
Special Education and SELPA written report, requesting clarification on upcoming 
changes to Special Education funding, which will shift from COEs to districts, the 
number of CBA students (12) and the number at SWAA students (15), the 
funding shift causing districts to bare litigation costs, the benefits of the SELPA to 
smaller districts, the one size fits all approach to funding issues, and the 
possibility of smaller counties forming their own JPAs. 

7.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans added to his February 2022 Technology Services written report, by 
distributing an invitation to the Technology Services Grand Opening on February 
28, 2022, and he answered an inquiry about the new phone system that will 
centralize all CCOE phone systems, saying that he has received one bid and is 
awaiting two more. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

8.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action. Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried unanimously to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the January 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
9.2 Second Reading: Board Policy Revision BP 6173 Education for Homeless 

Children 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that he asked YCCD to send information directly to the 
Board via email. 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that the landscaping project in front of Village is 
proceeding, but it is experiencing delays due to supply chain issues due to COVID 
19. He added that Lorilee Niesen is working tirelessly to move forward with her 
Adult Education project. 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
11.3.1 LCAP Supplement to the 2021‐22 Annual Update 

Lorilee presented the LCAP Supplement to the 2021‐22 Annual Update to 
the Board, which will also be included in the annual update to the LCAP. 

11.3.2 2021‐22 LCAP Goals, Metrics, Actions and Services Update 
Lorilee presented the 2021‐22 LCAP Executive Summary to the Board. 
The update included priorities, metrics, goals, and actions. Discussion was 
held on SWAA’s low truancy rate, on the independent study program 
having both paper or on‐line options, and on the total cost of the LCAP 
($54,000). 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Interim Project Director Stefani Silvas Santana 
reported on grant activities, including relocation to the 146 7th Street, Colusa 
office, finishing the iPad lending program, and collaborating with districts to 
provide bilingual books in kindergarten backpacks. 

  



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 Approve School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the 2020‐21 School Year 

Michael West reported that the School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for 
the 2020‐21 School Year is an annual report, and that the Board can approve 
both reports in one action. Lorilee Niesen reported on teacher credentialing and 
monitoring data that is not included in the report because the CDE has not yet 
provided that to LEAs yet. Tina Maxwell added that as soon as the data is 
provided, the reports will be updated, but these will not require a second 
approval by the Board. 

12.1.1 Coastal Buttes 
12.1.2 S. William Abel Community School 

Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously to approve item 12.1.1 Coastal Buttes Academy School and 12.1.2 
S. William Abel Academy School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the 
2020‐21 School Year. 

12.2 Approve 2022‐23 Year Three Funding Application for Federal Assistance 
Vicki Markss explained the need for re‐applying for this non‐competitive Head 
Start and Early Head Start grant. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Tim Wright/Seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously to approve the 2021‐22 Year Three Funding Application for Federal 
Assistance. 

13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Nominee for CSBA Delegate Assembly election 
Nominee CCBE Delegate Assembly election 
Letter of Support for MUSD’s SARB letter 
Trustee Area Review and Possible Reorganization 

13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
2nd Interim Report 
March 9, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:37 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB Assembly Bill 
BP Board Policy 
CalSTRS California State Teachers Retirement System 
CAPC  Community Advocates for Parents & Children  
CBA Coastal Buttes Academy 
CCBE California County Boards of Education 
CCOE Colusa County Office of Education 
CCSESA California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 
CDE California Department of Education 
COE County Office of Education 
COLA Cost of Living Adjustment 
COVID 19 Corona Virus 2019 
CSBA California School Boards Association 
CUSD Colusa Unified School District 
DART District Attendance Review Team 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 
LEA Local Educational Agency 
MUSD Maxwell Unified School District 
NARCAN A nasal spray medicine that rapidly reverses an opioid overdose 
SARB School Attendance Review Board 
SARC School Accountability Report Card 
SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 
SSC School Services of California, Inc. 
SSPI  State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
SWAA S. William Abel Academy 
YCCD Yuba Community College District 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SECOND INTERIM REPORT 

As of January 31, 2022 
 

Presented for Approval March 09, 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

General Fund Assumptions .................................................................................................... 1 

COE Certification (Form CI) ................................................................................................... 6 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ................................................................................... 10 

General Fund 01 .................................................................................................................... 12 

Multi Year Projection Report ................................................................................................ 41 

Adult Education Fund11 ....................................................................................................... 51 

Child Development Fund-Form 12 ...................................................................................... 61 

Forest Reserve Fund-Form 16 ............................................................................................... 71 

Sp. Reserve Fund 17 .............................................................................................................. 77 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund-Form 73 ......................................................... 83 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................. 91 

       Summary of Interfund Activities-Form SIAA ................................................................ 92 

       Form ESMOE .................................................................................................................... 94 

       Form CASH ...................................................................................................................... 97  

Criteria and Standards Report ............................................................................................ 99 

Budget Glossary…………………………………………………………………………………..124 

 



General Fund Financial Assumptions 

Second Interim Report 

2021-22 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of the 

Second Interim Report for the year 2021-22. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the governor 

signs the annual budget we will make available for public review any revisions 

made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the budget act.  We 

also report to the board at First Interim (December), and Second Interim (March) 

report periods. 

 

This Interim Report is presented by major object account classification, reflecting 

the original adopted budget in Column “A” of SACS Form.  Column “B” is the 

current Board approved operating budget.  Column “C” represents the actual 

revenue and expenditures as of January 31, 2022.  Column “D” is the projected 

year totals (Second Interim), and Column “E” is the difference between the First 

Interim and the projected year totals (Second Interim).  After the interim report is 

approved by the board, the projected year totals become the adopted budget 

for the next reporting period. 

 
Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living increase based on the 

School Services Dartboard and flat attendance funding for the current and future 

two years.  Salary increases for step and column are included in these projections. 

 

Looking ahead to 2022-23 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  The 

County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce organizational costs to 

Page 1 of 154



better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the belief that the 

students we help educate today are our future tomorrow. 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well as 

transfers from other funds within the County Office. 

 

Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any known 

information on current population.  Current projections are for flat enrollment for 

the current and future years. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period with the 

most current attendance data and the latest projections from CDE.  

The LCFF funds consist 

of Local Property 

Taxes, Education 

Protection Act (Prop 

30) Funds, and State 

Aid.  LCFF funding 

equates to 17% of the 

general fund revenue.  

 

Federal Revenue 

comprises 14% of the 

general fund revenue.  

Federal revenues are 

projected to increase 

by $8,395 since First Interim.  This increase is from COVID-19 Funding. 

 

State Revenue is 33% of the general fund revenue. State revenues are projected 

to increase by $56,925 since First Interim.  The increase is in COVID Mitigation 

funding, In-person instruction grant funding and Farm to School Grant funding. 

 

Local Revenue makes up 36% of the general fund revenue.  Local revenues are 

projected to increase by $137,110 since First Interim.  This increase is due to 

additional monies for the CALHOPE grant. 

LCFF
17%

Federal
14%

Other State
33%

Local
36%

2021-22 Revenues

LCFF Federal Other State Local

Page 2 of 154



 

General Fund 

Expenditures 
 
 
The 2021-22 expenditures in 

the general fund are 

projected to increase from 

First Interim.  Much of the 

increase is attributed to 

Special Education 

additional staff and other 

additional grant funding 

expenditures. 

 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

Certificated salaries are 32% of all general fund expenditures.  This amount has 

increased by $23,500 from First Interim due to additional salary costs in Special 

Education. 

 
Classified salaries make up 28% of all expenditures. Classified salaries have 

increased $14,100 since First Interim. The increase is due to planned salary cost for 

training new employees in the Administrative Services department. 

 

Employer paid benefit costs are 27% of all expenditures. The benefit costs have 

increased $5,139 compared to First Interim as a result of the  

corresponding salary increases referenced above. Continuing increases in STRS  

and PERS employer paid rates, and statutory benefit rate increases are additional 

drivers of these rising costs. 

 
Books and Supplies total 6% of all expenditures. The overall increase in program 

budgets for supplies is $67,729 more compared to First Interim. This increase is 

primarily due to COVID Mitigation funds and the CALHOPE SEL Grant. 

 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 9% of all expenditures. Budgets for 

services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by $53,316 

compared to First Interim.  The majority of this increase is due to increased 

expenditures in CALHOPE SEL grant. 

Certificated 
Salaries

32%

Classified 
Salaries

28%

Employee 
Benefits

27%

Books & 
Supplies

6%

Other 
Services

9%

Equipment
1.1%

Indirect/Debt 
Payment

-4%

2021-22 Expenditures

Certificated Salaries Classified Salaries

Employee Benefits Books & Supplies

Other Services Equipment

Indirect/Debt Payment

Page 3 of 154



 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is 1.1% of all expenditures. From First Interim this 

budget has increased by $141,001 due the landscaping project at the Education 

Village and Farm to School equipment purchases.    

 

Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by 4%.   The 

negative change of $55,077 further reduces expenditures. 

 

The Indirect Cost Rate  

 
ICR for the budget year is 10.93%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program guidelines 

prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have been arranged with 

the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 2021-22 are as follows: 

  

• Special Education / First 5 – Not to exceed 7.00% 

• Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

• Ed. SVS – Not to exceed 10.93% 

• Food Services – Not to exceed 5.48% 

• IAL Services – Not to exceed 8.07% 
 

 

 

Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing as this interim 

budget update is presented, and the County Office will continue to work 

diligently to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is projected to have a surplus of $205,930 at the close of fiscal 

year 2021-22 due to the booking of the land sale in Williams.  The Multiyear 

Projection (MYP) projects deficit spending during 2022-23 in the amount of 

$670,960 due to the planned purchase of the Fifth Street office building.  The MYP 

then projects a surplus of revenues over expenditures of $25,990 in the 2023-24 

year, a direct result of the reduction of lease payments for the Fifth Street office.   

 

The most significant fiscal concern the County Office has is the cap on LCFF 

growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, and PERS and STRS 

Page 4 of 154



costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 3% for PERS and 4% for 

STRS fiscal year 22-23.  This increase outpaces our office’s LCFF growth since the 

County Office will not be receiving the same increases to LCFF revenue in the 

near future.  Educational agencies across the state are struggling with managing 

this imbalance.   

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational opportunities 

possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the Colusa County Office of 

Education is committed to finding ways to control costs without impairing services, 

and further enrich the lives of our students. 

 

Page 5 of 154



 

 

 

COE Certification Form CI  
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  2/22/2022   11:28 AM

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code sections 33129 and 42130.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the County Board of Education.

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board 
of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127.

Meeting Date: March 09, 2022 Signed:
County Superintendent of Schools

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will
not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Aaron Heinz Telephone: 530-458-0350

Title: Deputy Superintendent Admin Services E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met
Not
Met

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated
programs has not changed for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years by more than two percent since first interim.

X

Page 7 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  2/22/2022   11:28 AM

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met
Not
Met

2 Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) Revenue

Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since first
interim.

X

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent
since first interim.

X

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more
than five percent since first interim.

X

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim. X

5 Ongoing and Major
Maintenance Account

If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required
contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e.,
restricted maintenance account).

X

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will be positive at the
end of the current and two subsequent fiscal years. X

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at
the end of the current fiscal year. X

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first
interim that may impact the budget?

X

S2 Using One-time Revenues
to Fund Ongoing
Expenditures

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded
with one-time revenues that have changed since first interim by more
than five percent?

X

S3 Temporary Interfund
Borrowings

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?
X

S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest
reserves)?

X

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating
deficits, changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more
than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

X

Page 8 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  2/22/2022   11:28 AM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or

debt agreements? X

• If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2020-21) annual
payment?

X

• If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or
are they one-time sources?

X

S7a Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB
liabilities? X

S7b Other Self-insurance
Benefits

Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g.,
workers' compensation)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since first interim in self-
insurance liabilities? n/a

S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations
still unsettled for:
• Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
• Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
• Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to
have a negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the

current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school
service fund?

X

A2 Independent Position
Control

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
X

A3 County Operations Grant
ADA

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and
current fiscal year? X

A4 New Charter Schools
Impacting County Office
ADA

Are any new charter schools operating in county office boundaries
that are impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior or
current fiscal years?

X

A5 Salary Increases Exceed
COLA

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any
of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would
result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected
state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid)
health benefits for current or retired employees? X

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
If yes, provide copies to the CDE. X

A8 Change of CBO or
Superintendent

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

Page 9 of 154



 

 

 

ANNUAL ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form AI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: adai (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  2/18/2022  3:27 PM

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Original
Budget

(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT

ADA
Projected Year

Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)

(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

(Col. E / B)
(F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education
      Grant ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 0.00 0%
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 0.00 0%
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 0.00 0%
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 0.00 0%
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 16.10 16.10 16.10 16.10 0.00 0%
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 21.10 21.10 21.10 21.10 0.00 0%
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51 0.00 0%
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.00 0%
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 11 of 154



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 9700

Revenue

2,632,076 2,632,076 2,632,076 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,118,585 1,127,562 1,127,562 8100 Federal Revenue

955,667 1,033,847 1,042,242 8,395.00 8200 Federal Revenue

2,845,565 3,213,153 3,213,153 8300 Other State Revenue

1,397,495 1,780,009 1,836,934 56,925.00 8500 Other State Revenue

760,314 658,040 795,150 137,110.00 8600 Other Local Revenue

4,586,795 4,674,334 4,674,334 8700 Other Local Revenue

6,000 6,000 309,360 303,360.00 8900 Other Sources

505,790.00 15,630,811 15,125,021 14,302,497 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,497,210 2,590,256 2,600,256 10,000.00 1100 Teacher Salaries

1,390,162 1,594,047 1,594,047 1200 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

716,371 696,113 709,613 13,500.00 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

110,798 92,066 92,066 1900 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 23,500.00 4,995,982 4,972,482 4,714,541 

1,467,251 1,560,204 1,560,204 2100 Para Educator Salaries

727,104 746,441 746,441 2200 Classified Support

685,509 699,288 699,288 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

965,064 1,033,891 1,043,891 10,000.00 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

355,770 283,125 287,225 4,100.00 2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 14,100.00 4,337,049 4,322,949 4,200,698 

1,142,866 1,195,001 1,197,876 2,875.00 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

991,115 1,067,053 1,067,427 374.00 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

388,093 417,187 417,509 322.00 3300 Social Security/Medicare

1,053,918 1,170,185 1,171,255 1,070.00 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:32AM 

Page 1 of 3

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 13 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

115,734 59,025 59,101 76.00 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

265,710 256,676 257,098 422.00 3600 Workers Compensation

10,000 15,900 15,900 3700 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 5,139.00 4,186,166 4,181,027 3,967,436 

490,099 528,527 577,931 49,404.00 4300 Materials and Supplies

220,538 224,070 242,395 18,325.00 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

74,679 74,679 74,679 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 67,729.00 895,005 827,276 785,316 

139,440 135,765 155,765 20,000.00 5200 Travel/Conference

38,172 53,574 53,574 5300 Dues/Memberships

115,000 130,820 130,820 5400 Property/Liab.Insurance

116,586 141,189 141,189 5500 Utilities

116,181 124,507 124,639 132.00 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

621,093- 621,093- 628,030- 6,937.00-5700 Direct Costs Transfers

889,583 1,261,440 1,301,561 40,121.00 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

185,272 151,543 151,543 5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 53,316.00 1,431,061 1,377,745 979,141 

30,000 125,000 125,000.00 6100 Land Improvements

38,302 30,186 46,187 16,001.00 6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 141,001.00 171,187 30,186 68,302 

9,700 29,700 20,000.00 7200 Other Transfers Out

509,854- 546,192- 621,269- 75,077.00-7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 55,077.00-591,569-536,492-509,854-

249,708.00 15,424,881 15,175,173 14,205,580 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 256,082.00 9700

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:32AM 

Page 2 of 3

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 14 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Total for Org 001, Fund 01

Starting Balance 4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 .00 

Revenue 14,302,497 15,125,021 15,630,811 505,790.00 

Expense 14,205,580 15,175,173 15,424,881 249,708.00 

4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 256,082.00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 4,121,831 256,082.00 4,634,321 4,378,239 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:32AM 

Page 3 of 3

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 15 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,632,076.00 2,632,076.00 2,701,606.83 2,632,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 2,161,409.00 212,181.03 2,169,804.00 8,395.00 0.4%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,243,060.00 4,993,162.00 2,985,465.43 5,050,087.00 56,925.00 1.1%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 5,347,109.00 5,332,374.00 4,104,962.18 5,469,484.00 137,110.00 2.6%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 14,296,497.00 15,119,021.00 10,004,215.47 15,321,451.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,714,541.00 4,972,482.00 2,604,918.37 4,995,982.00 (23,500.00) -0.5%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,200,698.00 4,322,949.00 2,257,618.81 4,337,049.00 (14,100.00) -0.3%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,967,436.00 4,181,027.00 1,839,469.06 4,186,166.00 (5,139.00) -0.1%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 785,316.00 827,276.00 292,898.74 895,005.00 (67,729.00) -8.2%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 979,141.00 1,377,745.00 1,056,123.64 1,431,061.00 (53,316.00) -3.9%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 68,302.00 30,186.00 43,569.13 171,187.00 (141,001.00) -467.1%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (509,854.00) (546,192.00) (228,682.76) (621,269.00) 75,077.00 -13.7%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 14,205,580.00 15,175,173.00 7,875,614.99 15,424,881.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 90,917.00 (56,152.00) 2,128,600.48 (103,430.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 6,000.00 6,000.00 303,359.90 309,360.00

Page 16 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 96,917.00 (50,152.00) 2,431,960.38 205,930.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00 4,428,391.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00 4,428,391.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,024,914.00 4,428,391.00 4,428,391.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,121,831.00 4,378,239.00 4,634,321.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 10,500.00 152,794.00 152,794.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,352,073.00 3,466,187.00 3,709,783.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,760,294.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,874,408.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,118,004.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 758,758.00 771,244.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 17 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,659,902.00 1,420,691.00 2,146,690.42 1,420,691.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 481,199.00 720,410.00 297,838.00 720,410.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 470.79 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 1,254.30 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 2.73 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 458,750.00 218,782.08 458,750.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 33,221.54 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 1,259.73 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 1,951.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 136.24 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 2,701,606.83 2,637,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.00 (5,662.00) 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,632,076.00 2,632,076.00 2,701,606.83 2,632,076.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 898,212.00 909,545.00 39,676.29 909,545.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 220,373.00 218,017.00 1,521.03 218,017.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 128,483.00 128,483.00 106,309.55 128,483.00 0.00 0.0%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 300.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 18 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290 74,225.00 138,572.00 47,183.15 138,572.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 752,349.00 766,182.00 17,191.01 774,577.00 8,395.00 1.1%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 2,074,252.00 2,161,409.00 212,181.03 2,169,804.00 8,395.00 0.4%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,766,168.00 3,133,756.00 1,788,419.58 3,133,756.00 0.00 0.0%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 47,000.00 47,000.00 5,349.98 47,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 16,170.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 6,400.00 6,400.00 3,116.91 6,400.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 85,000.00 85,000.00 66,843.54 85,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,249,295.00 1,631,809.00 1,105,565.42 1,688,734.00 56,925.00 3.5%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,243,060.00 4,993,162.00 2,985,465.43 5,050,087.00 56,925.00 1.1%

Page 19 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 15,842.47 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 (577.70) 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 61,231.00 102,869.00 95,657.21 209,979.00 107,110.00 104.1%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 595,993.00 452,081.00 150,017.15 482,081.00 30,000.00 6.6%

  Tuition 8710 4,411,676.00 4,499,215.00 3,768,840.00 4,499,215.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 175,119.00 75,183.05 175,119.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 5,347,109.00 5,332,374.00 4,104,962.18 5,469,484.00 137,110.00 2.6%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 14,296,497.00 15,119,021.00 10,004,215.47 15,321,451.00 202,430.00 1.3%

Page 20 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,497,210.00 2,590,256.00 1,343,733.51 2,600,256.00 (10,000.00) -0.4%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,390,162.00 1,594,047.00 792,852.06 1,594,047.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 716,371.00 696,113.00 414,142.04 709,613.00 (13,500.00) -1.9%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 110,798.00 92,066.00 54,190.76 92,066.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,714,541.00 4,972,482.00 2,604,918.37 4,995,982.00 (23,500.00) -0.5%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,467,251.00 1,560,204.00 716,713.00 1,560,204.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 727,104.00 746,441.00 389,970.82 746,441.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 685,509.00 699,288.00 427,851.82 699,288.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 965,064.00 1,033,891.00 583,811.34 1,043,891.00 (10,000.00) -1.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 355,770.00 283,125.00 139,271.83 287,225.00 (4,100.00) -1.4%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 4,200,698.00 4,322,949.00 2,257,618.81 4,337,049.00 (14,100.00) -0.3%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,142,866.00 1,195,001.00 394,598.76 1,197,876.00 (2,875.00) -0.2%

  PERS 3201-3202 991,115.00 1,067,053.00 514,947.23 1,067,427.00 (374.00) 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 388,093.00 417,187.00 205,340.43 417,509.00 (322.00) -0.1%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 1,053,918.00 1,170,185.00 562,839.51 1,171,255.00 (1,070.00) -0.1%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 115,734.00 59,025.00 22,415.33 59,101.00 (76.00) -0.1%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 265,710.00 256,676.00 134,477.83 257,098.00 (422.00) -0.2%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 15,900.00 4,849.97 15,900.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,967,436.00 4,181,027.00 1,839,469.06 4,186,166.00 (5,139.00) -0.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 490,099.00 528,527.00 188,330.23 577,931.00 (49,404.00) -9.3%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 220,538.00 224,070.00 50,215.35 242,395.00 (18,325.00) -8.2%

  Food 4700 74,679.00 74,679.00 54,353.16 74,679.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 785,316.00 827,276.00 292,898.74 895,005.00 (67,729.00) -8.2%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 139,440.00 135,765.00 59,189.63 155,765.00 (20,000.00) -14.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 38,172.00 53,574.00 47,214.72 53,574.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 115,000.00 130,820.00 122,910.17 130,820.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 116,586.00 141,189.00 48,629.24 141,189.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 116,181.00 124,507.00 74,455.52 124,639.00 (132.00) -0.1%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (621,093.00) (621,093.00) (143,391.12) (628,030.00) 6,937.00 -1.1%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 889,583.00 1,261,440.00 805,956.71 1,301,561.00 (40,121.00) -3.2%

  Communications 5900 185,272.00 151,543.00 41,158.77 151,543.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 979,141.00 1,377,745.00 1,056,123.64 1,431,061.00 (53,316.00) -3.9%

Page 21 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 (125,000.00) New

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 38,302.00 30,186.00 43,569.13 46,187.00 (16,001.00) -53.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 68,302.00 30,186.00 43,569.13 171,187.00 (141,001.00) -467.1%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (509,854.00) (546,192.00) (228,682.76) (621,269.00) 75,077.00 -13.7%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (509,854.00) (546,192.00) (228,682.76) (621,269.00) 75,077.00 -13.7%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 14,205,580.00 15,175,173.00 7,875,614.99 15,424,881.00 (249,708.00) -1.6%

Page 22 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 6,000.00 6,000.00 303,359.90 309,360.00 (303,360.00) 5056.0%

Page 23 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,226,334.00 2,226,334.00 2,701,606.83 2,226,334.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 18,800.00 18,800.00 20,398.21 18,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 632,060.00 655,638.00 115,220.79 655,638.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,877,194.00 2,900,772.00 2,837,225.83 2,900,772.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 519,395.00 524,052.00 315,959.64 524,052.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,535,844.00 1,609,610.00 950,718.20 1,619,610.00 (10,000.00) -0.6%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 937,873.00 1,053,719.00 558,887.21 1,053,719.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 215,823.00 201,037.00 95,115.79 201,037.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 589,077.00 642,514.00 536,267.56 635,577.00 6,937.00 1.1%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 32,902.00 30,186.00 30,263.08 155,186.00 (125,000.00) -414.1%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,216,177.00) (1,310,734.00) (522,393.37) (1,391,519.00) 80,785.00 -6.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,614,737.00 2,750,384.00 1,964,818.11 2,797,662.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 262,457.00 150,388.00 872,407.72 103,110.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (165,540.00) (165,540.00) 303,359.90 137,820.00

Page 24 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 96,917.00 (15,152.00) 1,175,767.62 240,930.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00 4,240,597.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00 4,240,597.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,014,414.00 4,240,597.00 4,240,597.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,111,331.00 4,225,445.00 4,481,527.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,352,073.00 3,466,187.00 3,709,783.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,760,294.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,874,408.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,118,004.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 758,758.00 758,758.00 771,244.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 25 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,659,902.00 1,420,691.00 2,146,690.42 1,420,691.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 481,199.00 720,410.00 297,838.00 720,410.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 470.79 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 1,254.30 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 2.73 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 458,750.00 218,782.08 458,750.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 33,221.54 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 1,259.73 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 1,951.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 136.24 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 2,701,606.83 2,637,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.00 (5,662.00) 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (405,742.00) (405,742.00) 0.00 (405,742.00) 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,226,334.00 2,226,334.00 2,701,606.83 2,226,334.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290

Page 26 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311

      Prior Years 6500 8319

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 16,170.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,606.21 4,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,622.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 18,800.00 18,800.00 20,398.21 18,800.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 27 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 (577.70) 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 371,324.00 377,725.00 40,615.44 377,725.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 10,367.00 27,794.00 0.00 27,794.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 175,119.00 75,183.05 175,119.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

        From County Offices 6500 8792

        From JPAs 6500 8793

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

        From County Offices 6360 8792

        From JPAs 6360 8793

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 632,060.00 655,638.00 115,220.79 655,638.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,877,194.00 2,900,772.00 2,837,225.83 2,900,772.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 28 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 62,636.00 62,636.00 34,198.30 62,636.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 22,967.00 22,966.29 22,967.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 456,759.00 438,449.00 258,795.05 438,449.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 519,395.00 524,052.00 315,959.64 524,052.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 257.21 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 265,393.00 296,413.00 173,176.72 296,413.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 517,042.00 520,831.00 324,977.73 520,831.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 753,409.00 792,366.00 452,806.54 802,366.00 (10,000.00) -1.3%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 (500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,535,844.00 1,609,610.00 950,718.20 1,619,610.00 (10,000.00) -0.6%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 86,142.00 67,874.00 39,121.13 67,874.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 351,354.00 408,355.00 220,622.11 408,355.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 120,094.00 134,710.00 71,070.75 134,710.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 286,985.00 347,821.00 182,370.86 347,821.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 22,186.00 19,523.00 5,550.35 19,523.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 61,112.00 59,536.00 35,302.04 59,536.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 15,900.00 4,849.97 15,900.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 937,873.00 1,053,719.00 558,887.21 1,053,719.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 181,785.00 163,467.00 70,373.52 163,467.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 34,038.00 37,570.00 24,742.27 37,570.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 215,823.00 201,037.00 95,115.79 201,037.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 81,133.00 69,755.00 22,067.10 69,755.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 34,172.00 49,574.00 43,589.60 49,574.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 115,000.00 130,820.00 122,910.17 130,820.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 105,000.00 129,603.00 44,336.52 129,603.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 92,446.00 100,321.00 60,927.07 100,321.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (68,737.00) (112,240.00) 24,845.00 (112,240.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (286,782.00) (286,782.00) (143,391.12) (293,719.00) 6,937.00 -2.4%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 341,111.00 419,458.00 329,634.10 419,458.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 175,734.00 142,005.00 31,349.12 142,005.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 589,077.00 642,514.00 536,267.56 635,577.00 6,937.00 1.1%

Page 29 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 (125,000.00) New

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 32,902.00 30,186.00 30,263.08 30,186.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 32,902.00 30,186.00 30,263.08 155,186.00 (125,000.00) -414.1%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

      To County Offices 6500 7222

      To JPAs 6500 7223

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

      To County Offices 6360 7222

      To JPAs 6360 7223

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (706,323.00) (764,542.00) (293,710.61) (770,250.00) 5,708.00 -0.7%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (509,854.00) (546,192.00) (228,682.76) (621,269.00) 75,077.00 -13.7%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,216,177.00) (1,310,734.00) (522,393.37) (1,391,519.00) 80,785.00 -6.2%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,614,737.00 2,750,384.00 1,964,818.11 2,797,662.00 (47,278.00) -1.7%

Page 30 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 303,359.90 303,360.00 303,360.00 New

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.00 (171,540.00) 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) (165,540.00) (165,540.00) 303,359.90 137,820.00 303,360.00 -183.3%

Page 31 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 2,161,409.00 212,181.03 2,169,804.00 8,395.00 0.4%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,224,260.00 4,974,362.00 2,965,067.22 5,031,287.00 56,925.00 1.1%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,715,049.00 4,676,736.00 3,989,741.39 4,813,846.00 137,110.00 2.9%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 11,419,303.00 12,218,249.00 7,166,989.64 12,420,679.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,195,146.00 4,448,430.00 2,288,958.73 4,471,930.00 (23,500.00) -0.5%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,664,854.00 2,713,339.00 1,306,900.61 2,717,439.00 (4,100.00) -0.2%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,029,563.00 3,127,308.00 1,280,581.85 3,132,447.00 (5,139.00) -0.2%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 569,493.00 626,239.00 197,782.95 693,968.00 (67,729.00) -10.8%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 390,064.00 735,231.00 519,856.08 795,484.00 (60,253.00) -8.2%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 35,400.00 0.00 13,306.05 16,001.00 (16,001.00) New

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 706,323.00 764,542.00 293,710.61 770,250.00 (5,708.00) -0.7%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 11,590,843.00 12,424,789.00 5,910,796.88 12,627,219.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (171,540.00) (206,540.00) 1,256,192.76 (206,540.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00

Page 32 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 (35,000.00) 1,256,192.76 (35,000.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 10,500.00 187,794.00 187,794.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 10,500.00 187,794.00 187,794.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 10,500.00 187,794.00 187,794.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 10,500.00 152,794.00 152,794.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 10,500.00 152,794.00 152,794.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 33 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 405,742.00 405,742.00 0.00 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 898,212.00 909,545.00 39,676.29 909,545.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 220,373.00 218,017.00 1,521.03 218,017.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 128,483.00 128,483.00 106,309.55 128,483.00 0.00 0.0%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 300.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5630 8290 74,225.00 138,572.00 47,183.15 138,572.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 752,349.00 766,182.00 17,191.01 774,577.00 8,395.00 1.1%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 2,074,252.00 2,161,409.00 212,181.03 2,169,804.00 8,395.00 0.4%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,766,168.00 3,133,756.00 1,788,419.58 3,133,756.00 0.00 0.0%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 47,000.00 47,000.00 5,349.98 47,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 2,400.00 2,400.00 510.70 2,400.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 85,000.00 85,000.00 66,843.54 85,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,244,295.00 1,626,809.00 1,103,943.42 1,683,734.00 56,925.00 3.5%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,224,260.00 4,974,362.00 2,965,067.22 5,031,287.00 56,925.00 1.1%

Page 35 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 15,842.47 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 60,981.00 102,869.00 95,657.21 209,979.00 107,110.00 104.1%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 224,669.00 74,356.00 109,401.71 104,356.00 30,000.00 40.3%

  Tuition 8710 4,401,309.00 4,471,421.00 3,768,840.00 4,471,421.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,715,049.00 4,676,736.00 3,989,741.39 4,813,846.00 137,110.00 2.9%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 11,419,303.00 12,218,249.00 7,166,989.64 12,420,679.00 202,430.00 1.7%

Page 36 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 6 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,434,574.00 2,527,620.00 1,309,535.21 2,537,620.00 (10,000.00) -0.4%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,390,162.00 1,571,080.00 769,885.77 1,571,080.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 259,612.00 257,664.00 155,346.99 271,164.00 (13,500.00) -5.2%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 110,798.00 92,066.00 54,190.76 92,066.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,195,146.00 4,448,430.00 2,288,958.73 4,471,930.00 (23,500.00) -0.5%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,467,251.00 1,560,204.00 716,455.79 1,560,204.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 461,711.00 450,028.00 216,794.10 450,028.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 168,467.00 178,457.00 102,874.09 178,457.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 211,655.00 241,525.00 131,004.80 241,525.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 355,770.00 283,125.00 139,771.83 287,225.00 (4,100.00) -1.4%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,664,854.00 2,713,339.00 1,306,900.61 2,717,439.00 (4,100.00) -0.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,056,724.00 1,127,127.00 355,477.63 1,130,002.00 (2,875.00) -0.3%

  PERS 3201-3202 639,761.00 658,698.00 294,325.12 659,072.00 (374.00) -0.1%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 267,999.00 282,477.00 134,269.68 282,799.00 (322.00) -0.1%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 766,933.00 822,364.00 380,468.65 823,434.00 (1,070.00) -0.1%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 93,548.00 39,502.00 16,864.98 39,578.00 (76.00) -0.2%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 204,598.00 197,140.00 99,175.79 197,562.00 (422.00) -0.2%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,029,563.00 3,127,308.00 1,280,581.85 3,132,447.00 (5,139.00) -0.2%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 308,314.00 365,060.00 117,956.71 414,464.00 (49,404.00) -13.5%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 186,500.00 186,500.00 25,473.08 204,825.00 (18,325.00) -9.8%

  Food 4700 74,679.00 74,679.00 54,353.16 74,679.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 569,493.00 626,239.00 197,782.95 693,968.00 (67,729.00) -10.8%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 58,307.00 66,010.00 37,122.53 86,010.00 (20,000.00) -30.3%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,625.12 4,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 11,586.00 11,586.00 4,292.72 11,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 23,735.00 24,186.00 13,528.45 24,318.00 (132.00) -0.5% 

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 68,737.00 112,240.00 (24,845.00) 112,240.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (334,311.00) (334,311.00) 0.00 (334,311.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 548,472.00 841,982.00 476,322.61 882,103.00 (40,121.00) -4.8%

  Communications 5900 9,538.00 9,538.00 9,809.65 9,538.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 390,064.00 735,231.00 519,856.08 795,484.00 (60,253.00) -8.2%

Page 37 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 7 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 5,400.00 0.00 13,306.05 16,001.00 (16,001.00) New

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 35,400.00 0.00 13,306.05 16,001.00 (16,001.00) New

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 29,700.00 (20,000.00) -206.2%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 706,323.00 764,542.00 293,710.61 770,250.00 (5,708.00) -0.7%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 706,323.00 764,542.00 293,710.61 770,250.00 (5,708.00) -0.7%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 11,590,843.00 12,424,789.00 5,910,796.88 12,627,219.00 (202,430.00) -1.6%

Page 38 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 8 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 171,540.00 171,540.00 0.00 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 39 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:09 AM

2021-22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School Breakfast, Milk, Pr50,168.00
7425 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 91,095.00
7426 Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant: Paraprofessional Staff11,531.00

Total, Restricted Balance 152,794.00

Page 40 of 154



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,632,076.00 5.33% 2,772,366.00 3.61% 2,872,448.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,169,804.00 -33.81% 1,436,223.00 0.00% 1,436,223.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,050,087.00 0.00% 5,050,087.00 0.00% 5,050,087.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 5,469,484.00 6.20% 5,808,548.00 2.74% 5,967,901.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 10000.00% 606,000.00 -99.01% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 -100.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 15,630,811.00 0.27% 15,673,224.00 -2.17% 15,332,659.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,995,982.00 4,866,375.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 74,940.00 72,996.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (204,547.00) 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,995,982.00 -2.59% 4,866,375.00 1.50% 4,939,371.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,337,049.00 4,373,563.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 65,056.00 65,603.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (28,542.00) 27,750.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 4,337,049.00 0.84% 4,373,563.00 2.13% 4,466,916.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,186,166.00 4.79% 4,386,530.00 1.46% 4,450,395.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 895,005.00 -26.08% 661,629.00 0.16% 662,715.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,431,061.00 -13.59% 1,236,576.00 0.00% 1,236,576.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 171,187.00 744.80% 1,446,187.00 -88.16% 171,187.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 29,700.00 0.00% 29,700.00 0.00% 29,700.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (621,269.00) 5.65% (656,376.00) -0.94% (650,191.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 15,424,881.00 5.96% 16,344,184.00 -6.35% 15,306,669.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 205,930.00 (670,960.00) 25,990.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,428,391.00 4,634,321.00 3,963,361.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,634,321.00 3,963,361.00 3,989,351.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Restricted 9740 152,794.00 100,460.00 50,622.00

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Assigned 9780 3,709,783.00 3,045,692.00 3,173,396.00

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,634,321.00 3,963,361.00 3,989,351.00

Page 42 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted)

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances

         (Negative resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

  4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

  1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

      For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

      special education local plan area (SELPA):

      a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation

           the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No

      b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

          education pass-through funds:
          1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

          2. Special education pass-through funds

              (Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546,

               objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for
               subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00 0.00 0.00

  2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

       Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

       (Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 15,424,881.00 16,344,184.00 15,306,669.00

  3. Calculating the Reserves
      a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 15,424,881.00 16,344,184.00 15,306,669.00

      b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
          (Line F3a plus line F3b) 15,424,881.00 16,344,184.00 15,306,669.00

      d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 4% 3% 4%

      e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 616,995.24 490,325.52 612,266.76

      f. Reserve Standard - By Amount

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 316,000.00 632,000.00 316,000.00

      g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 616,995.24 632,000.00 612,266.76

      h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

Page 43 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,226,334.00 5.33% 2,344,998.00 3.61% 2,429,652.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 655,638.00 0.00% 655,638.00 0.00% 655,638.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 10000.00% 606,000.00 -99.01% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 -100.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) -7.29% (159,040.00) 0.00% (159,040.00)

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 3,038,592.00 14.08% 3,466,396.00 -14.87% 2,951,050.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 524,052.00 531,913.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 7,861.00 7,979.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 524,052.00 1.50% 531,913.00 1.50% 539,892.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 1,619,610.00 1,660,154.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 24,294.00 24,902.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments 16,250.00 18,750.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 1,619,610.00 2.50% 1,660,154.00 2.63% 1,703,806.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,053,719.00 7.95% 1,137,458.00 1.64% 1,156,113.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 201,037.00 0.00% 201,037.00 0.00% 201,037.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 635,577.00 -17.11% 526,821.00 0.00% 526,821.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 155,186.00 821.59% 1,430,186.00 -89.15% 155,186.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,391,519.00) 0.79% (1,402,547.00) 0.36% (1,407,633.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 2,797,662.00 46.02% 4,085,022.00 -29.62% 2,875,222.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 240,930.00 (618,626.00) 75,828.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,240,597.00 4,481,527.00 3,862,901.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,481,527.00 3,862,901.00 3,938,729.00

  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00

      b. Restricted 9740

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00

      d. Assigned 9780 3,709,783.00 3,045,692.00 3,173,396.00
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,481,527.00 3,862,901.00 3,938,729.00

Page 44 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
  years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Business Services Director savings, adding a Literacy ManagerBusiness Services Director savings, adding a Literacy Manager

Page 45 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 405,742.00 5.33% 427,368.00 3.61% 442,796.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,169,804.00 -33.81% 1,436,223.00 0.00% 1,436,223.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,031,287.00 0.00% 5,031,287.00 0.00% 5,031,287.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,813,846.00 7.04% 5,152,910.00 3.09% 5,312,263.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 171,540.00 -7.29% 159,040.00 0.00% 159,040.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 12,592,219.00 -3.06% 12,206,828.00 1.43% 12,381,609.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,471,930.00 4,334,462.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 67,079.00 65,017.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments (204,547.00)

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,471,930.00 -3.07% 4,334,462.00 1.50% 4,399,479.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 2,717,439.00 2,713,409.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 40,762.00 40,701.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments (44,792.00) 9,000.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,717,439.00 -0.15% 2,713,409.00 1.83% 2,763,110.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,132,447.00 3.72% 3,249,072.00 1.39% 3,294,282.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 693,968.00 -33.63% 460,592.00 0.24% 461,678.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 795,484.00 -10.78% 709,755.00 0.00% 709,755.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 16,001.00 0.00% 16,001.00 0.00% 16,001.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 29,700.00 0.00% 29,700.00 0.00% 29,700.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 770,250.00 -3.13% 746,171.00 1.51% 757,442.00
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 12,627,219.00 -2.91% 12,259,162.00 1.41% 12,431,447.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (35,000.00) (52,334.00) (49,838.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 187,794.00 152,794.00 100,460.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 152,794.00 100,460.00 50,622.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00

      b. Restricted 9740 152,794.00 100,460.00 50,622.00
      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

          2. Other Commitments 9760

      d. Assigned 9780

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 152,794.00 100,460.00 50,622.00

Page 46 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  4:39 PM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790

(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve
  projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Removal of IAL positionRemoval of IAL position

Page 47 of 154



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference See supporting spreadsheets 2023-24 Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 2,632,076$             -                          140,290                  2,772,366$             140,290                  5.33% -                          100,082                  2,872,448               100,082              3.61%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,169,804$             -                          (733,581)                 1,436,223$             (733,581)                 -33.8% -                          -                          1,436,223               -                      0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,050,087$             -                          -                          5,050,087$             -                          0.0% -                          -                          5,050,087               -                      0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 5,469,484$             -                          339,064                  5,808,548$             339,064                  6.2% -                          159,353                  5,967,901               159,353              2.7%

       TOTAL REVENUES 15,321,451$           -$                        (254,227)$               15,067,224$           (254,227)                 -$                        259,435$                15,326,659$           259,435              

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,995,982$             74,940                    (204,547)                 4,866,375$             (129,607)                 -2.6% 72,996 4,939,370               72,996                1.5%
    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,337,049$             65,056                    (28,542)                   4,373,563$             36,514                    0.8% 65,603 27,750                    4,466,916               93,353                2.1%
    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,186,166$             277,781                  (77,417)                   4,386,530$             200,364                  4.8% 56,864 7,000                      4,450,394               63,864                1.5%
            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 895,005$                -                          (233,376)                 661,629$                (233,376)                 -26.1% -                          1,086                      662,715                  1,086                  0.2%
    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 1,431,061$             -                          (194,485)                 1,236,576$             (194,485)                 -13.6% -                          -                          1,236,576               -                      0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 171,187$                -                          1,275,000               1,446,187$             1,275,000               744.8% -                          (1,275,000)              171,187                  (1,275,000)          -88.2%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700$                  -                          -                          29,700$                  -                          0.0% -                          -                          29,700                    -                      0.0%

7400-7499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (621,269)$               11,154                    (46,260)                   (656,375)$               (35,106)                   5.7% 5,339                      846                         (650,191)                 6,185                  -0.9%

 
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,424,881$           428,931$                490,373$                16,344,184$           919,303                  200,802$                (1,238,318)$            15,306,668$           (1,037,516)          

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (103,430)$               (428,931)$               (744,600)                 (1,276,961)$            (200,802)$               1,497,753               19,991$                  -$                    
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 309,360$                -                          296,640                  606,000$                296,640                  95.9% -                          -                          6,000                      (600,000)             -62572815.5%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 309,360$                -$                        296,640$                606,000$                296,640                  -$                        -$                        6,000$                    (600,000)             

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 205,930$                 (428,931)$               (447,960)$                (670,961)$               296,640$                (200,802)$               1,497,753$              25,991$                  (600,000)$           

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)  
    1. Beginning Balance 4,428,391$             4,634,321 3,963,360$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                        -$                        -$                        
       Ending Balance 4,634,321$               3,963,360$              3,989,351$             

Econ Uncertanties 15,424,881$           771,244                  16,344,184             817,209                  15,306,668                                                 765,333                  

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Combined

2021-22 Second Interim



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference 2023-24 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 405,742$                 -                           21,626                     427,368                   21,626                     5.33% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.33% -                           15,428                     442,796                   15,428               3.61% SSC Dashboard COLA 3.61%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,169,804$             -                           (733,581)                 1,436,223                (733,581)                 -33.8% removed IAL grant (ended) -                           -                           1,436,223                -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,031,287$             -                           5,031,287                -                           0.0% -                           -                           5,031,287                -                     0.0%

    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 4,813,846$             -                           339,064                   5,152,910                339,064                   7.0%  Billback SELPA to Districts -                           159,353                   5,312,263                159,353             3.1%  Billback SELPA to Districts 
-                           -                           -                           -                     

       TOTAL REVENUES 12,420,679$           -$                         (372,891)$               12,047,788             -$                         174,781$                 12,222,569             174,781             

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,471,930                67,079                     (204,547)                 4,334,462                (137,468)                 -3.1%  Step & Column; removed IAL 65,017                     4,399,479                65,017               1.5% Step & Column

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999                 2,717,439                      40,762                     (44,792)                 2,713,409                       (4,030) -0.1%  Step & Column; removed IAL; ELO 40,701                                            9,000                 2,763,110                49,701 1.8% Step & Column; ELO

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,132,447                209,042                   (92,417)                    3,249,072                116,625                   3.7%
 STRS & PERS Increases;
step & column; removed IAL; ELO 43,210                     2,000                       3,294,282                45,210               1.4%

 PERS Decreases;
step & column; ELO 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 693,968                   (233,376)                 460,592                   (233,376)                 -33.6% removed IAL 1,086                       461,678                   1,086                 0.2% ELO

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 795,484                   (85,729)                    709,755                   (85,729)                    -10.8%  removed IAL; ELO 709,755                   -                     0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 16,001                     16,001                     -                           0.0% 16,001                     -                     0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700                     29,700                     -                           0.0% 29,700                     -                     0.0%

7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 770,250                   22,182                     (46,260)                    746,171                   (24,079)                    -3.1%  removed IAL; ELO 10,425                     846                          757,442                   11,271               1.5%  ELO 
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,627,219$           339,064$                 (707,121)$               12,259,162$           159,353$                 12,932$                   12,431,447$           172,285             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (206,540)$               (339,064)$               (211,374)$               (159,353)$               (208,878)$               
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 171,540                   (12,500)                    159,040                   (12,500)                    -7.3% 159,040                   -                     

-                           
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 171,540$                 -$                         (12,500)$                 159,040$                 (12,500)                    -$                         -$                         159,040$                 -                     

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (35,000)$                  (339,064)$               (12,500)$                  (52,334)$                 (159,353)$               -$                          (49,838)$                 

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 187,794$                 152,794$                 100,460$                 
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                         
       Ending Balance 152,794$                   100,460$                  50,622$                   

salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% Other State 0.00%
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 67,079                     40,762                     Step & Col. 1.50% 65,017                     40,701                     
Indirect 7.00% Indirect 7.00%

16.92% STRS 2.18% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
22.91% PERS 2.49% 25.40% PERS -0.20% 25.20%

in Restricted Ending Balance
STRS 94,491                     STRS -                           
PERS 67,564                     PERS (5,526)                      

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Restricted

2021-22 Second Interim



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2022-23 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2023-24
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2021-22 2022-23 Difference 2023-24 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 2,226,334$             -                           118,664                   2,344,998                118,664                   0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.33% -                           84,654                     2,429,652                84,654               0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 3.61%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 18,800$                   -                           18,800                     -                           0.0% -                           18,800                     -                     0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 655,638$                 -                           655,638                   -                           0.0% -                           655,638                   -                     0.0%

-                           -                           -                           -                     
       TOTAL REVENUES 2,900,772$             -$                         118,664$                 3,019,436                -$                         84,654$                   3,104,090                84,654               

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 524,052                   7,861                       531,913                   7,861                       1.5% Step & Column 7,979 539,891                   7,979                 1.5%  Step & Column 

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,619,610                24,294                     16,250                     1,660,154                40,544                     2.5%
 Step & Column; add Literacy mgr (75%); 
BS Director savings 24,902 18,750                     1,703,806                43,652               2.6% Step & Column; add Literacy mgr (25%)

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,053,719                68,739                     15,000                     1,137,458                83,739                     7.9%
 STRS & PERS Increases;
step & column 13,654 5,000                       1,156,113                18,654               1.6%

 PERS Decreases;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 201,037                   -                           -                           201,037                   -                           0.0% -                           201,037                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 635,577                   -                           (108,756)                 526,821                   (108,756)                 -17.1%
 Literacy ipad licenses; remove 5th Street 
Office rent -                           526,821                   -                     0.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 155,186                   -                           1,275,000                1,430,186                1,275,000                821.6%  5th Street Office purchase -                           (1,275,000)              155,186                   (1,275,000)        -89.1% remove one-time 5th Street Office purchase
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%

7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (1,391,519)              (11,028)                    (1,402,547)              (11,028)                    0.8% Step & Column (5,086)                      (1,407,633)              (5,086)                0.4% Step & Column

 -                     
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,797,662$             89,867$                   1,197,494$             4,085,023$             41,449$                   (1,251,250)$            2,875,221$             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
Difference 103,110$                 (89,867)$                 (1,065,587)              (41,449)$                 228,869                   
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 309,360$                 -                           296,640                   606,000                   296,640                   95.9%
 Fund 17 transfer in; removed one-time 
land sale revenues -                           (600,000)                 6,000                       (600,000)           -62572815.5% remove one-time Fund 17 transfer

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540)                 -                           12,500                     (159,040)                 12,500                     -                           (159,040)                 -                     -                                                                      

+ .
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 137,820$                 -$                         309,140$                 446,960$                 309,140                   -$                         (600,000)$               (153,040)$               (600,000)           

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 240,930$                  (89,867)$                 309,140$                  (618,627)$               (41,449)$                 (600,000)$                75,829$                   

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 4,240,597$             4,481,527 3,862,900$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements
       Ending Balance 4,481,527   3,862,900$              3,938,729$             

 salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% -                           -                           Other State 0.00% -                           -                           
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary increase 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increase 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 7,861                       24,294                     Step & Col. 1.50% 7,979                       24,902                     
Indirect 10.93% Indirect 10.93%

16.92% STRS 2.18% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
22.91% PERS 2.49% 25.40% PERS -0.20% 25.20%

PY PY
STRS 11,596                     STRS -                           
PERS 41,338                     PERS (3,408)                      

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Unrestricted

2021-22 Second Interim



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 

separately for revenues for the adult education 

programs. 

 

The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 

 

 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 

 

Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 

education purposes only; money received for 

programs other than adult education shall not be 

expended for adult education (Education Code 

sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 

Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 

direct instructional costs and direct support costs 

and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education has committed 

to the continued education of adult learners with 

this funding. 

Page 51 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 9700

Revenue

5,662 5,662 5,662 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

4,940 4,940 4,940 8200 Federal Revenue

8,753 8,753 8,753 8500 Other State Revenue

252,958 252,958 252,958 8600 Other Local Revenue

.00 272,313 272,313 272,313 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

118,484 118,484 118,484 1100 Teacher Salaries

25,095 25,095 25,095 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 .00 143,579 143,579 143,579 

9,517 9,517 9,517 2100 Para Educator Salaries

19,033 19,033 19,033 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

Total for Object 2000 .00 28,550 28,550 28,550 

21,170 21,170 21,170 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

4,378 4,378 4,378 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

11,123 11,123 11,123 3300 Social Security/Medicare

7,254 7,254 7,254 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

5,446 5,446 5,446 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

8,284 8,284 8,284 3600 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 .00 57,655 57,655 57,655 

10,862 10,862 10,862 4300 Materials and Supplies

1,000 1,000 1,000 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 .00 11,862 11,862 11,862 

4,692 4,692 4,692 5200 Travel/Conference

13,919 13,919 13,919 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:33AM 

Page 1 of 2

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 11, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 52 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

1,000 1,000 1,000 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 .00 19,611 19,611 19,611 

11,056 11,056 11,056 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

.00 272,313 272,313 272,313 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 9700

Total for Org 001, Fund 11

Starting Balance 25,932 102,137 102,137 .00 

Revenue 272,313 272,313 272,313 .00 

Expense 272,313 272,313 272,313 .00 

25,932 102,137 102,137 .00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 25,932 .00 102,137 102,137 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:33AM 

Page 2 of 2

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 11, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 53 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,940.00 4,940.00 1,090.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 252,958.00 252,958.00 92,184.71 252,958.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 272,313.00 272,313.00 93,274.71 272,313.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 143,579.00 143,579.00 31,427.48 143,579.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 28,550.00 28,550.00 20,732.21 28,550.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 57,655.00 57,655.00 10,621.93 57,655.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 11,862.00 11,862.00 4,091.29 11,862.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 19,611.00 19,611.00 50,552.06 19,611.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 11,056.00 11,056.00 1,343.68 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 272,313.00 272,313.00 118,769.65 272,313.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (25,494.94) 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 54 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (25,494.94) 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 25,932.00 102,137.00 102,137.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 25,932.00 102,137.00 102,137.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 25,932.00 102,137.00 102,137.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 25,932.00 102,137.00 102,137.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 25,932.00 102,137.00 102,137.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 55 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 

LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.00 5,662.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 4,940.00 4,940.00 1,090.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 4,940.00 4,940.00 1,090.00 4,940.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 190,180.00 190,180.00 0.00 190,180.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 62,778.00 62,778.00 92,184.71 62,778.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 252,958.00 252,958.00 92,184.71 252,958.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 272,313.00 272,313.00 93,274.71 272,313.00

Page 56 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 118,484.00 118,484.00 15,807.83 118,484.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 25,095.00 25,095.00 15,619.65 25,095.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 143,579.00 143,579.00 31,427.48 143,579.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 9,517.00 9,517.00 10,887.18 9,517.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 19,033.00 19,033.00 9,845.03 19,033.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 28,550.00 28,550.00 20,732.21 28,550.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 21,170.00 21,170.00 1,357.64 21,170.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 4,378.00 4,378.00 2,255.50 4,378.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 11,123.00 11,123.00 2,164.16 11,123.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 7,254.00 7,254.00 3,138.48 7,254.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5,446.00 5,446.00 260.43 5,446.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 8,284.00 8,284.00 1,445.72 8,284.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 57,655.00 57,655.00 10,621.93 57,655.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 10,862.00 10,862.00 4,091.29 10,862.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 11,862.00 11,862.00 4,091.29 11,862.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 57 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 4,692.00 4,692.00 85.45 4,692.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 935.19 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 550.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 13,919.00 13,919.00 0.00 13,919.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,000.00 1,000.00 46,817.74 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 2,163.11 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 19,611.00 19,611.00 50,552.06 19,611.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 11,056.00 11,056.00 1,343.68 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 11,056.00 11,056.00 1,343.68 11,056.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 272,313.00 272,313.00 118,769.65 272,313.00  

Page 58 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 6 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 59 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 12,256.00

6391 Adult Education Program 89,881.00

Total, Restricted Balance 102,137.00

Page 60 of 154



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 

 
The Child Development Fund is used to 

account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues to operate child development 

programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 

fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 

 State Preschool 

      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 

 Child Development Apportionments  

 Interest 

 Child Development Parent Fees 

  

 

The Child Development Fund may be used only 

for expenditures for the operation of child 

development programs. 

 

Page 61 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

150,418 266,483 266,483 9700

Revenue

3,923,409 4,337,584 5,167,686 830,102.00 8200 Federal Revenue

4,310,489 4,372,864 5,081,418 708,554.00 8500 Other State Revenue

225,402 447,162 451,962 4,800.00 8600 Other Local Revenue

1,543,456.00 10,701,066 9,157,610 8,459,300 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

964,329 1,048,329 1,060,329 12,000.00 1100 Teacher Salaries

273,055 275,369 275,369 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 12,000.00 1,335,698 1,323,698 1,237,384 

726,438 746,438 761,260 14,822.00 2100 Para Educator Salaries

261,064 261,064 266,268 5,204.00 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

259,673 259,673 261,673 2,000.00 2400 Clerical/Office Salaries

390,025 390,025 393,731 3,706.00 2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 25,732.00 1,682,932 1,657,200 1,637,200 

411,011 421,649 421,649 3100 STRS State Teachers Retirement

381,958 390,748 392,394 1,646.00 3200 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

140,627 148,486 150,037 1,551.00 3300 Social Security/Medicare

283,614 305,001 306,001 1,000.00 3400 Health & Welfare Insurance

33,291 34,141 34,642 501.00 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

86,569 89,669 90,189 520.00 3600 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 5,218.00 1,394,912 1,389,694 1,337,070 

210,982 308,350 315,170 6,820.00 4300 Materials and Supplies

31,433 47,989 47,989 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

62,681 62,681 62,681 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 6,820.00 425,840 419,020 305,096 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:34AM 

Page 1 of 2

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 12, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 62 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

64,504 64,504 66,504 2,000.00 5200 Travel/Conference

13,816 13,416 13,416 5300 Dues/Memberships

1,732 1,732 1,732 5400 Property/Liab.Insurance

168,138 167,921 167,921 5500 Utilities

119,379 118,529 121,430 2,901.00 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

607,174 607,174 614,111 6,937.00 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

2,435,109 2,663,273 4,070,044 1,406,771.00 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

96,958 96,658 96,658 5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,418,609.00 5,151,816 3,733,207 3,506,810 

498,798 535,136 610,213 75,077.00 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

1,543,456.00 10,601,411 9,057,955 8,522,358 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

87,360 366,138 366,138 9700

Total for Org 001, Fund 12

Starting Balance 150,418 266,483 266,483 .00 

Revenue 8,459,300 9,157,610 10,701,066 1,543,456.00 

Expense 8,522,358 9,057,955 10,601,411 1,543,456.00 

87,360 366,138 366,138 .00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 87,360 .00 366,138 366,138 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:34AM 

Page 2 of 2

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 12, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 63 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,923,409.00 4,337,584.00 2,256,059.65 5,167,686.00 830,102.00 19.1%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,310,489.00 4,372,864.00 2,365,368.26 5,081,418.00 708,554.00 16.2%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 225,402.00 447,162.00 169,569.14 451,962.00 4,800.00 1.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 8,459,300.00 9,157,610.00 4,790,997.05 10,701,066.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,237,384.00 1,323,698.00 742,295.29 1,335,698.00 (12,000.00) -0.9%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,637,200.00 1,657,200.00 864,951.01 1,682,932.00 (25,732.00) -1.6%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,337,070.00 1,389,694.00 605,959.76 1,394,912.00 (5,218.00) -0.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 305,096.00 419,020.00 198,833.24 425,840.00 (6,820.00) -1.6%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3,506,810.00 3,733,207.00 1,394,747.01 5,151,816.00 (1,418,609.00) -38.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 19,027.53 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 498,798.00 535,136.00 227,339.08 610,213.00 (75,077.00) -14.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,522,358.00 9,057,955.00 4,053,152.92 10,601,411.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (63,058.00) 99,655.00 737,844.13 99,655.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 64 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) (63,058.00) 99,655.00 737,844.13 99,655.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 150,418.00 266,483.00 266,483.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 150,418.00 266,483.00 266,483.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 150,418.00 266,483.00 266,483.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 87,360.00 366,138.00 366,138.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 25,700.00 140,572.00 140,572.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 61,660.00 225,566.00 225,566.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 65 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 332,060.00 332,060.00 174,679.59 332,060.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 3,591,349.00 4,005,524.00 2,081,380.06 4,835,626.00 830,102.00 20.7%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,923,409.00 4,337,584.00 2,256,059.65 5,167,686.00 830,102.00 19.1%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 9,032.00 9,032.00 4,383.43 9,032.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 1,155,940.00 1,157,609.00 577,410.00 1,186,375.00 28,766.00 2.5%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 1,869,792.00 1,930,498.00 1,093,767.83 1,930,498.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,275,725.00 1,275,725.00 689,807.00 1,955,513.00 679,788.00 53.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,310,489.00 4,372,864.00 2,365,368.26 5,081,418.00 708,554.00 16.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 14,143.00 14,143.00 (1.66) 14,143.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 4,800.00 4,800.00 0.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 125,404.00 250,564.00 163,221.85 250,564.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 81,055.00 177,655.00 6,348.95 182,455.00 4,800.00 2.7%

      All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 225,402.00 447,162.00 169,569.14 451,962.00 4,800.00 1.1%

TOTAL, REVENUES 8,459,300.00 9,157,610.00 4,790,997.05 10,701,066.00

Page 66 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 964,329.00 1,048,329.00 562,725.16 1,060,329.00 (12,000.00) -1.1%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 273,055.00 275,369.00 179,570.13 275,369.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,237,384.00 1,323,698.00 742,295.29 1,335,698.00 (12,000.00) -0.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 726,438.00 746,438.00 361,557.22 761,260.00 (14,822.00) -2.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 261,064.00 261,064.00 154,943.35 266,268.00 (5,204.00) -2.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 259,673.00 259,673.00 145,588.24 261,673.00 (2,000.00) -0.8%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 390,025.00 390,025.00 202,862.20 393,731.00 (3,706.00) -1.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,637,200.00 1,657,200.00 864,951.01 1,682,932.00 (25,732.00) -1.6%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 411,011.00 421,649.00 100,996.43 421,649.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 381,958.00 390,748.00 203,691.96 392,394.00 (1,646.00) -0.4%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 140,627.00 148,486.00 82,742.50 150,037.00 (1,551.00) -1.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 283,614.00 305,001.00 166,058.19 306,001.00 (1,000.00) -0.3%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 33,291.00 34,141.00 7,802.42 34,642.00 (501.00) -1.5%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 86,569.00 89,669.00 44,668.26 90,189.00 (520.00) -0.6%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,337,070.00 1,389,694.00 605,959.76 1,394,912.00 (5,218.00) -0.4%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 210,982.00 308,350.00 126,574.84 315,170.00 (6,820.00) -2.2%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 31,433.00 47,989.00 56,415.93 47,989.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 62,681.00 62,681.00 15,842.47 62,681.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 305,096.00 419,020.00 198,833.24 425,840.00 (6,820.00) -1.6%

Page 67 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 64,504.00 64,504.00 10,099.13 66,504.00 (2,000.00) -3.1%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 13,816.00 13,416.00 8,053.21 13,416.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 1,732.00 1,732.00 3,554.00 1,732.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 168,138.00 167,921.00 58,622.27 167,921.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 119,379.00 118,529.00 59,532.08 121,430.00 (2,901.00) -2.4%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 607,174.00 607,174.00 143,391.12 614,111.00 (6,937.00) -1.1%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 2,435,109.00 2,663,273.00 1,060,328.99 4,070,044.00 (1,406,771.00) -52.8%

  Communications 5900 96,958.00 96,658.00 51,166.21 96,658.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 3,506,810.00 3,733,207.00 1,394,747.01 5,151,816.00 (1,418,609.00) -38.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 19,027.53 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 19,027.53 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 498,798.00 535,136.00 227,339.08 610,213.00 (75,077.00) -14.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 498,798.00 535,136.00 227,339.08 610,213.00 (75,077.00) -14.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,522,358.00 9,057,955.00 4,053,152.92 10,601,411.00  

Page 68 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 6 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 69 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:23 AM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca536.00

6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 132,859.00

6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account for Department of Social2,422.00

6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account for Department of Social4,755.00

Total, Restricted Balance 140,572.00

Page 70 of 154



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 

federal forest reserve funds received by offices 

of county superintendents for distribution to 

school districts and community college 

districts (Education Code Section 2300; 

Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 9700

Revenue

41,354 41,354 41,354 8200 Federal Revenue

200 200 200 8600 Other Local Revenue

.00 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 35,554 7200 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 6,000 7600 Other Financing Uses

.00 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 9700

Total for Org 001, Fund 16

Starting Balance 39,793 35,358 35,358 .00 

Revenue 41,554 41,554 41,554 .00 

Expense 41,554 41,554 41,554 .00 

39,793 35,358 35,358 .00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 39,793 .00 35,358 35,358 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:34AM 

Page 1 of 1

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 16, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 72 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 32.96 41,554.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 6,000.00 6,000.00 32.96 6,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 0.00 (6,000.00)

Page 73 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 32.96 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 39,793.00 35,358.00 35,358.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 39,793.00 35,358.00 35,358.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 39,793.00 35,358.00 35,358.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 39,793.00 35,358.00 35,358.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 39,793.00 35,358.00 35,358.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 74 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Forest Reserve Funds 8260 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Interest 8660 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 200.00 200.00 32.96 200.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 32.96 41,554.00

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00  

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 75 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 76 of 154



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

 

 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 

Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 

the accumulation of General Fund money for 

general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 

purchases of large items such as copy 

machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 

hardware upgrades. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

897,911 886,181 886,181 9700

Revenue

18,000 18,000 18,000 8600 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

915,911 904,181 904,181 9700

Total for Org 001, Fund 17

Starting Balance 897,911 886,181 886,181 .00 

Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 .00 

915,911 904,181 904,181 .00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 915,911 .00 904,181 904,181 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:35AM 

Page 1 of 1

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 17, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 78 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 79 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 897,911.00 886,181.00 886,181.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 897,911.00 886,181.00 886,181.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 897,911.00 886,181.00 886,181.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 915,911.00 904,181.00 904,181.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 915,911.00 904,181.00 904,181.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 80 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 (16.93) 18,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 81 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:24 AM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 82 of 154



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 

TRUST FUND 73 

 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 

or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 

that benefit individuals, private organizations, 

or other governments and under which neither 

principal nor income may be used for purposes 

that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 

trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 

covered by a formal trust agreement should be 

accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 

the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 

be expended only for the specific purposes of 

the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 

41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83 of 154



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2nd Inter.

Budget

2021/22

1st Inter.

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

70,346 69,160 69,160 9700

Revenue

3,000 3,000 3,000 8600 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

73,346 72,160 72,160 9700

Total for Org 001, Fund 73

Starting Balance 70,346 69,160 69,160 .00 

Revenue 3,000 3,000 3,000 .00 

73,346 72,160 72,160 .00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 73,346 .00 72,160 72,160 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Mar  1 2022  7:35AM 

Page 1 of 1

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 1/31/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 84 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES     

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 85 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 70,346.00 69,160.00 69,160.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 70,346.00 69,160.00 69,160.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 70,346.00 69,160.00 69,160.00

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 73,346.00 72,160.00 72,160.00

        Components of Ending Net Position

        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00  0.00

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 73,346.00 72,160.00  72,160.00

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 86 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 75.49 500.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 75.49 3,000.00

Page 87 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 88 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 89 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

06 10066 0000000
Form 73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 04/19/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/22/2022  11:25 AM

2021/22
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 72,160.00

Total, Restricted Net Position 72,160.00

Page 90 of 154



 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  3:02 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

01I  COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 (628,030.00) 0.00 (621,269.00)
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 6,000.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
08I  STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
09I  CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
10I  SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
11I  ADULT EDUCATION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 13,919.00 0.00 11,056.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
12I  CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 614,111.00 0.00 610,213.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
13I  CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
14I  DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
15I  PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
16I  FOREST RESERVE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 6,000.00
       Fund Reconciliation
17I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
18I  SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
19I  FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
20I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
21I  BUILDING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
25I  CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
30I  STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
35I COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
40I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
53I  TAX OVERRIDE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
56I  DEBT SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
57I  FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation

Page 92 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  3:02 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

61I  CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
62I  CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
63I  OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
66I  WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
67I  SELF-INSURANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
71I  RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
73I  FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
76I  WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
95I  STUDENT BODY FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
             TOTALS 628,030.00 (628,030.00) 621,269.00 (621,269.00) 6,000.00 6,000.00

Page 93 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed:  2/28/2022  3:02 PM

Funds 01, 09, and 62

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2021-22
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 15,424,881.00

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 2,162,684.00

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 162,792.00

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 29,700.00

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00

9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 812.00

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 4,499,215.00

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2.

10. Total state and local expenditures not  
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 4,692,519.00

1000-7143,

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 0.00

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1.

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 8,569,678.00

Page 94 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed:  2/28/2022  3:02 PM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2021-22
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form AI, Column D, sum of lines B1d and C9)*

5.00

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 1,713,935.60

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year
Unaudited Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not
met, in its final determination, CDE will adjust the prior year base to 90
percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual prior year
expenditure amount.) 7,657,844.62 717,698.65
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  7,657,844.62 717,698.65

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 6,892,060.16 645,928.79

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 8,569,678.00 1,713,935.60

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2023-24 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form AI. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated
  Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

Page 95 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed:  2/28/2022  3:02 PM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

Page 96 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  2/22/2022 11:27 AM

Beginning

Object

Balances
(Ref. Only) July August September October November December January February

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF
(Enter Month Name): Oct

A. BEGINNING CASH 1,952,943.20 2,190,657.37 3,039,725.12 3,064,024.47 3,407,179.81 3,608,327.44 3,083,789.82 4,460,436.70
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 87,062.46 1,227,870.46 166,351.50 315,270.50 166,822.29 25,389.00 25,389.00 25,389.00
           Property Taxes 8020-8079 33,812.07 222,659.31 28,763.00
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 14.44 121.80 (4,450.24)
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299 94,969.36 16,247.07 24,682.27 13,031.65 63,250.68 311,524.59
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599 204,390.91 184,538.72 883,843.28 455,188.11 365,301.32 362,453.18 529,749.91 372,924.31
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,082,636.23 399,661.67 17,788.44 787,350.89 (25,845.53) 50,473.88 1,792,896.60 232,904.36
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 303,359.90
    TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,374,089.60 1,812,070.85 1,162,952.58 1,574,056.57 868,146.76 674,128.82 2,406,835.95 971,505.26
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 89,652.91 425,551.41 426,912.09 421,467.73 424,125.02 407,954.74 409,254.47 433,433.15
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999 183,000.19 341,346.86 357,362.55 342,750.01 344,795.19 342,529.72 345,834.29 352,158.96
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999 118,472.36 283,330.26 289,021.95 282,837.49 289,351.28 289,473.67 286,982.05 380,496.25
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999 21,756.84 15,995.84 39,277.89 54,918.31 43,644.51 68,178.26 49,127.09 110,421.25
    Services 5000-5999 396,413.17 66,112.80 61,735.99 139,865.77 25,867.34 303,992.55 62,136.02 64,987.47
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599 13,306.05 30,263.08
    Other Outgo 7000-7499 9,700.00 (100,000.00) (228,682.76)
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 809,295.47 1,142,037.17 1,187,616.52 1,241,839.31 1,127,783.34 1,312,128.94 954,914.24 1,341,497.08
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 (500.00)
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 (2,978,760.83) 60,044.18 228,803.75 118,263.23 75,032.51 226,585.19 96,038.93 14,313.00
    Due From Other Funds 9310 (29,429.12)
    Stores 9320 (16,436.14)
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330 (141,802.31) 141,802.31
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL (3,166,928.40) 201,846.49 228,803.75 118,263.23 75,032.51 226,585.19 96,038.93 14,313.00 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599 (513,293.79) 528,926.45 49,769.68 (108,117.47) 64,094.43 (234,199.02) (17,423.57) 89,587.83
    Due To Other Funds 9610 (273.59) (496.98)
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650 (177,914.39) 177,914.39
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL (691,481.77) 528,926.45 49,769.68 69,299.94 64,094.43 (234,199.02) (17,423.57) 89,587.83 0.00
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (2,475,446.63) (327,079.96) 179,034.07 48,963.29 10,938.08 460,784.21 113,462.50 (75,274.83) 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 237,714.17 849,067.75 24,299.35 343,155.34 201,147.63 (524,537.62) 1,376,646.88 (369,991.82)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 2,190,657.37 3,039,725.12 3,064,024.47 3,407,179.81 3,608,327.44 3,083,789.82 4,460,436.70 4,090,444.88

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

Page 97 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  2/22/2022 11:27 AM

Object
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

(Enter Month Name): Oct
A. BEGINNING CASH
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
           Property Taxes 8020-8079
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999
    Services 5000-5999
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599
    Other Outgo 7000-7499
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
    Due From Other Funds 9310
    Stores 9320
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599
    Due To Other Funds 9610
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E)

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

4,090,444.88 3,720,453.06 3,376,855.48 2,885,138.74

25,389.00 25,389.00 25,389.00 25,389.79 100,000.00 2,241,101.00 2,141,101.00
28,763.00 28,763.00 28,763.00 28,763.00 95,002.62 495,289.00 495,289.00

(4,314.00) (4,314.00)
311,524.59 311,524.59 311,524.59 311,524.61 400,000.00 2,169,804.00 2,169,804.00
372,924.31 372,924.31 372,924.31 372,924.33 200,000.00 5,050,087.00 5,050,087.00
232,904.36 232,904.36 232,904.36 232,904.38 200,000.00 5,469,484.00 5,469,484.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
303,359.90 303,360.00

971,505.26 971,505.26 971,505.26 977,506.11 995,002.62 0.00 15,730,810.90 15,630,811.00

433,433.15 433,433.15 433,433.15 433,433.17 223,897.86 4,995,982.00 4,995,982.00
352,158.96 352,158.96 352,158.96 352,158.96 318,635.39 4,337,049.00 4,337,049.00
380,496.25 380,496.25 380,496.25 630,377.00 194,334.94 4,186,166.00 4,186,166.00
110,421.25 110,421.25 110,421.25 110,421.26 50,000.00 895,005.00 895,005.00
64,987.47 64,987.47 64,987.47 64,987.48 50,000.00 1,431,061.00 1,431,061.00

121,724.92 5,892.95 171,187.00 171,187.00
(26,394.24) (246,192.00) (591,569.00) (591,569.00)

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

1,341,497.08 1,315,102.84 1,463,222.00 1,351,078.82 836,868.19 0.00 15,424,881.00 15,424,881.00

0.00
819,080.79

0.00
0.00

141,802.31
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 960,883.10

372,638.33
(496.98)

0.00
177,914.39

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 550,055.74

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 410,827.36

(369,991.82) (343,597.58) (491,716.74) (373,572.71) 158,134.43 0.00 716,757.26 205,930.00
3,720,453.06 3,376,855.48 2,885,138.74 2,511,566.03

2,669,700.46

Page 98 of 154



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 1 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than
two percent since first interim projections. Projected ADA for county operated programs has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more
than two percent since first interim projections.

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be
extracted for the two subsequent years; otherwise enter this data. Second Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent
years into the second column.

Estimated Funded ADA

First Interim Second Interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals

Program / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 1A) (Form AI) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Status

County and Charter School
Alternative Education Grant ADA
(Form AI, Lines B1d and C2d)

Current Year (2021-22) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5.00 5.00 0.0% Met

District Funded County Program ADA
(Form AI, Line B2g)

Current Year (2021-22) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 16.10 16.10 0.0% Met

County Operations Grant ADA
(Form AI, Line B5)

Current Year (2021-22) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met

Charter School ADA and Charter School
Funded County Program ADA
(Form AI, Lines C1 and C3f)

Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.0% Met

1B. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY:  Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant and county operated programs has not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of
the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 100 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 2 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD:  Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than two percent
since first interim projections.

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the
two subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue  

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)  

First Interim Second Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 2A) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2021-22) 2,637,738.00 2,637,738.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,697,351.00 2,772,366.00 2.8% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 2,781,239.00 2,872,448.00 3.3% Not Met

2B. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Governor's 2022-2023 budget was presented in January 2022 with increased COLA for the next two years. 

Page 101 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 3 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five
percent since first interim projections.

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists,
Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data.

Salaries and Benefits
Second Interim

First Interim Projected Year Totals

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999)
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 3A) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) Percent Change Status

Current Year (2021-22) 13,476,458.00 13,519,197.00 0.3% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 13,654,002.00 13,626,468.00 -0.2% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 13,938,492.00 13,856,682.00 -0.6% Met

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Total salaries and benefits have not changed since first interim by more than the standard for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 102 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 4 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services
and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since first interim
projections.

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained.

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. Second Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If Second Interim Form MYPI
exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column.

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range.

First Interim Second interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals  Change Is Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 4A) (Fund 01/Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (MYPI, Line A2)

Current Year (2021-22) 2,161,409.00 2,169,804.00 0.4% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,427,828.00 1,436,223.00 0.6% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,427,828.00 1,436,223.00 0.6% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2021-22) 4,993,162.00 5,050,087.00 1.1% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,993,162.00 5,050,087.00 1.1% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 4,993,162.00 5,050,087.00 1.1% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Year (2021-22) 5,332,374.00 5,469,484.00 2.6% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5,690,538.00 5,808,548.00 2.1% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5,885,085.00 5,967,901.00 1.4% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2021-22) 827,276.00 895,005.00 8.2% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 593,900.00 661,629.00 11.4% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 594,986.00 662,715.00 11.4% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increased funding resulted in an increase in expenditures. 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2021-22) 1,377,745.00 1,431,061.00 3.9% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,305,216.00 1,236,576.00 -5.3% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,305,216.00 1,236,576.00 -5.3% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increased funding resulted in an increase in expenditures.

Page 103 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 5 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

First Interim Second Interim
Object Range / Fiscal Year Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenues (Section 4A)
Current Year (2021-22) 12,486,945.00 12,689,375.00 1.6% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 12,111,528.00 12,294,858.00 1.5% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 12,306,075.00 12,454,211.00 1.2% Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4A)
Current Year (2021-22) 2,205,021.00 2,326,066.00 5.5% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,899,116.00 1,898,205.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,900,202.00 1,899,291.00 0.0% Met

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected total operating revenues have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

Federal Revenue

(linked from 4A

if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other State Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring
the projected operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increased funding resulted in an increase in expenditures. 

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increased funding resulted in an increase in expenditures.

Page 104 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 6 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since first interim projections in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as
required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities
for their normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major
Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY:  Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if First Interim data does not exist. First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data into lines 1, if
applicable, and 2. All other data are extracted.

Second Interim Contribution
Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 78,442.11 171,540.00 Met

2. First Interim Contribution (information only) 171,540.00
(Form 01CSI, First Interim, Criterion 5, Line 1)

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

  Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)

  Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:

(required if NOT met

and Other is marked)

Page 105 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 7 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's
available reserves¹ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses² in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County
School Service Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted
resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its
participating members.

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

County Office's Available Reserves Percentage
(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

County Office's Deficit Standard Percentage Levels
(one-third of available reserves percentage): 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

6B. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes,
enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):
1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 

calculations for deficit spending and reserves? No
2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:

a.  Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
b.  Special Education Pass-through Funds 
     (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 
     objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00

6C. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and
second columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in Total Unrestricted Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Deficit Spending Level

(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-7999) (If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status

Current Year (2021-22) 240,930.00 2,797,662.00 N/A Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) (618,626.00) 4,085,022.00 15.1% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 75,828.00 2,875,222.00 N/A Met

6D. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Unrestricted deficit spending has exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons for
the deficit spending, a description of the methods and assumptions used in balancing the unrestricted budget, and what changes will be made to ensure that the budget deficits are
eliminated or are balanced within the standard.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

CCOE is purchasing a building for administrative office in 2022-23.

Page 106 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 8 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent
fiscal years.

7A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Ending Fund Balance

County School Service Fund  

Projected Year Totals  

Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 )/(Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2021-22) 4,634,321.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 3,963,361.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 3,989,351.00 Met

7A-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance
County School Service Fund 

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status
Current Year (2021-22) 2,511,566.03 Met

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Page 107 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 9 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves¹ for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or
amounts as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses²:

Percentage Level³
County Office Total Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses³
5% or      $71,000 (greater of)                                  0   to             $6,317,999
4% or    $316,000 (greater of)                  $6,318,000   to           $15,794,999
3% or    $632,000 (greater of)                $15,795,000   to           $71,078,000
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of)                $71,078,001 and                 over

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

³ Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment, as
referenced in EC Section 2574, rounded to the nearest thousand.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: 15,424,881 16,344,184 15,306,669

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 4% 3% 4%

Page 108 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 10 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 15,424,881.00 16,344,184.00 15,306,669.00

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 6B, Line 2b if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line A1 plus Line A2) 15,424,881.00 16,344,184.00 15,306,669.00

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 4% 3% 4%

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line A3 times Line A4) 616,995.24 490,325.52 612,266.76

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount

(From percentage level chart above) 316,000.00 632,000.00 316,000.00
7. County Office's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line A5 or Line A6) 616,995.24 632,000.00 612,266.76

8B. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Current Year

Reserve Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic

Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in

Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative,
for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00
6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. County Office's Available Reserve Amount     

(Lines B1 thru B7) 771,244.00 817,209.00 765,333.00
9. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)

(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7): 616,995.24 632,000.00 612,266.76

Status: Met Met Met

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 109 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 11 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the budget? No

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time 
revenues that have changed since first interim projections by more than five percent? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings between funds?

(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

Page 110 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 12 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year
and two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the county school service fund budget.

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard:
-5.0% to +5.0%

or -$20,000 to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter
Second Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the
data will be extracted into the Second Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the
appropriate button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated.

First Interim Second Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2021-22) (171,540.00) (171,540.00) 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) (171,540.00) (159,040.00) -7.3% (12,500.00) Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) (171,540.00) (159,040.00) -7.3% (12,500.00) Met

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2021-22) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 6,000.00 606,000.00 10000.0% 600,000.00 Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns

Have capital project cost overruns occurred since first interim projections that may impact
the county school service fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d.

1a. MET - Projected contributions have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1b. NOT MET - The projected transfers in to the county school service fund have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for any of the current year or
subsequent two fiscal years. Identify the amounts transferred, by fund, and whether transfers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If ongoing, explain the county office's plan, with
timeframes, for reducing or eliminating the transfers.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

CCOE will transfer 600,000 from special reserve fund 17 to purchase administrative building.

Page 111 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 13 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since first interim projections that may impact the county school service fund operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if YES)

Page 112 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 14 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments¹ and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If First Interim (Form 01CSI, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b.
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and enter
all other data, as applicable.

1. a.  Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments?
     (If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred
     since first interim projections? No

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2021

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences 0000 Resource 105,000

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 105,000

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued): (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Payments: 0 0 0 0
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2020-21)? No No No

Page 113 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 15 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. No - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if Yes to
increase in total

annual payments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes)

Page 114 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 16 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since first interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation.

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and
Second Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office provide postemployment benefits

     other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in OPEB liabilities?

No

c.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in OPEB contributions?

No

First Interim
2. OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim

a.   Total OPEB liability 482,821.00 482,821.00
b.   OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 0.00 0.00

c.   Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 482,821.00 482,821.00
d.   Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's
      estimate or an actuarial valuation? Actuarial Actuarial
e.   If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement
     date of the OPEB valuation Jun 02, 2021 Jun 02, 2021

3. OPEB Contributions
a.   OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, First Interim
      per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim
          Current Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

b.   OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
      (Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)
          Current Year (2021-22) 15,900.00 15,900.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

c.   Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
          Current Year (2021-22) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00

d.   Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
          Current Year (2021-22) 1 1
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1 1
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0 0

4. Comments:

Page 115 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 17 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and
Second Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs 
     such as workers' compensation, employee health and
     welfare, or property and liability? (Do not include OPEB,
     which is covered in Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4)

No

b.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in self-insurance liabilities? n/a

c.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in self-insurance contributions?

n/a

First Interim

2. Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim

a.  Accrued liability for self-insurance programs
b.  Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs

3. Self-Insurance Contributions First Interim
a.  Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim
          Current Year (2021-22)
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23)
          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24)

b.  Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
          Current Year (2021-22)
          1st Subsequent Year (2022-23)

          2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24)

4. Comments:

Page 116 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 18 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since first interim projections, as well as new commitments provided as
part of previously ratified multiyear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the
date of the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded
in future fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California
Department of Education (CDE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent
of schools.

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? Yes

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.

If No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of certificated (non-management) full-
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 49.6 57.0 57.0 57.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 

have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. n/a

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Page 117 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 19 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim Projections

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior year
settlements included in the interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Certificated (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim projections and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence,
bonuses, etc.):

Page 118 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 20 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections?

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C. Yes
If No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of classified (non-management) FTE
positions 57.5 109.0 109.0 109.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. n/a

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Page 119 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 21 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim for prior year settlements
included in the interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

Page 120 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 22 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S8C. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period."  There are no
extractions in this section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? Yes

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.
If No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 10.0 13.0 13.0 13.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete question 2. n/a

If No, complete questions 3 and 4.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? No

If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections

2. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

Total cost of salary settlement

Change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs?
2. Cost of step & column adjustments
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of other benefits

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year

Page 121 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 23 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an
interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

1. Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to have a 
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? No

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report
for each fund.

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negative balance(s)
and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

Page 122 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 24 of 24 Printed:  2/28/2022  2:48 PM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but
may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through A8; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? (Data from Criterion 7B-1, Cash Balance, No
are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
No

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 
No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's
ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? No

A5. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that No
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

A6. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees? No

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
(If Yes, provide copies to the CDE.) No

A8. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? No

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

End of County Office Second Interim Criteria and Standards Review

Page 123 of 154



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE (SACS) 
                                                                Fund –Resource-Year – Object – Goal – Function – School –Budget Rep-Type 
                                                                     X – XXXX – X – XXXX – XXXX – XXXX – XXX – XXXX-XXXX 

 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures (1000-1999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teacher’s Salaries 

1101 Teacher’s Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1105 Teacher’s Salaries – Substitutes 

1150 Teacher’s Salaries – Extended Session 

1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Regular 

1201 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1300 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators – Regular 

1311 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators’ – Extra 

1320 Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1330 Assistant Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1901 Other Certificated Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries 

 2100 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Regular 

2101 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2102 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Temps 

2105 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Substitutes 

2106 Instructional Aides’ Salaries - Overtime 

2150 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extended Session 

2200 Classified Support Salaries – Regular 

2205 Class Support Salaries – Subs 

2206 Classified Support Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2250 Classified Support Salaries – Extended Session 

2300 Classified Supervisors’ & Administrators’ Sal. – Reg. 

2316 Classified Spvr & Admin Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2320 Classified Superintendent Salaries – Regular 

2400 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Regular 

2405 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Substitutes 

2406 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2900 Other Classified Salaries – Regular 

2901 Other Class Salaries Extra/Stipends 

2905 Other Classified Salaries – Substitutes 

2906 Other Classified Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2920 Naturalists’ Salaries – Regular 

2930 Student Help Salaries – Regular 

2950 Other Classified Salaries – Extended Session 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

31XX State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

3101 STRS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3102 STRS on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

32XX Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

3201 PERS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures, Continued 

 3202 PERS  on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

33XX Social Security (OASDI)/FICA-MED/Alternate 

3311 OASDI on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3312 OSADI on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3321 FICA-MED on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3322 FICA-MED on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3331 Alternate Retirement on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3332 Alternate Retirement on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

34XX Health & Welfare Benefits 

3411 Health & Welfare on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3412 Health & Welfare on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

35XX State Unemployment Insurance 

3501 State Unemploy Ins. on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3502 State Unemploy Ins. On Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

36XX Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

3601 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3602 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

37XX Retiree Benefits 

3711 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3712 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

3751 OPEB Active Employee-Certificated (object 1XXX) 

3752 OPEB Active Employee-Classified (object 2XXX) 

39XX Other Benefits 

3911 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Cert Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3912 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Class Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3941 Employer Paid Dues-Certificated 

3942 Employer Paid Dues 

4000-4999 Books & Supplies 

4100 Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 

4200 Books Other Than Textbooks & Reference Materials 

4310 Materials & Supplies 

4340 Printing Expense 

4381 Diesel 

4400 Non-Capitalized Equipment 

4700 Food (Food Services) 

    

Page 124 of 154



 

5000-5999 Services & Other Operating Expenses 
 

5100 Sub-Agreements for Services 

5200 Travel & Conferences 

5201 Directors Council Meetings 

5202 Directors Other Travel/Conference 

5205 SPAC Conference 

5206 Other SPAC Conference 

5300 Dues & Memberships 

5400 Insurance 

5450 Other Insurance 

5500 Operations & Housekeeping Services 

5510 Water/Sewage 

5515 Pest Control 

5520 Gas/Heating Oil/Electric 

5570 Disposal Services 

5580 Laundry/Dry Cleaning 

5600 Rental, Lease & Repairs & Non-Capitalized Improvements 

5610 Equipment Rental/Lease 

5620 Facilities Rental/Lease 

5640 Contracts/Service Agreements 

5660 Equipment Repair 

5670 Vehicle Expense 

5680 Building Repairs 

5710 Direct Support Costs for Inter-program Services 

5712 Inter-program Transportation 

5713 Inter-program Contracts 

5750 Direct Costs for Interfund Services 

5751 Interfund Transportation 

5800 Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expend. 

5803 Printing (Outside Services) 

5807 Stipends to Non-Employees 

5808 Documented Reimbursable Expenses to Consultants 

5809 Contracted Services 

5810 Legal Expense 

5815 Contracted Services Outdoor Education 

5817 Pupil Transport Outdoor Education 

5820 Audit Expense 

5835 Security Service 

5842 Advertisements 

5843 Tuberculosis (TB) Testing 

5844 Fingerprinting 

5860 Federal Interest on Loans 

5885 Tuition and License Reimbursements 

5891 Data Processing Services 

5900 Communications 

5930 Postage 

5940 Telephone 

5941 Telephone Data Lines 

5943 Cell Phones 
 

5944 Internet Charges 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

6100 Land 

6110 Acquisition of Sites 

6111 Appraisals 

6112 Title/Escrow Costs 

6113 Surveys 

6170 Land Improvements 

6200 Buildings & Improvement of Buildings 

6210 New Construction 

6211 Building Purchases 

6218 Assessment & Fees 

6220 Improvements (Remodeling) 

6230 Relocatable Portables 

6281 Architect/Engineering Fees 

6282 Inspectors 

6283 Tests 

6284 Legal Fees 

6400 Equipment 

6401 Capital Leased Equipment Less Than $5,000 

6500 Equipment Replacement 

7000-7999 Other Outgo 

7100-7199 Tuition 

7141 Other Tuition Excess Costs to Districts 

7200-7299 Other Transfers Out 

7211 Transfer of Pass-Through Revenues to Districts 

7212 Transfer Pass-Thru Revenue CO OF 

7221 Transfer of Apportionments to Districts 

7222 Transfer of Apportionments County Office 

7281 All Other Transfers to Districts 

7299 All Other Transfers Out 

7300-7500 Direct Support / Indirect Costs 

7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Inter-program Charges 

7350 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Interfund Charges 

7438 Debt Service - Interest 

7439 Debt Service -Principal 

7600-7629 Interfund Transfers Out 

7611 From General Fund to Child Development Fund 

7615 Between General Fund/Special Bldg to Deferred Maint 

7619 Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 

Page 125 of 154



8010-8999 LCFF Sources 

8010-8019 Principle Apportionments 

8011 LCFF - Current Year 

8012 Education Protection Account (EPA) – Current Year 

8019 LCFF – Prior Year 

8020-8039 Tax Relief Subventions 
 

8021 Homeowners’ Exemption 
 

8029 Other Subventions/In-Lieu Tax 
 

8040-8089 County & District Taxes 
 

8041 Secured Tax Rolls 
 

8042 Unsecured Tax Rolls 

8043 Prior Years’ Taxes 

8044 Supplemental Taxes 

8045 Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 
 

8047 Community Redevelopment Funds 

8090-8099 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8091 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8096 Transfers to Charters in Lieu 

8097 Property Taxes Transfers 

8100-8299 Federal Revenues 
 

8181 Special Education Entitlement 
 

8182 Special Education Discretionary Grants 
 

8220 Child Nutrition Programs 
 

8270 Flood Control Funds 
 

8285 Interagency Contracts Between Local Educ Agencies (LEAs) 

 

8287 Pass-Through from Federal Sources 
 

8290 All Other Federal Revenues 
 

8300-8900 Other State Revenues 
 

8311 Other State Apportionments for Current Year 
 

8319 Other State Apportionments for Prior Year 
 

8520 Child Nutrition 
 

8530 Child Development Apportionments 
 

8540 Deferred Maintenance Allowance 
 

8545 School Facilities Apportionment 
 

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 
 

8560 State Lottery Revenue 
 

8587 Pass-Through Revenue from State Sources 
 

8590 All Other State Revenues 
 

8625 Community Redevelopment Fund Not Sub-Rev Limit 
 

8631 Sale of Equipment / Supplies 
 

8634 Food Service Sales 
 

8639 All Other Sales 
 

8650 Rentals & Leases 
 

8660 Interest 
 

8674 In-District Premiums/Contributions 
 

8677 Interagency Services Between Local Educ Agency (LEAs) 

8689 Other Fees/Contract Services 

8699 All Other Local Revenues 
 

8710 Other Tuition 
 

8781 All Other Transfer from District/Charter 
 

8782 All Other Transfer From COE 
 

8791 Transfer of Appt from Districts 
 

8792 Transfer of Apportionment from County Office 
 
8910-8979 Other Financing Sources 
 

8910-8929 Interfund Transfers In 
 

8911 To Child Development/From General Fund 
 

8912 Between General Fund & Special Reserve Fund 
 

8914 To General Fund/From Bond Interest & Red 
 

8915 From General Fund/Special Building to Deferred Maint 
 

8916 To Cafeteria Fund/From General Fund 
 

8919 Other Interfund Transfers In 
 
8931-8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8931 Emergency Apportionments 
 

8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 
 

8953 Proceeds from Sale/Lease Purchase of Land & Buildings 
 

8965 Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorg LEA’s 

8971 Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

8972 Proceeds from Capital Leases 
 

8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8980-8999 Contributions 
 

8980 Contribution from Unrestricted Resources 
 

8981 Contributions/Subsidies 
 

8990 Contributions/Transfers from Restricted/Unrestricted 

Page 126 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2021-22 BUDGET 
Acronyms 

 

 

A 
AAP Affirmative Action Plan 

 
AASA American Association of School Administrators 

 
AB Assembly Bill 

 
AC Administrative Code 

 
ACA Assembly Concurrent Amendment/Affordable Care Act 

 
ACE Assessments in Career Education 

 
ACEI Association of Childhood Education International 

 
ACR Assembly Concurrent Resolution 

 
ACSA Association of California School Administrators 

 
ACT American College Test 

 
ADA Average Daily Attendance or American with Disabilities 

Act 
ADM Administration 

 
ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution 

ADT Adolescent Day Treatment 

AEBG Adult Education Block Grant 

AED Automatic External Defibrillators 
 

AFDC Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
 

AFSCME American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees 

AFT American Federation of Teachers 
 

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 
 

AIR American Institutes for Research 
 

ALICE Alert, Lockdown, Inform, Counter, Evacuate 
 

ALWS Association of Low Wealth Schools 
 

AMO Annual Measurable Objective 

AMS American Management System 

AP Advanced Placement 

APE Adapted Physical Education 
 

APE-AVID Advanced Placement Expansion - AVID 

API Academic Performance Index 

APIP Advanced Placement Incentive Program 

 
 
APR Accountability Progress Report 
 
AR Accounts Receivable 
 
ARISE Addiction Research and Investigation for Science 

Educators 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
 
ASAM Alternative Schools Accountability Model 
 
ASBO Association of School Business Officials (National) 

ASCC Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 

ASCD Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development 
 
ASES After School Education and Safety Program 

ASET Academy for Special Education Teachers 

ATC Administrative Training Center 

AU Administrative Unit of a SELPA 

AV Audio Visual or Assessed Value 

AVEC Adult and Vocational Education Council 

AVID Advancement Via Individual Determination 

AYP Adequate Yearly Progress 

B 
BBA Bipartisan Budget Act 
 
BCLAD Bilingual, Crosscultural, Language, and Academic 

Development 
BCP Budget Change Proposal 
 
BCRF Beverage Container Recycling Fund 
 
BD Behavior Disorder 
 
BEA Business Education Alliance 
 
BFA Building Futures Academy 
 
BIIG Broadband Infrastructure Improvement Grant 
 
BOOF Betting on our Future 
 
BRC Budget Review Committee 
 
BRL Base Revenue Limit 
 
BTSA Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment 
 
BTTP Bilingual Teacher Training Program 

 

 
 Page 127 of 154



BUDGET – ACRONYMS – PAGE 1 

Page 128 of 154



 
 

C 
CAASPP California Assessment of Student Performance and 

Progress 
CABE California Association for Bilingual Education CAC

 Community Advisory Committee or California 

CACE California Association for Compensatory Education 

CADS Consolidated Application Data System 

CADPE California Alcohol-Drug Prevention Education 

CAEH California Arts Education Association 

CAHSEE California High School Exit Exam 

CalCRN California Career Resource Network 
 

CalMHSA California Mental Health Services Authority 
 

CALPADS California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
 

Cal-Safe California School Age Families Education 
 

Cal-OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Act CalPERS

 California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

CalSTAT California Services for Technical Assistance and Training 

CalSTRS California State Teachers Retirement System 

CalTIDES California Longitudinal Teacher Integrated Data Education 
System 

CalWORKs California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
 

CAMSP California Mathematics and Science Partnership 
 

CAO Chief Administrative Office 
 

CAP California Assessment Program 
 

CAPA California Alternative Performance Assessment CAPIT

 Child Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment 

CAROC/P California Assoc of Regional Occupational Ctrs/Prgm. 

CARS Consolidated Application Reporting System 

CASBO California Association of School Business Officials 
 

CASCD California Association for Supervision and Curriculum 
Dev. 

CASE Computer Assisted Special Education 

CASEL Capitol Area Science Education Leaders 

CASH Coalition for Adequate School Housing 

CASEMIS California Special Education Management Info System 
 

CAT/6 California Achievement Tests, Sixth Edition Survey 

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
CBCAP Community Based Child Abuse Prevention 

CBEDS California Basic Education Data System 

CBEST California Basis Education Skills Test 

CBFRS Community Based Family Resource and Support 
 
CBO Chief Business Official 
 
CCAC Credential Counselors and Analysts of California 
 
CCC California Community Colleges or California Conservation 

Corps 
CCCP California Curriculum Consultant Project 
 
CCDF Center for Childcare and Development 
 
CCEE              California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

CCLPEP          California Civil Liberties Public Education Program 

CCMP             Central California Mathematics Project 

CCR Coordinated Compliance Review or California Code of 
Regulations 

CCS California Children’s Services CCSS

 Common Core State Standards 

CCSSO Council or Chief State School Offices 

CCPGP Childcare Professional Growth Project 
 
CCSESA Calif. County Superintendents Educational Services Assoc. 

CCTR Center Childcare & Development Fund 

CDD Child Development Division 
 
CDE California Department of Education 
 
CDRT Child Development Retention and Training 
 
CDT Children’s Day Treatment 
 
CEDR Center for Educational Development and Research 
 
CEL Centralized Eligibility List 
 
CELDT California English Language Development Test 

CELMS Centralized Eligibility List and Management System 

CFLP California Foreign Language Project 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
 
CFT California Federation of Teachers 

CH Communicatively Handicapped 

CH1 Chapter 1 Centralized Services 

Page 129 of 154



 
 

CH-SSP California History-Social Science Project 
 

CI Cognitively Impaired 
 

CIF California Interscholastic Federation 
 

CISC Curriculum and Instruction Steering Committee 
 

CLAD Cross-cultural, Language, and Academic Development 
 

CLMP California Language Minority Project 

CLRN California Learning Resource Network 

CLP California Literature Project 

CLPC Child Development Local Planning Council 
 

CLTA California Foreign Language Teachers Association 
 

CMEA California Music Educators Association 
 

CMIS Compliance Monitoring, Interventions, and Sanctions 
 

CNIPS Child Nutrition Information Payment System 
 

COE County Office of Education 

COLA Cost of Living Adjustment 

CON APP Consolidated Application 

COP Certificate of Participation 

COSA California Outdoor School Administrators 
 

COSP County Operated Schools and Programs 
 

CPDP/C California Professional Development Program/Consortium 
 

CPEC California Postsecondary Education Commission 
 

CPI Consumer Price Index 
 

CPIN California Preschool Instructional Network 
 

CPR California Performance Review 
 

CPS Child Protective Services 
 

CREEC Calif. Regional Environmental Education Community 
 

CSAC California Student Aid Commission CSAM

 California School Accounting Manual 

CSBA California School Boards Association 

CSCI California Services Communities Initiative 

CSDC California Staff Development Council 

CSEA California Schools Employees Association 

CSET California Subject Examination for Teachers 

CSF California Scholarship Federation 
 
CSFG Charter School Facility Grant 
 
CSIN California Science Implementation Network 
 
CSIS California School Information Studies 

CSLA California School Leadership Academic 

CSMP California Subject Matter Projects 

CSPDAC Comprehensive System of Personnel Development 
Advisory Committee 

CSPP California State Preschool Program 
 
CSR Class Size reduction or Comprehensive School Reform 
 
CSSC California State Steering Committee 
 
CST California Standard Test 
 
CSTP California Standards for the Teaching Profession 
 
CTA California Teachers Association 
 
CTAP California Technical Assistance Project 

CTBS Comprehensive Tests of Basic Skills 

CTC Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

CTE Career Technical Education 

CTEC Career and Technical Education Center CTEI

 Comprehensive Teacher Education Institute 

CTEIG Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

CTEL California Teachers of English Learners 

CTKS California Transitional Kindergarten Stipend 

CTO Compensatory Time Off 

CTP California Technology Project 
 
CSCI California Service Communities Initiative 
 
CWA Child Welfare and Attendance 
 
CYA California Youth Authority 
 

D 
DAC District Advisory Council 
 
DAIT District Assistance and Intervention Team 
 
DATE Drug Alcohol Tobacco Education 

DBE Developmental Bilingual Education 

DCA Discovery Challenge Academy 

Page 130 of 154



 
 

DFS Drug Free Schools Consortium 
 

DFW Drug Free Workplace 
 

DGS Department of General Services 
 

DIS Designated Instruction and Services 

DMP Deferred Maintenance Program 

DOE Department of Education 

DOF Department of Finance 
 

DOL Department of Labor 
 

DPJPA Data Processing Joint Power Agreement 
 

DPS Dropout Prevention Specialist 

DSA Division of the State Architect 

DSP Direct Support Professional 

DSS Department of Social Services 

DSSDs Direct Service School Districts 

DSSP Delta Sierra Science Project 

DWAS Dinner with a Scientist 

E 
EAAP Education Audit Appeals Panel 

 
EAF Educational Activity Field 

 
EC Education Code 

 
ECA Education Consolidation Act 

 
ECE Early Childhood Education 

 
ECIA Early Consolidation and Improvement Act (Ch I/II) 

ED Emotionally Disturbed 

EDD Employment Development Department 
 

EDGAR Education Department General Administrative Regulation 
 

ED-JOIN Education Job Opportunities Information Network 
 

EDY Emotionally Disadvantaged Youth 
 

EEO Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

EEI Educational Environmental Initiative 
 

EH Educationally Handicapped 
 

EIA Economic Impact Aid 
 

EIBT Early Intervention Behavioral Treatment 

EL English Learner (Replaces ELL and LEP) 

ELA English Language Arts 

ELAC              English Language Advisory Committee 

ELAP              English Language Acquisition Program 

ELD                English Language Development 

EO English Only 
 
EPA Education Protection Account 
 
ERAF Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 
ERIC Educational Resources Information Center 
 
ERP Economic Recovery Payment or Emergency Repair Prog. 

ERT Economic Recovery Target 

ESC Educational Service Center 
 
ESEA Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
 
ESL English as a Second Language 

ESSA Every Student Succeeds Act 

ESY Extended School Year 

ETN Educational Technology Network 
 

F 
FAPE Free and Appropriate Public Education 
 
FCMAT Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team 

FDPIR Flood Distribution Program on Indian Reservations 

FELP Family English Literacy Program 

FEP Fluent English Proficient 
 
FERPA Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
 
FFA Future Farmers of America 

FHI Federal Handicapped Index 

FIT Forestry Institute for Teachers 

FLACC Foreign Language Association of Central California 
 
FPM Federal Program Monitoring 

FRN Family Resource Network 

FRPM Free and Reduced-Price Meals 

FRR Family Resource and Referral 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

Page 131 of 154



 
 

FYS Foster Youth Services 
 

G 
G2K Goals 2000 

 
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GAAS Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

GASB Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GATE Gifted and Talented Education 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 
 

GE Grade Equivalent or General Education 
 

GED General Education Diploma 

GEMS Great Expectations Math/Science 

GF General Fund 

GLOBE Global Learning and Observations to Benefit the Envir. 

GO General Obligation (Bond) 

GPA Governor’s Performance Award Program 
 

GRASP IT Gaining Results in After School Programs Innovatively & 
Tangibly (21st Century) 

GSA Grade Span Adjustment 
 

GVCC Greater Valley Conservation Corps 
 

H 
HSA Human Services Agency 

 
HILT High Intensity Language Training 

 
H3 Hearts, Heads, Hands 

 
HOH Hard of Hearing 

 
HR Human Resources 

 
HOUSSE High Objective Uniform State Standard of Evaluation 

 
HPSGP High Priority Schools Grant Program 

 
HQT Highly Qualified Teacher 

 
HRA Health Reimbursement Arrangement 

 
HAS Health Savings Account 

 
HSEE High School Exit Exam 

 
HUD Housing and Urban Development 

 

I 
IASA Improving America’s Schools Act 

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported (i.e., insurance claims) 

ICASE Improving Capitol Area Science and Engineering 

ID and R Identification and Recruitment 

IDA Inter-District Agreement 
 
IDEA Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 
IEI Intern Evaluation Instrument 
 
IEP Individual Education Plan 
 
IFSP Individual Family Service Plan 
 
IHSS In-Home Support Services 
 
II/USP Immediate Intervention/Underperforming Schools Program 
 
IIAE Institute for Information Age Education 
 
ILP Individual Learning Plan 
 
IME Institute for Mexican Education 
 
IMFRP Instructional Materials Fund Realignment Program 
 
IMPACT Teaching Programs 
 
IPS Instructional Personnel Service 
 
IRA International Reading Association 
 
ISGI Individual and Small Group Instruction 
 
IT Information Technology 
 
ITI Integrated Thematic Instruction 

IWENS Individuals With Exceptional Needs 

ITP Individual Transitional Plan 

J 
JACS Japanese American Confinement Sites 
 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement or Joint Powers Authority 
 
JTPA Job Training Partnership Act 
 

L 
LAIF Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
LAO Legislative Analyst’s Office 
 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
LCCPC Local Childcare Commission Planning Council 
 
LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 

Page 132 of 154



 
 

LCPC Local Childcare Planning Council 
 

LCI Licensed Children’s Institution 
 

LD Learning Disability 
 

LDS Language Development Specialist 
 

LEA Local Education Agency 
 

LEP Limited English Proficient (EL Replaces ELL and LEP) 

LEP/NES Limited English Proficient/Non-English Speaking 

LGFC Local General Fund Contribution 
 

LH Learning Handicapped 
 

LHS Language Hearing Specialist 
 

LPP Lease Purchase Program 
 

LSH Language, Speech and Hearing 
 

M 
MAA Medi-CAL Administrative Agency 

 
M and O Maintenance and Operations 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MEES Migrant Education Even Start 

MEP Migrant Education Program 

MH Mental Health 
 

MIIEO Migrant Indian and International Education Office 
 

MSA Minimum State Aid 
 

MTTI Multi-District Teacher Training Institute 

MTYRE Multi-Track Year-Round Education 

MYP Multiyear Projection 

N 
NAEP National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
NBCT National Board Certified Teacher 

 
NCCRAHS National Children’s Center for Rural and Agricultural 

Health and Safety 
NCES National Center for Education Statistics 

NCFL National Center for Family Literacy 

NCLB No Child Left Behind 

NCMTC Northern California Media and Technology Consortium 
 

NEA National Education Association 

NEIS National Evaluation and Information System 
 
NGSS Next Generation Science Standards 

NON-RIS Non-Requiring Intensive Service 

NP National Percentile 

NPA Non-Public Agency 
 
NPS Non-Public Schools 
 
NPS/A Non-Public Schools/Agencies 
 
NSBA National Scholl Boards Association 
 
NSS Necessary Small Scholl or Necessary Small SELPA 

NTE National Teachers’ Examination 

O 
OAL Office of Administrative Law 
 
OCR Office of Civil Rights 
 
OH Orthopedically Handicapped 
 
OLA Office of Local Assistance 
 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
 
OME Office of Migrant Education OPEB

 Other Postemployment Benefits 

OPSC Office of Public School Construction 

OSA Office of State Architect 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
 
OSE Office of the Secretary for Education 
 
OT Occupational Therapy 
 

P 
P-1 First Principal (Apportionment) 
 
P-2 Second Principal (Apportionment) 

PAR Peer Assistance and Review 

PARS Public Agency Retirement Services 
 
PC Penal Code 
 
PCA Project Cost Account 
 
PCSGPS Public Charter School Grant Programs   _ 

PDBG Professional Development Block Grant 

PDC Professional Development Center 

Page 133 of 154



 
 

PE Physical Education 
 

PEI Prevention and Early Intervention 
 

PENT Positive Environment Network of Trainers 

PEPRA Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 

PERB Public Employees Relations Board 

PERS Public Employees Retirement System 
 

PFS Priority for Services 
 

PFT Physical Fitness Test 
 

PH Physically Handicapped 

PI Program Improvement 

PIC Private Industry Council 

PKFLP Pre-Kindergarten & Family Literacy Program 
 

PKS Particular Kinds of Services 
 

PL Public Law (Federal Law) 
 

PL 81-874 Public Law 81-874 (Federal Impact Aid) 
 

PL 94-192 Public Law 94-192 (Special Education Mandate 
Legislation) 

PMAT Personal Management Assistance Team 

PMIA Pooled Money Investment Account 

PMIB Pooled Money Investment Board 

PNCC Project Navigation Construction Change 
 

PO Probation Officer 
 

PPACA Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
 

PQR Program Quality Review 
 

PRSP Pension Rate Stabilization Plan 
 

PSA Private School Affidavit 
 

PSAA Public Schools Accountability Act 
 

PT Physical Therapy 
 

PTA Parent Teacher Association 
 

PTSA Parent/Teacher/Student Association 
 

PTTP Paraprofessional Teacher Training Program 
 

Q 
QEIA Quality Education Investment Act 

 
QRIS Quality Rating and Improvement System 

QSCB Quality School Construction Bonds 
 
QZAB Qualified Zone Academy Bond 
 

R 
RCC Regional Coordinating Council 
 
RDA Redevelopment Agency 
 
REACH Running to Embrace Attitudes, Confidence and Health 
 
REAP Rural Education Achievement Program 

REU Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

RFA Request for Application 

RFP Request for Proposal 
 
RIC Reading Implementation Center 
 
RIS Requiring Intensive Services 
 
RISE Rural Improvements in Science Education 
 
RLA Reading/Language Arts 
 
ROC/P Regional Occupation Center/Program RRMA

 Routine Restricted Maintenance Account 

RSDSS Regional System of District and School Support 

RSP Resource Specialist Program 

RSSIC Regional School Support and Improvement Center 
 
RTI Responses to Intervention 
 
RTTT Race To The Top 
 
RWPEDA Regional Workforce Preparation & Economic 

Development 
RTAC Regional Technical Assistance Center 
 

S 
S4 Statewide System of School Support 
 
SAB State Allocation Board 
 
SAC School Advisory Council 
 
SACS Standardized Account Code Structure 

SAIB Special Alternative Instructional Program 

SAIT Student Assistance and Intervention Team 

SAPID School Age Parenting and Infant Development 
 
SARB School Attendance Review Board 
 
SARC School Accountability Report Card 

Page 134 of 154



 
 

SART School Attendance Review Team 
 

SAT Scholastic Aptitude Test 
 

SAT-9 Stanford Achievement Test-9, Ninth Edition, Form T 

SB 1274 Senate Bill 1274 School/District Restructuring 

SAYES Seniors Assisting Youth Engaged in Service 

SB Senate Bill 
 

SBAC Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium 
 

SBCP School Based Coordinated Program 
 

SBE State Board of Education 
 

SCA Senate Constitutional Amendment 

SCE State Compensatory Education 

SCI OLY Science Olympiad 

SCO State Controller’s Office 
 

SCPP School Community Policing Partnership 
 

SCR Senate Concurrent Resolution 
 

SDC Special Day Class 
 

SDE State Department of Education 
 

SDI State Disability Insurance 

SEA State Education Agency 

SEE School Energy Efficiency 

SED Severely Emotional Disturbed 
 

SEIA Special Education Information System 

SEIU Service Employees International Union 

SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 

SERAF Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 

SES Socioeconomic Status 
 

SETPD Special Education Teachers Professional Development 
 

SFID School Facility Improvement District 
 

SFP School Facility Program 
 

SFSD School Fiscal Services Division of CDE 

SFSF State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 

SH Severely Handicapped (Disabled) 

SI Speech Impaired 

SIMMS Secondary Integration of Modeling in Math & Science 
 
SIG School Improvement Grant 
 
SIP School Improvement Program 
 
SJCCFC San Joaquin County Children and Families Commission 
 
SJCOE San Joaquin County Office of Education 
 
SJR Senate Joint Resolution SLC

 School Leadership Center 

SLD Specific Learning Disability 

SLIBG School and Library Improvement Block Grant 
 
SMI Serious Mental Illness 
 
SMP Subject Matter Project 
 
SMAA School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
 
SOLH Severe Oral Language Handicapped SPI

 Superintendent of Public Inspection 

SPSA Single Plan for Student Achievement 

SPURR School Project for Utility Rate Reduction 

SR Senate Resolution 

SRDC School Readiness District Coordinator 
 
SSC School Site Council 
 
SSI/SSP Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary 

Payment 
SSPI State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
 
SSR Support Service Ratio 
 
SST Student Study Team; also, Student Success Team 
 
STAR Standardized Testing and Reporting 
 
STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics 
 
STRS State Teachers Retirement System 
 
SWP Schoolwide Program 
 
SYEP Summer Youth Employment Program 
 

T 
TAG Technical Advisory Group 
 
TAH Teaching American History 
 
TANF Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
 
TAP Teacher Apprentice Program or Teaching as a Priority 

Page 135 of 154



 
 

TAPE Technical Assistance for Program Effectiveness 
 

TAS Targeted Assistance School 
 

TBE Transitional Bilingual Education 
 

TBI Traumatic Brain Injury 
 

TCSJ Teachers College of San Joaquin 
 

THG Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
 

TK Transitional Kindergarten 
 

TLC Transitional Learning Center 
 

TOPS Teaching Opportunities for Partners in Science 
 

TPE Teacher Performance Expectations 

TRANs Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 

TUPE Tobacco Use Prevention Education 

U 
UOP University of the Pacific 

 
UPP Unduplicated Pupil Percentage 

 
UR Unit Rate 

 
USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

 

V 
VAFS Venture Academy Family of Schools 

VALT Valley Language of Language Teachers 

VEA Vocational Education Act 

VH Visually Handicapped 
 

VMRC Valley Mountain Regional Center 
 

VOIP Voice Over Internet Protocol 
 

VQ Vision Quest 
 

W 
WASC Western Association of Schools and Colleges 

 
WEC Wentworth Education Center 

WIA Workforce Instrument Act 

WIC Welfare and Institutions Code 

WIC-R Writing Inquiry Collaboration - Reading 
 

WSF Weighted Student Formula 

Y 
YRE Year-Round Education 
 
YRS Year-Round Schools 

Page 136 of 154



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2021-22 Glossary of Terms 
 

A 
 

Abatement. A complete or partial cancellation of an expenditure or revenue. 
 

Abatement of expenditures. Cancellation of part or all of a charge previously made, usually 
because of refunds, rebates, resale of materials originally purchased by the local educational 
agency (LEA), or collections for loss or damage to the LEA’s property. An abatement of 
expenditure applies to current expenditures and capital outlay expenditures from all funds. 

 

Abatement of revenue. The cancellation of all or some part of any specific revenue previously 
recorded. 

 

Accounting period. A period of time for which records are maintained and at the end of 
which financial statements are prepared covering the period. 

 

Account numbers or letters. Numbers and/or letters that are assigned to the ordinary titles of 
accounts for classification of accounts and ease of reference. 

 

Accounts payable. Amounts due and owed to private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not paid. Does not include amounts due to other funds of the 
same LEA. 

 

Accounts receivable. Amounts due and owed from private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not received. Does not include amounts due from other funds of 
the same LEA. 

 

Accrual basis. Method of accounting in which revenue is recorded when earned, even though it 
has not yet been collected, and in which expenses are recorded when the liabilities are 
incurred, even if they have not been paid yet. 

 

Accrued expenditures. Expenditures incurred during the current accounting period that are not 
paid until a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accrued revenue. Revenue earned during the current accounting period that is not collected until 
a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accumulated depreciation. A contra-asset account used to report the accumulation of 
depreciation. (See also Depreciation.) 

 

Actuarial basis. A method used in computing the amount of contributions to be made 
periodically to a fund so that the total contributions plus the compounded earnings thereon 
will equal the required payments to be made out of the fund. The factors taken into account 
in arriving at the amount include the length of time over which each collection or payment is 
to be made and the rate of return compounded on such amounts over its life. 

 

Ad valorem tax. A tax based on a percentage of the value of goods or services. 
 

Agency fund. A fund consisting of resources received and held by an LEA as an agent for others. 
 

Allocation. Division or distribution in accordance with a predetermined plan. 

Page 137 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Allowable costs. Costs that meet the specific criteria of a granting agency. 
 

Allowance. A provision for valuing an asset at net, such as an allowance for bad debts. The 
allowance for bad debts would be deducted from accounts receivable to reflect the 
receivables that are likely to be collectable. 

 

Apportionment. Allocation of state or federal aid, district taxes, or other moneys among LEAs or 
other governmental units. 

 

Apportionment notice. A document notifying LEAs when moneys were deposited with the 
county treasurer. 

 

Appraisal. An estimate of property value made by the use of systematic procedures based 
on physical inspection and inventory, engineering studies, and other economic factors. 

 

Appropriation. An authorization, granted by the governing board, to make expenditures and to 
incur obligations for special purposes. An appropriation is usually limited in purpose, 
amount, and the time period during which it may be expended. 

 

Appropriation ledger. A subsidiary ledger containing an account for each appropriation. Each 
account usually shows the amount originally appropriated in the budget, budget increases or 
decreases during the year, expenditures, encumbrances, unencumbered balances, and other 
related information. 

 

Arbitrage. The profit earned (i.e., interest earnings in excess of interest costs) from the 
investments of the proceeds of lower-interest tax-exempt securities in higher yielding taxable 
securities. 

 

Assessed valuation. Value placed on personal and real property by a governmental unit for 
purposes of taxation. 

 

Assets. Resources that are held or owned by an LEA and that have monetary value. 
 

Audit. An examination of documents, records, and accounts for the purpose of (1) determining 
the propriety of transactions; (2) ascertaining whether all transactions are recorded properly; 
and (3) determining whether statements that are drawn from accounts reflect an accurate 
picture of financial operations and financial status for a given period of time. 

 

Audit finding. A weakness in internal controls or an instance of noncompliance with applicable 
laws and regulations that is presented in the audit report. 

 

Audit program. A detailed outline of work to be done and the procedures to be followed during 
an audit. 

 

Available cash. Cash that is on hand or on deposit in a given fund and that is unencumbered and 
can be used for meeting current obligations. 

 

Average daily attendance (ADA). Total approved days of attendance in the LEA divided by the 
number of days the schools in the LEA are in session for at least the required minimum day. 
(Refer to Education Code sections 46000–46014 and 46300–46380.) 

Page 138 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

B 
 

Balance sheet. A statement that shows the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or fund deficit of an entity at a specific date 
and that is properly classified to exhibit the financial condition of the entity as of that specific 
date. 

 

Basis of accounting. The time at which revenues, expenditures, transfers, and related assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are recognized in 
the accounts and are reported in the financial statements. 

 

Bond. A certificate containing a written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called the face 
value, at a fixed time in the future, called the date of maturity, and specifying interest at a 
fixed rate, usually payable periodically. 

 

Bond discount. The excess of the face value of a bond over the price for which it is acquired or 
sold. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonded debt. That portion of indebtedness represented by outstanding bonds. 
 

Bonded debt service. Expenditures for interest and redemption of bonds. 
 

Bond premium. The excess of the price at which a bond is acquired or sold over its face 
value. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonds authorized and unissued. Legally authorized bonds that have not been sold and that may 
be sold without further authorization. 

 

Book value. The cost or stated costs of assets less accumulated depreciation as shown by the 
books of accounts. 

 

Budget. A plan of financial operation consisting of an estimate of proposed revenue and 
expenditures for a given period and purpose. The term usually indicates a financial plan for a 
single fiscal year. 

 

Budgetary accounts. Those accounts that make it possible for a budgetary-type fund 
(governmental fund) to show how (1) estimated revenue and revenue realized to date 
compare; and (2) expenditures and encumbrances compare with appropriations during the 
fiscal period. The budgetary accounts are estimated revenues, appropriations, and 
encumbrances. 

 

Budgetary control. The management of financial transactions in accord with an approved plan of 
estimated revenue and expenditures. 

 

Budgeting. The process of allocating the available resources of an organization among 
potential activities to achieve the objectives of the organization; planning for the use of 
resources. 

 

Budget revision. Net increases and decreases to the budget. They may include increases due 
to new grant funds and decreases due to the need to reduce appropriations to keep 
spending within available revenues. 

Page 139 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Budget transfer. Changes among budgeted items. They do not increase or decrease the 
total budget. 

 

C 
 

Capital assets. See Fixed assets. 
 

Capital lease. A lease agreement that meets one or more of the following criteria is classified as 
a capital lease: 

 

x Ownership is transferred to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
x The agreement contains a “bargain purchase” option. 
x The lease agreement is 75 percent or more of the estimated useful life of the property. 
x The present value of the minimum lease payment is 90 percent or more of the fair 

market value of the property. 
 

Capital outlay. Amounts paid for fixed assets or additions to fixed assets, including land or 
existing buildings, the improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to 
buildings, remodeling of buildings, or initial and additional equipment. 

 

Capital projects funds. Funds established to account for financial resources that are to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

 

Cash. Currency, checks, postal and express money orders, and bankers’ drafts on hand or on 
deposit with an official or agent designated as custodian of cash and bank deposits. Any 
restriction or limitation as to the availability of cash should be indicated. 

 

Cash advance. Cash apportioned in advance of the usual apportionment period. 
 

Cash basis. Method of accounting in which revenue and expenditures are recorded only when 
cash is actually received or disbursed. The cash basis is not acceptable for use in LEAs. 

 

Cash collections awaiting deposit. Receipts on hand or moneys in a bank clearing account 
awaiting deposit in the county treasury. 

 

Cash discount. An allowance made on a purchase if payment is made within a stated 
period. (This term is not to be confused with trade discount.) 

 

Cash in bank. Balances in separate bank accounts, such as student body accounts, school farm 
accounts, and cafeteria accounts. 

 

Cash in county treasury. Cash balances on deposit in the county treasury for the various funds of 
the LEA. 

 

Categorical aid. Funds from state or federal sources that are in addition to the general-purpose 
funding to serve a specific pupil population or to provide specific services and activities. 
These funds have varying degrees of fiscal and program compliance requirements. 

 

Certificates of participation (COPs). A financing technique that provides long-term financing 
through a lease (with an option to purchase or a conditional sale agreement). 

Page 140 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Chart of accounts. A systematically arranged list of accounts that are applicable to a specific 
LEA. All account names and numbers, if any, are listed in numerical order. 

 

Check. A bill of exchange drawn on a bank and payable on demand; a written order on a bank to 
pay on demand a specific sum of money to a named person, to his or her order, or to a bearer 
out of money on deposit to the credit of the maker. A check differs from a warrant in that a 
warrant is not necessarily payable on demand and may not be negotiable; a check differs 
from a voucher in that a voucher is not an order to pay. A voucher-check combines the 
distinguishing characteristics of a voucher and a check; it shows the propriety of a payment 
and is an order to pay. 

 

Classification. The naming or identification of an item or a category, such as the designation of 
the particular account into which a receipt or an expenditure is to be recorded or the 
separation of data into acceptable groupings so that financial facts can be stated more 
clearly. 

 

Classroom unit (CU). The approximate area usually occupied by a classroom, varying from 800 
to 1,100 square feet but generally about 960 square feet. 

 

Clearing accounts. Accounts used to accumulate total receipts or expenditures for later 
distribution among the accounts to which such receipts or expenditures are properly 
allocable. 

 

Closing entries. Entries recorded at the end of each fiscal period to transfer the balances in the 
revenue and expenditure (or expense) accounts to the permanent equity accounts (fund 
balance or retained earnings) of an accounting entity. 

 

Code. (1) A distinguishing reference number or symbol; (2) a statement of the laws of a specific 
field (e.g., Education Code, Penal Code, Civil Code, and Labor Code). 

 

Compensated absences. Absences for which compensation is paid (e.g., vacation and sick leave). 
 

Component unit. An organization that is legally separate and for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of 
its relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Financial reporting consisting of three 
sections: (1) introductory section (general information on the LEA’s structure, services, and 
environment); (2) financial section (basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information, together with information on individual funds and discretely presented 
component units not reported separately in the financial statements); and (3) statistical 
section (trend and nonfinancial data useful in interpreting the basic financial statements). 

 

Contingent liabilities. Items that may become liabilities as a result of conditions undetermined at 
a given date (e.g., guarantees, pending lawsuits, judgments and appeals, and unsettled 
disputed claims). 

 

Contra account. An account to record offsetting transactions (e.g., abatements). 

Page 141 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Contract. An agreement between two or more people or entities to do something. Contracts are 
usually in writing and are enforceable by law. 

 

Contracted services. Expenditures for services rendered under contract by personnel who are not 
on the payroll of the LEA, including all related expenditures covered by the contract. 

 

Control account. A summary account, usually maintained in the general ledger, in which is 
entered the aggregate of the debit and the credit postings to a number of identical, similar, or 
related accounts called subsidiary accounts. Its balance equals the sum of the balances of the 
detail accounts. 

 

Cost. The amount of money or its equivalent value paid or agreed to be paid for property or 
services. Cost may be incurred even before money is paid; that is, as soon as a liability is 
assumed. Ultimately, however, money or its equivalent must be given in exchange. The cost 
of some property or service may in turn become part of the cost of another property or 
service. For example, the cost of materials will be reflected in the cost of articles made from 
such materials. 

 

County School Service Fund (CSSF). A fund established to control the financial operations 
of county offices of education. 

 

Credit. The right side of a double-entry posting. Credits will reduce assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, and expenditures and increase liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenue, 
and fund balance. 

 

Current assets. Assets that are available or can be made readily available to meet the cost of 
operations or to pay current liabilities. 

 

Current expense of education. The current general fund operating expenditures of an LEA for 
kindergarten and grades one through twelve, excluding expenditures for food services, 
community services, nonagency activities, fringe benefits for retired persons, acquisition and 
construction of facilities, and objects 6000 and 7000. 

 

Current liabilities. Amounts due and payable for goods and services received prior to the end of 
the fiscal year. Current liabilities should be paid within a relatively short period of time, 
usually within a year. 

 

Current loans. Loans payable in the same fiscal year in which the money was borrowed. 
 

D 
 

Debit. The left side of a double-entry posting. A debit will increase assets and expenditures and 
reduce liabilities, revenue, and fund balance. 

 

Debt limit. The maximum amount of legally permitted debt. 
 

Debt service. Expenditures for the retirement of debt and for interest on debt. 
 

Debt service funds. Funds established to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

Page 142 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Deficit. The amount by which a sum of money falls short of a required amount (e.g., 
apportionment deficits or budget deficits). 

 

Deficit financing. The amount to be provided when estimated expenditures exceed the estimated 
revenues. 

 

Deficit fund balance. The excess of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund over its 
assets and deferred outflows. 

 

Deficit spending. The excess of actual expenditures over actual revenues (also referred to as 
an operating deficit). 

 

Delinquent taxes. Taxes remaining unpaid after the close of the year in which levied. (See also 
Prior years’ taxes, in most cases the preferred term.) 

 

Depreciation. Estimated loss in value or service life of fixed assets because of wear and tear 
through use, elapse of time, inadequacy, or obsolescence. 

 

Direct expenses or costs. Expenses that can be separately identified and charged as parts of the 
cost of a product, service, or department. 

 

Direct support charges. Charges for a support program and services that directly benefit other 
programs. 

 

Disbursements. Payments by currency, check, or warrant. (The term is not synonymous with 
expenditures.) 

 

Double entry. A system of bookkeeping that requires an amount credited for every corresponding 
amount debited. Thus, the double-entry ledger maintains equality of debits and credits. 

 

E 
 

Earned interest revenue. A sum of money received or due to be received for the use of money 
loaned or invested. 

 

EDGAR (Education Department General Administrative Regulations). The regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Education incorporating certain circulars from the Office of Management 
and Budget. EDGAR is found in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, parts 75, 76, 77, 
79, 81, 82, 84, 86, 97, 98, and 99. It is defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, 
Part 77.1. 

 

Employee benefits. Amounts paid by the LEA on behalf of employees. These amounts are not 
included in the gross salary but are over and above. They are fringe-benefit payments; 
although not paid directly to employees, they are nevertheless part of the cost of salaries and 
benefits. Examples are (1) group health or life insurance payments; (2) contributions to 
employee retirement; (3) OASDI (Social Security) taxes; (4) workers’ compensation 
payments; and (5) payments made to personnel on sabbatical leave. 

 

Encroachment. The use of unrestricted moneys to support restricted program expenditures. 
 

Encumbrances. Obligations in the form of purchase orders, contracts, salaries, and other 
commitments chargeable to an appropriation for which a part of the appropriation is reserved. 

Page 143 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Enterprise funds. Funds used to account for those ongoing activities of the LEA that because 
of their income-producing character are similar to those found in the private sector. 

 

Entitlement. An apportionment that is based on specific qualifications or formula defined in 
statute. (This term should not be used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent 
balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Equity accounts. These accounts represent the difference between the assets and deferred 
outflows of resources and the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund. 

 

Estimated revenues. For revenue accounts kept on the accrual basis, this term designates the 
amount of revenue estimated to accrue during a given period regardless of whether all of it is 
to be collected during the period. 

 

Expendable trust fund. A trust fund in which principal and earnings may be expended. 
 

Expenditures. The costs of goods delivered or services rendered, whether paid or unpaid, 
including expenses, provision for debt retirement not reported as a liability of the fund 
from which retired, and capital outlay. 

 

Expenses. Charges incurred, whether paid or unpaid, for operations, maintenance, interest, and 
other charges that are presumed to benefit the current fiscal period. Expense accounts are 
used in certain trust funds and in proprietary-type funds. 

 

F 
 

Face value. As applied to securities, the amount stated in the security document. 
 

Fair value of investments. The amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

 

Fees. Amounts collected from or paid to individuals or groups for services or for use of a 
school or other facility. 

 

Fidelity bond. A form of insurance that provides for the indemnification of the LEA or other 
employer for losses arising from the theft or dishonesty of employees. 

 

Fiscal year. A period of one year, the beginning and the ending dates of which are fixed by 
statute. For LEAs, it is the period beginning July 1 and ending on June 30. 

 

Fixed assets. Assets of a permanent character having continuing value (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, furniture, and equipment), with a cost over the capitalization threshold set by the 
LEA. 

 

Full-time-equivalent (FTE). The ratio of time expended in a part-time position to that of a 
full-time position. The ratio is derived by dividing the amount of time of employment 
required in the part-time position by the amount of employed time required in a 
corresponding full-time position. 

 

Function. An act, service, or group of services proper to a person, thing, or institution and aimed 
at accomplishing a certain end. In SACS, function refers to those activities or services 
performed to accomplish a goal. 

Page 144 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Fund. A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and 
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, that are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accord with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. 

 

Fund balance. The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. The fund equity of governmental and trust funds. 

 

G 
 

General fund. The fund used to finance the ordinary operations of the LEA. It is available 
for any legally authorized purpose. 

 

General journal. A book of original entry for all entries of financial transactions that are not 
recorded in a special journal, such as a cash receipts journal, a voucher register, or a cash 
disbursements journal. 

 

General ledger. A book, file, or other device that contains the accounts needed to reflect, in 
summary and in detail, the financial position, the results of financial operations, and the 
changes in equities of a fund or an account group used by an LEA. 

 

General long-term debt. Long-term debt that is legally payable from general revenue and 
backed by the full faith and credit of an LEA. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Uniform minimum standards of, and 
guidelines to, financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the 
basic financial statements of an entity. These principles encompass the conventions, rules, 
and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practices and procedures. Generally 
accepted accounting principles provide a standard by which to measure financial 
presentations. The primary authoritative source on the application of these principles to state 
and local governments is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

Generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS). Measures of the quality of the performance of 
auditing procedures and the objectives to be attained through their use. The standards are 
concerned with the auditor’s professional qualities and with the judgment exercised in the 
performance of an audit. Generally accepted auditing standards are established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

Generally accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS). Generally accepted auditing 
standards for government are established by the U.S. Government Accountability Office and 
published in Government Auditing Standards, also known as the Yellow Book. 

 

Gift. Anything of value received from any source for which no repayment or service to the 
contributor is expected. 

 

Goal. In SACS, a goal defines an objective or a set of objectives for the LEA. It is used to 
account for the cost of instruction and other services by the instructional goals and objectives 
of an LEA. 

Page 145 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The organization established to issue 
standards of financial accounting and reporting with respect to activities and transactions of 
state and local governmental entities. It is the successor organization to the National Council 
on Governmental Accounting (NCGA). 

 

Grade level. Assigned classification of students according to age and school progress (e.g., 
kindergarten or first grade). 

 

Grant. A contribution, either in money or material goods, made by one governmental entity to 
another. Grants may be intended for specific or general purposes. (This term should not be 
used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Grants-in-aid. See Grant. 
 

H 
 

Holding accounts. Suspense accounts that are used temporarily to accumulate costs that will 
ultimately be charged to other user programs. 

 

I 
 

Income. A term used in accounting for a proprietary-type fund to represent the excess of 
revenues earned over the expenses incurred in carrying on the fund’s operations. The term 
income should not be used in lieu of revenue in governmental-type funds. 

 

Indirect cost. Elements of cost necessary in the operation of the LEA or in the performance of a 
service that are of such nature that the amount applicable to each accounting unit cannot be 
determined readily and accurately or for which the cost of such determination exceeds the 
benefit of the determination. It consists of those business and administrative costs that benefit 
the entire LEA (e.g., accounting, budgeting, personnel, purchasing). 

 

Indirect cost rate (ICR). A method for claiming reimbursement of indirect costs from federal and 
state categorical funds. It is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the indirect costs to direct 
base costs. 

 

Indirect support charges. Charges for routine services not performed as a special service for a 
particular program but allocated to user programs. 

 

In lieu of taxes. Revenue to replace the loss of tax revenue resulting from property that is 
exempted from taxation. 

 

Interest. A fee charged to a borrower for the use of money. 
 

Interfund accounts. Accounts in which transactions between funds are reflected. These include 
interfund transfer accounts and interfund receivable and payable accounts. 

 

Interfund borrowing. The movement of cash from one fund to another with the expectation that 
the borrowing is temporary and will be repaid. Interfund borrowing does not affect the fund 
balance of either the borrowing fund or the lending fund. 

 

Interfund transfers. Money that is taken from one fund under the control of the governing board 
and added to another fund under the board’s control, without the expectation for repayment. 

Page 146 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Interfund transactions other than interfund loans or borrowing, quasi-external transactions, 
and reimbursement. Interfund transfers are not revenues or expenditures. They do not 
increase the resources of the LEA as a whole but they do affect the fund balance of both 
funds. (See also Operating transfers, Residual equity transfers, and Interfund borrowing.) 

 

Interim borrowing. (1) Short-term loans to be repaid from general revenues during the course of 
a fiscal year; (2) short-term loans in anticipation of tax collections or bond issuance. 

 

Interim reports. Reports prepared as of a date or a period during the fiscal year. They include 
budgetary estimates, financial transactions during current year-to-date, and end-of-year 
projections. 

 

Internal audit. An appraisal activity within an LEA that (1) determines the adequacy of the 
system of internal control; (2) verifies and safeguards assets; (3) determines the reliability of 
the accounting and reporting system; (4) ascertains compliance with existing policies and 
procedures; and (5) appraises the performance of activities and work programs. 

 

Internal control. A plan of organization under which employees’ duties are so arranged, and 
records and procedures so designated, as to provide a system of self-checking, thereby 
enhancing accounting control over assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenditures. Under such a 
system, the employees’ work is subdivided so that no single employee performs a complete 
cycle of operation. Such procedures call for proper authorization by designated officials. 

 

Internal service funds. Funds created to render services on a cost-reimbursement basis to other 
organizational units of the LEA. Such funds are generally intended to be self-supporting. 

 

Inventory. A detailed list showing the quantities and a description of the property on hand at a 
given time. It may also include units of measure, unit prices, and values. 

 

Investments. Usually, securities and real estate held for the purpose of generating revenues, such 
as interest, dividends, or rental payments. 

 

Invoice. An itemized statement of charges for merchandise sold or services rendered to the 
purchaser. 

 

J 
 

Job account. An account established to record the accumulation of costs of a specific piece of 
work; work orders showing charges for material and labor used. 

 

Journal. Any accounting record in which the financial transactions of an LEA are formally 
recorded for the first time (e.g., the cash receipts book, check register, and general journal). 

 

Journal voucher. A form provided for the recording of certain transactions or information in 
place of, or supplementary to, the journal or registers. 

 

Judgments. Amounts due to be paid or collected by the LEA as the result of court decisions. 
 

L 
 

LEA. See Local educational agency. 

Page 147 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Lease-purchase agreements. Contractual agreements that are termed “leases” but which, in 
substance, amount to purchase contracts. 

 

Levy. The imposition of taxes or special assessments for the support of governmental activities; 
also, the total amount of taxes, special assessments, or service charges imposed by a 
governmental unit. 

 

Liabilities. Legal obligations (with the exception of encumbrances) that are unpaid. 
 

Line-item budgeting. A budget system emphasizing a “balanced budget” through comparison of 
estimated revenues with projected expenditures. Budgetary divisions are listed by 
organizational units, such as departments or activities, and expenditures are divided into 
major categories of personal services, contracted services and supplies, and capital outlay. 
For budgetary control, further breakdowns of expenditures are made through detailed object 
accounts based on the wide range of services, supplies, and equipment. 

 

Local educational agency (LEA). Typically, a local school district, county office of education, or 
joint powers agency engaged in providing educational services. 

 

Long-term debt. Debt that matures more than one year after the date of issuance. 
 

M 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). The narrative introducing the financial statements and 
providing an analytical overview of the LEA’s financial performance for the year. It should contain 
sufficient information for users of the financial statements to evaluate whether the financial position 
of the LEA has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities. 

 

Modified accrual basis. The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental fund type. Under it, 
revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and “available” to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Most expenditures are recognized (recorded) when the related 
liability is incurred. 

 

Multiyear financial plan. A plan that presents financial estimates of programs in tabular form for 
a period of years. These estimates reflect the future financial impact of current decisions. The 
data in the plan should be organized along the lines of the program structure. 

 

N 
 

Net income. A proprietary fund’s excess of revenues and operating transfers in over expenses 
and operating transfers out. 

 

Not-for-profit organization (NPO). An entity that meets the definition in the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 116, Accounting for Contribution Received and Contribution Made. An entity with the 
following characteristics that separates it from a business enterprise: 

 

x It receives contributions of significant amounts of resources from providers who 
do not expect a commensurate or proportionate pecuniary return. 

Page 148 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
x Its operating purposes are other than to provide goods or services at a profit. 
x Unlike business enterprises, it does not have an interest in ownership. 

 

O 
 

Object. As used in an expenditure classification, object applies to the article purchased or to the 
service obtained. 

 

Obligations. Amounts that the LEA may be legally required to meet from its resources. They 
include not only actual liabilities but also unliquidated encumbrances. 

 

Operating transfers. All interfund transfers other than residual equity transfers. 
 

Order (for payment). A written demand by the governing board of an LEA requiring the county 
superintendent of schools to draw his or her requisition on the county auditor for the payment 
of a claim against the LEA. 

 

Other financing sources. Governmental fund general long-term debt proceeds, operating 
transfers in, and material proceeds of fixed asset dispositions. Such amounts are 
classified separately from revenues. 

 

Other financing uses. Governmental funds’ operating transfers out. Such amounts are classified 
separately from expenditures. 

 

Overdraft. The amount by which checks, drafts, or other demands for payment on the treasury or 
on a bank account exceed the amount of the balance on which they are drawn; or the amount 
by which encumbrances and expenditures exceed the appropriation to which they are 
chargeable. 

 

Overhead. See Indirect cost. 
 

P 
 

Payroll register. A document accompanying one or more orders on a fund of an LEA for the 
payment of salaries or wages to employees; contains the names of such employees and 
provides information substantiating such orders. 

 

Payroll warrant. A document used as an order or a requisition on a fund of an LEA for the 
purpose of paying salaries or wages. 

 

Perpetual inventory. A system whereby the inventory of units of property at any date may be 
obtained directly from the records without resorting to an actual physical count. A record is 
provided for each item or group of items to be inventoried and is divided to provide a 
running record of goods ordered, received, and withdrawn and the balance on hand in units 
and cost. 

 

PERS. Public Employees’ Retirement System. Unless exempted by state law, 
classified employees, their district, and the state contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Personal property. All property except real property. (See also Real property.) 

Page 149 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Petty cash. A sum of money set aside for the purpose of making change or immediate payments 
of small amounts. (See also Revolving cash fund.) 

 

Physical inventory. The annual physical count of an LEA’s inventory. This count is often taken 
at the end of the year and observed by the LEA’s auditors. Periodically, physical inventories 
are conducted to test the accuracy of the perpetual inventory records. 

 

Posting. The act of transferring to an account in a ledger the data, either detailed or summarized, 
contained in a book of original entry. 

 

Prepaid expenses. Expenditures for which payment has been made but for which benefits have 
not been realized as of a certain date (e.g., prepaid rent, prepaid interest, and premiums on 
unexpired insurance). 

 

Prior years’ taxes. Taxes collected within the current fiscal year for levies in previous fiscal 
years. 

 

Program. A group of related activities that operate together to accomplish specific purposes or 
objectives. 

 

Program cost accounting. A method to identify program costs in a standard manner. In SACS, 
the goal field provides the framework for program cost accounting. 

 

Program structure. The hierarchical arrangement of programs that represents the 
interrelationship of activities to goals and objectives. The program structure contains 
categories of activities with common outputs and objectives. Programs may cut across 
existing departments and agencies. 

 

Project year. A field in SACS that is used to distinguish the activities of grants, sometimes 
known as special projects, whose “project year” or “reporting year” is different from the 
LEA fiscal year. 

 

Prorating. The allocating of expenditures or revenue from a single source to two or more 
accounts to show the correct distribution of charges or revenue. 

 

Purchase order. A document issued to a vendor that authorizes the delivery of specified 
merchandise or the performance of certain services and the making of a charge for them. 

 

R 
 

Real property. Property consisting of land, buildings, minerals, timber, landscaping, and all 
improvements thereto. 

 

Rebate. See Abatement or Refund. 
 

Receipts. Cash received. 
 

Reclassification. Redesignation of the current year’s revenue or expenditure items previously 
posted to one account and later determined to be more properly charged to a different 
account. 

 

Refund. An amount paid back or credit allowed because of an over-collection. 

Page 150 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Registered warrant. A warrant that is registered by the county treasurer for future 
payment because of a present lack of funds and that is to be paid with interest in the 
order of its registration. 

 

Registers. A listing of transactions of like kind that may be totaled and summarized for 
convenience in posting (e.g., payroll registers, warrant registers, and attendance 
registers). 

 

Reimbursement. Cash or other assets received as a repayment of the cost of work or services 
performed; or repayment of expenditures made for or on behalf of another governmental unit, 
fund, or department. 

 

Requisition. A document submitted initiating a purchase order to secure specified 
articles, services, or issuance of materials from stores or a warehouse. 

 

Reserve for economic uncertainties. The portion of the fund balance that has been designated (set 
aside) by the governing board to provide for emergencies or economic events, such as 
revenue shortfalls, that could not be anticipated. 

 

Reserve for encumbrances. An account used to segregate a portion of a fund balance for 
outstanding encumbrances. 

 

Residual equity transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds of the 
LEA (e.g., transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds to the general fund or 
contribution of internal service fund capital by the general fund). 

 

Resource. A field in SACS that is used to classify revenues and resulting expenditures in accord 
with restrictions or special reporting requirements placed on either aspects of LEA financial 
activities by law or regulation. Further, because such revenues frequently are not fully 
expended within a fiscal year, and related liabilities are not completely liquidated, the 
resource code is also to reflect restrictions and special reporting obligations on balance sheet 
accounts. 

 

Restricted funds. Money whose use is restricted by legal requirement or by the donor. 
 

Revenues. The increases in a fund’s financial resources other than from interfund transfers or 
debt issue proceeds. Revenues are the primary financial resource of a fund. Revenues are 
recognized when assets are increased without increasing liabilities or incurring an 
expenditure reimbursement. 

 

Revolving cash fund. An account used primarily for emergency or small disbursements and 
reimbursed periodically through properly documented expenditures, which are summarized 
and charged to proper accounting classifications. 

 

S 
 

SACS. Acronym for standardized account code structure. 
 

Schedules. Explanatory or supplementary statements that accompany the balance sheet or other 
financial statements. 

Page 151 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Secured roll. Assessed value of real property, such as land, buildings, secured personal 
property, or anything permanently attached to land, as determined by each county assessor. 

 

Securities. Bonds, notes, mortgages, or other forms of negotiable or nonnegotiable instruments. 
 

Serial annuity bonds. Serial bonds in which the annual installments of bond principal are so 
arranged that the combined payments for principal and interest are approximately the same 
each year. 

 

Serial bonds. Bonds whose principal is repaid in periodic installments over the life of the issue. 
 

Shared revenue. Revenue that is levied by one governmental unit but that is shared, usually in 
proportion to the amount collected, with another unit of government or class of governments. 

 

Short-term debt. Debt with a maturity of one year or less after the date of issuance. Short-term 
debt usually includes bond anticipation notes payable and tax and revenue anticipation notes 
(TRANs) payable. 

 

Source document. Any voucher, invoice, or other data that support an entry in the accounting 
records. 

 

Special revenue funds. Funds established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to finance particular activities other than capital 
projects or debt service and not held in trust for other individuals or entities. 

 

Standardized account code structure (SACS). A uniform, comprehensive, and minimum chart of 
accounts for classifying the financial activities of California LEAs. 

 

Statements. (1) In a general sense, all of those formal written presentations that set forth financial 
information; (2) in technical accounting, those presentations of financial data that show the 
financial position and the results of financial operations of a fund, a group of accounts, or an 
entire LEA for a particular accounting period. 

 

State School Fund. A special revenue fund within the State Treasury used for apportionments to 
school districts and county offices of education on the basis of the Local Control Funding 
Formula and certain other special-purpose apportionments. Apportionments are made by the 
State Controller and are based on certifications from the California Department of Education. 

 

Stores. Goods that are on hand in storerooms and that are subject to requisition. 
 

STRS. State Teachers’ Retirement System. State law requires certificated employees, school 
districts, and the state to contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Student body fund. An agency fund to control the receipts and the disbursements of student 
associations’ activities; it consists only of assets and liabilities. 

 

Subsidiary ledger. A supporting ledger consisting of a group of accounts, the total of which is in 
agreement with a control account (e.g., payroll ledger and appropriations ledger). 

 

Subvention. Provision of assistance or financial support, usually from a superior governmental 
unit; a grant. 

Page 152 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Supply. An item of an expendable nature that is consumed, wears out, or deteriorates in use; or 
one that loses its identity through fabrication or incorporation into a different or more 
complex unit or substance. 

 

Surety bond. A written promise to pay damages or to indemnify against losses caused by the 
party or parties named in the document, through nonperformance or through defalcation (e.g., 
a surety bond given by a contractor or by an official who handles cash or securities). 

 

Suspense account. An account that temporarily carries charges or credits pending 
the determination of the proper account or accounts. 

 

T 
 

Tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs). Notes issued in anticipation of collection of taxes, 
usually retirable only from tax collections and frequently only from the proceeds of the tax 
levy whose collection they anticipate. 

 

Tax liens. Claims by governmental units on properties for which taxes levied remain unpaid. 
 

Tax rate. The amount of tax stated in terms of a unit of the tax base. 
 

Tax rate limit. The maximum rate of tax that a governmental unit may levy. 
 

Tax redemption. Proceeds from the sale of tax-delinquent property. 
 

Tax relief subventions. Funds ordinarily paid to compensate for taxes lost because of tax relief 
measures. 

 

Tax roll. The list showing the amount of taxes levied against each taxpayer or property. 
 

Taxes. Compulsory charges levied by a governmental unit for the purpose of financing 
services performed for the common benefit. 

 

Taxes, protested. Tax money paid under protest and held by the county auditor pending 
settlement of the protest. 

 

Taxes receivable. An asset account representing the uncollected portion of taxes levied. 
 

Term bond. A bond whose entire principal matures on a single date. 
 

Trade discount. A reduction of the list price, usually expressed as a percentage and related to the 
volume of business transacted. (The term is not to be confused with Cash discount.) 

 

Transfer. Interdistrict or interfund payments or receipts not chargeable to expenditures or 
credited to revenue. (See also Budget transfer and Interfund transfers.) 

 

Trial balance. A list of the balances of the accounts in a ledger kept by double entry, with the 
debit and credit balances shown in separate columns. If the totals of the debit and credit 
columns are equal or if their net balances agree with a control account, the ledgers from 
which the figures are taken are said to be “in balance.” 

 

Trust fund. A fund used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Page 153 of 154



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Tuition. An amount charged for educational services provided to a student. 
 

U 
 

Unaudited actuals. An annual statement reporting the financial activities of the LEA in which 
the data are not yet audited. 

 

Unearned revenue. A liability for resources received prior to revenue recognition. 
 

Unencumbered balance. That portion of an appropriation or allotment not yet expended or 
obligated. 

 

Unit cost. The total expenditure for a product, program, or service divided by the total quantity 
obtained or some other quantitative measure (e.g., the total expenditure for desks divided by 
the number of desks equals the cost per desk). 

 

Unrealized revenue. Estimated revenue less revenue received to date; also, the estimated revenue 
for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

 

Unsecured roll. Assessed value of personal property other than secured property. 
 

V 
 

Voucher. A written document that evidences the propriety of transactions and usually 
indicates the amounts that are to be recorded. 

 

W 
 

Warrant. A written order, drawn by the LEA’s governing board or its authorized officer(s) or 
employee(s), approved by the county superintendent of schools and allowed by the county 
auditor, directing the county treasurer to pay a specified amount to a designated payee. 

 

Warrants payable. The amount of warrants issued, outstanding, and unpaid. 
 

Withholding. The process of deducting from a salary or wage payment an amount, specified by 
law or regulation, representing the individual’s estimated federal or state income tax that the 
employer must pay to the taxing authority. 

 

Work in process. The value of partially completed products manufactured or processed, such as a 
partially completed printing job. 

 

Work order. A written authorization for the performance of a particular job containing a 
description of the nature and location of the job and specifications for the work that is to be 
performed. Such authorizations are usually assigned job numbers, and provision is made for 
accumulating and reporting labor, material, and other costs. 

 

Workstation. Computer, personal computers, or work areas assigned for data processing 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised January 2019 Glossary 18 

Page 154 of 154



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9270.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 2 

Conflict of Interest 

The County Board of Education members shall adhere to all the provisions of the Government Code, 
the California Code of Regulations, and the Education Code. 

County Board of Education members shall  file a  full Statement of Economic  Interests  (Form 700) 
annually with the Colusa County Office of Education (County Office). 

Fair Polictical Practices Commission regulations (CCR, Title 2, Sec. 18730) contain the terms of the 
County Office’s Conflict of Interest Code and may be referenced at www.fppc.ca.gov. 

Form 700s shall be filed with the County Office, which will make the statements available for public 
inspection and reproduction. Upon receipt of the statements, the County Office shall retain original 
statements for seven years, and copies for four years. 

All persons required to file a Form 700 are also required to file a Form 700 within 30 days after leaving 
office. 

In addition, the County Superintendent designates the following to file a full Statement of Economic 
Interests (Form 700) annually with the County Office: 

County Superintendent 
Deputy Superintendents 
Associate Superintendents 
Assistant Superintendents 

References: 
Superintendents Policies and Procedures 
  2300 Conflict of Interest 
Education Code 
  35230‐35240 Corrupt practices 
Government Code 
  1090‐10979 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
  1125‐1128 Incompatible activities 
  81000‐810156 Political Reform Act of 1974 General 
  82000‐82054 Political Reform Act of 1974 Definitions 
  84100‐84615 Campaign Disclosure 
  87100‐87500 Conflicts of interest 
  91000‐91014 Enforcement 
   

11.2 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9270.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 2 of 2 

California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 2 – Administration 
  Division 26 ‐ Fair Political Practices Commission 
    Chapter 7 ‐ Conflicts of Interest 
      Article 1, 18700 – 18720 Conflicts of interest: General prohibition 
      Article 2, 18722 – 18740 Disclosure 
      Article 2.5, 18741.1 – 18747 Post‐Employment Laws 
      Article 3, 18750 ‐ 18760 Conflict of Interest Codes 
 
Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed:  March 10, 1999 
Revised:  February 11, 2004, April 9, 2008, October 13, 2010, April 8, 2020, April 13, 2022 



a
8
-
1
t CALIFORNIA COUNTY 

BOARDS OF EDUCATION 

A'Vo 
January 31, 2022 

MEMORANDUM 

�IEC!EP/IED 
u F EB 7 2022 l!JI 

TO: 

FROM: 

CCBE and CSBA Member County Boards of Education 

Joe Ross, CCBE President 
COLUSA COUi'JTY 

OFFICE OF EDUC!-ff!ON 

SUBJECT: 2022 CCBE Board of Directors and CSBA Delegate Assembly Election 

Per President Susan Heredia's previous memo, enclosed is the ballot material for election of a county 
representative to the CSBA Delegate Assembly, who when elected will also be the member of CCBE's 
Board of Directors from your region. 

All re-elected and newly elected Delegates will serve two-year terms beginning April 1, 2022 - March 
31, 2024. The next meeting of the Delegate Assembly takes place on Saturday, May 21 and Sunday, 
May 22, 2022. Please do not hesitate to contact the Executive Office at nominations@csba.org should 
you have any questions. 

About the California County Boards of Education 

CCBE is a statewide organization that is a section of CSBA and partners with it in providing educational 
leadership serving the unique needs of all county boards of education in California. CCBE's mission is 
to serve and represent the county boards of education community by strengthening and promoting local 
governance through advocacy, training, mentoring, marketing, and communications. CCBE is a dynamic 
network of members engaged in maximizing education opportunities for all. 

Members of the CCBE Board of Directors establish the vision, mission, and goals for CCBE, and ensure 
that activities and programs remain focused on those goals, as well as the issues identified in CCBE's 
policy platform. The CCBE Board of Directors is a working body, committed to serving an organization 
that is dedicated to equity and knowledge. 

CCBE Board of Director's roles and responsibilities include: 
■ Attend all CCBE Board meetings as well as all CSBA Delegate Assembly meetings.
■ Adopt CCBE's budget, policy platform, bylaws and standing rules.
■ Be available for appointment by the President to at least one CCBE committee.
■ Attend and participate in CCBE's annual conference programs.
■ Provide two-way communication with local county board members and school districts.
■ Select and endorse a candidate for the CSBA Director-at-Large, County position.
■ Support and participate in CCBE's and CSBA's projects, activities, and events.

Encs: Ballot on red paper and watermarked "copy" of ballot on white paper 
List of all current Delegates on reverse side of ballot 
Candidate(s)' required Biographical Sketch Forms and optional resumes 
CSBA-addressed envelope to send back ballots 

California County Boards ofEducationl 3251 Beacon Boulevard I West Sacramento, CA 956911 (800) 266-3382 



REQUIRES BOARD ACTION 

This complete, ORIGINAL Ballot must be SIGNED by the Superintendent or Board Clerk and 
returned in the enclosed envelope postmarked by the post office no later than TUESDAY, 
MARCH 15, 2022. Only ONE Ballot per Board. Be sure to mark your vote " X " in the box. 
A PARTIAL, UNSIGNED, PHOTOCOPIED, OR LATE BALLOT WILL NOT BE VALID. 

OFFICIAL 2022 DELEGATE ASSEMBLY BALLOT 
COUNTY DELEGATE REGION 4 

(Glenn, Tehama, Butte, Colusa, Sutter, Yuba, Nevada, Placer, and Sierra Counties) 

Number of seats: 1 (Vote for no more than 1 candidate) 

Delegates will serve two-year terms beginning April 1, 2022 - March 31, 2024 

*denotes incumbent 

David Patterson (Placer COE)* 

Provision for Write-in Candidate Name COE 

Signature of Superintendent or Board Clerk Title 

COE Name Date of Board Action 

See reverse side for list of all current Delegates in your Region. 



REGION 4 - 8 Delegates (8 elected) 

Director: Renee Nash (Eureka Union SD) 

Below is a list of all elected or appointed Deleg_ates from this Region. 

Subregion 4-A (Glenn, Tehama) 
Vacant, term expires 2022 

Subregion 4-B (Butte) 
Sharon Nilsson (Oroville City ESD), term expires 2023 

Subregion 4-C (Colusa, Sutter, Yuba) 
Vacant, term expires 2022 
Doug Criddle (Marysville Joint USD), term expires 2023 

Subregion 4-D (Nevada, Placer, Sierra) 
Julann Brown (Auburn Union ESD), term expires 2023 
Alisa Fong (Roseville City SD), term expires 2023 
Rachelle Price (Rocklin USD), term expires 2022 

County Delegate: 
David Patterson (Placer COE), term expires 2022 

[-Counties  

Glenn, Tehama (Subregion A) 
Butte (Subregion B) 
Colusa, Sutter, Yuba (Subregion C) 
Nevada, Placer, Sierra (Subregion D) 



csbalko 
California School Boards Association 

Regional County Delegate & 
CCBE Board of Directors 
Biographical Sketch Form for 2022 Election 
Deadline: Friday, January 7, 2022 I No late submissions accepted 

This form is required.  An optional, one-page, single-sided, résumé may also be submitted. Do not state "see résumé." Do not re-
type this form. It is the candidate's responsibility to confirm that CSBA has received nomination materials prior to the deadline. 
Please submit completed form via e-mail to nominations@csba.org  by no later than by no later than 11:59 p.m. on January 7, 
2022. Forms may also be submitted via mail, to CSBA's Executive Office, at 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691, with a 
postmark of no later than January 7, 2022. 

Your signature indicates your consent to have your name placed on the ballot to serve as a CSBA Delegate and as a member of 

the California County Boards of Education (CCBE), if elected. 

Signature: Date: January 4, 2022 

  

Name: David Patterson CSBA Region & subregion #: 4 County 

District or COE: Placer County Office of Education Years on board: 10 

Profession:  Educator Contact Number ( 0 Cell 0 Home 0 Bus.):  916-801-2454  

Primary E-mail:  davepatterson@mail.com  

Are you an incumbent Delegate? ElYes JNo If yes, year you became Delegate:  2020  

Why are you interested in becoming a Delegate? Please describe the skills and experiences you would bring to the Delegate 

Assembly. 

I began my service as a County Delegate two years ago, just as the COVID pandemic hit. On top of the damage done by COVID, the 
counties in Region 4 have be hit by terrible fires. The level of destruction and harm to our students and schools is unprecedented. During 
this time I have strongly advocated for the needs of our counties - rural/suburban counties, in CCBE/CSBA as well as worked to keep each 
board informed of CCBE's work on your behalf. I bring seventeen years of service on 
school and county boards, currently serving my third term on the Placer County Board, and prior on the Rocklin Unified School Board 
and six years on the Del Paso Elementary School Board. I also bring three decades of experience in public education as an educator; 

principal, superintendent, county office of education director and 10 years at COE. 

Please describe your activities and involvement on your local board, community, and/or CSBA. 

In addition to serving as your County Delegate, I am serving on the CCBE committee to update the CCBE Governance Handbook and 
served on the 2021 CCBE Conference Committee. I have served on the CCBE legislative committee for many years, served on the 
nomination committee for two years, including chairperson. I have led many CCBE trainings supporting high quality charter oversight by 
county boards and co-led the development of the CCBE report Blueprint for Better Charter schools. On the Placer County Board I have 
served as President, Vice President and continue to on serve the Policy Committee. As immediate past President of our board, I provided 
leadership as the Board and the Superintendent crafted a shared governance compact which we shared at both the CCBE and CSBA 
conferences. 

What do you see as the biggest challenge facing governing boards and how can CSBA help address it? 

I don't think our public education system, both in Region 4 and statewide, have faced greater challenges. Governing boards face continuing 
huge challenges with COVID, with the Omicron surge hitting our schools as I write this. Our rural communities need to rebuild from fires. 
While the state is flush with one-time money, too many of our schools, districts and COEs are facing serious funding shortages and layoffs 
going forward. Our schools need more stable, long-term funding! But we do not need more statewide, one size fits all mandates and 
multiple and duplicative "plans". Specific support is needed for rural/suburban counties, our needs differ from urban centers. CCBE/CSBA 
must be our collective voice fighting for full & adequate funding, fighting micromanagement, and advocating for laws that empowering 
boards to achieve excellence in their communities — rural, suburban and urban. 



David Patterson, Ed.D davepatterson@mail.com  

2829 Augusta Way, Rocklin, CA 95765 916.801.2454 (Cell) 

Service to Communities Through School Boards  
Collaborative leadership with a focus on community and educational quality. I have eighteen years of 

service on school and county boards. Two terms on the Placer County Board, serving as President, Vice 

President and Chair of the Board Policy Committee. Active in the Rocklin Chamber and other community 

organizations. Served on the Rocklin Unified School Board and before moving to Placer County served 

more than six years on the Del Paso Elementary School Board, one of the most at-risk and segregated 

communities in Sacramento. 

Placer County Board of Education 2012-current 

Board of Trustees, Rocklin Unified School District 1996-1998 

Board of Trustees, Del Paso Heights Elementary School District 1988-1994 

Statewide Service Through CCBE and CSBA 
CCBE Ad Hoc Government Handbook Revision Committee: Currently serving 

CCBE Conference Planning Committee: For the 2021 Conference 

CCBE Legislative Committee: Served on the CCBE legislative committee for many years. 

CCBE Nomination Committee: Served on the nomination committee for two years, including 

chairperson. 

Served as Trainer for CCBE: Leads many CCBE trainings supporting high quality charter oversight by 

county boards. 

CCBE Report "Blueprint for Better Charter Schools: Co-lead with Greg Geeting the development of the 

CCBE report "Blueprint for Better Charter Schools." 

Conference Presenter: Presenter at many CCBE conferences and many other statewide conferences. 

Three Decades of Service as a K-12 Educator  
Over 30 years of experience and leadership in communities working to improving public schools. The 

majority of this experience has been in California, but I have also worked in Washington DC, and three 

other states. I have worked at the local, state and federal levels. Positions and experience include: 

• School principal 

• Superintendent 

• Director at a county office 

• Director of Governmental Relations 

• Ten years of service at the California Department of Education 

• Extensive experience in the legislative, regulatory and administrative arenas 

Education  
Doctorate in Education - University of Southern California. Summa cum Laude. 1995 

Master of Arts - Higher Education Administration, George Washington University 1983 

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science - University of California, Los Angeles 1977 

Personal  
Married with three adult sons and five grandchildren. Wife Kathy is a retired high school math teacher. 

Enjoy being a grandparent, riding motorcycles, community theater and fishing. 



cs13a9 
California School Boards Association 

REQUIRES BOARD ACTIOA 
Due: Tues. March 15—return ballot  osed envelou  

C1flVE 

F EB 2 2022 

To: All Board Presidents and Superintendents — CSBA Member I oard 
From: Dr. Susan Heredia, CSBA President 
Re: 2022 Ballot for CSBA Delegate Assembly — U.S. Postmark 

COLLTz;ti ,_;0-UNITy 
OFTV,‘,7. OF 

January 31, 2022 

MEMORANDUM 

Enclosed is the ballot material for election to CSBA's Delegate Assembly from your region or subregion. 
It consists of: 1) the ballot (on red paper) listing the candidates, the reverse side of which contains the 
names of ALL current members of the Delegate Assembly from your region or subregion; and 2) the 
required candidate biographical sketch form and, if submitted, a resume. In addition, provided is a copy 
of the ballot on white paper to include with your board agenda. Only the ballot on red paper is to be 
completed and returned to CSBA. It must be postmarked by the U.S. Post Office on or before 
Tuesday, March 15, 2022. 

Your Board may vote for up to the number of seats to be filled in the region or subregion as indicated on 
the ballot. For example, if there are three seats up for election, the Board may vote for up to three 
candidates. However, your Board may cast no more than one vote for any one candidate. The ballot also 
contains a provision for write-in candidates; their name and district must be clearly printed in the space 
provided. 

The ballot must be signed by the Superintendent or Board Clerk and returned in the enclosed envelope; if 
the envelope is misplaced, you may use your district's stationery. Please write DELEGATE 
ELECTION prominently on the envelope along with the region or subregion number on the bottom left 
corner of the envelope (this number appears at the top of the ballot). If there is a tie vote, a run-off 
election will be held. Results will be published by May 11, 2022. 

All re-elected and newly elected Delegates will serve two-year terms beginning April 1, 2022 — March 
31, 2024. The next meeting of the Delegate Assembly takes place on Saturday, May 21 and Sunday, May 
22, 2022. Please do not hesitate to contact the Executive Office at nominations@csba.org  should you 
have any questions. 

Encs: Ballot on red paper and watermarked "copy" of ballot on white paper 
List of all current Delegates on reverse side of ballot 
Candidate(s)' required Biographical Sketch Forms and optional resumes 
CSBA-addressed envelope to send back ballots 

California School Boards Association I 3251 Beacon Boulevard, West Sacramento, CA 95691 (800) 266-3382 



REQUIRES BOARD ACTION 

This complete, ORIGINAL Ballot must be SIGNED by the Superintendent or Board Clerk and 
returned in the enclosed envelope postmarked by the post office no later than TUESDAY, 
MARCH 15, 2022. Only ONE Ballot per Board. Be sure to mark your vote " X " in the box. 
A PARTIAL, UNSIGNED, PHOTOCOPIED, OR LATE BALLOT WILL NOT BE VALID. 

OFFICIAL 2022 DELEGATE ASSEMBLY BALLOT 
SUBREGION 4-C 

(Colusa, Sutter, and Yuba Counties) 

Number of seats: 1 (Vote for no more than 1 candidate) 

Delegates will serve two-year terms beginning April 1, 2022 - March 31, 2024 

*denotes incumbent 

No nominations were received; however, your board may vote to write in the name of a 
board member to fill this seat. 

Provision for Write-in Candidate Name School District 

Signature of Superintendent or Board Clerk Title 

School District Name Date of Board Action 

See reverse side for list of all current Delegates in your Region. 



REGION 4 — 8 Delegates (8 elected) 

Director: Renee Nash (Eureka Union SD) 

Below is a list of all elected or appointed De  egates from this Region. 

Subregion 4-A (Glenn, Tehama) 
Vacant, term expires 2022 

Subregion 4-B (Butte) 
Sharon Nilsson (Oroville City ESD), term expires 2023 

Subregion 4-C (Colusa, Sutter, Yuba) 
Vacant, term expires 2022 
Doug Criddle (Marysville Joint USD), term expires 2023 

Subregion 4-D (Nevada, Placer, Sierra) 
Julann Brown (Auburn Union ESD), term expires 2023 
Alisa Fong (Roseville City SD), term expires 2023 
Rachelle Price (Rocklin USD), term expires 2022 

County Delegate: 
David Patterson (Placer COE), term expires 2022 

Counties  

Glenn, Tehama (Subregion A) 
Butte (Subregion B) 
Colusa, Sutter, Yuba (Subregion C) 
Nevada, Placer, Sierra (Subregion D) 



SUNSHINE PROPOSAL 

OF THE COLUSA COE EDUCATION SUPPORT PROFESSIONALS 

TO THE COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

 

The Colusa COE Education Support Professionals (CCOE‐ESP) and the Colusa County Office of 

Education (CCOE) are parties to a collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) which remains in full 

effect until a new contract is reached. Pursuant to the EERA the CCESP wishes to explore 

changes to the following articles in bargaining for the 2022‐2023 contract year.  

 

ARTICLE XVIII Salaries (and Appendices B‐1, B‐2, B‐3)  

ARTICLE XIX Health and Fringe Benefits 

 

And other contract language that the parties mutually agree upon.  

 

Keri Cunha 
Keri Cunha, President 

February 28, 2022 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.0350 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ken i Cunha, President 

Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

FROM: Michael P. West 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools 

DATE: March 1, 2022 

SUBJECT: Superintendent's Sunshine Proposal for Colusa County 

Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) for 2022-23 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) proposes the following items for 

negotiations for 2022-2023: 

1. Entire Agreement/Modification (Article 28) — Contract Review and 

Possible Revision 

CCOE reserves the right to present more detailed written proposals as 

negotiations commence in each of the articles identified in this initial proposal 

and reserves the right to open additional articles. 

\Th 

Michael P 

Colusa Ctiunty_Sup_erintendent-of Schools 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDAS 

DATE:  Wednesday, April 13, 2022 
 
TIME:  3:45 p.m.  Special Meeting for Trustee Area 3 Applicant Interview 

    Regular Board Business Meeting Following Special Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

S P E C I A L   B O A R D   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

3:45 p.m.       DECISION 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 HOLD INTERVIEW FOR TRUSTEE AREA 3  action 

3.0 ADJOURNMENT OF SPECIAL MEETING 

R E G U L A R   B O A R D   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School and   information 
  S. William Abel Academy 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – March Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 
6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 
6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney  information 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the March 9, 2022, Public Hearing  action 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the March 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 3 and Administer the  action 

  Oath of Office 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revisions  information 
11.2.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention 
11.2.2 BP 9220.00 Governing Board Elections 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 

11.3 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23 from  information 
  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (ECCOE) 

11.4 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23  information 
  from Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (ECCOE) 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
May 11, 2022, 4:00 pm 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



i  -.----..) E (--r, pf 
‘,......?, ! 47.3 

l':'  
''..= 

, A 

i \ 
--) 3 

.. L 
MAR 1 1 2022 

COLLISA COUNTY 
OFF.CF..7: OF ET:I.JCAT;ON 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO THE 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

NAME:   (11,alrie,c OrtrOLA  

ADDRESS:  )-q tlq /2.J.  PO Box (if applicable)  

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE  bi CAA a_ rti C,c\_  

PHONE:  C-3c)  Z- / F--/(-12.--(2   (Mobile) 53() Lf73f7c2   (Home) 

41/ref Yko r cb frt) , hereby affirm that I am 18 years or 

order; a citizen of the State of California; a resident of one of the 

precincts represented by the vacant Board position; a registered voter; 

not an employee of Colusa County Office of Education or a school district 

that is within the jurisdiction of the county board of education; and free 

of any disqualification from holding a civil office. 

I am interested in serving as Trustee, Area No.  3  . I am a registered 

voter in the   (A)/ 14.4  Precinct. I understand the role and 

responsibilities of a member of the Colusa County Board of Education. I 

understand the term of appointment is through December 9, 2022  . 

I will be available for interview on  April 13, 2022 , between the hours 

of 2:00 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. I understand that I will be given the 

opportunity to speak for a maximum of ten minutes about my interest in 

serving as a Board member, and about any previous experience I bring to 

this position. 

-714444-tt\-)  
Signature 

Date 
3/'  

The deadline to submit the application is April 5,2022 

Submit the completed form to: 

Michael P. West 

Colusa County Office of Education 

345 5th Street, Suite A 

Colusa, CA 95932 



March 11, 2022 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Board of Trustees 

345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA 95932 

Dear Board of Trustees Members, 

The intent of this letter is to state my interest in serving as a Board Member for the Trustee 

Area 3 appointment. I understand that you are looking for a Williams resident to fill the 

remainder of the current term, and am willing and able to step up to the challenge. 

As a life-long resident and former School Board Member of the Williams Unified School District, 

I feel that I would make a suitable candidate for the CCOE Board of Trustees. I have served the 

Williams community throughout the years on many committees, and being a local farmer and 

Williams Fire Protection Authority Firefighter, I have the best interest of the Trustee Area 3 in 

mind. 

I hope that you will consider my application and look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 

� 7 � 
Charles Morrow 

2449 Engrahm Road 

Williams, CA 95987 

(530) 218-1420



  6.3.1 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  March 2022        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 Meeting with CDE/OHS Consultants. 
 Region Cluster Meeting. 
 Recruitment for new providers with Resource & Referral. 
 Planning for Migrant season. 
 Social Emotional Learning – Community of Practice. 
 Collaborative Meeting with Colusa Indian Community Council. 
 March 4th In-Service Day training with Clifton Strengths Talent Assessment. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Office of Head Start Refunding Application submitted April 1st. 
 CDE-CSPP California State Preschool Grant: Due April 21st. 

School Readiness: 

 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative Partnership Cohort. 
 Learning Genie Family Engagement app.  
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 
 Kindergarten transition. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Representatives/Policy Council Meeting 
 Family Fair was well attended and a success! 
 Provider Retreat: Professional Development trainings for child care providers in April 

 

 

 

 



Educational Services Board Report 
April 2022 

Alternative Education 

S. William Abel Academy (SWAA)
• Students at SWAA have been working on the Plant Sale and more hands-on learning with Art. Students

will be participating in project-based academics until the end of the school year.
• SWAA students are preparing for CAASSP and ELPAC examinations, with freshmen preparing for the

Physical Fitness Test, which will be taken when the students return from Spring Break. Spring Break is
from April 15-April 22

Colusa County Adult School 
• The Wildland Fire Academy will graduate 15 cadets on Sunday, April 10th at 12:00 pm.
• Colusa County Adult School will be hosting its Adult Education Graduation and Recognition Ceremony

on May 26, 2022, at 6:00 PM in the Multipurpose Room.
• New Inmate Education Teacher, Michelle Bingham has begun offering classes in the classroom at

The Colusa County Jail.  Michelle offers student support at the Day Reporting Center on Tuesdays.
Michelle also serves as our Adult Education Navigator on Wednesdays-Fridays.

Farm to School 
• Blocks have been delivered to local districts to begin the construction of garden beds at the Maxwell and

Williams sites.
• The Farm to School Plant Sale will be held at Griff’s Feed Store on Saturday, April 9, 2022.  Come support

the Farm to School Program.

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Meetings with the Superintendent and Site Principal have been held to provide support and assistance

for our one site in CSI.  Due to no data being reported to the dashboard due to COVID-19, the site
remains in CSI this current school year.

• Due to changes in the CSI allocations, this year’s Plan Implementation and Plan Approval will be coded
separately.

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 
• Meetings with the Superintendent regarding the next steps have taken place, with a plan of action to

obtain data assistance from Inform to Inspire, and to address the data deliverables required for reporting
of districts in DA.

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• Meetings with Superintendents regarding changes to their LCAPs and update reporting have been

provided.
• Trainings continued to be provided to Ed Services Staff to ensure plan compliance and calibration of

reviewing district LCAPs.



SEL CoP (Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice) 
• Trainings have been held monthly for the SEL CoP for administrators, teachers, support staff, etc. 

representing Yuba, Sutter, Yolo and Colusa Counties. The SEL CoP is offered through a MOU with the 
Sacramento County Office of Education. Colusa County’s participation rate is usually 15-18 adults per 
month. 

 
Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• The ES Child Aides have continued to share Second Step curriculum with Williams USD, Colusa 

County Children’s Services, Hand in Hand, and Colusa Indian Community Council.  
• is commencing to prepare for next year and is hopeful of expanding to other school districts.  

 
Foster Youth 

• The Prevention Services Department started coordinating the Fostering Success Summit. The date for 
the summit is June 25, 2022. Dr. John Gaines, a former Foster Youth, will be the guest speaker for the 
summit. 

• The Caring Youth Count Award Ceremony was held on March 31, 2022. Thirty students received 
awards for either Heroic Resilience, Community Service, or Strength of Character.  

• The Executive Advisory Council meeting was held on March 10, 2022.  
o This month we developed a needs assessment to obtain needed services along with direction for 

future meetings. 
 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• The Prevention Services Department has continued to offer technical assistance to all school districts. 
• A We Are Family: Healthy Choices workshop was held on March 2, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department established two planning meetings for the upcoming Migrant 

Resource Fair, which will take place on May 6, 2022, from 4:00pm to 6:30pm.  
 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The Prevention Services Department started providing Brief Intervention (Alternative to Suspension 
curriculum) for students caught using or in possession of tobacco/vape products within all four school 
districts.  

• SWAT (Students Working Against Tobacco) has been scheduled with all four school districts.  
o 04/11/22 @ Williams  
o 04/12/22 @ Maxwell  
o 04/15/22 @ Egling 
o 04/22/22 @ Arbuckle 

• Outreach activities are scheduled for the month of April at all school districts to promote programs. 
• The Prevention Services Department took part in a TUPE Monthly Meeting on March 9, 2022. 

 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• Quarter 3 Quarterly Progress Report is due April 15, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department trained school resource officers (SRO) on the TLEGP grant. 

Duties, responsibilities, and expenses were discussed.  
• Approval for equipment and logo for outreach materials was received. 
• The Prevention Services Department provided further training opportunities for SROs.  



6.3.2



•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•





•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•





•
•

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•





6.4

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report April 13, 2022 

We have beta tested a new type of radio for the EduNet that uses a new type of 
technology. We replaced the existing radio on top of Pirelli to see if it would show good 
results.  Unfortunately, the radio’s new technology did not work well at the height of our 
mounted equipment, and the signal could not penetrate trees.  We have reverted our 
setup to the original radio and we are returning the new radio to the vendor.  We 
appreciate Baicells help in evaluating their new technology.  We would like to thank the 
CCOE Facilities Team for their help setting up the radio during the testing. 

After meeting with the CUSD IT Director, we are waiting for CUSD Administration to 
evaluate our plans for the fourth EduNet radio near the golf course.  We have received 
and provided quotes for the telephone pole and equipment installation.     

The PJUSD test pilot for deploying external routers on students’ homes is very 
successful so far.  We have completed 4 homes all with great results. MUSD will be 
deploying an external unit shortly as well. 

Our CCOE phone system (Mitel 5000) will reach its end of life shortly.  We are in the 
process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This purchase 
would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We are ensuring this migration 
will meet all needs for all CCOE sites with Mitel 5000 phone systems.  We have 
received 2 quotes.  We are in the process of aligning the other vendors for an apples to 
apples comparison.   

We are in the process of re-inventorying all CCOE equipment.  Once the inventory has 
been completed, we will be giving each CCOE Department a list of computers that will 
not support Windows 11.  We will begin the process of phasing these computers out 
prior to the Windows 10 end of life in 2025.  

We are currently looking for a new network monitoring solution for CCOE.  Our previous 
vendor Auvik uses dynamic billing, which has created some problems.  We have sat 
through demonstrations for Intermapper, PRTG, Nagios, and Datto.  We still are 
comparing features and prices. 



 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – March 9, 2022 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, Madison Martin, 
Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Stefani Silvas Santana, 
Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0  CALL TO ORDER 
1.1  Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the Public Hearing and Action on Colusa County Board 
of Education Trustee Areas Based Upon the 2020 Census to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0  DISCUSS AND APPROVE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION TRUSTEE AREAS MAP 
Michael West drew the Board’s attention to the 2010 and 2020 census based Colusa Board 
of Education maps and the current Colusa County School Districts map on display in the 
large conference room, and smaller versions at each Board member’s seat.  In addition, 
Michael provided a handout from California Common Cause entitled “Redistricting 
Requirements for County Boards of Education, School Boards, and Special Districts,” and 
printouts of Education Code 1002 and 5019.  Discussion was held on the boundary 
development, population increases, maintaining population balances, and school districts 
moving from at large elections to trustee areas. 

Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, one vacant 
(Trustee Area 3) to approve the Colusa County Board of Education Trustee Areas Map. 

Michael also publicly thanked Colusa County Department of Public Works Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) Coordinator Drew Short for his efforts to provide meaningful 
maps and data for the redistricting process. 

3.0  ADJOURNMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 
After no comments or questions by the public about the Colusa County Board of Education 
Trustee Areas Map, the Public Hearing closed at 4:12 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, Jacqueline Hernandez, Aaron Heinz, Vicki 
Markss, Madison Martin, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, 
Stefani Silvas Santana, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 4:13 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led during the Public 
Hearing held immediately prior to this Board meeting. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on two recent graduates from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the one graduate in attendance, presented her with a 
diploma, gave the graduate a portfolio to organize her professional papers, and 
asked her to share with the Board her plans for the future and to introduce her 
guests. 
 

4.2 Resignation from the Board – Paul Timothy Wright 
Michael West presented Tim Wright’s letter of resignation from the Board due to 
his employment at WUSD. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West gave each Board member their CCOE name badge and 
photograph.  Michael announced that March 11, 2022, marks the end of 
Masking Mandate for all students and staff, and that the Executive Order 
was amended to read that masking is strongly recommended but not 
required.  Additionally, he said that the Federal Emergency COVID 19 
declaration was lifted.  Michael also reported on his participation and 

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

attendance in activities, such as continued recognition of Teachers and 
Employees of the Trimester, planning for the CCOE Annual Awards Dinner 
on, May 13, 2022, at 5:00 pm, for which he gave each Board member an 
invitation, work on the County Board of Education Trustee Areas review, 
a visit to Boise State University to explore their Extended Studies 
offerings with the hope of aligning those with Colusa County needs, the 
Head Start Policy Council that included a group of very active and 
educated parents, the Colusa County Elementary Spelling Bee during 
which WUES 4th grade student Paola Ambriz took first place and WUES 6th 
grade student EllyAna Ramos took second place, and a meeting with CICC 
Hand in Hand staff regarding grant and collaborative outreach 
opportunities between CCOE and CICC.  Michael distributed information 
from EdData that supplied local indicators for all districts and COEs. 

Michael gave an overview of CCSESA’s Legislative Update including: 

 SB 866 – (Weiner) Minors’ vaccination consent 

 SB 871 – (Pan) Immunization requirement that removes the personal 
belief exemption 

 AB 1609, 1614, and SB 579 – All related to amended LCFF funding and 
the way that the money is spent 

 SB 692 Special Education funding 

Michael also reported on concern for the increase of tax revenues and 
the impact that will have on education finance including changes in the 
following big three taxes from January to February: 

 Personal Income, January – up 26.4%, February – up 12% 

 Sales and Use Tax, January – up 12.3%, February – down 1.2% 

 Corporation Tax, January – up 55.5%, February – up 79.9% 
He added that the COLA is still projected to be well above 6% and may 
climb higher if Inflation continues to increase and that the Governor 
continues to offer increased funding to pay for additional staff for UPK, 
while still looking at the need for more teachers, UPK teachers, and 
administrative personnel.  Discussion was held on the value of bringing 4‐
year‐old students into the TK‐12 system, parents having the option for 
their children’s participation in UPK, political reasons to expand to UPK, a 
Danish study on the value of play‐based learning, and the proposed 
model allowing each school district to develop their own curriculum.  
Michael handed out a copy of CCSESA’s Budget Request, which focuses 
on educational equity and accountability. 

Michael invited the Board to attend CCOE’s Caring Youth Count Awards 
Ceremony on March 31, 2022, which is hosted by Prevention services.  He 
also shared an article from the winter 2021 California School Business 
magazine that featured an article on CCOE’s Deputy Superintendent of 
Administrative Services Aaron Heinz.  Michael extended congratulations 
to Aaron and enthusiastically remarked, “We are proud of you!” 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No February Meeting 
Michael West reported that the Superintendents did not meet in 
February, and they are looking forward to meeting on March 29, 2022, 
for a presentation on NARCAN by Pharmacist Frank Davison and School 
Nurse Barbara Hankins; an introduction to Ampla Health Dental care; and 
a visit with District Attorney, Probation, and Sheriff staff about truancy 
issues, DART, and the role of each agency. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his March 2022 Administrative Services report to the 
Board that highlighted upcoming HR Director and AP Accounting Specialist II 
interviews and reallocation of the current receptionist to the HR/Accounting 
Specialist I position. 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman presented his March 2022 Student Services report to the Board 
that listed work on business practices and melding programs together. 

6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss presented her March 2022 Children’s Services written report 
to the Board that focused on Children’s Services’ Annual Self‐Assessment 
report.  Vicki said the report named five phases:  Process, team, data 
analysis, recommendations, and report.  The report also identified five 
focus areas:  ERSEA, education and child development, family and 
community engagement, health, and program design and management.  
Vicki also distributed a “Wellness at Work” newsletter that emphasized 
staff wellness.  Discussion was held on improved employee wellness 
helping the on‐boarding process and increasing campus safety.  Vicki 
reported on the results of a CDE designed parent survey that indicated 
parents are overwhelmingly satisfied with the programs, they have 
increased stability and can pursue jobs and education, they are satisfied 
with receipt of their children’s information, and they provided overall 
positive comments about the program.  Michael West spoke about 
statewide recognition of CCOE’s Children’s Services program and 
discussion was held on the program’s low staff turn‐over rate. 

6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Lorilee Niesen answered the Board’s questions about her March 2022 
Educational Services written report, regarding enrollment (15 students), 
and on McKinney Vento homeless outreach activities that include ready‐
to‐go backpacks and hygiene kits, monthly district liaison meetings, and 
supplementing vs. supplanting district funds. 

6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney 
Chuck Wayman presented the March 2022 Special Education and SELPA 
report that described an upcoming CAC parent involvement meeting and 
2022‐23 budget and staffing planning,  



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans added to his March 2022 Technology Services written report by 
thanking the Board for attending the Technology Services and IAL Grand Opening 
on February 28. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Barry Morrell spoke favorably about the Technology Services and IAL Grand Opening. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Cristy Edwards/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes, one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve the following Consent Agenda 
items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the February 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that he had no new information at this time. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on the landscaping project in front of the Village that will 
feature drought tolerant plants and on the search for a soils engineer. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Educational Services Director Lorilee Niesen reported on the return of “Tuesdays 
at Two” trainings on the LCAP template and changes, and she was pleased to 
announce that the trainings are now broken down into cohorts of same‐size 
COEs and Districts. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Interim Project Director Stefani Silvas Santana 
thanked the Board for attending the Technology Services/IAL Grand Opening, 
and she reported on grant activities, including providing F2B resources to the 
districts and Children’s Services, beginning the second cohort of the Early 
Literacy Certification program that will be bilingual, and collaborating with the 
WIC Program and Glenn County to improve community outreach. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Second Interim Report 

Angelina Guizar reported on the changes between the First and Second Interim 
Reports by highlighting the Criteria and Standards Review, and the Summary of 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

Unrestricted/Restricted Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.  
Discussion was held on the cost of the mobile teaching kitchen cart ($12,000) 
and landscaping ($125,000).  Angelina continued her review of the summary by 
highlighting other financing sources, the majority of which were from the sale of 
the Williams property.  Angelina also reviewed the Multiyear Projections that 
included increased spending due to the potential purchase of the 345 5th Street 
building, and then reduced spending by the forecasted end‐of‐lease payments. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, 
one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve the Second Interim Report. 
 
Discussion was held on the potential purchase of the 345 5th Street building, on 
current economic factors’ increased costs being built into this budget.  Aaron 
Heinz explained that most CCOE costs are staff, and the budget includes 
expected COLA and retirement cost increases, negotiations, and inflation, and 
those factors will continue into June.  Discussion was also held on reductions in 
solar buyback programs and the anticipated purchase of CCOE’s solar array at 
the village. 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision – BP 9270.00 Conflict of Interest (State 
Mandated Even‐Year Review/Revision) 
Tina Maxwell explained that the Board is legally mandated to review and/or 
revise the policy in even number years and that the suggested changes made to 
BP 9270.00 Conflict of Interest were minor.  The Board agreed that the changes 
were immaterial, and the policy will not be brought to the Board in April for a 
second reading. 

11.3 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700 due April 1, 2022 
Tina Maxwell reminded the Board that the 2022 Statement of Economic 
Interests Form 700 that she sent to them on March 1st is due back to her on 
April 1, 2022. 

11.4 Approve Nominees for Delegate Assembly Election 
Discussion was held on the CCBE and CSBA Delegate elections and on the 
candidate for CCBE and the lack of candidates for CSBA. 

11.4.1 CCBE County Delegate Region 4 (Glenn, Tehama, Butte, Colusa, Sutter, 
Yuba, Nevada, Placer, and Sierra Counties) One nominee ‐ David 
Patterson (Placer CBOE) 

11.4.2 CSBA Subregion 4‐C (Colusa Sutter and Yuba Counties) No nominees – 
May Write in Vote 

11.4.1 and 11.4.2 – Ed Conrado/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the 
motion carried four ayes, one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve voting for 
David Patterson for the CCBE County Delegate for Region 4, and for not 
providing a write in vote for CSBA Subregion 4‐C. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.5 Letter of Support for MUSD’s SARB Letter 
Michael West reported that it is the opinion of law enforcement that truancy is 
not legally considered child neglect nor abuse.  Michael recommended that a 
letter of support for MUSD’s SARB letter be put on hold.  Discussion was held on 
the difficulty of getting a truancy conviction at this time. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, 
one vacant (Trustee Area 3) to approve asking Michael West to decide if or when 
a letter of support for MUSD’s SARB letter should be written, and if so, asking a 
member of the Board to sign the letter. 

11.6 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23 from Colusa County 
Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of 
CCESP’s opening proposal. 

11.7 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2023‐23 from Colusa 
County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of his 
opening proposal to CCESP. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
April 13, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:44 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

AP  Accounts Payable 

BP  Board Policy 

CAC  Community Advisory Committee 

CBOE  County Board of Education 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CICC  Colusa Indian Community Council 

COE  County Office of Education 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CSBA  California School Boards Association 

DART  District Attendance Review Team 

ERSEA  Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance Review 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

HR  Human Resources 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

NARCAN  A nasal spray medicine that rapidly reverses an opioid overdose 

SARB  School Attendance Review Board 

SB  Senate Bill 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

UPK  Universal Prekindergarten 

WIC  Women Infants and Children 

WUES  Williams Upper Elementary School 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5141.52 
Series 5000—Students  Page 1 of 2 

Suicide Prevention 

Suicide is the second leading cause of death for youth and young adults 10 to 24 years of age. 

The County Board finds it imperative that this tragic situation be openly addressed and that all staff, 

students and parents be made aware of warning signs, procedures by which they may help suicidal 

students at this especially vulnerable age, and the needs of high risk groups.   These groups could 

include, but are not limited to, youth bereaved by suicide; youth with disabilities, mental illness, or 

substance use disorders; youth experiencing homelessness or in out‐of‐home settings, such as foster 

care; and lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth. 

The Colusa County Board of Education recognizes that suicide  is a  leading cause of death among 

youth and that school personnel who regularly  interact with students are often  in the position to 

recognize the warning signs of suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance (Centers 

for Disease Control, 2021). 

In  an  effort  to  reduce  suicidal  behavior,  its  impact  on  students  and  families,  and  other  trauma 

associated  with  suicide,  the  Board  trusts  that  the  County  Superintendent  or  designee 

(Superintendent) will  develop measures  and  strategies  for  suicide  prevention,  intervention,  and 

postvention.  In developing measures and strategies, the Superintendent shall consult with school 

health professionals, school counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, school nurses, 

administrators, other school staff, parents/guardians, students, local health agencies, mental health 

professionals, and community organizations, including law enforcement. 

The Superintendent shall ensure that measures and strategies for all students are age appropriate 

and are delivered and discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of all students.  

Measures and strategies shall include, but are not limited to:  

1. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention for teachers, school counselors, and

other employees who interact with any student

2. Age and developmentally appropriate instruction to students in problem‐solving and coping

skills  to  promote mental,  emotional,  and  social  health  and well‐being  as,  instruction  in

recognizing and appropriately responding to warning signs of suicidal intent in others

3. Methods  for  promoting  a  positive  school  climate  that  enhances  students'  feelings  of

connectedness with the school and that are characterized by caring staff and harmonious

interrelationships among students

4. The provision of information to parent/guardians regarding risk factors and warning signs of

suicide, the  impact of the youth suicide problem, the Superintendent's suicide prevention

policy, basic steps for helping suicidal youth, and/or Colusa County Office of Education and

community resources that can help youth in crisis

5. Encouragement for student to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when they

are experiencing  thoughts of suicide or when  they suspect or have knowledge of another

student's suicidal intentions

11.2.1 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5141.52 
Series 5000—Students  Page 2 of 2 

6. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts  

7. Assessing  for  counseling and other postvention  strategies  for helping  students,  staff, and 

others cope in the aftermath of a student's suicide 

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who 

are  high  risk  suicide,  including,  but  are  not  limited  to,  youth  bereaved  by  suicide;  youth with 

disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; youth experiencing homelessness or in out‐

of‐home settings, such as foster care; and students who are diverse genders and sexualities. 

The County Board recognizes that all suicide threats must be taken seriously for all ages of 

students.  The County Superintendent or designee shall provide all staff members with proven 

alternative training for prevention and intervention in low‐risk and in high‐risk crisis situations.  

Training materials shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services, both at the 

school site and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and their families to 

those services.  Training shall also include guidelines on assessing the seriousness of a student’s risk 

for suicide, and on determining the appropriate postvention strategy (a crisis intervention strategy 

designed to reduce the risk of suicide and suicide contagion, provide the support needed to help 

survivors cope with a suicide death, address the social stigma associated with suicide, and 

disseminate factual information after the suicide death of a member of the school community). 

The County Board believes that school staff, students, and parents all can contribute significantly 

towards the prevention of adolescent youth and young adult suicide.  However, school employees 

are directed to act only within the authorization and scope of the employee's credential or license.  

This policy neither authorizes nor encourages a school employee to diagnose or treat mental illness 

unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so. 

The County Office of Education will provide avenues  for suicide prevention  training  that shall be 

reviewed with staff annually. The Superintendent shall review, and update as necessary, this policy 

at least every five years. 

References: 
Education Code 
  215 Student Suicide Prevention Policies 
  216 Identification Suicide Prevention Online Training Programs 
  218 Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer, and Questioning Pupil Resources 
  234.6 Posting Suicide Prevention Policy on Website 
  32280‐32289 Comprehensive Safety Plan 
  49060‐49079 Student Records 
  49602 Confidentiality of Student Information 
  49604 Suicide Prevention Training for School Counselors 
 

Adopted:  November 10, 1994 
Reviewed:  January 13, 1999, August 8, 2007, October 8, 2014, July 12, 2017 
Revised:  May 12, 2022 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9220.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 1 

Governing Board Elections 

The membership of the Colusa County Board of Education shall be composed of five members elected 
in  trustee areas established by  the County Clerk  following  the decennial United States  census. Each 
trustee area must have equal or nearly equal numbers of electors. 

Governing Board election procedures shall be conducted  in accordance with the California Education 
Code and Elections Code. 

Board Member Qualifications 
Any  person  is  eligible  to  be  a  Colusa  County  Board  of  Education  (Board) member, without  further 
qualifications, if he/she is eighteen years of age or older, a citizen of the State, an elector a registered 
voter and a resident  in one of  the  trustee areas established by  the County Clerk Board of Education 
following  the decennial United  States  census, a  registered voter and  is not  legally disqualified  from 
holding a civil office. 

Employees of  a  school district  are eligible  to  run  for  the Board  seat  as  long  as  their  school district 
employer is not within the jurisdiction of the Board. 

A Colusa County Office of Education employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her position before 
being sworn in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office. 

Statement of Qualifications 
The  Board  shall  assume  no  part  of  the  cost  of  printing,  handling,  translating  or mailing  candidate 
statements.  All costs of the candidate's statement will be paid by the candidate, and that no candidate 
may submit statement in excess of 200 words 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to 
the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and 
place where lots shall be cast to determine the winner. 

References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  9110 Terms of Office 
Education Code 

5016 Elections procedure to settle tie votes 
5322 Order and call of elections 
1000‐1017 County Boards of Education election and jurisdiction 

Elections Code 
20 Ineligible to hold office due to felony conviction 
10509 Notice of election by secretary 
13307 Candidate's Statement of Qualifications 

Government Code 
1770 Resignations and Vacancies 

Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed:  March 10, 1999 
Revised:  February 13, 2008, July 14, 2010, January 12, 2022 

11.2.2 



2

From: Colusa County <eccoeducation@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 7, 2022 10:40 AM 
To: Michael P. West <mwest@ccoe.net> 
Subject: Re: Bargaining 

Hi Mike, 

This is the entire list of sunshine items. I'm not sure if there is a limit to how many I'm supposed to send, so if I sent too many, please 
let me know and we can narrow it down. Also, should I send emails to you, Aaron, and Chuck? Or just you? Again, I'm not sure about 
protocols and apologize if I missed something.  

1. Paid planning day for ESY staff
2. Disability insurance paid by CCOE
3. Paid para/teacher planning day before school starts
4. Insurance: opt out without penalty (giving up 1.0 FTE, resulting in service credit loss)
5. Stipend for SLPs over caseload limits

Thank you! 

Virginia 



1

Tina Maxwell

From: Michael P. West
Sent: Tuesday, April 5, 2022 2:39 PM
To: Colusa County
Subject: RE: Bargaining

Good afternoon Virginia! 

As a matter of public disclosure and protocol, I have issued a response to your Sunshine Proposal from March 7, 2022 as 
follows: 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) proposes the following items for negotiations for 2022‐
2023: 

1. Entire Agreement/Modification (Article 28) – Contract Review and Possible Revision

CCOE reserves the right to present more detailed written proposals as negotiations commence in each 
of the articles identified in this initial proposal and reserves the right to open additional articles. 

Thanks Virginia! 

Regards, 

Michael P. West 

Michael P. West 
Superintendent of Schools 
Colusa County Office of Education 
345 5th Street 
Colusa, CA  95932 

(530) 458‐0350 – Main
(530) 458‐8054 – Fax
mwest@ccoe.net

CCOE Education Village 
499 Margurite  
Williams, CA  95987 
(530) 473‐1350
www.ccoe.net – Website



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, May 11, 2022 
 
TIME:  3:45 p.m.  Special Meeting for Trustee Area 2 Applicant Interview 

    Regular Board Business Meeting Following Special Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

S P E C I A L   B O A R D   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

3:45 p.m.       DECISION 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 HOLD INTERVIEW FOR TRUSTEE AREA 2 

3.0 APPOINT TRUSTEE AREA 2  
3.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 2 and  action 
  Administer the Oath Of Office 

4.0 ADJOURNMENT OF SPECIAL MEETING 

R E G U L A R   B O A R D   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

DECISION 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School   information 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – April Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 
6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 
6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney  information 

6.3.3.1 SELPA – April Meeting  information 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
(All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 
8.1 Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Special Board Meeting  action 

8.2 Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  action 

8.3 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revisions  action 
8.3.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention 
8.3.2 BP 9220.00 Governing Board Elections 

8.4 Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Combined Resolution 21/22‐03 of the Governing  action 

Board of the Colusa County Office of Education Ordering Biennial 
Election, Specifying the Number of Words for Candidate's 
Statements, Requesting Consolidation of the Election, and 
Determining the Method of Resolving Tie Votes 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Public Hearing  information 
LCAP and Budget 
June 14, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

12.3 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
LCAP and Budget 

June 15, 2022, 4:00 pm* 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Not the second Wednesday of the month 



APR 2022 

COLUSA COUNTY 
OFFICE OF EDUCATION NAME: 

ADDRESS.  

APPLICATION 11:

\

WPOINTMENT 
TO THE 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

nA.kof-A  \ r-br\  
CAtj6, )4t, PO Box (if applicable) 

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE   _, 
r, 

)Dtk..A
, 

PHONE( ' 0)114-51171(Mobile)  (Home) 

(( NA‘SC30, M_Oft  , hereby affirm that I am 18 years or 

older; a citizen of the State of California; a resident of one of the 

precincts represented by the vacant Board position; a registered voter; 

not an employee of Colusa County Office of Education or a school district 

that is within the jurisdiction of the county board of education; and free 

of any disqualification from holding a civil office. 

I am interested in serving as Trustee, Area No.  2  . I am a registered 

voter in the   Co kuc\,,,,n, Precinct. I understand the role and 

responsibilities of a member of the Colusa County Board of Education. I 

understand the term of appointment is through December 9, 2022  . 

I will be available for interview on  May 11, 2022  , between the hours 

of 2:00 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. I understand that I will be given the 

opportunity to speak for a maximum of ten minutes about my interest in 

serving as a Board member, and about any previous experience I bring to 

this position. 

Loin  
Date 

The deadline to submit the application is May 2, 2022 

Submit the completed form to: 

Michael P. West 

Colusa County Office of Education 

345 5th Street, Suite A 

Colusa, CA 95932 



Madison Martin 
210 Country Club Dr. 

Colusa, CA 95932 
mrsmadisonmartin@gmail.com  

(530)774-5726 

April 27, 9077 

Colusa County Board of Education 
345 5th St. 
Colusa, CA 95932 

Dear Board of Trustees Members, 

I am writing in regards to the Trustee Area 2 appointment to the Colusa County Board of 
Education. I have been a resident of Colusa, CA my entire life and am very passionate and eager 
to serve as a voice for the parents, and our children's education. I enjoy playing an active role in 
my community and proudly serve as a Commissioner and the Secretary, for the City of Colusa 
Parks, Recreation and Tree Commission. 

As the CFO of a small business, Martin Family Farms. My husband and I run an Agricultural 
Service and an Industrial Property. I. skillfully manage the finances and tenants. I am very 
knowledgeable on grants, funding, and preparing budget presentations. I will be graduating with 
a Bachelor's degree from Chico State in December of 2022 with a degree in Agricultural 
Business. From there, I will continue into the Agricultural Education Masters program. 

The opportunity to be on the Colusa County Board of Education is a very special way to give 
back to the community, while also giving a diverse perspective and input as a mother, business 
owner and member of the community. Thank you for your consideration to be selected as Trustee 
Area 2 for the Colusa County Board of Education. 

Best Regards, 

CAAJtk 

Madison Martin 



  6.3.1 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  April 2022        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 Leading Through Change 2-day Leadership Training. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 Meeting with CDE/OHS Consultants. 
 Region Cluster Meeting. 
 QRIS Keys to Quality. 
 Planning for Migrant season. 
 Social Emotional Learning – Community of Practice. 
 Collaborative Meeting with Colusa Indian Community Council. 
 March 4th In-Service Day training with Clifton Strengths Talent Assessment. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Office of Head Start Refunding Application submitted April 1st. 
 CDE-CSPP California State Preschool Expansion Grant submitted. 

School Readiness: 

 Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Initiative Partnership Cohort Mid-Year Check-In. 
 Universal Prekindergarten (UPK) Planning. 
 UPK meetings with Burchfield Primary and Arbuckle Elementary Schools. 
 Kindergarten transition. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Meeting. 
 Universal Prekindergarten Parent Event with Williams Elementary School. 
 Provider Retreat:  Saturday, April 30, 2022. 
 Migrant Family Fair – Farm Labor Housing in Williams 



  Educational Services Board Report 
May 2022 

  
 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy (SWAA)-  
• SWAA students are taking part in CAASPP, ELPAC, and PFT testing this month. 
• SWAA students are finishing up final projects and wrapping up final lessons within the next coming 

weeks. 
• On May 3, 2022, SWAA students will complete the Post-School Safety poll.  
• The final day of the 2021-22 school year is May 27, 2022, during this day students will be taking part in 

various fun field day events.  
• SWAA graduations are scheduled to take place on May 27, 2022, at 5:30 pm in the Education Village 

Multipurpose Room. 
 
Colusa County Adult School 

• The Colusa County Adult School Graduation and Recognition Ceremony will be held on May 26th at 
6:00 PM in the  Ed. Village MPR 

• Last day of classes for all students except High School Diploma classes will be May 26th.  Classes will 
resume in September 2022. 

• The next CNA cohort will be starting in June. Applications are still available for students 16 years and 
older 

• Classes at the Colusa County Jail have resumed with in-person instruction in the jail classroom. 
•  

Farm to School 
• Raised beds have been built at the Williams Elementary School site and plans to build at Maxwell 

Elementary School have been occurring. Farm to School personnel have been busy with weed and pest 
suppression at the Ed Village. 

• SWAA Students have planted their raised garden beds at the Education Village. 
• Taste and Teach Lessons will be implemented in the fall at school districts since COVID restrictions have 

been relaxed. 
 

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• Ongoing support for the Williams Upper Elementary School has been provided.  A data analysis will be 

conducted to provide support to Williams in improving student outcomes.  The data analysis is being 
provided through the CCFAC group and is provided at no cost to WUSD. 
 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 
• WUSD is being supported with data analysis on a district-wide basis to compare previous student 

outcomes and areas for targeted growth. Collaborative meetings have been occurring to determine how 
CCOE can support the district with their specific needs. 

• CCOE Ed Services Staff has been attending SARB & DART meetings at 3 of the 4 districts to assist 
school personnel with student truancy issues. 
 

 
 



Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• Districts are in the process of preparing their annual updates and 2022-23 LCAPs.  Meetings regarding 

the LCAP template and revisions to the current year LCAP have been provided by CDE and office hours 
have been held to answer questions. 

• Professional Learning Networks have been hosted by the Santa Barbara County Office of Education to 
guide COE’s in LCAP Development and scoring. 

• CCOE’s LCAP will be presented at the June 14th special meeting of the Board. 
 
SEL CoP (Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice) 

• The next SEL CoP will be held on May 5th with a focus on the intersectionality of SEL with all the other 
programs and plans that districts have implemented or are planning to implement.  

• The final SEL CoP in June will focus on individual office hours for districts or agencies to receive 
targeted assistance for their SEL plans and goals. 

 
Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• The last Prevention Services’ EMHI check-in meeting was held on April 27, 2022. The team debriefed 

on the year’s progress, challenges, and successes.  
• The three PS Child Aides have concluded services at the following districts/agencies: Williams USD, 

Colusa County Children’s Services, Hand in Hand, and Colusa Indian Community Council. 
• The EMHI Q3 report will be finalized and submitted by May 15, 2022. 

Foster Youth 
• The Prevention Services Department continues to provide technical assistance to the districts through 

the use of Foster Focus and CALPADS data managing systems. 
• A Foster Care meeting in conjunction with the Department of Health & Human Services, Social 

Services was held on 04/06/2022, where we established protocol to track and have accurate information 
for foster students. 

• The Prevention Services Department attended the 2022 California Foster Youth Education Summit from 
04/24/2022 to 04/26/2022. 

• A Fostering Success summit will be held for Colusa County Foster Youth on June 25, 2022. 
• The last Executive Advisory Council Meeting is set for May 5, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department has welcomed a Foster Youth Advocate to our team that will be 

working directly with Foster Youth in the county.  
Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• The April District Liaison meeting was held on April 4, 2022. The following were covered within the 
meeting: supplemental hygiene kits, HCY-American Rescue Plan II consortium, and the required 
housing questionnaire. 

• The May District Liaison meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2022. The California Department of 
Education, Education for Homeless Children, and Youth Technical Assistance team will be assisting 
with the housing questionnaire.  

• The annual Migrant Resource Fair will take place on May 6, 2022. There are a total of 31 agencies 
signed up for the event. The planning meeting for the annual Migrant Resource Fair was held on April 
29, 2022. 

• The last Parent Engagement Initiative workshop, IEP/504/SSTs, was held on April 6, 2022. 
 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) has been completed by all Colusa County school districts. 
• The Prevention Services Department attended the 3rd Annual Teaching Cannabis Awareness & 

Prevention Conference. 
• The Prevention Services Department has been administering Brief Intervention at different school sites.  



• The Prevention Services Department along with Colusa County Sheriff's Department carried out SWAT: 
Students Working Against Tobacco throughout all school districts: 

o SWAT at Williams Upper Elementary School: April 11, 2022 
o SWAT at Maxwell Elementary School: April 12, 2022 
o SWAT at Egling Middle School: April 15, 2022 
o SWAT at Arbuckle Elementary School: April 22, 2022 

 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• Colusa County Sheriff’s Department (CCSD) has assisted with SWAT at each school. 
• Training has been disseminated to CCSD pertaining to Tobacco Education. 
• The TLEGP Q3 report was submitted on April 15, 2022. 

 



PUBLIC HEARING and SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
April 26, 2022, Minutes 
Page 1 

 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ON ANNUAL BUDGET AND SERVICE PLAN  
AND SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes of Public Hearing on Annual Budget and Service Plan  
and SELPA Council Committee April 26, 2022 

 

Present: Summer Shadley, Danielle Wilson, Carol Geyer, Rebecca Changus, Scott 
Lantsberger, Ed Conrado, Mechele Coombs, Sandra Ayon, Charles Wayman, 
Aaron Heinz, Angelina Guizar, Michael West, Jessica Haney, Argelia Muniz, 
Daena Meras-via phone 

  
 
 P U B L I C H E A R I N G 

 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Carol Geyer called the public hearing to order at 3:40 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, 
Large Conference Room. 

2.0 PUBLIC HEARING 

2.1 No public is present, no questions or comments. 

2.2 No public is present, no questions or comments. 

3.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:42 p.m. Ed Conrado moved to adjourn the public hearing; 
Sandra Ayon seconded; the motion passes unanimously 
 

  

S E L P A   C O U N C I L   C O M M I T T E E   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Carol Geyer called the meeting to order at 3:42 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, Large 
Conference Room. 

2.0 APPROVE AGENDA 
No changes. Summer Shadley moved to approve the agenda; Sandra Ayon seconded; 
the motion passes unanimously. 

3.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input, no questions or comments. 



PUBLIC HEARING and SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
April 26, 2022, Minutes 
Page 2 

 

4.0 APPROVE SELPA COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 26, 2021 
Mike West moved to approve minutes; Sandra Ayon seconded; the motion passes 
unanimously. 

5.0 APPROVE 2021/2022 BUDGET REVISION 
Chuck Wayman notified all that the SELPA is currently under budget. Allocation was 
adjusted and increased due to the student count which is currently at 724 and will 
increase before the end of the year. On page 47 revenues are outlined, one being AB602 
that will increase next school year by about $450,000. After Current open positions ill 
calculate for May and June there will be a decrease in the 2021/2022 budget.  
There are no questions. Daena Meras moved to approve the budget revision; Sandra 
Ayon seconded; the motion passes unanimously. 

6.0 APPROVE 2022/2023 BUDGET PROPOSAL 
Chuck Wayman explains the projected increase of $80,000 for 2022/2023. The current 
increase in students is 43 and therefore increased costs. Page 47 of the packet shows in 
detail the revenue and expenditures for grants. Resource 3305 Federal Grant was an 
increase to Resource 3310 in the amount of $193,000. Resource 3327 has been 
decreased to spend only one year instead of spending in the rears. The CCEIS grant has 
been eliminated due to Colusa Unified no longer being in disproportionality. $10,000 
from the IPI Grant was spent on Coastal Buttes teacher. $208,000 was spent from the 
Learning Recovery grant for the Mental Health Clinician, Behavior Technician, a math 
program to be used in 2022/2023. The remaining amount in Learning Recovery will be 
spent on the Mental Health Clinician in 2022/2023. Changes in expenditures is due to 
new positions created for next school year and some position eliminations. Step and 
column increases are about $110,000. Current open positions for 2022/2023 are; 5 
teachers, 10 paraeducators, 2 translators, 1 behavior specialist, 1 occupational 
therapist, 1 school psychologist, 1 speech and language specialist. LVN position was 
eliminated due to no candidates and a health assistant position was created and filled 
successfully. Occupational therapy assistant position was removed due to the need of a 
license being required to assess students, a new occupational therapy position was 
created. One new school psychologist position was created due to the increase in 
student count. Receptionist position was added along with a new behavior analyst. 
Current behavior analyst will transfer to Education Services to a new role where he can 
better serve students. 
A question was asked regarding the teacher position elimination. Chuck clarified that 
the position to be closed will be the Coastal Buttes teacher since the classroom will be 
closing temporarily due to being understaffed. The students will be transferred back to 
their home schools. 
Allocation of Transportation on page 48 breaks down the revenue and expenditures. 
Expenditures were higher during 2021/2022 due to the increase in cost of gas and 
overtime paid to those who stepped up to drive since the transportation assistant  



PUBLIC HEARING and SELPA COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
April 26, 2022, Minutes 
Page 3 

 
 
position was not filled. Expenditures will decrease for 2022/2023 because of the Coastal 
Buttes classroom closing.  
Carol asked if the proposal included the increases decided at negotiations. Chuck 
verified that it does and can be found on the first page of the proposal, page 44. 
Mike asked if the SELPA is advertising for the Coastal Buttes teacher position. Chuck 
replied that there is currently an advertisement on Edjoin with a teacher pool listing all 
locations and there are no applicants. The SELPA is currently planning to pay a finder’s 
fee to a hiring agency to fill teacher positions. Teacher positions are a concern and the 
SELPA will use substitutes as needed and hope that some may go into the program and 
be hired on. 
Ed asked Chuck if he foresees any litigations in the near future. Chuck mentioned that 
this year so far there have been meetings with advocates but concerns have been 
resolved. IEP’s are currently being written different in order to stay in compliance with 
the services being provided. 
There are no additional questions. Danielle Wilson moved to approve the budget 
revision; Ed Conrado seconded; the motion passes unanimously. 

7.0 OTHER INFORMATION 
Current and projected caseload printout was provided to all present. The printouts show 
the current students and staffing at each site. 
The Wellness Centers will begin June 1 and currently hiring for its positions. Training will 
be done in June and July by Kevin Douglas who will be the coordinator. Kevin will reach 
out to all districts in August regarding training, meet and introductions, sites to be 
provided with service. 

8.0  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 



  6.4 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report May 11, 2022 

 

We are still waiting for CUSD Administration to evaluate our plans for the fourth EduNet 
radio near the golf course.  We have received and provided quotes for the telephone 
pole and equipment installation.     
 
The PJUSD test pilot for deploying external routers on students’ homes is very 
successful so far.  We have completed several more homes with great results.  Near 20 
are scheduled over the next few weeks. 
 
Our CCOE phone system (Mitel 5000) will reach its end of life shortly.  We are in the 
process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This purchase 
would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We have selected our vendor to 
move forward with and are scheduling implementation calls. 
 
We have re-inventoried all CCOE equipment, and we have given each CCOE 
Department a list of computers that will not support Windows 11.  We have received 
quotes to replace some of these identified computers with a plan to move forward with 
phasing them out prior to the Windows 10 end of life in 2025.  
 
We have decided to move forward with two network monitoring systems to replace 
Auvik.  We will use a product called DATTO for our servers and a product called Aruba 
Central for our switches.   
 
We are looking into generator options for our datacenter to power the equipment for the 
schools in the event of a power outage.  During a recent “scheduled” power outage our 
schools network access was offline.  Our hope is to mitigate this for future outages. 
 
We have chosen not to move forward with Everbridge. 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Special Meeting April 13, 2022 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell, and Vacant 

Staff/Visitors Present:  James Cunningham, Claudia Deniz, Estefania Guillen Aceves, Jessica 
Galloway Haney, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, Madison Martin, Tina 
Maxwell, Charles Morrow, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Stefani 
Silvas Santana, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 3:46 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 HOLD INTERVIEW FOR TRUSTEE AREA 3 
Brenda Miller asked the Board to introduce themselves.  One candidate, Charles 
Morrow, was interviewed for the Colusa County Board of Education Trustee Area 3 
vacancy, and discussion was held on the merit of the candidate.  The motion to appoint 
Trustee Area 3 will be heard during the upcoming April 13, 2022, Regular Board 
meeting. 

3.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
       
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting April 13, 2022 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell, and Vacant 

Staff/Visitors Present:  James Cunningham, Claudia Deniz, Estefania Guillen Aceves, 
Jessica Galloway Haney, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, Madison 
Martin, Tina Maxwell, Charles Morrow, Serena Morrow, Lorilee 
Niesen, Stefani Silvas Santana, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 11.1 to follow 4.1 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Michael West announced that he received Trustee Area 2 Barry Morrell’s letter of 
resignation to be effective April 14, 2022, and he shared a copy of the Application for 
Appointment packet.  Discussion was held on the terms of offices for Trustee Area 2 and 3. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School and S. William Abel Academy 

Lorilee Niesen reported on one recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School and one recent graduate from the S. William Abel Academy. 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.1. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West said that the districts did not report any COVID issues since 
the last Board Meeting, and he reminded the Board about the first 
Annual District Awards Dinner on May 13, 2022, beginning at 5:00 pm.  
Michael reported on the following state legislative bills: 

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

 

Michael said that he is looking forward to the May Budget Revise to be 
delivered by the Governor in early May and he spoke about an SSC Fiscal 
Reports article regarding CalPERS adopting the 2022‐23 employer 
contribution rate.  Michael also reported on his participation and 
attendance in activities; such as, presentation of certificates to the Colusa 
County Spelling Bee winner and runner‐up at their school site; a meeting 
with Ampla Health Dr. Robert Chiurazzi about an opportunity to 
administer dental sealants to second through eighth grade students; 
negotiations with ECCOE for 2022‐2023; participation in a statewide 
discussion regarding Special Education’s future and funding 
opportunities; a meeting with Dr. Danielle Thomas regarding F2B reading 
strategies and the Early Literacy Certification program Cohort 2 and 3 
training sessions; a meeting at the Colusa County Youth Center to discuss 
that program’s budget, participants, staffing, and the center’s proposed 
layout; a message that he gave during the Caring Youth Count Awards 
Ceremony that Michael delivered in both English and Spanish, with help 
from Claudia Deniz; attendance at the CCOE Family Fair; a visit to the 
grand re‐opening of Safe Haven; participation in DART hearings at PJUSD; 
and participation in discussions about the possibility of installing a backup 
generator for CCOE’s internet hub at the Library.  Discussion was held on 
the necessity for a backup generator. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – March Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
March and they heard presentations from Ampla Health Dr. Robert 
Chiurazzi on dental sealants, from Colusa Pharmacist Frank Davison and 
CCOE School Nurse Barbara Hankins on providing the opioid antagonist 

SB 866  (Weiner) Would authorize a minor twelve years of age or 
older to consent to vaccines that meet specified federal 
agency criteria – all indications are that the bill will not 
make it to a vote 

SB 871  (Pan) Would remove the personal belief exemption from 
any additional immunization requirements – all 
indications are that the bill will not make it to a vote  

AB 1609,  
AB 1614, & 
SB 579 

Would amend LCFF funding 

SB 692  Would amend Special Education funding 

SB 70  Would require completion of one year of kindergarten 
prior to a child's admittance to the first grade 

Trailer Bill  Training and preparation to continue for universal 
prekindergarten (UPK) 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

NARCAN to each school in the county, and from representatives of the 
Colusa County District Attorney, Probation, and Sheriff’s offices about 
truancy issues, DART, and the role of each agency in that process.  
Following presentations, the Superintendents conferred with each other 
regarding UPK.  Discussion was held on UPK beginning in 2025, funding 
for credentialing and certificates while still maintaining the rigor and 
training for those certificates, on fentanyl training for schools, and on 
signs of fentanyl exposure. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his April 2022 Administrative Services report to the Board 
saying that Director of Human Resources Serena Morrow and Accounting 
Specialist II ‐ AP/Purchasing Karen Moriconi will both be retiring soon, and he 
will fill the AP position from within.  Aaron mentioned that he met with CCOE 
legal counsel Eric Stephens who gave Aaron all paper files associated with the 
Village construction litigation; thus, putting an end to that process.  He also 
reported on a Food Services food warmer installation.  Aaron said that during the 
recent CASBO annual conference he and Matt Phillips, SSC Director of 
Management Consulting Services, co‐presented on the anticipated drop in the 
number of education CBOs statewide, and on the need to train, retain, and 
promote from within to fill that shortfall.  Discussion was held on the number of 
staff vacancies, the factors behind those and hiring difficulties, on operating with 
less staff, and on remaining staff burnout as a result. 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman reported that he was working with Children’s Services, 
Educational Services, and Special Education on budgets, and discussion was held. 

6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss added to her April 2022 Children’s Services written report 
and discussion was held on current job vacancies’ effect on staffing, on 
training for ECE, on the decline at the college level of ECE participants, 
and on internships and potential fast‐track programs that exist but still 
are experiencing a decline in enrollment at the college level. 

6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
Lorilee Niesen added to her April 2022 Educational Services report to the 
Board by reporting on the postponement of the plant sale due to aphids 
in the greenhouse.  Lorilee also shared an account that she heard about 
an adult after the Caring Youth Count Awards Ceremony.  The women, 
who is the mother of a participant, said that because Michael West was 
brave enough to deliver his message in Spanish, she was inspired to learn 
English.  Lorilee introduced Prevention Services Supervisor Estefania 
Guillen Aceves and Prevention Services Coordinator Claudia Deniz and 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

asked them to share the presentation that they made to the NAEHCY 
conference in November.  Estefania and Claudia co‐presented the 
information on supporting migrant students experiencing homelessness 
that they delivered during the conference. 

6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney 
Chuck Wayman reported that Jessica Galloway Haney returned to work 
yesterday. 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Michael West reported on Technology Services and IAL relocation to the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, office. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
Brenda Miller welcomed Charles Morrow to the Board.  She asked how he 
preferred to be addressed, and he answered “Charlie.” 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried unanimously to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the March 9, 2022, Public Hearing 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the March 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported on redistricting at YCCD, and discussion was held on 
representation in Colusa County.  Michael added that Technology Director Alex 
Evans is helping YCCD to grow their internet services.  Discussion was held on 
legislation to eliminate English 1A and 1B requirements at the college level, and 
on the improvement of the landscaping and expansion of the community 
gardens at the Village. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on the landscaping project in front of the Village, on the 
on‐going plant sale, and on the number of custodial staff. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Educational Services Director Lorilee Niesen reported that the LCAP template is 
currently online, that audits are currently underway to determine whether 
funding is being spent in the manner that it should, and that she is working with 
districts on their LCAP preparation. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Interim Project Director Stefani Silvas Santana 
reported on grant activities, including distribution of books, and on her 
attendance at the Caring Youth Count Awards Ceremony and a BPS kinder 
testing event, during which she made a presentation on F2B.  She also reported 
on the number of Children’s Services students in the iPad lending program, on 
her library tours to promote CCOE literacy programs, and her plans to visit 
Stonyford to promote the programs.  Discussion was held on the Stonyford 
Library, the newly opened Stonyford Museum, and other populations who could 
benefit from IAL resources.  Speaking about the Early Literacy Certification 
program, Stefani said that a Zoom training with Dr. Danielle Thomas will be held 
next month, and that Dr. Thomas will return for an in‐person training in June.  
Michael West spoke about the benefit of Early Literacy Certification to daycare 
providers’ programs. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 4.1. 

11.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 3 and Administer the Oath of Office 
The Board considered candidate Charles Morrow for Trustee Area 3. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously to approve the appointment of Charles Morrow to Trustee Area 3 
and to administer the Oath of Office. 
 
Board President Brenda Miller administered the Oath of Office to Charles 
Morrow – Trustee Area 3. 

11.2 First Reading:  Board Policy Revisions 
11.2.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention 
11.2.2 BP 9220.00 Governing Board Elections 

Discussion was held on changes to each policy.  Changes were made to BP 
5141.52 Suicide Prevention and BP 9220.00 Governing Board Elections, and the 
policies will be brought forward to the May 2022 Board meeting for a second 
reading. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.3 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23 from Colusa County 
Educational Support Professionals (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of 
ECCOE's opening proposal. 

11.4 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2022‐23 from Colusa 
County Educational Support Professionals (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of his 
opening proposal to ECCOE. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
May 11, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:54 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

AP  Accounts Payable 

BP  Board Policy 

BPS  Burchfield Primary School 

CalPERS  California Public Employees Retirement System ‐ Also known as PERS 

CASBO  California Association of School Business Officials 

CBO  Chief Business Official 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

COVID  Corona Virus 

DART  District Attendance Review Team 

ECCOE  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

ECE  Early Childhood Education 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

NAEHCY  National Association for the Education of Homeless Children and Youth 

NARCAN  An opioid antagonist in the form of a nasal spray that rapidly reverses an 
opioid overdose 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SB  Senate Bill 

SSC  School Services of California, Inc. 

UPK  Universal Prekindergarten 

Village  Colusa County Office of Education's Education Village in Williams, CA 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5141.52 
Series 5000—Students  Page 1 of 2 

Suicide Prevention 

Suicide is the second leading cause of death for youth and young adults 10 to 24 years of age. 

The County Board finds it imperative that this tragic situation be openly addressed and that all staff, 

students and parents be made aware of warning signs, procedures by which they may help suicidal 

students at this especially vulnerable age, and the needs of high risk groups.   These groups could 

include, but are not limited to, youth bereaved by suicide; youth with disabilities, mental illness, or 

substance use disorders; youth experiencing homelessness or in out‐of‐home settings, such as foster 

care; and lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth. 

The Colusa County Board of Education recognizes that suicide  is a  leading cause of death among 

youth and that school personnel who regularly  interact with students are often  in the position to 

recognize the warning signs of suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance (Centers 

for Disease Control, 2021). 

In  an  effort  to  reduce  suicidal  behavior,  its  impact  on  students  and  families,  and  other  trauma 

associated  with  suicide,  the  Board  trusts  that  the  County  Superintendent  or  designee 

(Superintendent) will  develop measures  and  strategies  for  suicide  prevention,  intervention,  and 

postvention.  In developing measures and strategies, the Superintendent shall consult with school 

health professionals, school counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, school nurses, 

administrators, other school staff, parents/guardians, students, local health agencies, mental health 

professionals, and community organizations, including law enforcement. 

The Superintendent shall ensure that measures and strategies for all students are age appropriate 

and are delivered and discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of all students.  

Measures and strategies shall include, but are not limited to:  

1. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention for teachers, school counselors, and

other employees who interact with any student

2. Age and developmentally appropriate instruction to students in problem‐solving and coping

skills  to  promote mental,  emotional,  and  social  health  and well‐being  as,  instruction  in

recognizing and appropriately responding to warning signs of suicidal intent in others

3. Methods  for  promoting  a  positive  school  climate  that  enhances  students'  feelings  of

connectedness with the school and that are characterized by caring staff and harmonious

interrelationships among students

4. The provision of information to parent/guardians regarding risk factors and warning signs of

suicide, the  impact of the youth suicide problem, the Superintendent's suicide prevention

policy, basic steps for helping suicidal youth, and/or Colusa County Office of Education and

community resources that can help youth in crisis

5. Encouragement for student to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when they

are experiencing  thoughts of suicide or when  they suspect or have knowledge of another

student's suicidal intentions

8.3.1 



 

Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 5141.52 
Series 5000—Students  Page 2 of 2 

6. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts  

7. Assessing  for  counseling and other postvention  strategies  for helping  students,  staff, and 

others cope in the aftermath of a student's suicide 

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who 

are  high  risk  suicide,  including,  but  are  not  limited  to,  youth  bereaved  by  suicide;  youth with 

disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; youth experiencing homelessness or in out‐

of‐home settings, such as foster care; and students who are diverse genders and sexualities. 

The County Board recognizes that all suicide threats must be taken seriously for all ages of 

students.  The County Superintendent or designee shall provide all staff members with proven 

alternative training for prevention and intervention in low‐risk and in high‐risk crisis situations.  

Training materials shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services, both at the 

school site and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and their families to 

those services.  Training shall also include guidelines on assessing the seriousness of a student’s risk 

for suicide, and on determining the appropriate postvention strategy (a crisis intervention strategy 

designed to reduce the risk of suicide and suicide contagion, provide the support needed to help 

survivors cope with a suicide death, address the social stigma associated with suicide, and 

disseminate factual information after the suicide death of a member of the school community). 

The County Board believes that school staff, students, and parents all can contribute significantly 

towards the prevention of adolescent youth and young adult suicide.  However, school employees 

are directed to act only within the authorization and scope of the employee's credential or license.  

This policy neither authorizes nor encourages a school employee to diagnose or treat mental illness 

unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so. 

The County Office of Education will provide avenues  for suicide prevention  training  that shall be 

reviewed with staff annually. The Superintendent shall review, and update as necessary, this policy 

at least every five years. 

References: 
Education Code 
  215 Student Suicide Prevention Policies 
  216 Identification Suicide Prevention Online Training Programs 
  218 Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer, and Questioning Pupil Resources 
  234.6 Posting Suicide Prevention Policy on Website 
  32280‐32289 Comprehensive Safety Plan 
  49060‐49079 Student Records 
  49602 Confidentiality of Student Information 
  49604 Suicide Prevention Training for School Counselors 
 

Adopted:  November 10, 1994 
Reviewed:  January 13, 1999, August 8, 2007, October 8, 2014, July 12, 2017 
Revised:  May 12, 2022 



Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9220.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 1 

Governing Board Elections 

The membership of the Colusa County Board of Education shall be composed of five members elected 
in  trustee areas established by  the County Clerk  following  the decennial United States  census. Each 
trustee area must have equal or nearly equal numbers of electors. 

Governing Board election procedures shall be conducted  in accordance with the California Education 
Code and Elections Code. 

Board Member Qualifications 
Any  person  is  eligible  to  be  a  Colusa  County  Board  of  Education  (Board) member, without  further 
qualifications, if he/she is eighteen years of age or older, a citizen of the State, an elector a registered 
voter and a resident  in one of  the  trustee areas established by  the County Clerk Board of Education 
following  the decennial United  States  census, a  registered voter and  is not  legally disqualified  from 
holding a civil office. 

Employees of  a  school district  are eligible  to  run  for  the Board  seat  as  long  as  their  school district 
employer is not within the jurisdiction of the Board. 

A Colusa County Office of Education employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her position before 
being sworn in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office. 

Statement of Qualifications 
The  Board  shall  assume  no  part  of  the  cost  of  printing,  handling,  translating  or mailing  candidate 
statements.  All costs of the candidate's statement will be paid by the candidate, and that no candidate 
may submit statement in excess of 200 words 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to 
the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and 
place where lots shall be cast to determine the winner. 

References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  9110 Terms of Office 
Education Code 

5016 Elections procedure to settle tie votes 
5322 Order and call of elections 
1000‐1017 County Boards of Education election and jurisdiction 

Elections Code 
20 Ineligible to hold office due to felony conviction 
10509 Notice of election by secretary 
13307 Candidate's Statement of Qualifications 

Government Code 
1770 Resignations and Vacancies 

Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed:  March 10, 1999 
Revised:  February 13, 2008, July 14, 2010, January 12, 2022 

8.3.2 



CL-500  6/2021 Page 1 of 4 

 

State of California  
Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
Certification Division 
1900 Capitol Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95811-4213 

Email: credentials@ctc.ca.gov 
Website: www.ctc.ca.gov 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

 

   Original Declaration of Need for year: _____________  

   Revised Declaration of Need for year: _____________  
 
FOR SERVICE IN A SCHOOL DISTRICT OR DISTRICT/COUNTY AUTHORIZED CHARTER SCHOOL 

Name of District or Charter:  District CDS Code:  

Name of County:  County CDS Code:  
 
By submitting this annual declaration, the district is certifying the following: 

• A diligent search, as defined below, to recruit a fully prepared teacher for the assignment(s) was made 

• If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district will make a reasonable effort 
to recruit based on the priority stated below 

 
The governing board/body of the school district or charter school specified above adopted a declaration at a regularly 
scheduled public meeting held on ____/____/____ certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons 
who meet the district's specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form.  The attached form 
was part of the agenda, and the declaration did NOT appear as part of a consent calendar.   

 Enclose a copy of the board agenda item   
With my signature below, I verify that the item was acted upon favorably by the board.  The declaration shall remain in 
force until June 30, _________. 
 
Submitted by (Superintendent, Board Secretary, or Designee): 

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Name Signature  Title 

 ___________________________________  ____________________________________  ____________________________________  
Fax Number    Telephone Number  Date 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Mailing Address 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
EMail Address 

 
FOR SERVICE IN A COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, STATE AGENCY, CHARTER SCHOOL OR NONPUBLIC SCHOOL 
AGENCY 

Name of County _______________________________________________________  County CDS Code ___________________  

Name of State Agency ________________________________________________________________________________________  

Name of NPS/NPA ______________________________________________________  County of Location __________________  

mailto:credentials@ctc.ca.gov
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/


CL-500 6/2021 Page 2 of 4 

The Superintendent of the County Office of Education or the Director of the State Agency or the Director of the NPS/NPA 
specified above adopted a declaration on ____/____/____, at least 72 hours following his or her public announcement 
that such a declaration would be made, certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons who meet 
the county's, agency's or school's specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form. 

The declaration shall remain in force until June 30, _________. 

 Enclose a copy of the public announcement
Submitted by Superintendent, Director, or Designee:

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
Name Signature Title 

 ___________________________________   ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Fax Number    Telephone Number   Date 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Mailing Address 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
EMail Address 

 This declaration must be on file with the Commission on Teacher Credentialing before any emergency permits will be
issued for service with the employing agency

AREAS OF ANTICIPATED NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 
Based on the previous year's actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of emergency 
permits the employing agency estimates it will need in each of the identified areas during the valid period of this 
Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators.  This declaration shall be valid only for the type(s) and subjects(s) 
identified below.   

This declaration must be revised by the employing agency when the total number of emergency permits applied for 
exceeds the estimate by ten percent.  Board approval is required for a revision. 

Type of Emergency Permit Estimated Number Needed 

CLAD/English Learner Authorization (applicant already 
holds teaching credential) 

 __________________________ 

Bilingual Authorization (applicant already holds teaching 
credential) 

List target language(s) for bilingual authorization: 

__________________________________________ 

 __________________________ 

Resource Specialist  _________________________  

Teacher Librarian Services  __________________________ 

LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS 
Limited Assignment Permits may only be issued to applicants holding a valid California teaching credential based on a 
baccalaureate degree and a professional preparation program including student teaching. 



CL-500  6/2021 Page 3 of 4 

Based on the previous year’s actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of Limited 
Assignment Permits the employing agency estimates it will need in the following areas. Additionally, for the Single 
Subject Limited Assignment Permits estimated, please include the authorization(s) which will be requested: 

 

TYPE OF LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMIT ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED 

Multiple Subject  

Single Subject  

Special Education  

TOTAL  

 
 

AUTHORIZATION(S) FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT 
PERMITS (A separate page may be used if needed) 

ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 



CL-500  6/2021 Page 4 of 4 

EFFORTS TO RECRUIT CERTIFIED PERSONNEL 
The employing agency declares that it has implemented in policy and practices a process for conducting a diligent search 
that includes, but is not limited to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement centers, 
advertising in local newspapers, exploring incentives included in the Teaching as a Priority Block Grant (refer to 
www.cde.ca.gov for details), participating in state and regional recruitment centers and participating in job fairs in 
California. 
 
If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district made reasonable efforts to recruit an 
individual for the assignment, in the following order: 

• A candidate who qualifies and agrees to participate in an approved internship program in the region of the school 
district 

• An individual who is scheduled to complete initial preparation requirements within six months 
 
EFFORTS TO CERTIFY, ASSIGN, AND DEVELOP FULLY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL 

Has your agency established a District Intern program?                      Yes         No 

If no, explain. ____________________________________________________________________________  

Does your agency participate in a Commission-approved 
college or university internship program? 

 Yes         No 

If yes, how many interns do you expect to have this year? ________________________________________  

If yes, list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program. 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
If no, explain why you do not participate in an internship program. 

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 

http://www.doc.da.gov/


COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 21/22‐03 

OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION ORDERING 
BIENNIAL ELECTION, SPECIFYING THE NUMBER OF WORDS FOR CANDIDATE'S STATEMENTS, 
REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE ELECTION, AND DETERMINING THE METHOD OF 

RESOLVING TIE VOTES 

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 5304 requires this Board to order elections held in this 
District; and 

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 5000 provides for a regular biennial election to elect 
members to the Governing Board of the District; and 

WHEREAS, there will be a total of three offices elected by Trustee Area to be filled at the 
election, these offices are now held by the following Board members: 

_____________, Trustee Area 2 
Charles Morrow, Trustee Area 3 
Cristy Edwards, Trustee Area 4 
Ed Conrado, Trustee Area 5 

And 

WHEREAS, Elec. Code, Section 10509 and Elec. Code 13307 requires this Board to fix and 
determine the number of words that a candidate may submit for his or her candidate's 
statement and to determine if the District or the candidate will pay the cost of the statement; 
and 

WHEREAS, Educ. Code, Section 5342 authorizes the consolidation of district elections with 
other elections held on the same day by political subdivisions whose boundaries may totally or 
partially be coterminous within this District; and 

WHEREAS, Educ. Code, Section 5016 requires the District to decide in advance the method to 
be used in determining the winner of an election when the final vote is tied between two or 
more candidates. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED:  
1. That an election be, and is, ordered to be held on November 8, 2022, for the 

purpose of electing members to this Governing Board as specified above. 

2. That in the case of an election on a measure, this Board will provide wording of the 
measure as it is to appear on the ballot. 

11.1 



Board Resolution 21/22‐03 
Page 2 
May 11, 2022 

3. That all costs of the candidate's statement be paid by the candidate and that no 
candidate may submit statement in excess of 200 words. 

4. That the candidate shall submit payment to the Elections Department on submission 
of the candidate's statement. 

5. That the County Superintendent of Schools be authorized and requested by copy of 
this Resolution to consolidate this election with any other election to be held on the 
same day by political subdivisions whose boundaries are totally or partially 
contained within this District for the ease and convenience of the voters in casting 
their ballots and the possible reduction of election costs to this District. 

6. That tie votes shall be resolved by drawing lots as authorized by Education Code 
Section 5016. 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County Board of 
Education on the 11th day of May 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of 
Colusa County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting 
and the resolution is on file in the office of said Board. 

       
  (Secretary’s Signature)      (Date) 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC HEARING 

DATE:  Wednesday, June 14, 2022 
 

TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Public Hearing on the 2022‐23 Local Control Accountability Plan and 
Proposed 2022‐23 CCOE Budget (Including Education Protection Account) 

 

PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 

NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 

public meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our 
public meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting 
that you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. 
Gov’t. Code, § 54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials, including the Proposed Budget, can be viewed at the 

Colusa County Office of Education located at 345 5th Street, Colusa, CA, or online at ccoe.net. For 
more information, please call 530.458.0350. 

 
  This public hearing will be recorded. 
   

4:00 p.m. 

Public Hearing on the 2022‐23 Local Control Accountability Plan and Proposed 2022‐23 Colusa 
County Office of Education (CCOE) Budget (Including Education Protection Account) 

 

 

 

 

Drafts of the 2022‐23 Local Control Accountability Plan and Proposed 2022‐23 CCOE Budget 
(Including Education Protection Account) are available on request by contacting: 

 

Aaron Heinz 
(530) 458‐0350, x10357 

aheinz@ccoe.net 



2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 1 of 76 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Colusa County Office of Education 
CDS Code: 06-10066 
School Year: 2022-23 
LEA contact information: 
Charles Wayman 
Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 

(530) 473-1350 x 10806
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year 

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Colusa County Office of Education expects to receive in the 
coming year from all sources. 

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Colusa County Office of 
Education is $15,632,611, of which $3612124 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $5340143 is other state 

11.1



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 2 of 76 
 

funds, $5118066 is local funds, and $1562278 is federal funds.  Of the $3612124 in LCFF Funds, $72360 is 
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students). 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 3 of 76 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend for 2022-

23. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend 
$16640885 for the 2022-23 school year. Of that amount, $310,177 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and 
$16,330,708 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be 
used for the following: 
 
Expenditures not included in the LCAP are Special Education for all school districts in Colusa County, multiple 
Federal, State and Local Grants serving students throughout Colusa County and the Administrative Offices.        
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the 
LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year 

 
In 2022-23, Colusa County Office of Education is projecting it will receive $72360 based on the enrollment of 
foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Colusa County Office of Education must describe how it 
intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Colusa County Office of Education 
plans to spend $72687 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 
 
 
 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 4 of 76 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students in 2021-22 

 
This chart compares what Colusa County Office of Education budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Colusa County 
Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 

services for high needs students in the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2021-22, Colusa County Office of Education's LCAP 
budgeted $103293 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Colusa County 
Office of Education actually spent $55445 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
2021-22. 
 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 5 of 76 

 

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational Services           

 
lniesen@ccoe.net           
5304731350 

 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the 
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts. 

 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided through the 
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 

 
Educational Partners were provided with an update of expenditures at the LCAP Educational Partner meeting on January 20, 2022 and were 
asked for input regarding  future LCFF monies. Those in attendance were also provided  an update on each goal, action, metric and 
expenditure that relates to  CCOE's Local Control Accountability Plan. The  LCAP for 2021-22 includes the current funding and no changes 
have been made. The Colusa County Office of Education did not receive any additional funds provided through the Budget Act of 2021, such 
as ESSER III or Concentration Grant Add-on Funds, but did receive funds from the American Rescue Plan for our Homeless Student 
Population. These funds as well as all services to homeless are discussed monthly at the District Liaison Meetings hosted by our Prevention 
Services Team.  The Educational Partners at the District Liaison Meetings include the district liaison from each of the four districts, and 
representatives from CCOE  Children's Services and SELPA  Departments. Each month presenters are invited to these meetings to share 
resources that benefit students  Presenters usually represent community agencies such as the  Department of Health and Human Services, 
Behavioral Health, etc.  The continued engagement of all partners is a priority at CCOE. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent. 
 

 
Not Applicable as Colusa County Office of Education received no additional Concentration Grant add-on funds. 
 
  

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 6 of 76 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to 
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 
 

 
Colusa County Office of Education had received monies from the CARES Act- GEER I funding to support the purchase of PPE and Testing to 
ensure student safety.  Educational Partners provided input through the review of the CCOE Comprehensive Safety Plan  and the COVID-19 
Addendum to the Plan.  No additional federal monies have been received to support recovery from the COVID-19 Pandemic at this time. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation. 
 

 
Colusa County Office of Education did not received any ESSER III funds in 2021. It did receive almost $12,000 in ARP I Funds to support 
homeless students.  As of this date, only  $492 of the ARP I funds have been expended on the purchase of materials for outreach efforts..  
While Prevention Services Staff are hoping to participate in more outreach to educate homeless students and their families, the purchase of 
materials to explain the rights of homeless students is a necessary expense.  Prevention Services Staff meets monthly with other district 
liaisons to discuss better ways to serve the homeless population.  With COVID-19, it has been a challenge expending the monies as outreach 
has been limited due to lack of events, or access to students. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education is expending its fiscal resources according to the goals, actions and services outlined in the 2021-22 LCAP. 
While there is no ESSER III Expenditure Plan to align the LCAP to, one can see a through line between the school's SARC and LCAP.  CCOE 
also takes into consideration the safety and well-being of students and staff by referencing and updating its Comprehensive Safety Plan as 
needed. The LCAP Executive Summary presented to the CCOE Board of Education on February 9, 2022 outlines the current status of the 
2021-22 LCAP and also charts the path of what actions and services still need to be addressed. 
 
  

 

 

Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan Year 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 7 of 76 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Introduction 
 
California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs 
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021–22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following: 

• The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
• All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
• Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 

When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best 
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational 
partners. 
The 2021–22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022–23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included 
with the LCAP as follows: 

• The 2022–23 Budget Overview for Parents 
• The 2021–22 Supplement 
• The 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Action Tables for the 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Instructions for the LCAP Template 

 
As such, the 2021–22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA’s 2022–23 LCAP. 
 

Instructions 
Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct 
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and 
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents. 
 
In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to 
reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 8 of 76 

a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found. 
 
Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided 
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).” 
 
In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA 
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget 
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of 
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021–22 LCAP, provide this explanation. 
 
Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” 
 
If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code 
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide 
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enrollment, as compared to schools with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. 
 
In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students 
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff 
providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 
 
Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are 
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.” 
 
If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on 
students, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet 
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place 
related to state funds. 
 
Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 9 of 76 

School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.” 
 
If an LEA does not receive ESSER III funding, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the 
continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges. 
 
Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with 
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update.” 
 
Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans 
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe 
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 
 
California Department of Education 
November 2021 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 10 of 76 

 

Local Control Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Charles Wayman           

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 
cwayman@ccoe.net           
(530) 473-1350 x 10806 

 

Plan Summary [2022-23] 
 
General Information 
 

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 
 

Colusa County, nestled in the northern part of California just 70 miles from the state capitol is a rural farming community that is a large 
contributor to the state’s agricultural production. Rice, almonds and processing tomatoes represent the top three commodities over the span 
of 1,156 square miles. With a populous of only 21,547 people, a focus on agriculture and the county being ranked 18th in Agricultural 
Production in California, it would appear the unemployment rate would be low. Unfortunately, Colusa County consistently has one of the 
highest unemployment rates in the state with rates fluctuating from 15-21%. In addition, with a large population of agricultural workers in the 
county needed to support the production of the agricultural crops, many families are migratory. 
 
One of the county’s top employer is the Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE). CCOE employs 260 people representing multiple 
departments including Administrative Services, Business Services, Children’s Services, Educational Services, Human Resources, Special 
Education and Technology Services. While program titles represent each department, it is important to note that the CCOE Special 
Education department provides the administration and oversight of the Coastal Buttes Academy, a school dedicated to fostering student 
growth using a full continuum of educationally beneficial services designed to support student success in the least restrictive environment. 
Located at the same facility as Special Education, the Educational Services Department is responsible for: a plethora of grants; Prevention 
Services programs; differentiated assistance to the four local districts; the Colusa County Adult School; and provides the management and 
oversight of the S. William Abel Academy (SWAA). 
 
The S. William Abel Academy, which was previously referred to as the S. William Abel Community School, is a county community school 
providing academic and social emotional services for students that are expelled, deemed “At-Promise”, or are placed based on parental 
choice. The school received WASC accreditation in 2018-19 and is in the midst of preparing its Self-Study for an accreditation team visit in 
March of 2023. SWAA is located in Williams and serves students in 7-12th grades. The enrollment numbers for SWAA continually fluctuate 
due to expulsion numbers, school referrals, graduates, the successful transition of students back to their home districts and the transiency of 
the student population. In 2018-19, 41 students were served by SWAA. 2019-20 showed a decline in enrollment to 23 students.  In 2021-22, 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 11 of 76 

numbers reflected enrollment at 17 students but currently 13 are still enrolled. Of those 13 students still enrolled (11 reported on Cal Pads 
reporting day, October 2021) 2021-22 SWAA demographics as of June 2022, reveal that 85% of SWAA students are low-income, 31% of 
SWAA students are English Learners, and 8% of the SWAA population represent foster youth. These declining enrollment numbers 
represent students transitioning back to their home districts, 8 students receiving their high school diplomas in 2018-19, 4 graduating in 2019-
20 and 4 graduates in 2021-22. With the COVID-19 Pandemic, and the mere fact that schools were scrambling and trying to survive from 
March 2020 when the pandemic hit, along with fewer expulsions, enrollment numbers continue to be less than in previous years. SWAA is 
considered a DASS (Dashboard Alternative School Status) School and with numbers in each subgroup being less than 10, it does not report 
student data to the California Dashboard. Regardless of the size of enrollment, SWAA continues to provide all students with an individualized 
learning plan to meet their individual needs, and the social emotional support necessary to ensure success. While all students receive 
services, the small student population does represent all of the various subgroups of foster youth, McKinney-Vento students, English 
learners, economically-disadvantaged students, Special Education students, Migrant various ethnicities, youth on probation, and students 
that are extremely credit-deficient. 
 
With a small county office and a small school, this translates to employees wearing many hats. For example, the Director of Educational 
Services serves as the Principal for SWAA, the sole administrator of the Colusa County Adult School, the LEA CAASPP Coordinator, the 
Farm to School Administrator, the LCAP writer, the WASC Accreditation lead and writer, provider of oversight of numerous grants and 
budgets, grant writer and all other duties as assigned. The positive side to staff wearing many hats allows the seamless transition of students 
to the adult school, the collaboration with the small number of teachers on staff, and the coherence of the writing of the SARC, WASC 
Report, Local performance Indicators and the LCAP. In previous years, the  Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services also played a 
key role in supporting the students at SWAA but this position has since been eliminated. 
 
Small student numbers and a small staff is not reflective of the support and services that SWAA students receive. Even though the LEA 
attempts to apply for Title I, Title III, and other program funds, the small enrollment results in minimal amounts being awarded when 
compared to the time necessary to complete the required documents for compliance. Even though 31% of the student population are English 
Learners and Title III funds are not received, the Educational Services Team continues to provide all communications in both English and 
Spanish. Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) meetings held every six weeks, college courses offered to students at the adjacent Woodland 
Community College Campus, counselor support, options for Independent Study, free meals and free daily transportation to and from school 
are just a few of the perks for SWAA students. Small student numbers have allowed the school to remain open during the turbulent times of 
COVID-19. The ability to collaborate with the Colusa County Public Health, Probation and Behavioral Health Departments, Department of 
Health and Human Services, Woodland Community College, the Sheriff’s Department and Williams Police Department result in students 
being supported by community agencies and an extension of services available. The location of the S. William Abel Academy is the CCOE 
Education Village, which fittingly describes the approach the county office takes to serving its students. 
         

 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 12 of 76 

Reflections: Successes 
 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Some of the successes achieved by the S. William Abel Academy includes: 
 

• 16 students graduating from S. William Abel Academy in the last two years 
• 3 students graduating as 11th graders 
• WASC Accreditation Status 
• Development of additional CTE experience in Certified Nursing Assisting for SWAA students 
• 100 % of students participated in the 2020-21 Summer School Academy 
• Field trips were provided to a local rice mill; a wildlife refuge, a golf facility and an end of the year trip was earned by students of 

SWAA for positive behavior. 
• During the first week of school, a Back to School BBQ was held for students and parents. This event was the most attended event 

during the course of the year. Parents and students enjoyed barbecuing, sharing stories of their summer and getting to know the 
other students of the school. 

• Board and Superintendent policies regarding Suicide prevention were updated in 2021-22. Also updated were the policies regarding 
students experiencing Homelessness, their rights and the resources available. 

 
 
 Prevention Services Personnel hosted seven different "We are Family" parent Engagement Night activities. In September 2021, the focus 
was a meet and greet session. October 6, 2021 session focused on tobacco use prevention and education. November 3, 2021 the topic was 
coping with stress and depression. January 19, 2022 highlighted attendance intervention and communication strategies. February 16's 
session provided tips regarding self care. The March 2, Taste and Teach (making healthy choices) was hosted by the Farm to School Lab 
Supervisor who oversees the garden beds with the students of SWAA. April 6, 2022 concluded the year with a session for parents to better 
understand IEP and 504's, which was hosted by the Special Education Department. Flyers were provided to parents at the beginning of the 
school year and parents were contacted to participate, but attendance still remained low for SWAA parents. 
 
There were no student expulsions in 2021-22. Local surveys reflected that SWAA continues to build trusting and respectful relationships with 
its partners and families and sustain them. Local indicators also reflect that SWAA is implementing and sustaining coordinated instruction 
and establishing ongoing collaboration and policy development for transparent referrals. In addition, Prevention Services coordination of 
services has resulted in full implementation and sustainability of providing information and assistance to LEAs regarding the educational 
needs of foster youth and those students experiencing homelessness. 
 
SWAA Students participated in SWAT (Students Working Again Tobacco) Trainings at local elementary schools with Prevention Services 
Personnel. 
An instructional assistant was hired during the course of the year to provide support to students in the classroom and she also served as the 
transportation assistant as well.  
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsSuccesses


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 13 of 76 

Since there was no dashboard data available in 2021-22 and SWAA students are not reflected in dashboard data due to the small population 
of students, Exact Path diagnostic testing was conducted successfully for three quarters. The first two quarters represented an increase in 
growth in SWAA student scores in ELA and Mathematics, but third quarter test results revealed a plateau of scores. Implementing MAP 
assessments in the fall of 2022 will help provide a better measure of student data as well as student growth. 
 
 

 

Reflections: Identified Need 
 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 
 

The 2020-21  focus area for improvement based on local indicator self-evaluation  was to include parent engagement opportunities. 
Collaboration with the Prevention Services Team established the  “We are Family” themes to provide parents engaging experiences on a 
monthly basis in 2021-22. While the opportunities were presented to parents, few parents participated in the activities. Revamping the current 
parent engagement activities to engage parents still remains an identified need. 
 
The self-reflection tool also identified the need to update curriculum based on state standards and frameworks and still needs to be 
addressed. This was also identified as a need in the WASC Visiting Team recommendations and will need to be addressed prior to the 
scheduled WASC visit in March of 2023. 
 
2019 Dashboard data showed the S. William Abel Academy in red for suspension rates. Needing to make changes to redirect student 
behavior, SWAA used a variety of MTSS strategies including a student incentive program and a PRIDE store for students to redeem tickets 
for positive behavior. The PRIDE Store and student incentives will continue to be offered and staff training in MTSS has been scheduled for 
2022-23. 
         

 
LCAP Highlights 
 

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 
 

This year’s LCAP continues its focus on curriculum and assessment to align curriculum with the most recent standards and frameworks. 
While some curriculum was piloted, new curriculum will be purchased in 2022-23.  In addition, CCOE and SWAA Administration will be 
participating in a Northern California Community of Practice and Learning Acceleration Grant with Lake County and Northern California 
Schools, focusing on Mathematics and the implementation of the new math standards and frameworks. This five year grant will position 
SWAA students to accelerate their learning and allow the hiring of a Math consultant to assist CCOE. 
 
This LCAP continues to  provide actions and services to create more experiences in work based learning and Career Technical Education 
that weren't made available in 2021-22 due to COVID or external factors. In addition to student experiences, it provides actions to  continue 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsIdentifiedNeed
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#LCAPHighlights


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 14 of 76 

to address social emotional learning and support for students as well as their families. The purchase of Navigate 360 in 2021-22 will continue 
to provide activities for SEL and also alternative means to suspension for students.  The Teacher and Administrative modules will support 
students SEL and behavior goals. SEL Training for Staff in Strengths Training will continue to be a focus in 2022-23. 
 
Goals, actions and services were written directly to address the needs identified by students, parents, staff, and other key partners. 
 
The hiring of a veteran teacher for 2022-23 for SWAA's at-promise students will also yield positive outcomes for students while allowing for 
student engagement. 
 
With the S. William Abel Academy student enrollment consisting of 13 students currently in various grade levels (9-12), state wide metrics 
become difficult to measure due to data not being provided to protect student privacy or such small student population size results in a 
substantial percentage increase for just one student. Realizing the need to identify ways to meet the state metrics, this LCAP will use 
alternative ways to address the metrics using local data and assessments. Metrics 4A, 4B, 4C,4D, 4E, 4F and 4G will be met using 
alternative local measurements and are described in further detail in the “why” statements of the corresponding goals. 
         

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

N/A         
 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 15 of 76 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 
 

The Educational Partner  Engagement Process is a result of many approaches to seek recommendations on how to maintain and improve 
programs at the S. William Abel Academy. Traditional processes like sharing the LCAP with English Learner Parent Advisory Committees 
and school site councils to request feedback does not occur at SWAA due to the low number of students, the transiency rate of students and 
the fact that with the small number of students, school staff communicate with parents regularly and for some, daily. In addition, CCOE does 
not meet the requirement to establish an English Learner Parent Advisory Committee due to the student population being less than 50 
students. Instead, SWAA utilizes other means to engage its partners in the LCAP Process. An LCAP committee, composed mainly of parents 
along with other partners was developed in prior years to meet statutory requirements. The rationale for developing the LCAP committee was 
to allow parents the opportunity to provide input on the LCAP and also listen to other agency partners share their concerns and 
recommendations on how to improve services at SWAA . This gave parents the opportunity to meet SWAA’s agency partners and the 
services they provide. Typically, two LCAP meetings are held each year and educational partners and  groups are invited. Due to the COVID-
19 Pandemic, only one LCAP Educational Partner Meeting was held on January 20, 2022. Attendance by partners did not occur so SWAA 
staff chose to contact parents individually to request recommendations for changes to the school and its programs.   In addition, feedback 
was directed to all parents of SWAA students during parent teacher conferences  and Individualized Learning Plan (ILP)  meetings to garner 
input on the 2022-23 LCAP and to determine how the current year was progressing.  A parent survey was also conducted in May 2022 to 
determine the needs of parents. 
 
Educational Partner engagement also included discussing the 2021-24 LCAP at Student Leadership Meetings that occur monthly. The LCAP 
was not only listed as an agenda item, but a description of the role the LCAP plays in the school was provided. Once students understood 
the role of the LCAP, suggestions for school improvement and recommendations for program changes were provided by students. 
 
The LCAP was also discussed at multiple Educational Services Staff Meetings requesting input on changes staff would like to see in moving 
forward. The Educational Services Team consists of the SWAA Teacher, administrative assistant, Prevention Services team members, The 
Program  Technician. the Instructional Assistant, Adult Ed Navigator, and the Director of Educational Services. Monthly Cabinet meetings 
held at the county level also served as a platform for educational partners to provide input. Cabinet members include other program areas 
such as Special Education, Children’s Services, Administrative Services, First 5, Technology Services, Public Relations and Educational 
Services.  The Supplement to the Annual Update presented to the board on February 9, 2022 also provided educational partners with a 
snapshot in time of the current LCAP Goals, metrics and actions. 
 
Surveys are used as a means to obtain partner feedback from parents and students. While the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) was 
provided in 2021, , experience showed that due to less than 10 students participating in the survey, results were unavailable.  Realizing that 
students could participate in the survey and no data being obtained, SWAA decided in 2021-22 to do a local version of the CHKS survey. 
The presurvey was conducted  in  fall of  2021 and the post survey in April 2022. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 16 of 76 

Due to the low response from parents regarding surveys in previous years, surveys were conducted during Spring Parent/student/teacher 
Individualized Learning Plan meetings to obtain additional feedback on LCAP recommendations. 
 
Realizing the requirements to meet with local bargaining units, the Parent Advisory Committee, and the English Language Parent Advisory 
Committee, SWAA does not have a local bargaining unit for its one full time teacher. Also, with the small student population, parents are 
consulted on a regular basis regarding program changes needed so committee meetings are not held. Since CCOE’s current student 
population does not require an EL Parent Advisory Committee due to its EL student population being less than 50 students, it seeks input 
from parents through individual contact. Student feedback is provided at monthly Student Leadership Meetings where the LCAP is a common 
agenda item. Since the SELPA Administrator is housed at the same site as SWAA, collaboration and communication is effective and 
ongoing. Due to the small staff at SWAA, weekly check-in meetings between the teacher and principal provide an opportunity to discuss 
strategic planning, accountability and improvement in programs. Since the Director of Educational Services also serves as the Principal for 
the S. William Abel Academy and the LCAP writer, the opportunity to request  feedback from others is often.  SWAA staff realize that 
educational partner engagement is an on-going process. WASC recommendations from the Initial Visiting Committee in 2018 that resulted in 
accreditation through March 2023 have also been considered in the development of the LCAP and these recommendations are also reflected 
in LCAP Goals and actions. 
         

 
A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners. 
 

Since the LCAP Educational partner meeting resulted in poor attendance in 2022, the principal sought alternative means to garner feedback 
such as individual parent contact, communication with the SELPA Administrator, Student Leadership meetings and participation of the SWAA 
principal on local SARB/DART boards for the four districts that send students that are expelled or at-promise to SWAA. 
 
Highlights of the feedback included: 

• The appreciation of the continued collaboration between the S. William Abel Academy and the various agencies. It was also 
requested that the same level of communication continue between the school and agency to better serve the students. 

• Other agency personnel believed there was a “strong support system for students with dedicated staff that care about student 
success” and would like that to continue. 

 
• Recommendations from parents, students and local agencies to continue to provide transportation to and from school since public 

transportation has logistical issues 
• The creation of student success plans for all students with parent input so that parents could be educated on how to support their 

children 
• Improving attendance rates of students to ensure that students are in school 
• Create an interactive fun day for parents and students 
• Continue to offer the long term independent study option for students 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 17 of 76 

 
 
Additional Recommendations provided by staff, parents and students continue to include: 

• Continued incentives for students for achieving personal and class goals including but not limited to the PRIDE Store, Class 
Thermometer Goals, and end of the year field trips to acknowledge student success 

• More in-person field trips when they become available 
• Offering a Summer School Academy to obtain credits since some students are credit deficient 
• More physical education opportunities for students 
• Expand CTE and Work-based learning opportunities for students to develop work-ready skills 
• The need to continue to stay focused on student’s credits and classes 
• The continuation of home visits and school-family communications 
• Continued need of support services for students and their families 
• Additional parent engagement opportunities to support parents 
• Implementation of additional assessment tools to monitor student progress and guide instruction 
• Creation of Professional Development Plans for classified and certificated staff to increase knowledge and capacity 
• Additional space for students to congregate and work on CTE Projects such as wood-working 
• Updating curriculum and supplemental materials aligned with state standards and the Common Core 

 
 
A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners. 
 

SWAA staff recognizes the need for continuous program improvement. The educational partner input provided above gives the school 
direction in areas to improve. All recommendations will be given consideration but due to the small class size and the availability of 
resources, staff cannot guarantee all requests will be met. The writing of the goals, actions and services are reflective of the feedback 
provided. The inclusion of critical areas for follow-up from the Visiting WASC Committee into the LCAP will result in the extension of 
accreditation for the S. William Abel Academy. The S. William Abel Academy works continuously to meet the needs of all its educational 
partners. With the small staff of seven people communication is an on-going process. There is open communication weekly with the teacher 
and principal through weekly check-ins. In addition, the principal, administrative assistant, and program technician meet weekly to discuss 
concerns and program improvement for SWAA. With probation personnel being on campus, and counselors from Behavioral Health providing 
services to students each week, communication is consistent with our partners. Educational Services Monthly Meetings include LCAP as a 
standing agenda item.  With the LCAP Supplement and  update being presented to the board in February 2022,  the staff provided updates 
to metrics, goals and actions.   This year and previous years  will continue to ensure communication is a key focus of SWAA.         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 18 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
1 S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and instruction 

and will be measured through formative and summative assessments.         
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Even though S. William Abel Academy does not report individual student assessment data to the California Dashboard due to less than 10 
students per grade level, Exact Path Diagnostic results show that during the course of the year, 12 out of 13 students are below grade level 
in Reading, Math and Language Arts. The need for students to be at grade level and the recommendation from the Visiting WASC 
Committee for curriculum changes necessitates a need to change curriculum. In addition, the need for science and math adoption to replace 
outdated textbooks will allow all students the opportunity to have a choice and access. Edmentum, the online curriculum currently used, 
which meets A-G requirements works for some students, while others prefer the textbook approach to learning. 
 
An alternative assessment program in addition to Exact Path Diagnostics was to be reviewed and implemented in 2021-22  to establish the 
amount of learning loss students have endured due to the pandemic.  Unfortunately, this did not happen but remains an action for 2022-
23.This new assessment program will allow students to be tested throughout the year and prescriptions be recommended. The 
implementation of these local assessments helps SWAA address the statewide metrics that accommodates its small school size. For 
example, metric 4A, relating to Statewide Assessments, and scores not being reportable to protect student privacy, SWAA will use 
performance on local standardized assessments to measure student growth. Local assessments include Exact Path Diagnostics and the 
future purchase of a NWEA’s MAP test. The desired outcome is for students to increase student performance at the end of each year in ELA 
and Mathematics. While the  CAASPP and ELPAC will continue to be administered to students as applicable, data shows that parent 
exemptions released the two eligible 11th grade students from completing the testing in 2021-22.  75% of ELL’s completed the ELPAC test 
(one student graduated early in December  2021 before the Summative ELPAC was administered). 
 
With reference to metric 4D and the focus on English Learner Progress, and again results unable to be reported to protect student privacy. 
SWAA will continue to provide the ELPAC to the necessary students, but measurement of progress will be through the increased scores in 
English/Language Arts on the Exact Path Diagnostics test. SWAA students are expected to show growth from the pre-assessment given in 
August when compared to the post assessment given in May. 
 
SWAA will continue to administer the ELPAC to English Learners, but establishing an increase in percentage for reclassifying students 
English Proficient to meet metric 4E is difficult due to the small student population. SWAA will continue to provide tutoring for students and 
the incorporation of ELD strategies to work toward the goal of student reclassification. Increases in English scores measured by Exact Path 
Diagnostics; and participation in specific lessons prescribed as targeted needs areas from Exact path will result in increases in student 
scores on the ELPAC with the goal of students being re-designated. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 19 of 76 

 
While curriculum and assessments actions are the focus of Goal #1, the need to maintain a properly credentialed teacher has been a need 
that continues to be addressed.   In addition, providing student access to standards based instructional materials and a broad course of 
study; and implementing academic content and performance standards will also contribute to increasing student achievement. The focus of 
ELD strategies will result in improved scores on the ELPAC summative test and equate to an increase in English Proficiency and possible 
reclassification of English Learners. 
 
Staff development opportunities to implement new curriculum and administer new assessment programs which will provide recommendations 
for increased student learning and will in turn support students. These increased supports will be reflected in increased scores on student 
individual assessments. Since CAASPP scores are not reported to the California Dashboard, due to less than 10 students per grade level the 
focus will be on improving individual student scores. In addition, staff development on ELD will assist in providing additional supports to 
English Language Learners which will lead to increased individual scores on the ELPAC test. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1A. Properly 
Credentialed 
Teachers        

2020-21 shows zero 
teacher 
misassignments 
(CALPADS Data) 
 

2021-22 CALPADS 
data shows zero 
teacher 
misassignments. 

  CCOE will maintain 
fully credentialed 
teachers and zero 
teacher 
misassignments 

1B. Student access to 
standards based 
instructional materials        

2020-21 shows 100% 
of students have 
access to standards 
based instructional 
materials 
(2020-21 SARC 
Report) 
 

100% of all SWAA 
students have access 
to Standards Based 
instructional Materials 
based on the 2021-22 
SARC Report. 

  Maintain 100% of 
students will have 
access to standards 
based instructional 
materials 

2A. State Board 
Adopted academic 
content and 
performance 
standards fully 
implemented        

2020-21 100% of 
online courses are 
aligned to state 
standards 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

2021-22 
100% of Edmentum 
Courses are aligned 
to state standards. 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

  100% of all courses 
will be aligned with 
state standards and 
frameworks 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 20 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

  

2B. How programs 
and services will 
enable EL’s access to 
CCSS and ELD 
standards        

2020-21 
100% of online 
curriculum include 
alignment to 
Designated and 
Integrated ELD 
standards 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 
 

2021-22 
ELD standards are 
embedded in 
Edmentum 
Coursework. 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 
 

  100% of new 
curriculum will align to 
CCSS and designated 
& integrated ELD 
standards 

7A. All students, 
including unduplicated 
pupils and individuals 
with exceptional 
needs will have 
access to a broad 
course of study that 
includes all subject 
areas defined in Ed 
Code 51210 and 
51220:        

2020-21 
100% of students 
have access to a 
broad course of study 
through the curriculum 
used for instruction 
 

2021-22 
100% of SWAA 
students have access 
to a broad course of 
study. (2021-22 SARC 
Report) 
 

  100% of students 
have access to a 
broad course of study 
through curriculum 
used for instruction 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

1.1 SWAA Teacher        Highly qualified instructor to meet the academic needs of all students 
that has CLAD or SDAIE authorization 
 
 

$102,548.00 No      
X 
 

1.2 Assessment Program        Implement a new assessment program to determine student levels 
and 
targeted areas for support 

$2,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 21 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 
 

1.3 Curriculum        Provide students with a culturally responsive, relevant, curriculum 
aligned to California Standards (Common Core) with an emphasis on 
English Language Development, academic vocabulary, and reading 
proficiency 
 
Explore science and math curriculum replacement 
 
 
 

$24,500.00 No      
X 
 

1.4 Staff Professional 
Development        

Staff participation in professional development events that build 
capacity in providing engaging, educational learning experiences 
 
 

$1,000.00 No      
X 
 

1.5 ELD Strategies        Staff participation in professional learning intentionally designed to 
assist English Learners in core content and advancing in English 
language proficiency areas 
 
 

$500.00 No      
X 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

While SWAA was able to maintain a highly qualified teacher for the entire school year, the purchase of an additional assessment program 
and curriculum did not happen.  With the current teacher beginning student assessment with Exact Path Diagnostics, the implementation of 
the MAP assessment was postponed until 2022-23 so that pre-assessments could be started at the beginning of the program year and used 
to determine student growth throughout the year using the same measuring tool.  In addition, with the hiring of a new SWAA teacher for 
2022-23, the purchase of curriculum has been delayed  to incorporate feedback from the new teacher that will be implementing the 
curriculum.  The newly hired teacher has years of experience in Alternative Education settings and will be able to provide guidance in 
selecting curriculum.  ELD strategies will be continued to be used for students success and improvement.  Staff professional development 
was provided to the current staff and will continue in 2022-23 to ensure access for staff growth and development. Staff professional 
development will also be needed when implementing new curriculum.        

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 22 of 76 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Cost for certificated staff benefits exceeded budgeted amount due to increase in benefit rates in 2021-22.   For the 2022-23 school year, due 
to the experience of the newly hired teacher, the teacher cost will  increase. Not purchasing curriculum in 2021-22 due to reasons stated 
above reflects a material difference in Goal 1, Action 3. Also, not purchasing the assessment program in 2021-22 will be rolled over to next 
year in Goal 1, Action 2.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Goal 1-Action 2:  SWAA was hoping to make progress of purchasing and implementing NWEA’s MAP program for assessment.  While the 
MAP program was not purchased, Navigate360 was purchased to assess students’ knowledge of SEL resources. This purchase was made 
with monies from CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant. 
 
Goal 1-Action 3:  The SWAA Teacher was working with Discovery curriculum staff to pilot Science Curriculum for grades 9-12 but more 
curriculum work is needed.  In addition, SWAA renewed its Edmentum License Renewal for online curriculum that meets A-G requirements 
to offer students access to A-G coursework.  Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased using CAL-HOPE FEMA monies, of $9,197 to 
provide additional SEL resources to students. 
 
Goal 1-Action 4: The SWAA Admin. Assistant attended virtual Aeries SIS training to gain more knowledge of the student information system.  
The Educational Services Director participated in Independent Study Webinars to ensure that compliance for new Independent study 
protocols were in place. Educational Services Staff participated  in Excel webinar trainings to increase their knowledge and skill set using 
Microsoft Excel. The  entire Educational Services Staff participated in SEL training on August 4, 2021, which was paid for by utilizing funds 
from the CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant. This professional development focused on Strengths Training. 
 
Goal 1-Action 5: The administration participated in EL Road Map training sessions to develop an EL plan for SWAA students. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

The need for a veteran teacher with classroom management strategies for 2022-23 was the rationale for spring recruitment in 2022.  With the 
hiring of a highly qualified, veteran teacher it is anticipated that all actions planned for 2022-23 will be met.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 23 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
2 Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness.         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Student response at student stakeholder meetings have been centered around Career Technical Education (CTE) Program experiences and 
the desire to participate in additional classes. Parent survey responses have indicated the need to have work-based learning experiences for 
their students. The overwhelming response to participate in the Summer School Academy in 2021, is a direct reflection that SWAA students 
are interested in hands-on, project-based learning experiences and parents are encouraging their enrollment. In addition, the desire for a 
hands-on summer learning academy for 2022, also reflects parents and student's needs. 
 
Since SWAA has not been able to offer CTE Pathways due to its small staff, CALPADS data has reflected students completing courses 
rather than pathways. With the transiency nature of students, establishing a CTE pathway does not always equate the best use of limited 
funding. S. William Abel Academy establishes Individualized Learning Plans for each of its students to establish a trajectory toward 
graduation while also incorporating personal goals the student wishes to achieve. Because of the variety of the students that SWAA serves, 
trying to find a CTE pathway that represents all students interest is not only difficult but problematic due to staff and funding. The common 
message heard is that students and parents want some type of CTE experiences. SWAA will continue to offer CTE courses and also work 
with other agencies to provide CTE Pathway completer experiences. To meet state metric 4B, regarding CTE Pathway Completers, SWAA 
will provide opportunities for students to participate in CCOE’s Basic Wildland Fire Academy and Certified Nursing Assistant Programs and 
also offer program enrollment in the adjacent Woodland Community College. With a transient student population, measuring progress may 
be difficult, but through CTE Goals documented on the student’s individualized learning plan, enrollment in a CTE pathway program, or 
documenting CTE work based learning experiences, SWAA is working toward CTE pathway experiences. 
 
A-G courses are made available to all qualified students however; these are not applicable metrics for community school students due to 
transiency, exceptional credit deficiency, lack of consistent assessments, and partial credits when enrolling in SWAA. No students enrolled in 
A-G courses in 2021-22, even though they were available through the Edmentum Online curriculum. Therefore, Metric 4C, percentage of 
students completing UC course requirements or CTE programs of study; 4F, the percent of students who pass AP exams; and 4G the 
percent of students participating & demonstrating college preparedness in Early Assessment Programs are not applicable to SWAA’s student 
population. Instead, measuring student success by their Individualized Learning Plan and their progress of obtaining credits toward 
graduation is a more applicable measure of success. Four year plans are also provided to each student with the amount of credits needed for 
each year to meet their goal of obtaining their high school diploma or transitioning back to their respective district with the necessary credits 
for their grade level. Four year plans are discussed at the beginning and end of each school year to determine if the student has met the 
recommended target, and this will serve as a measurement toward the metrics. While SWAA continues to create a student success plan for 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 24 of 76 

all students that includes projected graduation it will continue to teach students essential reasoning and decision-making skills with the goal 
of higher order learning to provide choices and the opportunity to participate in EAP programs. 
 
The current population of students have not expressed a desire to participate in A-G courses even though they are afforded the opportunity. 
This also translates to the student’s lack of desire to participate in AP classes and no tests being administered. SWAA will continue to offer 
these programs in the event that students enroll in the school and desire these programs. 
 
When SWAA students arrive, many have not considered college as an option. Some lack knowledge regarding college entrance 
requirements while others think they lack the ability to go to college. Providing college experiences allows students to consider going to 
college for the first time. In addition, providing work-based learning experiences opens the door to careers that students show interest and 
provides skills to assist them in obtaining a job. Regardless of a student’s pursuit for college or work, obtaining their high school diploma is 
the main goal of 100% of the students while at SWAA. The Summer School Academy provides an opportunity to participate in “hands-on 
learning while obtaining the course credits necessary for graduation. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

5E. High school 
graduation rate        

2019-20 
The graduation rate at 
the S. William Abel 
Community School 
during the 2019-2020 
school year was 40% 
measured using the 
DASS Graduation 
Rate formula. These 
numbers fluctuate 
based on enrollment. 
 
2020-21 
Only one 12th grade 
student was enrolled 
in SWAA, but 
transferred to a 
different school prior 

2021-22 
The Graduation rate 
of the S. William Abel 
Academy was 75%.  4 
students graduated 
during the 2021-22 
School year. 
 

  Increase the 2020-21 
high school 
graduation rate 28%. 
 
Transition of students, 
18 years and older to 
the Colusa County 
Adult School at the 
end of the school year 
to assist in graduating 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 25 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

to the end of the year, 
thus resulting in a 
graduation rate of 0. 
 

8. Pupil Outcomes 
Percent of students 
participating in a CTE 
course 
        

2019-2020 
26.09% of the 
SWACS students 
participated in a CTE 
course measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2020-21 
60% of the SWAA 
students participated 
in a CTE course 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 
2021-2022 
72.22% of the SWAA 
students participated 
in a CTE course 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  100% of students 
participate in a CTE 
course 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

2.1 Individualized 
Learning Plans        

Use Individualized Learning Plans (ILP) and Student Success Plans to 
provide feedback on student progress to student, parent, and teachers 
to career and college ready skills and credits toward graduation. 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness 
Experiences        

Develop a continuum of experiences in CTE and college readiness for 
students that promote soft skills training, personal planning and field 
trips to business and college visits 
 
 

$31,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

2.3 Summer School 
Academy        

Continue the Summer School Academy with an emphasis on project-
based learning experiences 

$4,700.00 Yes     

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 26 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 

X 
 

2.4 Course Offerings        Provide course offering access to all students which may include 
classes at comprehensive schools, community college dual 
enrollment, and online learning classes to meet student’s academic 
goals 
 
 

$1,300.00 No      
X 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Individualized learning plans were developed for all students enrolled in SWAA in 2021-22.  These plans were reviewed every 6 weeks and 
also during parent-teacher conferences. CTE and College readiness experiences were not provided as consistent as desired but students 
were able to participate in some work based learning experiences.  Summer school was a success with 100% of students participating in the 
summer of 2021, and will continued to be offered in summer 2022. SWAA expanded its course offerings to include the ServeSafe certification 
for students so they would not only be employable but also safe in handling the produce that was grown in the school garden through the 
Farm to School program. CTE and College readiness experiences will continue to be a priority in 2022-23 as students and parents have 
expressed interest to continue these opportunities.        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

CTE and College Readiness Experiences expenses fell below target due to colleges and businesses not being open from the outbreak of 
COVID-19 and the mere fact that many colleges were still providing their college classes virtually or online.  Summer School Academy costs 
were less than projected due to small class size. Additional costs for course offerings resulted from all students participating in ServSafe 
certifications and other online courses.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Goal 2- Action 1:  All SWAA Students have ILP plans in place and conferences have been held during the first week of school (August 6-11), 
September 19, the week of November 1-5 and December 17, 2021, to meet with students and parents. In addition, parent teacher 
conferences were held at the end of the grading periods to discuss student performance, credits earned and next steps. 
 
Goal 2- Action 2: Students attended a tour to learn about local business and possible job opportunities in their community on November 23, 
2021, to Sun Valley Rice, a local rice mill.  CTE work based learning trips to the Wildlife Refuge on November 16, 2021, exposed students to 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 27 of 76 

opportunities with the California Department of Fish and Game. CTE supplies were purchased, which will be utilized for graphic design and 
for woodworking during students project based learning opportunities weekly. A Farm to School Kitchen a la Cart was purchased using funds 
from the California Department of Food and Agriculture Grant of $12,951.35.  The Kitchen a la Cart has allowed students to participate in 
CTE Farm to School Activities as well as culinary and horticulture experiences.  As a result of this purchase, SWAA Students were ServSafe 
certified in order to ensure proper handling of food and utilizing the cart to its fullest potential. CTE course participation rate in 2021-22 
increased by 12.2% from the previous year. 
 
 
Goal 2-Action 3: 100% of  SWAA students participated in  the Summer School Academy following the end of the regular school year in 2021. 
Students received credits toward graduation through this project-based learning academy. Plans are also in place to offer the summer school 
academy in 2022 to current students to obtain credits toward their graduation. 
 
Goal 2-Action 4:  All students have access to dual enrollment courses at Woodland Community College, which is adjacent to the Education 
Village.  While students did not take advantage of this opportunity in 2021, they did participate in online courses in 2022 to meet elective 
credit requirements. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

CTE and College Readiness experiences will be expanded in the 2022-23 school year since the restrictions for COVID-19 have been 
relaxed. With colleges and universities being open to in-person instruction, more college visits will happen in 2022-23.  Plans for a summer 
school academy in 2022-23 are also being considered. Individualized learning plans will continue to be a tool used for student goals, 
progress, and accountability.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 28 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
3 Develop and implement a multi-tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that improves 

social emotional health and student engagement.         
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Incorporating multiple levels of support for SWAA students is requested by parents and students. The increased supports will improve social 
emotional health for students as well as their families. Educational Partners emphasized the need to provide supports for students at the 
LCAP Meeting in February 2021 and have continued to request that SWAA maintains these supports. Parent surveys in May 2022, revealed 
that parents request the same supports be in place moving forward. 
 
Student’s social emotional health can be improved by a number of ways. Attending a school that is clean, inviting, and properly maintained 
can ultimately influence how the student feels about their school and if the school values their clientele. While facilities are only a fraction of 
the importance of the school climate, the measurement of school climate is done through the student, parent and staff surveys. School 
climate also correlates to students who want to attend school regularly and follow school rules. This translates to attendance, suspensions, 
dropout and expulsion rates for SWAA.  The recent local survey given to students revealed that students felt safe at school, indicating a 
positive school climate. 
 
Involving parents in their student’s school has been a challenge in the past due to the transiency of the student population. A concerted effort 
this year to create engaging parent opportunities that provide support for them as well as their students will remain a priority. The intent is to 
create connectedness of the parent to the school through these planned activities. While SWAA cannot predict which students will be 
expelled from local LEA’s or transitioned back, it can provide engaging activities in the interim. 
 
In addition to working with parents, the need to collaborate with local agencies to provide supports for SWAA students is not only beneficial 
but necessary. Due to limited funding and lack of resources, working with local agencies provides multiple supports for students and parents 
that SWAA would be unable to provide. This also includes working with specific agencies and teams that provide targeted assistance for 
unduplicated student groups such as English learners and Foster Youth. These coordination of services are focused on improving student’s 
social emotional health and student engagement. 
 
It was expressed by agency partners, parents, and students that meals and transportation were a priority in meeting students needs. By 
providing these services, students basic needs are being met which allows them to be present and engaged in school, leading to improved 
social emotional health. Providing student incentives and maintaining the student PRIDE store, allows students to be recognized for positive 
behavior by all staff members and creates an atmosphere of multiple people providing support. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 29 of 76 

While measuring improvement in social emotional health may be difficult to quantify, SWAA will use attendance and chronic absenteeism 
metrics to determine improvement in a student’s social emotional well-being. It believes that if students feel safe, valued, and supported 
students will continue to come to school on a regular basis. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1C. Facilities are 
properly maintained in 
“good or exemplary” 
repair        

2019-20 
Education Village 
Sites received an 
overall rating of 
“Good” in FIT Report 
(Annual FIT Report) 
 

December 10, 2021, 
Facility Inspection 
Tool (FIT) Report 
revealed an overall 
rating of 94.79% 
indicating “Good”. 

  Maintain 
Education Village 
sites receive an 
overall rating of 
“Good” in FIT Report 
 

3A, B, C: Facilitate 
parent involvement 
through multiple 
opportunities including 
parents of 
unduplicated pupils 
and individuals with 
exceptional needs        

Measured by 
participation/attendan
ce of parents to the 
scheduled events 
through sign in sheets 
or survey completion 
 
Individualized 
Learning plan 
meetings and Parent 
Teacher Conferences 
were held on 8/03/20; 
9/14/20; 9/15/20; 
9/20/20; 12/15/20; 
02/09/21; 5/18/21 
 
Parents were invited 
to attend the LCAP 
Stakeholder Meeting 
on February 25, 2021. 
 

2021-22 
Prevention Services 
Personnel hosted 
seven different "We 
are Family" parent 
Engagement Night 
activities. 
Dates and topics 
included: 
 
09/08/21  "Meet and 
greet session" 
10/06/21  "Tobacco 
use prevention & 
education" 
11/03/21 "Coping with 
stress & depression" 
01/19/22, "Attendance 
intervention & 
communication 
strategies" 

  Host five parent 
engagement 
opportunities in 
collaboration with 
CCOE Prevention 
Services Staff 
 
Parent Teacher 
Conferences will be 
held four times per 
year 
 
80% of Parents will 
complete SWAA 
surveys 
 
75% of parents 
complete CHKS 
Survey 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 30 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Parents were invited 
to participate in the 
CHKS Survey:14% of 
parents completed the 
survey 
 
Parents were 
surveyed May 2020 
and May 2021. 71.4% 
of parents completed 
the surveys. 
 
100% were pleased 
with the transition to 
the school Distance 
Learning/Hybrid 
Program. 
 
Parent Contact: 86% 
prefer face-to-face 
meetings; 14% prefer 
Zoom 
 
Rating of Food 
Program: 43% 
extremely effective, 
43% very effective, 
14% slightly effective. 
 
ILP meetings every 
six weeks promote 
participation of 
students with 
exceptional needs 
 

02/16,22 "Self care" 
03/02/22, Taste and 
Teach (making 
healthy choices) 
hosted by the Farm to 
School Lab 
Supervisor who 
oversees the garden 
beds with the students 
of SWAA.  04/06/22 
"Understanding IEP 
and 504's" ( hosted by 
the Special Education 
Department) 
 
Flyers were provided 
to parents at the 
beginning of the 
school year and 
parents were 
contacted to 
participate, but 
attendance still 
remained low for 
SWAA parents. 
 
 
Individualized 
Learning Plan 
Meetings were  held 
during the first week 
of school (August 6-
11), September 19, 
the week of November 
1-5 and December 17, 

Outreach will be 100% 
with 90% parent 
participation 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 31 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

2021, to meet with 
students and parents. 
 
Parent teacher 
conferences were 
held at the end of the 
grading periods to 
discuss student 
performance, credits 
earned and next 
steps. 
 
Parents were invited 
to attend the LCAP 
Educational Partner 
Meeting on January 
20,2022. 
 
6 out of 11 parents 
completed the local 
Parent survey 
indicating 55% 
participation rate . 
 
100% of parents 
surveyed  prefer face-
to-face meetings 
 
100% of parents rated 
the food program as 
"moderately effective-
very effective" 
 
 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 32 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

 
 
 
 

5A. Maintain the 
school attendance 
rate above 75%        

85.3% attendance 
rate for 2019-20 
(Aeries Data) 
 

87.05% attendance 
rate for 2021-22 
(Aeries Data) 
 
 

  87% attendance rate 
for 2023-24 

5B. Decrease the 
chronic absenteeism 
rate by 3 %        

Chronic absenteeism 
rate was 56.52% in 
2019-20 measured by 
CALPADS Data 

Chronic absenteeism 
rate was 72.22% in 
2021-22 measured by 
CALPADS Data 

  53% chronic absentee 
rate in 2023-24 

5C. Middle school 
dropout rate        

2020-21 
There was a zero 
dropout rate for 
middle school 
students measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
There was a zero 
dropout rate for 
middle school 
students measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  Zero middle school 
dropout rate 

5D. High school 
dropout rate        

2020-21 
High school dropout 
rate was zero 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
High school dropout 
rate was zero 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  Zero high school 
dropout rate 

6A. Reduce the 
number of students 
who are suspended 
annually        

2020-21 
Zero students were 
suspended measured 
by CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
Seven students were 
suspended measured 
by CALPADS Data 
 

  Suspension rate of 
zero 
Measured by 
CALPADS data 
 

6B. Pupil Expulsion 
Rate        

2020-21 2021-22   Maintain Expulsion 
rates at zero 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 33 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

No expulsions 
occurred at SWAA, 
thus resulting in zero 
expulsion rate 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

Zero students have 
been expelled from 
SWAA. 
 

Measured by 
CALPADS data 
 

6C. Student surveys 
on safety and school 
connectedness        

2020-21 
Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, initial 
student surveys 
focused on how to 
improve services 
during distance 
learning, supports 
needed for Social 
emotional learning, 
and consideration of a 
hybrid program for the 
2020-21 school year. 
 
Survey results 
indicated 100% of 
students wished to 
return to a hybrid 
program in the fall if 
offered and felt that 
the school would be a 
safe place to return. 
 
86% of students 
completed the CHKS 
Survey in 2020-21. 
 

2021-22 
The S. William Abel 
Academy uses a local 
version of the 
California Healthy 
Kids Survey (CHKS). 
The reason a local 
version is used is 
because due to the 
small population size 
of SWAA, results 
cannot be reported 
through CHKS. 
Instead, Preventions 
Services staff conduct 
a local survey to 
determine student 
perceptions of school 
safety and 
connectedness, along 
with other data to 
determine school 
climate. Since 
currently SWAA only 
serves 9-12th grades, 
this grade span is 
reflected in the 
results. 

  75% of students 
participate in CHKS 
Survey or other local 
survey 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 34 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Student response on 
safety and school 
connectedness 
measured through 
CHKS or local 
Surveys 
 

 
SWAA students were 
provided surveys in 
Fall 2021 and post 
surveys on May 3, 
2022. 8 out of 12 
students participated 
in the survey=66.67% 
 
Survey results 
indicated: 
 
3 out of 8 students 
reported they felt very 
safe or safe at school, 
3 reported they felt 
neutral and 2 
indicated they felt 
unsafe. The final 
question on the 
survey regarding how 
many questions in the 
survey did you answer 
honestly, 2 students 
reported only some of 
them. 
100% of the students 
reported that during 
the past 12 months, 
they had never been 
afraid of being beaten 
up; never had mean 
rumors or lies spread 
about them;  zero 
instances of having  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 35 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

sexual jokes, 
comments or gestures 
made to them; zero 
times of being made 
fun of because of their 
looks or the way they 
talked. 
Students also 
reported zero times of 
being offered, sold or 
given an illegal drug. 
 
In addition, all 
students reported 0 
times of being bullied 
at school. 
 
 

6C. Parent surveys on 
safety and school 
connectedness        

2020-21 
14% of parents 
completed the CHKS 
Survey 
 

2021-22 
50% of parents 
completed the local 
survey. 
 
Parent survey results 
and feedback 
indicated they felt 
SWAA was a safe 
school and they wish 
for their child to 
remain at the school 
for 2022-23. 
 

  75% of parents 
participate in CHKS 
Survey or local 
Surveys 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 36 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

6C. Teacher surveys - 
school safety and 
school connectedness        

2020-21 
Due to only having 
one classroom 
teacher, a teacher 
survey was not 
conducted. 
 
Teacher requested to 
return to a hybrid 
model of instruction in 
October 2020 to 
connect with students. 
 

2021-22 
Due to having one 
classroom teacher, a 
teacher survey was 
not conducted but 
weekly check-ins 
occurred with an 
emphasis on school 
safety and school 
connectedness. 
 

  Continue weekly 
check-ins, staff 
meetings and informal 
conversations to 
collaborate with the 
teacher on ways to 
improve school safety 
and school 
connectedness 

9. Coordination of 
services for expelled 
students        

Metric measured 
through number of 
meetings with agency 
personnel, transition 
meetings with local 
districts and fully 
executed MOUs with 
LEA’s 
 
Expelled Student Plan 
for 2018-2021 
 
Coordinated Services 
for expelled students 
including 
Collaboration with the 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, the 
Colusa County Adult 
School, Woodland 
Community College, 

2021-22 
Fully executed MOU's 
were in place for all 
four of the school 
districts that CCOE 
serves. 
 
Transition meetings 
did not occur, but the 
principal attended  
multiple SARB/DART 
meetings at Colusa 
Unified, Pierce Joint 
Unified, and Williams 
Unified throughout the 
school year 
discussing the option 
of students attending 
SWAA before 
becoming expelled. 
Two students enrolled 

  Continue coordination 
of services with 
county child welfare, 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, and 
districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of 
student health and 
education records, 
immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and 
immediate delivery of 
educational services 
measured through 
number of meetings, 
agendas and 
transition plans. 
 
Work with CCOE 
Prevention Services 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 37 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

and CCOE Special 
Education. 
 
Developed Student 
transition plans and 
participated in 
transition meetings for 
students transitioning 
back to their home 
districts 
 
Developed and 
maintained Student 
ILP Plans for all 
students and IEP and 
504 plans when 
appropriate 
 
Coordinated services 
with CCOE Prevention 
Services 
 

in SWAA following 
their SARB meetings. 
 
Colusa County 
Behavioral Health 
provided group 
sessions to students 
every Monday during 
the school year.  The 
program was 
voluntary for students. 
 
No students 
transferred back to 
their home districts 
during the 2021-22 
school year. 
 
IEP, 504, and ILP 
plans were maintained 
during the school year 
for students. 
 
Meetings occurred 
weekly with 
Prevention Services 
Staff to discuss 
services for students. 
 
Prevention Services 
staff provided services 
such as TUPE, CHKS 
surveys, and SWAT 
presentations to 
students at SWAA. 

team to coordinate 
services by meeting 
monthly (12 times) to 
update services 
provided 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 38 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

They also assisted in 
facilitating McKinney 
Vento paperwork for 
students qualifying as 
homeless. 
 
Follow up letters to all 
district 
superintendents at the 
end of the school year 
was sent by the 
principal to update 
district leaders of their 
student's progress, 
attendance, behavior, 
and the student's plan 
for the 2022-23 school 
year. 
 

10. Coordination of 
services for foster 
youth        

2020-21 
The Foster Youth 
Executive Advisory 
Council quarterly 
meetings 
Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison 
meetings 
 
Transportation and 
meals provided to ALL 
students at SWAA, 
including Foster Youth 
to ensure that they 
attended school 
Metric measured 

2021-22 
Foster Youth 
Executive Advisory 
Meetings were held 
on the following dates: 
9/9/2021 
12/2/2021 
3/10/2022 
5/5/2022 
 
 
Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison 
Meetings were held 
on: 
8/23/2021 

  Continue coordination 
of services with CCOE 
Prevention Services to 
collaborate with 
county child welfare, 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, and 
districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of 
student health and 
education records, 
immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and 
immediate delivery of 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 39 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

through referrals to 
CCOE Prevention 
Services team and 
monthly meetings 
 

9/13/2021 
10/18/2021 
12/3/2021 
1/24/2022 
2/14/2022 
3/14/2022 
4/4/2022 
5/16/2022 
 
Transportation and 
meals were provided 
to all students at 
SWAA including 
Foster Youth. 
 
 

educational services 
by meeting monthly 
(12 times) to update 
services provided 
including but not 
limited to 
transportation, meals 
and support services 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

3.1 Facilities        Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) ratings of good or better 
 
 

$19,142.00 No      
X 
 

3.2 MTSS        Provide academic and behavioral interventions 
 
 

$34,500.00 No      
XX 

 

3.3 Transportation        Provide reliable, safe transportation from home to school to increase 
attendance 
 
 

$7,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.4 Student Meals        Provide a nutritious breakfast and lunch for students through the 
National School Lunch Program for qualifying students and those that 
do not meet program requirements 
 

$6,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 40 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 

3.5 Parent Engagement        Partner with CCOE Prevention Services Department to provide parent 
engagement opportunities on a regular basis and continue to invite 
parents to LCAP Educational Partner Meetings and student activities 
 
 

$1,350.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.6 Student Incentives        Services and supplies need to achieve and maintain student academic 
and behavior goals 
 
 

$4,200.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.7 SEL        Provide social-emotional learning supports for students through 
curriculum, activities, and staff training 
 
 

$16,437.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.8 Independent Study        Support Independent Study/home school students by maintaining 
regularly scheduled weekly meetings to provide direct instruction, 
assignments and support 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

3.9 Instructional 
Assistant        

Additional social emotional and academic services provided to SWAA 
students. This position will be based on available funding sources 
 
 

$52,500.00 No      
X 
 

3.10 Referral process        Continue coordination between CCOE-Educational Services Staff and 
district liaisons for all referrals to SWAA regular and Independent 
Study Programs. Coordination of activities includes referral process 
and the integration of special education compliance with all placement 
change requirements for students with an IEP. 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

3.11 Foster Youth        CCOE will coordinate services for foster children through appropriate 
tracking through Foster Focus; monthly district liaison meetings; 
providing technical assistance as needed; meeting program 
compliance; and maintaining existing MOU with Colusa County One 
Stop to support the Independent Learning Program. 

$1,500.00 No      
X 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 41 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Maintenance and operation costs increased during the 2021-22 school year therefore a substantive difference existed in Action 3.1.   SWAA 
continued to provide Multitiered systems of support to its students during the school year.  The cost for Special Education was also reflected 
in Action 3.2. Transportation to and from school in the school van continued to be a priority for students and parents but anticipated costs 
came in under budget. Parents indicated in surveys and during parent teacher conferences how beneficial the transportation was for their 
student. Student meals were provided for all students that requested them.  Due to the USDA food program, SWAA did not incur any costs 
for the 2021-22 school year but the action was still met with students receiving breakfast and lunch during the school day. Parent 
Engagement activities were provide and anticipated costs were close to targeted amounts, but attendance by parents was extremely low.  
Student incentives and the continuation of the PRIDE store for positive behavior each month is a highlight for students and will continue to 
encourage students to be recognized for their positive contributions. Action 8, Independent study options will continue to be provided to 
students wishing to participate in the program.  At the end of the school year,   three students remained on Independent study and one 
indicated her desire to continue in the fall.        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Increase in salary and benefit rate to M&O staff resulted in the increase in budgeted expenditures in Goal 3, Action 1. 
Action 3.3, transportation costs showed a decrease from anticipated costs as students that resided in Maxwell graduated from SWAA. SEL 
action #7 showed a material difference in costs associated for Social Emotional Learning due to costs being less than projected.  The 
purchase of Navigate 360 to deter suspensions and provide supports for students will continue in 2022-23.  Due to the instructional assistant 
not being hired until January 2022, costs were less than anticipated.  Action 11 costs for Foster Youths resulted in less than anticipated costs 
due to the graduation of a foster youth in the fall of 2021. 
        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 1: 
December 10, 2021, FIT Report revealed a 94.79% rating indicating “Good”. Maintenance personnel provided repairs to SWAA classrooms 
and facilities were maintained and cleaned daily. M&O and CU costs were applied to Action 1. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 42 of 76 

MTSS Conference Registration, travel, and accommodations for Educational Services Staff was reflected in Goal 3, Action 2. This training 
will benefit all staff that interact with students of SWAA. 
 
Action 3: 
Transportation is provided to all SWAA students in the morning to arrive at school on time via the school van.  Transportation home is either 
provided by the van or students are provided a transit ticket to return to their homes. With the hiring of the Instructional Assistant in January 
2022, no transit tickets were needed.  Parents and students felt supported by the school and indicated on multiple occasions their 
appreciation of the transportation program. 
 
Action 4: 
Due to USDA funding, costs for student meals through the National School Lunch program have been $0.00 thus resulting in zero costs 
currently. 
 
Action 5: 
Parent engagement initiative titled “We Are Family/Entre Familia”  led to workshops centered on Tobacco Use Prevention Education, Coping 
with Stress & Depress, Attendance Intervention Strategies & Communication, Self-Care, Healthy Food Choices and Understanding IEP's and 
504's. The workshops were held monthly between September 2021-April 2022 ( except for the month of December due to holidays and 
student winter break).   Workshops were hosted in both English and Spanish to accommodate the participants. 
 
Action 6: 
Monthly student incentive store, Back to School Night Supplies and Student earned classroom furniture are included in the cost to provide 
SWAA students incentives for academic and personal achievement. 
 
Action 7 : 
Current costs reflect the Purchase of the annual Go-Guardian Subscription. Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased with funds 
from CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant, $9,197.20 thus resulting in a reduction of planned expenditures 
SWAA students were taken on a field trip for SEL capacity-building.  Colusa County Behavior Health provided weekly sessions to SWAA 
students free of charge for SEL support. The group was provided for those  students wishing to participate and not required. 
 
Action 8: 
SWAA had  three students on Independent Study  at the end of the regular school year.  Students attended meetings weekly in person  with 
the teacher to receive direct instruction and support. 
 
Action 9: 
Salary and benefits for the Instructional Assistant, who assists the students at SWAA proved beneficial for students. Students established 
trusting relationships with the instructional assistant and also received additional classroom support .  The situation was beneficial to staff, 
students and parents, and the instructional assistant will be hired for a full year  and will return in the fall of 2022. The need for this stable role 
model for the students will help students adjust to the change of a new teacher in fall 2022. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 43 of 76 

 
Action 10: 
SWAA Principal participated in SARB and DART meetings with Williams, Pierce,  and Colusa School Districts which has resulted in students 
being sent to SWAA or parents being made aware of the program.  Referrals to SWAA from  Maxwell are initiated by communication 
between the  District Principal/Superintendent and the SWAA Principal.  All district leadership are reminded of the referral process to SWAA 
and the paperwork that must accompany the referral.  District leadership must disclose all interventions provided to students before SWAA 
leadership considers enrollment, unless an Expulsion order is provided.  Positive outcomes resulted from students being sent to SWAA prior 
to or in danger of being expelled. 
 
Action 11: 
CCOE Prevention Services has tracked foster youth coming in and out of the county using Foster Focus. Through collaboration at the 
monthly district liaison meetings, staff worked with districts to provide technical support to best support the needs of Colusa County Foster 
Youth. 
The Preventions Services team participated in the 2022 Foster Youth Summit, with funds from 3.11.  At this time, plans are underway for the 
first "Fostering Youth Success Day" which will be hosted for all foster youth in the county and their families.  If participation rates are as 
expected, this will continue to be an annual event. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

As indicated previously, due to the demand from parents and students, transportation will continue to be provided in 2022-23 along with the 
other actions. Parent engagement activities will be reconstructed to ensure that there is parent involvement.  It is anticipated that meal costs 
will resume in 2022-23. Funding for the instructional assistant will remain a priority in 2022-23 and years to come.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 44 of 76 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2022-23] 
 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent) 
72360 $0 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

2.91% 0.00% $0.00 2.91% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education is utilizing LCFF Supplemental funds to improve student achievement to meets the needs of low income, 
English learners and foster youth at the S. William Abel Academy. Due to the small school size of 17 students (11 students were reported on 
Cal Pads reporting day on October 6, 2021), mobile student population, and extremely credit deficient students, some LCFF supplemental 
funds are used schoolwide. 2021-22 SWAA demographics as of June 2022, reveal that 85% of SWAA students are low-income, 31% of 
SWAA students are English Learners, and 8% of the SWAA population represent foster youth. While many of the actions listed below are 
being used school wide, the actions listed in this section are targeted at improving outcomes for SWAA’s unduplicated students. SWAA’s 
county community school student population are low income students with a high mobility rate. There is a need to differentiate instruction to 
meet the various academic, social emotional, and career readiness skills needed by all students, whether they are enrolled for short or long 
term. Whether the student population consists of probation, probation-referred or at-promise students, all students demonstrate at-risk 
behaviors that align with factors of incarcerated adults or high school drop-outs.         
The following actions/services have been identified as increasing or improving services beyond the base program: 
Goal 1: S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and instruction and will be 
measured through formative and summative assessments. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 45 of 76 

Increased or improved services in goal 1 include: 
(1.2) Assessing English skills for English Learners that provide a planned course of action to improve English learner outcomes beyond the 
current use of Exact path diagnostics. Current English Learner scores show that 100% are performing below grade level. By implementing 
NWEA’s MAP assessment, this will precisely measure growth and proficiency and provide insights to tailor instruction. These recommended 
areas for improved instruction in MAP combined with its ability to link to Exact Path remediation programs already in place at SWAA, will help 
students focus on key targeted areas of instruction. The use of this assessment and its effect on raising the achievement of students will be 
measured through qualitative feedback from staff. 
        
Goal 2: Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness. 
 
Increased or improved services in goal 2 include: 
(2.2) CTE and College Readiness Experiences: 100% of unduplicated students have listed on their Individualized Learning plans the goal of 
obtaining a job or obtaining skills to be employed. Parent feedback has indicated currently and previously the need for students to participate 
in work based learning experiences. Since 85% of students are low income, the exposure of students to colleges and financial aid, and 
potential careers will help assist them in meeting their goals. Measurement of work based learning outcomes will be reflected on student’s 
individual learning plan goals. 
(2.3) Summer School Academy will provide additional opportunities for students to participate in programs that allow for credit recovery. 
SWAA offers these programs to students’ school-wide, since 100% of students that enroll in SWAA are credit deficient. Extended learning 
opportunities help bridge the gap for unduplicated students and those wishing to return to their district once their expulsion has been served. 
Outcomes will be measured though student ILP goals listed on ILP plans, and obtaining student’s targeted goals regarding credits. 
        
Goal 3: Develop and implement a multi-tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that improves social 
emotional health and student engagement. 
 
Increased or improved services in goal 3 include: 
(3.2, 3.6. 3.7) Multitiered Levels of Support for students at the SWAA will work to not only improve the chronic absenteeism rate of 72.22% in 
2021-22, but reflected an increase in the attendance rate of students in 2021-22,. In addition, these will provide targeted interventions 
necessary for foster youth, low income, and English learners. MTSS will provide a school wide system of increasing positive behavior to 
reduce student suspensions, reducing discipline referrals while increasing student learning outcomes. Student incentives for class 
participation and positive behavior has resulted in reduced suspensions for all students that have enrolled at SWAA. Social emotional 
learning support for foster youth, low income and English learners in the past has included at least weekly check -in for students to share 
concerns  with therapists from Behavioral Health. These supports are necessary for continued success of at-promise students located at 
SWAA. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 46 of 76 

 
(3.3) Transportation to increase attendance: SWAA is 10 to 20 miles from neighboring rural schools; therefore providing transportation at no 
cost to students or families allows students to have a safe route to school while at the same time increasing student attendance. Providing 
transportation services in this high need area ultimately bridges the achievement gap. Low income students lack the resources to travel 20 
miles to school daily. With nearly all students represented in one of the unduplicated student groups, SWAA provides transportation for all 
students school-wide. Transportation was claimed the highest priority by educational partners at the February 25, 2021, Stakeholder meeting 
and remains a high priority of educational partners in 2022. Attendance rates from 2020-21 to 2021-22 increased from 85.3% to 87.05% due 
to consistent transportation to and from school. 
 
(3.4) Meals for low income students: students benefit from a no cost nutritious meal, improve their nutritional and educational outcomes 
which are directly tied to an increase in school attendance. Since 85% of SWAA students are considered low income and have expressed 
the need for breakfast and lunch, the school provides meals to all of its students to ensure students have access to nutritious meals daily. An 
increase in student attendance in 2021-22 as stated above, correlated to the student’s participation in the meal program as the means for 
measurement. 
 
(3.5) Parent engagement has been an area of needed improvement for SWAA. Additional parent engagement opportunities to support 
parents was a recommendation from the 2021 and remains a need in 2022 . Services to include parents in engaging activities will benefit all 
parents but targeted activities will provide support in assisting their children identified as foster youth and English learners and in bridging the 
achievement gap for these student groups. 
 
All actions will be continued in 2022-23. 
        
 

 
A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 
 

The increased apportionment of supplemental concentration funds of $72,360 is used to increase services for students by implementing the 
actions and services listed above. While more than the projected 2.91% of these funds shall support specific student groups, improvement 
will be demonstrated school wide. By implementing the actions listed above supported by the increased funds, foster youth, English Learners 
and low-income students will benefit. This will be measured through increased attendance rates, low suspension rates, social emotional 
support, increased high school graduation rate, and increased individual scores on formative and summative assessments.         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 47 of 76 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

CCOE does not receive additional concentration grant add-on funding,  but  the hiring of the instructional assistant for direct support to 
students was paid through other state monies.  SWAA leadership realized the need for direct support for students in addition to the full time 
teacher.         

 
Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

         1:11         

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

         4:11         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 48 of 76 

 
2022-23 Total Expenditures Table 
 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State 
Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-

personnel 
Totals          $257,677.00         $52,500.00   $310,177.00 $181,811.00 $128,366.00 

 
Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

1 1.1 SWAA Teacher        XAll        
 

$102,548.00 
   

$102,548.00 

1 1.2 Assessment Program        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income        
 

$2,000.00 
   

$2,000.00 

1 1.3 Curriculum        XAll        
 

$24,500.00 
   

$24,500.00 

1 1.4 Staff Professional 
Development        

XAll        
 

$1,000.00 
   

$1,000.00 

1 1.5 ELD Strategies        XAll        
 

$500.00 
   

$500.00 

2 2.1 Individualized 
Learning Plans        

XAll         
    

$0.00 

2 2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness 
Experiences        

XLow Income         $31,000.00 
   

$31,000.00 

2 2.3 Summer School 
Academy        

XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$4,700.00 
   

$4,700.00 

2 2.4 Course Offerings        XAll         $1,300.00 
   

$1,300.00 
3 3.1 Facilities        XAll         $19,142.00 

   
$19,142.00 

3 3.2 MTSS        XAll        
XStudents with 
Disabilities         

$34,500.00 
   

$34,500.00 

3 3.3 Transportation        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$7,000.00 
   

$7,000.00 

3 3.4 Student Meals        XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

$6,000.00 
   

$6,000.00 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$1,350.00 
   

$1,350.00 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 49 of 76 

Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
3 3.6 Student Incentives        XEnglish Learners        

XLow Income         
$4,200.00 

   
$4,200.00 

3 3.7 SEL        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$16,437.00 
   

$16,437.00 

3 3.8 Independent Study        XAll         
    

$0.00 
3 3.9 Instructional Assistant        XAll         

 
$52,500.00 

  
$52,500.00 

3 3.10 Referral process        XAll         
    

$0.00 
3 3.11 Foster Youth        XAll         $1,500.00 

   
$1,500.00 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 50 of 76 

 
2022-23 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

2489941 72360 2.91% 0.00% 2.91% $72,687.00 0.00% 2.92 % Total:         $72,687.00 
        LEA-wide 

Total:         $72,687.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $0.00 
 

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.2 Assessment Program XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $2,000.00 
 

2 2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness Experiences 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XLow Income         XAll Schools         $31,000.00 
 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $4,700.00 
 

3 3.3 Transportation XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $7,000.00 
 

3 3.4 Student Meals XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $6,000.00 
 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $1,350.00 
 

3 3.6 Student Incentives XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $4,200.00 
 

3 3.7 SEL XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $16,437.00 
 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 51 of 76 

 
2021-22 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $242,723.00 $165,927.00 

 
Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 SWAA Teacher        No      

X 
 

50920 70847 

1 1.2 Assessment Program        Yes     
X 
 

2000 0 

1 1.3 Curriculum        No      
X 
 

24500 886 

1 1.4 Staff Professional Development        No      
X 
 

1000 493 

1 1.5 ELD Strategies        No      
X 
 

500 153 

2 2.1 Individualized Learning Plans        No      
X 
 

0 0 

2 2.2 CTE and College Readiness 
Experiences        

Yes     
X 
 

31000 9583 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy        Yes     
X 
 

8356 0 

2 2.4 Course Offerings        No      
X 
 

1000 1235 

3 3.1 Facilities        No      15010 19142 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 52 of 76 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
X 
 

3 3.2 MTSS        Yes     
X 
 

34500 30,046 

3 3.3 Transportation        Yes     
X 
 

7000 6063 

3 3.4 Student Meals        Yes     
X 
 

6000 0 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement        Yes     
X 
 

1000 1319 

3 3.6 Student Incentives        Yes     
X 
 

4000 4183 

3 3.7 SEL        Yes     
X 
 

9437 4251 

3 3.8 Independent Study        No      
X 
 

0 0 

3 3.9 Instructional Assistant        No      
X 
 

45000 17346 

3 3.10 Referral process        No      
X 
 

0 0 

3 3.11 Foster Youth        No      
X 
 

1500 380 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 53 of 76 

 
2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

43274         $103,293.00         $55,445.00         $47,848.00         0.00%         0.00%         0.00%         
 

Last 
Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.2 Assessment Program XYes     
 

2000 0  
 

2 2.2 CTE and College Readiness 
Experiences 

XYes     
 

31000 9583  
 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy XYes     
 

8356 0  
 

3 3.2 MTSS XYes     
 

34500 30046  
 

3 3.3 Transportation XYes     
 

7000 6063  
 

3 3.4 Student Meals XYes     
 

6000 0  
 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

1000 1319  
 

3 3.6 Student Incentives XYes     
 

4000 4183  
 

3 3.7 SEL XYes     
 

9437 4251  
 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 54 of 76 

 
2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Current 
School Year 

(6 divided by 9 
+ Carryover 

%) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for 
Contributing 

Actions  
(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 
9, plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 
9) 

1733471 43274 0 2.50% $55,445.00 0.00% 3.20% $0.00 0.00% 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 55 of 76 

Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students  

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, 
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support 
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made 
through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's 
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to 
be included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).  

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 56 of 76 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP 
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging 
educational partners.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for educational partners and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the 
LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including 
by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 57 of 76 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. For example, 
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what 
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific 
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved 
performance for these students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include 
a goal to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include 
this goal and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 58 of 76 

Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing 
this section.  

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in 
developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between 
schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 59 of 76 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the 
LCAP.” 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum, 
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A 
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its 
educational partners.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.” 

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the 
LCAP. For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are 
not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 60 of 76 

• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
• Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Determination of material differences in expenditures 
• Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 61 of 76 

Focus Goal(s) 
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to 
pursue a focus goal. 

Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Required Goals 
In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with 
the development of the 2022–23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP. 

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years 
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEAs required to include a goal in the LCAP 
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.  

• Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria must 
include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 62 of 76 

Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, 
this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required to have a goal to address each student group; 
however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this required goal with 
another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student group or 
groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. 

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the student 
group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous 
efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help 
achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description. 

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply 
to a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest 
performance levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the 
performance of the “All Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs 
required to include a goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s 
Local Control Funding Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a goal in its 
LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must include metrics, 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students enrolled at the low-performing 
school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address each school; however, each school must 
be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal with another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students enrolled at 
the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole.  

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the schools(s) 
that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous efforts to 
improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the 
outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 63 of 76 

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–21 outcomes on some 
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023–24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 64 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023–24) 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022–
23. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023–
24. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024–
25. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22 or when 
adding a new 
metric. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the 
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided 
in the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the 
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or 
schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the 
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 65 of 76 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned 
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in 
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not 
closely associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK–12 as compared to all 
students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to 
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section 
as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the 
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
students. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 66 of 76 

Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, 
as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services 
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover 
percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not 
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs 
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in 
the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs 
of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting 
the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 67 of 76 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 
climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s]) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance 
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet 
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also 
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 68 of 76 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40 percent or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and 
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required. 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they 
are provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that 
only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to 
result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides 
to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the 
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff 
and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 69 of 76 

An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number 
of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.  

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA 
that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to 
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected 
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with 
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing 
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, 
and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students 
that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of 
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, 
Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action 
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and 
the LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying 
the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 70 of 76 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2022–23 LCAP, 2022–23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021–22 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Data Entry Table 
The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year, 
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and 
the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school 
year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior 
LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 71 of 76 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 72 of 76 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some 
measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action 
contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement 
the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for 
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English 
learners, and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by 
hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost 
$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster 
youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated 
cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 73 of 76 

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in 
the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this 
action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated 
for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements 
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action 
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the 
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated 
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the 
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated 
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current 

school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
Program and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 74 of 76 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from 
the prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting 
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) 
is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number 
and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 75 of 76 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing 
Expenditures (4) 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services (8) 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 + Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base 
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the 
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). 
This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 76 of 76 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP 
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
January 2022 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
2022-23 Proposed Budget 

Page 1 of 155

11.2



June 15, 2022 

To: Colusa County Board of Education 

? 

Subject: 2022-23 Budget 

From: Michael West 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.8054 

Attached you will find a copy of the budget for the 2022-23 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, 

for your review and approval. As we emerge from two years of lockdowns, new and ever-

changing regulations, and multiple starts and stops surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, we 

continue to take a fiscally cautious and conservative position in developing this budget based 

on the Governor's May 2022 budget proposal. 

In the Governor's May Revision, the state now has projected total funding of $128.3 billion for 

all K-12 education programs in 2022-23, the highest level of funding in California's history. This 

includes a 6.56% cost-of-living-adjustment (COLA) for the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), 

as well as many other targeted funding increases, including special education, and universal 

free meals for all students. 

These increases in funding help to offset the County Office's cost to do business, including 

increases of more than two percent in employer paid retirement contributions, as well as 

inflationary increases of 7.9% from a year ago as measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

as of April 2022. Energy prices alone have jumped 34.2% in the past year, largely the result of 

an increase in the price of gasoline. 

In 2022-23, the Colusa County Office of Education anticipates the possibility of a large one-time 

purchase, the 5th Street Office, which will result in deficit spending this year, but we project a 

return to surplus budgeting in the years thereafter. In this sustained effort, CCOE will continue 

to provide the best services and educational opportunities for its students and families as is 

possible. 

This budget is a snapshot of our  present fiscal status and reflects the best plan that our fiscal 

department and program managers have, based on today's information and assumptions. 

Budgets are ever-changing documents that reflect the mission and goals of the county office, 

and change as more information is available. Monthly and Interim reports will be brought to 

the board to show any material changes throughout the year. 

Page 2 of 155



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

COE Certification (Form CB/CC) .......................................................................................... 4 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ..................................................................................... 9 

General Fund 01Assumptions and Forms........................................................................... 11 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) for General Fund 01 ............................................................. 36 

Adult Education Fund 11 ...................................................................................................... 50 

Child Development Fund 12 ................................................................................................ 59 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 ......................................................................................................... 68 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ...................................................................................................... 74 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 ................................................................... 80 

 Criteria and Standards Report ........................................................................................... 88 

Technical Review Checks……………………………………………………………………….117 

Budget Glossary…………………………………………………………………………………..125 

 

Page 3 of 155



 

 

 

COE Certification Forms CB & CC 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 155



Page 5 of 155



Page 6 of 155



Page 7 of 155



Page 8 of 155



 

 

 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 155



Page 10 of 155



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 155



General Fund Financial Assumptions 

Budget 2022-23 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of 

the Budget for the year 2022-23. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the 

governor signs the annual budget we will make available for public review 

any revisions made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the 

budget act.  We also report to the board at First Interim (December), and 

Second Interim (March) report periods. 

 

The attached Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) forms are 

presented by major object account classification, reflecting the 2021-22 

Estimated Actuals in Columns A-C and the Proposed 2022-23 adopted 

budget in Column D-F. The Budget figures are broken out by Restricted, 

Unrestricted and Totals for each of the two years. The differences between 

the two years is shown as a percentage in the last column. 

 

Restricted programs are programs that are funded by specific sources for 

specific activities such as Special Education. Unrestricted programs are 

programs and expenditures that are funding by state and local dollars that 

do not have a specific activity tied to the funding source. Although the 

word “unrestricted” is associated with these dollars, the county office has 

many mandated requirements and activities that these funds are used for, 

such as support to districts and Williams Act requirements. 

 

The SACS Forms attached are the documents the Board is adopting. Other  

supplemental information is included to make the SACS forms more 

informative. 

Page 12 of 155



 

 
Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living increase based on 

the School Services Dartboard and reflect any known changes to funding 

or expenditures for the future two years. Salary increases for step and 

column are included in these projections. 

 

Looking ahead to 2022-23 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  

The County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce organizational 

costs to better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the 

belief that the students we help educate today are our future tomorrow. 

 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well 

as transfers from other funds within the County Office. 

 

Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any 

known information on current population.   

 

Page 13 of 155



Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period 

with the most current attendance data and the latest projections from 

CDE. The LCFF funds consist of Local Property Taxes, Education Protection 

Act (Prop 30) Funds, and State Aid.  LCFF funding equates to 23% of the 

general fund revenue. From the School Services of California’s May 

revision workshop, the following slides show the major changes to LCFF 

funding for County Offices:

 

Page 14 of 155



 
 

Federal Revenue comprises 10% of the general fund revenue.  Federal 

revenues are projected to decrease by $607,526 since 2021-22.  This 

Page 15 of 155



decrease is due to our three-year IAL grant coming to an end. 

 

State Revenue is 34% of the general fund revenue. State revenues are 

projected to increase by $290,056 since 2021-22.  This increase is due one 

time funds for the Educator Effectiveness Block grant, the ELO grant and 

Foster Youth. 

 

Local Revenue makes up 33% of the general fund revenue.  Local revenues 

are projected to decrease by $351,418 since 2021-22.  This decrease is due 

to a reduction of Special Education excess costs. 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
 
 
The 2022-23 expenditures in the general fund are projected to increase 

from 2021-22.  Much of the increase is attributed to Special Education 

additional staff, a possible office building purchase, and other additional 

grant funding expenditures. 

 

 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

 

Certificated salaries are 29% of all general fund expenditures.  This amount 

has decreased by $128,847 from 2021-22 due a decrease in Special 

Education costs and the ending of our three-year IAL grant. 

 

Certificated Salaries
29%

Classified Salaries
27%

Employee Benefits
26%

Books & 
Supplies
4%

Other Services
9%

Equipment
9%

Indirect/Debt 
Payment
-4%

2022-23 Expenditures

Certificated Salaries Classified Salaries Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies Other Services Equipment

Indirect/Debt Payment

Page 16 of 155



Classified salaries make up 27% of all expenditures. Classified salaries have 

increased $214,538 since 2021-22. The increase is due to the addition of a 

position to Administrative Services and an increase in funding from the 

CalHope grant and Special Education positions added.  

 

Employer paid benefit costs are 26% of all expenditures. The benefit costs 

have increased $125,414 compared to 2021-22 as a result of the 

corresponding salary increases as well as an increased benefits cap. 

Continuing increases in STRS and PERS employer paid rates, and statutory 

benefit rate increases are additional drivers of these rising costs. 

 
Books and Supplies total 4% of all expenditures. The overall decrease in 

program budgets for supplies is $303,488 less compared to 2021-22. This 

decrease is primarily due to the ending of our three-year IAL grant. 

 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 9% of all expenditures. Budgets 

for services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by 

$49,612 compared to 2021-22.  The majority of this increase is due to 

increased expenditures in Special Education and the Tobacco Law 

Enforcement Grant Program. 

 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is 9% of all expenditures. From 2021-22 this 

budget has increased by $1,260,000 primarily due to the possible purchase 

of the Fifth Street Office building.  

 
 

Page 17 of 155



 

Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by 4%.   

 

The Indirect Cost Rate (ICR)  

 
ICR for the budget year 2022-23 is 7.97%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program 

guidelines prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have 

been arranged with the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 

2022-23 are as follows: 

  

• Special Education / First 5 – Not to exceed 7.00% 

• Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

• Ed. SVS – Not to exceed 7.97% 

• Food Services – Not to exceed 5.35% 

• IAL Services – Not to exceed 7.97% (Grant ends September 30, 2022) 
 

 

Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing and 

will continue to work diligently to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is budgeted to spend more than it will receive in 2022-23 

in the amount of $402,274 due to the possible purchase of the Fifth Street 

Office building. The Multiyear Projection (MYP) projects a surplus during 

fiscal year 2023-24 in the amount of $531,849, and a surplus in 2024-25 of 

$647,401. 

 

The most significant fiscal concern the County Office has is the cap on LCFF 

growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, and PERS and 

STRS costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 2% for PERS 

and 2% for STRS in 2022-23.  Educational agencies across the state are 

struggling with managing this imbalance.   

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational 

opportunities possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the 

Colusa County Office of Education is committed to finding ways to control 

costs without impairing services, and further enrich the lives of our students. 

Page 18 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,428,391 9700 4,469,394 

Revenue

2,632,076 2,632,076 2,632,076 2,625,384 8000 3,612,124 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,118,585 1,127,562 1,127,562 1,155,062 8100 1,255,687 Federal Revenue

955,667 1,033,847 1,042,242 1,028,017 8200 306,591 Federal Revenue

2,845,565 3,213,153 3,213,153 3,232,512 8300 3,677,987 Other State Revenue

1,397,495 1,780,009 1,836,934 2,000,961 8500 1,662,156 Other State Revenue

760,314 658,040 795,150 1,114,124 8600 757,100 Other Local Revenue

4,586,795 4,674,334 4,674,334 4,120,619 8700 4,360,966 Other Local Revenue

6,000 6,000 309,360 309,360 8900 606,000 Other Sources

15,586,039 15,630,811 15,125,021 14,302,497 16,238,611 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,497,210 2,590,256 2,600,256 2,531,327 1100 2,599,034 Teacher Salaries

1,390,162 1,594,047 1,594,047 1,584,711 1200 1,483,148 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

716,371 696,113 709,613 786,448 1300 666,604 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

110,798 92,066 92,066 110,288 1900 118,349 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 5,012,774 4,995,982 4,972,482 4,714,541 4,867,135 

1,467,251 1,560,204 1,560,204 1,372,061 2100 1,605,795 Para Educator Salaries

727,104 746,441 746,441 768,852 2200 816,247 Classified Support

685,509 699,288 699,288 712,690 2300 799,699 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

965,064 1,033,891 1,043,891 1,030,215 2400 1,069,526 Clerical/Office Salaries

355,770 283,125 287,225 302,471 2900 260,320 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 4,186,289 4,337,049 4,322,949 4,200,698 4,551,587 

1,142,866 1,195,001 1,197,876 1,188,832 3100 1,235,018 STRS State Teachers Retirement

991,115 1,067,053 1,067,427 1,026,162 3200 1,174,230 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

388,093 417,187 417,509 401,092 3300 420,295 Social Security/Medicare

1,053,918 1,170,185 1,171,255 1,101,656 3400 1,171,976 Health & Welfare Insurance

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 1 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 19 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

115,734 59,025 59,101 59,453 3500 43,764 State Unemployment Insurance

265,710 256,676 257,098 251,467 3600 256,297 Workers Compensation

10,000 15,900 15,900 12,950 3700 10,000 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 4,041,612 4,186,166 4,181,027 3,967,436 4,311,580 

490,099 528,527 577,931 605,761 4300 416,411 Materials and Supplies

220,538 224,070 242,395 248,714 4400 90,013 Noncapitalized Equipment

74,679 74,679 74,679 74,679 4700 85,093 Food

Total for Object 4000 929,154 895,005 827,276 785,316 591,517 

5100 170,000 Sub-Agreements

139,440 135,765 155,765 164,965 5200 148,661 Travel/Conference

38,172 53,574 53,574 49,346 5300 48,674 Dues/Memberships

115,000 130,820 130,820 122,910 5400 150,000 Property/Liab.Insurance

116,586 141,189 141,189 141,189 5500 141,189 Utilities

116,181 124,507 124,639 128,410 5600 129,962 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

621,093- 621,093- 628,030- 738,530-5700 583,851-Direct Costs Transfers

889,583 1,261,440 1,301,561 1,775,303 5800 1,158,272 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

185,272 151,543 151,543 152,727 5900 117,766 Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,796,320 1,431,061 1,377,745 979,141 1,480,673 

30,000 125,000 125,000 6100 Land Improvements

6200 1,300,000 New Building/Improvement of

38,302 30,186 46,187 50,930 6400 130,486 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 175,930 171,187 30,186 68,302 1,430,486 

9,700 29,700 29,700 7200 29,700 Other Transfers Out

509,854- 546,192- 621,269- 626,743-7300 621,793-Direct Support/indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 597,043-591,569-536,492-509,854- 592,093-

15,545,036 15,424,881 15,175,173 14,205,580 16,640,885 Total for Expense 

accounts

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 2 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 20 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Ending Balance

4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 9700

Total for Fund 01

Starting Balance 4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,469,394 

Revenue 14,302,497 15,125,021 15,630,811 15,586,039 16,238,611 

Expense 14,205,580 15,175,173 15,424,881 15,545,036 16,640,885 

Ending Balance Acct Type 4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 0 

Calc Ending Balance 4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 4,067,120 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 3 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 21 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 1 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 579,463.00 4,433,311.00 5,012,774.00 529,133.00 4,338,002.00 4,867,135.00 -2.9%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 1,602,852.00 2,583,437.00 4,186,289.00 1,811,862.00 2,739,725.00 4,551,587.00 8.7%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,046,953.00 2,994,659.00 4,041,612.00 1,071,721.00 3,239,859.00 4,311,580.00 6.7%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 203,931.00 725,223.00 929,154.00 189,151.00 402,366.00 591,517.00 -36.3%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 640,464.00 1,155,856.00 1,796,320.00 669,341.00 811,332.00 1,480,673.00 -17.6%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 155,186.00 20,744.00 175,930.00 1,430,486.00 0.00 1,430,486.00 713.1%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,397,393.00) 770,650.00 (626,743.00) (1,328,781.00) 706,988.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 40,809.00 (309,166.00) (268,357.00) (802,306.00) (205,968.00) (1,008,274.00) 275.7%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 178,629.00 (137,626.00) 41,003.00 (402,274.00) 0.00 (402,274.00) -1,081.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

Page 22 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 2 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 4,016,952.00 50,168.00 4,067,120.00 -9.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 33,731.86 33,731.86 0.00 50,168.00 50,168.00 48.7%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 3,634,270.51 0.00 3,634,270.51 3,184,408.00 0.00 3,184,408.00 -12.4%

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00 0.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,042,491.51 3,042,491.51 0.00

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 0.00 316,799.00 316,799.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 0.00 2,592,609.00 2,592,609.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 777,252.00 0.00 777,252.00 832,044.00 0.00 832,044.00 7.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

G. ASSETS

1) Cash

a) in County  Treasury 9110 4,730,435.32 (1,240,533.11) 3,489,902.21

Page 23 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 3 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in
County  Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) in Rev olv ing Cash Account 9130 500.00 0.00 500.00

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) Inv estments 9150 0.00 0.00 0.00

3) Accounts Receiv able 9200 0.00 332,294.98 332,294.98

4) Due f rom Grantor Gov ernment 9290 0.00 0.00 0.00

5) Due f rom Other Funds 9310 29,429.12 0.00 29,429.12

6) Stores 9320 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 4,767,567.93 (891,801.99) 3,875,765.94

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

1) Accounts Pay able 9500 184,632.52 0.00 184,632.52

2) Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 770.57 0.00 770.57

4) Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00

5) Unearned Rev enue 9650 0.00 0.00 0.00

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 185,403.09 0.00 185,403.09

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

Ending Fund Balance, June 30

(G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 4,582,164.84 (891,801.99) 3,690,362.85

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,488,228.00 0.00 1,488,228.00 2,451,362.00 0.00 2,451,362.00 64.7%

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current
Year 8012 619,533.00 0.00 619,533.00 641,753.00 0.00 641,753.00 3.6%

Page 24 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 4 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 (1,386.00) 0.00 (1,386.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.0%

Timber Y ield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 50,564.00 0.00 50,564.00 50,564.00 0.00 50,564.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.0%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Receipt f rom Co. Board of  Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,625,384.00 0.00 2,625,384.00 3,612,124.00 0.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of  Property
Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 (424,019.00) 424,019.00 0.00 (424,019.00) 424,019.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 920,502.00 920,502.00 0.00 880,826.00 880,826.00 -4.3%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 234,560.00 234,560.00 0.00 374,861.00 374,861.00 59.8%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 128,483.00 128,483.00 0.00 160,000.00 160,000.00 24.5%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 25 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 5 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 610.00 610.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4038,
4123, 4124, 4126,
4127, 4128, 4204,
5630

8290

124,347.00 124,347.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 -59.8%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 0.00 774,577.00 774,577.00 0.00 95,981.00 95,981.00 -87.6%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 3,133,957.00 3,133,957.00 3,595,235.00 3,595,235.00 14.7%

Prior Years 6500 8319 15,803.00 15,803.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 82,752.00 82,752.00 0.00 82,752.00 82,752.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 0.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 -53.2%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 63.3%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 4,000.00 2,400.00 6,400.00 4,000.00 1,200.00 5,200.00 -18.8%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 26 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 6 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom

State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6680, 6685,
6690, 6695 8590 105,000.00 105,000.00 95,000.00 95,000.00 -9.5%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 5,000.00 1,827,761.00 1,832,761.00 5,000.00 1,518,956.00 1,523,956.00 -16.8%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not Subject
to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Non-
LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 42.4%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 -33.3%

Page 27 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 7 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 409,792.00 409,792.00 0.00 368,100.00 368,100.00 -10.2%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Miscellaneous Funds Non-LCFF (50
Percent) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enue f rom Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 377,725.00 223,517.00 601,242.00 118,000.00 181,000.00 299,000.00 -50.3%

Tuition 8710 24,256.00 3,921,244.00 3,945,500.00 19,234.00 4,171,464.00 4,190,698.00 6.2%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 0.00 175,119.00 170,268.00 0.00 170,268.00 -2.8%

Transf ers of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 62,636.00 2,468,691.00 2,531,327.00 114,046.00 2,484,988.00 2,599,034.00 2.7%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 22,967.00 1,561,744.00 1,584,711.00 0.00 1,483,148.00 1,483,148.00 -6.4%

Page 28 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 8 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 493,860.00 292,588.00 786,448.00 415,087.00 251,517.00 666,604.00 -15.2%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 110,288.00 110,288.00 0.00 118,349.00 118,349.00 7.3%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 579,463.00 4,433,311.00 5,012,774.00 529,133.00 4,338,002.00 4,867,135.00 -2.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 1,372,061.00 1,372,061.00 0.00 1,605,795.00 1,605,795.00 17.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 291,349.00 477,503.00 768,852.00 368,210.00 448,037.00 816,247.00 6.2%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 519,568.00 193,122.00 712,690.00 611,618.00 188,081.00 799,699.00 12.2%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 791,935.00 238,280.00 1,030,215.00 832,034.00 237,492.00 1,069,526.00 3.8%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 302,471.00 302,471.00 0.00 260,320.00 260,320.00 -13.9%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,602,852.00 2,583,437.00 4,186,289.00 1,811,862.00 2,739,725.00 4,551,587.00 8.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 79,170.00 1,109,662.00 1,188,832.00 0.00 1,235,018.00 1,235,018.00 3.9%

PERS 3201-3202 390,062.00 636,100.00 1,026,162.00 478,986.00 695,244.00 1,174,230.00 14.4%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 131,788.00 269,304.00 401,092.00 147,592.00 272,703.00 420,295.00 4.8%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 350,634.00 751,022.00 1,101,656.00 361,057.00 810,919.00 1,171,976.00 6.4%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 20,849.00 38,604.00 59,453.00 10,328.00 33,436.00 43,764.00 -26.4%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 61,500.00 189,967.00 251,467.00 63,758.00 192,539.00 256,297.00 1.9%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 12,950.00 0.00 12,950.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 -22.8%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,046,953.00 2,994,659.00 4,041,612.00 1,071,721.00 3,239,859.00 4,311,580.00 6.7%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 168,127.00 437,634.00 605,761.00 146,613.00 269,798.00 416,411.00 -31.3%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 35,804.00 212,910.00 248,714.00 42,538.00 47,475.00 90,013.00 -63.8%

Food 4700 0.00 74,679.00 74,679.00 0.00 85,093.00 85,093.00 13.9%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 203,931.00 725,223.00 929,154.00 189,151.00 402,366.00 591,517.00 -36.3%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 170,000.00 170,000.00 New

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 68,538.00 96,427.00 164,965.00 68,538.00 80,123.00 148,661.00 -9.9%

Dues and Memberships 5300 44,274.00 5,072.00 49,346.00 44,674.00 4,000.00 48,674.00 -1.4%

Insurance 5400 - 5450 122,910.00 0.00 122,910.00 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 22.0%

Page 29 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 9 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 129,603.00 11,586.00 141,189.00 129,603.00 11,586.00 141,189.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 100,188.00 28,222.00 128,410.00 101,740.00 28,222.00 129,962.00 1.2%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 (87,395.00) 87,395.00 0.00 (146,001.00) 146,001.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 (293,719.00) (444,811.00) (738,530.00) (308,823.00) (275,028.00) (583,851.00) -20.9%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating
Expenditures 5800 414,276.00 1,361,027.00 1,775,303.00 521,382.00 636,890.00 1,158,272.00 -34.8%

Communications 5900 141,789.00 10,938.00 152,727.00 108,228.00 9,538.00 117,766.00 -22.9%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 640,464.00 1,155,856.00 1,796,320.00 669,341.00 811,332.00 1,480,673.00 -17.6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 125,000.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 1,300,000.00 New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 30,186.00 20,744.00 50,930.00 130,486.00 0.00 130,486.00 156.2%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 155,186.00 20,744.00 175,930.00 1,430,486.00 0.00 1,430,486.00 713.1%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 30 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 10 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT
COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 (770,650.00) 770,650.00 0.00 (706,988.00) 706,988.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 (626,743.00) 0.00 (626,743.00) (621,793.00) 0.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS (1,397,393.00) 770,650.00 (626,743.00) (1,328,781.00) 706,988.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 600,000.00 0.00 600,000.00 New

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To State School Building Fund/County  School
Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Page 31 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 11 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital Assets 8953 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Other Sources

County  School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a- b + c - d + e) 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

Page 32 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 12 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Function

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 1000-1999 126,099.00 6,490,490.00 6,616,589.00 198,366.00 6,994,449.00 7,192,815.00 8.7%

2) Instruction - Related Serv ices 2000-2999 1,094,045.00 2,560,312.00 3,654,357.00 1,221,949.00 1,848,576.00 3,070,525.00 -16.0%

3) Pupil Serv ices 3000-3999 108,443.00 2,260,418.00 2,368,861.00 83,215.00 2,298,499.00 2,381,714.00 0.5%

4) Ancillary  Serv ices 4000-4999 10,300.00 63,549.00 73,849.00 500.00 30,205.00 30,705.00 -58.4%

5) Community  Serv ices 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) General Administration 7000-7999 1,142,089.00 1,012,745.00 2,154,834.00 1,313,539.00 731,988.00 2,045,527.00 -5.1%

8) Plant Serv ices 8000-8999 350,480.00 296,366.00 646,846.00 1,555,344.00 334,555.00 1,889,899.00 192.2%

9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 Except 7600-
7699 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 40,809.00 (309,166.00) (268,357.00) (802,306.00) (205,968.00) (1,008,274.00) 275.7%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 178,629.00 (137,626.00) 41,003.00 (402,274.00) 0.00 (402,274.00) -1,081.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

Page 33 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 13 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Function

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 4,016,952.00 50,168.00 4,067,120.00 -9.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 33,731.86 33,731.86 0.00 50,168.00 50,168.00 48.7%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments (by  Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments (by  Resource/Object) 9780 3,634,270.51 0.00 3,634,270.51 3,184,408.00 0.00 3,184,408.00 -12.4%

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00 0.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,042,491.51 3,042,491.51 0.00

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 0.00 316,799.00 316,799.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 0.00 2,592,609.00 2,592,609.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 777,252.00 0.00 777,252.00 832,044.00 0.00 832,044.00 7.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 14 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Restricted Detail

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Resource Description
2021-22

Estimated Actuals
2022-23
Budget

5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch,
School Breakf ast, Milk, Pregnant & Lactating Students) 33,731.86 50,168.00

Total, Restricted Balance 33,731.86 50,168.00

Page 35 of 155



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 155



Page 37 of 155



Page 38 of 155



Page 39 of 155



Page 40 of 155



Page 41 of 155



Page 42 of 155



Page 43 of 155



Page 44 of 155



Page 45 of 155



Page 46 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference See supporting spreadsheets 2024-25 Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 3,612,124$             -                          194,332                  3,806,456$             194,332                  5.38% -                          153,020                  3,959,476               153,020              4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,562,278$             -                          -                          1,562,278$             -                          0.0% -                          -                          1,562,278               -                      0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,340,143$             -                          -                          5,340,143$             -                          0.0% -                          -                          5,340,143               -                      0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 5,118,066$             -                          160,523                  5,278,589$             160,523                  3.1% -                          150,002                  5,428,591               150,002              2.8%

       TOTAL REVENUES 15,632,611$           -$                        354,855$                15,987,466$           354,855                  -$                        303,022$                16,290,488$           303,022              

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,867,135$             73,007                    -                          4,940,142$             73,007                    1.5% 74,102 5,014,244               74,102                1.5%
    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,551,587$             68,274                    9,000                      4,628,861$             77,274                    1.7% 69,433 -                          4,698,294               69,433                1.5%
    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,311,580$             56,805                    2,000                      4,370,385$             58,805                    1.4% 37,366 -                          4,407,751               37,366                0.9%
            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 591,517$                -                          1,086                      592,603$                1,086                      0.2% -                          -                          592,603                  -                      0.0%
    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 1,480,673$             -                          (121,956)                 1,358,717$             (121,956)                 -8.2% -                          -                          1,358,717               -                      0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,430,486$             -                          (1,275,000)              155,486$                (1,275,000)              -89.1% -                          -                          155,486                  -                      0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700$                  -                          -                          29,700$                  -                          0.0% -                          -                          29,700                    -                      0.0%

7400-7499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (621,793)$               6,671                      846                         (614,276)$               7,517                      -1.2% 6,568                      -                          (607,708)                 6,568                  -1.1%

 
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 16,640,885$           204,756$                (1,384,024)$            15,461,617$           (1,179,268)              187,470$                -$                        15,649,087$           187,470              

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (1,008,274)$            (204,756)$               1,738,879               525,849$                (187,470)$               303,022                  641,401$                -$                    
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 606,000$                -                          (600,000)                 6,000$                    (600,000)                 -99.0% -                          -                          6,000                      -                      0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 606,000$                -$                        (600,000)$               6,000$                    (600,000)                 -$                        -$                        6,000$                    -                      

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (402,274)$                (204,756)$               1,138,879$              531,849$                (600,000)$               (187,470)$               303,022$                 647,401$                -$                    

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)  
    1. Beginning Balance 4,469,394$             4,067,120 4,598,969$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                        -$                        -$                        
       Ending Balance 4,067,120$               4,598,969$              5,246,370$             

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Econ Uncertanties 16,640,885$           832,044                  15,461,617             773,081                  15,649,087                                                 782,454                  

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Combined

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 47 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference 2024-25 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 424,019$                 -                           22,812                     446,831                   22,812                     5.38% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.38% -                           17,963                     464,794                   17,963               4.02% SSC Dashboard COLA 4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,562,278$             -                           -                           1,562,278                -                           0.0% -                           -                           1,562,278                -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,315,143$             -                           -                           5,315,143                -                           0.0% -                           -                           5,315,143                -                     0.0%

    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 4,760,564$             -                           160,523                   4,921,087                160,523                   3.4%  Billback SELPA to Districts -                           150,002                   5,071,089                150,002             3.0%  Billback SELPA to Districts 
-                           -                           -                           -                     

       TOTAL REVENUES 12,062,004$           -$                         183,335$                 12,245,339             -$                         167,965$                 12,413,304             167,965             

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,338,002                65,070                     -                           4,403,072                65,070                     1.5%  Step & Column 66,046                     4,469,118                66,046               1.5% Step & Column

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999                 2,739,725                      41,096                        9,000                 2,789,821                      50,096 1.8%  Step & Column; ELO 41,847                                     2,831,668                41,847 1.5% Step & Column

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,239,859                43,855                     2,000                       3,285,714                45,855                     1.4%
 PERS decrease;
step & column; ELO 32,296                     3,318,010                32,296               1.0%

 PERS decrease;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 402,366                   1,086                       403,452                   1,086                       0.3% 403,452                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 811,332                   -                           811,332                   -                           0.0% 811,332                   -                     0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700                     -                           29,700                     -                           0.0% 29,700                     -                     0.0%

7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 706,988                   10,501                     846                          718,335                   11,347                     1.6% 9,813                       -                           728,149                   9,813                 1.4%  ELO 
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,267,972$           160,523$                 12,932$                   12,441,427$           150,002$                 -$                         12,591,429$           150,002             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (205,968)$               (160,523)$               (196,087)$               (150,002)$               (178,125)$               
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 205,968                   (60,049)                    145,919                   (60,049)                    -29.2% 32,206                     178,125                   32,206               

-                           
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 205,968$                 -$                         (60,049)$                 145,919$                 (60,049)                    -$                         32,206$                   178,125$                 32,206               

E. Net Change to Fund Balance -$                          (160,523)$               (60,049)$                  (50,168)$                 (150,002)$               32,206$                    (0)$                           

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 50,168$                   50,168$                   (0)$                           
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                         
       Ending Balance 50,168$                     (0)$                            (0)$                           

salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% Other State 0.00%
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 65,070                     41,096                     Step & Col. 1.50% 66,046                     41,847                     
Indirect 7.00% Indirect 7.00%

19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
25.37% PERS -0.17% 25.20% PERS -0.60% 24.60%

in Restricted Ending Balance
STRS -                           STRS -                           
PERS (4,743)                      PERS (16,990)                    

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Restricted

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 48 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference 2024-25 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 3,188,105$             -                           171,520                   3,359,625                171,520                   0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.38% -                           135,057                   3,494,682                135,057             0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -$                         -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 25,000$                   -                           -                           25,000                     -                           0.0% -                           -                           25,000                     -                     0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 357,502$                 -                           -                           357,502                   -                           0.0% -                           -                           357,502                   -                     0.0%

-                           -                           -                           -                     
       TOTAL REVENUES 3,570,607$             -$                         171,520$                 3,742,127                -$                         135,057$                 3,877,184                135,057             

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 529,133                   7,937                       -                           537,070                   7,937                       1.5% Step & Column 8,056 -                           545,126                   8,056                 1.5%  Step & Column 

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,811,862                27,178                     -                           1,839,040                27,178                     1.5%  Step & Column 27,586 -                           1,866,626                27,586               1.5% Step & Column;

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,071,721                12,949                     -                           1,084,670                12,949                     1.2%
 PERS decrease;
step & column 5,070 -                           1,089,741                5,070                 0.5%

 PERS decrease;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 189,151                   -                           -                           189,151                   -                           0.0% -                           -                           189,151                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 669,341                   -                           (121,956)                 547,385                   (121,956)                 -18.2%  Removed 5th Street Office lease -                           -                           547,385                   -                     0.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,430,486                -                           (1,275,000)              155,486                   (1,275,000)              -89.1%
 Removed one-time 5th Street Office 
purchase -                           -                           155,486                   -                     0.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (1,328,781)              (3,831)                      -                           (1,332,612)              (3,831)                      0.3% Step & Column (3,245)                      -                           (1,335,856)              (3,245)                0.2% Step & Column
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,372,913$             44,234$                   (1,396,956)$            3,020,191$             37,467$                   -$                         3,057,658$             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
Difference (802,306)$               (44,234)$                 721,936                   (37,467)$                 819,526                   
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 606,000$                 -                           (600,000)                 6,000                       (600,000)                 -99.0%
 removed one-time Fund 17 transfer in for 
5th Street Office purchase -                           -                           6,000                       -                     0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 (205,968)                 -                           60,049                     (145,919)                 60,049                     -29.2% -                           (32,206)                    (178,125)                 (32,206)             11046654.2% -                                                                      

.
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 400,032$                 -$                         (539,951)$               (139,919)$               (539,951)                 -$                         (32,206)$                 (172,125)$               (32,206)             

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (402,274)$                (44,234)$                 (539,951)$                582,017$                 (37,467)$                 (32,206)$                  647,401$                 

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 4,419,226$             4,016,952 4,598,969$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements
       Ending Balance 4,016,952   4,598,969$              5,246,371$             

 salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% -                           -                           Other State 0.00% -                           -                           
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary increase 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increase 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 7,937                       27,178                     Step & Col. 1.50% 8,056                       27,586                     
Indirect 7.97% Indirect 7.97%

19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
25.37% PERS -0.17% 25.20% PERS -0.60% 24.60%

PY PY
STRS -                           STRS -                           
PERS (3,126)                      PERS (11,200)                    

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Unrestricted

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 49 of 155



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 

separately for revenues for the adult education 

programs. 

 

The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 

 

 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 

 

Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 

education purposes only; money received for 

programs other than adult education shall not be 

expended for adult education (Education Code 

sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 

Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 

direct instructional costs and direct support costs 

and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education has committed 

to the continued education of adult learners with 

this funding. 

Page 50 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 9700 102,137 

Revenue

5,662 5,662 5,662 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

4,940 4,940 4,940 7,556 8200 7,556 Federal Revenue

5,662 8300 5,662 Other State Revenue

8,753 8,753 8,753 8,753 8500 8,753 Other State Revenue

252,958 252,958 252,958 259,743 8600 262,567 Other Local Revenue

281,714 272,313 272,313 272,313 284,538 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

118,484 118,484 118,484 117,855 1100 34,479 Teacher Salaries

25,095 25,095 25,095 25,095 1300 21,859 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 142,950 143,579 143,579 143,579 56,338 

9,517 9,517 9,517 9,517 2100 18,024 Para Educator Salaries

19,033 19,033 19,033 19,033 2400 27,149 Clerical/Office Salaries

Total for Object 2000 28,550 28,550 28,550 28,550 45,173 

21,170 21,170 21,170 20,598 3100 12,316 STRS State Teachers Retirement

4,378 4,378 4,378 4,378 3200 6,888 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

11,123 11,123 11,123 14,519 3300 11,059 Social Security/Medicare

7,254 7,254 7,254 7,254 3400 7,275 Health & Welfare Insurance

5,446 5,446 5,446 5,420 3500 1,635 State Unemployment Insurance

8,284 8,284 8,284 8,225 3600 3,585 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 60,394 57,655 57,655 57,655 42,758 

10,862 10,862 10,862 17,312 4300 14,833 Materials and Supplies

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 4400 1,000 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 18,312 11,862 11,862 11,862 15,833 

4,692 4,692 4,692 4,692 5200 4,692 Travel/Conference

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 4 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 51 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

13,919 13,919 13,919 13,919 5700 20,133 Direct Costs Transfers

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5800 1,000 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 19,611 19,611 19,611 19,611 25,825 

6200 90,852 New Building/Improvement of

11,056 11,056 11,056 11,897 7300 7,759 Direct Support/indirect Costs

281,714 272,313 272,313 272,313 284,538 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 9700

Total for Fund 11

Starting Balance 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 102,137 

Revenue 272,313 272,313 272,313 281,714 284,538 

Expense 272,313 272,313 272,313 281,714 284,538 

Ending Balance Acct Type 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 0 

Calc Ending Balance 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 102,137 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 5 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 52 of 155



Page 53 of 155



Page 54 of 155



Page 55 of 155



Page 56 of 155



Page 57 of 155



Page 58 of 155



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 

 
The Child Development Fund is used to 

account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues to operate child development 

programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 

fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 

 State Preschool 

      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 

 Child Development Apportionments  

 Interest 

 Child Development Parent Fees 

  

 

The Child Development Fund may be used only 

for expenditures for the operation of child 

development programs. 

 

Page 59 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

150,418 266,483 266,483 266,483 9700 287,340 

Revenue

3,923,409 4,337,584 5,167,686 5,467,909 8200 4,839,343 Federal Revenue

4,310,489 4,372,864 5,081,418 5,106,245 8500 4,942,488 Other State Revenue

225,402 447,162 451,962 451,962 8600 314,566 Other Local Revenue

11,026,116 10,701,066 9,157,610 8,459,300 10,096,397 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

964,329 1,048,329 1,060,329 1,090,607 1100 1,935,582 Teacher Salaries

273,055 275,369 275,369 302,703 1300 376,381 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 1,393,310 1,335,698 1,323,698 1,237,384 2,311,963 

726,438 746,438 761,260 724,463 2100 2 Para Educator Salaries

261,064 261,064 266,268 276,704 2300 268,927 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

259,673 259,673 261,673 271,913 2400 273,757 Clerical/Office Salaries

390,025 390,025 393,731 407,675 2900 491,520 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 1,680,755 1,682,932 1,657,200 1,637,200 1,034,206 

411,011 421,649 421,649 435,860 3100 235,444 STRS State Teachers Retirement

381,958 390,748 392,394 402,847 3200 314,607 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

140,627 148,486 150,037 154,976 3300 123,310 Social Security/Medicare

283,614 305,001 306,001 307,102 3400 368,956 Health & Welfare Insurance

33,291 34,141 34,642 34,949 3500 16,588 State Unemployment Insurance

86,569 89,669 90,189 93,488 3600 89,754 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 1,429,222 1,394,912 1,389,694 1,337,070 1,148,659 

210,982 308,350 315,170 330,943 4300 266,772 Materials and Supplies

31,433 47,989 47,989 144,129 4400 133,847 Noncapitalized Equipment

62,681 62,681 62,681 69,381 4700 64,181 Food

Total for Object 4000 544,453 425,840 419,020 305,096 464,800 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 6 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 60 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

64,504 64,504 66,504 159,344 5200 159,316 Travel/Conference

13,816 13,416 13,416 13,416 5300 14,068 Dues/Memberships

1,732 1,732 1,732 3,509 5400 1,732 Property/Liab.Insurance

168,138 167,921 167,921 167,921 5500 167,301 Utilities

119,379 118,529 121,430 121,907 5600 133,028 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

607,174 607,174 614,111 724,611 5700 563,718 Direct Costs Transfers

2,435,109 2,663,273 4,070,044 3,769,630 5800 3,463,265 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

96,958 96,658 96,658 102,226 5900 70,373 Communications

Total for Object 5000 5,062,564 5,151,816 3,733,207 3,506,810 4,572,801 

154,999 6100 Land Improvements

28,286 6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 183,285 0 0 0 0 

498,798 535,136 610,213 614,846 7300 614,034 Direct Support/indirect Costs

10,908,435 10,601,411 9,057,955 8,522,358 10,146,463 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 9700

Total for Fund 12

Starting Balance 150,418 266,483 266,483 266,483 287,340 

Revenue 8,459,300 9,157,610 10,701,066 11,026,116 10,096,397 

Expense 8,522,358 9,057,955 10,601,411 10,908,435 10,146,463 

Ending Balance Acct Type 87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 0 

Calc Ending Balance 87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 237,274 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 7 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 61 of 155



Page 62 of 155



Page 63 of 155



Page 64 of 155



Page 65 of 155



Page 66 of 155



Page 67 of 155



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 

federal forest reserve funds received by offices 

of county superintendents for distribution to 

school districts and community college 

districts (Education Code Section 2300; 

Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 68 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 9700 35,358 

Revenue

41,354 41,354 41,354 41,354 8200 41,354 Federal Revenue

200 200 200 200 8600 200 Other Local Revenue

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 35,554 35,554 7200 35,554 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 7600 6,000 Other Financing Uses

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 9700

Total for Fund 16

Starting Balance 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 35,358 

Revenue 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Expense 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Ending Balance Acct Type 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 0 

Calc Ending Balance 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 35,358 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 8 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 69 of 155



Page 70 of 155



Page 71 of 155



Page 72 of 155



Page 73 of 155



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

 

 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 

Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 

the accumulation of General Fund money for 

general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 

purchases of large items such as copy 

machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 

hardware upgrades. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 74 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

897,911 886,181 886,181 886,181 9700 904,181 

Revenue

18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 8600 18,000 Other Local Revenue

Expense

7600 600,000 Other Financing Uses

Ending Balance

915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 9700

Total for Fund 17

Starting Balance 897,911 886,181 886,181 886,181 904,181 

Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 

Expense 0 0 0 0 600,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 0 

Calc Ending Balance 915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 322,181 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 9 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 75 of 155



Page 76 of 155



Page 77 of 155



Page 78 of 155



Page 79 of 155



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 

TRUST FUND 73 

 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 

or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 

that benefit individuals, private organizations, 

or other governments and under which neither 

principal nor income may be used for purposes 

that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 

trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 

covered by a formal trust agreement should be 

accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 

the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 

be expended only for the specific purposes of 

the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 

41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

70,346 69,160 69,160 69,160 9700 72,160 

Revenue

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 8600 3,000 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 9700

Total for Fund 73

Starting Balance 70,346 69,160 69,160 69,160 72,160 

Revenue 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 0 

Calc Ending Balance 73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 75,160 

Total for Org 001 - Colusa County Office of Education

Starting Balance 5,209,314 5,787,710 5,787,710 5,787,710 5,870,570 

Revenue 23,096,664 24,617,498 26,666,744 26,956,423 26,682,100 

Expense 23,041,805 24,546,995 26,340,159 26,776,738 27,713,440 

5,264,173 5,858,213 6,114,295 5,967,395 0 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 5,264,173 5,967,395 4,839,230 6,114,295 5,858,213 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 10 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 81 of 155



Page 82 of 155



Page 83 of 155



Page 84 of 155



Page 85 of 155



Page 86 of 155



Page 87 of 155



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88 of 155



Page 89 of 155



Page 90 of 155



Page 91 of 155



Page 92 of 155



Page 93 of 155



Page 94 of 155



Page 95 of 155



Page 96 of 155



Page 97 of 155



Page 98 of 155



Page 99 of 155



Page 100 of 155



Page 101 of 155



Page 102 of 155



Page 103 of 155



Page 104 of 155



Page 105 of 155



Page 106 of 155



Page 107 of 155



Page 108 of 155



Page 109 of 155



Page 110 of 155



Page 111 of 155



Page 112 of 155



Page 113 of 155



Page 114 of 155



Page 115 of 155



Page 116 of 155



Page 117 of 155



Page 118 of 155



Page 119 of 155



Page 120 of 155



Page 121 of 155



Page 122 of 155



Page 123 of 155



Page 124 of 155



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE (SACS) 
                                                                Fund –Resource-Year – Object – Goal – Function – School –Budget Rep-Type 
                                                                     X – XXXX – X – XXXX – XXXX – XXXX – XXX – XXXX-XXXX 

 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures (1000-1999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teacher’s Salaries 

1101 Teacher’s Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1105 Teacher’s Salaries – Substitutes 

1150 Teacher’s Salaries – Extended Session 

1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Regular 

1201 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1300 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators – Regular 

1311 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators’ – Extra 

1320 Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1330 Assistant Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1901 Other Certificated Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries 

 2100 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Regular 

2101 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2102 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Temps 

2105 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Substitutes 

2106 Instructional Aides’ Salaries - Overtime 

2150 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extended Session 

2200 Classified Support Salaries – Regular 

2205 Class Support Salaries – Subs 

2206 Classified Support Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2250 Classified Support Salaries – Extended Session 

2300 Classified Supervisors’ & Administrators’ Sal. – Reg. 

2316 Classified Spvr & Admin Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2320 Classified Superintendent Salaries – Regular 

2400 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Regular 

2405 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Substitutes 

2406 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2900 Other Classified Salaries – Regular 

2901 Other Class Salaries Extra/Stipends 

2905 Other Classified Salaries – Substitutes 

2906 Other Classified Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2920 Naturalists’ Salaries – Regular 

2930 Student Help Salaries – Regular 

2950 Other Classified Salaries – Extended Session 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

31XX State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

3101 STRS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3102 STRS on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

32XX Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

3201 PERS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures, Continued 

 3202 PERS  on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

33XX Social Security (OASDI)/FICA-MED/Alternate 

3311 OASDI on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3312 OSADI on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3321 FICA-MED on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3322 FICA-MED on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3331 Alternate Retirement on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3332 Alternate Retirement on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

34XX Health & Welfare Benefits 

3411 Health & Welfare on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3412 Health & Welfare on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

35XX State Unemployment Insurance 

3501 State Unemploy Ins. on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3502 State Unemploy Ins. On Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

36XX Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

3601 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3602 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

37XX Retiree Benefits 

3711 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3712 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

3751 OPEB Active Employee-Certificated (object 1XXX) 

3752 OPEB Active Employee-Classified (object 2XXX) 

39XX Other Benefits 

3911 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Cert Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3912 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Class Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3941 Employer Paid Dues-Certificated 

3942 Employer Paid Dues 

4000-4999 Books & Supplies 

4100 Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 

4200 Books Other Than Textbooks & Reference Materials 

4310 Materials & Supplies 

4340 Printing Expense 

4381 Diesel 

4400 Non-Capitalized Equipment 

4700 Food (Food Services) 

    

Page 125 of 155



 

5000-5999 Services & Other Operating Expenses 
 

5100 Sub-Agreements for Services 

5200 Travel & Conferences 

5201 Directors Council Meetings 

5202 Directors Other Travel/Conference 

5205 SPAC Conference 

5206 Other SPAC Conference 

5300 Dues & Memberships 

5400 Insurance 

5450 Other Insurance 

5500 Operations & Housekeeping Services 

5510 Water/Sewage 

5515 Pest Control 

5520 Gas/Heating Oil/Electric 

5570 Disposal Services 

5580 Laundry/Dry Cleaning 

5600 Rental, Lease & Repairs & Non-Capitalized Improvements 

5610 Equipment Rental/Lease 

5620 Facilities Rental/Lease 

5640 Contracts/Service Agreements 

5660 Equipment Repair 

5670 Vehicle Expense 

5680 Building Repairs 

5710 Direct Support Costs for Inter-program Services 

5712 Inter-program Transportation 

5713 Inter-program Contracts 

5750 Direct Costs for Interfund Services 

5751 Interfund Transportation 

5800 Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expend. 

5803 Printing (Outside Services) 

5807 Stipends to Non-Employees 

5808 Documented Reimbursable Expenses to Consultants 

5809 Contracted Services 

5810 Legal Expense 

5815 Contracted Services Outdoor Education 

5817 Pupil Transport Outdoor Education 

5820 Audit Expense 

5835 Security Service 

5842 Advertisements 

5843 Tuberculosis (TB) Testing 

5844 Fingerprinting 

5860 Federal Interest on Loans 

5885 Tuition and License Reimbursements 

5891 Data Processing Services 

5900 Communications 

5930 Postage 

5940 Telephone 

5941 Telephone Data Lines 

5943 Cell Phones 
 

5944 Internet Charges 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

6100 Land 

6110 Acquisition of Sites 

6111 Appraisals 

6112 Title/Escrow Costs 

6113 Surveys 

6170 Land Improvements 

6200 Buildings & Improvement of Buildings 

6210 New Construction 

6211 Building Purchases 

6218 Assessment & Fees 

6220 Improvements (Remodeling) 

6230 Relocatable Portables 

6281 Architect/Engineering Fees 

6282 Inspectors 

6283 Tests 

6284 Legal Fees 

6400 Equipment 

6401 Capital Leased Equipment Less Than $5,000 

6500 Equipment Replacement 

7000-7999 Other Outgo 

7100-7199 Tuition 

7141 Other Tuition Excess Costs to Districts 

7200-7299 Other Transfers Out 

7211 Transfer of Pass-Through Revenues to Districts 

7212 Transfer Pass-Thru Revenue CO OF 

7221 Transfer of Apportionments to Districts 

7222 Transfer of Apportionments County Office 

7281 All Other Transfers to Districts 

7299 All Other Transfers Out 

7300-7500 Direct Support / Indirect Costs 

7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Inter-program Charges 

7350 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Interfund Charges 

7438 Debt Service - Interest 

7439 Debt Service -Principal 

7600-7629 Interfund Transfers Out 

7611 From General Fund to Child Development Fund 

7615 Between General Fund/Special Bldg to Deferred Maint 

7619 Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 

Page 126 of 155



8010-8999 LCFF Sources 

8010-8019 Principle Apportionments 

8011 LCFF - Current Year 

8012 Education Protection Account (EPA) – Current Year 

8019 LCFF – Prior Year 

8020-8039 Tax Relief Subventions 
 

8021 Homeowners’ Exemption 
 

8029 Other Subventions/In-Lieu Tax 
 

8040-8089 County & District Taxes 
 

8041 Secured Tax Rolls 
 

8042 Unsecured Tax Rolls 

8043 Prior Years’ Taxes 

8044 Supplemental Taxes 

8045 Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 
 

8047 Community Redevelopment Funds 

8090-8099 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8091 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8096 Transfers to Charters in Lieu 

8097 Property Taxes Transfers 

8100-8299 Federal Revenues 
 

8181 Special Education Entitlement 
 

8182 Special Education Discretionary Grants 
 

8220 Child Nutrition Programs 
 

8270 Flood Control Funds 
 

8285 Interagency Contracts Between Local Educ Agencies (LEAs) 

 

8287 Pass-Through from Federal Sources 
 

8290 All Other Federal Revenues 
 

8300-8900 Other State Revenues 
 

8311 Other State Apportionments for Current Year 
 

8319 Other State Apportionments for Prior Year 
 

8520 Child Nutrition 
 

8530 Child Development Apportionments 
 

8540 Deferred Maintenance Allowance 
 

8545 School Facilities Apportionment 
 

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 
 

8560 State Lottery Revenue 
 

8587 Pass-Through Revenue from State Sources 
 

8590 All Other State Revenues 
 

8625 Community Redevelopment Fund Not Sub-Rev Limit 
 

8631 Sale of Equipment / Supplies 
 

8634 Food Service Sales 
 

8639 All Other Sales 
 

8650 Rentals & Leases 
 

8660 Interest 
 

8674 In-District Premiums/Contributions 
 

8677 Interagency Services Between Local Educ Agency (LEAs) 

8689 Other Fees/Contract Services 

8699 All Other Local Revenues 
 

8710 Other Tuition 
 

8781 All Other Transfer from District/Charter 
 

8782 All Other Transfer From COE 
 

8791 Transfer of Appt from Districts 
 

8792 Transfer of Apportionment from County Office 
 
8910-8979 Other Financing Sources 
 

8910-8929 Interfund Transfers In 
 

8911 To Child Development/From General Fund 
 

8912 Between General Fund & Special Reserve Fund 
 

8914 To General Fund/From Bond Interest & Red 
 

8915 From General Fund/Special Building to Deferred Maint 
 

8916 To Cafeteria Fund/From General Fund 
 

8919 Other Interfund Transfers In 
 
8931-8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8931 Emergency Apportionments 
 

8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 
 

8953 Proceeds from Sale/Lease Purchase of Land & Buildings 
 

8965 Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorg LEA’s 

8971 Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

8972 Proceeds from Capital Leases 
 

8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8980-8999 Contributions 
 

8980 Contribution from Unrestricted Resources 
 

8981 Contributions/Subsidies 
 

8990 Contributions/Transfers from Restricted/Unrestricted 

Page 127 of 155



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2022-23 BUDGET 
Acronyms 

 

 

A 
AAP Affirmative Action Plan 

 
AASA American Association of School Administrators 

 
AB Assembly Bill 

 
AC Administrative Code 

 
ACA Assembly Concurrent Amendment/Affordable Care Act 

 
ACE Assessments in Career Education 

 
ACEI Association of Childhood Education International 

 
ACR Assembly Concurrent Resolution 

 
ACSA Association of California School Administrators 

 
ACT American College Test 

 
ADA Average Daily Attendance or American with Disabilities 

Act 
ADM Administration 

 
ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution 

ADT Adolescent Day Treatment 

AEBG Adult Education Block Grant 

AED Automatic External Defibrillators 
 

AFDC Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
 

AFSCME American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees 

AFT American Federation of Teachers 
 

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 
 

AIR American Institutes for Research 
 

ALICE Alert, Lockdown, Inform, Counter, Evacuate 
 

ALWS Association of Low Wealth Schools 
 

AMO Annual Measurable Objective 

AMS American Management System 

AP Advanced Placement 

APE Adapted Physical Education 
 

APE-AVID Advanced Placement Expansion - AVID 

API Academic Performance Index 

APIP Advanced Placement Incentive Program 

 
 
APR Accountability Progress Report 
 
AR Accounts Receivable 
 
ARISE Addiction Research and Investigation for Science 

Educators 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
 
ASAM Alternative Schools Accountability Model 
 
ASBO Association of School Business Officials (National) 

ASCC Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 

ASCD Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development 
 
ASES After School Education and Safety Program 

ASET Academy for Special Education Teachers 

ATC Administrative Training Center 

AU Administrative Unit of a SELPA 

AV Audio Visual or Assessed Value 

AVEC Adult and Vocational Education Council 

AVID Advancement Via Individual Determination 

AYP Adequate Yearly Progress 

B 
BBA Bipartisan Budget Act 
 
BCLAD Bilingual, Crosscultural, Language, and Academic 

Development 
BCP Budget Change Proposal 
 
BCRF Beverage Container Recycling Fund 
 
BD Behavior Disorder 
 
BEA Business Education Alliance 
 
BFA Building Futures Academy 
 
BIIG Broadband Infrastructure Improvement Grant 
 
BOOF Betting on our Future 
 
BRC Budget Review Committee 
 
BRL Base Revenue Limit 
 
BTSA Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment 
 
BTTP Bilingual Teacher Training Program 

 

 
 

Page 128 of 155



BUDGET – ACRONYMS – PAGE 1 

Page 129 of 155



 
 

C 
CAASPP California Assessment of Student Performance and 

Progress 
CABE California Association for Bilingual Education CAC

 Community Advisory Committee or California 

CACE California Association for Compensatory Education 

CADS Consolidated Application Data System 

CADPE California Alcohol-Drug Prevention Education 

CAEH California Arts Education Association 

CAHSEE California High School Exit Exam 

CalCRN California Career Resource Network 
 

CalMHSA California Mental Health Services Authority 
 

CALPADS California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
 

Cal-Safe California School Age Families Education 
 

Cal-OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Act CalPERS

 California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

CalSTAT California Services for Technical Assistance and Training 

CalSTRS California State Teachers Retirement System 

CalTIDES California Longitudinal Teacher Integrated Data Education 
System 

CalWORKs California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
 

CAMSP California Mathematics and Science Partnership 
 

CAO Chief Administrative Office 
 

CAP California Assessment Program 
 

CAPA California Alternative Performance Assessment CAPIT

 Child Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment 

CAROC/P California Assoc of Regional Occupational Ctrs/Prgm. 

CARS Consolidated Application Reporting System 

CASBO California Association of School Business Officials 
 

CASCD California Association for Supervision and Curriculum 
Dev. 

CASE Computer Assisted Special Education 

CASEL Capitol Area Science Education Leaders 

CASH Coalition for Adequate School Housing 

CASEMIS California Special Education Management Info System 
 

CAT/6 California Achievement Tests, Sixth Edition Survey 

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
CBCAP Community Based Child Abuse Prevention 

CBEDS California Basic Education Data System 

CBEST California Basis Education Skills Test 

CBFRS Community Based Family Resource and Support 
 
CBO Chief Business Official 
 
CCAC Credential Counselors and Analysts of California 
 
CCC California Community Colleges or California Conservation 

Corps 
CCCP California Curriculum Consultant Project 
 
CCDF Center for Childcare and Development 
 
CCEE              California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

CCLPEP          California Civil Liberties Public Education Program 

CCMP             Central California Mathematics Project 

CCR Coordinated Compliance Review or California Code of 
Regulations 

CCS California Children’s Services CCSS

 Common Core State Standards 

CCSSO Council or Chief State School Offices 

CCPGP Childcare Professional Growth Project 
 
CCSESA Calif. County Superintendents Educational Services Assoc. 

CCTR Center Childcare & Development Fund 

CDD Child Development Division 
 
CDE California Department of Education 
 
CDRT Child Development Retention and Training 
 
CDT Children’s Day Treatment 
 
CEDR Center for Educational Development and Research 
 
CEL Centralized Eligibility List 
 
CELDT California English Language Development Test 

CELMS Centralized Eligibility List and Management System 

CFLP California Foreign Language Project 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
 
CFT California Federation of Teachers 

CH Communicatively Handicapped 

CH1 Chapter 1 Centralized Services 

Page 130 of 155



 
 

CH-SSP California History-Social Science Project 
 

CI Cognitively Impaired 
 

CIF California Interscholastic Federation 
 

CISC Curriculum and Instruction Steering Committee 
 

CLAD Cross-cultural, Language, and Academic Development 
 

CLMP California Language Minority Project 

CLRN California Learning Resource Network 

CLP California Literature Project 

CLPC Child Development Local Planning Council 
 

CLTA California Foreign Language Teachers Association 
 

CMEA California Music Educators Association 
 

CMIS Compliance Monitoring, Interventions, and Sanctions 
 

CNIPS Child Nutrition Information Payment System 
 

COE County Office of Education 

COLA Cost of Living Adjustment 

CON APP Consolidated Application 

COP Certificate of Participation 

COSA California Outdoor School Administrators 
 

COSP County Operated Schools and Programs 
 

CPDP/C California Professional Development Program/Consortium 
 

CPEC California Postsecondary Education Commission 
 

CPI Consumer Price Index 
 

CPIN California Preschool Instructional Network 
 

CPR California Performance Review 
 

CPS Child Protective Services 
 

CREEC Calif. Regional Environmental Education Community 
 

CSAC California Student Aid Commission CSAM

 California School Accounting Manual 

CSBA California School Boards Association 

CSCI California Services Communities Initiative 

CSDC California Staff Development Council 

CSEA California Schools Employees Association 

CSET California Subject Examination for Teachers 

CSF California Scholarship Federation 
 
CSFG Charter School Facility Grant 
 
CSIN California Science Implementation Network 
 
CSIS California School Information Studies 

CSLA California School Leadership Academic 

CSMP California Subject Matter Projects 

CSPDAC Comprehensive System of Personnel Development 
Advisory Committee 

CSPP California State Preschool Program 
 
CSR Class Size reduction or Comprehensive School Reform 
 
CSSC California State Steering Committee 
 
CST California Standard Test 
 
CSTP California Standards for the Teaching Profession 
 
CTA California Teachers Association 
 
CTAP California Technical Assistance Project 

CTBS Comprehensive Tests of Basic Skills 

CTC Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

CTE Career Technical Education 

CTEC Career and Technical Education Center CTEI

 Comprehensive Teacher Education Institute 

CTEIG Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

CTEL California Teachers of English Learners 

CTKS California Transitional Kindergarten Stipend 

CTO Compensatory Time Off 

CTP California Technology Project 
 
CSCI California Service Communities Initiative 
 
CWA Child Welfare and Attendance 
 
CYA California Youth Authority 
 

D 
DAC District Advisory Council 
 
DAIT District Assistance and Intervention Team 
 
DATE Drug Alcohol Tobacco Education 

DBE Developmental Bilingual Education 

DCA Discovery Challenge Academy 

Page 131 of 155



 
 

DFS Drug Free Schools Consortium 
 

DFW Drug Free Workplace 
 

DGS Department of General Services 
 

DIS Designated Instruction and Services 

DMP Deferred Maintenance Program 

DOE Department of Education 

DOF Department of Finance 
 

DOL Department of Labor 
 

DPJPA Data Processing Joint Power Agreement 
 

DPS Dropout Prevention Specialist 

DSA Division of the State Architect 

DSP Direct Support Professional 

DSS Department of Social Services 

DSSDs Direct Service School Districts 

DSSP Delta Sierra Science Project 

DWAS Dinner with a Scientist 

E 
EAAP Education Audit Appeals Panel 

 
EAF Educational Activity Field 

 
EC Education Code 

 
ECA Education Consolidation Act 

 
ECE Early Childhood Education 

 
ECIA Early Consolidation and Improvement Act (Ch I/II) 

ED Emotionally Disturbed 

EDD Employment Development Department 
 

EDGAR Education Department General Administrative Regulation 
 

ED-JOIN Education Job Opportunities Information Network 
 

EDY Emotionally Disadvantaged Youth 
 

EEO Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

EEI Educational Environmental Initiative 
 

EH Educationally Handicapped 
 

EIA Economic Impact Aid 
 

EIBT Early Intervention Behavioral Treatment 

EL English Learner (Replaces ELL and LEP) 

ELA English Language Arts 

ELAC              English Language Advisory Committee 

ELAP              English Language Acquisition Program 

ELD                English Language Development 

EO English Only 
 
EPA Education Protection Account 
 
ERAF Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 
ERIC Educational Resources Information Center 
 
ERP Economic Recovery Payment or Emergency Repair Prog. 

ERT Economic Recovery Target 

ESC Educational Service Center 
 
ESEA Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
 
ESL English as a Second Language 

ESSA Every Student Succeeds Act 

ESY Extended School Year 

ETN Educational Technology Network 
 

F 
FAPE Free and Appropriate Public Education 
 
FCMAT Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team 

FDPIR Flood Distribution Program on Indian Reservations 

FELP Family English Literacy Program 

FEP Fluent English Proficient 
 
FERPA Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
 
FFA Future Farmers of America 

FHI Federal Handicapped Index 

FIT Forestry Institute for Teachers 

FLACC Foreign Language Association of Central California 
 
FPM Federal Program Monitoring 

FRN Family Resource Network 

FRPM Free and Reduced-Price Meals 

FRR Family Resource and Referral 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

Page 132 of 155



 
 

FYS Foster Youth Services 
 

G 
G2K Goals 2000 

 
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GAAS Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

GASB Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GATE Gifted and Talented Education 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 
 

GE Grade Equivalent or General Education 
 

GED General Education Diploma 

GEMS Great Expectations Math/Science 

GF General Fund 

GLOBE Global Learning and Observations to Benefit the Envir. 

GO General Obligation (Bond) 

GPA Governor’s Performance Award Program 
 

GRASP IT Gaining Results in After School Programs Innovatively & 
Tangibly (21st Century) 

GSA Grade Span Adjustment 
 

GVCC Greater Valley Conservation Corps 
 

H 
HSA Human Services Agency 

 
HILT High Intensity Language Training 

 
H3 Hearts, Heads, Hands 

 
HOH Hard of Hearing 

 
HR Human Resources 

 
HOUSSE High Objective Uniform State Standard of Evaluation 

 
HPSGP High Priority Schools Grant Program 

 
HQT Highly Qualified Teacher 

 
HRA Health Reimbursement Arrangement 

 
HAS Health Savings Account 

 
HSEE High School Exit Exam 

 
HUD Housing and Urban Development 

 

I 
IASA Improving America’s Schools Act 

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported (i.e., insurance claims) 

ICASE Improving Capitol Area Science and Engineering 

ID and R Identification and Recruitment 

IDA Inter-District Agreement 
 
IDEA Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 
IEI Intern Evaluation Instrument 
 
IEP Individual Education Plan 
 
IFSP Individual Family Service Plan 
 
IHSS In-Home Support Services 
 
II/USP Immediate Intervention/Underperforming Schools Program 
 
IIAE Institute for Information Age Education 
 
ILP Individual Learning Plan 
 
IME Institute for Mexican Education 
 
IMFRP Instructional Materials Fund Realignment Program 
 
IMPACT Teaching Programs 
 
IPS Instructional Personnel Service 
 
IRA International Reading Association 
 
ISGI Individual and Small Group Instruction 
 
IT Information Technology 
 
ITI Integrated Thematic Instruction 

IWENS Individuals With Exceptional Needs 

ITP Individual Transitional Plan 

J 
JACS Japanese American Confinement Sites 
 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement or Joint Powers Authority 
 
JTPA Job Training Partnership Act 
 

L 
LAIF Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
LAO Legislative Analyst’s Office 
 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
LCCPC Local Childcare Commission Planning Council 
 
LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 

Page 133 of 155



 
 

LCPC Local Childcare Planning Council 
 

LCI Licensed Children’s Institution 
 

LD Learning Disability 
 

LDS Language Development Specialist 
 

LEA Local Education Agency 
 

LEP Limited English Proficient (EL Replaces ELL and LEP) 

LEP/NES Limited English Proficient/Non-English Speaking 

LGFC Local General Fund Contribution 
 

LH Learning Handicapped 
 

LHS Language Hearing Specialist 
 

LPP Lease Purchase Program 
 

LSH Language, Speech and Hearing 
 

M 
MAA Medi-CAL Administrative Agency 

 
M and O Maintenance and Operations 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MEES Migrant Education Even Start 

MEP Migrant Education Program 

MH Mental Health 
 

MIIEO Migrant Indian and International Education Office 
 

MSA Minimum State Aid 
 

MTTI Multi-District Teacher Training Institute 

MTYRE Multi-Track Year-Round Education 

MYP Multiyear Projection 

N 
NAEP National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
NBCT National Board Certified Teacher 

 
NCCRAHS National Children’s Center for Rural and Agricultural 

Health and Safety 
NCES National Center for Education Statistics 

NCFL National Center for Family Literacy 

NCLB No Child Left Behind 

NCMTC Northern California Media and Technology Consortium 
 

NEA National Education Association 

NEIS National Evaluation and Information System 
 
NGSS Next Generation Science Standards 

NON-RIS Non-Requiring Intensive Service 

NP National Percentile 

NPA Non-Public Agency 
 
NPS Non-Public Schools 
 
NPS/A Non-Public Schools/Agencies 
 
NSBA National Scholl Boards Association 
 
NSS Necessary Small Scholl or Necessary Small SELPA 

NTE National Teachers’ Examination 

O 
OAL Office of Administrative Law 
 
OCR Office of Civil Rights 
 
OH Orthopedically Handicapped 
 
OLA Office of Local Assistance 
 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
 
OME Office of Migrant Education OPEB

 Other Postemployment Benefits 

OPSC Office of Public School Construction 

OSA Office of State Architect 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
 
OSE Office of the Secretary for Education 
 
OT Occupational Therapy 
 

P 
P-1 First Principal (Apportionment) 
 
P-2 Second Principal (Apportionment) 

PAR Peer Assistance and Review 

PARS Public Agency Retirement Services 
 
PC Penal Code 
 
PCA Project Cost Account 
 
PCSGPS Public Charter School Grant Programs   _ 

PDBG Professional Development Block Grant 

PDC Professional Development Center 

Page 134 of 155



 
 

PE Physical Education 
 

PEI Prevention and Early Intervention 
 

PENT Positive Environment Network of Trainers 

PEPRA Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 

PERB Public Employees Relations Board 

PERS Public Employees Retirement System 
 

PFS Priority for Services 
 

PFT Physical Fitness Test 
 

PH Physically Handicapped 

PI Program Improvement 

PIC Private Industry Council 

PKFLP Pre-Kindergarten & Family Literacy Program 
 

PKS Particular Kinds of Services 
 

PL Public Law (Federal Law) 
 

PL 81-874 Public Law 81-874 (Federal Impact Aid) 
 

PL 94-192 Public Law 94-192 (Special Education Mandate 
Legislation) 

PMAT Personal Management Assistance Team 

PMIA Pooled Money Investment Account 

PMIB Pooled Money Investment Board 

PNCC Project Navigation Construction Change 
 

PO Probation Officer 
 

PPACA Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
 

PQR Program Quality Review 
 

PRSP Pension Rate Stabilization Plan 
 

PSA Private School Affidavit 
 

PSAA Public Schools Accountability Act 
 

PT Physical Therapy 
 

PTA Parent Teacher Association 
 

PTSA Parent/Teacher/Student Association 
 

PTTP Paraprofessional Teacher Training Program 
 

Q 
QEIA Quality Education Investment Act 

 
QRIS Quality Rating and Improvement System 

QSCB Quality School Construction Bonds 
 
QZAB Qualified Zone Academy Bond 
 

R 
RCC Regional Coordinating Council 
 
RDA Redevelopment Agency 
 
REACH Running to Embrace Attitudes, Confidence and Health 
 
REAP Rural Education Achievement Program 

REU Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

RFA Request for Application 

RFP Request for Proposal 
 
RIC Reading Implementation Center 
 
RIS Requiring Intensive Services 
 
RISE Rural Improvements in Science Education 
 
RLA Reading/Language Arts 
 
ROC/P Regional Occupation Center/Program RRMA

 Routine Restricted Maintenance Account 

RSDSS Regional System of District and School Support 

RSP Resource Specialist Program 

RSSIC Regional School Support and Improvement Center 
 
RTI Responses to Intervention 
 
RTTT Race To The Top 
 
RWPEDA Regional Workforce Preparation & Economic 

Development 
RTAC Regional Technical Assistance Center 
 

S 
S4 Statewide System of School Support 
 
SAB State Allocation Board 
 
SAC School Advisory Council 
 
SACS Standardized Account Code Structure 

SAIB Special Alternative Instructional Program 

SAIT Student Assistance and Intervention Team 

SAPID School Age Parenting and Infant Development 
 
SARB School Attendance Review Board 
 
SARC School Accountability Report Card 

Page 135 of 155



 
 

SART School Attendance Review Team 
 

SAT Scholastic Aptitude Test 
 

SAT-9 Stanford Achievement Test-9, Ninth Edition, Form T 

SB 1274 Senate Bill 1274 School/District Restructuring 

SAYES Seniors Assisting Youth Engaged in Service 

SB Senate Bill 
 

SBAC Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium 
 

SBCP School Based Coordinated Program 
 

SBE State Board of Education 
 

SCA Senate Constitutional Amendment 

SCE State Compensatory Education 

SCI OLY Science Olympiad 

SCO State Controller’s Office 
 

SCPP School Community Policing Partnership 
 

SCR Senate Concurrent Resolution 
 

SDC Special Day Class 
 

SDE State Department of Education 
 

SDI State Disability Insurance 

SEA State Education Agency 

SEE School Energy Efficiency 

SED Severely Emotional Disturbed 
 

SEIA Special Education Information System 

SEIU Service Employees International Union 

SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 

SERAF Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 

SES Socioeconomic Status 
 

SETPD Special Education Teachers Professional Development 
 

SFID School Facility Improvement District 
 

SFP School Facility Program 
 

SFSD School Fiscal Services Division of CDE 

SFSF State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 

SH Severely Handicapped (Disabled) 

SI Speech Impaired 

SIMMS Secondary Integration of Modeling in Math & Science 
 
SIG School Improvement Grant 
 
SIP School Improvement Program 
 
SJCCFC San Joaquin County Children and Families Commission 
 
SJCOE San Joaquin County Office of Education 
 
SJR Senate Joint Resolution SLC

 School Leadership Center 

SLD Specific Learning Disability 

SLIBG School and Library Improvement Block Grant 
 
SMI Serious Mental Illness 
 
SMP Subject Matter Project 
 
SMAA School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
 
SOLH Severe Oral Language Handicapped SPI

 Superintendent of Public Inspection 

SPSA Single Plan for Student Achievement 

SPURR School Project for Utility Rate Reduction 

SR Senate Resolution 

SRDC School Readiness District Coordinator 
 
SSC School Site Council 
 
SSI/SSP Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary 

Payment 
SSPI State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
 
SSR Support Service Ratio 
 
SST Student Study Team; also, Student Success Team 
 
STAR Standardized Testing and Reporting 
 
STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics 
 
STRS State Teachers Retirement System 
 
SWP Schoolwide Program 
 
SYEP Summer Youth Employment Program 
 

T 
TAG Technical Advisory Group 
 
TAH Teaching American History 
 
TANF Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
 
TAP Teacher Apprentice Program or Teaching as a Priority 

Page 136 of 155



 
 

TAPE Technical Assistance for Program Effectiveness 
 

TAS Targeted Assistance School 
 

TBE Transitional Bilingual Education 
 

TBI Traumatic Brain Injury 
 

TCSJ Teachers College of San Joaquin 
 

THG Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
 

TK Transitional Kindergarten 
 

TLC Transitional Learning Center 
 

TOPS Teaching Opportunities for Partners in Science 
 

TPE Teacher Performance Expectations 

TRANs Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 

TUPE Tobacco Use Prevention Education 

U 
UOP University of the Pacific 

 
UPP Unduplicated Pupil Percentage 

 
UR Unit Rate 

 
USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

 

V 
VAFS Venture Academy Family of Schools 

VALT Valley Language of Language Teachers 

VEA Vocational Education Act 

VH Visually Handicapped 
 

VMRC Valley Mountain Regional Center 
 

VOIP Voice Over Internet Protocol 
 

VQ Vision Quest 
 

W 
WASC Western Association of Schools and Colleges 

 
WEC Wentworth Education Center 

WIA Workforce Instrument Act 

WIC Welfare and Institutions Code 

WIC-R Writing Inquiry Collaboration - Reading 
 

WSF Weighted Student Formula 

Y 
YRE Year-Round Education 
 
YRS Year-Round Schools 

Page 137 of 155



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2022-23 Glossary of Terms 
 

A 
 

Abatement. A complete or partial cancellation of an expenditure or revenue. 
 

Abatement of expenditures. Cancellation of part or all of a charge previously made, usually 
because of refunds, rebates, resale of materials originally purchased by the local educational 
agency (LEA), or collections for loss or damage to the LEA’s property. An abatement of 
expenditure applies to current expenditures and capital outlay expenditures from all funds. 

 

Abatement of revenue. The cancellation of all or some part of any specific revenue previously 
recorded. 

 

Accounting period. A period of time for which records are maintained and at the end of 
which financial statements are prepared covering the period. 

 

Account numbers or letters. Numbers and/or letters that are assigned to the ordinary titles of 
accounts for classification of accounts and ease of reference. 

 

Accounts payable. Amounts due and owed to private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not paid. Does not include amounts due to other funds of the 
same LEA. 

 

Accounts receivable. Amounts due and owed from private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not received. Does not include amounts due from other funds of 
the same LEA. 

 

Accrual basis. Method of accounting in which revenue is recorded when earned, even though it 
has not yet been collected, and in which expenses are recorded when the liabilities are 
incurred, even if they have not been paid yet. 

 

Accrued expenditures. Expenditures incurred during the current accounting period that are not 
paid until a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accrued revenue. Revenue earned during the current accounting period that is not collected until 
a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accumulated depreciation. A contra-asset account used to report the accumulation of 
depreciation. (See also Depreciation.) 

 

Actuarial basis. A method used in computing the amount of contributions to be made 
periodically to a fund so that the total contributions plus the compounded earnings thereon 
will equal the required payments to be made out of the fund. The factors taken into account 
in arriving at the amount include the length of time over which each collection or payment is 
to be made and the rate of return compounded on such amounts over its life. 

 

Ad valorem tax. A tax based on a percentage of the value of goods or services. 
 

Agency fund. A fund consisting of resources received and held by an LEA as an agent for others. 
 

Allocation. Division or distribution in accordance with a predetermined plan. 

Page 138 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Allowable costs. Costs that meet the specific criteria of a granting agency. 
 

Allowance. A provision for valuing an asset at net, such as an allowance for bad debts. The 
allowance for bad debts would be deducted from accounts receivable to reflect the 
receivables that are likely to be collectable. 

 

Apportionment. Allocation of state or federal aid, district taxes, or other moneys among LEAs or 
other governmental units. 

 

Apportionment notice. A document notifying LEAs when moneys were deposited with the 
county treasurer. 

 

Appraisal. An estimate of property value made by the use of systematic procedures based 
on physical inspection and inventory, engineering studies, and other economic factors. 

 

Appropriation. An authorization, granted by the governing board, to make expenditures and to 
incur obligations for special purposes. An appropriation is usually limited in purpose, 
amount, and the time period during which it may be expended. 

 

Appropriation ledger. A subsidiary ledger containing an account for each appropriation. Each 
account usually shows the amount originally appropriated in the budget, budget increases or 
decreases during the year, expenditures, encumbrances, unencumbered balances, and other 
related information. 

 

Arbitrage. The profit earned (i.e., interest earnings in excess of interest costs) from the 
investments of the proceeds of lower-interest tax-exempt securities in higher yielding taxable 
securities. 

 

Assessed valuation. Value placed on personal and real property by a governmental unit for 
purposes of taxation. 

 

Assets. Resources that are held or owned by an LEA and that have monetary value. 
 

Audit. An examination of documents, records, and accounts for the purpose of (1) determining 
the propriety of transactions; (2) ascertaining whether all transactions are recorded properly; 
and (3) determining whether statements that are drawn from accounts reflect an accurate 
picture of financial operations and financial status for a given period of time. 

 

Audit finding. A weakness in internal controls or an instance of noncompliance with applicable 
laws and regulations that is presented in the audit report. 

 

Audit program. A detailed outline of work to be done and the procedures to be followed during 
an audit. 

 

Available cash. Cash that is on hand or on deposit in a given fund and that is unencumbered and 
can be used for meeting current obligations. 

 

Average daily attendance (ADA). Total approved days of attendance in the LEA divided by the 
number of days the schools in the LEA are in session for at least the required minimum day. 
(Refer to Education Code sections 46000–46014 and 46300–46380.) 

Page 139 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

B 
 

Balance sheet. A statement that shows the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or fund deficit of an entity at a specific date 
and that is properly classified to exhibit the financial condition of the entity as of that specific 
date. 

 

Basis of accounting. The time at which revenues, expenditures, transfers, and related assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are recognized in 
the accounts and are reported in the financial statements. 

 

Bond. A certificate containing a written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called the face 
value, at a fixed time in the future, called the date of maturity, and specifying interest at a 
fixed rate, usually payable periodically. 

 

Bond discount. The excess of the face value of a bond over the price for which it is acquired or 
sold. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonded debt. That portion of indebtedness represented by outstanding bonds. 
 

Bonded debt service. Expenditures for interest and redemption of bonds. 
 

Bond premium. The excess of the price at which a bond is acquired or sold over its face 
value. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonds authorized and unissued. Legally authorized bonds that have not been sold and that may 
be sold without further authorization. 

 

Book value. The cost or stated costs of assets less accumulated depreciation as shown by the 
books of accounts. 

 

Budget. A plan of financial operation consisting of an estimate of proposed revenue and 
expenditures for a given period and purpose. The term usually indicates a financial plan for a 
single fiscal year. 

 

Budgetary accounts. Those accounts that make it possible for a budgetary-type fund 
(governmental fund) to show how (1) estimated revenue and revenue realized to date 
compare; and (2) expenditures and encumbrances compare with appropriations during the 
fiscal period. The budgetary accounts are estimated revenues, appropriations, and 
encumbrances. 

 

Budgetary control. The management of financial transactions in accord with an approved plan of 
estimated revenue and expenditures. 

 

Budgeting. The process of allocating the available resources of an organization among 
potential activities to achieve the objectives of the organization; planning for the use of 
resources. 

 

Budget revision. Net increases and decreases to the budget. They may include increases due 
to new grant funds and decreases due to the need to reduce appropriations to keep 
spending within available revenues. 

Page 140 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Budget transfer. Changes among budgeted items. They do not increase or decrease the 
total budget. 

 

C 
 

Capital assets. See Fixed assets. 
 

Capital lease. A lease agreement that meets one or more of the following criteria is classified as 
a capital lease: 

 

x Ownership is transferred to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
x The agreement contains a “bargain purchase” option. 
x The lease agreement is 75 percent or more of the estimated useful life of the property. 
x The present value of the minimum lease payment is 90 percent or more of the fair 

market value of the property. 
 

Capital outlay. Amounts paid for fixed assets or additions to fixed assets, including land or 
existing buildings, the improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to 
buildings, remodeling of buildings, or initial and additional equipment. 

 

Capital projects funds. Funds established to account for financial resources that are to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

 

Cash. Currency, checks, postal and express money orders, and bankers’ drafts on hand or on 
deposit with an official or agent designated as custodian of cash and bank deposits. Any 
restriction or limitation as to the availability of cash should be indicated. 

 

Cash advance. Cash apportioned in advance of the usual apportionment period. 
 

Cash basis. Method of accounting in which revenue and expenditures are recorded only when 
cash is actually received or disbursed. The cash basis is not acceptable for use in LEAs. 

 

Cash collections awaiting deposit. Receipts on hand or moneys in a bank clearing account 
awaiting deposit in the county treasury. 

 

Cash discount. An allowance made on a purchase if payment is made within a stated 
period. (This term is not to be confused with trade discount.) 

 

Cash in bank. Balances in separate bank accounts, such as student body accounts, school farm 
accounts, and cafeteria accounts. 

 

Cash in county treasury. Cash balances on deposit in the county treasury for the various funds of 
the LEA. 

 

Categorical aid. Funds from state or federal sources that are in addition to the general-purpose 
funding to serve a specific pupil population or to provide specific services and activities. 
These funds have varying degrees of fiscal and program compliance requirements. 

 

Certificates of participation (COPs). A financing technique that provides long-term financing 
through a lease (with an option to purchase or a conditional sale agreement). 

Page 141 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Chart of accounts. A systematically arranged list of accounts that are applicable to a specific 
LEA. All account names and numbers, if any, are listed in numerical order. 

 

Check. A bill of exchange drawn on a bank and payable on demand; a written order on a bank to 
pay on demand a specific sum of money to a named person, to his or her order, or to a bearer 
out of money on deposit to the credit of the maker. A check differs from a warrant in that a 
warrant is not necessarily payable on demand and may not be negotiable; a check differs 
from a voucher in that a voucher is not an order to pay. A voucher-check combines the 
distinguishing characteristics of a voucher and a check; it shows the propriety of a payment 
and is an order to pay. 

 

Classification. The naming or identification of an item or a category, such as the designation of 
the particular account into which a receipt or an expenditure is to be recorded or the 
separation of data into acceptable groupings so that financial facts can be stated more 
clearly. 

 

Classroom unit (CU). The approximate area usually occupied by a classroom, varying from 800 
to 1,100 square feet but generally about 960 square feet. 

 

Clearing accounts. Accounts used to accumulate total receipts or expenditures for later 
distribution among the accounts to which such receipts or expenditures are properly 
allocable. 

 

Closing entries. Entries recorded at the end of each fiscal period to transfer the balances in the 
revenue and expenditure (or expense) accounts to the permanent equity accounts (fund 
balance or retained earnings) of an accounting entity. 

 

Code. (1) A distinguishing reference number or symbol; (2) a statement of the laws of a specific 
field (e.g., Education Code, Penal Code, Civil Code, and Labor Code). 

 

Compensated absences. Absences for which compensation is paid (e.g., vacation and sick leave). 
 

Component unit. An organization that is legally separate and for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of 
its relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Financial reporting consisting of three 
sections: (1) introductory section (general information on the LEA’s structure, services, and 
environment); (2) financial section (basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information, together with information on individual funds and discretely presented 
component units not reported separately in the financial statements); and (3) statistical 
section (trend and nonfinancial data useful in interpreting the basic financial statements). 

 

Contingent liabilities. Items that may become liabilities as a result of conditions undetermined at 
a given date (e.g., guarantees, pending lawsuits, judgments and appeals, and unsettled 
disputed claims). 

 

Contra account. An account to record offsetting transactions (e.g., abatements). 

Page 142 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Contract. An agreement between two or more people or entities to do something. Contracts are 
usually in writing and are enforceable by law. 

 

Contracted services. Expenditures for services rendered under contract by personnel who are not 
on the payroll of the LEA, including all related expenditures covered by the contract. 

 

Control account. A summary account, usually maintained in the general ledger, in which is 
entered the aggregate of the debit and the credit postings to a number of identical, similar, or 
related accounts called subsidiary accounts. Its balance equals the sum of the balances of the 
detail accounts. 

 

Cost. The amount of money or its equivalent value paid or agreed to be paid for property or 
services. Cost may be incurred even before money is paid; that is, as soon as a liability is 
assumed. Ultimately, however, money or its equivalent must be given in exchange. The cost 
of some property or service may in turn become part of the cost of another property or 
service. For example, the cost of materials will be reflected in the cost of articles made from 
such materials. 

 

County School Service Fund (CSSF). A fund established to control the financial operations 
of county offices of education. 

 

Credit. The right side of a double-entry posting. Credits will reduce assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, and expenditures and increase liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenue, 
and fund balance. 

 

Current assets. Assets that are available or can be made readily available to meet the cost of 
operations or to pay current liabilities. 

 

Current expense of education. The current general fund operating expenditures of an LEA for 
kindergarten and grades one through twelve, excluding expenditures for food services, 
community services, nonagency activities, fringe benefits for retired persons, acquisition and 
construction of facilities, and objects 6000 and 7000. 

 

Current liabilities. Amounts due and payable for goods and services received prior to the end of 
the fiscal year. Current liabilities should be paid within a relatively short period of time, 
usually within a year. 

 

Current loans. Loans payable in the same fiscal year in which the money was borrowed. 
 

D 
 

Debit. The left side of a double-entry posting. A debit will increase assets and expenditures and 
reduce liabilities, revenue, and fund balance. 

 

Debt limit. The maximum amount of legally permitted debt. 
 

Debt service. Expenditures for the retirement of debt and for interest on debt. 
 

Debt service funds. Funds established to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

Page 143 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Deficit. The amount by which a sum of money falls short of a required amount (e.g., 
apportionment deficits or budget deficits). 

 

Deficit financing. The amount to be provided when estimated expenditures exceed the estimated 
revenues. 

 

Deficit fund balance. The excess of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund over its 
assets and deferred outflows. 

 

Deficit spending. The excess of actual expenditures over actual revenues (also referred to as 
an operating deficit). 

 

Delinquent taxes. Taxes remaining unpaid after the close of the year in which levied. (See also 
Prior years’ taxes, in most cases the preferred term.) 

 

Depreciation. Estimated loss in value or service life of fixed assets because of wear and tear 
through use, elapse of time, inadequacy, or obsolescence. 

 

Direct expenses or costs. Expenses that can be separately identified and charged as parts of the 
cost of a product, service, or department. 

 

Direct support charges. Charges for a support program and services that directly benefit other 
programs. 

 

Disbursements. Payments by currency, check, or warrant. (The term is not synonymous with 
expenditures.) 

 

Double entry. A system of bookkeeping that requires an amount credited for every corresponding 
amount debited. Thus, the double-entry ledger maintains equality of debits and credits. 

 

E 
 

Earned interest revenue. A sum of money received or due to be received for the use of money 
loaned or invested. 

 

EDGAR (Education Department General Administrative Regulations). The regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Education incorporating certain circulars from the Office of Management 
and Budget. EDGAR is found in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, parts 75, 76, 77, 
79, 81, 82, 84, 86, 97, 98, and 99. It is defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, 
Part 77.1. 

 

Employee benefits. Amounts paid by the LEA on behalf of employees. These amounts are not 
included in the gross salary but are over and above. They are fringe-benefit payments; 
although not paid directly to employees, they are nevertheless part of the cost of salaries and 
benefits. Examples are (1) group health or life insurance payments; (2) contributions to 
employee retirement; (3) OASDI (Social Security) taxes; (4) workers’ compensation 
payments; and (5) payments made to personnel on sabbatical leave. 

 

Encroachment. The use of unrestricted moneys to support restricted program expenditures. 
 

Encumbrances. Obligations in the form of purchase orders, contracts, salaries, and other 
commitments chargeable to an appropriation for which a part of the appropriation is reserved. 

Page 144 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Enterprise funds. Funds used to account for those ongoing activities of the LEA that because 
of their income-producing character are similar to those found in the private sector. 

 

Entitlement. An apportionment that is based on specific qualifications or formula defined in 
statute. (This term should not be used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent 
balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Equity accounts. These accounts represent the difference between the assets and deferred 
outflows of resources and the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund. 

 

Estimated revenues. For revenue accounts kept on the accrual basis, this term designates the 
amount of revenue estimated to accrue during a given period regardless of whether all of it is 
to be collected during the period. 

 

Expendable trust fund. A trust fund in which principal and earnings may be expended. 
 

Expenditures. The costs of goods delivered or services rendered, whether paid or unpaid, 
including expenses, provision for debt retirement not reported as a liability of the fund 
from which retired, and capital outlay. 

 

Expenses. Charges incurred, whether paid or unpaid, for operations, maintenance, interest, and 
other charges that are presumed to benefit the current fiscal period. Expense accounts are 
used in certain trust funds and in proprietary-type funds. 

 

F 
 

Face value. As applied to securities, the amount stated in the security document. 
 

Fair value of investments. The amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

 

Fees. Amounts collected from or paid to individuals or groups for services or for use of a 
school or other facility. 

 

Fidelity bond. A form of insurance that provides for the indemnification of the LEA or other 
employer for losses arising from the theft or dishonesty of employees. 

 

Fiscal year. A period of one year, the beginning and the ending dates of which are fixed by 
statute. For LEAs, it is the period beginning July 1 and ending on June 30. 

 

Fixed assets. Assets of a permanent character having continuing value (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, furniture, and equipment), with a cost over the capitalization threshold set by the 
LEA. 

 

Full-time-equivalent (FTE). The ratio of time expended in a part-time position to that of a 
full-time position. The ratio is derived by dividing the amount of time of employment 
required in the part-time position by the amount of employed time required in a 
corresponding full-time position. 

 

Function. An act, service, or group of services proper to a person, thing, or institution and aimed 
at accomplishing a certain end. In SACS, function refers to those activities or services 
performed to accomplish a goal. 

Page 145 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Fund. A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and 
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, that are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accord with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. 

 

Fund balance. The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. The fund equity of governmental and trust funds. 

 

G 
 

General fund. The fund used to finance the ordinary operations of the LEA. It is available 
for any legally authorized purpose. 

 

General journal. A book of original entry for all entries of financial transactions that are not 
recorded in a special journal, such as a cash receipts journal, a voucher register, or a cash 
disbursements journal. 

 

General ledger. A book, file, or other device that contains the accounts needed to reflect, in 
summary and in detail, the financial position, the results of financial operations, and the 
changes in equities of a fund or an account group used by an LEA. 

 

General long-term debt. Long-term debt that is legally payable from general revenue and 
backed by the full faith and credit of an LEA. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Uniform minimum standards of, and 
guidelines to, financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the 
basic financial statements of an entity. These principles encompass the conventions, rules, 
and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practices and procedures. Generally 
accepted accounting principles provide a standard by which to measure financial 
presentations. The primary authoritative source on the application of these principles to state 
and local governments is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

Generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS). Measures of the quality of the performance of 
auditing procedures and the objectives to be attained through their use. The standards are 
concerned with the auditor’s professional qualities and with the judgment exercised in the 
performance of an audit. Generally accepted auditing standards are established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

Generally accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS). Generally accepted auditing 
standards for government are established by the U.S. Government Accountability Office and 
published in Government Auditing Standards, also known as the Yellow Book. 

 

Gift. Anything of value received from any source for which no repayment or service to the 
contributor is expected. 

 

Goal. In SACS, a goal defines an objective or a set of objectives for the LEA. It is used to 
account for the cost of instruction and other services by the instructional goals and objectives 
of an LEA. 

Page 146 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The organization established to issue 
standards of financial accounting and reporting with respect to activities and transactions of 
state and local governmental entities. It is the successor organization to the National Council 
on Governmental Accounting (NCGA). 

 

Grade level. Assigned classification of students according to age and school progress (e.g., 
kindergarten or first grade). 

 

Grant. A contribution, either in money or material goods, made by one governmental entity to 
another. Grants may be intended for specific or general purposes. (This term should not be 
used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Grants-in-aid. See Grant. 
 

H 
 

Holding accounts. Suspense accounts that are used temporarily to accumulate costs that will 
ultimately be charged to other user programs. 

 

I 
 

Income. A term used in accounting for a proprietary-type fund to represent the excess of 
revenues earned over the expenses incurred in carrying on the fund’s operations. The term 
income should not be used in lieu of revenue in governmental-type funds. 

 

Indirect cost. Elements of cost necessary in the operation of the LEA or in the performance of a 
service that are of such nature that the amount applicable to each accounting unit cannot be 
determined readily and accurately or for which the cost of such determination exceeds the 
benefit of the determination. It consists of those business and administrative costs that benefit 
the entire LEA (e.g., accounting, budgeting, personnel, purchasing). 

 

Indirect cost rate (ICR). A method for claiming reimbursement of indirect costs from federal and 
state categorical funds. It is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the indirect costs to direct 
base costs. 

 

Indirect support charges. Charges for routine services not performed as a special service for a 
particular program but allocated to user programs. 

 

In lieu of taxes. Revenue to replace the loss of tax revenue resulting from property that is 
exempted from taxation. 

 

Interest. A fee charged to a borrower for the use of money. 
 

Interfund accounts. Accounts in which transactions between funds are reflected. These include 
interfund transfer accounts and interfund receivable and payable accounts. 

 

Interfund borrowing. The movement of cash from one fund to another with the expectation that 
the borrowing is temporary and will be repaid. Interfund borrowing does not affect the fund 
balance of either the borrowing fund or the lending fund. 

 

Interfund transfers. Money that is taken from one fund under the control of the governing board 
and added to another fund under the board’s control, without the expectation for repayment. 

Page 147 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Interfund transactions other than interfund loans or borrowing, quasi-external transactions, 
and reimbursement. Interfund transfers are not revenues or expenditures. They do not 
increase the resources of the LEA as a whole but they do affect the fund balance of both 
funds. (See also Operating transfers, Residual equity transfers, and Interfund borrowing.) 

 

Interim borrowing. (1) Short-term loans to be repaid from general revenues during the course of 
a fiscal year; (2) short-term loans in anticipation of tax collections or bond issuance. 

 

Interim reports. Reports prepared as of a date or a period during the fiscal year. They include 
budgetary estimates, financial transactions during current year-to-date, and end-of-year 
projections. 

 

Internal audit. An appraisal activity within an LEA that (1) determines the adequacy of the 
system of internal control; (2) verifies and safeguards assets; (3) determines the reliability of 
the accounting and reporting system; (4) ascertains compliance with existing policies and 
procedures; and (5) appraises the performance of activities and work programs. 

 

Internal control. A plan of organization under which employees’ duties are so arranged, and 
records and procedures so designated, as to provide a system of self-checking, thereby 
enhancing accounting control over assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenditures. Under such a 
system, the employees’ work is subdivided so that no single employee performs a complete 
cycle of operation. Such procedures call for proper authorization by designated officials. 

 

Internal service funds. Funds created to render services on a cost-reimbursement basis to other 
organizational units of the LEA. Such funds are generally intended to be self-supporting. 

 

Inventory. A detailed list showing the quantities and a description of the property on hand at a 
given time. It may also include units of measure, unit prices, and values. 

 

Investments. Usually, securities and real estate held for the purpose of generating revenues, such 
as interest, dividends, or rental payments. 

 

Invoice. An itemized statement of charges for merchandise sold or services rendered to the 
purchaser. 

 

J 
 

Job account. An account established to record the accumulation of costs of a specific piece of 
work; work orders showing charges for material and labor used. 

 

Journal. Any accounting record in which the financial transactions of an LEA are formally 
recorded for the first time (e.g., the cash receipts book, check register, and general journal). 

 

Journal voucher. A form provided for the recording of certain transactions or information in 
place of, or supplementary to, the journal or registers. 

 

Judgments. Amounts due to be paid or collected by the LEA as the result of court decisions. 
 

L 
 

LEA. See Local educational agency. 

Page 148 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Lease-purchase agreements. Contractual agreements that are termed “leases” but which, in 
substance, amount to purchase contracts. 

 

Levy. The imposition of taxes or special assessments for the support of governmental activities; 
also, the total amount of taxes, special assessments, or service charges imposed by a 
governmental unit. 

 

Liabilities. Legal obligations (with the exception of encumbrances) that are unpaid. 
 

Line-item budgeting. A budget system emphasizing a “balanced budget” through comparison of 
estimated revenues with projected expenditures. Budgetary divisions are listed by 
organizational units, such as departments or activities, and expenditures are divided into 
major categories of personal services, contracted services and supplies, and capital outlay. 
For budgetary control, further breakdowns of expenditures are made through detailed object 
accounts based on the wide range of services, supplies, and equipment. 

 

Local educational agency (LEA). Typically, a local school district, county office of education, or 
joint powers agency engaged in providing educational services. 

 

Long-term debt. Debt that matures more than one year after the date of issuance. 
 

M 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). The narrative introducing the financial statements and 
providing an analytical overview of the LEA’s financial performance for the year. It should contain 
sufficient information for users of the financial statements to evaluate whether the financial position 
of the LEA has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities. 

 

Modified accrual basis. The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental fund type. Under it, 
revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and “available” to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Most expenditures are recognized (recorded) when the related 
liability is incurred. 

 

Multiyear financial plan. A plan that presents financial estimates of programs in tabular form for 
a period of years. These estimates reflect the future financial impact of current decisions. The 
data in the plan should be organized along the lines of the program structure. 

 

N 
 

Net income. A proprietary fund’s excess of revenues and operating transfers in over expenses 
and operating transfers out. 

 

Not-for-profit organization (NPO). An entity that meets the definition in the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 116, Accounting for Contribution Received and Contribution Made. An entity with the 
following characteristics that separates it from a business enterprise: 

 

x It receives contributions of significant amounts of resources from providers who 
do not expect a commensurate or proportionate pecuniary return. 

Page 149 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
x Its operating purposes are other than to provide goods or services at a profit. 
x Unlike business enterprises, it does not have an interest in ownership. 

 

O 
 

Object. As used in an expenditure classification, object applies to the article purchased or to the 
service obtained. 

 

Obligations. Amounts that the LEA may be legally required to meet from its resources. They 
include not only actual liabilities but also unliquidated encumbrances. 

 

Operating transfers. All interfund transfers other than residual equity transfers. 
 

Order (for payment). A written demand by the governing board of an LEA requiring the county 
superintendent of schools to draw his or her requisition on the county auditor for the payment 
of a claim against the LEA. 

 

Other financing sources. Governmental fund general long-term debt proceeds, operating 
transfers in, and material proceeds of fixed asset dispositions. Such amounts are 
classified separately from revenues. 

 

Other financing uses. Governmental funds’ operating transfers out. Such amounts are classified 
separately from expenditures. 

 

Overdraft. The amount by which checks, drafts, or other demands for payment on the treasury or 
on a bank account exceed the amount of the balance on which they are drawn; or the amount 
by which encumbrances and expenditures exceed the appropriation to which they are 
chargeable. 

 

Overhead. See Indirect cost. 
 

P 
 

Payroll register. A document accompanying one or more orders on a fund of an LEA for the 
payment of salaries or wages to employees; contains the names of such employees and 
provides information substantiating such orders. 

 

Payroll warrant. A document used as an order or a requisition on a fund of an LEA for the 
purpose of paying salaries or wages. 

 

Perpetual inventory. A system whereby the inventory of units of property at any date may be 
obtained directly from the records without resorting to an actual physical count. A record is 
provided for each item or group of items to be inventoried and is divided to provide a 
running record of goods ordered, received, and withdrawn and the balance on hand in units 
and cost. 

 

PERS. Public Employees’ Retirement System. Unless exempted by state law, 
classified employees, their district, and the state contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Personal property. All property except real property. (See also Real property.) 

Page 150 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Petty cash. A sum of money set aside for the purpose of making change or immediate payments 
of small amounts. (See also Revolving cash fund.) 

 

Physical inventory. The annual physical count of an LEA’s inventory. This count is often taken 
at the end of the year and observed by the LEA’s auditors. Periodically, physical inventories 
are conducted to test the accuracy of the perpetual inventory records. 

 

Posting. The act of transferring to an account in a ledger the data, either detailed or summarized, 
contained in a book of original entry. 

 

Prepaid expenses. Expenditures for which payment has been made but for which benefits have 
not been realized as of a certain date (e.g., prepaid rent, prepaid interest, and premiums on 
unexpired insurance). 

 

Prior years’ taxes. Taxes collected within the current fiscal year for levies in previous fiscal 
years. 

 

Program. A group of related activities that operate together to accomplish specific purposes or 
objectives. 

 

Program cost accounting. A method to identify program costs in a standard manner. In SACS, 
the goal field provides the framework for program cost accounting. 

 

Program structure. The hierarchical arrangement of programs that represents the 
interrelationship of activities to goals and objectives. The program structure contains 
categories of activities with common outputs and objectives. Programs may cut across 
existing departments and agencies. 

 

Project year. A field in SACS that is used to distinguish the activities of grants, sometimes 
known as special projects, whose “project year” or “reporting year” is different from the 
LEA fiscal year. 

 

Prorating. The allocating of expenditures or revenue from a single source to two or more 
accounts to show the correct distribution of charges or revenue. 

 

Purchase order. A document issued to a vendor that authorizes the delivery of specified 
merchandise or the performance of certain services and the making of a charge for them. 

 

R 
 

Real property. Property consisting of land, buildings, minerals, timber, landscaping, and all 
improvements thereto. 

 

Rebate. See Abatement or Refund. 
 

Receipts. Cash received. 
 

Reclassification. Redesignation of the current year’s revenue or expenditure items previously 
posted to one account and later determined to be more properly charged to a different 
account. 

 

Refund. An amount paid back or credit allowed because of an over-collection. 

Page 151 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Registered warrant. A warrant that is registered by the county treasurer for future 
payment because of a present lack of funds and that is to be paid with interest in the 
order of its registration. 

 

Registers. A listing of transactions of like kind that may be totaled and summarized for 
convenience in posting (e.g., payroll registers, warrant registers, and attendance 
registers). 

 

Reimbursement. Cash or other assets received as a repayment of the cost of work or services 
performed; or repayment of expenditures made for or on behalf of another governmental unit, 
fund, or department. 

 

Requisition. A document submitted initiating a purchase order to secure specified 
articles, services, or issuance of materials from stores or a warehouse. 

 

Reserve for economic uncertainties. The portion of the fund balance that has been designated (set 
aside) by the governing board to provide for emergencies or economic events, such as 
revenue shortfalls, that could not be anticipated. 

 

Reserve for encumbrances. An account used to segregate a portion of a fund balance for 
outstanding encumbrances. 

 

Residual equity transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds of the 
LEA (e.g., transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds to the general fund or 
contribution of internal service fund capital by the general fund). 

 

Resource. A field in SACS that is used to classify revenues and resulting expenditures in accord 
with restrictions or special reporting requirements placed on either aspects of LEA financial 
activities by law or regulation. Further, because such revenues frequently are not fully 
expended within a fiscal year, and related liabilities are not completely liquidated, the 
resource code is also to reflect restrictions and special reporting obligations on balance sheet 
accounts. 

 

Restricted funds. Money whose use is restricted by legal requirement or by the donor. 
 

Revenues. The increases in a fund’s financial resources other than from interfund transfers or 
debt issue proceeds. Revenues are the primary financial resource of a fund. Revenues are 
recognized when assets are increased without increasing liabilities or incurring an 
expenditure reimbursement. 

 

Revolving cash fund. An account used primarily for emergency or small disbursements and 
reimbursed periodically through properly documented expenditures, which are summarized 
and charged to proper accounting classifications. 

 

S 
 

SACS. Acronym for standardized account code structure. 
 

Schedules. Explanatory or supplementary statements that accompany the balance sheet or other 
financial statements. 

Page 152 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Secured roll. Assessed value of real property, such as land, buildings, secured personal 
property, or anything permanently attached to land, as determined by each county assessor. 

 

Securities. Bonds, notes, mortgages, or other forms of negotiable or nonnegotiable instruments. 
 

Serial annuity bonds. Serial bonds in which the annual installments of bond principal are so 
arranged that the combined payments for principal and interest are approximately the same 
each year. 

 

Serial bonds. Bonds whose principal is repaid in periodic installments over the life of the issue. 
 

Shared revenue. Revenue that is levied by one governmental unit but that is shared, usually in 
proportion to the amount collected, with another unit of government or class of governments. 

 

Short-term debt. Debt with a maturity of one year or less after the date of issuance. Short-term 
debt usually includes bond anticipation notes payable and tax and revenue anticipation notes 
(TRANs) payable. 

 

Source document. Any voucher, invoice, or other data that support an entry in the accounting 
records. 

 

Special revenue funds. Funds established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to finance particular activities other than capital 
projects or debt service and not held in trust for other individuals or entities. 

 

Standardized account code structure (SACS). A uniform, comprehensive, and minimum chart of 
accounts for classifying the financial activities of California LEAs. 

 

Statements. (1) In a general sense, all of those formal written presentations that set forth financial 
information; (2) in technical accounting, those presentations of financial data that show the 
financial position and the results of financial operations of a fund, a group of accounts, or an 
entire LEA for a particular accounting period. 

 

State School Fund. A special revenue fund within the State Treasury used for apportionments to 
school districts and county offices of education on the basis of the Local Control Funding 
Formula and certain other special-purpose apportionments. Apportionments are made by the 
State Controller and are based on certifications from the California Department of Education. 

 

Stores. Goods that are on hand in storerooms and that are subject to requisition. 
 

STRS. State Teachers’ Retirement System. State law requires certificated employees, school 
districts, and the state to contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Student body fund. An agency fund to control the receipts and the disbursements of student 
associations’ activities; it consists only of assets and liabilities. 

 

Subsidiary ledger. A supporting ledger consisting of a group of accounts, the total of which is in 
agreement with a control account (e.g., payroll ledger and appropriations ledger). 

 

Subvention. Provision of assistance or financial support, usually from a superior governmental 
unit; a grant. 

Page 153 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Supply. An item of an expendable nature that is consumed, wears out, or deteriorates in use; or 
one that loses its identity through fabrication or incorporation into a different or more 
complex unit or substance. 

 

Surety bond. A written promise to pay damages or to indemnify against losses caused by the 
party or parties named in the document, through nonperformance or through defalcation (e.g., 
a surety bond given by a contractor or by an official who handles cash or securities). 

 

Suspense account. An account that temporarily carries charges or credits pending 
the determination of the proper account or accounts. 

 

T 
 

Tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs). Notes issued in anticipation of collection of taxes, 
usually retirable only from tax collections and frequently only from the proceeds of the tax 
levy whose collection they anticipate. 

 

Tax liens. Claims by governmental units on properties for which taxes levied remain unpaid. 
 

Tax rate. The amount of tax stated in terms of a unit of the tax base. 
 

Tax rate limit. The maximum rate of tax that a governmental unit may levy. 
 

Tax redemption. Proceeds from the sale of tax-delinquent property. 
 

Tax relief subventions. Funds ordinarily paid to compensate for taxes lost because of tax relief 
measures. 

 

Tax roll. The list showing the amount of taxes levied against each taxpayer or property. 
 

Taxes. Compulsory charges levied by a governmental unit for the purpose of financing 
services performed for the common benefit. 

 

Taxes, protested. Tax money paid under protest and held by the county auditor pending 
settlement of the protest. 

 

Taxes receivable. An asset account representing the uncollected portion of taxes levied. 
 

Term bond. A bond whose entire principal matures on a single date. 
 

Trade discount. A reduction of the list price, usually expressed as a percentage and related to the 
volume of business transacted. (The term is not to be confused with Cash discount.) 

 

Transfer. Interdistrict or interfund payments or receipts not chargeable to expenditures or 
credited to revenue. (See also Budget transfer and Interfund transfers.) 

 

Trial balance. A list of the balances of the accounts in a ledger kept by double entry, with the 
debit and credit balances shown in separate columns. If the totals of the debit and credit 
columns are equal or if their net balances agree with a control account, the ledgers from 
which the figures are taken are said to be “in balance.” 

 

Trust fund. A fund used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Page 154 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Tuition. An amount charged for educational services provided to a student. 
 

U 
 

Unaudited actuals. An annual statement reporting the financial activities of the LEA in which 
the data are not yet audited. 

 

Unearned revenue. A liability for resources received prior to revenue recognition. 
 

Unencumbered balance. That portion of an appropriation or allotment not yet expended or 
obligated. 

 

Unit cost. The total expenditure for a product, program, or service divided by the total quantity 
obtained or some other quantitative measure (e.g., the total expenditure for desks divided by 
the number of desks equals the cost per desk). 

 

Unrealized revenue. Estimated revenue less revenue received to date; also, the estimated revenue 
for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

 

Unsecured roll. Assessed value of personal property other than secured property. 
 

V 
 

Voucher. A written document that evidences the propriety of transactions and usually 
indicates the amounts that are to be recorded. 

 

W 
 

Warrant. A written order, drawn by the LEA’s governing board or its authorized officer(s) or 
employee(s), approved by the county superintendent of schools and allowed by the county 
auditor, directing the county treasurer to pay a specified amount to a designated payee. 

 

Warrants payable. The amount of warrants issued, outstanding, and unpaid. 
 

Withholding. The process of deducting from a salary or wage payment an amount, specified by 
law or regulation, representing the individual’s estimated federal or state income tax that the 
employer must pay to the taxing authority. 

 

Work in process. The value of partially completed products manufactured or processed, such as a 
partially completed printing job. 

 

Work order. A written authorization for the performance of a particular job containing a 
description of the nature and location of the job and specifications for the work that is to be 
performed. Such authorizations are usually assigned job numbers, and provision is made for 
accumulating and reporting labor, material, and other costs. 

 

Workstation. Computer, personal computers, or work areas assigned for data processing 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised January 2019 Glossary 18 

Page 155 of 155



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, June 15, 2022 
 
TIME:  4:00 pm  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

 
  This meeting will be recorded. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma(s) – Colusa County Adult School  information 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – May Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 15, 2022, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 
6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen  information 
6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney  information 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the May 11, 2022, Special Board Meeting  action 

8.2 Approve Minutes of the May 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 
10.3.1 2022 LCAP Performance Indicators  information 
10.3.2 2022‐23 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2022‐23 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)  action 

11.2 Approve 2022‐23 Colusa County Office of Education Budget  action 

11.3 Approve Board Resolution No. 21/22‐04 Colusa County  action 
  Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education 
  Regarding the 2022‐23 Education Protection Account 

11.4 Set Board and Superintendent’s Health Dental Vision (HDV) Cap to  action 
  Match CCOE Employees’ HDV Cap ($10,750) Effective July 1, 2022 

11.5 Annual Salary Review ‐ County Superintendent – Board Discussion  information 

11.6 CCOE Universal PreKindergarten Countywide Planning and   information 
  Capacity Building Plan 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 15, 2022, Agenda 
Page 3 

DECISION 

11.7 Public Disclosure of the 2022‐23 Negotiated Agreement  information 
Between the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the 
Educators of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 

11.8 Public Disclosure of the 2022‐23 Negotiated Agreement  information 
Between the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the 
Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
July 13, 2022, 4:00 pm 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3.1 

  
CCOE Board of Education Report – Children’s Services 

Vicki Markss, Director                                                                  May 2022        

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 CCSESA 
 Universal Prekindergarten (UPK) Implementation/P3-Alignment. 
 Content Area Planning meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 One-on-One meetings with Executive Team and Deputy Superintendent. 
 Meeting with CDE/OHS Consultants. 
 Region Cluster Meeting. 
 QRIS Keys to Quality. 
 Food Service. 
 Cabinet Meeting. 
 CalHOPE Social Emotional Learning – Community of Practice. 
 Yuba College ECE Advisory Committee. 
 California Head Start Managers & Directors Institute. 
 CCOE 1st Annual District Awards Dinner. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Received CCTR Expansion Grant from California Department of Social Services, CCDD 
 CDE-CSPP California State Preschool Expansion Grant submitted. 

School Readiness: 

 Universal Prekindergarten (UPK) Planning and P3-Alignment. 
 UPK meetings with Elementary School Principals. 
 Kindergarten transition. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Parent Policy Council Meeting. 
 California Head Start Capitol Advocacy Day – Parent Representation from Colusa 

County. 
 Migrant Family Fair – Farm Labor Housing in Williams. 



Educational Services Board Report 
June 2022 

Alternative Education 

S. William Abel Academy (SWAA)-
• S. William Abel Academy is hosting a summer school.  Classes start on Monday, June 6th and end on

Friday, June 17, 2022.  The Project Based Learning Academy is being taught by Art Teacher, Bob
Kirkman.

• The regular school session for SWAA will resume on August 10, 2022.
• New teacher, Douglas Horton, will lead the charge for the S. William Abel Academy starting in August.

We welcome Doug and are excited to have him join the CCOE team!

Colusa County Adult School 
As this is my last board report to complete, I must say what a pleasure it has been to serve CCOE.  Having the 
opportunity to start the High School Diploma program and the Colusa County Adult School, has been one of the 
most rewarding parts of my educational career. Seeing the difference that our adult school makes in the lives of 
our community is indescribable.   Knowing that since it began, we have graduated 43 adult students to date, 
makes it all worthwhile. Thank you for trusting me with leading this charge.- Lorilee 

• The CNA Program Cohort #4 will be starting this month. Currently, we have 12 students enrolled.
• ESL and CTE classes ended on May 26th, but High School Diploma classes will continue through June

30, 2022.
• The Colusa County Adult School had 236 enrollments for the year 2021-22, and provided 11,361 hours

of instruction to adult students. Great job teachers and support staff!

Farm to School 
• Raised beds have been constructed at Colusa, Williams, and in the process at Maxwell.  Bed revitalization

at Arbuckle Elementary School has been also a priority for the Farm to School Team.

Curriculum and Instruction 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 
• CSI support for Williams Upper Elementary School has been provided on an as needed basis.
• Infographics for WUSD was provided through the CCFAC group.

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 
• DA Assistance has been provided to Williams on an as needed basis.  Meetings with the Superintendent

to provide support have been frequent.
• Tier 1 Supports have been provided to all four districts through the System of Support for Expanded

Learning Programs (SSELP).  6 meetings were held during the school year to provide support for the
ASES, ASSETs, and Expanded Learning Programs.  All four districts are planning a summer expanded
learning program this summer.

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
• Multiple meetings with all four district superintendents have occurred to discuss their LCAPs.
• The Compliance Review template for reviewing the district LCAP was shared with all four

superintendents and questions answered.
• Timelines regarding the review of the district LCAPs were also shared with district leadership.

6.3.2



• Support for LCAP development is ongoing as needed by the districts 
 
SEL CoP (Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice) 

• The final SEL CoP happened on May 24th, 2022 with SEL Office Hours.  Plans to resume the SEL CoP 
in the fall of 2022 have been discussed.  Thanks to all that participated in the Community of Practice. 

 
Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• Pre and Post Assessment reporting has been submitted to Behavior Health for Quarter 3. 

 
Foster Youth 

• The Prevention Services Department’s last Executive Advisory Council Meeting was held on May 5, 
2022. The Council updated bylaws to reflect current protocols.  

• The Prevention Services Department attended CASCWA (California Association of Supervisors of 
Child Welfare and Attendance) Conference from May 10, 2022, to May 13, 2022. 

• Fostering Success is a summit for Colusa County Foster Youth, which is set to take place on June 25, 
2022. 

• The Prevention Services Supervisor attended the 2022 FYSCP Statewide Meeting on May 18, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department continues to provide technical assistance to districts and agencies 

within the county pertaining to Foster Youth.  
 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• The Prevention Services Supervisor attended the 2022 Education for Homeless Children and Youth 

(EHCY) Grantee Meeting on May 4, 2022. 
• The Prevention Services Department hosted the annual Migrant Resource Fair on May 6, 2022. Thirty-

three agencies were part of this great event.  
• The Prevention Services Department, along with Colusa County District Liaison’s, had their last District 

Liaison Meeting on May 16, 2022. The California Department of Education EHCY team was in 
attendance to discuss the mandatory housing questionnaire for the 2022/2023 school year. 

 
Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The Prevention Services Department has been administering Brief Intervention (Alternative to 
Suspension) at different school sites.  

 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• The Prevention Services Department has collaborated with the Colusa County Sheriff’s Department for 
a Vaping Podcast at Johnson Jr. High School.  



  6.3.3 

Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Education Board Report 

June 6th, 2022 

Special Education Report 

1. Staffing 
a. Specialists 

i. Hired for next year: Educational Behavior Analyst, Occupational Therapist, 
Speech and Language Pathologist, School Psychologist 

ii. Needed: Mental Health Clinician 
b. Teachers 

i. Hired for next year: 1 teacher for Egling 
ii. Needed: 1 teacher Burchfield, 1 teacher Williams Elementary, 1 Teacher 

Arbuckle Elementary, 1 Johnson Junior High, 1 Maxwell High 
iii. 1 Applicant pending as of 6/5/2022 

c. 10 paraeducator openings 
i. 1 applicant accepted offer pending reference checks 
ii. No other applicants 
iii. Hiring fair in Colusa in July 

 
2. CAPTAIN (California Autism Professional Training and Information Network) 

a. Our current team will be continuing next year 
b. PLN focus on autism and mental health  

 
2. Coastal Buttes Academy 

a. Successfully secured non‐public spots for 2 students due to closing 
 

3. Extended School Year 
a. First day 6/6/2022 
b. 41 students confirmed attendance 
c. 5 teachers, 10 paraeducators, 6 behavior technicians, 1 health aide 
d. 29 students on county transportation, all vans are utilized 

 
4. Mental Health 

a. Mental Health Clinician, Rina Banuelos, 1/100 in the state accepted into Infant and Early 
Childhood Mental Health Consultant Training. 

 

CCOE SELPA 

1. Learning Recovery Grant Expenditures – no new reports 

2. ADR grant expenditures – no new reports 

3. Educator Effectiveness – touch math, SANDI trainings planned for fall 

State SELPA 

1. Final meeting of the year June 2nd and 3rd  



  6.4 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report June 15, 2022 

 

We are still waiting for CUSD Administration to evaluate our plans for the fourth EduNet 
radio near the golf course.  We have received and provided quotes for the telephone 
pole and equipment installation.     
 
The PJUSD test pilot for deploying external routers on students’ homes is very 
successful so far.  We have completed several more homes with great results.  More 
are scheduled for June. 
 
Our CCOE phone system (Mitel 5000) will reach its end of life shortly.  We are in the 
process of researching options for a CCOE phone system replacement.  This purchase 
would be made and implemented during July of 2022.  We have started the project 
management phase of planning the deployment with the vendor. 
 
We have re-inventoried all CCOE equipment, and we have given each CCOE 
Department a list of computers that will not support Windows 11.  We have received 
quotes to replace some of these identified computers with a plan to move forward with 
phasing them out prior to the Windows 10 end of life in 2025.  
 
We have decided to move forward with two network monitoring systems to replace 
Auvik.  We will use a product called DATTO for our servers and a product called Aruba 
Central for our switches.   
 
We are looking into generator options for our datacenter to power the equipment for the 
schools in the event of a power outage.  During a recent “scheduled” power outage our 
schools network access was offline.  Our hope is to mitigate this for future outages. 
 
We are looking into creating a cloud Active Directory Domain Controller in Azure to 
authenticate Aeries if CCOE internet access was offline. 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Special Meeting May 11, 2022 

Board Members Present: Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Charlie Morrow 

Staff/Visitors Present: Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Madison Martin, Tina Maxwell, and 
Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.0 HOLD INTERVIEW FOR TRUSTEE AREA 3 
Brenda Miller thanked the one candidate, Madison Martin, for getting to know the 
Board by attending prior meetings.  Madison spoke about her reasons for wanting to be 
on the County Board of Education and the Board interviewed her for the Colusa County 
Board of Education Trustee Area 2 vacancy.  Discussion was held on the merit of the 
candidate. 

3.0 APPOINT TRUSTEE AREA 2  
3.1 Approve Appointment of Trustee Area 2 and Administer the Oath of Office 

The Board considered candidate Madison Martin for Trustee Area 2. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Charlie Morrow/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes, one absent (Ed Conrado), one vacant to approve the appointment of 
Madison Martin to Trustee Area 2 and to administer the Oath of Office. 
 
Board President Brenda Miller administered the Oath of Office to Madison 
Martin – Trustee Area 2. 

4.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:12 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered  Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
       
Brenda Miller, President  Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education  and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting May 11, 2022 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present: Cristy Edwards, Madison Martin, Brenda Miller, and Charlie Morrow 

Staff/Visitors Present: Ethan Breckenridge, Alex Evans, Jessica Galloway Haney, Aaron Heinz, 
Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Sabrina Myers, Lorilee Niesen, 
Veronica Sandoval, Michael West and Worthy 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Brenda Miller called the meeting to order at 4:13 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room. 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the graduate in attendance, presented him with a 
diploma, gave him a portfolio to organize his professional papers, and asked him 
to share with the Board his plans for the future and to introduce his guests. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided a Districts in the County update, saying the 
districts are focused on end‐of‐year activities and graduations.  Michael 
reminded the Board about the first Annual District Awards Dinner on May 
13, 2022, beginning at 5:00 pm.  Michael gave a CCSESA Legislative 
Committee update, focusing on the following state legislative bills: 

SB 866  (Weiner) Would authorize a minor, twelve years of age or 
older, to consent to vaccines that meet specified federal 
agency criteria – all indications are that the bill will not 
make it to a vote 

AB 1609,  
AB 1614, & 
SB 579 

Would amend LCFF funding 

SB 692  Would amend Special Education funding 

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

Michael reported on the Governor’s State budget release on Friday May 
13th, on ECCOE and CCESP 2022‐23 negotiations, and on training 
discussions and preparations for Universal Prekindergarten (UPK) 
including monthly meetings to assist COE’s and districts with transition 
plans.  Michael said that COEs will be the Technical Lead for providing 
training to the districts.  Discussion was held on the age groups, on 
kindergarten becoming compulsory education next year and preschool 
within the next three years, and on children who currently attend 
preschool programs having the ability to remain in those programs.  
Michael said that he is working closely with Colusa County Behavioral 
Health and their program to place a Behaviorist at each district site to 
promote mental health and well‐being for all students and staff.  Michael 
also reported that he acted as the moderator for the Colusa County 
Board of Supervisors – District 5 Candidates Night, he attended the 
Colusa County Clerk Candidates Night, and he participated in an advocacy 
meeting with legislators held at Solano COE.  Michael also reported that 
he remained active in his opposition to retail cannabis storefront 
locations in Colusa, but that the City Council passed on a 3‐1‐1 vote to 
allow storefront sales in Colusa.  Michael outlined allowed locations and 
discussion was held on the CBOE communicating to the City Council their 
disapproval of this plan, on the history of cannabis approval, and on 
revenue projections.  Michael also reported on continued discussion with 
Colusa County about installation of a portable generator for backup 
power needs for CCOE’s internet hub at the County Library, and on 
concerns about the CALPADS software failure that impacted district 
reporting and accountability as required by the ESSA.  Discussion was 
held on pursuing a waiver to assist with CALPADS issues. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – April Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met briefly with the district 
Superintendents in April and discussed incidentals and contacts for 
NARCAN training. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz began his May 2022 Administrative Services written report to the 
Board by introducing Sabrina Meyers as CCOE’s incoming Human Resources 
Director, and he added that staff have been working on the 2022‐23 budget that 
will include the potential purchase of the 345 5th Street Colusa building and 
COLAs.  Serena Morrow provided information on vacancies.  Discussion was held 
on preparing future employees to continue with CCOE and on higher paid 
positions attracting people to the organization. 

6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman 
Michael West reported on Chuck Wayman’s absence. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.3.1 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Michael West reported on Vicki Markss’ absence, and the Board did not 

have any questions or comments about her May 2022 Children’s Services 

written report.  Michael reported that Children’s Services is working hard 

on the UPK transition.  Michael mentioned that he was interviewed via 

telephone by the LA Times on UPK and by the Sacramento Bee on the 

drought’s effect on education. 

6.3.2 Educational Services – Lorilee Niesen 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Lorilee 

Niesen’s May 2022 Educational Services written report.  Lorilee added to 

her report saying that the SWAA and Adult Education graduation 

ceremonies will be combined and held on May 26, 2022.  Discussion was 

held on the water issue impact on migrant education and farm families, 

support for those populations, migrant workers’ lack of awareness of the 

drought’s effect on Northern California agriculture, and the anticipation 

that the workers will leave as early as July to follow crops rather than 

their normal November departure.  Lorilee reported on the recent 

Migrant Resource Fair that provided access to social and community 

resources, and on district liaisons providing support at schools. 

6.3.3 Special Education & SELPA – Jessica Galloway Haney 
Jessica Galloway Haney presented her May 2022 written Special 
Education and SELPA report to the Board, which provided an update on 
soon to be filled vacancies and recruitment activities.  Jessica introduced 
Program Specialist Veronica Sandoval and her partner, facility dog 
Worthy.  Veronica explained that a facility dog is an expertly trained dog 
who partners with a facilitator to work in a health care, visitation, or 
education setting.  Veronica and Worthy’s presentation highlighted 
Canine Companions, which is a leader in the service dog industry that 
allows clients to live with greater independence.  Canine Companions 
trained Worthy, who came to CCOE in April 2022, and will provide on‐
going training and support.  Veronica shares responsibility for Worthy 
with Special Education teacher Katie Povlsen. Veronica also showed a 
slideshow on Worthy’s training and graduation, known commands (40), 
and a video of Worthy responding to students’ commands.  She also 
explained how Worthy will support CCOE Programs by motivating and 
inspiring students to foster their independence in their personal life and 
education.  Discussion was held on commands and on Worthy’s 
anticipated time with CCOE (ten years). 

6.3.3.1 SELPA – April Meeting 
No questions or comments. 

6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ May 2022 
Technology Services written report.  Discussion was held on Starlink satellite 
internet for rural areas, the Frontier settlement, and on Everbridge. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action. Discussion was held on whether any items needed to be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda, when none were heard, Charlie Morrow/Moved, Madison 
Martin/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, one absent (Ed Conrado) to 
approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Special Board Meeting 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
8.3 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revisions 

8.3.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention 
8.3.2 BP 9220.00 Governing Board Elections 

8.4 Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that Lorilee Niesen was working with the consortium to 

increase Yuba and Woodland Community Colleges’ awareness of Colusa County 

needs. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West spoke about ongoing work on the landscaping project in front of 
the Education Village. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Educational Services Director Lorilee Niesen reported that she has met with 
some of the districts and will meet with the remaining districts within the week 
on their LCAP preparation.  Lorilee said she is currently writing CCOE’s LCAP and 
she will present that LCAP during both the June 14, 2022, Public Hearing, and the 
June 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Aaron Heinz reported on Innovative Approaches to Literacy grant activities, 
including distribution of over 100 literacy kits, including F2B and bilingual books 
at the Migrant Resource Fair, will conduct Ortiz vocabulary testing on four‐year‐
old children during which each child will receive a book, organization of summer 
story times at the Williams and Arbuckle Family Action Centers, and collection of 
iPads from Children’s Services and WES. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 11, 2022, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Second Approve Combined Resolution 21/22‐03 of the Governing Board of the 

Colusa County Office of Education Ordering Biennial Election, Specifying the 
Number of Words for Candidate's Statements, Requesting Consolidation of the 
Election, and Determining the Method of Resolving Tie Votes 
Michael West explained that Education and Election Codes require that the Board 
place in resolution their election requirements (based upon their Board Policies) 
and submit the approved resolution to the County Clerk’s office by July 1 each 
election year.  Discussion was held on the number of offices on the resolution 
(three, which should be four) and adding the name of the newly appointed 
Trustee Area 2, Madison Martin. 
 
Cristy Edwards/Moved, Charlie Morrow/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Ed Conrado) to approve Combined Resolution 21/22‐03 of the 
Governing Board of the Colusa County Office of Education Ordering Biennial 
Election, Specifying the Number of Words for Candidate's Statements, 
Requesting Consolidation of the Election, and Determining the Method of 
Resolving Tie Votes with revisions to increase the number of offices from three 
to four and to include the name of newly appointed Trustee Area 2, Madison 
Martin. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Add to New Business as an information item: 
Update on Cannabis Dispensaries in the City of Colusa 

12.2 Next Public Hearing 
LCAP and Budget 
June 14, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

12.3 Next Regular Board Meeting 
LCAP and Budget 
June 15, 2022, 4:00 pm 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:26 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

BP  Board Policy 

CALPADS  California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 

CBOE  Colusa County Board of Education 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COE  County Office of Education 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

ECCOE  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

ESSA  Every Student Succeeds Act 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

NARCAN  An opioid antagonist in the form of a nasal spray that rapidly reverses
opioid overdose 

SB  Senate Bill 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

UPK  Universal Prekindergarten 

WES  Williams Elementary School 

 



1 

Colusa County Office of  Education 

S. William Abel Academy

Local Performance Priorities 

June  2022 

The State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that 
support a local educational agency (LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within 
the appropriate priority area. The approved performance standards require an LEA to: 

 Annually measure its progress in meeting the requirements of the specific
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) priority.

 Report the results as part of a non-consent item at a regularly scheduled public
meeting of the local governing board/body in conjunction with the adoption of
the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).

 Report results to the public through the Dashboard utilizing the SBE-adopted
self-reflection tools for each local indicator.

10.3.1



2 
 

Performance Standards 
The performance standards for the local performance indicators are: 

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)  

The LEA annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams settlement 
requirements at 100% at all of its school sites, as applicable, and promptly addresses 
any complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the academic year, as 
applicable; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly 
scheduled meeting and to reports to educational partners and the public through the 
Dashboard. 

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF 
Priority 2)  

The LEA annually measures its progress implementing state academic standards; the 
LEA then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting and reports to educational partners and the public through the Dashboard. 

Parent and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3) 

This measure addresses Parent and Family Engagement, including how an LEA 
builds relationships between school staff and families, builds partnerships for student 
outcomes and seeks input for decision-making.  

LEAs report progress of how they have sought input from parents in decision-making 
and promoted parent participation in programs to its local governing board or body 
using the SBE-adopted self-reflection tool for Priority 3 at the same meeting at which 
the LEA adopts its LCAP, and reports to educational partners and the public through 
the Dashboard. 

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6) 

The LEA administers a local climate survey at least every other year that provides a 
valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such as the 
California Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade 
span(s) that the LEA serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results to its local 
governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board and to 
educational partners and the public through the Dashboard. 



3 
 

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7) 

The LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access 
to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study that includes the adopted courses of 
study specified in the California Education Code (EC) for Grades 1-6 and Grades 7-
12, as applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided to 
unduplicated students and individuals with exceptional needs; the LEA then reports 
the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to 
educational partners and the public through the Dashboard.  

Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – County 
Office of Education (COE) Only (LCFF Priority 9) 

The county office of education (COE) annually measures its progress in coordinating 
instruction as required by California EC Section 48926; the COE then reports the 
results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to 
educational partners and the public through the Dashboard. 

Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only 
(LCFF Priority 10)  

The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for foster youth; the 
COE then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting and reports to educational partners and the public through the Dashboard. 



4 
 

Self-Reflection Tools 
Below are the results of the S. William Abel Academy self-assessment. Please note that 
this assessment is inclusive solely of the alternative education program and does not 
include other departments such as Children Services or SELPA since they do not fall under 
the purview of the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

 

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1) 
 
Assessment 
Number/percentage of misassignments of teacher of English learners, total teacher 
misassignments, and vacant teacher positions: 0 

 
 

Number/percentage  of  students  without  access  to  their  own  copies  of  
standards-aligned instructional materials for use at school and at home:  0 

 
 

Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard 
(including deficiencies and extreme deficiencies):  1 

• Rating: Poor in “ Windows/Doors/Gates/Fences 
• When raining, some classrooms overhead roll-up doors pose hazard from outside 

eyebrow overhangs, top and below door thresholds and weather seals. Two back 
windows leaks.  

 
 The Human Resources department analyzes teachers’ misassignments. Standards aligned 
materials are evaluated as part of the Williams visit and presented to the Board of Trustees. 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) deficiencies are also calculated at that time as part of the 
Williams visit.



5 
 

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2) 

Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks 

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified 
below. 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning 
Development; 3 – Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full 
Implementation and Sustainability 

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 
ELA – Common Core State 
Standards for ELA  2    

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)  2    

Mathematics – Common Core 
State Standards for 
Mathematics 

 2    

Next Generation Science 
Standards  2    

History-Social Science  2    

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in making instructional materials that are aligned to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified 
below available in all classrooms where the subject is taught. 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 
ELA – Common Core State 
Standards for ELA    4  

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)    4  

Mathematics – Common Core 
State Standards for 
Mathematics 

 2    

Next Generation Science 
Standards    4  

History-Social Science    4  

 



6 
 

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in 
identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified 
below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher 
pairing).  
 

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 
ELA – Common Core State 
Standards for ELA   3   

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)   3   

Mathematics – Common Core 
State Standards for 
Mathematics 

  3   

Next Generation Science 
Standards   3   

History-Social Science   3   

Other Adopted Academic Standards 

4. Rate the LEA’s progress implementing each of the following academic standards 
adopted by the state board for all students. 
 

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

Career Technical Education    4  

Health Education Content 
Standards   3   

Physical Education Model 
Content Standards   3   

Visual and Performing Arts     5 

World Language- (N/A) [Enter 1, if 
applicable] 

[Enter 2, if 
applicable] 

[Enter 3, if 
applicable] 

[Enter 4, if 
applicable] 

[Enter 5, if 
applicable] 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

Support for Teachers and Administrators 

5. Rate the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and 
school administrators during the prior school year (including the summer 
preceding the prior school year).  

Implementation and Sustainability 

Activities 1 2 3 4 5 
Identifying the professional 
learning needs of groups of 
teachers or staff as a whole 

  3   

Identifying the professional 
learning needs of individual 
teachers 

  3   

Providing support for teachers 
on the standards they have 
not yet mastered 

  3   

Narrative: 
 
While all students at the S. William Abel Academy have access to the online Edmentum 
Courseware, which contains courses that are A-G approved, this learning modality does not 
work for all students. To meet the needs of our diverse learners,  monies have been 
allocated in CCOE’s LCAP Goal  1-Action 3 to purchase textbooks to support students. In 
addition, CCOE is collaborating with the Lake County Office of Education’s Learning  
Acceleration Grant  in Mathematics to support districts and  SWAA students in the new 
mathematics standards and frameworks.



8 
 

Parental Involvement and Family Engagement (LCFF 
Priority 3) 

Section 1: Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families  

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number 
which best indicates the LEA’s current stage of implementation for each practice in 
this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):  

1 – Exploration and Research   

2 – Beginning Development   

3 – Initial Implementation   

4 – Full Implementation   

5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

Practices  Rating Scale 
Number  

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of 
staff (i.e., administrators, teachers, and classified staff) to 
build trusting and respectful relationships with families.  

5 

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming 
environments for all families in the community.  

5 

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting staff to learn about 
each family’s strengths, cultures, languages, and goals 
for their children.  

3 

4. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing multiple 
opportunities for the LEA and school sites to engage in 2-
way communication between families and educators 
using language that is understandable and accessible to 
families.  

5 

 

 



9 
 

Building Relationships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 
characters)  

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in Building Relationships 
Between School Staff and Families. 

   
Building trusting relationships with students, staff and families is the focus of 
the S. William Abel Academy. Not only is this a question posed during every 
teacher interview, but it has also been discussed as the most essential job 
duty for all staff. Building relationships begins with an intake meeting for all 
students enrolling to discuss the student handbook, the culture of the school, 
any questions regarding enrollment and an opportunity to meet the staff and 
students. Staff works to build trust by conducting Individual Learning Plan (ILP) 
meetings with students and parents every six weeks to discuss student 
progress, changes needed and recommendations for school improvement. 
Behavioral Health Counselors, probation officers, Special Education staff are 
all included in the progress and concerns of all students. 
 Monthly Educational Services staff meetings allows staff to be informed about 
school events and student supports needed. All staff are given “PRIDE” tickets 
to issue to students displaying character traits defined in the Positive Behavior 
support system. Phone calls are made home by the teacher, administrator, 
and support staff to communicate student progress and attendance. 
Bilingual staff are available to provide valuable communication to all parents. 
All communications are sent home to parents in English and Spanish. 
All parents/guardians and educational partners are invited to attend LCAP 
Educational Partner Meetings and when unable to make the meeting, follow 
up questions are posed to include their thoughts in school improvement. 
All Educational Services Staff members have an open-door policy which 
allows parents or partners to address concerns at any time. 

  

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for improvement in Building Relationships 
Between School Staff and Families.  

A focus area for improvement is to create more meaningful parent 
engagement opportunities. Collaboration with Prevention Services Staff to 
host parent activities will allow deeper relationships to be built with families. In 
2021-22, Educational Services personnel held more than 10 parent 
engagement opportunities but due to the transient nature of our students 
these activities resulted in low attendance. These activities will continue to be 
a priority area for staff in 2022-23 as reflected in Goal 3-Action 5 of the CCOE 
LCAP. 



10 
 

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe how the LEA will improve engagement of underrepresented families 
identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building Relationships 
Between School Staff and Families.  

Educational Services staff will continue to work toward improving the 
engagement of all families since all, but one student qualifies as 
underrepresented. Parent surveys in May 2022, revealed that 75% of  parents 
prefer face-to-face meetings rather than a virtual format, so staff will continue 
to meet with parents frequently to obtain input regarding school programs as 
well as continuing to build relationships. 

Section 2: Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes  

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number 
which best indicates the LEA’s current stage of implementation for each practice in 
this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):  

1 – Exploration and Research  

2 – Beginning Development  

3 – Initial Implementation  

4 – Full Implementation   

5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

Practices  Rating Scale 
Number  

5. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional 
learning and support to teachers and principals to 
improve a school’s capacity to partner with families.  

3  

6. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing families with 
information and resources to support student learning 
and development in the home.  

2  

7. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or 
programs for teachers to meet with families and 
students to discuss student progress and ways to work 
together to support improved student outcomes.  

4  



11 
 

8. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting families to 
understand and exercise their legal rights and 
advocate for their own students and all students.  

3  

Building Partnerships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)  

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in Building Partnerships for 
Student Outcomes.  

Local surveys and parent feedback indicate that the S. William Abel Academy 
is meeting the needs of its students and that open communication to parents 
and guardians has been consistent and appreciated. Exit meetings with 
parents at the conclusion of the school year, discussion of student progress, 
transcripts, attendance, and behavior indicates that SWAA has built and 
sustained partnerships with the students and their parents. Individualized 
Learning Plan meeting were held consistently to communicate to educational 
partners, the status of their student. All parents requested that their students 
return to SWAA in the fall to continue their educational journey. This reflects 
parent’s trust in the school program and that their children’s educational needs 
are being met. 

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for improvement in Building Partnerships for 
Student Outcomes.  

A focus area for improvement in building partnerships is to create more 
opportunities for parent education. Recent parent surveys indicated that 
parents want an “interactive parent fun day.”  This type of activity is being 
provided for Foster Youth during the year,  and will also be considered for the 
SWAA students as well. An “open door” policy to assist parents requesting 
help will continue to be a priority for SWAA staff as well. 

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe how the LEA will improve engagement of underrepresented families 
identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building Partnerships 
for Student Outcomes.  

Due to the small size of SWAA, all educational partners and parents will be 
included in the continuance of building strong partnerships. As stated 
previously, with all but one student identified as underrepresented, the 
engagement of all students, parents and staff will occur on a school-wide 
basis. Parent surveys indicated their satisfaction of programs currently at 
SWAA. Staff will continue to provide families information regarding the legal 
rights and resources available  to them and their children. 



12 
 

Section 3: Seeking Input for Decision-Making  

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number 
which best indicates the LEA’s current stage of implementation for each practice in 
this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):  

1 – Exploration and Research   

2 – Beginning Development   

3 – Initial Implementation   

4 – Full Implementation  

5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

Practices  Rating Scale 
Number  

9. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and 
supporting principals and staff to effectively engage 
families in advisory groups and with decision-making.  

2 

10. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and 
supporting family members to effectively engage in 
advisory groups and decision-making.  

2  

11. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing all families with 
opportunities to provide input on policies and programs, 
and implementing strategies to reach and seek input from 
any underrepresented groups in the school community.  

4 

12. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing opportunities to 
have families, teachers, principals, and district 
administrators work together to plan, design, implement 
and evaluate family engagement activities at school and 
district levels.  

1 

 

 

 

 



13 
 

Seeking Input for Decision-Making Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 
characters)  

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making.  

Seeking input for decision-making has not remained consistent due to the 
teacher turnover rate at SWAA. Even though ideas are generated on ways to 
seek input from families, the inconsistency of staff in the teacher position 
creates a problem. Surveys are provided to parents, students, and other 
partners to provide feedback for continuous improvement. Even though LCAP 
Educational Partner meetings to gather feedback or recommendations for 
improvement are held, the attendance and participation rates at these 
meetings have been minimal. Since parents do not attend these meetings, 
feedback is solicited at ILP meetings and parent teacher conferences and any 
other opportunities that communication is made with partners. 

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for improvement in Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making.  

Collaboration with Prevention Services Staff to encourage parents and 
families to attend activities will remain a major priority. With flyers, phone calls 
home, and consistent communication, it is anticipated that input will be 
provided, and improvements will be made. SWAA and Educational Services 
Staff will continue to improve programs and implement recommendations 
made by educational partners.  

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly 
describe how the LEA will improve engagement of underrepresented families 
identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making.  

As stated previously, with the majority of students being underrepresented, 
the input provided will be solicited from this group. SWAA will always seek 
engagement from all students and families and work toward this effort. 



14 
 

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6) 

LEAs will provide a narrative summary of the local administration and analysis of a local 
climate survey that captures a valid measure of student perceptions of school safety 
and connectedness in at least one grade within the grade span (e.g., K–5, 6– 8, 9–12) 
in a text box provided in the California School Dashboard (response limited to 3,000 
characters). LEAs will have an opportunity to include differences among student groups, 
and for surveys that provide an overall score, such as the California Healthy Kids 
Survey, report the overall score for all students and student groups. This summary may 
also include an analysis of a subset of specific items on a local survey and additional 
data collection tools that are particularly relevant to school conditions and climate. 

1. DATA: Reflect on the key learnings from the survey results and share what the 
LEA learned. 

The S. William Abel Academy uses a local version of the California Healthy Kids 
Survey (CHKS). The reason a local version is used is because due to the small 
population size of SWAA, results cannot be reported through CHKS. Instead, 
Preventions Services staff conduct a local survey to determine student 
perceptions of school safety and connectedness, along with other data to 
determine school climate. Since currently SWAA only serves 9-12th grades, this 
grade span is reflected in the results. SWAA students were provided surveys in 
Fall 2021 and post surveys on May 3, 2022. 

3 out of 8 students reported they felt very safe or safe at school, 3 reported they 
felt neutral and 2 indicated they felt unsafe. The final question on the survey 
regarding how many questions in the survey did you answer honestly, 2 students 
reported only some of them. Furthermore, 100% of the students reported that 
during the past 12 months, they had never been afraid of being beaten up; never 
had mean rumors or lies spread about them;  zero instances of having  sexual 
jokes, comments or gestures made to them; zero times of being made fun of 
because of their looks or the way they talked; and zero times of being offered, 
sold or given an illegal drug. In addition, all students reported 0 times of being 
bullied at school. 

Based on the results of the surveys, one could conclude that SWAA is a safe 
place for students and the climate is one of which students are valued and 
support one another. 

 

2. MEANING: What do the disaggregated results (if applicable) of the survey and 
other data collection methods reveal about schools in the LEA, such as areas of 
strength or growth, challenges, and barriers? 

With students transitioning in and out of the S. William Abel Academy, one 
realizes that future surveys could indicate challenges based on the student 
population. At this point in time, the school climate at SWAA indicated by the 



15 
 

student and the parents is a safe, productive learning environment. Staff will 
continue to survey students and educational partners to ensure that needs are 
being met and students feel safe. 

3. USE: What revisions, decisions, or actions has, or will, the LEA implement in 
response to the results for continuous improvement purposes? Why? If you have 
already implemented actions, did you see the results you were seeking? 

SWAA will always solicit feedback to continually improve programs. Providing 
positive behavior interventions for students will continue to be a primary practice 
from all SWAA staff. Changes in behavior resulting from positive behavior 
programs has allowed multiple students to return to their home districts as well 
as guided students to make positive choices. This has also resulted in fewer 
suspensions. MTSS and Student Incentives will continue to be actions in the 
2022-23 LCAP. 

  



16 
 

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7) 

LEAs provide a narrative summary of the extent to which all students have access to 
and are enrolled in a broad course of study by addressing, at a minimum, the following 
four prompts: 

1. Briefly identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA is using to 
track the extent to which all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a 
broad course of study, based on grade spans, unduplicated student groups, and 
individuals with exceptional needs served. (response limited to 1,500 
characters) 

 
Students at the S. William Abel Academy have access to a rigorous and broad 
course of study. Upon an intake meeting, all students are provided academic 
counseling including graduation requirements and courses needed to meet those 
requirements. With the support from teachers, administration and parents, 
students then develop an Individualized learning plan to determine the path to 
accomplish their objectives. Students have access to Edmentum, which provides 
online UC-CSU, common core approved courseware to complete course 
requirements; a broad spectrum of Introductory CTE courses to meet CTE 
requirements, and access to the community college that is adjacent to the 
community school for dual enrollment opportunities. Edmentum provides the 
teacher and administration current progress of students and support systems in 
Exact Path ensure student success. SWAA is WASC accredited so providing all 
students a broad course of study is essential in meeting accreditation criteria. 

 

2. Using the locally selected measures or tools, summarize the extent to which all 
students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. The 
summary should identify any differences across school sites and student groups 
in access to, and enrollment in, a broad course of study, and may describe 
progress over time in the extent to which all students have access to, and are 
enrolled in, a broad course of study. (response limited to 1,500 characters) 
 
All students at SWAA have access to a broad course of study. Since the 
school population continues to remain quite small, students are fortunate to 
be able to work on different courses and courseware to meet their academic 
needs. The teacher assists when needed as student’s progress at their own 
pace. The Individualized learning plan helps provide direction for students 
and communication to parents regarding their student’s academic trajectory. 
CTE curriculum is available to provide more career exploration opportunities 
for students. All high school students are offered enrollment in the Woodland 
Community College, Colusa County Campus which is located next door to 
the school as well as provided opportunities to participate in CCOE’s Wildland 
Fire Academy and Certified Nursing Assistant Program. 



17 
 

 

3. Given the results of the tool or locally selected measures, identify the barriers 
preventing the LEA from providing access to a broad course of study for all 
students. (response limited to 1,500 characters) 

 
The S. William Abel Academy has limited financial resources. SWAA only 
employs one full-time teacher, one part-time Fine Arts teacher, and a part-
time Farm to School Lab Supervisor to serve its student population. Since 
much of the student population is transient, establishing career pathways has 
been a struggle. The school is not able to offer world languages, therefore 
limiting the ability of students to transition to a four-year state university. While 
Edmentum provides access to a plethora of core classes, providing multiple 
elective opportunities to a wide array of grade levels is also challenging. 

 

4. In response to the results of the tool or locally selected measures, what 
revisions, decisions, or new actions will the LEA implement, or has the LEA 
implemented, to ensure access to a broad course of study for all students? 
(response limited to 1,500 characters) 

 
SWAA’s need to update curriculum to meet state standards and 
frameworks will help provide access for all students to a broad course of 
study. In addition, the expansion of CTE programs will give students more 
opportunity to build skills. Guiding students in establishing their course of 
study and a road map to matriculate to college is a priority. Providing 
educational field trips to colleges and trade schools will also provide 
experiences that give access to students. These actions are reflected in the 
2021-22 and the 2022-23 LCAP. 

 

 



18 
 

Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – COE Only 
(LCFF Priority 9) 

Assess the degree of implementation of the progress in coordinating instruction 
for expelled students in your county. 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning 
Development; 3 – Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full 
Implementation and Sustainability 

Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5 
1. Assessing status of 

triennial plan for 
providing educational 
services to all expelled 
students in the county, 
including: 

[No 
response 
required] 

[No 
response 
required] 

[No 
response 
required] 

[No 
response 
required] 

[No 
response 
required] 

a. Review of required 
outcome data.  2    

b. Identifying existing 
educational 
alternatives for 
expelled pupils, gaps 
in educational 
services to expelled 
pupils, and strategies 
for filling those service 
gaps. 

   4  

c. Identifying alternative 
placements for pupils 
who are expelled and 
placed in district 
community day school 
programs, but who fail 
to meet the terms and 
conditions of their 
rehabilitation plan or 
who pose a danger to 
other district pupils. 

   4  

2. Coordinating on 
development and 
implementation of 
triennial plan with all 
LEAs within the county. 

    5 



19 
 

Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5 
3. Establishing ongoing 

collaboration and policy 
development for 
transparent referral 
process for LEAs within 
the county to the county 
office of education or 
other program options, 
including dissemination 
to all LEAs within the 
county a menu of 
available continuum of 
services for expelled 
students. 

    5 

4. Developing 
memorandum of 
understanding regarding 
the coordination of 
partial credit policies 
between district of 
residence and county 
office of education. 

  3   



20 
 

Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only 
(LCFF Priority 10) 

Assess the degree of implementation of coordinated service program 
components for foster youth in your county. 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning 
Development; 3 – Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full 
Implementation and Sustainability 

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5 
1. Establishing ongoing 

collaboration and 
supporting policy 
development, including 
establishing formalized 
information sharing 
agreements with child 
welfare, probation, Local 
Education Agency (LEAs), 
the courts, and other 
organizations to support 
determining the proper 
educational placement of 
foster youth (e.g., school 
of origin versus current 
residence, comprehensive 
versus alternative school, 
and regular versus special 
education). 

  3   

2. Building capacity with LEA, 
probation, child welfare, 
and other organizations for 
purposes of implementing 
school-based support 
infrastructure for foster 
youth intended to improve 
educational outcomes 
(e.g., provide regular 
professional development 
with the Foster Youth 
Liaisons to facilitate 
adequate transportation 
services for foster youth). 

  3   



21 
 

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5 
3. Providing information and 

assistance to LEAs 
regarding the educational 
needs of foster youth in 
order to improve 
educational outcomes. 

    5 

4. Providing direct 
educational services for 
foster youth in LEA or 
county-operated programs 
provided the school district 
has certified that specified 
services cannot be 
provided or funded using 
other sources, including, 
but not limited to, Local 
Control Funding Formula, 
federal, state or local 
funding. 

 2    

5. Establishing ongoing 
collaboration and 
supporting development of 
policies and procedures 
that facilitate expeditious 
transfer of records, 
transcripts, and other 
relevant educational 
information. 

    5 

6. Facilitating the 
coordination of post-
secondary opportunities 
for youth by engaging with 
systems partners, 
including, but not limited 
to, child welfare transition 
planning and independent 
living services, community 
colleges or universities, 
career technical 
education, and workforce 
development providers. 

  3   



22 
 

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5 
7. Developing strategies to 

prioritize the needs of 
foster youth in the 
community, using 
community-wide 
assessments that consider 
age group, geographical 
area, and identification of 
highest needs students 
based on academic needs 
and placement type. 

    5 

8. Engaging in the process of 
reviewing plan 
deliverables and of 
collecting and analyzing 
LEA and COE level 
outcome data for purposes 
of evaluating effectiveness 
of support services for 
foster youth and whether 
the investment in services 
contributes to improved 
educational outcomes for 
foster youth. 

  3   

 



1 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCTION 

Michael P. West 
Superintendent of Schools 

SYSTEM OF SUPPORT PLAN 
2022-2023 

10.3.2



2 
 

 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary            3 
 
Structure            3 
 
System of Support Purpose         3 
 
Definition of Terms             4 – 5 
 
Goal 1            6 
 
Goal 2                7 – 8 
 
Goal 3                   8-9 
 
Collaboration                       9 – 10 
 
Fiscal Resources                                      11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
SUMMARY 
The Colusa County Office of Education Superintendent of Schools will support districts and schools within 
Colusa County implementing Local Control Accountability Plans (LCAP). The Superintendent leads the System 
of Support Team. 
 
STRUCTURE 
The Colusa County Office of Education System of Support Team includes representative members from: 

 Administrative Services 
 Educational Services 
 Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 

  
SYSTEM OF SUPPORT PURPOSE 
The purpose of this support is to help local educational agencies (LEAs) and their schools meet the needs of each 
student they serve, with a focus on building local capacity to sustain improvement and effectively address 
disparities in opportunities and outcomes including: 
 
Accountability 

 Providing LCAP guides, resources, professional development, and technical assistance 
 Providing LCAP feedback and support through approval process 
 Providing training and support for revised LCAP Template and revised LCAP Federal Addendum 
 Providing support and advisement related to state and federal program requirements 
 Providing Comprehensive Support and Improvement plan feedback and support 
 Providing Special Education services and support for required CDE monitoring. 
 Providing Williams Act monitoring and support 

 
Professional Development, Services, and Supports 

 Facilitating Attendance Supervisor Training and Certification, technical assistance, and attendance systems 
support 

 Facilitating Homeless/Foster Youth Services Network and support 
 Providing mental health support professional learning including suicide prevention training, social 

emotional learning and any other emerging topics requested by districts according to their needs  
 Embedding continuous improvement process and activities into countywide learning networks 
 Assist districts in implementing standard and curriculum frameworks 

 
Supports for LEAs Identified for Technical Assistance 

 Providing continuous improvement process coaching and facilitation 
 Facilitating local and state data analysis, including coordination of data review with external agencies per 

district request 
 Facilitating self-assessment 
 Providing progress monitoring and follow up support 
 Providing support and service for required Special Education reviews 
 Building district capacity for continuous improvement through ongoing coaching and professional 

development 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
Aim Statement: Explicit description of desired outcomes written to be measurable and time specific. 
 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE): State agency created under Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF) that offers support to county offices of education, school districts, and charter schools 
with support in the improvement and implementation of LCFF. 
 
California Dashboard: Contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a 
set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.  
 
Continuous Improvement: Identified in statute as the framework for improving outcomes for California students 
through the LCAP and used to describe an ongoing effort over time that leads to improvement of student outcomes. 
Distinguishing features include: 

 Taking a systems perspective 
 Being process-oriented 
 Understanding problems and their root causes 

 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI):�The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires state 
educational agencies to determine school eligibility for comprehensive support and improvement. These are 
schools that have been determined by the State of California to be eligible for additional support and 
assistance due to challenges in academic achievement and other key areas of growth. 
 
Differentiated Assistance (DA): Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) are eligible for Differentiated Assistance 
if: 

 The County Superintendent does not approve an LCAP 
 The governing board of the LEA requests technical assistance 
 The LEA fails to improve pupil achievement across more than one state priority for one or more student 

groups 
 
Distance Learning (DL): Instruction in which the student and instructor are in different locations. This 
may include interacting using technology and/or print materials.  
 
Fishbone Diagram: Also called a cause and effect diagram, is a visualization tool for categorizing the 
potential causes of a problem to identify its root causes. 
 
Improvement Science: Systematic process explicitly designed to improve teaching and learning through a 
problem-centered approach. 
 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP): The LCAP is a three-year plan that describes the goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures to support positive student outcomes that address state and local 
priorities. 
 
LEA Self-Assessment: Tool for District Leadership Teams to examine the status of systemic practices that 
have been consistently demonstrated through research to be the components of effective district systems. 
 
North Central Counties Professional Learning Networks (NCCPLN): Support networks that are based 
on the concept of Professional Learning Communities and are intended to build capacity and support deeper 
learning in interpreting, using, and understanding the Dashboard and the LCAP as tools for continuous 



5 
 

improvement. Members of the Colusa, Yolo, and Yuba COEs PLN include district and county leaders in 
charge of the development and implementation of LCAPs. 
 
Plan-Do-Study-Act Cycle (PDSA):  Tool to incorporate Improvement Science, Continuous Improvement, 
Root Cause Analysis, and other methodologies to determine the effectiveness in creating change. 
 
Problem of Practice: An area of focus that a school or school district identifies as an area of focus for 
improvement. 
 
Root Cause Analysis: A process for understanding the root causes of the current problem and may assist 
in understanding the system and user perspectives. 
 
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA): A plan that represents a school’s cycle of continuous 
improvement of student performance. 
 
The following plan to support districts in implementing Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan and Local Control 
Accountability Plan adhered to provisions/requirements of  Ed Code 52066. 

 
 
 

 



6 
 

Goal 1:  Complete the review of LCAPs submitted by school districts per Education Code (EC) 52070. 

COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 
Learning Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) Support 
Completing the review of LCAPs 
submitted by school districts [Ed Code 
52070] 
 

Provide ongoing informational 
updates and training to 
superintendents and other 
school/district leaders related to 
LCAPs, State Priorities, and 
student groups. 
 
 

1. LCAP Approval Timeline 
2. LCAP Technical Manual 

A.  Provide districts with an LCAP 
approval timeline that allows for all 
statutory required activities including 
a robust stakeholder engagement 
process. 

B.  Host technical assistance training   
      that support LCAP development  
      including: 

 District Team Meetings 
 Other supports by request 

  Implement a robust LCAP review 
process that emphasizes early 
review and support of district 
LCAPs.   

1. District LCAP Timelines 
2. LCAP Approval Timeline 
 

A. Align district and CCOE calendars by 
requesting and receiving district LCAP 
development timelines. 

B. Meet with districts to schedule review 
activities including formal and 
informal review process. 

C. Districts are able to provide CCOE 
with an LCAP with enough time for 
CCOE to perform a full pre-review 
including checks for technical 
compliance and other qualitative 
check. 

D. CCOE will provide feedback to 
districts with enough time to make 
revisions (if necessary). 

E. CCOE will perform a preliminary 
fiscal and program review to check for 
major errors within two weeks of 
LCAP adoption by districts. 

F. CCOE will complete a full review of 
board adopted LCAPs by the statutory 
deadline of September 15th. 

 

 



7 
 

Goal 2:  Provide technical assistance to districts based on need by utilizing the cycle of continuous improvement.  Technical assistance is 
provided to districts who are identified for Differentiated Assistance that focus on the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional well-
being of students as well as LEAs that volunteer for assistance. 

 
COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

Technical Assistance 
Providing technical assistance to school 
districts pursuant to subdivisions (a) 
and (b) of Ed Code 52071. 

Provide support to district leaders 
in reviewing current year 
Dashboard data  

1. California School Dashboard 
 

2. District LCAP Documents 
 

3. CA Dashboard Technical Guide 

Districts will be able to complete 
reflections on Successes and Identified 
Needs and performance gaps for sections 
of their LCAPs as it aligns with 
Dashboard data. 

 Support LEAs with identifying a 
problem of practice and 
completing a root cause analysis 

1. Completion of root cause  
     analysis tools 

2. Alignment of LCAP goals to 
root cause analysis 

3. Completion of the 
identification of a problem of 
practice 

 

A. Work with districts to identify causes  
using the Improvement Science tools  

      (i.e., Fishbone Diagram, Aim   
     Statement, Root Cause Analysis,  
     PDSA Cycle, etc.) 
B. Introduce the Continuous  
     Improvement Cycle to determine root  
     causes. 
C. Work with district to draft LCAP    

goals that align to root causes 
  Support LEAs with local and state 

data analysis and identification of 
gaps, strengths, and weaknesses 

1. Review of the Successes and 
Identified Needs and 
performance gaps for 
sections of their LCAPs. 

2. District progress on the CA 
Dashboard 
 

3. 3. LEA self-assessment results 

A. Work with district leaders to review  
      the current year Dashboard data to   
     determine successes and progress; 
areas that need significant improvement; 
and performance gaps. 
B. Review and analyze state and local 
     data 
C. Provide professional development 
    on CA Dashboard Analysis 
D. Provide LEAs with support on  

conducting the LEA self-assessment to 
identify systems level strengths and  

    weaknesses 
  Support LEAs with a synthesis of 

findings and action planning. 
1. Alignment of LCAP actions 

and services to identified 
problem of practice 
 

2. Alignment of  Increased or 
Improved Services for 

A. Work with LEAs to identify aim  
     statements, and primary and   
     secondary drivers to address  
     identified root causes 
B. Provide LEAs with tools to identify  
     change ideas and create Actions 
     in their LCAP to address root causes  
C. Provide customized support in area(s) 



8 
 

COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 
Unduplicated Pupils to 
identified problem of practice 

 
3. Alignment of School Plan for 

Student Achievement and other
system plans to district LCAP  

 

     that the district has identified as a  
     need, based on root cause analysis 
 
D. Provide district with evidence-based 
     practices to improve outcomes 
     

 

Goal 3:  Provide universal supports to all districts that focus on the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional well-being of students in 
implementing their LCAP. 

 
COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

Providing any other support to school 
districts and schools within the county 
in implementing the provisions of  Ed 
Code 52071. 

 CCOE will facilitate quarterly 
sessions aimed at providing 
technical and adaptive supports to 
districts in implementing the new 
math standards and frameworks 

1. Attendance at quarterly 
Meetings 
 
 

A. Districts will be supported in  
    developing equity-based strategies 
    that support increased student  
    achievement as evidenced by  
    achievement on academic   
    indicators on the California School   
    Dashboard. 
B. Provide opportunities for districts to  
     share continuous improvement  
     practices  
C .Collaborate with other LEAs and  

COEs including Lake County who 
administers the Learner Acceleration 
Grant. 

 Assist LEAs in implementing and 
monitoring impact of actions 
identified in their LCAP 

1. Review of District Annual 
Updates 
 

2. District progress on the CA 
Dashboard 
 

3. Attendance at professional 
learning events   

A. Review LEAs Annual Updates and   
     district progress on the CA Dashboard 
B. Provide individualized support to   
     LEAs t in district-identified areas.  
C. Provide professional learning  
     opportunities in targeted areas 
D. Assistance status guidance and how it  

aligns to the LCAP and SPSA 

 Monthly SEL CoP’s (Yolo, 
Yuba, Colusa, and Sutter) that 
focuses on enhancing the 
development and 

Partnership with Sacramento 
COE for SEL CoP facilitation 

Increased student outcomes as a result of 
students feeling a greater sense of 
belonging, connectedness, and 
engagement as evidenced by the 



9 
 

implementation of SEL across 
district campus sites 

outcomes on the California Healthy Kids 
Survey. 

 Collaborate with Colusa 
County Behavioral Health for 
implementation of the Mental 
Health Student Services Act 
(MHSSA) Grant for  increased 
support for districts 

Wellness centers established for 
each school district in Colusa 
County. 

Establish Wellness Centers for each 
school district to provide additional 
targeted support for students , staff, and 
families for behavioral and  social 
emotional well-being. 

 
COLLABORATION 

 
The Colusa County Superintendent of Schools will collaborate with the CCEE, the California Department of Education (CDE) other county 
superintendents (CCSESA), Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) to support LEAs and schools within the county implementing 
LCAPs in the following ways: 

 

Actions CCEE CDE CCSESA CCFAC State SELPA SEACO CAFSE 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools participates in quarterly 
CCSESA meetings. 

X X X     

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services or designee meets bi-
monthly with C&I leaders across the state at Curriculum and 
Instruction Steering Committee (CISC) meetings. 

X X X     

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services  or designee meets 
monthly with the Capital Central Foothills Area Consortium 
(CCFAC) the Geographic Lead Agency Group for the area. 

  X 

 

 

X    

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services or designee serves as an 
Advisory Member and meets monthly with the CCFAC Advisory 
Group. 

  X X    

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services or designee participates in 
CCFAC workgroups to meet district and county needs. 
 

  X X    



10 
 

        

Actions CCEE CDE CCSESA CCFAC State SELPA SEACO CAFSE 

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services or designee meets monthly 
with Capital Service Region 3 leaders. 

    X X     

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services or designee attends State 
and Federal Program Meetings. 

 X      

Director-Educational Services attends Regional Expanded Learning 
Meetings. 

 X      

Deputy Superintendent-Business attends BASC meetings.   X     

Director-Special Education participates in monthly State SELPA 
meetings to gain further knowledge on Special Education timelines, 
budget, reviews, and new laws. 

 X   X   

Director-Special Education or designees attends SEACO meetings.      X  

Director-Special Education participates in CAFSE monthly meetings 
about Special Education laws and funding. 

      X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

 
 
FISCAL RESOURCES 

Resource 2022-23 Estimated Costs 

Certificated Personnel (Percentage of Salaries & Benefits for Director of 

Ed Services and Deputy Supt. of Student Services) 

$182,415  

Classified Personnel (Salaries & Benefits) $20,960 

Materials Supplies $1,000 

Travel $200 

Professional/Consulting Services & Operational Expenses $5,000 

Total Estimated Funding $209,575  

 



2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 1 of 76 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Colusa County Office of Education 
CDS Code: 06-10066 
School Year: 2022-23 
LEA contact information: 
Charles Wayman 
Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 

(530) 473-1350 x 10806
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year 

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Colusa County Office of Education expects to receive in the 
coming year from all sources. 

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Colusa County Office of 
Education is $15,632,611, of which $3612124 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $5340143 is other state 

11.1



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 2 of 76 
 

funds, $5118066 is local funds, and $1562278 is federal funds.  Of the $3612124 in LCFF Funds, $72360 is 
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students). 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 3 of 76 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend for 2022-

23. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend 
$16640885 for the 2022-23 school year. Of that amount, $310,177 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and 
$16,330,708 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be 
used for the following: 
 
Expenditures not included in the LCAP are Special Education for all school districts in Colusa County, multiple 
Federal, State and Local Grants serving students throughout Colusa County and the Administrative Offices.        
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the 
LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year 

 
In 2022-23, Colusa County Office of Education is projecting it will receive $72360 based on the enrollment of 
foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Colusa County Office of Education must describe how it 
intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Colusa County Office of Education 
plans to spend $72687 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 
 
 
 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 4 of 76 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students in 2021-22 

 
This chart compares what Colusa County Office of Education budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Colusa County 
Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 

services for high needs students in the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2021-22, Colusa County Office of Education's LCAP 
budgeted $103293 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Colusa County 
Office of Education actually spent $55445 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
2021-22. 
 
  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 5 of 76 

 

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational Services           

 
lniesen@ccoe.net           
5304731350 

 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the 
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts. 

 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided through the 
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 

 
Educational Partners were provided with an update of expenditures at the LCAP Educational Partner meeting on January 20, 2022 and were 
asked for input regarding  future LCFF monies. Those in attendance were also provided  an update on each goal, action, metric and 
expenditure that relates to  CCOE's Local Control Accountability Plan. The  LCAP for 2021-22 includes the current funding and no changes 
have been made. The Colusa County Office of Education did not receive any additional funds provided through the Budget Act of 2021, such 
as ESSER III or Concentration Grant Add-on Funds, but did receive funds from the American Rescue Plan for our Homeless Student 
Population. These funds as well as all services to homeless are discussed monthly at the District Liaison Meetings hosted by our Prevention 
Services Team.  The Educational Partners at the District Liaison Meetings include the district liaison from each of the four districts, and 
representatives from CCOE  Children's Services and SELPA  Departments. Each month presenters are invited to these meetings to share 
resources that benefit students  Presenters usually represent community agencies such as the  Department of Health and Human Services, 
Behavioral Health, etc.  The continued engagement of all partners is a priority at CCOE. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent. 
 

 
Not Applicable as Colusa County Office of Education received no additional Concentration Grant add-on funds. 
 
  

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 6 of 76 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to 
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 
 

 
Colusa County Office of Education had received monies from the CARES Act- GEER I funding to support the purchase of PPE and Testing to 
ensure student safety.  Educational Partners provided input through the review of the CCOE Comprehensive Safety Plan  and the COVID-19 
Addendum to the Plan.  No additional federal monies have been received to support recovery from the COVID-19 Pandemic at this time. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation. 
 

 
Colusa County Office of Education did not received any ESSER III funds in 2021. It did receive almost $12,000 in ARP I Funds to support 
homeless students.  As of this date, only  $492 of the ARP I funds have been expended on the purchase of materials for outreach efforts..  
While Prevention Services Staff are hoping to participate in more outreach to educate homeless students and their families, the purchase of 
materials to explain the rights of homeless students is a necessary expense.  Prevention Services Staff meets monthly with other district 
liaisons to discuss better ways to serve the homeless population.  With COVID-19, it has been a challenge expending the monies as outreach 
has been limited due to lack of events, or access to students. 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education is expending its fiscal resources according to the goals, actions and services outlined in the 2021-22 LCAP. 
While there is no ESSER III Expenditure Plan to align the LCAP to, one can see a through line between the school's SARC and LCAP.  CCOE 
also takes into consideration the safety and well-being of students and staff by referencing and updating its Comprehensive Safety Plan as 
needed. The LCAP Executive Summary presented to the CCOE Board of Education on February 9, 2022 outlines the current status of the 
2021-22 LCAP and also charts the path of what actions and services still need to be addressed. 
 
  

 

 

Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan Year 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 7 of 76 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Introduction 
 
California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs 
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021–22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following: 

• The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
• All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
• Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 

When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best 
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational 
partners. 
The 2021–22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022–23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included 
with the LCAP as follows: 

• The 2022–23 Budget Overview for Parents 
• The 2021–22 Supplement 
• The 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Action Tables for the 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Instructions for the LCAP Template 

 
As such, the 2021–22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA’s 2022–23 LCAP. 
 

Instructions 
Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct 
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and 
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents. 
 
In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to 
reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 8 of 76 

a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found. 
 
Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided 
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).” 
 
In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA 
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget 
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of 
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021–22 LCAP, provide this explanation. 
 
Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” 
 
If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code 
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide 
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enrollment, as compared to schools with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. 
 
In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students 
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff 
providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 
 
Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are 
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.” 
 
If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on 
students, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet 
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place 
related to state funds. 
 
Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 9 of 76 

School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.” 
 
If an LEA does not receive ESSER III funding, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the 
continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges. 
 
Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with 
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update.” 
 
Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans 
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe 
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 
 
California Department of Education 
November 2021 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 10 of 76 

 

Local Control Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Colusa County Office of Education            Charles Wayman           

Deputy Superintendent-Student Services 
cwayman@ccoe.net           
(530) 473-1350 x 10806 

 

Plan Summary [2022-23] 
 
General Information 
 

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 
 

Colusa County, nestled in the northern part of California just 70 miles from the state capitol is a rural farming community that is a large 
contributor to the state’s agricultural production. Rice, almonds and processing tomatoes represent the top three commodities over the span 
of 1,156 square miles. With a populous of only 21,547 people, a focus on agriculture and the county being ranked 18th in Agricultural 
Production in California, it would appear the unemployment rate would be low. Unfortunately, Colusa County consistently has one of the 
highest unemployment rates in the state with rates fluctuating from 15-21%. In addition, with a large population of agricultural workers in the 
county needed to support the production of the agricultural crops, many families are migratory. 
 
One of the county’s top employer is the Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE). CCOE employs 260 people representing multiple 
departments including Administrative Services, Business Services, Children’s Services, Educational Services, Human Resources, Special 
Education and Technology Services. While program titles represent each department, it is important to note that the CCOE Special 
Education department provides the administration and oversight of the Coastal Buttes Academy, a school dedicated to fostering student 
growth using a full continuum of educationally beneficial services designed to support student success in the least restrictive environment. 
Located at the same facility as Special Education, the Educational Services Department is responsible for: a plethora of grants; Prevention 
Services programs; differentiated assistance to the four local districts; the Colusa County Adult School; and provides the management and 
oversight of the S. William Abel Academy (SWAA). 
 
The S. William Abel Academy, which was previously referred to as the S. William Abel Community School, is a county community school 
providing academic and social emotional services for students that are expelled, deemed “At-Promise”, or are placed based on parental 
choice. The school received WASC accreditation in 2018-19 and is in the midst of preparing its Self-Study for an accreditation team visit in 
March of 2023. SWAA is located in Williams and serves students in 7-12th grades. The enrollment numbers for SWAA continually fluctuate 
due to expulsion numbers, school referrals, graduates, the successful transition of students back to their home districts and the transiency of 
the student population. In 2018-19, 41 students were served by SWAA. 2019-20 showed a decline in enrollment to 23 students.  In 2021-22, 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 11 of 76 

numbers reflected enrollment at 17 students but currently 13 are still enrolled. Of those 13 students still enrolled (11 reported on Cal Pads 
reporting day, October 2021) 2021-22 SWAA demographics as of June 2022, reveal that 85% of SWAA students are low-income, 31% of 
SWAA students are English Learners, and 8% of the SWAA population represent foster youth. These declining enrollment numbers 
represent students transitioning back to their home districts, 8 students receiving their high school diplomas in 2018-19, 4 graduating in 2019-
20 and 4 graduates in 2021-22. With the COVID-19 Pandemic, and the mere fact that schools were scrambling and trying to survive from 
March 2020 when the pandemic hit, along with fewer expulsions, enrollment numbers continue to be less than in previous years. SWAA is 
considered a DASS (Dashboard Alternative School Status) School and with numbers in each subgroup being less than 10, it does not report 
student data to the California Dashboard. Regardless of the size of enrollment, SWAA continues to provide all students with an individualized 
learning plan to meet their individual needs, and the social emotional support necessary to ensure success. While all students receive 
services, the small student population does represent all of the various subgroups of foster youth, McKinney-Vento students, English 
learners, economically-disadvantaged students, Special Education students, Migrant various ethnicities, youth on probation, and students 
that are extremely credit-deficient. 
 
With a small county office and a small school, this translates to employees wearing many hats. For example, the Director of Educational 
Services serves as the Principal for SWAA, the sole administrator of the Colusa County Adult School, the LEA CAASPP Coordinator, the 
Farm to School Administrator, the LCAP writer, the WASC Accreditation lead and writer, provider of oversight of numerous grants and 
budgets, grant writer and all other duties as assigned. The positive side to staff wearing many hats allows the seamless transition of students 
to the adult school, the collaboration with the small number of teachers on staff, and the coherence of the writing of the SARC, WASC 
Report, Local performance Indicators and the LCAP. In previous years, the  Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services also played a 
key role in supporting the students at SWAA but this position has since been eliminated. 
 
Small student numbers and a small staff is not reflective of the support and services that SWAA students receive. Even though the LEA 
attempts to apply for Title I, Title III, and other program funds, the small enrollment results in minimal amounts being awarded when 
compared to the time necessary to complete the required documents for compliance. Even though 31% of the student population are English 
Learners and Title III funds are not received, the Educational Services Team continues to provide all communications in both English and 
Spanish. Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) meetings held every six weeks, college courses offered to students at the adjacent Woodland 
Community College Campus, counselor support, options for Independent Study, free meals and free daily transportation to and from school 
are just a few of the perks for SWAA students. Small student numbers have allowed the school to remain open during the turbulent times of 
COVID-19. The ability to collaborate with the Colusa County Public Health, Probation and Behavioral Health Departments, Department of 
Health and Human Services, Woodland Community College, the Sheriff’s Department and Williams Police Department result in students 
being supported by community agencies and an extension of services available. The location of the S. William Abel Academy is the CCOE 
Education Village, which fittingly describes the approach the county office takes to serving its students. 
         

 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 12 of 76 

Reflections: Successes 
 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Some of the successes achieved by the S. William Abel Academy includes: 
 

• 16 students graduating from S. William Abel Academy in the last two years 
• 3 students graduating as 11th graders 
• WASC Accreditation Status 
• Development of additional CTE experience in Certified Nursing Assisting for SWAA students 
• 100 % of students participated in the 2020-21 Summer School Academy 
• Field trips were provided to a local rice mill; a wildlife refuge, a golf facility and an end of the year trip was earned by students of 

SWAA for positive behavior. 
• During the first week of school, a Back to School BBQ was held for students and parents. This event was the most attended event 

during the course of the year. Parents and students enjoyed barbecuing, sharing stories of their summer and getting to know the 
other students of the school. 

• Board and Superintendent policies regarding Suicide prevention were updated in 2021-22. Also updated were the policies regarding 
students experiencing Homelessness, their rights and the resources available. 

 
 
 Prevention Services Personnel hosted seven different "We are Family" parent Engagement Night activities. In September 2021, the focus 
was a meet and greet session. October 6, 2021 session focused on tobacco use prevention and education. November 3, 2021 the topic was 
coping with stress and depression. January 19, 2022 highlighted attendance intervention and communication strategies. February 16's 
session provided tips regarding self care. The March 2, Taste and Teach (making healthy choices) was hosted by the Farm to School Lab 
Supervisor who oversees the garden beds with the students of SWAA. April 6, 2022 concluded the year with a session for parents to better 
understand IEP and 504's, which was hosted by the Special Education Department. Flyers were provided to parents at the beginning of the 
school year and parents were contacted to participate, but attendance still remained low for SWAA parents. 
 
There were no student expulsions in 2021-22. Local surveys reflected that SWAA continues to build trusting and respectful relationships with 
its partners and families and sustain them. Local indicators also reflect that SWAA is implementing and sustaining coordinated instruction 
and establishing ongoing collaboration and policy development for transparent referrals. In addition, Prevention Services coordination of 
services has resulted in full implementation and sustainability of providing information and assistance to LEAs regarding the educational 
needs of foster youth and those students experiencing homelessness. 
 
SWAA Students participated in SWAT (Students Working Again Tobacco) Trainings at local elementary schools with Prevention Services 
Personnel. 
An instructional assistant was hired during the course of the year to provide support to students in the classroom and she also served as the 
transportation assistant as well.  
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsSuccesses


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 13 of 76 

Since there was no dashboard data available in 2021-22 and SWAA students are not reflected in dashboard data due to the small population 
of students, Exact Path diagnostic testing was conducted successfully for three quarters. The first two quarters represented an increase in 
growth in SWAA student scores in ELA and Mathematics, but third quarter test results revealed a plateau of scores. Implementing MAP 
assessments in the fall of 2022 will help provide a better measure of student data as well as student growth. 
 
 

 

Reflections: Identified Need 
 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 
 

The 2020-21  focus area for improvement based on local indicator self-evaluation  was to include parent engagement opportunities. 
Collaboration with the Prevention Services Team established the  “We are Family” themes to provide parents engaging experiences on a 
monthly basis in 2021-22. While the opportunities were presented to parents, few parents participated in the activities. Revamping the current 
parent engagement activities to engage parents still remains an identified need. 
 
The self-reflection tool also identified the need to update curriculum based on state standards and frameworks and still needs to be 
addressed. This was also identified as a need in the WASC Visiting Team recommendations and will need to be addressed prior to the 
scheduled WASC visit in March of 2023. 
 
2019 Dashboard data showed the S. William Abel Academy in red for suspension rates. Needing to make changes to redirect student 
behavior, SWAA used a variety of MTSS strategies including a student incentive program and a PRIDE store for students to redeem tickets 
for positive behavior. The PRIDE Store and student incentives will continue to be offered and staff training in MTSS has been scheduled for 
2022-23. 
         

 
LCAP Highlights 
 

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 
 

This year’s LCAP continues its focus on curriculum and assessment to align curriculum with the most recent standards and frameworks. 
While some curriculum was piloted, new curriculum will be purchased in 2022-23.  In addition, CCOE and SWAA Administration will be 
participating in a Northern California Community of Practice and Learning Acceleration Grant with Lake County and Northern California 
Schools, focusing on Mathematics and the implementation of the new math standards and frameworks. This five year grant will position 
SWAA students to accelerate their learning and allow the hiring of a Math consultant to assist CCOE. 
 
This LCAP continues to  provide actions and services to create more experiences in work based learning and Career Technical Education 
that weren't made available in 2021-22 due to COVID or external factors. In addition to student experiences, it provides actions to  continue 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsIdentifiedNeed
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#LCAPHighlights


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 14 of 76 

to address social emotional learning and support for students as well as their families. The purchase of Navigate 360 in 2021-22 will continue 
to provide activities for SEL and also alternative means to suspension for students.  The Teacher and Administrative modules will support 
students SEL and behavior goals. SEL Training for Staff in Strengths Training will continue to be a focus in 2022-23. 
 
Goals, actions and services were written directly to address the needs identified by students, parents, staff, and other key partners. 
 
The hiring of a veteran teacher for 2022-23 for SWAA's at-promise students will also yield positive outcomes for students while allowing for 
student engagement. 
 
With the S. William Abel Academy student enrollment consisting of 13 students currently in various grade levels (9-12), state wide metrics 
become difficult to measure due to data not being provided to protect student privacy or such small student population size results in a 
substantial percentage increase for just one student. Realizing the need to identify ways to meet the state metrics, this LCAP will use 
alternative ways to address the metrics using local data and assessments. Metrics 4A, 4B, 4C,4D, 4E, 4F and 4G will be met using 
alternative local measurements and are described in further detail in the “why” statements of the corresponding goals. 
         

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

N/A         
 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

N/A         
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 15 of 76 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 
 

The Educational Partner  Engagement Process is a result of many approaches to seek recommendations on how to maintain and improve 
programs at the S. William Abel Academy. Traditional processes like sharing the LCAP with English Learner Parent Advisory Committees 
and school site councils to request feedback does not occur at SWAA due to the low number of students, the transiency rate of students and 
the fact that with the small number of students, school staff communicate with parents regularly and for some, daily. In addition, CCOE does 
not meet the requirement to establish an English Learner Parent Advisory Committee due to the student population being less than 50 
students. Instead, SWAA utilizes other means to engage its partners in the LCAP Process. An LCAP committee, composed mainly of parents 
along with other partners was developed in prior years to meet statutory requirements. The rationale for developing the LCAP committee was 
to allow parents the opportunity to provide input on the LCAP and also listen to other agency partners share their concerns and 
recommendations on how to improve services at SWAA . This gave parents the opportunity to meet SWAA’s agency partners and the 
services they provide. Typically, two LCAP meetings are held each year and educational partners and  groups are invited. Due to the COVID-
19 Pandemic, only one LCAP Educational Partner Meeting was held on January 20, 2022. Attendance by partners did not occur so SWAA 
staff chose to contact parents individually to request recommendations for changes to the school and its programs.   In addition, feedback 
was directed to all parents of SWAA students during parent teacher conferences  and Individualized Learning Plan (ILP)  meetings to garner 
input on the 2022-23 LCAP and to determine how the current year was progressing.  A parent survey was also conducted in May 2022 to 
determine the needs of parents. 
 
Educational Partner engagement also included discussing the 2021-24 LCAP at Student Leadership Meetings that occur monthly. The LCAP 
was not only listed as an agenda item, but a description of the role the LCAP plays in the school was provided. Once students understood 
the role of the LCAP, suggestions for school improvement and recommendations for program changes were provided by students. 
 
The LCAP was also discussed at multiple Educational Services Staff Meetings requesting input on changes staff would like to see in moving 
forward. The Educational Services Team consists of the SWAA Teacher, administrative assistant, Prevention Services team members, The 
Program  Technician. the Instructional Assistant, Adult Ed Navigator, and the Director of Educational Services. Monthly Cabinet meetings 
held at the county level also served as a platform for educational partners to provide input. Cabinet members include other program areas 
such as Special Education, Children’s Services, Administrative Services, First 5, Technology Services, Public Relations and Educational 
Services.  The Supplement to the Annual Update presented to the board on February 9, 2022 also provided educational partners with a 
snapshot in time of the current LCAP Goals, metrics and actions. 
 
Surveys are used as a means to obtain partner feedback from parents and students. While the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) was 
provided in 2021, , experience showed that due to less than 10 students participating in the survey, results were unavailable.  Realizing that 
students could participate in the survey and no data being obtained, SWAA decided in 2021-22 to do a local version of the CHKS survey. 
The presurvey was conducted  in  fall of  2021 and the post survey in April 2022. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 16 of 76 

Due to the low response from parents regarding surveys in previous years, surveys were conducted during Spring Parent/student/teacher 
Individualized Learning Plan meetings to obtain additional feedback on LCAP recommendations. 
 
Realizing the requirements to meet with local bargaining units, the Parent Advisory Committee, and the English Language Parent Advisory 
Committee, SWAA does not have a local bargaining unit for its one full time teacher. Also, with the small student population, parents are 
consulted on a regular basis regarding program changes needed so committee meetings are not held. Since CCOE’s current student 
population does not require an EL Parent Advisory Committee due to its EL student population being less than 50 students, it seeks input 
from parents through individual contact. Student feedback is provided at monthly Student Leadership Meetings where the LCAP is a common 
agenda item. Since the SELPA Administrator is housed at the same site as SWAA, collaboration and communication is effective and 
ongoing. Due to the small staff at SWAA, weekly check-in meetings between the teacher and principal provide an opportunity to discuss 
strategic planning, accountability and improvement in programs. Since the Director of Educational Services also serves as the Principal for 
the S. William Abel Academy and the LCAP writer, the opportunity to request  feedback from others is often.  SWAA staff realize that 
educational partner engagement is an on-going process. WASC recommendations from the Initial Visiting Committee in 2018 that resulted in 
accreditation through March 2023 have also been considered in the development of the LCAP and these recommendations are also reflected 
in LCAP Goals and actions. 
         

 
A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners. 
 

Since the LCAP Educational partner meeting resulted in poor attendance in 2022, the principal sought alternative means to garner feedback 
such as individual parent contact, communication with the SELPA Administrator, Student Leadership meetings and participation of the SWAA 
principal on local SARB/DART boards for the four districts that send students that are expelled or at-promise to SWAA. 
 
Highlights of the feedback included: 

• The appreciation of the continued collaboration between the S. William Abel Academy and the various agencies. It was also 
requested that the same level of communication continue between the school and agency to better serve the students. 

• Other agency personnel believed there was a “strong support system for students with dedicated staff that care about student 
success” and would like that to continue. 

 
• Recommendations from parents, students and local agencies to continue to provide transportation to and from school since public 

transportation has logistical issues 
• The creation of student success plans for all students with parent input so that parents could be educated on how to support their 

children 
• Improving attendance rates of students to ensure that students are in school 
• Create an interactive fun day for parents and students 
• Continue to offer the long term independent study option for students 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 17 of 76 

 
 
Additional Recommendations provided by staff, parents and students continue to include: 

• Continued incentives for students for achieving personal and class goals including but not limited to the PRIDE Store, Class 
Thermometer Goals, and end of the year field trips to acknowledge student success 

• More in-person field trips when they become available 
• Offering a Summer School Academy to obtain credits since some students are credit deficient 
• More physical education opportunities for students 
• Expand CTE and Work-based learning opportunities for students to develop work-ready skills 
• The need to continue to stay focused on student’s credits and classes 
• The continuation of home visits and school-family communications 
• Continued need of support services for students and their families 
• Additional parent engagement opportunities to support parents 
• Implementation of additional assessment tools to monitor student progress and guide instruction 
• Creation of Professional Development Plans for classified and certificated staff to increase knowledge and capacity 
• Additional space for students to congregate and work on CTE Projects such as wood-working 
• Updating curriculum and supplemental materials aligned with state standards and the Common Core 

 
 
A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners. 
 

SWAA staff recognizes the need for continuous program improvement. The educational partner input provided above gives the school 
direction in areas to improve. All recommendations will be given consideration but due to the small class size and the availability of 
resources, staff cannot guarantee all requests will be met. The writing of the goals, actions and services are reflective of the feedback 
provided. The inclusion of critical areas for follow-up from the Visiting WASC Committee into the LCAP will result in the extension of 
accreditation for the S. William Abel Academy. The S. William Abel Academy works continuously to meet the needs of all its educational 
partners. With the small staff of seven people communication is an on-going process. There is open communication weekly with the teacher 
and principal through weekly check-ins. In addition, the principal, administrative assistant, and program technician meet weekly to discuss 
concerns and program improvement for SWAA. With probation personnel being on campus, and counselors from Behavioral Health providing 
services to students each week, communication is consistent with our partners. Educational Services Monthly Meetings include LCAP as a 
standing agenda item.  With the LCAP Supplement and  update being presented to the board in February 2022,  the staff provided updates 
to metrics, goals and actions.   This year and previous years  will continue to ensure communication is a key focus of SWAA.         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 18 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
1 S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and instruction 

and will be measured through formative and summative assessments.         
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Even though S. William Abel Academy does not report individual student assessment data to the California Dashboard due to less than 10 
students per grade level, Exact Path Diagnostic results show that during the course of the year, 12 out of 13 students are below grade level 
in Reading, Math and Language Arts. The need for students to be at grade level and the recommendation from the Visiting WASC 
Committee for curriculum changes necessitates a need to change curriculum. In addition, the need for science and math adoption to replace 
outdated textbooks will allow all students the opportunity to have a choice and access. Edmentum, the online curriculum currently used, 
which meets A-G requirements works for some students, while others prefer the textbook approach to learning. 
 
An alternative assessment program in addition to Exact Path Diagnostics was to be reviewed and implemented in 2021-22  to establish the 
amount of learning loss students have endured due to the pandemic.  Unfortunately, this did not happen but remains an action for 2022-
23.This new assessment program will allow students to be tested throughout the year and prescriptions be recommended. The 
implementation of these local assessments helps SWAA address the statewide metrics that accommodates its small school size. For 
example, metric 4A, relating to Statewide Assessments, and scores not being reportable to protect student privacy, SWAA will use 
performance on local standardized assessments to measure student growth. Local assessments include Exact Path Diagnostics and the 
future purchase of a NWEA’s MAP test. The desired outcome is for students to increase student performance at the end of each year in ELA 
and Mathematics. While the  CAASPP and ELPAC will continue to be administered to students as applicable, data shows that parent 
exemptions released the two eligible 11th grade students from completing the testing in 2021-22.  75% of ELL’s completed the ELPAC test 
(one student graduated early in December  2021 before the Summative ELPAC was administered). 
 
With reference to metric 4D and the focus on English Learner Progress, and again results unable to be reported to protect student privacy. 
SWAA will continue to provide the ELPAC to the necessary students, but measurement of progress will be through the increased scores in 
English/Language Arts on the Exact Path Diagnostics test. SWAA students are expected to show growth from the pre-assessment given in 
August when compared to the post assessment given in May. 
 
SWAA will continue to administer the ELPAC to English Learners, but establishing an increase in percentage for reclassifying students 
English Proficient to meet metric 4E is difficult due to the small student population. SWAA will continue to provide tutoring for students and 
the incorporation of ELD strategies to work toward the goal of student reclassification. Increases in English scores measured by Exact Path 
Diagnostics; and participation in specific lessons prescribed as targeted needs areas from Exact path will result in increases in student 
scores on the ELPAC with the goal of students being re-designated. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 19 of 76 

 
While curriculum and assessments actions are the focus of Goal #1, the need to maintain a properly credentialed teacher has been a need 
that continues to be addressed.   In addition, providing student access to standards based instructional materials and a broad course of 
study; and implementing academic content and performance standards will also contribute to increasing student achievement. The focus of 
ELD strategies will result in improved scores on the ELPAC summative test and equate to an increase in English Proficiency and possible 
reclassification of English Learners. 
 
Staff development opportunities to implement new curriculum and administer new assessment programs which will provide recommendations 
for increased student learning and will in turn support students. These increased supports will be reflected in increased scores on student 
individual assessments. Since CAASPP scores are not reported to the California Dashboard, due to less than 10 students per grade level the 
focus will be on improving individual student scores. In addition, staff development on ELD will assist in providing additional supports to 
English Language Learners which will lead to increased individual scores on the ELPAC test. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1A. Properly 
Credentialed 
Teachers        

2020-21 shows zero 
teacher 
misassignments 
(CALPADS Data) 
 

2021-22 CALPADS 
data shows zero 
teacher 
misassignments. 

  CCOE will maintain 
fully credentialed 
teachers and zero 
teacher 
misassignments 

1B. Student access to 
standards based 
instructional materials        

2020-21 shows 100% 
of students have 
access to standards 
based instructional 
materials 
(2020-21 SARC 
Report) 
 

100% of all SWAA 
students have access 
to Standards Based 
instructional Materials 
based on the 2021-22 
SARC Report. 

  Maintain 100% of 
students will have 
access to standards 
based instructional 
materials 

2A. State Board 
Adopted academic 
content and 
performance 
standards fully 
implemented        

2020-21 100% of 
online courses are 
aligned to state 
standards 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

2021-22 
100% of Edmentum 
Courses are aligned 
to state standards. 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

  100% of all courses 
will be aligned with 
state standards and 
frameworks 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 20 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

  

2B. How programs 
and services will 
enable EL’s access to 
CCSS and ELD 
standards        

2020-21 
100% of online 
curriculum include 
alignment to 
Designated and 
Integrated ELD 
standards 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 
 

2021-22 
ELD standards are 
embedded in 
Edmentum 
Coursework. 
(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 
 

  100% of new 
curriculum will align to 
CCSS and designated 
& integrated ELD 
standards 

7A. All students, 
including unduplicated 
pupils and individuals 
with exceptional 
needs will have 
access to a broad 
course of study that 
includes all subject 
areas defined in Ed 
Code 51210 and 
51220:        

2020-21 
100% of students 
have access to a 
broad course of study 
through the curriculum 
used for instruction 
 

2021-22 
100% of SWAA 
students have access 
to a broad course of 
study. (2021-22 SARC 
Report) 
 

  100% of students 
have access to a 
broad course of study 
through curriculum 
used for instruction 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

1.1 SWAA Teacher        Highly qualified instructor to meet the academic needs of all students 
that has CLAD or SDAIE authorization 
 
 

$102,548.00 No      
X 
 

1.2 Assessment Program        Implement a new assessment program to determine student levels 
and 
targeted areas for support 

$2,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 21 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 
 

1.3 Curriculum        Provide students with a culturally responsive, relevant, curriculum 
aligned to California Standards (Common Core) with an emphasis on 
English Language Development, academic vocabulary, and reading 
proficiency 
 
Explore science and math curriculum replacement 
 
 
 

$24,500.00 No      
X 
 

1.4 Staff Professional 
Development        

Staff participation in professional development events that build 
capacity in providing engaging, educational learning experiences 
 
 

$1,000.00 No      
X 
 

1.5 ELD Strategies        Staff participation in professional learning intentionally designed to 
assist English Learners in core content and advancing in English 
language proficiency areas 
 
 

$500.00 No      
X 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

While SWAA was able to maintain a highly qualified teacher for the entire school year, the purchase of an additional assessment program 
and curriculum did not happen.  With the current teacher beginning student assessment with Exact Path Diagnostics, the implementation of 
the MAP assessment was postponed until 2022-23 so that pre-assessments could be started at the beginning of the program year and used 
to determine student growth throughout the year using the same measuring tool.  In addition, with the hiring of a new SWAA teacher for 
2022-23, the purchase of curriculum has been delayed  to incorporate feedback from the new teacher that will be implementing the 
curriculum.  The newly hired teacher has years of experience in Alternative Education settings and will be able to provide guidance in 
selecting curriculum.  ELD strategies will be continued to be used for students success and improvement.  Staff professional development 
was provided to the current staff and will continue in 2022-23 to ensure access for staff growth and development. Staff professional 
development will also be needed when implementing new curriculum.        

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 22 of 76 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Cost for certificated staff benefits exceeded budgeted amount due to increase in benefit rates in 2021-22.   For the 2022-23 school year, due 
to the experience of the newly hired teacher, the teacher cost will  increase. Not purchasing curriculum in 2021-22 due to reasons stated 
above reflects a material difference in Goal 1, Action 3. Also, not purchasing the assessment program in 2021-22 will be rolled over to next 
year in Goal 1, Action 2.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Goal 1-Action 2:  SWAA was hoping to make progress of purchasing and implementing NWEA’s MAP program for assessment.  While the 
MAP program was not purchased, Navigate360 was purchased to assess students’ knowledge of SEL resources. This purchase was made 
with monies from CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant. 
 
Goal 1-Action 3:  The SWAA Teacher was working with Discovery curriculum staff to pilot Science Curriculum for grades 9-12 but more 
curriculum work is needed.  In addition, SWAA renewed its Edmentum License Renewal for online curriculum that meets A-G requirements 
to offer students access to A-G coursework.  Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased using CAL-HOPE FEMA monies, of $9,197 to 
provide additional SEL resources to students. 
 
Goal 1-Action 4: The SWAA Admin. Assistant attended virtual Aeries SIS training to gain more knowledge of the student information system.  
The Educational Services Director participated in Independent Study Webinars to ensure that compliance for new Independent study 
protocols were in place. Educational Services Staff participated  in Excel webinar trainings to increase their knowledge and skill set using 
Microsoft Excel. The  entire Educational Services Staff participated in SEL training on August 4, 2021, which was paid for by utilizing funds 
from the CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant. This professional development focused on Strengths Training. 
 
Goal 1-Action 5: The administration participated in EL Road Map training sessions to develop an EL plan for SWAA students. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

The need for a veteran teacher with classroom management strategies for 2022-23 was the rationale for spring recruitment in 2022.  With the 
hiring of a highly qualified, veteran teacher it is anticipated that all actions planned for 2022-23 will be met.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 23 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
2 Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness.         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Student response at student stakeholder meetings have been centered around Career Technical Education (CTE) Program experiences and 
the desire to participate in additional classes. Parent survey responses have indicated the need to have work-based learning experiences for 
their students. The overwhelming response to participate in the Summer School Academy in 2021, is a direct reflection that SWAA students 
are interested in hands-on, project-based learning experiences and parents are encouraging their enrollment. In addition, the desire for a 
hands-on summer learning academy for 2022, also reflects parents and student's needs. 
 
Since SWAA has not been able to offer CTE Pathways due to its small staff, CALPADS data has reflected students completing courses 
rather than pathways. With the transiency nature of students, establishing a CTE pathway does not always equate the best use of limited 
funding. S. William Abel Academy establishes Individualized Learning Plans for each of its students to establish a trajectory toward 
graduation while also incorporating personal goals the student wishes to achieve. Because of the variety of the students that SWAA serves, 
trying to find a CTE pathway that represents all students interest is not only difficult but problematic due to staff and funding. The common 
message heard is that students and parents want some type of CTE experiences. SWAA will continue to offer CTE courses and also work 
with other agencies to provide CTE Pathway completer experiences. To meet state metric 4B, regarding CTE Pathway Completers, SWAA 
will provide opportunities for students to participate in CCOE’s Basic Wildland Fire Academy and Certified Nursing Assistant Programs and 
also offer program enrollment in the adjacent Woodland Community College. With a transient student population, measuring progress may 
be difficult, but through CTE Goals documented on the student’s individualized learning plan, enrollment in a CTE pathway program, or 
documenting CTE work based learning experiences, SWAA is working toward CTE pathway experiences. 
 
A-G courses are made available to all qualified students however; these are not applicable metrics for community school students due to 
transiency, exceptional credit deficiency, lack of consistent assessments, and partial credits when enrolling in SWAA. No students enrolled in 
A-G courses in 2021-22, even though they were available through the Edmentum Online curriculum. Therefore, Metric 4C, percentage of 
students completing UC course requirements or CTE programs of study; 4F, the percent of students who pass AP exams; and 4G the 
percent of students participating & demonstrating college preparedness in Early Assessment Programs are not applicable to SWAA’s student 
population. Instead, measuring student success by their Individualized Learning Plan and their progress of obtaining credits toward 
graduation is a more applicable measure of success. Four year plans are also provided to each student with the amount of credits needed for 
each year to meet their goal of obtaining their high school diploma or transitioning back to their respective district with the necessary credits 
for their grade level. Four year plans are discussed at the beginning and end of each school year to determine if the student has met the 
recommended target, and this will serve as a measurement toward the metrics. While SWAA continues to create a student success plan for 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 24 of 76 

all students that includes projected graduation it will continue to teach students essential reasoning and decision-making skills with the goal 
of higher order learning to provide choices and the opportunity to participate in EAP programs. 
 
The current population of students have not expressed a desire to participate in A-G courses even though they are afforded the opportunity. 
This also translates to the student’s lack of desire to participate in AP classes and no tests being administered. SWAA will continue to offer 
these programs in the event that students enroll in the school and desire these programs. 
 
When SWAA students arrive, many have not considered college as an option. Some lack knowledge regarding college entrance 
requirements while others think they lack the ability to go to college. Providing college experiences allows students to consider going to 
college for the first time. In addition, providing work-based learning experiences opens the door to careers that students show interest and 
provides skills to assist them in obtaining a job. Regardless of a student’s pursuit for college or work, obtaining their high school diploma is 
the main goal of 100% of the students while at SWAA. The Summer School Academy provides an opportunity to participate in “hands-on 
learning while obtaining the course credits necessary for graduation. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

5E. High school 
graduation rate        

2019-20 
The graduation rate at 
the S. William Abel 
Community School 
during the 2019-2020 
school year was 40% 
measured using the 
DASS Graduation 
Rate formula. These 
numbers fluctuate 
based on enrollment. 
 
2020-21 
Only one 12th grade 
student was enrolled 
in SWAA, but 
transferred to a 
different school prior 

2021-22 
The Graduation rate 
of the S. William Abel 
Academy was 75%.  4 
students graduated 
during the 2021-22 
School year. 
 

  Increase the 2020-21 
high school 
graduation rate 28%. 
 
Transition of students, 
18 years and older to 
the Colusa County 
Adult School at the 
end of the school year 
to assist in graduating 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 25 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

to the end of the year, 
thus resulting in a 
graduation rate of 0. 
 

8. Pupil Outcomes 
Percent of students 
participating in a CTE 
course 
        

2019-2020 
26.09% of the 
SWACS students 
participated in a CTE 
course measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2020-21 
60% of the SWAA 
students participated 
in a CTE course 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 
2021-2022 
72.22% of the SWAA 
students participated 
in a CTE course 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  100% of students 
participate in a CTE 
course 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

2.1 Individualized 
Learning Plans        

Use Individualized Learning Plans (ILP) and Student Success Plans to 
provide feedback on student progress to student, parent, and teachers 
to career and college ready skills and credits toward graduation. 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness 
Experiences        

Develop a continuum of experiences in CTE and college readiness for 
students that promote soft skills training, personal planning and field 
trips to business and college visits 
 
 

$31,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

2.3 Summer School 
Academy        

Continue the Summer School Academy with an emphasis on project-
based learning experiences 

$4,700.00 Yes     

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 26 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 

X 
 

2.4 Course Offerings        Provide course offering access to all students which may include 
classes at comprehensive schools, community college dual 
enrollment, and online learning classes to meet student’s academic 
goals 
 
 

$1,300.00 No      
X 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Individualized learning plans were developed for all students enrolled in SWAA in 2021-22.  These plans were reviewed every 6 weeks and 
also during parent-teacher conferences. CTE and College readiness experiences were not provided as consistent as desired but students 
were able to participate in some work based learning experiences.  Summer school was a success with 100% of students participating in the 
summer of 2021, and will continued to be offered in summer 2022. SWAA expanded its course offerings to include the ServeSafe certification 
for students so they would not only be employable but also safe in handling the produce that was grown in the school garden through the 
Farm to School program. CTE and College readiness experiences will continue to be a priority in 2022-23 as students and parents have 
expressed interest to continue these opportunities.        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

CTE and College Readiness Experiences expenses fell below target due to colleges and businesses not being open from the outbreak of 
COVID-19 and the mere fact that many colleges were still providing their college classes virtually or online.  Summer School Academy costs 
were less than projected due to small class size. Additional costs for course offerings resulted from all students participating in ServSafe 
certifications and other online courses.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Goal 2- Action 1:  All SWAA Students have ILP plans in place and conferences have been held during the first week of school (August 6-11), 
September 19, the week of November 1-5 and December 17, 2021, to meet with students and parents. In addition, parent teacher 
conferences were held at the end of the grading periods to discuss student performance, credits earned and next steps. 
 
Goal 2- Action 2: Students attended a tour to learn about local business and possible job opportunities in their community on November 23, 
2021, to Sun Valley Rice, a local rice mill.  CTE work based learning trips to the Wildlife Refuge on November 16, 2021, exposed students to 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 27 of 76 

opportunities with the California Department of Fish and Game. CTE supplies were purchased, which will be utilized for graphic design and 
for woodworking during students project based learning opportunities weekly. A Farm to School Kitchen a la Cart was purchased using funds 
from the California Department of Food and Agriculture Grant of $12,951.35.  The Kitchen a la Cart has allowed students to participate in 
CTE Farm to School Activities as well as culinary and horticulture experiences.  As a result of this purchase, SWAA Students were ServSafe 
certified in order to ensure proper handling of food and utilizing the cart to its fullest potential. CTE course participation rate in 2021-22 
increased by 12.2% from the previous year. 
 
 
Goal 2-Action 3: 100% of  SWAA students participated in  the Summer School Academy following the end of the regular school year in 2021. 
Students received credits toward graduation through this project-based learning academy. Plans are also in place to offer the summer school 
academy in 2022 to current students to obtain credits toward their graduation. 
 
Goal 2-Action 4:  All students have access to dual enrollment courses at Woodland Community College, which is adjacent to the Education 
Village.  While students did not take advantage of this opportunity in 2021, they did participate in online courses in 2022 to meet elective 
credit requirements. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

CTE and College Readiness experiences will be expanded in the 2022-23 school year since the restrictions for COVID-19 have been 
relaxed. With colleges and universities being open to in-person instruction, more college visits will happen in 2022-23.  Plans for a summer 
school academy in 2022-23 are also being considered. Individualized learning plans will continue to be a tool used for student goals, 
progress, and accountability.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 28 of 76 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
3 Develop and implement a multi-tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that improves 

social emotional health and student engagement.         
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Incorporating multiple levels of support for SWAA students is requested by parents and students. The increased supports will improve social 
emotional health for students as well as their families. Educational Partners emphasized the need to provide supports for students at the 
LCAP Meeting in February 2021 and have continued to request that SWAA maintains these supports. Parent surveys in May 2022, revealed 
that parents request the same supports be in place moving forward. 
 
Student’s social emotional health can be improved by a number of ways. Attending a school that is clean, inviting, and properly maintained 
can ultimately influence how the student feels about their school and if the school values their clientele. While facilities are only a fraction of 
the importance of the school climate, the measurement of school climate is done through the student, parent and staff surveys. School 
climate also correlates to students who want to attend school regularly and follow school rules. This translates to attendance, suspensions, 
dropout and expulsion rates for SWAA.  The recent local survey given to students revealed that students felt safe at school, indicating a 
positive school climate. 
 
Involving parents in their student’s school has been a challenge in the past due to the transiency of the student population. A concerted effort 
this year to create engaging parent opportunities that provide support for them as well as their students will remain a priority. The intent is to 
create connectedness of the parent to the school through these planned activities. While SWAA cannot predict which students will be 
expelled from local LEA’s or transitioned back, it can provide engaging activities in the interim. 
 
In addition to working with parents, the need to collaborate with local agencies to provide supports for SWAA students is not only beneficial 
but necessary. Due to limited funding and lack of resources, working with local agencies provides multiple supports for students and parents 
that SWAA would be unable to provide. This also includes working with specific agencies and teams that provide targeted assistance for 
unduplicated student groups such as English learners and Foster Youth. These coordination of services are focused on improving student’s 
social emotional health and student engagement. 
 
It was expressed by agency partners, parents, and students that meals and transportation were a priority in meeting students needs. By 
providing these services, students basic needs are being met which allows them to be present and engaged in school, leading to improved 
social emotional health. Providing student incentives and maintaining the student PRIDE store, allows students to be recognized for positive 
behavior by all staff members and creates an atmosphere of multiple people providing support. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 29 of 76 

While measuring improvement in social emotional health may be difficult to quantify, SWAA will use attendance and chronic absenteeism 
metrics to determine improvement in a student’s social emotional well-being. It believes that if students feel safe, valued, and supported 
students will continue to come to school on a regular basis. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1C. Facilities are 
properly maintained in 
“good or exemplary” 
repair        

2019-20 
Education Village 
Sites received an 
overall rating of 
“Good” in FIT Report 
(Annual FIT Report) 
 

December 10, 2021, 
Facility Inspection 
Tool (FIT) Report 
revealed an overall 
rating of 94.79% 
indicating “Good”. 

  Maintain 
Education Village 
sites receive an 
overall rating of 
“Good” in FIT Report 
 

3A, B, C: Facilitate 
parent involvement 
through multiple 
opportunities including 
parents of 
unduplicated pupils 
and individuals with 
exceptional needs        

Measured by 
participation/attendan
ce of parents to the 
scheduled events 
through sign in sheets 
or survey completion 
 
Individualized 
Learning plan 
meetings and Parent 
Teacher Conferences 
were held on 8/03/20; 
9/14/20; 9/15/20; 
9/20/20; 12/15/20; 
02/09/21; 5/18/21 
 
Parents were invited 
to attend the LCAP 
Stakeholder Meeting 
on February 25, 2021. 
 

2021-22 
Prevention Services 
Personnel hosted 
seven different "We 
are Family" parent 
Engagement Night 
activities. 
Dates and topics 
included: 
 
09/08/21  "Meet and 
greet session" 
10/06/21  "Tobacco 
use prevention & 
education" 
11/03/21 "Coping with 
stress & depression" 
01/19/22, "Attendance 
intervention & 
communication 
strategies" 

  Host five parent 
engagement 
opportunities in 
collaboration with 
CCOE Prevention 
Services Staff 
 
Parent Teacher 
Conferences will be 
held four times per 
year 
 
80% of Parents will 
complete SWAA 
surveys 
 
75% of parents 
complete CHKS 
Survey 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 30 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Parents were invited 
to participate in the 
CHKS Survey:14% of 
parents completed the 
survey 
 
Parents were 
surveyed May 2020 
and May 2021. 71.4% 
of parents completed 
the surveys. 
 
100% were pleased 
with the transition to 
the school Distance 
Learning/Hybrid 
Program. 
 
Parent Contact: 86% 
prefer face-to-face 
meetings; 14% prefer 
Zoom 
 
Rating of Food 
Program: 43% 
extremely effective, 
43% very effective, 
14% slightly effective. 
 
ILP meetings every 
six weeks promote 
participation of 
students with 
exceptional needs 
 

02/16,22 "Self care" 
03/02/22, Taste and 
Teach (making 
healthy choices) 
hosted by the Farm to 
School Lab 
Supervisor who 
oversees the garden 
beds with the students 
of SWAA.  04/06/22 
"Understanding IEP 
and 504's" ( hosted by 
the Special Education 
Department) 
 
Flyers were provided 
to parents at the 
beginning of the 
school year and 
parents were 
contacted to 
participate, but 
attendance still 
remained low for 
SWAA parents. 
 
 
Individualized 
Learning Plan 
Meetings were  held 
during the first week 
of school (August 6-
11), September 19, 
the week of November 
1-5 and December 17, 

Outreach will be 100% 
with 90% parent 
participation 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 31 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

2021, to meet with 
students and parents. 
 
Parent teacher 
conferences were 
held at the end of the 
grading periods to 
discuss student 
performance, credits 
earned and next 
steps. 
 
Parents were invited 
to attend the LCAP 
Educational Partner 
Meeting on January 
20,2022. 
 
6 out of 11 parents 
completed the local 
Parent survey 
indicating 55% 
participation rate . 
 
100% of parents 
surveyed  prefer face-
to-face meetings 
 
100% of parents rated 
the food program as 
"moderately effective-
very effective" 
 
 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 32 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

 
 
 
 

5A. Maintain the 
school attendance 
rate above 75%        

85.3% attendance 
rate for 2019-20 
(Aeries Data) 
 

87.05% attendance 
rate for 2021-22 
(Aeries Data) 
 
 

  87% attendance rate 
for 2023-24 

5B. Decrease the 
chronic absenteeism 
rate by 3 %        

Chronic absenteeism 
rate was 56.52% in 
2019-20 measured by 
CALPADS Data 

Chronic absenteeism 
rate was 72.22% in 
2021-22 measured by 
CALPADS Data 

  53% chronic absentee 
rate in 2023-24 

5C. Middle school 
dropout rate        

2020-21 
There was a zero 
dropout rate for 
middle school 
students measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
There was a zero 
dropout rate for 
middle school 
students measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  Zero middle school 
dropout rate 

5D. High school 
dropout rate        

2020-21 
High school dropout 
rate was zero 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
High school dropout 
rate was zero 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

  Zero high school 
dropout rate 

6A. Reduce the 
number of students 
who are suspended 
annually        

2020-21 
Zero students were 
suspended measured 
by CALPADS Data 
 

2021-22 
Seven students were 
suspended measured 
by CALPADS Data 
 

  Suspension rate of 
zero 
Measured by 
CALPADS data 
 

6B. Pupil Expulsion 
Rate        

2020-21 2021-22   Maintain Expulsion 
rates at zero 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 33 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

No expulsions 
occurred at SWAA, 
thus resulting in zero 
expulsion rate 
measured by 
CALPADS Data 
 

Zero students have 
been expelled from 
SWAA. 
 

Measured by 
CALPADS data 
 

6C. Student surveys 
on safety and school 
connectedness        

2020-21 
Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, initial 
student surveys 
focused on how to 
improve services 
during distance 
learning, supports 
needed for Social 
emotional learning, 
and consideration of a 
hybrid program for the 
2020-21 school year. 
 
Survey results 
indicated 100% of 
students wished to 
return to a hybrid 
program in the fall if 
offered and felt that 
the school would be a 
safe place to return. 
 
86% of students 
completed the CHKS 
Survey in 2020-21. 
 

2021-22 
The S. William Abel 
Academy uses a local 
version of the 
California Healthy 
Kids Survey (CHKS). 
The reason a local 
version is used is 
because due to the 
small population size 
of SWAA, results 
cannot be reported 
through CHKS. 
Instead, Preventions 
Services staff conduct 
a local survey to 
determine student 
perceptions of school 
safety and 
connectedness, along 
with other data to 
determine school 
climate. Since 
currently SWAA only 
serves 9-12th grades, 
this grade span is 
reflected in the 
results. 

  75% of students 
participate in CHKS 
Survey or other local 
survey 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 34 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Student response on 
safety and school 
connectedness 
measured through 
CHKS or local 
Surveys 
 

 
SWAA students were 
provided surveys in 
Fall 2021 and post 
surveys on May 3, 
2022. 8 out of 12 
students participated 
in the survey=66.67% 
 
Survey results 
indicated: 
 
3 out of 8 students 
reported they felt very 
safe or safe at school, 
3 reported they felt 
neutral and 2 
indicated they felt 
unsafe. The final 
question on the 
survey regarding how 
many questions in the 
survey did you answer 
honestly, 2 students 
reported only some of 
them. 
100% of the students 
reported that during 
the past 12 months, 
they had never been 
afraid of being beaten 
up; never had mean 
rumors or lies spread 
about them;  zero 
instances of having  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 35 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

sexual jokes, 
comments or gestures 
made to them; zero 
times of being made 
fun of because of their 
looks or the way they 
talked. 
Students also 
reported zero times of 
being offered, sold or 
given an illegal drug. 
 
In addition, all 
students reported 0 
times of being bullied 
at school. 
 
 

6C. Parent surveys on 
safety and school 
connectedness        

2020-21 
14% of parents 
completed the CHKS 
Survey 
 

2021-22 
50% of parents 
completed the local 
survey. 
 
Parent survey results 
and feedback 
indicated they felt 
SWAA was a safe 
school and they wish 
for their child to 
remain at the school 
for 2022-23. 
 

  75% of parents 
participate in CHKS 
Survey or local 
Surveys 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 36 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

6C. Teacher surveys - 
school safety and 
school connectedness        

2020-21 
Due to only having 
one classroom 
teacher, a teacher 
survey was not 
conducted. 
 
Teacher requested to 
return to a hybrid 
model of instruction in 
October 2020 to 
connect with students. 
 

2021-22 
Due to having one 
classroom teacher, a 
teacher survey was 
not conducted but 
weekly check-ins 
occurred with an 
emphasis on school 
safety and school 
connectedness. 
 

  Continue weekly 
check-ins, staff 
meetings and informal 
conversations to 
collaborate with the 
teacher on ways to 
improve school safety 
and school 
connectedness 

9. Coordination of 
services for expelled 
students        

Metric measured 
through number of 
meetings with agency 
personnel, transition 
meetings with local 
districts and fully 
executed MOUs with 
LEA’s 
 
Expelled Student Plan 
for 2018-2021 
 
Coordinated Services 
for expelled students 
including 
Collaboration with the 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, the 
Colusa County Adult 
School, Woodland 
Community College, 

2021-22 
Fully executed MOU's 
were in place for all 
four of the school 
districts that CCOE 
serves. 
 
Transition meetings 
did not occur, but the 
principal attended  
multiple SARB/DART 
meetings at Colusa 
Unified, Pierce Joint 
Unified, and Williams 
Unified throughout the 
school year 
discussing the option 
of students attending 
SWAA before 
becoming expelled. 
Two students enrolled 

  Continue coordination 
of services with 
county child welfare, 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, and 
districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of 
student health and 
education records, 
immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and 
immediate delivery of 
educational services 
measured through 
number of meetings, 
agendas and 
transition plans. 
 
Work with CCOE 
Prevention Services 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 37 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

and CCOE Special 
Education. 
 
Developed Student 
transition plans and 
participated in 
transition meetings for 
students transitioning 
back to their home 
districts 
 
Developed and 
maintained Student 
ILP Plans for all 
students and IEP and 
504 plans when 
appropriate 
 
Coordinated services 
with CCOE Prevention 
Services 
 

in SWAA following 
their SARB meetings. 
 
Colusa County 
Behavioral Health 
provided group 
sessions to students 
every Monday during 
the school year.  The 
program was 
voluntary for students. 
 
No students 
transferred back to 
their home districts 
during the 2021-22 
school year. 
 
IEP, 504, and ILP 
plans were maintained 
during the school year 
for students. 
 
Meetings occurred 
weekly with 
Prevention Services 
Staff to discuss 
services for students. 
 
Prevention Services 
staff provided services 
such as TUPE, CHKS 
surveys, and SWAT 
presentations to 
students at SWAA. 

team to coordinate 
services by meeting 
monthly (12 times) to 
update services 
provided 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 38 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

They also assisted in 
facilitating McKinney 
Vento paperwork for 
students qualifying as 
homeless. 
 
Follow up letters to all 
district 
superintendents at the 
end of the school year 
was sent by the 
principal to update 
district leaders of their 
student's progress, 
attendance, behavior, 
and the student's plan 
for the 2022-23 school 
year. 
 

10. Coordination of 
services for foster 
youth        

2020-21 
The Foster Youth 
Executive Advisory 
Council quarterly 
meetings 
Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison 
meetings 
 
Transportation and 
meals provided to ALL 
students at SWAA, 
including Foster Youth 
to ensure that they 
attended school 
Metric measured 

2021-22 
Foster Youth 
Executive Advisory 
Meetings were held 
on the following dates: 
9/9/2021 
12/2/2021 
3/10/2022 
5/5/2022 
 
 
Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison 
Meetings were held 
on: 
8/23/2021 

  Continue coordination 
of services with CCOE 
Prevention Services to 
collaborate with 
county child welfare, 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, and 
districts, to ensure the 
timely transfer of 
student health and 
education records, 
immediate school 
enrollment, minimize 
changes in school 
placement, and 
immediate delivery of 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 39 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

through referrals to 
CCOE Prevention 
Services team and 
monthly meetings 
 

9/13/2021 
10/18/2021 
12/3/2021 
1/24/2022 
2/14/2022 
3/14/2022 
4/4/2022 
5/16/2022 
 
Transportation and 
meals were provided 
to all students at 
SWAA including 
Foster Youth. 
 
 

educational services 
by meeting monthly 
(12 times) to update 
services provided 
including but not 
limited to 
transportation, meals 
and support services 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

3.1 Facilities        Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) ratings of good or better 
 
 

$19,142.00 No      
X 
 

3.2 MTSS        Provide academic and behavioral interventions 
 
 

$34,500.00 No      
XX 

 

3.3 Transportation        Provide reliable, safe transportation from home to school to increase 
attendance 
 
 

$7,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.4 Student Meals        Provide a nutritious breakfast and lunch for students through the 
National School Lunch Program for qualifying students and those that 
do not meet program requirements 
 

$6,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 40 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 

3.5 Parent Engagement        Partner with CCOE Prevention Services Department to provide parent 
engagement opportunities on a regular basis and continue to invite 
parents to LCAP Educational Partner Meetings and student activities 
 
 

$1,350.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.6 Student Incentives        Services and supplies need to achieve and maintain student academic 
and behavior goals 
 
 

$4,200.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.7 SEL        Provide social-emotional learning supports for students through 
curriculum, activities, and staff training 
 
 

$16,437.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.8 Independent Study        Support Independent Study/home school students by maintaining 
regularly scheduled weekly meetings to provide direct instruction, 
assignments and support 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

3.9 Instructional 
Assistant        

Additional social emotional and academic services provided to SWAA 
students. This position will be based on available funding sources 
 
 

$52,500.00 No      
X 
 

3.10 Referral process        Continue coordination between CCOE-Educational Services Staff and 
district liaisons for all referrals to SWAA regular and Independent 
Study Programs. Coordination of activities includes referral process 
and the integration of special education compliance with all placement 
change requirements for students with an IEP. 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

3.11 Foster Youth        CCOE will coordinate services for foster children through appropriate 
tracking through Foster Focus; monthly district liaison meetings; 
providing technical assistance as needed; meeting program 
compliance; and maintaining existing MOU with Colusa County One 
Stop to support the Independent Learning Program. 

$1,500.00 No      
X 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 41 of 76 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Maintenance and operation costs increased during the 2021-22 school year therefore a substantive difference existed in Action 3.1.   SWAA 
continued to provide Multitiered systems of support to its students during the school year.  The cost for Special Education was also reflected 
in Action 3.2. Transportation to and from school in the school van continued to be a priority for students and parents but anticipated costs 
came in under budget. Parents indicated in surveys and during parent teacher conferences how beneficial the transportation was for their 
student. Student meals were provided for all students that requested them.  Due to the USDA food program, SWAA did not incur any costs 
for the 2021-22 school year but the action was still met with students receiving breakfast and lunch during the school day. Parent 
Engagement activities were provide and anticipated costs were close to targeted amounts, but attendance by parents was extremely low.  
Student incentives and the continuation of the PRIDE store for positive behavior each month is a highlight for students and will continue to 
encourage students to be recognized for their positive contributions. Action 8, Independent study options will continue to be provided to 
students wishing to participate in the program.  At the end of the school year,   three students remained on Independent study and one 
indicated her desire to continue in the fall.        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Increase in salary and benefit rate to M&O staff resulted in the increase in budgeted expenditures in Goal 3, Action 1. 
Action 3.3, transportation costs showed a decrease from anticipated costs as students that resided in Maxwell graduated from SWAA. SEL 
action #7 showed a material difference in costs associated for Social Emotional Learning due to costs being less than projected.  The 
purchase of Navigate 360 to deter suspensions and provide supports for students will continue in 2022-23.  Due to the instructional assistant 
not being hired until January 2022, costs were less than anticipated.  Action 11 costs for Foster Youths resulted in less than anticipated costs 
due to the graduation of a foster youth in the fall of 2021. 
        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Action 1: 
December 10, 2021, FIT Report revealed a 94.79% rating indicating “Good”. Maintenance personnel provided repairs to SWAA classrooms 
and facilities were maintained and cleaned daily. M&O and CU costs were applied to Action 1. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 42 of 76 

MTSS Conference Registration, travel, and accommodations for Educational Services Staff was reflected in Goal 3, Action 2. This training 
will benefit all staff that interact with students of SWAA. 
 
Action 3: 
Transportation is provided to all SWAA students in the morning to arrive at school on time via the school van.  Transportation home is either 
provided by the van or students are provided a transit ticket to return to their homes. With the hiring of the Instructional Assistant in January 
2022, no transit tickets were needed.  Parents and students felt supported by the school and indicated on multiple occasions their 
appreciation of the transportation program. 
 
Action 4: 
Due to USDA funding, costs for student meals through the National School Lunch program have been $0.00 thus resulting in zero costs 
currently. 
 
Action 5: 
Parent engagement initiative titled “We Are Family/Entre Familia”  led to workshops centered on Tobacco Use Prevention Education, Coping 
with Stress & Depress, Attendance Intervention Strategies & Communication, Self-Care, Healthy Food Choices and Understanding IEP's and 
504's. The workshops were held monthly between September 2021-April 2022 ( except for the month of December due to holidays and 
student winter break).   Workshops were hosted in both English and Spanish to accommodate the participants. 
 
Action 6: 
Monthly student incentive store, Back to School Night Supplies and Student earned classroom furniture are included in the cost to provide 
SWAA students incentives for academic and personal achievement. 
 
Action 7 : 
Current costs reflect the Purchase of the annual Go-Guardian Subscription. Character Strong SEL Curriculum was purchased with funds 
from CAL-HOPE FEMA Grant, $9,197.20 thus resulting in a reduction of planned expenditures 
SWAA students were taken on a field trip for SEL capacity-building.  Colusa County Behavior Health provided weekly sessions to SWAA 
students free of charge for SEL support. The group was provided for those  students wishing to participate and not required. 
 
Action 8: 
SWAA had  three students on Independent Study  at the end of the regular school year.  Students attended meetings weekly in person  with 
the teacher to receive direct instruction and support. 
 
Action 9: 
Salary and benefits for the Instructional Assistant, who assists the students at SWAA proved beneficial for students. Students established 
trusting relationships with the instructional assistant and also received additional classroom support .  The situation was beneficial to staff, 
students and parents, and the instructional assistant will be hired for a full year  and will return in the fall of 2022. The need for this stable role 
model for the students will help students adjust to the change of a new teacher in fall 2022. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 43 of 76 

 
Action 10: 
SWAA Principal participated in SARB and DART meetings with Williams, Pierce,  and Colusa School Districts which has resulted in students 
being sent to SWAA or parents being made aware of the program.  Referrals to SWAA from  Maxwell are initiated by communication 
between the  District Principal/Superintendent and the SWAA Principal.  All district leadership are reminded of the referral process to SWAA 
and the paperwork that must accompany the referral.  District leadership must disclose all interventions provided to students before SWAA 
leadership considers enrollment, unless an Expulsion order is provided.  Positive outcomes resulted from students being sent to SWAA prior 
to or in danger of being expelled. 
 
Action 11: 
CCOE Prevention Services has tracked foster youth coming in and out of the county using Foster Focus. Through collaboration at the 
monthly district liaison meetings, staff worked with districts to provide technical support to best support the needs of Colusa County Foster 
Youth. 
The Preventions Services team participated in the 2022 Foster Youth Summit, with funds from 3.11.  At this time, plans are underway for the 
first "Fostering Youth Success Day" which will be hosted for all foster youth in the county and their families.  If participation rates are as 
expected, this will continue to be an annual event. 
 
        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

As indicated previously, due to the demand from parents and students, transportation will continue to be provided in 2022-23 along with the 
other actions. Parent engagement activities will be reconstructed to ensure that there is parent involvement.  It is anticipated that meal costs 
will resume in 2022-23. Funding for the instructional assistant will remain a priority in 2022-23 and years to come.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 44 of 76 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2022-23] 
 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent) 
72360 $0 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

2.91% 0.00% $0.00 2.91% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education is utilizing LCFF Supplemental funds to improve student achievement to meets the needs of low income, 
English learners and foster youth at the S. William Abel Academy. Due to the small school size of 17 students (11 students were reported on 
Cal Pads reporting day on October 6, 2021), mobile student population, and extremely credit deficient students, some LCFF supplemental 
funds are used schoolwide. 2021-22 SWAA demographics as of June 2022, reveal that 85% of SWAA students are low-income, 31% of 
SWAA students are English Learners, and 8% of the SWAA population represent foster youth. While many of the actions listed below are 
being used school wide, the actions listed in this section are targeted at improving outcomes for SWAA’s unduplicated students. SWAA’s 
county community school student population are low income students with a high mobility rate. There is a need to differentiate instruction to 
meet the various academic, social emotional, and career readiness skills needed by all students, whether they are enrolled for short or long 
term. Whether the student population consists of probation, probation-referred or at-promise students, all students demonstrate at-risk 
behaviors that align with factors of incarcerated adults or high school drop-outs.         
The following actions/services have been identified as increasing or improving services beyond the base program: 
Goal 1: S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and instruction and will be 
measured through formative and summative assessments. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 45 of 76 

Increased or improved services in goal 1 include: 
(1.2) Assessing English skills for English Learners that provide a planned course of action to improve English learner outcomes beyond the 
current use of Exact path diagnostics. Current English Learner scores show that 100% are performing below grade level. By implementing 
NWEA’s MAP assessment, this will precisely measure growth and proficiency and provide insights to tailor instruction. These recommended 
areas for improved instruction in MAP combined with its ability to link to Exact Path remediation programs already in place at SWAA, will help 
students focus on key targeted areas of instruction. The use of this assessment and its effect on raising the achievement of students will be 
measured through qualitative feedback from staff. 
        
Goal 2: Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness. 
 
Increased or improved services in goal 2 include: 
(2.2) CTE and College Readiness Experiences: 100% of unduplicated students have listed on their Individualized Learning plans the goal of 
obtaining a job or obtaining skills to be employed. Parent feedback has indicated currently and previously the need for students to participate 
in work based learning experiences. Since 85% of students are low income, the exposure of students to colleges and financial aid, and 
potential careers will help assist them in meeting their goals. Measurement of work based learning outcomes will be reflected on student’s 
individual learning plan goals. 
(2.3) Summer School Academy will provide additional opportunities for students to participate in programs that allow for credit recovery. 
SWAA offers these programs to students’ school-wide, since 100% of students that enroll in SWAA are credit deficient. Extended learning 
opportunities help bridge the gap for unduplicated students and those wishing to return to their district once their expulsion has been served. 
Outcomes will be measured though student ILP goals listed on ILP plans, and obtaining student’s targeted goals regarding credits. 
        
Goal 3: Develop and implement a multi-tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that improves social 
emotional health and student engagement. 
 
Increased or improved services in goal 3 include: 
(3.2, 3.6. 3.7) Multitiered Levels of Support for students at the SWAA will work to not only improve the chronic absenteeism rate of 72.22% in 
2021-22, but reflected an increase in the attendance rate of students in 2021-22,. In addition, these will provide targeted interventions 
necessary for foster youth, low income, and English learners. MTSS will provide a school wide system of increasing positive behavior to 
reduce student suspensions, reducing discipline referrals while increasing student learning outcomes. Student incentives for class 
participation and positive behavior has resulted in reduced suspensions for all students that have enrolled at SWAA. Social emotional 
learning support for foster youth, low income and English learners in the past has included at least weekly check -in for students to share 
concerns  with therapists from Behavioral Health. These supports are necessary for continued success of at-promise students located at 
SWAA. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 46 of 76 

 
(3.3) Transportation to increase attendance: SWAA is 10 to 20 miles from neighboring rural schools; therefore providing transportation at no 
cost to students or families allows students to have a safe route to school while at the same time increasing student attendance. Providing 
transportation services in this high need area ultimately bridges the achievement gap. Low income students lack the resources to travel 20 
miles to school daily. With nearly all students represented in one of the unduplicated student groups, SWAA provides transportation for all 
students school-wide. Transportation was claimed the highest priority by educational partners at the February 25, 2021, Stakeholder meeting 
and remains a high priority of educational partners in 2022. Attendance rates from 2020-21 to 2021-22 increased from 85.3% to 87.05% due 
to consistent transportation to and from school. 
 
(3.4) Meals for low income students: students benefit from a no cost nutritious meal, improve their nutritional and educational outcomes 
which are directly tied to an increase in school attendance. Since 85% of SWAA students are considered low income and have expressed 
the need for breakfast and lunch, the school provides meals to all of its students to ensure students have access to nutritious meals daily. An 
increase in student attendance in 2021-22 as stated above, correlated to the student’s participation in the meal program as the means for 
measurement. 
 
(3.5) Parent engagement has been an area of needed improvement for SWAA. Additional parent engagement opportunities to support 
parents was a recommendation from the 2021 and remains a need in 2022 . Services to include parents in engaging activities will benefit all 
parents but targeted activities will provide support in assisting their children identified as foster youth and English learners and in bridging the 
achievement gap for these student groups. 
 
All actions will be continued in 2022-23. 
        
 

 
A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 
 

The increased apportionment of supplemental concentration funds of $72,360 is used to increase services for students by implementing the 
actions and services listed above. While more than the projected 2.91% of these funds shall support specific student groups, improvement 
will be demonstrated school wide. By implementing the actions listed above supported by the increased funds, foster youth, English Learners 
and low-income students will benefit. This will be measured through increased attendance rates, low suspension rates, social emotional 
support, increased high school graduation rate, and increased individual scores on formative and summative assessments.         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 47 of 76 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

CCOE does not receive additional concentration grant add-on funding,  but  the hiring of the instructional assistant for direct support to 
students was paid through other state monies.  SWAA leadership realized the need for direct support for students in addition to the full time 
teacher.         

 
Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

         1:11         

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

         4:11         

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 48 of 76 

 
2022-23 Total Expenditures Table 
 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State 
Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-

personnel 
Totals          $257,677.00         $52,500.00   $310,177.00 $181,811.00 $128,366.00 

 
Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

1 1.1 SWAA Teacher        XAll        
 

$102,548.00 
   

$102,548.00 

1 1.2 Assessment Program        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income        
 

$2,000.00 
   

$2,000.00 

1 1.3 Curriculum        XAll        
 

$24,500.00 
   

$24,500.00 

1 1.4 Staff Professional 
Development        

XAll        
 

$1,000.00 
   

$1,000.00 

1 1.5 ELD Strategies        XAll        
 

$500.00 
   

$500.00 

2 2.1 Individualized 
Learning Plans        

XAll         
    

$0.00 

2 2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness 
Experiences        

XLow Income         $31,000.00 
   

$31,000.00 

2 2.3 Summer School 
Academy        

XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$4,700.00 
   

$4,700.00 

2 2.4 Course Offerings        XAll         $1,300.00 
   

$1,300.00 
3 3.1 Facilities        XAll         $19,142.00 

   
$19,142.00 

3 3.2 MTSS        XAll        
XStudents with 
Disabilities         

$34,500.00 
   

$34,500.00 

3 3.3 Transportation        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$7,000.00 
   

$7,000.00 

3 3.4 Student Meals        XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

$6,000.00 
   

$6,000.00 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$1,350.00 
   

$1,350.00 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 49 of 76 

Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
3 3.6 Student Incentives        XEnglish Learners        

XLow Income         
$4,200.00 

   
$4,200.00 

3 3.7 SEL        XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

$16,437.00 
   

$16,437.00 

3 3.8 Independent Study        XAll         
    

$0.00 
3 3.9 Instructional Assistant        XAll         

 
$52,500.00 

  
$52,500.00 

3 3.10 Referral process        XAll         
    

$0.00 
3 3.11 Foster Youth        XAll         $1,500.00 

   
$1,500.00 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 50 of 76 

 
2022-23 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

2489941 72360 2.91% 0.00% 2.91% $72,687.00 0.00% 2.92 % Total:         $72,687.00 
        LEA-wide 

Total:         $72,687.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $0.00 
 

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.2 Assessment Program XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $2,000.00 
 

2 2.2 CTE and College 
Readiness Experiences 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XLow Income         XAll Schools         $31,000.00 
 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $4,700.00 
 

3 3.3 Transportation XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $7,000.00 
 

3 3.4 Student Meals XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $6,000.00 
 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $1,350.00 
 

3 3.6 Student Incentives XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $4,200.00 
 

3 3.7 SEL XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $16,437.00 
 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 51 of 76 

 
2021-22 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $242,723.00 $165,927.00 

 
Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 SWAA Teacher        No      

X 
 

50920 70847 

1 1.2 Assessment Program        Yes     
X 
 

2000 0 

1 1.3 Curriculum        No      
X 
 

24500 886 

1 1.4 Staff Professional Development        No      
X 
 

1000 493 

1 1.5 ELD Strategies        No      
X 
 

500 153 

2 2.1 Individualized Learning Plans        No      
X 
 

0 0 

2 2.2 CTE and College Readiness 
Experiences        

Yes     
X 
 

31000 9583 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy        Yes     
X 
 

8356 0 

2 2.4 Course Offerings        No      
X 
 

1000 1235 

3 3.1 Facilities        No      15010 19142 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 52 of 76 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
X 
 

3 3.2 MTSS        Yes     
X 
 

34500 30,046 

3 3.3 Transportation        Yes     
X 
 

7000 6063 

3 3.4 Student Meals        Yes     
X 
 

6000 0 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement        Yes     
X 
 

1000 1319 

3 3.6 Student Incentives        Yes     
X 
 

4000 4183 

3 3.7 SEL        Yes     
X 
 

9437 4251 

3 3.8 Independent Study        No      
X 
 

0 0 

3 3.9 Instructional Assistant        No      
X 
 

45000 17346 

3 3.10 Referral process        No      
X 
 

0 0 

3 3.11 Foster Youth        No      
X 
 

1500 380 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 53 of 76 

 
2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

43274         $103,293.00         $55,445.00         $47,848.00         0.00%         0.00%         0.00%         
 

Last 
Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.2 Assessment Program XYes     
 

2000 0  
 

2 2.2 CTE and College Readiness 
Experiences 

XYes     
 

31000 9583  
 

2 2.3 Summer School Academy XYes     
 

8356 0  
 

3 3.2 MTSS XYes     
 

34500 30046  
 

3 3.3 Transportation XYes     
 

7000 6063  
 

3 3.4 Student Meals XYes     
 

6000 0  
 

3 3.5 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

1000 1319  
 

3 3.6 Student Incentives XYes     
 

4000 4183  
 

3 3.7 SEL XYes     
 

9437 4251  
 

 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 54 of 76 

 
2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Current 
School Year 

(6 divided by 9 
+ Carryover 

%) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for 
Contributing 

Actions  
(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 
9, plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 
9) 

1733471 43274 0 2.50% $55,445.00 0.00% 3.20% $0.00 0.00% 
 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 55 of 76 

Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students  

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, 
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support 
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made 
through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's 
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to 
be included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).  

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 56 of 76 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP 
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging 
educational partners.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for educational partners and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the 
LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including 
by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 57 of 76 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. For example, 
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what 
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific 
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved 
performance for these students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include 
a goal to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include 
this goal and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 58 of 76 

Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing 
this section.  

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in 
developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between 
schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 59 of 76 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the 
LCAP.” 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum, 
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A 
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its 
educational partners.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.” 

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the 
LCAP. For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are 
not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 60 of 76 

• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
• Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Determination of material differences in expenditures 
• Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 61 of 76 

Focus Goal(s) 
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to 
pursue a focus goal. 

Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Required Goals 
In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with 
the development of the 2022–23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP. 

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years 
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEAs required to include a goal in the LCAP 
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.  

• Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria must 
include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 62 of 76 

Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, 
this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required to have a goal to address each student group; 
however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this required goal with 
another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student group or 
groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. 

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the student 
group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous 
efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help 
achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description. 

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply 
to a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest 
performance levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the 
performance of the “All Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs 
required to include a goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s 
Local Control Funding Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a goal in its 
LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must include metrics, 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students enrolled at the low-performing 
school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address each school; however, each school must 
be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal with another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students enrolled at 
the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole.  

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the schools(s) 
that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous efforts to 
improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the 
outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 63 of 76 

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–21 outcomes on some 
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023–24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 64 of 76 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023–24) 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022–
23. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023–
24. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024–
25. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22 or when 
adding a new 
metric. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the 
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided 
in the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the 
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or 
schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the 
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 65 of 76 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned 
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in 
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not 
closely associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK–12 as compared to all 
students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to 
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section 
as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the 
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
students. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 66 of 76 

Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, 
as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services 
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover 
percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not 
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs 
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in 
the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs 
of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting 
the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 67 of 76 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 
climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s]) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance 
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet 
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also 
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 68 of 76 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40 percent or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and 
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required. 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they 
are provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that 
only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to 
result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides 
to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the 
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff 
and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 69 of 76 

An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number 
of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.  

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA 
that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to 
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected 
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with 
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing 
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, 
and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students 
that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of 
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, 
Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action 
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and 
the LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying 
the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 70 of 76 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2022–23 LCAP, 2022–23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021–22 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Data Entry Table 
The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year, 
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and 
the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school 
year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior 
LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 71 of 76 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 72 of 76 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some 
measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action 
contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement 
the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for 
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English 
learners, and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by 
hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost 
$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster 
youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated 
cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 73 of 76 

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in 
the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this 
action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated 
for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements 
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action 
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the 
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated 
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the 
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated 
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current 

school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
Program and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 74 of 76 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from 
the prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting 
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) 
is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number 
and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 75 of 76 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing 
Expenditures (4) 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services (8) 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 + Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base 
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the 
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). 
This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Colusa County Office of Education Page 76 of 76 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP 
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
January 2022 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
2022-23 Proposed Budget 

Page 1 of 155

11.2



June 15, 2022 

To: Colusa County Board of Education 

? 

Subject: 2022-23 Budget 

From: Michael West 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.8054 

Attached you will find a copy of the budget for the 2022-23 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, 

for your review and approval. As we emerge from two years of lockdowns, new and ever-

changing regulations, and multiple starts and stops surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, we 

continue to take a fiscally cautious and conservative position in developing this budget based 

on the Governor's May 2022 budget proposal. 

In the Governor's May Revision, the state now has projected total funding of $128.3 billion for 

all K-12 education programs in 2022-23, the highest level of funding in California's history. This 

includes a 6.56% cost-of-living-adjustment (COLA) for the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), 

as well as many other targeted funding increases, including special education, and universal 

free meals for all students. 

These increases in funding help to offset the County Office's cost to do business, including 

increases of more than two percent in employer paid retirement contributions, as well as 

inflationary increases of 7.9% from a year ago as measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

as of April 2022. Energy prices alone have jumped 34.2% in the past year, largely the result of 

an increase in the price of gasoline. 

In 2022-23, the Colusa County Office of Education anticipates the possibility of a large one-time 

purchase, the 5th Street Office, which will result in deficit spending this year, but we project a 

return to surplus budgeting in the years thereafter. In this sustained effort, CCOE will continue 

to provide the best services and educational opportunities for its students and families as is 

possible. 

This budget is a snapshot of our  present fiscal status and reflects the best plan that our fiscal 

department and program managers have, based on today's information and assumptions. 

Budgets are ever-changing documents that reflect the mission and goals of the county office, 

and change as more information is available. Monthly and Interim reports will be brought to 

the board to show any material changes throughout the year. 

Page 2 of 155



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

COE Certification (Form CB/CC) .......................................................................................... 4 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ..................................................................................... 9 

General Fund 01Assumptions and Forms........................................................................... 11 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) for General Fund 01 ............................................................. 36 

Adult Education Fund 11 ...................................................................................................... 50 

Child Development Fund 12 ................................................................................................ 59 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 ......................................................................................................... 68 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ...................................................................................................... 74 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 ................................................................... 80 

 Criteria and Standards Report ........................................................................................... 88 

Technical Review Checks……………………………………………………………………….117 

Budget Glossary…………………………………………………………………………………..125 

 

Page 3 of 155



 

 

 

COE Certification Forms CB & CC 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 155



Page 5 of 155



Page 6 of 155



Page 7 of 155



Page 8 of 155



 

 

 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 155



Page 10 of 155



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 155



General Fund Financial Assumptions 

Budget 2022-23 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of 

the Budget for the year 2022-23. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the 

governor signs the annual budget we will make available for public review 

any revisions made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the 

budget act.  We also report to the board at First Interim (December), and 

Second Interim (March) report periods. 

 

The attached Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) forms are 

presented by major object account classification, reflecting the 2021-22 

Estimated Actuals in Columns A-C and the Proposed 2022-23 adopted 

budget in Column D-F. The Budget figures are broken out by Restricted, 

Unrestricted and Totals for each of the two years. The differences between 

the two years is shown as a percentage in the last column. 

 

Restricted programs are programs that are funded by specific sources for 

specific activities such as Special Education. Unrestricted programs are 

programs and expenditures that are funding by state and local dollars that 

do not have a specific activity tied to the funding source. Although the 

word “unrestricted” is associated with these dollars, the county office has 

many mandated requirements and activities that these funds are used for, 

such as support to districts and Williams Act requirements. 

 

The SACS Forms attached are the documents the Board is adopting. Other  

supplemental information is included to make the SACS forms more 

informative. 

Page 12 of 155



 

 
Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living increase based on 

the School Services Dartboard and reflect any known changes to funding 

or expenditures for the future two years. Salary increases for step and 

column are included in these projections. 

 

Looking ahead to 2022-23 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  

The County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce organizational 

costs to better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the 

belief that the students we help educate today are our future tomorrow. 

 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well 

as transfers from other funds within the County Office. 

 

Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any 

known information on current population.   

 

Page 13 of 155



Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period 

with the most current attendance data and the latest projections from 

CDE. The LCFF funds consist of Local Property Taxes, Education Protection 

Act (Prop 30) Funds, and State Aid.  LCFF funding equates to 23% of the 

general fund revenue. From the School Services of California’s May 

revision workshop, the following slides show the major changes to LCFF 

funding for County Offices:

 

Page 14 of 155



 
 

Federal Revenue comprises 10% of the general fund revenue.  Federal 

revenues are projected to decrease by $607,526 since 2021-22.  This 

Page 15 of 155



decrease is due to our three-year IAL grant coming to an end. 

 

State Revenue is 34% of the general fund revenue. State revenues are 

projected to increase by $290,056 since 2021-22.  This increase is due one 

time funds for the Educator Effectiveness Block grant, the ELO grant and 

Foster Youth. 

 

Local Revenue makes up 33% of the general fund revenue.  Local revenues 

are projected to decrease by $351,418 since 2021-22.  This decrease is due 

to a reduction of Special Education excess costs. 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
 
 
The 2022-23 expenditures in the general fund are projected to increase 

from 2021-22.  Much of the increase is attributed to Special Education 

additional staff, a possible office building purchase, and other additional 

grant funding expenditures. 

 

 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

 

Certificated salaries are 29% of all general fund expenditures.  This amount 

has decreased by $128,847 from 2021-22 due a decrease in Special 

Education costs and the ending of our three-year IAL grant. 

 

Certificated Salaries
29%

Classified Salaries
27%

Employee Benefits
26%

Books & 
Supplies
4%

Other Services
9%

Equipment
9%

Indirect/Debt 
Payment
-4%

2022-23 Expenditures

Certificated Salaries Classified Salaries Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies Other Services Equipment

Indirect/Debt Payment

Page 16 of 155



Classified salaries make up 27% of all expenditures. Classified salaries have 

increased $214,538 since 2021-22. The increase is due to the addition of a 

position to Administrative Services and an increase in funding from the 

CalHope grant and Special Education positions added.  

 

Employer paid benefit costs are 26% of all expenditures. The benefit costs 

have increased $125,414 compared to 2021-22 as a result of the 

corresponding salary increases as well as an increased benefits cap. 

Continuing increases in STRS and PERS employer paid rates, and statutory 

benefit rate increases are additional drivers of these rising costs. 

 
Books and Supplies total 4% of all expenditures. The overall decrease in 

program budgets for supplies is $303,488 less compared to 2021-22. This 

decrease is primarily due to the ending of our three-year IAL grant. 

 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 9% of all expenditures. Budgets 

for services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by 

$49,612 compared to 2021-22.  The majority of this increase is due to 

increased expenditures in Special Education and the Tobacco Law 

Enforcement Grant Program. 

 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is 9% of all expenditures. From 2021-22 this 

budget has increased by $1,260,000 primarily due to the possible purchase 

of the Fifth Street Office building.  

 
 

Page 17 of 155



 

Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by 4%.   

 

The Indirect Cost Rate (ICR)  

 
ICR for the budget year 2022-23 is 7.97%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program 

guidelines prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have 

been arranged with the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 

2022-23 are as follows: 

  

• Special Education / First 5 – Not to exceed 7.00% 

• Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

• Ed. SVS – Not to exceed 7.97% 

• Food Services – Not to exceed 5.35% 

• IAL Services – Not to exceed 7.97% (Grant ends September 30, 2022) 
 

 

Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing and 

will continue to work diligently to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is budgeted to spend more than it will receive in 2022-23 

in the amount of $402,274 due to the possible purchase of the Fifth Street 

Office building. The Multiyear Projection (MYP) projects a surplus during 

fiscal year 2023-24 in the amount of $531,849, and a surplus in 2024-25 of 

$647,401. 

 

The most significant fiscal concern the County Office has is the cap on LCFF 

growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, and PERS and 

STRS costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 2% for PERS 

and 2% for STRS in 2022-23.  Educational agencies across the state are 

struggling with managing this imbalance.   

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational 

opportunities possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the 

Colusa County Office of Education is committed to finding ways to control 

costs without impairing services, and further enrich the lives of our students. 

Page 18 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,428,391 9700 4,469,394 

Revenue

2,632,076 2,632,076 2,632,076 2,625,384 8000 3,612,124 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,118,585 1,127,562 1,127,562 1,155,062 8100 1,255,687 Federal Revenue

955,667 1,033,847 1,042,242 1,028,017 8200 306,591 Federal Revenue

2,845,565 3,213,153 3,213,153 3,232,512 8300 3,677,987 Other State Revenue

1,397,495 1,780,009 1,836,934 2,000,961 8500 1,662,156 Other State Revenue

760,314 658,040 795,150 1,114,124 8600 757,100 Other Local Revenue

4,586,795 4,674,334 4,674,334 4,120,619 8700 4,360,966 Other Local Revenue

6,000 6,000 309,360 309,360 8900 606,000 Other Sources

15,586,039 15,630,811 15,125,021 14,302,497 16,238,611 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,497,210 2,590,256 2,600,256 2,531,327 1100 2,599,034 Teacher Salaries

1,390,162 1,594,047 1,594,047 1,584,711 1200 1,483,148 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

716,371 696,113 709,613 786,448 1300 666,604 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

110,798 92,066 92,066 110,288 1900 118,349 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 5,012,774 4,995,982 4,972,482 4,714,541 4,867,135 

1,467,251 1,560,204 1,560,204 1,372,061 2100 1,605,795 Para Educator Salaries

727,104 746,441 746,441 768,852 2200 816,247 Classified Support

685,509 699,288 699,288 712,690 2300 799,699 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

965,064 1,033,891 1,043,891 1,030,215 2400 1,069,526 Clerical/Office Salaries

355,770 283,125 287,225 302,471 2900 260,320 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 4,186,289 4,337,049 4,322,949 4,200,698 4,551,587 

1,142,866 1,195,001 1,197,876 1,188,832 3100 1,235,018 STRS State Teachers Retirement

991,115 1,067,053 1,067,427 1,026,162 3200 1,174,230 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

388,093 417,187 417,509 401,092 3300 420,295 Social Security/Medicare

1,053,918 1,170,185 1,171,255 1,101,656 3400 1,171,976 Health & Welfare Insurance

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 1 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 19 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

115,734 59,025 59,101 59,453 3500 43,764 State Unemployment Insurance

265,710 256,676 257,098 251,467 3600 256,297 Workers Compensation

10,000 15,900 15,900 12,950 3700 10,000 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 4,041,612 4,186,166 4,181,027 3,967,436 4,311,580 

490,099 528,527 577,931 605,761 4300 416,411 Materials and Supplies

220,538 224,070 242,395 248,714 4400 90,013 Noncapitalized Equipment

74,679 74,679 74,679 74,679 4700 85,093 Food

Total for Object 4000 929,154 895,005 827,276 785,316 591,517 

5100 170,000 Sub-Agreements

139,440 135,765 155,765 164,965 5200 148,661 Travel/Conference

38,172 53,574 53,574 49,346 5300 48,674 Dues/Memberships

115,000 130,820 130,820 122,910 5400 150,000 Property/Liab.Insurance

116,586 141,189 141,189 141,189 5500 141,189 Utilities

116,181 124,507 124,639 128,410 5600 129,962 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

621,093- 621,093- 628,030- 738,530-5700 583,851-Direct Costs Transfers

889,583 1,261,440 1,301,561 1,775,303 5800 1,158,272 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

185,272 151,543 151,543 152,727 5900 117,766 Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,796,320 1,431,061 1,377,745 979,141 1,480,673 

30,000 125,000 125,000 6100 Land Improvements

6200 1,300,000 New Building/Improvement of

38,302 30,186 46,187 50,930 6400 130,486 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 175,930 171,187 30,186 68,302 1,430,486 

9,700 29,700 29,700 7200 29,700 Other Transfers Out

509,854- 546,192- 621,269- 626,743-7300 621,793-Direct Support/indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 597,043-591,569-536,492-509,854- 592,093-

15,545,036 15,424,881 15,175,173 14,205,580 16,640,885 Total for Expense 

accounts

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 2 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 20 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Ending Balance

4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 9700

Total for Fund 01

Starting Balance 4,024,914 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,428,391 4,469,394 

Revenue 14,302,497 15,125,021 15,630,811 15,586,039 16,238,611 

Expense 14,205,580 15,175,173 15,424,881 15,545,036 16,640,885 

Ending Balance Acct Type 4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 0 

Calc Ending Balance 4,121,831 4,378,239 4,634,321 4,469,394 4,067,120 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 3 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 21 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 1 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 579,463.00 4,433,311.00 5,012,774.00 529,133.00 4,338,002.00 4,867,135.00 -2.9%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 1,602,852.00 2,583,437.00 4,186,289.00 1,811,862.00 2,739,725.00 4,551,587.00 8.7%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,046,953.00 2,994,659.00 4,041,612.00 1,071,721.00 3,239,859.00 4,311,580.00 6.7%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 203,931.00 725,223.00 929,154.00 189,151.00 402,366.00 591,517.00 -36.3%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 640,464.00 1,155,856.00 1,796,320.00 669,341.00 811,332.00 1,480,673.00 -17.6%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 155,186.00 20,744.00 175,930.00 1,430,486.00 0.00 1,430,486.00 713.1%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,397,393.00) 770,650.00 (626,743.00) (1,328,781.00) 706,988.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 40,809.00 (309,166.00) (268,357.00) (802,306.00) (205,968.00) (1,008,274.00) 275.7%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 178,629.00 (137,626.00) 41,003.00 (402,274.00) 0.00 (402,274.00) -1,081.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

Page 22 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 2 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 4,016,952.00 50,168.00 4,067,120.00 -9.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 33,731.86 33,731.86 0.00 50,168.00 50,168.00 48.7%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 3,634,270.51 0.00 3,634,270.51 3,184,408.00 0.00 3,184,408.00 -12.4%

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00 0.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,042,491.51 3,042,491.51 0.00

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 0.00 316,799.00 316,799.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 0.00 2,592,609.00 2,592,609.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 777,252.00 0.00 777,252.00 832,044.00 0.00 832,044.00 7.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

G. ASSETS

1) Cash

a) in County  Treasury 9110 4,730,435.32 (1,240,533.11) 3,489,902.21

Page 23 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 3 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in
County  Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) in Rev olv ing Cash Account 9130 500.00 0.00 500.00

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) Inv estments 9150 0.00 0.00 0.00

3) Accounts Receiv able 9200 0.00 332,294.98 332,294.98

4) Due f rom Grantor Gov ernment 9290 0.00 0.00 0.00

5) Due f rom Other Funds 9310 29,429.12 0.00 29,429.12

6) Stores 9320 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 4,767,567.93 (891,801.99) 3,875,765.94

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

1) Accounts Pay able 9500 184,632.52 0.00 184,632.52

2) Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 770.57 0.00 770.57

4) Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00

5) Unearned Rev enue 9650 0.00 0.00 0.00

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 185,403.09 0.00 185,403.09

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

Ending Fund Balance, June 30

(G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 4,582,164.84 (891,801.99) 3,690,362.85

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,488,228.00 0.00 1,488,228.00 2,451,362.00 0.00 2,451,362.00 64.7%

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current
Year 8012 619,533.00 0.00 619,533.00 641,753.00 0.00 641,753.00 3.6%

Page 24 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 4 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 (1,386.00) 0.00 (1,386.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.0%

Timber Y ield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 50,564.00 0.00 50,564.00 50,564.00 0.00 50,564.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.0%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Receipt f rom Co. Board of  Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,625,384.00 0.00 2,625,384.00 3,612,124.00 0.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of  Property
Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 (424,019.00) 424,019.00 0.00 (424,019.00) 424,019.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 920,502.00 920,502.00 0.00 880,826.00 880,826.00 -4.3%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 234,560.00 234,560.00 0.00 374,861.00 374,861.00 59.8%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 128,483.00 128,483.00 0.00 160,000.00 160,000.00 24.5%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 25 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 5 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 610.00 610.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3045, 3060,
3061, 3110, 3150,
3155, 3180, 3182,
3183, 4037, 4038,
4123, 4124, 4126,
4127, 4128, 4204,
5630

8290

124,347.00 124,347.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 -59.8%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 0.00 774,577.00 774,577.00 0.00 95,981.00 95,981.00 -87.6%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 3,133,957.00 3,133,957.00 3,595,235.00 3,595,235.00 14.7%

Prior Years 6500 8319 15,803.00 15,803.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 82,752.00 82,752.00 0.00 82,752.00 82,752.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 0.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 -53.2%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 63.3%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 4,000.00 2,400.00 6,400.00 4,000.00 1,200.00 5,200.00 -18.8%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 26 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 6 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom

State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6680, 6685,
6690, 6695 8590 105,000.00 105,000.00 95,000.00 95,000.00 -9.5%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 5,000.00 1,827,761.00 1,832,761.00 5,000.00 1,518,956.00 1,523,956.00 -16.8%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not Subject
to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Non-
LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 42.4%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 -33.3%

Page 27 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 7 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 409,792.00 409,792.00 0.00 368,100.00 368,100.00 -10.2%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Miscellaneous Funds Non-LCFF (50
Percent) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enue f rom Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 377,725.00 223,517.00 601,242.00 118,000.00 181,000.00 299,000.00 -50.3%

Tuition 8710 24,256.00 3,921,244.00 3,945,500.00 19,234.00 4,171,464.00 4,190,698.00 6.2%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 175,119.00 0.00 175,119.00 170,268.00 0.00 170,268.00 -2.8%

Transf ers of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 62,636.00 2,468,691.00 2,531,327.00 114,046.00 2,484,988.00 2,599,034.00 2.7%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 22,967.00 1,561,744.00 1,584,711.00 0.00 1,483,148.00 1,483,148.00 -6.4%

Page 28 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 8 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 493,860.00 292,588.00 786,448.00 415,087.00 251,517.00 666,604.00 -15.2%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 110,288.00 110,288.00 0.00 118,349.00 118,349.00 7.3%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 579,463.00 4,433,311.00 5,012,774.00 529,133.00 4,338,002.00 4,867,135.00 -2.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 1,372,061.00 1,372,061.00 0.00 1,605,795.00 1,605,795.00 17.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 291,349.00 477,503.00 768,852.00 368,210.00 448,037.00 816,247.00 6.2%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 519,568.00 193,122.00 712,690.00 611,618.00 188,081.00 799,699.00 12.2%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 791,935.00 238,280.00 1,030,215.00 832,034.00 237,492.00 1,069,526.00 3.8%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 302,471.00 302,471.00 0.00 260,320.00 260,320.00 -13.9%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,602,852.00 2,583,437.00 4,186,289.00 1,811,862.00 2,739,725.00 4,551,587.00 8.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 79,170.00 1,109,662.00 1,188,832.00 0.00 1,235,018.00 1,235,018.00 3.9%

PERS 3201-3202 390,062.00 636,100.00 1,026,162.00 478,986.00 695,244.00 1,174,230.00 14.4%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 131,788.00 269,304.00 401,092.00 147,592.00 272,703.00 420,295.00 4.8%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 350,634.00 751,022.00 1,101,656.00 361,057.00 810,919.00 1,171,976.00 6.4%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 20,849.00 38,604.00 59,453.00 10,328.00 33,436.00 43,764.00 -26.4%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 61,500.00 189,967.00 251,467.00 63,758.00 192,539.00 256,297.00 1.9%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 12,950.00 0.00 12,950.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 -22.8%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,046,953.00 2,994,659.00 4,041,612.00 1,071,721.00 3,239,859.00 4,311,580.00 6.7%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 168,127.00 437,634.00 605,761.00 146,613.00 269,798.00 416,411.00 -31.3%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 35,804.00 212,910.00 248,714.00 42,538.00 47,475.00 90,013.00 -63.8%

Food 4700 0.00 74,679.00 74,679.00 0.00 85,093.00 85,093.00 13.9%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 203,931.00 725,223.00 929,154.00 189,151.00 402,366.00 591,517.00 -36.3%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 170,000.00 170,000.00 New

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 68,538.00 96,427.00 164,965.00 68,538.00 80,123.00 148,661.00 -9.9%

Dues and Memberships 5300 44,274.00 5,072.00 49,346.00 44,674.00 4,000.00 48,674.00 -1.4%

Insurance 5400 - 5450 122,910.00 0.00 122,910.00 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 22.0%

Page 29 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 9 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 129,603.00 11,586.00 141,189.00 129,603.00 11,586.00 141,189.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 100,188.00 28,222.00 128,410.00 101,740.00 28,222.00 129,962.00 1.2%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 (87,395.00) 87,395.00 0.00 (146,001.00) 146,001.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 (293,719.00) (444,811.00) (738,530.00) (308,823.00) (275,028.00) (583,851.00) -20.9%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating
Expenditures 5800 414,276.00 1,361,027.00 1,775,303.00 521,382.00 636,890.00 1,158,272.00 -34.8%

Communications 5900 141,789.00 10,938.00 152,727.00 108,228.00 9,538.00 117,766.00 -22.9%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 640,464.00 1,155,856.00 1,796,320.00 669,341.00 811,332.00 1,480,673.00 -17.6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 125,000.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 1,300,000.00 New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 30,186.00 20,744.00 50,930.00 130,486.00 0.00 130,486.00 156.2%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 155,186.00 20,744.00 175,930.00 1,430,486.00 0.00 1,430,486.00 713.1%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 30 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 10 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT
COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 (770,650.00) 770,650.00 0.00 (706,988.00) 706,988.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 (626,743.00) 0.00 (626,743.00) (621,793.00) 0.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS (1,397,393.00) 770,650.00 (626,743.00) (1,328,781.00) 706,988.00 (621,793.00) -0.8%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 600,000.00 0.00 600,000.00 New

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To State School Building Fund/County  School
Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Page 31 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 11 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Object

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital Assets 8953 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Other Sources

County  School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a- b + c - d + e) 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

Page 32 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 12 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Function

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,201,365.00 424,019.00 2,625,384.00 3,188,105.00 424,019.00 3,612,124.00 37.6%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 2,183,079.00 2,183,079.00 0.00 1,562,278.00 1,562,278.00 -28.4%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 18,800.00 5,214,673.00 5,233,473.00 25,000.00 5,315,143.00 5,340,143.00 2.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 652,100.00 4,582,643.00 5,234,743.00 357,502.00 4,760,564.00 5,118,066.00 -2.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,872,265.00 12,404,414.00 15,276,679.00 3,570,607.00 12,062,004.00 15,632,611.00 2.3%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 1000-1999 126,099.00 6,490,490.00 6,616,589.00 198,366.00 6,994,449.00 7,192,815.00 8.7%

2) Instruction - Related Serv ices 2000-2999 1,094,045.00 2,560,312.00 3,654,357.00 1,221,949.00 1,848,576.00 3,070,525.00 -16.0%

3) Pupil Serv ices 3000-3999 108,443.00 2,260,418.00 2,368,861.00 83,215.00 2,298,499.00 2,381,714.00 0.5%

4) Ancillary  Serv ices 4000-4999 10,300.00 63,549.00 73,849.00 500.00 30,205.00 30,705.00 -58.4%

5) Community  Serv ices 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) General Administration 7000-7999 1,142,089.00 1,012,745.00 2,154,834.00 1,313,539.00 731,988.00 2,045,527.00 -5.1%

8) Plant Serv ices 8000-8999 350,480.00 296,366.00 646,846.00 1,555,344.00 334,555.00 1,889,899.00 192.2%

9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 Except 7600-
7699 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 0.0%

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,831,456.00 12,713,580.00 15,545,036.00 4,372,913.00 12,267,972.00 16,640,885.00 7.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 40,809.00 (309,166.00) (268,357.00) (802,306.00) (205,968.00) (1,008,274.00) 275.7%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 606,000.00 0.00 606,000.00 10,000.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 303,360.00 0.00 303,360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 (205,968.00) 205,968.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 137,820.00 171,540.00 309,360.00 400,032.00 205,968.00 606,000.00 95.9%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 178,629.00 (137,626.00) 41,003.00 (402,274.00) 0.00 (402,274.00) -1,081.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

Page 33 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 13 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Expenditures by Function

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

2021-22 Estimated Actuals 2022-23 Budget

% Diff
Column
C & F

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,240,597.00 187,794.00 4,428,391.00 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 0.9%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 4,419,226.00 50,168.00 4,469,394.00 4,016,952.00 50,168.00 4,067,120.00 -9.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 16,436.14 16,436.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 7,203.49 0.00 7,203.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 33,731.86 33,731.86 0.00 50,168.00 50,168.00 48.7%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments (by  Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments (by  Resource/Object) 9780 3,634,270.51 0.00 3,634,270.51 3,184,408.00 0.00 3,184,408.00 -12.4%

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00 0.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

CCOE 0000 9780 3,042,491.51 3,042,491.51 0.00

Solar Pay of f 0000 9780 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology  Upgrades 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community  School Set Aside 0000 9780 0.00 316,799.00 316,799.00

Def erred Maintenance 0000 9780 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 0.00 2,592,609.00 2,592,609.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 777,252.00 0.00 777,252.00 832,044.00 0.00 832,044.00 7.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 155



California Department of Education 
SACS Web System 
System Version: SACS V1 
Form Version: 2 

Page 14 of 14
Printed: 5/27/2022 2:08:26 PM 

Form Last Revised: 5/27/2022 9:00:46 PM -07:00 
Submission Number: D8BZ48HC16

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County

2022-23 Budget, July 1
General Fund / County School Service Fund

Restricted Detail

06100660000000 
Form 01 

D8BZ48HC16(2022-23)

Resource Description
2021-22

Estimated Actuals
2022-23
Budget

5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch,
School Breakf ast, Milk, Pregnant & Lactating Students) 33,731.86 50,168.00

Total, Restricted Balance 33,731.86 50,168.00

Page 35 of 155



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 155



Page 37 of 155



Page 38 of 155



Page 39 of 155



Page 40 of 155



Page 41 of 155



Page 42 of 155



Page 43 of 155



Page 44 of 155



Page 45 of 155



Page 46 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference See supporting spreadsheets 2024-25 Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 3,612,124$             -                          194,332                  3,806,456$             194,332                  5.38% -                          153,020                  3,959,476               153,020              4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,562,278$             -                          -                          1,562,278$             -                          0.0% -                          -                          1,562,278               -                      0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,340,143$             -                          -                          5,340,143$             -                          0.0% -                          -                          5,340,143               -                      0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 5,118,066$             -                          160,523                  5,278,589$             160,523                  3.1% -                          150,002                  5,428,591               150,002              2.8%

       TOTAL REVENUES 15,632,611$           -$                        354,855$                15,987,466$           354,855                  -$                        303,022$                16,290,488$           303,022              

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,867,135$             73,007                    -                          4,940,142$             73,007                    1.5% 74,102 5,014,244               74,102                1.5%
    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 4,551,587$             68,274                    9,000                      4,628,861$             77,274                    1.7% 69,433 -                          4,698,294               69,433                1.5%
    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,311,580$             56,805                    2,000                      4,370,385$             58,805                    1.4% 37,366 -                          4,407,751               37,366                0.9%
            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 591,517$                -                          1,086                      592,603$                1,086                      0.2% -                          -                          592,603                  -                      0.0%
    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 1,480,673$             -                          (121,956)                 1,358,717$             (121,956)                 -8.2% -                          -                          1,358,717               -                      0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,430,486$             -                          (1,275,000)              155,486$                (1,275,000)              -89.1% -                          -                          155,486                  -                      0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700$                  -                          -                          29,700$                  -                          0.0% -                          -                          29,700                    -                      0.0%

7400-7499 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      
    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (621,793)$               6,671                      846                         (614,276)$               7,517                      -1.2% 6,568                      -                          (607,708)                 6,568                  -1.1%

 
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 16,640,885$           204,756$                (1,384,024)$            15,461,617$           (1,179,268)              187,470$                -$                        15,649,087$           187,470              

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (1,008,274)$            (204,756)$               1,738,879               525,849$                (187,470)$               303,022                  641,401$                -$                    
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 606,000$                -                          (600,000)                 6,000$                    (600,000)                 -99.0% -                          -                          6,000                      -                      0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          0.0% -                          -                          -                          -                      
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                        -                          -                          -$                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                      

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 606,000$                -$                        (600,000)$               6,000$                    (600,000)                 -$                        -$                        6,000$                    -                      

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (402,274)$                (204,756)$               1,138,879$              531,849$                (600,000)$               (187,470)$               303,022$                 647,401$                -$                    

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)  
    1. Beginning Balance 4,469,394$             4,067,120 4,598,969$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                        -$                        -$                        
       Ending Balance 4,067,120$               4,598,969$              5,246,370$             

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Econ Uncertanties 16,640,885$           832,044                  15,461,617             773,081                  15,649,087                                                 782,454                  

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Combined

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 47 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference 2024-25 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 424,019$                 -                           22,812                     446,831                   22,812                     5.38% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.38% -                           17,963                     464,794                   17,963               4.02% SSC Dashboard COLA 4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,562,278$             -                           -                           1,562,278                -                           0.0% -                           -                           1,562,278                -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 5,315,143$             -                           -                           5,315,143                -                           0.0% -                           -                           5,315,143                -                     0.0%

    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 4,760,564$             -                           160,523                   4,921,087                160,523                   3.4%  Billback SELPA to Districts -                           150,002                   5,071,089                150,002             3.0%  Billback SELPA to Districts 
-                           -                           -                           -                     

       TOTAL REVENUES 12,062,004$           -$                         183,335$                 12,245,339             -$                         167,965$                 12,413,304             167,965             

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,338,002                65,070                     -                           4,403,072                65,070                     1.5%  Step & Column 66,046                     4,469,118                66,046               1.5% Step & Column

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999                 2,739,725                      41,096                        9,000                 2,789,821                      50,096 1.8%  Step & Column; ELO 41,847                                     2,831,668                41,847 1.5% Step & Column

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,239,859                43,855                     2,000                       3,285,714                45,855                     1.4%
 PERS decrease;
step & column; ELO 32,296                     3,318,010                32,296               1.0%

 PERS decrease;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 402,366                   1,086                       403,452                   1,086                       0.3% 403,452                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 811,332                   -                           811,332                   -                           0.0% 811,332                   -                     0.0%
    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%
    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 29,700                     -                           29,700                     -                           0.0% 29,700                     -                     0.0%

7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                     0.0%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 706,988                   10,501                     846                          718,335                   11,347                     1.6% 9,813                       -                           728,149                   9,813                 1.4%  ELO 
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,267,972$           160,523$                 12,932$                   12,441,427$           150,002$                 -$                         12,591,429$           150,002             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) (205,968)$               (160,523)$               (196,087)$               (150,002)$               (178,125)$               
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses
    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 -$                         -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 205,968                   (60,049)                    145,919                   (60,049)                    -29.2% 32,206                     178,125                   32,206               

-                           
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 205,968$                 -$                         (60,049)$                 145,919$                 (60,049)                    -$                         32,206$                   178,125$                 32,206               

E. Net Change to Fund Balance -$                          (160,523)$               (60,049)$                  (50,168)$                 (150,002)$               32,206$                    (0)$                           

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 50,168$                   50,168$                   (0)$                           
    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                         
       Ending Balance 50,168$                     (0)$                            (0)$                           

salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% Other State 0.00%
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increases 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 65,070                     41,096                     Step & Col. 1.50% 66,046                     41,847                     
Indirect 7.00% Indirect 7.00%

19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
25.37% PERS -0.17% 25.20% PERS -0.60% 24.60%

in Restricted Ending Balance
STRS -                           STRS -                           
PERS (4,743)                      PERS (16,990)                    

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Restricted

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 48 of 155



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2023-24 Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2024-25
Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2022-23 2023-24 Difference 2024-25 Difference Explanation of Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 3,188,105$             -                           171,520                   3,359,625                171,520                   0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 5.38% -                           135,057                   3,494,682                135,057             0.00% SSC Dashboard COLA 4.02%
    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -$                         -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 25,000$                   -                           -                           25,000                     -                           0.0% -                           -                           25,000                     -                     0.0%
    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 357,502$                 -                           -                           357,502                   -                           0.0% -                           -                           357,502                   -                     0.0%

-                           -                           -                           -                     
       TOTAL REVENUES 3,570,607$             -$                         171,520$                 3,742,127                -$                         135,057$                 3,877,184                135,057             

B.  Expenditures
    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 529,133                   7,937                       -                           537,070                   7,937                       1.5% Step & Column 8,056 -                           545,126                   8,056                 1.5%  Step & Column 

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,811,862                27,178                     -                           1,839,040                27,178                     1.5%  Step & Column 27,586 -                           1,866,626                27,586               1.5% Step & Column;

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,071,721                12,949                     -                           1,084,670                12,949                     1.2%
 PERS decrease;
step & column 5,070 -                           1,089,741                5,070                 0.5%

 PERS decrease;
step & column 

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 189,151                   -                           -                           189,151                   -                           0.0% -                           -                           189,151                   -                     0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 669,341                   -                           (121,956)                 547,385                   (121,956)                 -18.2%  Removed 5th Street Office lease -                           -                           547,385                   -                     0.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,430,486                -                           (1,275,000)              155,486                   (1,275,000)              -89.1%
 Removed one-time 5th Street Office 
purchase -                           -                           155,486                   -                     0.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
7400-7499 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (1,328,781)              (3,831)                      -                           (1,332,612)              (3,831)                      0.3% Step & Column (3,245)                      -                           (1,335,856)              (3,245)                0.2% Step & Column
 -                     

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,372,913$             44,234$                   (1,396,956)$            3,020,191$             37,467$                   -$                         3,057,658$             

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures Before Other
Financing Sources and Uses 
Difference (802,306)$               (44,234)$                 721,936                   (37,467)$                 819,526                   
D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 606,000$                 -                           (600,000)                 6,000                       (600,000)                 -99.0%
 removed one-time Fund 17 transfer in for 
5th Street Office purchase -                           -                           6,000                       -                     0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -                           -                           -                           -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                     0.0%
    3. Contributions 8980-8999 (205,968)                 -                           60,049                     (145,919)                 60,049                     -29.2% -                           (32,206)                    (178,125)                 (32,206)             11046654.2% -                                                                      

.
       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 400,032$                 -$                         (539,951)$               (139,919)$               (539,951)                 -$                         (32,206)$                 (172,125)$               (32,206)             

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (402,274)$                (44,234)$                 (539,951)$                582,017$                 (37,467)$                 (32,206)$                  647,401$                 

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)
    1. Beginning Balance 4,419,226$             4,016,952 4,598,969$             
    2. Adjustments/Restatements
       Ending Balance 4,016,952   4,598,969$              5,246,371$             

 salary cert salary class salary cert salary class
Other State 0.00% -                           -                           Other State 0.00% -                           -                           
Federal 0.00% Federal 0.00%
Salary increase 0.00% -                           -                           Salary Increase 0.00% -                           -                           
Step & Col. 1.50% 7,937                       27,178                     Step & Col. 1.50% 8,056                       27,586                     
Indirect 7.97% Indirect 7.97%

19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10% STRS 0.00% 19.10%
25.37% PERS -0.17% 25.20% PERS -0.60% 24.60%

PY PY
STRS -                           STRS -                           
PERS (3,126)                      PERS (11,200)                    

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Unrestricted

2022-23 Adopted Budget

Page 49 of 155



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 

separately for revenues for the adult education 

programs. 

 

The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 

 

 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 

 

Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 

education purposes only; money received for 

programs other than adult education shall not be 

expended for adult education (Education Code 

sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 

Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 

direct instructional costs and direct support costs 

and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 

Colusa County Office of Education has committed 

to the continued education of adult learners with 

this funding. 

Page 50 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 9700 102,137 

Revenue

5,662 5,662 5,662 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

4,940 4,940 4,940 7,556 8200 7,556 Federal Revenue

5,662 8300 5,662 Other State Revenue

8,753 8,753 8,753 8,753 8500 8,753 Other State Revenue

252,958 252,958 252,958 259,743 8600 262,567 Other Local Revenue

281,714 272,313 272,313 272,313 284,538 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

118,484 118,484 118,484 117,855 1100 34,479 Teacher Salaries

25,095 25,095 25,095 25,095 1300 21,859 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 142,950 143,579 143,579 143,579 56,338 

9,517 9,517 9,517 9,517 2100 18,024 Para Educator Salaries

19,033 19,033 19,033 19,033 2400 27,149 Clerical/Office Salaries

Total for Object 2000 28,550 28,550 28,550 28,550 45,173 

21,170 21,170 21,170 20,598 3100 12,316 STRS State Teachers Retirement

4,378 4,378 4,378 4,378 3200 6,888 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

11,123 11,123 11,123 14,519 3300 11,059 Social Security/Medicare

7,254 7,254 7,254 7,254 3400 7,275 Health & Welfare Insurance

5,446 5,446 5,446 5,420 3500 1,635 State Unemployment Insurance

8,284 8,284 8,284 8,225 3600 3,585 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 60,394 57,655 57,655 57,655 42,758 

10,862 10,862 10,862 17,312 4300 14,833 Materials and Supplies

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 4400 1,000 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 18,312 11,862 11,862 11,862 15,833 

4,692 4,692 4,692 4,692 5200 4,692 Travel/Conference

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 4 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 51 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

13,919 13,919 13,919 13,919 5700 20,133 Direct Costs Transfers

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5800 1,000 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 19,611 19,611 19,611 19,611 25,825 

6200 90,852 New Building/Improvement of

11,056 11,056 11,056 11,897 7300 7,759 Direct Support/indirect Costs

281,714 272,313 272,313 272,313 284,538 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 9700

Total for Fund 11

Starting Balance 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 102,137 

Revenue 272,313 272,313 272,313 281,714 284,538 

Expense 272,313 272,313 272,313 281,714 284,538 

Ending Balance Acct Type 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 0 

Calc Ending Balance 25,932 102,137 102,137 102,137 102,137 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 5 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 52 of 155



Page 53 of 155



Page 54 of 155



Page 55 of 155



Page 56 of 155



Page 57 of 155



Page 58 of 155



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 

 
The Child Development Fund is used to 

account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues to operate child development 

programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 

fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 

 State Preschool 

      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 

 Child Development Apportionments  

 Interest 

 Child Development Parent Fees 

  

 

The Child Development Fund may be used only 

for expenditures for the operation of child 

development programs. 

 

Page 59 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

150,418 266,483 266,483 266,483 9700 287,340 

Revenue

3,923,409 4,337,584 5,167,686 5,467,909 8200 4,839,343 Federal Revenue

4,310,489 4,372,864 5,081,418 5,106,245 8500 4,942,488 Other State Revenue

225,402 447,162 451,962 451,962 8600 314,566 Other Local Revenue

11,026,116 10,701,066 9,157,610 8,459,300 10,096,397 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

964,329 1,048,329 1,060,329 1,090,607 1100 1,935,582 Teacher Salaries

273,055 275,369 275,369 302,703 1300 376,381 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 1,393,310 1,335,698 1,323,698 1,237,384 2,311,963 

726,438 746,438 761,260 724,463 2100 2 Para Educator Salaries

261,064 261,064 266,268 276,704 2300 268,927 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

259,673 259,673 261,673 271,913 2400 273,757 Clerical/Office Salaries

390,025 390,025 393,731 407,675 2900 491,520 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 1,680,755 1,682,932 1,657,200 1,637,200 1,034,206 

411,011 421,649 421,649 435,860 3100 235,444 STRS State Teachers Retirement

381,958 390,748 392,394 402,847 3200 314,607 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

140,627 148,486 150,037 154,976 3300 123,310 Social Security/Medicare

283,614 305,001 306,001 307,102 3400 368,956 Health & Welfare Insurance

33,291 34,141 34,642 34,949 3500 16,588 State Unemployment Insurance

86,569 89,669 90,189 93,488 3600 89,754 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 1,429,222 1,394,912 1,389,694 1,337,070 1,148,659 

210,982 308,350 315,170 330,943 4300 266,772 Materials and Supplies

31,433 47,989 47,989 144,129 4400 133,847 Noncapitalized Equipment

62,681 62,681 62,681 69,381 4700 64,181 Food

Total for Object 4000 544,453 425,840 419,020 305,096 464,800 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 6 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 60 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

64,504 64,504 66,504 159,344 5200 159,316 Travel/Conference

13,816 13,416 13,416 13,416 5300 14,068 Dues/Memberships

1,732 1,732 1,732 3,509 5400 1,732 Property/Liab.Insurance

168,138 167,921 167,921 167,921 5500 167,301 Utilities

119,379 118,529 121,430 121,907 5600 133,028 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

607,174 607,174 614,111 724,611 5700 563,718 Direct Costs Transfers

2,435,109 2,663,273 4,070,044 3,769,630 5800 3,463,265 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

96,958 96,658 96,658 102,226 5900 70,373 Communications

Total for Object 5000 5,062,564 5,151,816 3,733,207 3,506,810 4,572,801 

154,999 6100 Land Improvements

28,286 6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 183,285 0 0 0 0 

498,798 535,136 610,213 614,846 7300 614,034 Direct Support/indirect Costs

10,908,435 10,601,411 9,057,955 8,522,358 10,146,463 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 9700

Total for Fund 12

Starting Balance 150,418 266,483 266,483 266,483 287,340 

Revenue 8,459,300 9,157,610 10,701,066 11,026,116 10,096,397 

Expense 8,522,358 9,057,955 10,601,411 10,908,435 10,146,463 

Ending Balance Acct Type 87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 0 

Calc Ending Balance 87,360 366,138 366,138 384,164 237,274 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 7 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 61 of 155



Page 62 of 155



Page 63 of 155



Page 64 of 155



Page 65 of 155



Page 66 of 155



Page 67 of 155



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 

federal forest reserve funds received by offices 

of county superintendents for distribution to 

school districts and community college 

districts (Education Code Section 2300; 

Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 68 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 9700 35,358 

Revenue

41,354 41,354 41,354 41,354 8200 41,354 Federal Revenue

200 200 200 200 8600 200 Other Local Revenue

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 35,554 35,554 7200 35,554 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 7600 6,000 Other Financing Uses

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 9700

Total for Fund 16

Starting Balance 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 35,358 

Revenue 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Expense 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Ending Balance Acct Type 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 0 

Calc Ending Balance 39,793 35,358 35,358 35,358 35,358 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 8 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 69 of 155



Page 70 of 155



Page 71 of 155



Page 72 of 155



Page 73 of 155



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

 

 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 

Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 

the accumulation of General Fund money for 

general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 

purchases of large items such as copy 

machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 

hardware upgrades. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 74 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

897,911 886,181 886,181 886,181 9700 904,181 

Revenue

18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 8600 18,000 Other Local Revenue

Expense

7600 600,000 Other Financing Uses

Ending Balance

915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 9700

Total for Fund 17

Starting Balance 897,911 886,181 886,181 886,181 904,181 

Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 

Expense 0 0 0 0 600,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 0 

Calc Ending Balance 915,911 904,181 904,181 904,181 322,181 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 9 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 75 of 155



Page 76 of 155



Page 77 of 155



Page 78 of 155



Page 79 of 155



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 

TRUST FUND 73 

 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 

or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 

that benefit individuals, private organizations, 

or other governments and under which neither 

principal nor income may be used for purposes 

that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 

trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 

covered by a formal trust agreement should be 

accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 

the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 

be expended only for the specific purposes of 

the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 

41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80 of 155



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2021/22

2ndInterim

Budget

2021/22

1stInterim

Budget

2021/22

Original

Budget

2021/22

Current

Budget

2022/23

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

70,346 69,160 69,160 69,160 9700 72,160 

Revenue

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 8600 3,000 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 9700

Total for Fund 73

Starting Balance 70,346 69,160 69,160 69,160 72,160 

Revenue 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 0 

Calc Ending Balance 73,346 72,160 72,160 72,160 75,160 

Total for Org 001 - Colusa County Office of Education

Starting Balance 5,209,314 5,787,710 5,787,710 5,787,710 5,870,570 

Revenue 23,096,664 24,617,498 26,666,744 26,956,423 26,682,100 

Expense 23,041,805 24,546,995 26,340,159 26,776,738 27,713,440 

5,264,173 5,858,213 6,114,295 5,967,395 0 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 5,264,173 5,967,395 4,839,230 6,114,295 5,858,213 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Jun  2 2022  8:18AM 

Page 10 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2022, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education Page 81 of 155



Page 82 of 155



Page 83 of 155



Page 84 of 155



Page 85 of 155



Page 86 of 155



Page 87 of 155



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88 of 155



Page 89 of 155



Page 90 of 155



Page 91 of 155



Page 92 of 155



Page 93 of 155



Page 94 of 155



Page 95 of 155



Page 96 of 155



Page 97 of 155



Page 98 of 155



Page 99 of 155



Page 100 of 155



Page 101 of 155



Page 102 of 155



Page 103 of 155



Page 104 of 155



Page 105 of 155



Page 106 of 155



Page 107 of 155



Page 108 of 155



Page 109 of 155



Page 110 of 155



Page 111 of 155



Page 112 of 155



Page 113 of 155



Page 114 of 155



Page 115 of 155



Page 116 of 155



Page 117 of 155



Page 118 of 155



Page 119 of 155



Page 120 of 155



Page 121 of 155



Page 122 of 155



Page 123 of 155



Page 124 of 155



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE (SACS) 
                                                                Fund –Resource-Year – Object – Goal – Function – School –Budget Rep-Type 
                                                                     X – XXXX – X – XXXX – XXXX – XXXX – XXX – XXXX-XXXX 

 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures (1000-1999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teacher’s Salaries 

1101 Teacher’s Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1105 Teacher’s Salaries – Substitutes 

1150 Teacher’s Salaries – Extended Session 

1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Regular 

1201 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

1300 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators – Regular 

1311 Certificated Supervisors’ & Administrators’ – Extra 

1320 Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1330 Assistant Superintendents’ Salaries – Regular 

1901 Other Certificated Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries 

 2100 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Regular 

2101 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extra/Stipend 

2102 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Temps 

2105 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Substitutes 

2106 Instructional Aides’ Salaries - Overtime 

2150 Instructional Aides’ Salaries – Extended Session 

2200 Classified Support Salaries – Regular 

2205 Class Support Salaries – Subs 

2206 Classified Support Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2250 Classified Support Salaries – Extended Session 

2300 Classified Supervisors’ & Administrators’ Sal. – Reg. 

2316 Classified Spvr & Admin Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2320 Classified Superintendent Salaries – Regular 

2400 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Regular 

2405 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Substitutes 

2406 Clerical & Other Office Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2900 Other Classified Salaries – Regular 

2901 Other Class Salaries Extra/Stipends 

2905 Other Classified Salaries – Substitutes 

2906 Other Classified Salaries – Overtime/Temps 

2920 Naturalists’ Salaries – Regular 

2930 Student Help Salaries – Regular 

2950 Other Classified Salaries – Extended Session 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

31XX State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

3101 STRS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3102 STRS on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

32XX Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

3201 PERS on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

Object Codes Object Code Descriptions – Expenditures, Continued 

 3202 PERS  on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

33XX Social Security (OASDI)/FICA-MED/Alternate 

3311 OASDI on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3312 OSADI on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3321 FICA-MED on Certificated Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3322 FICA-MED on Classified Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3331 Alternate Retirement on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3332 Alternate Retirement on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

34XX Health & Welfare Benefits 

3411 Health & Welfare on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3412 Health & Welfare on Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

35XX State Unemployment Insurance 

3501 State Unemploy Ins. on Certificated Sal (object 1XXX) 

3502 State Unemploy Ins. On Classified Sal (object 2XXX) 

36XX Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

3601 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3602 Workers’ Comp Insurance on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

37XX Retiree Benefits 

3711 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Cert Sal (object 1XXX) 

3712 Health & Welfare Current Ret on Class Sal (object 2XXX) 

3751 OPEB Active Employee-Certificated (object 1XXX) 

3752 OPEB Active Employee-Classified (object 2XXX) 

39XX Other Benefits 

3911 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Cert Salaries (object 1XXX) 

3912 Taxable Fringe Benefits on Class Salaries (object 2XXX) 

3941 Employer Paid Dues-Certificated 

3942 Employer Paid Dues 

4000-4999 Books & Supplies 

4100 Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 

4200 Books Other Than Textbooks & Reference Materials 

4310 Materials & Supplies 

4340 Printing Expense 

4381 Diesel 

4400 Non-Capitalized Equipment 

4700 Food (Food Services) 

    

Page 125 of 155



 

5000-5999 Services & Other Operating Expenses 
 

5100 Sub-Agreements for Services 

5200 Travel & Conferences 

5201 Directors Council Meetings 

5202 Directors Other Travel/Conference 

5205 SPAC Conference 

5206 Other SPAC Conference 

5300 Dues & Memberships 

5400 Insurance 

5450 Other Insurance 

5500 Operations & Housekeeping Services 

5510 Water/Sewage 

5515 Pest Control 

5520 Gas/Heating Oil/Electric 

5570 Disposal Services 

5580 Laundry/Dry Cleaning 

5600 Rental, Lease & Repairs & Non-Capitalized Improvements 

5610 Equipment Rental/Lease 

5620 Facilities Rental/Lease 

5640 Contracts/Service Agreements 

5660 Equipment Repair 

5670 Vehicle Expense 

5680 Building Repairs 

5710 Direct Support Costs for Inter-program Services 

5712 Inter-program Transportation 

5713 Inter-program Contracts 

5750 Direct Costs for Interfund Services 

5751 Interfund Transportation 

5800 Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expend. 

5803 Printing (Outside Services) 

5807 Stipends to Non-Employees 

5808 Documented Reimbursable Expenses to Consultants 

5809 Contracted Services 

5810 Legal Expense 

5815 Contracted Services Outdoor Education 

5817 Pupil Transport Outdoor Education 

5820 Audit Expense 

5835 Security Service 

5842 Advertisements 

5843 Tuberculosis (TB) Testing 

5844 Fingerprinting 

5860 Federal Interest on Loans 

5885 Tuition and License Reimbursements 

5891 Data Processing Services 

5900 Communications 

5930 Postage 

5940 Telephone 

5941 Telephone Data Lines 

5943 Cell Phones 
 

5944 Internet Charges 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

6100 Land 

6110 Acquisition of Sites 

6111 Appraisals 

6112 Title/Escrow Costs 

6113 Surveys 

6170 Land Improvements 

6200 Buildings & Improvement of Buildings 

6210 New Construction 

6211 Building Purchases 

6218 Assessment & Fees 

6220 Improvements (Remodeling) 

6230 Relocatable Portables 

6281 Architect/Engineering Fees 

6282 Inspectors 

6283 Tests 

6284 Legal Fees 

6400 Equipment 

6401 Capital Leased Equipment Less Than $5,000 

6500 Equipment Replacement 

7000-7999 Other Outgo 

7100-7199 Tuition 

7141 Other Tuition Excess Costs to Districts 

7200-7299 Other Transfers Out 

7211 Transfer of Pass-Through Revenues to Districts 

7212 Transfer Pass-Thru Revenue CO OF 

7221 Transfer of Apportionments to Districts 

7222 Transfer of Apportionments County Office 

7281 All Other Transfers to Districts 

7299 All Other Transfers Out 

7300-7500 Direct Support / Indirect Costs 

7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Inter-program Charges 

7350 Direct Support/Indirect Costs for Interfund Charges 

7438 Debt Service - Interest 

7439 Debt Service -Principal 

7600-7629 Interfund Transfers Out 

7611 From General Fund to Child Development Fund 

7615 Between General Fund/Special Bldg to Deferred Maint 

7619 Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 

Page 126 of 155



8010-8999 LCFF Sources 

8010-8019 Principle Apportionments 

8011 LCFF - Current Year 

8012 Education Protection Account (EPA) – Current Year 

8019 LCFF – Prior Year 

8020-8039 Tax Relief Subventions 
 

8021 Homeowners’ Exemption 
 

8029 Other Subventions/In-Lieu Tax 
 

8040-8089 County & District Taxes 
 

8041 Secured Tax Rolls 
 

8042 Unsecured Tax Rolls 

8043 Prior Years’ Taxes 

8044 Supplemental Taxes 

8045 Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 
 

8047 Community Redevelopment Funds 

8090-8099 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8091 Revenue Limit Transfers 
 

8096 Transfers to Charters in Lieu 

8097 Property Taxes Transfers 

8100-8299 Federal Revenues 
 

8181 Special Education Entitlement 
 

8182 Special Education Discretionary Grants 
 

8220 Child Nutrition Programs 
 

8270 Flood Control Funds 
 

8285 Interagency Contracts Between Local Educ Agencies (LEAs) 

 

8287 Pass-Through from Federal Sources 
 

8290 All Other Federal Revenues 
 

8300-8900 Other State Revenues 
 

8311 Other State Apportionments for Current Year 
 

8319 Other State Apportionments for Prior Year 
 

8520 Child Nutrition 
 

8530 Child Development Apportionments 
 

8540 Deferred Maintenance Allowance 
 

8545 School Facilities Apportionment 
 

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements 
 

8560 State Lottery Revenue 
 

8587 Pass-Through Revenue from State Sources 
 

8590 All Other State Revenues 
 

8625 Community Redevelopment Fund Not Sub-Rev Limit 
 

8631 Sale of Equipment / Supplies 
 

8634 Food Service Sales 
 

8639 All Other Sales 
 

8650 Rentals & Leases 
 

8660 Interest 
 

8674 In-District Premiums/Contributions 
 

8677 Interagency Services Between Local Educ Agency (LEAs) 

8689 Other Fees/Contract Services 

8699 All Other Local Revenues 
 

8710 Other Tuition 
 

8781 All Other Transfer from District/Charter 
 

8782 All Other Transfer From COE 
 

8791 Transfer of Appt from Districts 
 

8792 Transfer of Apportionment from County Office 
 
8910-8979 Other Financing Sources 
 

8910-8929 Interfund Transfers In 
 

8911 To Child Development/From General Fund 
 

8912 Between General Fund & Special Reserve Fund 
 

8914 To General Fund/From Bond Interest & Red 
 

8915 From General Fund/Special Building to Deferred Maint 
 

8916 To Cafeteria Fund/From General Fund 
 

8919 Other Interfund Transfers In 
 
8931-8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8931 Emergency Apportionments 
 

8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 
 

8953 Proceeds from Sale/Lease Purchase of Land & Buildings 
 

8965 Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorg LEA’s 

8971 Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

8972 Proceeds from Capital Leases 
 

8979 All Other Financing Sources 
 

8980-8999 Contributions 
 

8980 Contribution from Unrestricted Resources 
 

8981 Contributions/Subsidies 
 

8990 Contributions/Transfers from Restricted/Unrestricted 

Page 127 of 155



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2022-23 BUDGET 
Acronyms 

 

 

A 
AAP Affirmative Action Plan 

 
AASA American Association of School Administrators 

 
AB Assembly Bill 

 
AC Administrative Code 

 
ACA Assembly Concurrent Amendment/Affordable Care Act 

 
ACE Assessments in Career Education 

 
ACEI Association of Childhood Education International 

 
ACR Assembly Concurrent Resolution 

 
ACSA Association of California School Administrators 

 
ACT American College Test 

 
ADA Average Daily Attendance or American with Disabilities 

Act 
ADM Administration 

 
ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution 

ADT Adolescent Day Treatment 

AEBG Adult Education Block Grant 

AED Automatic External Defibrillators 
 

AFDC Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
 

AFSCME American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees 

AFT American Federation of Teachers 
 

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 
 

AIR American Institutes for Research 
 

ALICE Alert, Lockdown, Inform, Counter, Evacuate 
 

ALWS Association of Low Wealth Schools 
 

AMO Annual Measurable Objective 

AMS American Management System 

AP Advanced Placement 

APE Adapted Physical Education 
 

APE-AVID Advanced Placement Expansion - AVID 

API Academic Performance Index 

APIP Advanced Placement Incentive Program 

 
 
APR Accountability Progress Report 
 
AR Accounts Receivable 
 
ARISE Addiction Research and Investigation for Science 

Educators 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
 
ASAM Alternative Schools Accountability Model 
 
ASBO Association of School Business Officials (National) 

ASCC Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 

ASCD Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development 
 
ASES After School Education and Safety Program 

ASET Academy for Special Education Teachers 

ATC Administrative Training Center 

AU Administrative Unit of a SELPA 

AV Audio Visual or Assessed Value 

AVEC Adult and Vocational Education Council 

AVID Advancement Via Individual Determination 

AYP Adequate Yearly Progress 

B 
BBA Bipartisan Budget Act 
 
BCLAD Bilingual, Crosscultural, Language, and Academic 

Development 
BCP Budget Change Proposal 
 
BCRF Beverage Container Recycling Fund 
 
BD Behavior Disorder 
 
BEA Business Education Alliance 
 
BFA Building Futures Academy 
 
BIIG Broadband Infrastructure Improvement Grant 
 
BOOF Betting on our Future 
 
BRC Budget Review Committee 
 
BRL Base Revenue Limit 
 
BTSA Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment 
 
BTTP Bilingual Teacher Training Program 

 

 
 

Page 128 of 155



BUDGET – ACRONYMS – PAGE 1 

Page 129 of 155



 
 

C 
CAASPP California Assessment of Student Performance and 

Progress 
CABE California Association for Bilingual Education CAC

 Community Advisory Committee or California 

CACE California Association for Compensatory Education 

CADS Consolidated Application Data System 

CADPE California Alcohol-Drug Prevention Education 

CAEH California Arts Education Association 

CAHSEE California High School Exit Exam 

CalCRN California Career Resource Network 
 

CalMHSA California Mental Health Services Authority 
 

CALPADS California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
 

Cal-Safe California School Age Families Education 
 

Cal-OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Act CalPERS

 California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

CalSTAT California Services for Technical Assistance and Training 

CalSTRS California State Teachers Retirement System 

CalTIDES California Longitudinal Teacher Integrated Data Education 
System 

CalWORKs California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
 

CAMSP California Mathematics and Science Partnership 
 

CAO Chief Administrative Office 
 

CAP California Assessment Program 
 

CAPA California Alternative Performance Assessment CAPIT

 Child Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment 

CAROC/P California Assoc of Regional Occupational Ctrs/Prgm. 

CARS Consolidated Application Reporting System 

CASBO California Association of School Business Officials 
 

CASCD California Association for Supervision and Curriculum 
Dev. 

CASE Computer Assisted Special Education 

CASEL Capitol Area Science Education Leaders 

CASH Coalition for Adequate School Housing 

CASEMIS California Special Education Management Info System 
 

CAT/6 California Achievement Tests, Sixth Edition Survey 

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
CBCAP Community Based Child Abuse Prevention 

CBEDS California Basic Education Data System 

CBEST California Basis Education Skills Test 

CBFRS Community Based Family Resource and Support 
 
CBO Chief Business Official 
 
CCAC Credential Counselors and Analysts of California 
 
CCC California Community Colleges or California Conservation 

Corps 
CCCP California Curriculum Consultant Project 
 
CCDF Center for Childcare and Development 
 
CCEE              California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

CCLPEP          California Civil Liberties Public Education Program 

CCMP             Central California Mathematics Project 

CCR Coordinated Compliance Review or California Code of 
Regulations 

CCS California Children’s Services CCSS

 Common Core State Standards 

CCSSO Council or Chief State School Offices 

CCPGP Childcare Professional Growth Project 
 
CCSESA Calif. County Superintendents Educational Services Assoc. 

CCTR Center Childcare & Development Fund 

CDD Child Development Division 
 
CDE California Department of Education 
 
CDRT Child Development Retention and Training 
 
CDT Children’s Day Treatment 
 
CEDR Center for Educational Development and Research 
 
CEL Centralized Eligibility List 
 
CELDT California English Language Development Test 

CELMS Centralized Eligibility List and Management System 

CFLP California Foreign Language Project 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
 
CFT California Federation of Teachers 

CH Communicatively Handicapped 

CH1 Chapter 1 Centralized Services 

Page 130 of 155



 
 

CH-SSP California History-Social Science Project 
 

CI Cognitively Impaired 
 

CIF California Interscholastic Federation 
 

CISC Curriculum and Instruction Steering Committee 
 

CLAD Cross-cultural, Language, and Academic Development 
 

CLMP California Language Minority Project 

CLRN California Learning Resource Network 

CLP California Literature Project 

CLPC Child Development Local Planning Council 
 

CLTA California Foreign Language Teachers Association 
 

CMEA California Music Educators Association 
 

CMIS Compliance Monitoring, Interventions, and Sanctions 
 

CNIPS Child Nutrition Information Payment System 
 

COE County Office of Education 

COLA Cost of Living Adjustment 

CON APP Consolidated Application 

COP Certificate of Participation 

COSA California Outdoor School Administrators 
 

COSP County Operated Schools and Programs 
 

CPDP/C California Professional Development Program/Consortium 
 

CPEC California Postsecondary Education Commission 
 

CPI Consumer Price Index 
 

CPIN California Preschool Instructional Network 
 

CPR California Performance Review 
 

CPS Child Protective Services 
 

CREEC Calif. Regional Environmental Education Community 
 

CSAC California Student Aid Commission CSAM

 California School Accounting Manual 

CSBA California School Boards Association 

CSCI California Services Communities Initiative 

CSDC California Staff Development Council 

CSEA California Schools Employees Association 

CSET California Subject Examination for Teachers 

CSF California Scholarship Federation 
 
CSFG Charter School Facility Grant 
 
CSIN California Science Implementation Network 
 
CSIS California School Information Studies 

CSLA California School Leadership Academic 

CSMP California Subject Matter Projects 

CSPDAC Comprehensive System of Personnel Development 
Advisory Committee 

CSPP California State Preschool Program 
 
CSR Class Size reduction or Comprehensive School Reform 
 
CSSC California State Steering Committee 
 
CST California Standard Test 
 
CSTP California Standards for the Teaching Profession 
 
CTA California Teachers Association 
 
CTAP California Technical Assistance Project 

CTBS Comprehensive Tests of Basic Skills 

CTC Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

CTE Career Technical Education 

CTEC Career and Technical Education Center CTEI

 Comprehensive Teacher Education Institute 

CTEIG Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

CTEL California Teachers of English Learners 

CTKS California Transitional Kindergarten Stipend 

CTO Compensatory Time Off 

CTP California Technology Project 
 
CSCI California Service Communities Initiative 
 
CWA Child Welfare and Attendance 
 
CYA California Youth Authority 
 

D 
DAC District Advisory Council 
 
DAIT District Assistance and Intervention Team 
 
DATE Drug Alcohol Tobacco Education 

DBE Developmental Bilingual Education 

DCA Discovery Challenge Academy 

Page 131 of 155



 
 

DFS Drug Free Schools Consortium 
 

DFW Drug Free Workplace 
 

DGS Department of General Services 
 

DIS Designated Instruction and Services 

DMP Deferred Maintenance Program 

DOE Department of Education 

DOF Department of Finance 
 

DOL Department of Labor 
 

DPJPA Data Processing Joint Power Agreement 
 

DPS Dropout Prevention Specialist 

DSA Division of the State Architect 

DSP Direct Support Professional 

DSS Department of Social Services 

DSSDs Direct Service School Districts 

DSSP Delta Sierra Science Project 

DWAS Dinner with a Scientist 

E 
EAAP Education Audit Appeals Panel 

 
EAF Educational Activity Field 

 
EC Education Code 

 
ECA Education Consolidation Act 

 
ECE Early Childhood Education 

 
ECIA Early Consolidation and Improvement Act (Ch I/II) 

ED Emotionally Disturbed 

EDD Employment Development Department 
 

EDGAR Education Department General Administrative Regulation 
 

ED-JOIN Education Job Opportunities Information Network 
 

EDY Emotionally Disadvantaged Youth 
 

EEO Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

EEI Educational Environmental Initiative 
 

EH Educationally Handicapped 
 

EIA Economic Impact Aid 
 

EIBT Early Intervention Behavioral Treatment 

EL English Learner (Replaces ELL and LEP) 

ELA English Language Arts 

ELAC              English Language Advisory Committee 

ELAP              English Language Acquisition Program 

ELD                English Language Development 

EO English Only 
 
EPA Education Protection Account 
 
ERAF Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 
ERIC Educational Resources Information Center 
 
ERP Economic Recovery Payment or Emergency Repair Prog. 

ERT Economic Recovery Target 

ESC Educational Service Center 
 
ESEA Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
 
ESL English as a Second Language 

ESSA Every Student Succeeds Act 

ESY Extended School Year 

ETN Educational Technology Network 
 

F 
FAPE Free and Appropriate Public Education 
 
FCMAT Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team 

FDPIR Flood Distribution Program on Indian Reservations 

FELP Family English Literacy Program 

FEP Fluent English Proficient 
 
FERPA Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
 
FFA Future Farmers of America 

FHI Federal Handicapped Index 

FIT Forestry Institute for Teachers 

FLACC Foreign Language Association of Central California 
 
FPM Federal Program Monitoring 

FRN Family Resource Network 

FRPM Free and Reduced-Price Meals 

FRR Family Resource and Referral 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

Page 132 of 155



 
 

FYS Foster Youth Services 
 

G 
G2K Goals 2000 

 
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GAAS Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

GASB Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GATE Gifted and Talented Education 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 
 

GE Grade Equivalent or General Education 
 

GED General Education Diploma 

GEMS Great Expectations Math/Science 

GF General Fund 

GLOBE Global Learning and Observations to Benefit the Envir. 

GO General Obligation (Bond) 

GPA Governor’s Performance Award Program 
 

GRASP IT Gaining Results in After School Programs Innovatively & 
Tangibly (21st Century) 

GSA Grade Span Adjustment 
 

GVCC Greater Valley Conservation Corps 
 

H 
HSA Human Services Agency 

 
HILT High Intensity Language Training 

 
H3 Hearts, Heads, Hands 

 
HOH Hard of Hearing 

 
HR Human Resources 

 
HOUSSE High Objective Uniform State Standard of Evaluation 

 
HPSGP High Priority Schools Grant Program 

 
HQT Highly Qualified Teacher 

 
HRA Health Reimbursement Arrangement 

 
HAS Health Savings Account 

 
HSEE High School Exit Exam 

 
HUD Housing and Urban Development 

 

I 
IASA Improving America’s Schools Act 

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported (i.e., insurance claims) 

ICASE Improving Capitol Area Science and Engineering 

ID and R Identification and Recruitment 

IDA Inter-District Agreement 
 
IDEA Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 
IEI Intern Evaluation Instrument 
 
IEP Individual Education Plan 
 
IFSP Individual Family Service Plan 
 
IHSS In-Home Support Services 
 
II/USP Immediate Intervention/Underperforming Schools Program 
 
IIAE Institute for Information Age Education 
 
ILP Individual Learning Plan 
 
IME Institute for Mexican Education 
 
IMFRP Instructional Materials Fund Realignment Program 
 
IMPACT Teaching Programs 
 
IPS Instructional Personnel Service 
 
IRA International Reading Association 
 
ISGI Individual and Small Group Instruction 
 
IT Information Technology 
 
ITI Integrated Thematic Instruction 

IWENS Individuals With Exceptional Needs 

ITP Individual Transitional Plan 

J 
JACS Japanese American Confinement Sites 
 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement or Joint Powers Authority 
 
JTPA Job Training Partnership Act 
 

L 
LAIF Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
LAO Legislative Analyst’s Office 
 
LCAP Local Control and Accountability Plan 
 
LCCPC Local Childcare Commission Planning Council 
 
LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 

Page 133 of 155



 
 

LCPC Local Childcare Planning Council 
 

LCI Licensed Children’s Institution 
 

LD Learning Disability 
 

LDS Language Development Specialist 
 

LEA Local Education Agency 
 

LEP Limited English Proficient (EL Replaces ELL and LEP) 

LEP/NES Limited English Proficient/Non-English Speaking 

LGFC Local General Fund Contribution 
 

LH Learning Handicapped 
 

LHS Language Hearing Specialist 
 

LPP Lease Purchase Program 
 

LSH Language, Speech and Hearing 
 

M 
MAA Medi-CAL Administrative Agency 

 
M and O Maintenance and Operations 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MEES Migrant Education Even Start 

MEP Migrant Education Program 

MH Mental Health 
 

MIIEO Migrant Indian and International Education Office 
 

MSA Minimum State Aid 
 

MTTI Multi-District Teacher Training Institute 

MTYRE Multi-Track Year-Round Education 

MYP Multiyear Projection 

N 
NAEP National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
NBCT National Board Certified Teacher 

 
NCCRAHS National Children’s Center for Rural and Agricultural 

Health and Safety 
NCES National Center for Education Statistics 

NCFL National Center for Family Literacy 

NCLB No Child Left Behind 

NCMTC Northern California Media and Technology Consortium 
 

NEA National Education Association 

NEIS National Evaluation and Information System 
 
NGSS Next Generation Science Standards 

NON-RIS Non-Requiring Intensive Service 

NP National Percentile 

NPA Non-Public Agency 
 
NPS Non-Public Schools 
 
NPS/A Non-Public Schools/Agencies 
 
NSBA National Scholl Boards Association 
 
NSS Necessary Small Scholl or Necessary Small SELPA 

NTE National Teachers’ Examination 

O 
OAL Office of Administrative Law 
 
OCR Office of Civil Rights 
 
OH Orthopedically Handicapped 
 
OLA Office of Local Assistance 
 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
 
OME Office of Migrant Education OPEB

 Other Postemployment Benefits 

OPSC Office of Public School Construction 

OSA Office of State Architect 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
 
OSE Office of the Secretary for Education 
 
OT Occupational Therapy 
 

P 
P-1 First Principal (Apportionment) 
 
P-2 Second Principal (Apportionment) 

PAR Peer Assistance and Review 

PARS Public Agency Retirement Services 
 
PC Penal Code 
 
PCA Project Cost Account 
 
PCSGPS Public Charter School Grant Programs   _ 

PDBG Professional Development Block Grant 

PDC Professional Development Center 

Page 134 of 155



 
 

PE Physical Education 
 

PEI Prevention and Early Intervention 
 

PENT Positive Environment Network of Trainers 

PEPRA Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 

PERB Public Employees Relations Board 

PERS Public Employees Retirement System 
 

PFS Priority for Services 
 

PFT Physical Fitness Test 
 

PH Physically Handicapped 

PI Program Improvement 

PIC Private Industry Council 

PKFLP Pre-Kindergarten & Family Literacy Program 
 

PKS Particular Kinds of Services 
 

PL Public Law (Federal Law) 
 

PL 81-874 Public Law 81-874 (Federal Impact Aid) 
 

PL 94-192 Public Law 94-192 (Special Education Mandate 
Legislation) 

PMAT Personal Management Assistance Team 

PMIA Pooled Money Investment Account 

PMIB Pooled Money Investment Board 

PNCC Project Navigation Construction Change 
 

PO Probation Officer 
 

PPACA Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
 

PQR Program Quality Review 
 

PRSP Pension Rate Stabilization Plan 
 

PSA Private School Affidavit 
 

PSAA Public Schools Accountability Act 
 

PT Physical Therapy 
 

PTA Parent Teacher Association 
 

PTSA Parent/Teacher/Student Association 
 

PTTP Paraprofessional Teacher Training Program 
 

Q 
QEIA Quality Education Investment Act 

 
QRIS Quality Rating and Improvement System 

QSCB Quality School Construction Bonds 
 
QZAB Qualified Zone Academy Bond 
 

R 
RCC Regional Coordinating Council 
 
RDA Redevelopment Agency 
 
REACH Running to Embrace Attitudes, Confidence and Health 
 
REAP Rural Education Achievement Program 

REU Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

RFA Request for Application 

RFP Request for Proposal 
 
RIC Reading Implementation Center 
 
RIS Requiring Intensive Services 
 
RISE Rural Improvements in Science Education 
 
RLA Reading/Language Arts 
 
ROC/P Regional Occupation Center/Program RRMA

 Routine Restricted Maintenance Account 

RSDSS Regional System of District and School Support 

RSP Resource Specialist Program 

RSSIC Regional School Support and Improvement Center 
 
RTI Responses to Intervention 
 
RTTT Race To The Top 
 
RWPEDA Regional Workforce Preparation & Economic 

Development 
RTAC Regional Technical Assistance Center 
 

S 
S4 Statewide System of School Support 
 
SAB State Allocation Board 
 
SAC School Advisory Council 
 
SACS Standardized Account Code Structure 

SAIB Special Alternative Instructional Program 

SAIT Student Assistance and Intervention Team 

SAPID School Age Parenting and Infant Development 
 
SARB School Attendance Review Board 
 
SARC School Accountability Report Card 

Page 135 of 155



 
 

SART School Attendance Review Team 
 

SAT Scholastic Aptitude Test 
 

SAT-9 Stanford Achievement Test-9, Ninth Edition, Form T 

SB 1274 Senate Bill 1274 School/District Restructuring 

SAYES Seniors Assisting Youth Engaged in Service 

SB Senate Bill 
 

SBAC Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium 
 

SBCP School Based Coordinated Program 
 

SBE State Board of Education 
 

SCA Senate Constitutional Amendment 

SCE State Compensatory Education 

SCI OLY Science Olympiad 

SCO State Controller’s Office 
 

SCPP School Community Policing Partnership 
 

SCR Senate Concurrent Resolution 
 

SDC Special Day Class 
 

SDE State Department of Education 
 

SDI State Disability Insurance 

SEA State Education Agency 

SEE School Energy Efficiency 

SED Severely Emotional Disturbed 
 

SEIA Special Education Information System 

SEIU Service Employees International Union 

SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 

SERAF Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
 

SES Socioeconomic Status 
 

SETPD Special Education Teachers Professional Development 
 

SFID School Facility Improvement District 
 

SFP School Facility Program 
 

SFSD School Fiscal Services Division of CDE 

SFSF State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 

SH Severely Handicapped (Disabled) 

SI Speech Impaired 

SIMMS Secondary Integration of Modeling in Math & Science 
 
SIG School Improvement Grant 
 
SIP School Improvement Program 
 
SJCCFC San Joaquin County Children and Families Commission 
 
SJCOE San Joaquin County Office of Education 
 
SJR Senate Joint Resolution SLC

 School Leadership Center 

SLD Specific Learning Disability 

SLIBG School and Library Improvement Block Grant 
 
SMI Serious Mental Illness 
 
SMP Subject Matter Project 
 
SMAA School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
 
SOLH Severe Oral Language Handicapped SPI

 Superintendent of Public Inspection 

SPSA Single Plan for Student Achievement 

SPURR School Project for Utility Rate Reduction 

SR Senate Resolution 

SRDC School Readiness District Coordinator 
 
SSC School Site Council 
 
SSI/SSP Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary 

Payment 
SSPI State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
 
SSR Support Service Ratio 
 
SST Student Study Team; also, Student Success Team 
 
STAR Standardized Testing and Reporting 
 
STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics 
 
STRS State Teachers Retirement System 
 
SWP Schoolwide Program 
 
SYEP Summer Youth Employment Program 
 

T 
TAG Technical Advisory Group 
 
TAH Teaching American History 
 
TANF Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
 
TAP Teacher Apprentice Program or Teaching as a Priority 

Page 136 of 155



 
 

TAPE Technical Assistance for Program Effectiveness 
 

TAS Targeted Assistance School 
 

TBE Transitional Bilingual Education 
 

TBI Traumatic Brain Injury 
 

TCSJ Teachers College of San Joaquin 
 

THG Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
 

TK Transitional Kindergarten 
 

TLC Transitional Learning Center 
 

TOPS Teaching Opportunities for Partners in Science 
 

TPE Teacher Performance Expectations 

TRANs Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 

TUPE Tobacco Use Prevention Education 

U 
UOP University of the Pacific 

 
UPP Unduplicated Pupil Percentage 

 
UR Unit Rate 

 
USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

 

V 
VAFS Venture Academy Family of Schools 

VALT Valley Language of Language Teachers 

VEA Vocational Education Act 

VH Visually Handicapped 
 

VMRC Valley Mountain Regional Center 
 

VOIP Voice Over Internet Protocol 
 

VQ Vision Quest 
 

W 
WASC Western Association of Schools and Colleges 

 
WEC Wentworth Education Center 

WIA Workforce Instrument Act 

WIC Welfare and Institutions Code 

WIC-R Writing Inquiry Collaboration - Reading 
 

WSF Weighted Student Formula 

Y 
YRE Year-Round Education 
 
YRS Year-Round Schools 

Page 137 of 155



Colusa County Office of Education 
Michael P. West, Superintendent 

2022-23 Glossary of Terms 
 

A 
 

Abatement. A complete or partial cancellation of an expenditure or revenue. 
 

Abatement of expenditures. Cancellation of part or all of a charge previously made, usually 
because of refunds, rebates, resale of materials originally purchased by the local educational 
agency (LEA), or collections for loss or damage to the LEA’s property. An abatement of 
expenditure applies to current expenditures and capital outlay expenditures from all funds. 

 

Abatement of revenue. The cancellation of all or some part of any specific revenue previously 
recorded. 

 

Accounting period. A period of time for which records are maintained and at the end of 
which financial statements are prepared covering the period. 

 

Account numbers or letters. Numbers and/or letters that are assigned to the ordinary titles of 
accounts for classification of accounts and ease of reference. 

 

Accounts payable. Amounts due and owed to private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not paid. Does not include amounts due to other funds of the 
same LEA. 

 

Accounts receivable. Amounts due and owed from private persons, business firms, governmental 
units, or others for goods received and/or services rendered prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
Includes amounts billed but not received. Does not include amounts due from other funds of 
the same LEA. 

 

Accrual basis. Method of accounting in which revenue is recorded when earned, even though it 
has not yet been collected, and in which expenses are recorded when the liabilities are 
incurred, even if they have not been paid yet. 

 

Accrued expenditures. Expenditures incurred during the current accounting period that are not 
paid until a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accrued revenue. Revenue earned during the current accounting period that is not collected until 
a subsequent accounting period. 

 

Accumulated depreciation. A contra-asset account used to report the accumulation of 
depreciation. (See also Depreciation.) 

 

Actuarial basis. A method used in computing the amount of contributions to be made 
periodically to a fund so that the total contributions plus the compounded earnings thereon 
will equal the required payments to be made out of the fund. The factors taken into account 
in arriving at the amount include the length of time over which each collection or payment is 
to be made and the rate of return compounded on such amounts over its life. 

 

Ad valorem tax. A tax based on a percentage of the value of goods or services. 
 

Agency fund. A fund consisting of resources received and held by an LEA as an agent for others. 
 

Allocation. Division or distribution in accordance with a predetermined plan. 

Page 138 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Allowable costs. Costs that meet the specific criteria of a granting agency. 
 

Allowance. A provision for valuing an asset at net, such as an allowance for bad debts. The 
allowance for bad debts would be deducted from accounts receivable to reflect the 
receivables that are likely to be collectable. 

 

Apportionment. Allocation of state or federal aid, district taxes, or other moneys among LEAs or 
other governmental units. 

 

Apportionment notice. A document notifying LEAs when moneys were deposited with the 
county treasurer. 

 

Appraisal. An estimate of property value made by the use of systematic procedures based 
on physical inspection and inventory, engineering studies, and other economic factors. 

 

Appropriation. An authorization, granted by the governing board, to make expenditures and to 
incur obligations for special purposes. An appropriation is usually limited in purpose, 
amount, and the time period during which it may be expended. 

 

Appropriation ledger. A subsidiary ledger containing an account for each appropriation. Each 
account usually shows the amount originally appropriated in the budget, budget increases or 
decreases during the year, expenditures, encumbrances, unencumbered balances, and other 
related information. 

 

Arbitrage. The profit earned (i.e., interest earnings in excess of interest costs) from the 
investments of the proceeds of lower-interest tax-exempt securities in higher yielding taxable 
securities. 

 

Assessed valuation. Value placed on personal and real property by a governmental unit for 
purposes of taxation. 

 

Assets. Resources that are held or owned by an LEA and that have monetary value. 
 

Audit. An examination of documents, records, and accounts for the purpose of (1) determining 
the propriety of transactions; (2) ascertaining whether all transactions are recorded properly; 
and (3) determining whether statements that are drawn from accounts reflect an accurate 
picture of financial operations and financial status for a given period of time. 

 

Audit finding. A weakness in internal controls or an instance of noncompliance with applicable 
laws and regulations that is presented in the audit report. 

 

Audit program. A detailed outline of work to be done and the procedures to be followed during 
an audit. 

 

Available cash. Cash that is on hand or on deposit in a given fund and that is unencumbered and 
can be used for meeting current obligations. 

 

Average daily attendance (ADA). Total approved days of attendance in the LEA divided by the 
number of days the schools in the LEA are in session for at least the required minimum day. 
(Refer to Education Code sections 46000–46014 and 46300–46380.) 

Page 139 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

B 
 

Balance sheet. A statement that shows the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or fund deficit of an entity at a specific date 
and that is properly classified to exhibit the financial condition of the entity as of that specific 
date. 

 

Basis of accounting. The time at which revenues, expenditures, transfers, and related assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are recognized in 
the accounts and are reported in the financial statements. 

 

Bond. A certificate containing a written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called the face 
value, at a fixed time in the future, called the date of maturity, and specifying interest at a 
fixed rate, usually payable periodically. 

 

Bond discount. The excess of the face value of a bond over the price for which it is acquired or 
sold. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonded debt. That portion of indebtedness represented by outstanding bonds. 
 

Bonded debt service. Expenditures for interest and redemption of bonds. 
 

Bond premium. The excess of the price at which a bond is acquired or sold over its face 
value. (The price does not include accrued interest at the date of acquisition or sale.) 

 

Bonds authorized and unissued. Legally authorized bonds that have not been sold and that may 
be sold without further authorization. 

 

Book value. The cost or stated costs of assets less accumulated depreciation as shown by the 
books of accounts. 

 

Budget. A plan of financial operation consisting of an estimate of proposed revenue and 
expenditures for a given period and purpose. The term usually indicates a financial plan for a 
single fiscal year. 

 

Budgetary accounts. Those accounts that make it possible for a budgetary-type fund 
(governmental fund) to show how (1) estimated revenue and revenue realized to date 
compare; and (2) expenditures and encumbrances compare with appropriations during the 
fiscal period. The budgetary accounts are estimated revenues, appropriations, and 
encumbrances. 

 

Budgetary control. The management of financial transactions in accord with an approved plan of 
estimated revenue and expenditures. 

 

Budgeting. The process of allocating the available resources of an organization among 
potential activities to achieve the objectives of the organization; planning for the use of 
resources. 

 

Budget revision. Net increases and decreases to the budget. They may include increases due 
to new grant funds and decreases due to the need to reduce appropriations to keep 
spending within available revenues. 

Page 140 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Budget transfer. Changes among budgeted items. They do not increase or decrease the 
total budget. 

 

C 
 

Capital assets. See Fixed assets. 
 

Capital lease. A lease agreement that meets one or more of the following criteria is classified as 
a capital lease: 

 

x Ownership is transferred to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
x The agreement contains a “bargain purchase” option. 
x The lease agreement is 75 percent or more of the estimated useful life of the property. 
x The present value of the minimum lease payment is 90 percent or more of the fair 

market value of the property. 
 

Capital outlay. Amounts paid for fixed assets or additions to fixed assets, including land or 
existing buildings, the improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to 
buildings, remodeling of buildings, or initial and additional equipment. 

 

Capital projects funds. Funds established to account for financial resources that are to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

 

Cash. Currency, checks, postal and express money orders, and bankers’ drafts on hand or on 
deposit with an official or agent designated as custodian of cash and bank deposits. Any 
restriction or limitation as to the availability of cash should be indicated. 

 

Cash advance. Cash apportioned in advance of the usual apportionment period. 
 

Cash basis. Method of accounting in which revenue and expenditures are recorded only when 
cash is actually received or disbursed. The cash basis is not acceptable for use in LEAs. 

 

Cash collections awaiting deposit. Receipts on hand or moneys in a bank clearing account 
awaiting deposit in the county treasury. 

 

Cash discount. An allowance made on a purchase if payment is made within a stated 
period. (This term is not to be confused with trade discount.) 

 

Cash in bank. Balances in separate bank accounts, such as student body accounts, school farm 
accounts, and cafeteria accounts. 

 

Cash in county treasury. Cash balances on deposit in the county treasury for the various funds of 
the LEA. 

 

Categorical aid. Funds from state or federal sources that are in addition to the general-purpose 
funding to serve a specific pupil population or to provide specific services and activities. 
These funds have varying degrees of fiscal and program compliance requirements. 

 

Certificates of participation (COPs). A financing technique that provides long-term financing 
through a lease (with an option to purchase or a conditional sale agreement). 

Page 141 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Chart of accounts. A systematically arranged list of accounts that are applicable to a specific 
LEA. All account names and numbers, if any, are listed in numerical order. 

 

Check. A bill of exchange drawn on a bank and payable on demand; a written order on a bank to 
pay on demand a specific sum of money to a named person, to his or her order, or to a bearer 
out of money on deposit to the credit of the maker. A check differs from a warrant in that a 
warrant is not necessarily payable on demand and may not be negotiable; a check differs 
from a voucher in that a voucher is not an order to pay. A voucher-check combines the 
distinguishing characteristics of a voucher and a check; it shows the propriety of a payment 
and is an order to pay. 

 

Classification. The naming or identification of an item or a category, such as the designation of 
the particular account into which a receipt or an expenditure is to be recorded or the 
separation of data into acceptable groupings so that financial facts can be stated more 
clearly. 

 

Classroom unit (CU). The approximate area usually occupied by a classroom, varying from 800 
to 1,100 square feet but generally about 960 square feet. 

 

Clearing accounts. Accounts used to accumulate total receipts or expenditures for later 
distribution among the accounts to which such receipts or expenditures are properly 
allocable. 

 

Closing entries. Entries recorded at the end of each fiscal period to transfer the balances in the 
revenue and expenditure (or expense) accounts to the permanent equity accounts (fund 
balance or retained earnings) of an accounting entity. 

 

Code. (1) A distinguishing reference number or symbol; (2) a statement of the laws of a specific 
field (e.g., Education Code, Penal Code, Civil Code, and Labor Code). 

 

Compensated absences. Absences for which compensation is paid (e.g., vacation and sick leave). 
 

Component unit. An organization that is legally separate and for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of 
its relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Financial reporting consisting of three 
sections: (1) introductory section (general information on the LEA’s structure, services, and 
environment); (2) financial section (basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information, together with information on individual funds and discretely presented 
component units not reported separately in the financial statements); and (3) statistical 
section (trend and nonfinancial data useful in interpreting the basic financial statements). 

 

Contingent liabilities. Items that may become liabilities as a result of conditions undetermined at 
a given date (e.g., guarantees, pending lawsuits, judgments and appeals, and unsettled 
disputed claims). 

 

Contra account. An account to record offsetting transactions (e.g., abatements). 

Page 142 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Contract. An agreement between two or more people or entities to do something. Contracts are 
usually in writing and are enforceable by law. 

 

Contracted services. Expenditures for services rendered under contract by personnel who are not 
on the payroll of the LEA, including all related expenditures covered by the contract. 

 

Control account. A summary account, usually maintained in the general ledger, in which is 
entered the aggregate of the debit and the credit postings to a number of identical, similar, or 
related accounts called subsidiary accounts. Its balance equals the sum of the balances of the 
detail accounts. 

 

Cost. The amount of money or its equivalent value paid or agreed to be paid for property or 
services. Cost may be incurred even before money is paid; that is, as soon as a liability is 
assumed. Ultimately, however, money or its equivalent must be given in exchange. The cost 
of some property or service may in turn become part of the cost of another property or 
service. For example, the cost of materials will be reflected in the cost of articles made from 
such materials. 

 

County School Service Fund (CSSF). A fund established to control the financial operations 
of county offices of education. 

 

Credit. The right side of a double-entry posting. Credits will reduce assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, and expenditures and increase liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenue, 
and fund balance. 

 

Current assets. Assets that are available or can be made readily available to meet the cost of 
operations or to pay current liabilities. 

 

Current expense of education. The current general fund operating expenditures of an LEA for 
kindergarten and grades one through twelve, excluding expenditures for food services, 
community services, nonagency activities, fringe benefits for retired persons, acquisition and 
construction of facilities, and objects 6000 and 7000. 

 

Current liabilities. Amounts due and payable for goods and services received prior to the end of 
the fiscal year. Current liabilities should be paid within a relatively short period of time, 
usually within a year. 

 

Current loans. Loans payable in the same fiscal year in which the money was borrowed. 
 

D 
 

Debit. The left side of a double-entry posting. A debit will increase assets and expenditures and 
reduce liabilities, revenue, and fund balance. 

 

Debt limit. The maximum amount of legally permitted debt. 
 

Debt service. Expenditures for the retirement of debt and for interest on debt. 
 

Debt service funds. Funds established to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

Page 143 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Deficit. The amount by which a sum of money falls short of a required amount (e.g., 
apportionment deficits or budget deficits). 

 

Deficit financing. The amount to be provided when estimated expenditures exceed the estimated 
revenues. 

 

Deficit fund balance. The excess of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund over its 
assets and deferred outflows. 

 

Deficit spending. The excess of actual expenditures over actual revenues (also referred to as 
an operating deficit). 

 

Delinquent taxes. Taxes remaining unpaid after the close of the year in which levied. (See also 
Prior years’ taxes, in most cases the preferred term.) 

 

Depreciation. Estimated loss in value or service life of fixed assets because of wear and tear 
through use, elapse of time, inadequacy, or obsolescence. 

 

Direct expenses or costs. Expenses that can be separately identified and charged as parts of the 
cost of a product, service, or department. 

 

Direct support charges. Charges for a support program and services that directly benefit other 
programs. 

 

Disbursements. Payments by currency, check, or warrant. (The term is not synonymous with 
expenditures.) 

 

Double entry. A system of bookkeeping that requires an amount credited for every corresponding 
amount debited. Thus, the double-entry ledger maintains equality of debits and credits. 

 

E 
 

Earned interest revenue. A sum of money received or due to be received for the use of money 
loaned or invested. 

 

EDGAR (Education Department General Administrative Regulations). The regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Education incorporating certain circulars from the Office of Management 
and Budget. EDGAR is found in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, parts 75, 76, 77, 
79, 81, 82, 84, 86, 97, 98, and 99. It is defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, 
Part 77.1. 

 

Employee benefits. Amounts paid by the LEA on behalf of employees. These amounts are not 
included in the gross salary but are over and above. They are fringe-benefit payments; 
although not paid directly to employees, they are nevertheless part of the cost of salaries and 
benefits. Examples are (1) group health or life insurance payments; (2) contributions to 
employee retirement; (3) OASDI (Social Security) taxes; (4) workers’ compensation 
payments; and (5) payments made to personnel on sabbatical leave. 

 

Encroachment. The use of unrestricted moneys to support restricted program expenditures. 
 

Encumbrances. Obligations in the form of purchase orders, contracts, salaries, and other 
commitments chargeable to an appropriation for which a part of the appropriation is reserved. 

Page 144 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Enterprise funds. Funds used to account for those ongoing activities of the LEA that because 
of their income-producing character are similar to those found in the private sector. 

 

Entitlement. An apportionment that is based on specific qualifications or formula defined in 
statute. (This term should not be used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent 
balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Equity accounts. These accounts represent the difference between the assets and deferred 
outflows of resources and the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of a fund. 

 

Estimated revenues. For revenue accounts kept on the accrual basis, this term designates the 
amount of revenue estimated to accrue during a given period regardless of whether all of it is 
to be collected during the period. 

 

Expendable trust fund. A trust fund in which principal and earnings may be expended. 
 

Expenditures. The costs of goods delivered or services rendered, whether paid or unpaid, 
including expenses, provision for debt retirement not reported as a liability of the fund 
from which retired, and capital outlay. 

 

Expenses. Charges incurred, whether paid or unpaid, for operations, maintenance, interest, and 
other charges that are presumed to benefit the current fiscal period. Expense accounts are 
used in certain trust funds and in proprietary-type funds. 

 

F 
 

Face value. As applied to securities, the amount stated in the security document. 
 

Fair value of investments. The amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

 

Fees. Amounts collected from or paid to individuals or groups for services or for use of a 
school or other facility. 

 

Fidelity bond. A form of insurance that provides for the indemnification of the LEA or other 
employer for losses arising from the theft or dishonesty of employees. 

 

Fiscal year. A period of one year, the beginning and the ending dates of which are fixed by 
statute. For LEAs, it is the period beginning July 1 and ending on June 30. 

 

Fixed assets. Assets of a permanent character having continuing value (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, furniture, and equipment), with a cost over the capitalization threshold set by the 
LEA. 

 

Full-time-equivalent (FTE). The ratio of time expended in a part-time position to that of a 
full-time position. The ratio is derived by dividing the amount of time of employment 
required in the part-time position by the amount of employed time required in a 
corresponding full-time position. 

 

Function. An act, service, or group of services proper to a person, thing, or institution and aimed 
at accomplishing a certain end. In SACS, function refers to those activities or services 
performed to accomplish a goal. 

Page 145 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Fund. A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and 
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, that are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accord with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. 

 

Fund balance. The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. The fund equity of governmental and trust funds. 

 

G 
 

General fund. The fund used to finance the ordinary operations of the LEA. It is available 
for any legally authorized purpose. 

 

General journal. A book of original entry for all entries of financial transactions that are not 
recorded in a special journal, such as a cash receipts journal, a voucher register, or a cash 
disbursements journal. 

 

General ledger. A book, file, or other device that contains the accounts needed to reflect, in 
summary and in detail, the financial position, the results of financial operations, and the 
changes in equities of a fund or an account group used by an LEA. 

 

General long-term debt. Long-term debt that is legally payable from general revenue and 
backed by the full faith and credit of an LEA. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Uniform minimum standards of, and 
guidelines to, financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the 
basic financial statements of an entity. These principles encompass the conventions, rules, 
and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practices and procedures. Generally 
accepted accounting principles provide a standard by which to measure financial 
presentations. The primary authoritative source on the application of these principles to state 
and local governments is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

Generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS). Measures of the quality of the performance of 
auditing procedures and the objectives to be attained through their use. The standards are 
concerned with the auditor’s professional qualities and with the judgment exercised in the 
performance of an audit. Generally accepted auditing standards are established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

Generally accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS). Generally accepted auditing 
standards for government are established by the U.S. Government Accountability Office and 
published in Government Auditing Standards, also known as the Yellow Book. 

 

Gift. Anything of value received from any source for which no repayment or service to the 
contributor is expected. 

 

Goal. In SACS, a goal defines an objective or a set of objectives for the LEA. It is used to 
account for the cost of instruction and other services by the instructional goals and objectives 
of an LEA. 

Page 146 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The organization established to issue 
standards of financial accounting and reporting with respect to activities and transactions of 
state and local governmental entities. It is the successor organization to the National Council 
on Governmental Accounting (NCGA). 

 

Grade level. Assigned classification of students according to age and school progress (e.g., 
kindergarten or first grade). 

 

Grant. A contribution, either in money or material goods, made by one governmental entity to 
another. Grants may be intended for specific or general purposes. (This term should not be 
used as a basis for determining how to account for unspent balances of categorical aid.) 

 

Grants-in-aid. See Grant. 
 

H 
 

Holding accounts. Suspense accounts that are used temporarily to accumulate costs that will 
ultimately be charged to other user programs. 

 

I 
 

Income. A term used in accounting for a proprietary-type fund to represent the excess of 
revenues earned over the expenses incurred in carrying on the fund’s operations. The term 
income should not be used in lieu of revenue in governmental-type funds. 

 

Indirect cost. Elements of cost necessary in the operation of the LEA or in the performance of a 
service that are of such nature that the amount applicable to each accounting unit cannot be 
determined readily and accurately or for which the cost of such determination exceeds the 
benefit of the determination. It consists of those business and administrative costs that benefit 
the entire LEA (e.g., accounting, budgeting, personnel, purchasing). 

 

Indirect cost rate (ICR). A method for claiming reimbursement of indirect costs from federal and 
state categorical funds. It is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the indirect costs to direct 
base costs. 

 

Indirect support charges. Charges for routine services not performed as a special service for a 
particular program but allocated to user programs. 

 

In lieu of taxes. Revenue to replace the loss of tax revenue resulting from property that is 
exempted from taxation. 

 

Interest. A fee charged to a borrower for the use of money. 
 

Interfund accounts. Accounts in which transactions between funds are reflected. These include 
interfund transfer accounts and interfund receivable and payable accounts. 

 

Interfund borrowing. The movement of cash from one fund to another with the expectation that 
the borrowing is temporary and will be repaid. Interfund borrowing does not affect the fund 
balance of either the borrowing fund or the lending fund. 

 

Interfund transfers. Money that is taken from one fund under the control of the governing board 
and added to another fund under the board’s control, without the expectation for repayment. 

Page 147 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Interfund transactions other than interfund loans or borrowing, quasi-external transactions, 
and reimbursement. Interfund transfers are not revenues or expenditures. They do not 
increase the resources of the LEA as a whole but they do affect the fund balance of both 
funds. (See also Operating transfers, Residual equity transfers, and Interfund borrowing.) 

 

Interim borrowing. (1) Short-term loans to be repaid from general revenues during the course of 
a fiscal year; (2) short-term loans in anticipation of tax collections or bond issuance. 

 

Interim reports. Reports prepared as of a date or a period during the fiscal year. They include 
budgetary estimates, financial transactions during current year-to-date, and end-of-year 
projections. 

 

Internal audit. An appraisal activity within an LEA that (1) determines the adequacy of the 
system of internal control; (2) verifies and safeguards assets; (3) determines the reliability of 
the accounting and reporting system; (4) ascertains compliance with existing policies and 
procedures; and (5) appraises the performance of activities and work programs. 

 

Internal control. A plan of organization under which employees’ duties are so arranged, and 
records and procedures so designated, as to provide a system of self-checking, thereby 
enhancing accounting control over assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenditures. Under such a 
system, the employees’ work is subdivided so that no single employee performs a complete 
cycle of operation. Such procedures call for proper authorization by designated officials. 

 

Internal service funds. Funds created to render services on a cost-reimbursement basis to other 
organizational units of the LEA. Such funds are generally intended to be self-supporting. 

 

Inventory. A detailed list showing the quantities and a description of the property on hand at a 
given time. It may also include units of measure, unit prices, and values. 

 

Investments. Usually, securities and real estate held for the purpose of generating revenues, such 
as interest, dividends, or rental payments. 

 

Invoice. An itemized statement of charges for merchandise sold or services rendered to the 
purchaser. 

 

J 
 

Job account. An account established to record the accumulation of costs of a specific piece of 
work; work orders showing charges for material and labor used. 

 

Journal. Any accounting record in which the financial transactions of an LEA are formally 
recorded for the first time (e.g., the cash receipts book, check register, and general journal). 

 

Journal voucher. A form provided for the recording of certain transactions or information in 
place of, or supplementary to, the journal or registers. 

 

Judgments. Amounts due to be paid or collected by the LEA as the result of court decisions. 
 

L 
 

LEA. See Local educational agency. 

Page 148 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Lease-purchase agreements. Contractual agreements that are termed “leases” but which, in 
substance, amount to purchase contracts. 

 

Levy. The imposition of taxes or special assessments for the support of governmental activities; 
also, the total amount of taxes, special assessments, or service charges imposed by a 
governmental unit. 

 

Liabilities. Legal obligations (with the exception of encumbrances) that are unpaid. 
 

Line-item budgeting. A budget system emphasizing a “balanced budget” through comparison of 
estimated revenues with projected expenditures. Budgetary divisions are listed by 
organizational units, such as departments or activities, and expenditures are divided into 
major categories of personal services, contracted services and supplies, and capital outlay. 
For budgetary control, further breakdowns of expenditures are made through detailed object 
accounts based on the wide range of services, supplies, and equipment. 

 

Local educational agency (LEA). Typically, a local school district, county office of education, or 
joint powers agency engaged in providing educational services. 

 

Long-term debt. Debt that matures more than one year after the date of issuance. 
 

M 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). The narrative introducing the financial statements and 
providing an analytical overview of the LEA’s financial performance for the year. It should contain 
sufficient information for users of the financial statements to evaluate whether the financial position 
of the LEA has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities. 

 

Modified accrual basis. The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental fund type. Under it, 
revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and “available” to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Most expenditures are recognized (recorded) when the related 
liability is incurred. 

 

Multiyear financial plan. A plan that presents financial estimates of programs in tabular form for 
a period of years. These estimates reflect the future financial impact of current decisions. The 
data in the plan should be organized along the lines of the program structure. 

 

N 
 

Net income. A proprietary fund’s excess of revenues and operating transfers in over expenses 
and operating transfers out. 

 

Not-for-profit organization (NPO). An entity that meets the definition in the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 116, Accounting for Contribution Received and Contribution Made. An entity with the 
following characteristics that separates it from a business enterprise: 

 

x It receives contributions of significant amounts of resources from providers who 
do not expect a commensurate or proportionate pecuniary return. 

Page 149 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
x Its operating purposes are other than to provide goods or services at a profit. 
x Unlike business enterprises, it does not have an interest in ownership. 

 

O 
 

Object. As used in an expenditure classification, object applies to the article purchased or to the 
service obtained. 

 

Obligations. Amounts that the LEA may be legally required to meet from its resources. They 
include not only actual liabilities but also unliquidated encumbrances. 

 

Operating transfers. All interfund transfers other than residual equity transfers. 
 

Order (for payment). A written demand by the governing board of an LEA requiring the county 
superintendent of schools to draw his or her requisition on the county auditor for the payment 
of a claim against the LEA. 

 

Other financing sources. Governmental fund general long-term debt proceeds, operating 
transfers in, and material proceeds of fixed asset dispositions. Such amounts are 
classified separately from revenues. 

 

Other financing uses. Governmental funds’ operating transfers out. Such amounts are classified 
separately from expenditures. 

 

Overdraft. The amount by which checks, drafts, or other demands for payment on the treasury or 
on a bank account exceed the amount of the balance on which they are drawn; or the amount 
by which encumbrances and expenditures exceed the appropriation to which they are 
chargeable. 

 

Overhead. See Indirect cost. 
 

P 
 

Payroll register. A document accompanying one or more orders on a fund of an LEA for the 
payment of salaries or wages to employees; contains the names of such employees and 
provides information substantiating such orders. 

 

Payroll warrant. A document used as an order or a requisition on a fund of an LEA for the 
purpose of paying salaries or wages. 

 

Perpetual inventory. A system whereby the inventory of units of property at any date may be 
obtained directly from the records without resorting to an actual physical count. A record is 
provided for each item or group of items to be inventoried and is divided to provide a 
running record of goods ordered, received, and withdrawn and the balance on hand in units 
and cost. 

 

PERS. Public Employees’ Retirement System. Unless exempted by state law, 
classified employees, their district, and the state contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Personal property. All property except real property. (See also Real property.) 

Page 150 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Petty cash. A sum of money set aside for the purpose of making change or immediate payments 
of small amounts. (See also Revolving cash fund.) 

 

Physical inventory. The annual physical count of an LEA’s inventory. This count is often taken 
at the end of the year and observed by the LEA’s auditors. Periodically, physical inventories 
are conducted to test the accuracy of the perpetual inventory records. 

 

Posting. The act of transferring to an account in a ledger the data, either detailed or summarized, 
contained in a book of original entry. 

 

Prepaid expenses. Expenditures for which payment has been made but for which benefits have 
not been realized as of a certain date (e.g., prepaid rent, prepaid interest, and premiums on 
unexpired insurance). 

 

Prior years’ taxes. Taxes collected within the current fiscal year for levies in previous fiscal 
years. 

 

Program. A group of related activities that operate together to accomplish specific purposes or 
objectives. 

 

Program cost accounting. A method to identify program costs in a standard manner. In SACS, 
the goal field provides the framework for program cost accounting. 

 

Program structure. The hierarchical arrangement of programs that represents the 
interrelationship of activities to goals and objectives. The program structure contains 
categories of activities with common outputs and objectives. Programs may cut across 
existing departments and agencies. 

 

Project year. A field in SACS that is used to distinguish the activities of grants, sometimes 
known as special projects, whose “project year” or “reporting year” is different from the 
LEA fiscal year. 

 

Prorating. The allocating of expenditures or revenue from a single source to two or more 
accounts to show the correct distribution of charges or revenue. 

 

Purchase order. A document issued to a vendor that authorizes the delivery of specified 
merchandise or the performance of certain services and the making of a charge for them. 

 

R 
 

Real property. Property consisting of land, buildings, minerals, timber, landscaping, and all 
improvements thereto. 

 

Rebate. See Abatement or Refund. 
 

Receipts. Cash received. 
 

Reclassification. Redesignation of the current year’s revenue or expenditure items previously 
posted to one account and later determined to be more properly charged to a different 
account. 

 

Refund. An amount paid back or credit allowed because of an over-collection. 

Page 151 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Registered warrant. A warrant that is registered by the county treasurer for future 
payment because of a present lack of funds and that is to be paid with interest in the 
order of its registration. 

 

Registers. A listing of transactions of like kind that may be totaled and summarized for 
convenience in posting (e.g., payroll registers, warrant registers, and attendance 
registers). 

 

Reimbursement. Cash or other assets received as a repayment of the cost of work or services 
performed; or repayment of expenditures made for or on behalf of another governmental unit, 
fund, or department. 

 

Requisition. A document submitted initiating a purchase order to secure specified 
articles, services, or issuance of materials from stores or a warehouse. 

 

Reserve for economic uncertainties. The portion of the fund balance that has been designated (set 
aside) by the governing board to provide for emergencies or economic events, such as 
revenue shortfalls, that could not be anticipated. 

 

Reserve for encumbrances. An account used to segregate a portion of a fund balance for 
outstanding encumbrances. 

 

Residual equity transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds of the 
LEA (e.g., transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds to the general fund or 
contribution of internal service fund capital by the general fund). 

 

Resource. A field in SACS that is used to classify revenues and resulting expenditures in accord 
with restrictions or special reporting requirements placed on either aspects of LEA financial 
activities by law or regulation. Further, because such revenues frequently are not fully 
expended within a fiscal year, and related liabilities are not completely liquidated, the 
resource code is also to reflect restrictions and special reporting obligations on balance sheet 
accounts. 

 

Restricted funds. Money whose use is restricted by legal requirement or by the donor. 
 

Revenues. The increases in a fund’s financial resources other than from interfund transfers or 
debt issue proceeds. Revenues are the primary financial resource of a fund. Revenues are 
recognized when assets are increased without increasing liabilities or incurring an 
expenditure reimbursement. 

 

Revolving cash fund. An account used primarily for emergency or small disbursements and 
reimbursed periodically through properly documented expenditures, which are summarized 
and charged to proper accounting classifications. 

 

S 
 

SACS. Acronym for standardized account code structure. 
 

Schedules. Explanatory or supplementary statements that accompany the balance sheet or other 
financial statements. 

Page 152 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Secured roll. Assessed value of real property, such as land, buildings, secured personal 
property, or anything permanently attached to land, as determined by each county assessor. 

 

Securities. Bonds, notes, mortgages, or other forms of negotiable or nonnegotiable instruments. 
 

Serial annuity bonds. Serial bonds in which the annual installments of bond principal are so 
arranged that the combined payments for principal and interest are approximately the same 
each year. 

 

Serial bonds. Bonds whose principal is repaid in periodic installments over the life of the issue. 
 

Shared revenue. Revenue that is levied by one governmental unit but that is shared, usually in 
proportion to the amount collected, with another unit of government or class of governments. 

 

Short-term debt. Debt with a maturity of one year or less after the date of issuance. Short-term 
debt usually includes bond anticipation notes payable and tax and revenue anticipation notes 
(TRANs) payable. 

 

Source document. Any voucher, invoice, or other data that support an entry in the accounting 
records. 

 

Special revenue funds. Funds established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to finance particular activities other than capital 
projects or debt service and not held in trust for other individuals or entities. 

 

Standardized account code structure (SACS). A uniform, comprehensive, and minimum chart of 
accounts for classifying the financial activities of California LEAs. 

 

Statements. (1) In a general sense, all of those formal written presentations that set forth financial 
information; (2) in technical accounting, those presentations of financial data that show the 
financial position and the results of financial operations of a fund, a group of accounts, or an 
entire LEA for a particular accounting period. 

 

State School Fund. A special revenue fund within the State Treasury used for apportionments to 
school districts and county offices of education on the basis of the Local Control Funding 
Formula and certain other special-purpose apportionments. Apportionments are made by the 
State Controller and are based on certifications from the California Department of Education. 

 

Stores. Goods that are on hand in storerooms and that are subject to requisition. 
 

STRS. State Teachers’ Retirement System. State law requires certificated employees, school 
districts, and the state to contribute to this retirement fund. 

 

Student body fund. An agency fund to control the receipts and the disbursements of student 
associations’ activities; it consists only of assets and liabilities. 

 

Subsidiary ledger. A supporting ledger consisting of a group of accounts, the total of which is in 
agreement with a control account (e.g., payroll ledger and appropriations ledger). 

 

Subvention. Provision of assistance or financial support, usually from a superior governmental 
unit; a grant. 

Page 153 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Supply. An item of an expendable nature that is consumed, wears out, or deteriorates in use; or 
one that loses its identity through fabrication or incorporation into a different or more 
complex unit or substance. 

 

Surety bond. A written promise to pay damages or to indemnify against losses caused by the 
party or parties named in the document, through nonperformance or through defalcation (e.g., 
a surety bond given by a contractor or by an official who handles cash or securities). 

 

Suspense account. An account that temporarily carries charges or credits pending 
the determination of the proper account or accounts. 

 

T 
 

Tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs). Notes issued in anticipation of collection of taxes, 
usually retirable only from tax collections and frequently only from the proceeds of the tax 
levy whose collection they anticipate. 

 

Tax liens. Claims by governmental units on properties for which taxes levied remain unpaid. 
 

Tax rate. The amount of tax stated in terms of a unit of the tax base. 
 

Tax rate limit. The maximum rate of tax that a governmental unit may levy. 
 

Tax redemption. Proceeds from the sale of tax-delinquent property. 
 

Tax relief subventions. Funds ordinarily paid to compensate for taxes lost because of tax relief 
measures. 

 

Tax roll. The list showing the amount of taxes levied against each taxpayer or property. 
 

Taxes. Compulsory charges levied by a governmental unit for the purpose of financing 
services performed for the common benefit. 

 

Taxes, protested. Tax money paid under protest and held by the county auditor pending 
settlement of the protest. 

 

Taxes receivable. An asset account representing the uncollected portion of taxes levied. 
 

Term bond. A bond whose entire principal matures on a single date. 
 

Trade discount. A reduction of the list price, usually expressed as a percentage and related to the 
volume of business transacted. (The term is not to be confused with Cash discount.) 

 

Transfer. Interdistrict or interfund payments or receipts not chargeable to expenditures or 
credited to revenue. (See also Budget transfer and Interfund transfers.) 

 

Trial balance. A list of the balances of the accounts in a ledger kept by double entry, with the 
debit and credit balances shown in separate columns. If the totals of the debit and credit 
columns are equal or if their net balances agree with a control account, the ledgers from 
which the figures are taken are said to be “in balance.” 

 

Trust fund. A fund used to account for assets held by a government in a trustee capacity for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Page 154 of 155



 

Glossary 
 

 
 

Tuition. An amount charged for educational services provided to a student. 
 

U 
 

Unaudited actuals. An annual statement reporting the financial activities of the LEA in which 
the data are not yet audited. 

 

Unearned revenue. A liability for resources received prior to revenue recognition. 
 

Unencumbered balance. That portion of an appropriation or allotment not yet expended or 
obligated. 

 

Unit cost. The total expenditure for a product, program, or service divided by the total quantity 
obtained or some other quantitative measure (e.g., the total expenditure for desks divided by 
the number of desks equals the cost per desk). 

 

Unrealized revenue. Estimated revenue less revenue received to date; also, the estimated revenue 
for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

 

Unsecured roll. Assessed value of personal property other than secured property. 
 

V 
 

Voucher. A written document that evidences the propriety of transactions and usually 
indicates the amounts that are to be recorded. 

 

W 
 

Warrant. A written order, drawn by the LEA’s governing board or its authorized officer(s) or 
employee(s), approved by the county superintendent of schools and allowed by the county 
auditor, directing the county treasurer to pay a specified amount to a designated payee. 

 

Warrants payable. The amount of warrants issued, outstanding, and unpaid. 
 

Withholding. The process of deducting from a salary or wage payment an amount, specified by 
law or regulation, representing the individual’s estimated federal or state income tax that the 
employer must pay to the taxing authority. 

 

Work in process. The value of partially completed products manufactured or processed, such as a 
partially completed printing job. 

 

Work order. A written authorization for the performance of a particular job containing a 
description of the nature and location of the job and specifications for the work that is to be 
performed. Such authorizations are usually assigned job numbers, and provision is made for 
accumulating and reporting labor, material, and other costs. 

 

Workstation. Computer, personal computers, or work areas assigned for data processing 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised January 2019 Glossary 18 

Page 155 of 155



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 21/22-04 

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT 
OF SCHOOLS AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGARDING THE 2022-23 
 EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

 WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012 and Proposition 55 on 
November 8, 2016; 

 WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California Constitution effective 
November 7, 2012; and Proposition 55 amended Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution 
effective November 8, 2016 and commencing on January 1, 2018; 

 WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the State General Fund an 
Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the incremental 
increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f); 

 WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Coordinator of Business Services shall estimate the 
total amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental increases 
in tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for transfer into the 
Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year; 

 WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State Controller shall 
transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within ten days preceding the 
end of the fiscal year; 

 WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously appropriated 
for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and community 
college districts; 

 WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used to pay any 
costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state government; 

 WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, or charter 
school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the Education 
Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction; 

 WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending determinations with 
respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a public 
meeting of the governing board; 

11.3



Board Resolution 21/22-04 
Page 2 
June 15, 2022 
 

 WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be used for 
salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost; 
 
 WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school district and charter 
school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how much money was received 
from the Education Protection Account and how that money was spent; 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of community college 
districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools shall ascertain and verify 
whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account have been properly disbursed 
and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of education, school 
districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit requirements of Article XIII, Section 
36 may be paid with funding from the Education Protection Act and shall not be considered 
administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall 
be spent as required by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money 
will be spent shall be made in open session of a public meeting of the governing board of Colusa 
County Board of Education; and further 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California Constitution, 
the governing board of the Colusa County Office of Education has determined to spend the monies 
received from the Education Protection Act as attached. 
 
The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County Board of 
Education on the 15th day of June 2022 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  
 
Noes:  
 
Absent:  
 

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of Colusa 
County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution adopted by 
the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting and the resolution 
is on file in the of said Board. 
 
    
 (Clerk’s Signature)   (Date) 



Colusa COE 2022-23 Budget

Expenditures through: June 30, 2023
For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description Object Codes Amount
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00
Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 641,753.00
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00
All Other Financing Sources and Contributions 8900-8999 0.00
Deferred Revenue 9650  
TOTAL AVAILABLE 641,753.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Function
(Objects 1000-7999)

Instruction 1000-1999
Instruction-Related Services

Instructional Supervision and Administration 2100-2150 0.00
AU of a Multidistrict SELPA 2200 0.00
Instructional Library, Media, and Technology 2420 0.00
Other Instructional Resources 2490-2495 0.00
School Administration 2700 438,239.00

Pupil Services
Guidance and Counseling Services 3110 0.00
Psychological Services 3120 0.00
Attendance and Social Work Services 3130 0.00
Health Services 3140 0.00
Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 3150 0.00
Pupil Testing Services 3160 0.00
Pupil Transportation 3600 0.00
Food Services 3700 0.00
Other Pupil Services 3900 0.00

Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00
Community Services 5000-5999 0.00
Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00
General Administration 7000-7999 140,547.00
Plant Services 8000-8999 62,967.00
Other Outgo 9000-9999 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 641,753.00

BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses) 0.00



Colusa COE 2021-22 Budget

Expenditures through: June 30, 2022
For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description Object Codes Amount
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00
Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 781,373.00
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00
All Other Financing Sources and Contributions 8900-8999 0.00
Deferred Revenue 9650  
TOTAL AVAILABLE 781,373.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Function
(Objects 1000-7999)

Instruction 1000-1999
Instruction-Related Services

Instructional Supervision and Administration 2100-2150 0.00
AU of a Multidistrict SELPA 2200 0.00
Instructional Library, Media, and Technology 2420 0.00
Other Instructional Resources 2490-2495 0.00
School Administration 2700 588,030.00

Pupil Services
Guidance and Counseling Services 3110 0.00
Psychological Services 3120 0.00
Attendance and Social Work Services 3130 0.00
Health Services 3140 0.00
Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 3150 0.00
Pupil Testing Services 3160 0.00
Pupil Transportation 3600 0.00
Food Services 3700 0.00
Other Pupil Services 3900 0.00

Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00
Community Services 5000-5999 0.00
Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00
General Administration 7000-7999 140,436.00
Plant Services 8000-8999 52,907.00
Other Outgo 9000-9999 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 781,373.00

BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses) 0.00



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

TO: Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees 

FROM: Serena Morrow, Director of Human Resources 

DATE:  May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Health/Dental/Vision (H/D/V) Employer Contribution 2022-2023 

A Tentative Agreement has been signed by the County Superintendent, the Educators 
of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE), and the Colusa County Education 
Support Professionals (CCESP), to increase the annual H/D/V employer contribution 
from $10,500 annually to $10,750 annually.  The increase will take effect October 1, 
2022. 

With this in mind, it my recommendation that the Board of Trustees consider taking 
action to increase the County Superintendent and Board of Trustees’ annual H/D/V 
employer contribution to $10,750 annually, effective July 1, 2022. 

11.4



Superintendent Salary Survey 22/23
Class VII
Counties Work Days Salary Daily Rate
Calaveras 220 $138,720 $631

Glenn 230 $170,000 $739
Inyo 215 $175,000 $814

Lassen 225 $156,267 $695
Modoc 215 $143,532 $668
Mono 200 $151,665 $758

Siskiyou 230 $167,939 $730
Trinity 205 $159,030 $776

Tuolumne 225 $181,000 $804
Amador 225 $200,000 $889

*Del Norte 224 $190,137 $849
*Mariposa 261 $164,000 $628
*Plumas 225 $147,242 $654#DIV/0!

Average Class VII Counties 223 $164,964 $741

230 $167,347 $728

Work Days Salary Daily Rate
224 $149,000 $665
225 $137,865 $613
225 $186,287 $828
225 $174,800 $777

Average Colusa Co District Superintendents 225 $161,988 $721

230 $167,347 $728

Work Days Salary Daily Rate
224 $202,640 $905
230 $160,000 $696
217 $195,545 $901
220 $192,780 $876
215 $193,861 $902

Average Contiguous Superintendents 221 $188,965 $856

230 $167,347 $728

*Del Norte, Mariposa and Plumas Countys are 3 of 5 county/unified school districts; most of the salary is paid by

°Verified 5/19/22
the district.

Glenn

Yolo

Lake

Colusa COE 

Colusa COE

Colusa Unified
District

Williams Unified

Sutter

Pierce Joint Unified

Butte
Contiguous Counties

Colusa COE

Maxwell Unified

S:\SURVEYS\Superintendent's Salary Survey\Superintendent's Salary Survey 22-23\Superintendent Salary Survey  2022

11.5



Superintendent Salary Survey 22-23
COUNTY/  

DISTRICT

ANNUAL 

WORK 

DAYS/YEAR

ANNUAL 

SALARY 

ANNUAL CAR 

ALLOWANCE

ANNUAL 

H/D/V CAP

ANNUAL 

MASTER'S 

DEGREE STIPEND

ANNUAL 

DOCTORATE 

DEGREE STIPEND

ANNUAL 

ACSA DUES 

PAID

ANNUAL 

CELL 

PHONE

ANNUAL 

OTHER

ANNUAL TOTAL 

SALARY

Amador 225 200,000.00$    6,000.00$     1,000.00$     1,750.00$     Yes 208,750.00$    
Butte 224 202,640.00$    4,800.00$     13,406.88$     -$     -$     -$      220,846.88$    
Calaveras 220 138,720.00$    -$     11,500.00$     -$     -$     Yes 600.00$   -$     150,820.00$    
Colusa COE 230 167,347.00$    4,200.00$     10,500.00$     -$     182,047.00$    
Colusa USD 224 149,000.00$    2,400.00$     10,523.76$     800.00$     1,000.00$     Yes 600.00$   164,323.76$    
Del Norte 224 190,137.00$    Yes 190,137.00$    
Glenn 230 170,000.00$    -$     13,968.00$     -$     -$     183,968.00$    
Inyo 215 175,000.00$    Yes 175,000.00$    
Lake 217 195,545.28$    15,500.00$     211,045.28$    
Lassen 225 156,267.00$    -$     13,200.00$     -$     Yes 780.00$   -$     170,247.00$    
Mariposa 261 164,000.00$    -$     13,359.00$     1,500.00$     1,500.00$     Yes -$     180,359.00$    
Maxwell USD 225 137,865.00$    -$     10,120.00$     -$     -$     Yes -$      -$     147,985.00$    
Modoc 215 143,532.00$    -$     13,200.00$     1,500.00$     1,500.00$     -$     159,732.00$    
Mono 200 151,665.00$    -$     39,939.20$     -$     Yes -$     191,604.20$    
Pierce Joint USD 225 186,287.00$    10,888.00$     1,000.00$     1,000.00$     Yes -$     199,175.00$    
Plumas 225 147,242.00$    -$     11,059.00$     -$     -$     158,301.00$    
Siskiyou 230+ 167,939.00$    -$     1,300.00$     -$     Yes 300.00$   -$     169,539.00$    
Sutter 220 192,780.00$    -$     -$     -$      192,780.00$    
Trinity 205 153,994.00$    -$     15,852.48$     -$     -$     169,846.48$    
Tuolumne 225 181,000.00$    8,000.00$     10,020.00$     600.00$   199,620.00$    
Williams USD 225 174,800.00$    1,000.00$     1,000.00$     Yes 176,800.00$    
Yolo 215 193,861.00$    8,400.00$       1,000.00$     1,000.00$     Yes 1,200.00$   205,461.00$    

11.5



11.6

Universal PreKindergarten Planning and Implementation 
Grant Program – County Offices of Education Countywide 

Planning and Capacity Building Template 
A Resource for County Offices of Education 

Released – 3/22/2022 

Contents 
Universal PreKindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program – County 
Offices of Education Countywide Planning and Capacity Building Template ............... 1 
Universal PreKindergarten in California ....................................................................... 2 
The California Universal PreKindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant 
Program – Overview of County Offices of Education Support Function ....................... 2 
Universal PreKindergarten County Office of Education Countywide Planning and 
Capacity Building Template ......................................................................................... 4 
Key Considerations ...................................................................................................... 5 

Staffing County Office of Education Capacity for Planning, Communication, and 
Coordination ............................................................................................................. 5 
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Timeline ................................................. 5 
Supporting a Preschool through Third Grade Continuum ........................................ 6 
Full-Day Extended Learning and Care ..................................................................... 6 
Creating Joint or Aligned Plans ................................................................................ 7 

Universal PreKindergarten Planning Template ............................................................ 8 
Self-Certification ....................................................................................................... 8 
Projected Enrollment and Needs Assessment ......................................................... 9 
Focus Area A: Vision and Coherence .................................................................... 11 
Focus Area B: Community Engagement and Partnerships .................................... 14 
Focus Area C: Workforce Recruitment and Professional Learning ........................ 17 
Focus Area D: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment ....................................... 22 
Focus Area E: LEA Facilities, Services, and Operations ........................................ 24 

Technical Assistance and Capacity Building Questions ............................................ 25 

Page 1 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 



Page 2 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Universal PreKindergarten in California 
Decades of research demonstrate that an early and strong foundation for learning 
matters. Children who have effective learning opportunities before Kindergarten (K) 
have an advantage in school and in life over children who do not, especially children 
with adverse childhood experiences. Children who attend quality preschool programs 
are more prepared for school in terms of their early literacy, language, and math skills, 
their executive function, and social-emotional development. In some cases, preschool 
participants are less likely to be identified for special education services or to be held 
back in elementary school than children who do not attend developmentally-informed 
preschool programs that include strong educational components. 

California is poised to realize Universal PreKindergarten (UPK) for all four-year-old 
children, and to expand services for three-year-old children through bold leadership and 
the unprecedented investments in the Budget Act of 2021, including Universal 
Transitional Kindergarten (UTK) and expansion of the California State Preschool 
Program (CSPP). 

The tumult of the COVID-19 pandemic accelerated a call to action to ensure a strong 
educational foundation for all children, emphasizing the critical role of our education 
system in supporting children and families’ needs and how local flexibility fuels 
community capacity to meet their needs. California’s leaders responded with historic 
investments in family support, child development and care, and education. Yet, as the 
2020 Master Plan for Early Learning and Care highlights, realizing the promise of early 
childhood investments will require all partners—across early learning and care, early 
education, elementary education, and expanded learning and extended care 
communities—to work together to create a stronger system designed to meet the needs 
of the whole child and their families. 

The California Universal PreKindergarten Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program – Overview of County Offices of 
Education Support Function 
The 2021–22 State Budget package established the UPK Planning and Implementation 
Grant Program as a state early learning initiative with the goal of expanding access to 
PreKindergarten (Pre-K) programs at local educational agencies (LEAs). More 
information about this program is further outlined in the UPK Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program – LEA Planning Template (LEA Planning Template), 
which can be found on the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) website at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/em/. 

Under the provisions of California Education Code (EC) Section 8281.5(c), grant funds 
are allocated to school districts, charter schools, and county offices of education (COEs) 
with K enrollment in specific years, according to a specified formula. In addition, funds 
are allocated to COEs to support countywide planning and capacity building around 
UPK. 



Page 3 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

These funds may be used for costs associated with providing countywide planning and 
capacity building services to help LEAs in their county create or expand CSPP or 
Transitional Kindergarten (TK) programs, or to establish or strengthen partnerships with 
other providers of Pre-K education within the LEA, including Head Start programs, to 
ensure that high-quality options are available for four-year-old children. Allowable costs 
include, but are not necessarily limited to, planning costs, hiring and recruitment costs, 
staff training and professional development, classroom materials, and supplies. 

As a condition of receiving grant funds, state law requires each LEA to create a plan 
articulating how all children in the attendance area of the LEA will have access to full-
day learning programs the year before K that meet the needs of parents, including 
through partnerships with the LEA’s expanded learning offerings, the After School 
Education and Safety (ASES) Program, the CSPP, Head Start programs, and other 
community-based early learning and care programs (EC Section 8281.5). 

Under state law, the plan must be developed for consideration by the LEA’s governing 
board or body at a public meeting on or before June 30, 2022, after which the LEA must 
provide data, as specified by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, to the CDE. 
COEs are also required to develop and present a plan that describes how the 
COE is providing support for countywide planning and capacity building efforts 
for UPK planning and implementation (EC Section 8281.5). Additionally, COEs will 
be required to submit the required data questions outlined in this template. If a 
COE operates a TK and K program, it must also develop a UPK Plan and provide 
the CDE with required data as outlined in the LEA Planning Template. 

The CDE released the UPK Planning and Implementation Grant Program - COE 
Countywide Planning and Capacity Building Template to: (1) offer planning questions 
for COE consideration in developing comprehensive plans for supporting LEAs to plan 
and implement UPK that meet community and family needs, and (2) outline the data 
that will be required for submission to the CDE to meet the requirements of EC Section 
8281.5. 

COEs should develop plans for how they will support LEAs in their county to assess 
options, make decisions, and construct plans that address the required questions and 
consider the recommended questions found in this template. COEs should 
communicate with the LEAs in their county about the types of information, resources, 
and technical assistance the COE is able to offer to support the UPK planning process. 

The California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) 
developed The Universal Prekindergarten Planning Toolkit: A Resource for County 
Offices of Education in California as a resource guide that can be found at 
https://ccsesa.org/?wpfb_dl=7924. It offers approaches and examples of how COEs can 
assist LEAs with planning for both UPK as well as preschool through third grade (P-3) 
continuum alignment and capacity building. The toolkit is a companion document to 
align with focus areas outlined in the LEA Planning Template. CCSESA also developed 



Page 4 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

a UPK LEA Assessment Tool to support the ongoing planning process to expand 
access to Pre-K programs that can be found at https://ccsesa.org/?wpfb_dl=7925. 

Universal PreKindergarten County Office of Education Countywide 
Planning and Capacity Building Template 
 
This template mirrors the format of the LEA Planning Template and includes 
recommended and required planning questions. Collectively, the recommended and 
required questions form a set of core planning questions the CDE believes are critical 
for COEs to answer in order to effectively support the development of comprehensive, 
responsive, and community-centered UPK Plans locally.1 

 Recommended Questions: All COEs are highly encouraged to incorporate 
answers to these questions in their UPK Plans. Responses to these questions 
are not required for submission to the CDE, but do support more holistic planning 
to meet the intent of these funds. 

 Required questions: All COEs will be required to answer the required data 
questions outlined in this template in a survey that will be issued by the CDE 
following the June 30, 2022, deadline for LEAs to present their plans to their 
governing boards. 2 

The CDE will be collecting information on the answers to the COE required questions 
after July 30, 2022, in a survey. This will allow the CDE to learn about how COEs are 
supporting LEAs as they move through the planning and implementation process. 

The questions required for submission to the CDE should be answered based on how 
the COE supported LEAs in advance of their June 30, 2022, plan presentations to local 
governing boards, as well as how the COE plans to continue to support implementation 
of UPK in the county through 2025–26. 

The UPK COE Planning Template is organized as follows: 

1. Self-Certification 
2. Projected Enrollment and Needs Assessment 
3. Focus Area Planning 

a. Vision and Coherence 
b. Community Engagement and Partnerships 
c. Workforce Recruitment and Professional Learning 
d. Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
e. LEA Facilities, Services, and Operations 

 
1 The CDE may collect additional data related to UPK implementation in future years as 
well. 
2 The required questions referred to in this template are being provided to COEs in 
advance of the survey to assist in the planning and implementation process. 



Page 5 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Key Considerations 
Staffing County Office of Education Capacity for Planning, Communication, and 

Coordination 
Local partnerships are critical to successful UPK implementation both at the district and 
county levels. COEs should play a key role in facilitating the development and 
strengthening of partnerships with local service providers in support of local UPK 
implementation that meets children and families’ needs. Many funding opportunities 
available to support UPK implementation have been made available, and COEs are in a 
unique position to coordinate efforts across LEAs so that funding can achieve maximal 
impact. To that end, the CDE encourages COEs to include plans to hire personnel to 
focus on effective UPK implementation in their county including supporting 
communication and coordination with LEAs, extended learning and care programs and 
partners, other local service providers, institutions of higher education (IHEs), and other 
community partners involved in UPK implementation related to planning, grant 
management, and implementation. 

Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Timeline 

As a condition of receipt of apportionment, school districts and charter schools must 
implement universally available TK for all four-year-old children by 2025–26 (EC Section 
48000[c][1]). COEs should support LEAs to consider how this implementation timeline 
will impact elements of their UPK Plan, including whether implementing UTK on a faster 
timeline through early admittance TK (ETK) (children who turn four between July 1 and 
September 1 of the school year will not qualify for ETK, but will qualify for TK in 2025– 
26) will allow the LEA to reach economies of scale with regard to the number of 
classrooms and TK teachers needed. The table below illustrates the UTK 
implementation timeline, including eligibility and ratios. 

Table: TK Eligibility, Ratio, and Class Size Requirements by Fiscal Year 

Type of 
Requirement 

2021–22  2022–23  2023–24  2024–25  2025–26 
 

Eligibility Turn five 
between 
September 
2 and 
December 
2; at district 
discretion, 
turn five 
between 
December 3 
and the end 
of the 
school 
year*** 

Turn five 
between 
September 
2 and 
February 2; 
at district 
discretion, 
turn five 
between 
February 3 
and the end 
of the 
school 
year*** 

Turn five 
between 
September 
2 and April 
2; at district 
discretion, 
turn five 
between 
April 3 and 
the end of 
the school 
year*** 

Turn five 
between 
September 
2 and June 
2; at district 
discretion, 
turn five 
between 
June 3 and 
the end of 
the school 
year*** 

Turn four by 
September 
1 
 



Page 6 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Type of 
Requirement 

2021–22  2022–23  2023–24  2024–25  2025–26 
 

Ratios Not 
Specified 

1:12 1:10** 1:10** 1:10** 

Class Size * 24* 24* 24* 24* 24* 
* Average class size across the school site. 

** Subject to future legislative appropriation. 

*** Pursuant to EC 37200 the end of the school year is June 30th. 

Supporting a Preschool through Third Grade Continuum 

The CDE recently launched a P–3 Alignment Initiative rooted in research that suggests 
the gaps in children’s opportunities and learning outcomes demand system-level reform 
at the state, county, district, school, and community level. Through this work, the CDE 
hopes to disrupt inequities, address bias, and promote equitable opportunities for 
California’s early learners. UPK implementation presents a critical opportunity to 
strengthen P-3 alignment, as a means of sustaining and accelerating the improved child 
outcomes associated with high-quality, early learning experiences. Additional 
information about the CDE’s P-3 Alignment Initiative can be found at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/p3/. 

COEs should support LEAs to create UPK Plans that are aligned with the vision of a P-3 
continuum. This includes supporting districts to engage leadership and staff from across 
different departments and divisions in the UPK planning effort. These could include 
district staff from the early education department (if there is one), curriculum and 
instruction, student programs, workforce, human resources, business services, special 
education, multilingual education, expanded learning and afterschool, and facilities. 
COEs should support LEAs to engage the families and extended learning and care 
providers in these planning efforts as well. 

Full-Day Extended Learning and Care 

State law does not require LEAs to operate a TK program that offers full-day early 
learning to all children the year before K; however, LEAs must articulate how they plan 
to ensure access to full-day, early learning programming to all students, and how they 
are partnering or plan to partner with other programs, such as those listed in the statute, 
to ensure every child has access to extended learning and care that, combined, equates 
to a full-day of programming that meets the community’s needs. COEs can play an 
important role in supporting LEAs to identify the needs of families and design a UPK 
implementation model that meets these needs. 

Additionally, starting in the 2022–23 school year, LEAs receiving Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Program (ELO-P) funding must offer nine hours of combined instructional 
time and expanded learning opportunities per instructional day to all unduplicated 
children enrolled in TK and at least 30 intersession days; however, LEAs are not 



Page 7 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

required to exclusively use ELO-P funding to meet the requirement. LEAs can also 
partner with Head Start, CSPP, ASES, or other community-based child care programs 
to fund and provide the additional extended learning and care hours needed to reach 
nine hours. (EC Section 46120). COEs can assist LEAs in developing partnerships with 
extended learning and care partners to provide these services. Some strategies include 
making connections across district and extended learning program staff, facilitating 
input and engagement sessions, convening partner meetings, providing lists of 
contacts, and more. 

Creating Joint or Aligned Plans 

COEs are encouraged to support joint planning efforts in instances where a joint plan is 
most effective or feasible. LEAs are permitted to partner in creating a joint UPK Plan 
and may submit the same plan for multiple LEAs. Small and rural LEAs serving similar 
communities, especially those with low TK or K average daily attendance (ADA), are 
strongly encouraged to consider creating a joint UPK Plan which includes non-district 
learning programs serving four-year-old children. LEAs are also encouraged to consider 
partnering with other nearby LEAs to submit a joint UPK Plan or with their COE to 
create a single, countywide plan. These joint plans should be developed in conjunction 
with CSPP, Head Start, other preschool programs, and early learning and care 
providers. COEs play a critical role in supporting these joint planning efforts among 
LEAs. COEs are also encouraged to collaborate with other COEs, as needed and 
applicable, in order to support capacity and effectiveness of the planning and support 
provided. 

  



Page 8 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Universal PreKindergarten Planning Template 
Self-Certification 

In the data collection survey submitted to the CDE, COEs must self-certify they 
developed a plan that was presented for consideration by the governing board or body 
at a public meeting on or before June 30, 2022, for how the COE is providing support 
for countywide planning and capacity building efforts for UPK planning and 
implementation. 

1. Please complete the following table: 
COE Name Contact Name 

and Title of the 
Individual Self-
Certifying the 
Statement 
Above 

Email Phone 

Colusa County 
Office of 
Education 

Vicki Markss, 
Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

vmarkss@ccoe.net (530) 458-0350 

 
2. Did the COE develop a joint plan with another COE? 

a. Yes 

b. No ☒ 

3. If the COE answered Yes to Question 2, what other COEs are part of this joint 
plan? [open response] 

4. Did the COE support any LEAs to develop joint plans? 

a. Yes [If yes, list LEAs; open response] 

b. No ☒  



Page 9 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Projected Enrollment and Needs Assessment 

Recommended Planning Questions 

The CDE recommends COEs prioritize these questions as part of their UPK Plan in 
addition to required questions. 

1. How will the COE support LEAs to develop enrollment projections or conduct 
needs assessments?  Projections include utilizing county-wide available data 
for UPK planning. CCOE Recommends that each district leader and their 
team conduct outreach activities to build strong connections with families. 

Required Questions 

The CDE will be collecting this information after the COE plan is presented to the 
governing board and after districts have presented their plans to their local governing 
boards. 

1. What data sources has the COE used to support LEAs in the development of 
enrollment projections or needs assessments? [select all that apply] 

a. TK and K census day and cumulative enrollment counts from 2013 
through 2019 as reported to the CDE (these may be acquired through the 
CDE TK Data web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/filestkdata.asp) 

b. Count of births in each ZIP Code in California as reported by the California 
Health and Human Services Agency (CHHS); estimated counts of births in 
each LEA from 2013 through 2019; and estimated count of births in each 
LEA three, four, five, and six years prior to 2013 through 2026 (these may 
be found on the CHHS Live Birth Profiles by ZIP code web page at 
https://data.chhs.ca.gov/dataset/cdph_live-birth-by-zip-code) 

c. ☒ Estimated population of three-, four-, five-, and six-year-old children for 
each county from 2013 through 2026 produced by the Department of 
Finance (DOF) (these may be found on the DOF Projections web page at 
https://www.dof.ca.gov/forecasting/demographics/projections/) 

d. “P-2B County Population by Age” (XLSX), the DOF County Population 
Projections by Age projection (these can be found on the DOF Projections 
web page at 
https://www.dof.ca.gov/forecasting/demographics/projections/) 

e. ☒ CHHS Live Birth Profiles by ZIP Code (these can be found at 
https://data.chhs.ca.gov/dataset/cdph_live-birth-by-zip-code)  

f. CDE TK and Kindergarten enrollment by school and LEA (these can be 
found on the CDE TK Data web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/filestkdata.asp) 

g. Other local birth rate data 



Page 10 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

h. ☒ Head Start Program Information Report 

i. ☒ California Department of Social Services (CDSS) Licensing data 

j. ☒ Quality Counts California (QCC) Common Data File 

k. ☒ Local First 5 needs assessments 

l. American Institute for Research Early Learning Needs Assessment Tool 

m. ☒ California Child Care Resource and Referral (R&R) Network data tools 

n. None of the above 

o. Other [open response] 

p. Not applicable 

2. Has the COE partnered with local Head Start providers, CSPP, local childcare 
and development planning councils (LPCs), R&R agencies, or other early 
learning and care partners to leverage existing data to inform LEA needs 
assessments? [Select all the apply] 

a. ☒ Head Start providers 

b. ☒ CSPP providers 

c. ☒ LPCs 

d. ☒ R&R agencies 

e. Other early learning and care partners [open response] 

f. None of the above 

3. Has the COE provided technical assistance to LEAs in any of the following areas 
related to projecting enrollment and assessing needs? [select all that apply] 

a. Support for parent surveys to gauge interest in service delivery models 

b. Data analysis capacity building to support staff to refine enrollment 
projections and project staffing needs based on community context 

c. ☒ Information on program eligibility requirements to project enrollment 
across programs 

d. ☒ Information on available resources and programs to support workforce 
pipeline development to staff UPK 

e. ☒ Projecting staffing needs 

f. Other [open response] 



Page 11 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Focus Area A: Vision and Coherence 

Recommended Planning Questions 

1. What is the COE’s vision for UPK from a countywide perspective? The vision 
of CCOE is to build a strong academic foundation and social-emotional well-
being for all young children by providing high quality early learning 
opportunities in a mixed delivery system.   

2. What priority areas will the COE focus on supporting for greatest impact on 
LEA UPK planning and implementation? Priority areas with the greatest focus 
will include community-wide leadership and collaboration, capacity building, 
and professional development opportunities to include curriculum, instruction, 
and assessment. 

3. How will the COE differentiate UPK planning and implementation support for 
different LEAs given diverse community contexts? Individualized support will 
be offered to school districts.  CCOE will recommend each district identify and 
partner with P-3 providers in their area to adopt options for a mixed delivery of 
services available based on family choice.  Online resources curated by the 
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 
(CCSESA) are available. 

4. In what ways will the COE support LEAs to develop local visions for UPK, and 
to the extent practicable, P-3 alignment? CCOE will utilize California 
Department of Education (CDE) resource materials to support LEA’s with 
strategies to support UPK implementation in their districts.  CCOE will 
recommend long term planning to support the UPK process that includes 
identified goals, budgeting, and funding sources to prioritize UPK 
programming.  Long term planning should include integrating UPK 
implementation into district LCAP and School Plans.   

5. How will the COE support LEAs to build connections with extended learning 
and care partners to create vision and coherence for UPK and P-3 systems?  
The Local Childcare Planning Council (LPC) and Resource and Referral 
programs will provide county-wide support by connecting existing early 
learning and care programs to district leaders.   CCOE will share the vision of 
a mixed delivery approach to support collaboration and transitions through 
hosting a collaborative work group.   

6. How will the COE integrate any COE child development and early education 
staff, including LPC and R&R staff, as applicable, with other relevant staff in 
other COE departments to ensure effective communication and coordination 
(for example, Special Education, Curriculum and Instruction)? CCOE will 
develop an ongoing collaborative work group to include COE department 
teams to ensure consistent communication. 



Page 12 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Required Questions 

1. How many districts is the COE offering or planning to offer support to? Four 
school districts.   

2. How many districts have accepted or participated in COE-administered UPK 
planning supports within the county to date? Three school districts. 

3. How many charters is the COE supporting or planning to support within the 
county? Zero Charters in Colusa County. 

4. What proportion of districts and charters is the COE supporting or planning to 
support within the county? 100%. 

5. How did the COE support LEAs to develop a local vision for UPK? CCOE 
organized individual meetings with each elementary school principal and 
shared considerations for universal TK expansion.  Resources are provided to 
guide the planning process. 

6. Has the COE supported or does the COE plan to support districts to 
incorporate UPK into their Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAPs)? 

a. ☒ Yes 

b. No 

c. Unsure 

7. Did the COE implement or is the COE planning to implement internal 
organizational structures or modifications to ensure that COE child 
development and early education staff collaborate and coordinate effectively 
with staff in other departments within the COE (for example, Special 
Education, Curriculum and Instruction) 

a. ☒ Yes.  Collaborative meetings have occurred.  School District staff 
were invited to meet and tour preschool classrooms to observe 
program design and classroom structure.  Special Education staff 
collaborate with each school district and are involved in the planning 
process. Collaborative efforts will continue to increase. 

b. No 

c. Not applicable 

8. Does the COE plan to support LEAs in the county to either apply to operate a 
CSPP contract or apply to expand existing CSPP contracts? [select one] 

a. Yes - the COE supported LEAs in applying to expand existing CSPP 
contract(s) in 2022–23 

b. Yes - the COE supported LEAs in applying for new CSPP contract(s) 
in 2022–23 



Page 13 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

c. Yes - the COE will support LEAs in applying to expand existing CSPP 
contracts in future years (if funding is appropriated by the legislature) 

d. Yes - the COE will support LEAs that plan to apply to administer a new 
CSPP contract in future years (if funding is appropriated by the 
legislature) 

e. No - The COE has no plans to support LEAs in beginning or expanding 
a CSPP contract in future years 

f. ☒ No - The LEAs in the county do not hold a CSPP contract nor plan 
to apply for a CSPP contract in the future 

9. In which of the following Focus Area A: Vision and Coherence areas has the 
COE provided technical assistance to LEAs? [select all that apply] 

a. Adjusting classroom practices to support the district’s UPK model (for 
example, mixed-age classrooms) 

b. ☒ Creating inclusive classrooms, including implementing Universal 
Design for Learning 

c. ☒ Models for administrative structures that support effective UPK 
programs and facilitate connections with the ELO-P and non-LEA-
administered early learning and care programs 

d. Support for developing and applying to administer a CSPP contract 

e. Developing templates or frameworks for drafting a P-3 vision that 
incorporates partners’ and parents’ voices 

f. Technical assistance on how to integrate UPK and P-3 in the district 
LCAP 

g. ☒ Guidance on best practices for smooth transitions through the P-3 
continuum 

h. ☒ Considerations for TK early admittance 

i. ☒ Implementing internal organization changes to ensure LEA child 
development and early education staff collaborate and coordinate 
effectively with staff in other departments within the LEA (for example, 
Special Education, Curriculum and Instruction) 

j. Other [Open Response] 

 



Page 14 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Focus Area B: Community Engagement and Partnerships 

Recommended Planning Questions 

1. In what ways will the COE support LEAs to understand and prioritize family 
needs and choices? CCOE will provide resources that support a mixed 
delivery system consisting of CSPP State Preschool, Head Start, and in-
home childcare options essential to meet family need and parental choice. 
The Local Childcare Planning Council Coordinator and Resource & Referral 
departments will provide community data. 

2.  How will the COE partner with and support districts to offer full-day options? 
CCOE will emphasize partnerships with P-3 providers such as CSPP 
Preschool, Head Start programs, and in-home family child care to offer wrap 
around services and care. 

3. How will the COE partner with and support districts to use UPK to expand 
preschool offerings and prevent the loss of preschool slots?  CCOE will 
emphasize the need to determine the developmental stages and early 
academic skills needed for each child to be successful in preschool and TK 
classrooms.  CCOE will provide resources on an integrated system that 
maximizes utilizing CSPP/Head Start funding to support high quality learning 
and care in a full-day setting and resources to increase collaboration.   

4. How will the COE partner with and support districts to prevent the loss of 
preschool facilities? CCOE will continue to provide preschool services for 
three-year old children and will collaborate with each district.  CCOE will 
emphasize high quality structured preschool programs are essential for three 
and four-year old children.   Three-year old children who attend preschool are 
better prepared and have increased academic school success.   

5. In what ways will the COE support LEAs to plan to meaningfully engage 
extended learning and care partners in the development of the LEA’s UPK 
Plan? CCOE will promote community partners that provide a mixed delivery 
model of services that includes in home child care, before and after school 
care, Head Start and CSPP State Preschool, Family, Friends, and Neighbors 
Alternative Payment services. 

6. In what ways will the COE support LEAs to partner with local R&Rs; LPCs; 
and existing early education, child care, and expanded learning providers 
within the LEA’s attendance boundary to support parents to access services 
across LEA-administered and non-LEA-administered programs for extended 
learning and care and other supports? CCOE will provide resources to 
collaborative partners to ensure access to mixed delivery models to families 
and children.  CCOE will encourage LEA’s to reach out to all P-3 providers in 
their districts to build an integrated support system. 



Page 15 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Required Questions 
1. Is the COE collaborating with other COEs (for example, sharing resources, 

developing joint plans, administering joint technical assistance sessions) to 
provide UPK planning and implementation support to LEAs? 

a. ☒ Yes – CCOE is collaborating with other COE partners and sharing 
resources to support implementation of UPK.  

b. No 

2. Which partners has the COE worked with or convened to support UPK 
implementation in their county? 

a. ☒ Special Education Local Plan Areas (SELPAs) 

b. ☒LPCs 

c. ☒ R&R Agencies 

d. ☒ First 5 County Commission  

e. ☒ CSPP Providers 

f. ☒ Head Start Providers 

g. Community-based organizations (CBOs) providing early learning and 
care 

h. ☐ Parent engagement centers (for example, Parent Training and 
Information Center [PTIC], Community Parent Resource Center 
[CPRC], Family Empowerment Centers [FEC]) 

i. District curriculum groups 

j. District early learning groups 

k. District business officials’ groups 

l. ☒ Other: Community College ECE Advisory Groups 

m. None of the above 

3. What forums has the COE joined, administered, or convened to elevate and 
support UPK implementation within the county? 

a. ☒LPCs 

b. ☒ R&R Agency meetings or forums 

c. ☒First 5 County Commission meetings 

d. ☒ Local QCC meetings 

e. County Child Welfare Agency meetings or forums 



Page 16 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

f. County Board of Supervisors meetings 

g. Local Parent Teacher Association forums 

h. ☒ Other local forums:  Head Start Parent Policy Council Meetings 

i. None of the above 

4. How has the COE worked with community-based extended learning and care 
providers to share information about UPK planning and implementation? 

a. ☒ Joined or convened meetings with community-based providers 

b. ☒ Provided information about TK expansion directly to providers 

c. ☒Provided information to the R&Rs and LPCs to share with providers 

d. Provided information about changes in law and eligibility for early 
learning and care programs 

e. ☒ Provided information on how community-based providers could alter 
their service models to provide early learning and care opportunities for 
younger children or to provide extended learning and care after school 

f. Helped community-based providers identify which district they are 
located in 

g. ☒Helped connect community providers to staff at their local school or 
district 

h. Other [open response] 

i. None of the above 

5. In which of the following Focus Area B: Community Engagement and 
Partnerships areas has the COE has provided technical assistance to LEAs? 
[select all that apply]  

a. ☒ Support for parent surveys and engagement activities to understand 
parent needs and support authentic choice 

b. ☒ Support for community engagement activities including best 
practices for coordination with LPCs, Local QCC Consortia, First 5 
county commissions, Head Start Policy Councils, and other early 
learning and care leadership tables 

c. Guidance on best practices for enrolling more children with disabilities 
in UPK classrooms and providing services in inclusive settings 

d. ☒ Strategies for meeting the ELO-P requirements through different 
models of extended learning and care, including models of blending 
and layering funding to support the nine-hour day and ensuring 
developmentally-informed environments for young children 



Page 17 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

e. ☒ Strategies for Increasing UPK enrollment and parent awareness of 
programs 

f. Provided information and technical assistance on the intersection of TK 
and ELO-P 

g. ☒ Provided information and technical assistance on the intersection of 
TK and other early learning and childcare care programs (both Title 5 
and Title 22) 

h. ☒ Shared information about allowable blending, braiding and layering 
of programs, including examples 

i. Provided information about various funding streams that are available 
to districts to support inclusion programs (for example, early 
intervention special education dollars) 

j. Other [Open Response] 

Focus Area C: Workforce Recruitment and Professional Learning 
Recommended Planning Questions 

1. How will the COE support LEAs to recruit the educators needed to implement 
its UPK Plan (including CSPP teachers, assistant teachers, TK teachers, and 
TK teachers’ instructional aides and assistants)? CCOE will provide LEA’s 
with resources established from California Department of Education and 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing required teacher and staff 
requirements to determine staffing needs and adult to child ratios.  
Collaboration with other COEs to apply for the Early Education Teacher 
Development Grant funding will support workforce and professional 
development. 

2. How will the COE support LEAs to develop strategies to provide professional 
learning for educators across the LEA’s P-3 continuum?  CCOE will 
recommend each LEA establish a professional development plan to support 
teachers and staff with P-3 alignment and a continuum of support.  Online 
resources from California Preschool Instructional Network and the 
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide are available to support 
professional learning.   

3. How will the COE support LEAs to provide professional learning on P-3 for 
site and district leadership?  CCOE will recommend utilizing content area 
standards and preschool learning foundations to provide individualized 
instruction.   

4. How will the COE support LEAs to facilitate the development of district early 
education leadership teams (across grade levels and departments) and site-
based horizontal and vertical articulation (P-3) teams to support successful 
student transitions, share strategies, and collaboratively monitor student 



Page 18 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

progress? CCOE will provide resources that relate to TK implementation with 
an emphasis on child development and effective instructional planning to 
support planning inclusive of various learners.  Resources that support school 
district teams will include instructional guidance on Dual Language Learners, 
multicultural learning experiences, children from low socioeconomic status, 
students with disabilities, and social emotional support. 

Required Questions 
1. How is the COE supporting districts in creating a pipeline of ethnically, 

culturally, and racially diverse, multilingual TK and early education teachers? 

a. ☒ Creating pipeline programs to elevate the qualifications of existing 
early education staff, including targeted recruitment of racially and 
culturally diverse individuals 

b. ☒ Creating a plan to ensure wages increase as qualifications increase 

c. ☒ Encouraging workforce programs to offer culturally competent 
mentoring and coaching 

d. Providing learning cohorts organized by primary language 

e. ☒ Encouraging preparation programs to offer coursework during non-
traditional hours, for example, after 6 p.m. 

f. Offering coursework online or coursework that can be completed on 
candidates’ own time 

g. Offering or collaborating to offer paid internship and apprenticeship 
programs 

h. Working with schools to set targets for hiring a diverse workforce 

i. Working with local public IHEs to establish or implement culturally and 
linguistically responsive preparation programs 

j. Working with private IHEs to establish or implement culturally and 
linguistically responsive preparation programs 

k. Other [open response] 

2. Which of the following strategies does the COE intend to use to support a 
pipeline of diverse and effective prospective TK teachers to earn a Multiple 
Subject Teaching Credential? [select all that apply] 

a. ☒ Partner with one or more local accredited IHEs or other COEs to 
help support teachers holding less than a full credential to complete 
requirements to earn a Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching 
Credential 



Page 19 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

b. Apply for a California Classified School Employee Teacher 
Credentialing Program grant (https://www.ctc.ca.gov/educator-
prep/grant-funded-programs/Classified-Sch-Empl-Teacher-Cred-Prog) 

c. Apply for a California Teacher Residency Grant Program 
(https://www.ctc.ca.gov/educator-prep/grant-funded-programs/teacher-
residency-grant-program) 

d. Request to join an existing intern preparation program to recruit and 
prepare teachers 

e. Request to join an existing apprenticeship cohort program to recruit 
and prepare teachers 

f. Establish a relationship with other LEAs to establish pathways for high 
school students interested in a career in CSPP or in P-3 teaching 
through Career Technical Education programs, dual enrollment 
programs, clubs, registered apprenticeships, or other such early 
recruitment opportunities 

g. Partner with the California Center on Careers to contact registrants 
who might be interested in becoming teachers in the county 

h. Apply for workforce development funding and competitive grant 
opportunities from the CDE 

i. ☒ Provide a stipend for tuition and fees for coursework leading to a 
Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 

j. Collaborate with IHEs to offer unit-bearing coursework at a local LEA 
site during times that work for teachers and other interested staff 
members [list IHEs; open response] 

k. Partner with an IHE to provide other services to candidates seeking to 
earn a Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 

l. ☒ Partner with another COE to provide other services to candidates 
seeking to earn a Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 

m. Lead a coalition application for statewide grants (for example, partner 
with districts to apply for statewide grants) 

n. Create a countywide matrix of workforce programs to share with LEAs 
and prospective educators 

o. Other [describe, open response] 

p. None of the above 

3. Which of the following strategies does the LEA intend to employ to support 
diverse and effective prospective TK teachers, including multilingual 



Page 20 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

educators, to meet the requirements under EC Section 48000(g)(4)? [select 
all that apply] 

a. ☒ Partner with a local IHE offering eligible early childhood education 
or childhood development coursework 

b. Partner with an IHE or COE to operate cohort models for LEA teachers 
earning 24 units 

c. ☒ Provide information on scholarship and grant opportunities 

d. Apply for workforce development funding and grant opportunities 

e. ☒ Provide a stipend for tuition, fees, and other programmatic costs 
associated with obtaining credit-based coursework or a degree 

f. ☒ Provide a stipend for tuition, fees, and other programmatic costs 
associated with obtaining a Child Development Teacher Permit 

g. ☒ Offer advice to existing teachers on ECE requirements and how to 
meet the requirements 

h. Offer IHE coursework at a local LEA site during times that work for 
teachers 

i. Develop or work with an established mentorship program to support 
new TK teachers 

j. Lead a coalition application for statewide grants (for example, partner 
with districts to apply for statewide grants) 

k. Create a countywide matrix of workforce programs to share with LEAs 
and prospective educators 

l. Other [describe, open response] 

m. None of the above; the LEA currently has enough Multiple Subject 
Teaching Credential holders who have at least 24 units in early 
childhood education, or childhood development, or both; professional 
experience in a classroom setting with preschool-age children that is 
comparable to the 24 units of education described in subparagraph (a); 
or a Child Development Teacher Permit issued by the CTC 

4. Which of the following strategies does the LEA intend to employ to support 
diverse and effective prospective CSPP or LEA-operated preschool teachers, 
including multilingual educators, to obtain a Child Development Teacher 
Permit? [select all that apply] 

a. ☒ Partner with an IHE (including both community colleges and four-
year IHEs) offering eligible early childhood education or childhood 
development coursework 



Page 21 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

b. Partner with an IHE or COE to operate cohort models for educators 
working towards a Child Development Teacher Permit 

c. ☒ Provide information on scholarship and grant opportunities 

d. Apply for workforce development funding and grant opportunities 

e. ☒ Provide a stipend for tuition, fees, and other programmatic costs 
associated with obtaining credit-based coursework or an associate or 
baccalaureate degree 

f. ☒ Offer advising and transcript analysis to prospective CSPP teachers 
on requirements and support individual planning for how to meet the 
Child Development Teacher Permit requirements 

g. Offer unit-bearing coursework at a local district site during times that 
work for teachers 

h. Other [describe, open response] 

i. None of the above 

5. In which of the following Focus Area C: Workforce Recruitment and 
Professional Learning areas has the COE provided technical assistance to 
LEAs? [select all that apply] 

a. ☒ Additional guidance on UPK workforce requirements (TK, CSPP, 
and other early learning and care providers) 

b. ☒ Creating joint professional learning opportunities for preschool and 
elementary school teachers within LEAs or across LEA- and CBO-
administered programs in the county 

c. ☒ Sharing strategies to support the teacher pipeline (for example, 
strategies for recruiting multilingual educators, the impact of cohort 
models, ways to implement apprenticeships or residency programs, 
etc.) 

d. ☒ Creating professional learning opportunities to provide school site 
leaders with more early childhood knowledge 

e. ☒ Building partnerships with IHEs or COEs to support professional 
learning opportunities and degree attainment 

f. ☒ Support for communications to recruit prospective educators and 
share grant and scholarship opportunities to support degree attainment 

g. Other [Open Response] 



Page 22 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Focus Area D: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
Recommended Planning Questions 

1. How will the COE support LEAs to review and assess curriculum for UPK 
classrooms that aligns with the California Preschool Learning Foundations 
and the California Preschool Curriculum Frameworks? CCOE will continue to 
invite LEAs to observe preschool classroom instruction and student-centered 
infrastructure that is developmentally appropriate for four-year old children.  
CCOE will include LEA’s in professional development opportunities designed 
to support integrated curriculum instruction. CCOE will guide districts towards 
research-based curriculum that supports social-emotional development. A 
host of online resources that support curriculum instruction including the 
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide will be shared. 

2. How will the COE support LEAs to integrate and align classroom practices for 
UPK (TK and other preschool programs the LEA operates or has on site). 
CCOE will collaborate with LEAs to provide Universal Design for Learning 
and utilize the California Preschool Curriculum Learning Foundations and 
Frameworks, Volumes 1,2, and 3, and TK framework as the guide.  Other 
resources will include the Desired Results Developmental Profile:  
Kindergarten and Transitional Kindergarten Assessment Tool for California, 
and the Early Childhood Environmental Education Rating Scale.   

3. How will the COE support LEAs to implement instructional practices to 
support children with disabilities in UPK (for example, implementing Universal 
Design for Learning, providing specialized services in the classroom with peer 
models, implementing social-emotional strategies such as the Pyramid 
Model)? CCOE will support LEAs to ensure services identified in each 
student’s IEP goals continue.  Center on the Social and Emotional 
Foundations for Early Learning, Pyramid Model is the adopted social-
emotional curriculum used in CCOE early education classrooms and 
Collaborative for Academic, Social, and Emotional Learning (CASEL) 
resources.  Other resources include the California Map to Inclusion and 
Belonging, NAEYC:  Every Child Belongs, and Supporting Inclusive Early 
Learning:  Working Together for Inclusion and Belonging. 

4. How will the COE support LEAs to implement instructional practices to 
support language and overall development of multilingual learners? CCOE 
will guide LEAs to ensure classroom resources, support, and services are 
provided for English Learners while promoting multicultural learning 
experiences.  Online resources include:  NAEYC:  Understanding Anti-Bias 
Education, English Language Arts/English Language Development 
Framework, and Multilingual Learning Toolkit. 



Page 23 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

Required Questions 
1. If any LEAs in the county administer CSPP, does the COE plan to support 

them with providing any of the following language model(s) for CSPP 
students? [select all that apply] 

a. Dual language program with a language allotment3 of 50/50 [open 
response for language offered] 

b. Dual language program with a language allotment of 90/10 [open 
response for language offered] 

c. Dual language program with a language allotment of 80/20 [open 
response for language offered] 

d. Dual language program with a language allotment of 70/30 [open 
response for language offered 

e. ☒ English-only instruction with home-language support 

f. None 

2. In which of the following Focus Area D: Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Assessment areas has the COE provided technical assistance to LEAs? 
[select all that apply] 

a. ☒ Guidance on how to adopt the California Preschool Learning 
Foundations and the California Preschool Curriculum Frameworks into 
a specific UPK setting (for example, mixed-age classrooms) 

b. ☒ Guidance on the selection, development, or integration of 
developmentally-informed curricula and aligning curricula across the 
early grades 

c. ☒ Guidance and best practices on how to monitor and support 
curriculum fidelity in UPK settings 

d. ☒Guidance on how to support effective classroom organization 
practices and behavior management strategies to ensure a positive 
learning environment for a diverse population of UPK students 

e. ☒Guidance on instructional practices to support children with 
disabilities in UPK (for example, implementing Universal Design for 
Learning, providing specialized job embedded services in the 
classroom with peer models, and implementing social-emotional 
strategies such as the Pyramid Model) and partnerships with early 

 
3 The Percentage of instructional time spent on the target language and English (for 
example, in a 50/50 Spanish/English program, 50 percent of instructional time is spent 
on each language) 



Page 24 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

learning and care providers to support services for children with 
disabilities 

f. ☒Specific instructional strategies to support specific skills including, 
but not limited to, children’s social-emotional development and home 
language development 

g. ☒Guidance on appropriate assessment selection and utilization 

h. Guidance on creating dual language immersion or bilingual programs 

i. Other [open response] 

Focus Area E: LEA Facilities, Services, and Operations 
Recommended Planning Questions 

1. How will the COE support LEAs to update their facilities master plans and 
integrate younger children on school campuses? CCOE will recommend each 
LEA develop or update a current assessment plan to evaluate needs for UPK 
planning and implementation to ensure all children’s safety.  The 
development of a UPK Implementation team and MOU’s with stakeholders 
will support shared leadership. 

2. How will the COE support LEAs to address facilities issues to support offering 
extended learning opportunities, including in intersession and summer?  
CCOE will provide resources from California Department of Education to 
guide LEAs with development of an effective UPK plan.  Guidance will include 
collaboration with community partners and family outreach within each 
district.  Resources include the Overview of Title 24 Building Standards Code. 

3. How will the COE support LEAs to address transportation issues resulting 
from UPK implementation? CCOE will provide resources from California 
Department of Education to guide LEAs with the development of an effective 
UPK plan.  Guidance will include collaboration with district leaders, school 
personnel, early learning, special education, community partners and families 
within each district to identify specific needs. 

4. How will the COE support LEAs to ensure TK students have access to meals 
and adequate time to eat? CCOE will provide guidance on daily classroom 
schedules that are developmentally appropriate and allow additional time for 
appropriate transitions for four-year old children.  Resources recommended 
include the Child and Adult Care Food Services and School Nutrition 
Programs. 

Required Questions 
1. In which of the following Focus Area E: LEA Facilities, Services, and 

Operations areas has the COE provided or plans to provide technical 
assistance to LEAs? [select all that apply] 



Page 25 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

a. ☒ Guidance on how to modify an elementary school classroom to 
serve young children, including but not limited to proximity of 
bathrooms within or near classrooms and location of parking near 
drop-off locations 

b. Strategies to address transportation issues related to UPK access and 
enrollment 

c. ☒ Guidance to support strategies that ensure TK students have 
access to meals and LEAs implement age-appropriate meal time 
practices, including adequate time to eat 

d. Making modifications to district data systems to support access to UPK 
assessment data and other relevant information across community and 
elementary school settings 

e. ☒ Best practices for preventing displacement of early learning 
education programs operated by non-LEA administrators on LEA 
campuses and transitioning programs to serve younger children (or to 
offer extended learning opportunities, including in intersession and 
summer) 

f. ☒ Utilizing outdoor learning environments 

g. Other [open response] 

Technical Assistance and Capacity Building Questions 
The CDE is collecting information on the type(s) and topics of technical assistance that 
COEs may need to support LEAs to implement effective UPK programming. 

The following questions are optional. However, unlike the recommended questions 
included in Focus Areas A through E, the CDE will be collecting any information that 
LEAs wish to provide in response to these questions via the survey that the CDE 
administers to collect the required data questions above. 

1. How is the COE developing capacity to support UPK? [select all that apply] 

a. Hiring a dedicated staff person to focus on UPK or P-3 

b. ☒ Providing technical assistance or coaching on key issues such as 
braided and blended funding models, curriculum and instruction best 
practices 

c. ☒ Facilitating standing capacity building, peer learning, or 
collaboration meetings 

d. ☒ Integrating the LPC with UPK planning and implementation efforts 

e. ☒ Serving as a liaison between LEAs and early education community 
partners 



Page 26 of 26 
California Department of Education – March 2022 

f. Holding forums for parents 

g. ☒ Partnering with other COEs to increase or share expertise 

h. ☒ Partnering with the local First 5 county commission 

i. ☒ Joining UPK or P-3 webinars offered by the CDE 

j. ☒ Joining trainings or webinars offered by other organizations 

k. Other [open response] 

2. What is the COE learning about UPK planning and implementation locally?  
LEAs in Colusa County are navigating through implementation and utilizing 
the recommended TK Expanded Eligibility Timeline to ease into 
implementation. 

3. What are common LEA challenges that the COE is encountering and 
supporting? The most common challenges include recruitment of qualified 
staff in rural communities.  Current teachers are requesting to teach TK which 
leaves vacant teaching positions throughout higher grade levels. CSPP State 
Preschool and Head Start teachers are applying for TK teaching positions 
which will leave preschool teacher vacancies that are difficult to replace.  
There is not a TK specific curriculum or assessment that is aligned with 
current K-12 system.  Elementary school campuses are faced with a lack of 
classroom space and limited areas for growth, LEAs are visiting how to 
maximize existing buildings and facilities. 



 11.7 
 
 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
AND THE 

EDUCATORS OF COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (ECCOE) 

 
Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to 
publicly disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or 
formats, but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

 
A. Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2022 ‐ June 30, 2023 

 
B. Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2022: 

 

 Articles 20.2‐20.3:  4.5% increase on 2022‐2023 salary schedules 115, 115 A, 
115 B, 120, 121, 125 (salary schedule 115 B was created for Preschool Teacher 
work year of 190 days) 

 
C. Article 21‐Health and Fringe Benefits & Appendix A 

a. CCOE will not oppose ECCOE unit’s request for a quote to opt out of 
premium from California’s Valued Trust and will meet to 
confer/update Article 21 and Appendix A from said changes for the 
2022‐2023 Plan Year (October 2022‐September 2023) 
 

D. Contract Language Revision/Additions, effective July 1, 2022: 

 Article 18.1.1‐Revision‐Work Year‐Speech and Language unit members 
a. Work year for Speech and Language Specialists shall consist of 190 

work days 
b. 180 Student Contact Days 
c. 1 CCOE Beginning Day/Departmental Meeting 
d. 1 District Pre‐Service Day 
e. 2 Staff Development (In‐Service) Days provided by the 

Superintendent 
f. 6 Speech and Language Specialist Preparation Days and/or days for 

completion of duties and responsibilities related to the school year. 

 Article Revision‐18.1.2 Work Year‐School Psychologists 
a. Work year for School Psychologists shall consist of 195 work days 
b. 180 Student Contact Days 
c. 1 CCOE Beginning Day/Departmental Meeting 
d. 1 Staff Development (In‐Service) Day provided by the Superintendent 
e. 13 School Psychologists Preparation Days and/or days for completion 

of duties and responsibilities related to the school year 

 Article Revision‐ 20.8 Extended School Year and Budget 
a. Extended School Year Teacher planning time of an additional 30 

minutes per day, up to 5.75 hours of work time in total 
 



 Article Revision‐23 Leaves 
a. Replacement language for Articles 23.7, 23.8, and 23.10 is as follows: 

 Unit members will be eligible for paid and unpaid leaves of 
absence (including but not limited to pregnancy, family care 
and medical leave, and military qualifying exigencies) as 
provided for in applicable state and federal law. 

 
E. Current and subsequent sources of funding: 

 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special 
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the 
SELPA. 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education 
on the 15th day of June 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 



11.8 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS AND THE 
COLUSA COUNTY EDUCATIONAL SERVICES PROFESSIONALS (CCESP) 

Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to publicly 
disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or formats, 
but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

A. Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2022 ‐ June 30, 2023

B. Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2022:

 Article XVIII Salaries, 1. Unit Member:  4.5% increase on 2022‐2023 salary schedules

140, 150, 151

Adjustments to other compensation issues, effective October 1, 2022: 

 Article XIX Health and Fringe Benefits, 5. Cap:  The Superintendent’s yearly contribution
for dental, vision, and health benefits shall be increased to ten thousand seven hundred
fifty dollars ($10,750) annually.

 Article IX‐Hours of Employment
o Staff Development

 Mandatory

 SELPA Consistent
o Unit Members shall have a work year of one hundred eighty‐

three (183) days.  One hundred eighty (180) student contact
days, one (1) mandatory staff development day (Beginning
Day), one (1) mandatory professional development day, and
one (1) unit member work day as defined by administration.
The mandatory professional development day shall be driven
by the needs of the Special Education program as first
priority.  The needs of the individual sites shall be
accommodated when not in conflict with Special Education
needs as determined by the Deputy Superintendent –
Student Services, or designee.

 Compensation
o Complete removal of Compensation verbiage due to

increase in work year days as stated in (1) SELPA
Consistent



C.   Adjustments to non‐compensation issues:  

 Article X‐Leaves 
o Replacement language for General Terms Governing Leave for Articles X.7 and 

X.12 
 Unit members will be eligible for paid and unpaid leaves of absence 

(including but not limited to pregnancy, family care and medical leave, 
and military qualifying exigencies) as provided for in applicable state and 
federal law. 

 
 

D.   Current and subsequent sources of funding: 
 

 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the SELPA 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education on the 15th 
day of June 2022. 

 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 


	01 Jul 14 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3 
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.2 Administrative Services
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5.1 SELPA June 14, 2021, Public Hearing
	6.5.2 SELPA June 15, 2021, Meting
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 June 8 2021 Public Hearing Minutes
	8.2 June 9 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.1 3020 BP and OP Budget Committee
	11.2 Gov. Exec Order N-08-21 Rescinding Teleconferernce Exceptions
	11.3 2021-22 Consolidated Application
	1. 2018-19 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report
	2. 2019-20 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report
	3. 2020-21 Title I, Part A Notification of Authorization of Schoolwide Program
	4. 2020-21 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report
	5. 2020-21 Homeless Education Policy, Requirements, and Implementation
	6. 2021-22 Protected Prayer Certification
	7. 2021-22 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	8. 2021-22 Application for Funding
	9. 2021-22 Substitute System for Time Accounting

	11.4 HDV Employer Contribution
	11.4 HDV Employer Contribution 21-22 Memo 
	11.4.1 Board Member
	11.4.1 Board Member + 1
	11.4.1 Board Member + Family
	11.4.2 Superintendent 10/1/20 to 9/30/21
	11.4.2 Superintendent + 1 10/1/21 to 9/30/22

	11.5 Inventory for Disposal - Ch Ser
	11.6 CSBA Dues
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	11.7 CCESP 2021-22 Public Disclosure of Agreement
	11.8 ECCOE 2021-22 Public Disclosure of Agreement

	02 Aug 11 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.4 McKinney Vento_Foster Youth Training
	Mckinney-Vento 101 for parents.pdf
	Mckinney-Vento  Foster 101 for educators.pdf
	Foster 101 for Caregivers (1).pdf

	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 July 14 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	10.5 Gov. Exec Order Rescinding Teleconferernce Exceptions
	11.1 2021-22 Final Consolidated Application
	1. TIIAYTDExpRprt (2).pdf
	2018-19 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 36 Months

	2. TIIAYTDExpRprt (3).pdf
	2019-20 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 24 Months

	3. TIIAYTDExpRprt (4).pdf
	2020-21 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 12 Months

	4. TI_PtASWPAuth.pdf
	5. SubTimeAccounting (2).pdf
	2021-22 Certification of Assurances
	2021-22 Protected Prayer Certification
	2021-22 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	2021-22 Application for Funding
	2021-22 Substitute System for Time Accounting


	11.2 CBOE Process to Sell Property

	03 Sep 8 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1 
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3 
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Education Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 August 11, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.3 Technology Services Inventory for Disposal
	11.4 Resolution 2122-01 Sufficiency of Textbooks
	11.5 New Policy BP 6171 - Title I Programs
	11.7 Review Board Attendance
	Attendance Chart 2018
	Attendance Chart 2019
	Attendance Chart 2020
	Attendance Chart 2021


	04 Oct 13 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	4.2 Letter from State Treasurer - ScholarShare 529
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 Sep 08 21 Public Hearing - Instructional Materials Minutes
	8.2 Sep 08 21 Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.1 2020-21 Unaudited Actuals
	11.2 2122-02 Gann Limits Resolution
	11.3 Teleconference vs Broadcast
	11.4 AB 361 Teleconference GEST, LLC
	11.5 Edits to BP & OP 3020 Budget Committee

	05 Nov 10 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.2 Administrative Services
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.5.1 SELPA Council Meeting Minutes

	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 Oct 13 21 Regular Meeting Minutes
	8.2 New Policy BP 6171 - Title I Programs
	11.1 Removal - BP & OP 3020 Budget Committee
	11.2 BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision
	11.2 BP 3100 Budget Approval and Control Policy
	11.3.1 Draft Schedule of 2022 Meetings
	11.3.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule
	11.3.3 Draft 2022 Liaison Assignments
	11.6 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan 2021-26

	06 Dec 14 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	5.1 President Rotation Schedule
	5.2 2022 Schedule of Meetings
	5.3 2022 Liaison Assignments
	9.1 November 10 21 Regular Meeting Minutes
	9.2 BP 3100 Budget Adoption and Revision
	9.2 BP 3100 Budget Approval and Control Policy
	11.2.1 Williams Property Escrow Complete
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	12.1 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan 2021-26
	Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021

	12.2 2021-22 First Interim Report
	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	01
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	11
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	12
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	16
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	17
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal 06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	73
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000









	12.4 BP 5122.00 Reclassification_Redesignation of English Language Learner

	07 Jan 12 22 Board Packet
	Agenda pg 1
	Agenda pg 2
	4.3 CSBA Region 4 Update
	8.1  December 14 21 Regular Board Minutes
	06 14 Dec 21 Minutes Regular
	Attachment A 2022 President Rotation
	Attachment B 2022 Schedule of Meetings
	Attachment C 2022 Liaison Assignments

	8.2 BP 5122.00 Reclassification of English Language Learners
	11.1a Colusa COE 2020-21 Governance Letter
	11.1b Colusa COE 2020-21 Audit Report
	11.2.1 9220 BP Governing Board Election
	11.2.2 6173.00 BP Education for Homeless Children

	08 Feb 09 22 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	3.1 Tim Wright CCOE Board Application and Letter
	4.1 2022 Spelling Bee
	7.0 Reports from Staff
	7.3 Children's Services
	7.4 Educational Services
	7.5 Special Education
	7.6 Technology Services

	9.1 January 12 2022 Regular Board Minutes
	9.2 BP 6173 Education for Homeless Children
	11.3.1 LCAP Supplement to the 2021-22 Annual Update
	11.3.2 2021-22 LCAP Goals, Metrics, Actions and Services Update
	12.1.1 2020 21 Coastal Buttes Academy SARC
	12.1.2 2020 21 S William Abel Academy SARC
	12.2 2022-23 Year Three Funding Application for Federal Assistance

	09 Mar 09 22 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	Public Hearing CCBOE Trustee Boundaries
	4.2 2022 02 10 CCOE Resignation from the Board
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3.1 Children's Services
	6.3.2 Educational Services
	6.4 Technology Services

	8.1 February 9 2022 Regular Board Minutes
	11.1 21-22 Second Interim Report
	Fiscal06 FUND01 3.1.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	01
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	FISCAL06 Fund11.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	11
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 Fund12.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	12
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	7000

	4
	9000








	fiscal06 fund16.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	16
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	fiscal06 fund17.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	17
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000








	fiscal06 fund 73.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	73
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000









	11.2 BP 9270 Conflict of Interest
	11.4.1 CCBE Delegate Assembly
	Page 1
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	11.4.2 CSBA Delegate Assembly
	Page 1
	Page 3
	kko23fgw.afq.pdf
	Page 1


	11.6 2022-23 CCESP Sunshine Proposal
	11.7 2022 23 Superintendent's CCESP Sunshine Response

	10 Apr 13 22 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	2.0 CCOE Board Application and Letter - Charles Morrow
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3.1 Children's Services
	6.3.2 Educational Services
	6.3.2 Educational Services - NAEHCY
	6.4 Technology Services

	8.1 March 9 2022 Public Hearing Minutes
	8.2 March 9 2022 Regular Board Minutes
	11.2.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention
	11.2.2 BP 9220 Governing Board Elections
	11.3 ECCOE Sunshine Proposal
	11.4  Superintendent's Response to ECCOE Sunshine Proposal

	11 May 11 22 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	2.0 Application and Letter of Interest - Martin
	Page 1
	Page 2

	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3.1 Children's Services
	6.3.2 Educational Services
	6.3.3.1 SELPA Council Meeting Minutes
	6.4 Technology Services

	8.1 April 13 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	8.2 April 13 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	8.3.1 BP 5141.52 Suicide Prevention
	8.3.2 BP 9220 Governing Board Elections
	8.4 Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators
	11.1 Resolution 2122-03 Specifications of Election

	12 Jun 14 22 Public Hearing Packet
	12 Jun 14 22 Public Hearing Packet
	2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2021-22

	Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Introduction
	Instructions


	Local Control Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2022-23]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2022-23]
	Required Descriptions

	2022-23 Total Expenditures Table
	2022-23 Contributing Actions Table
	2021-22 Annual Update Table
	2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Required Goals
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Data Entry Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table




	2022-23 CCOE Budget
	Superintendents Budget Letter 2022-23.pdf
	Page 1

	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	01
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	11
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	12
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	16
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	17
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	73
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000










	12 Jun 15 22 Board Packet
	Agenda Regular Board Meeting Pg 1
	Agenda Regular Board Meeting Pg 2
	Agenda Regular Board Meeting Pg 3
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3.1 Children's Services
	6.3.2 Educational Services
	6.3.3 Special Education and SELPA
	6.4 Technology Services

	8.1 11 May 22 Minutes Special
	8.2 11 May 22 Minutes Regular
	10.3.1 2022 LCAP Perfomance Indicators
	10.3.2 22-23 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan
	11.1 2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2021-22

	Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Introduction
	Instructions


	Local Control Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2022-23]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2022-23]
	Required Descriptions

	2022-23 Total Expenditures Table
	2022-23 Contributing Actions Table
	2021-22 Annual Update Table
	2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Required Goals
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Data Entry Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table




	11.2 2022-23 CCOE Budget
	Superintendents Budget Letter 2022-23.pdf
	Page 1

	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	01
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	11
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	12
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	16
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	17
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	3
	7000

	4
	9000








	Fiscal06 6.2.22.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 
	1
	73
	
	
	
	1
	9000

	2
	8000

	4
	9000









	11.3 Resolution 21_22-04 2022-23 Education Protection Account
	11.4 Board-Supt HDV Cap Increase
	11.5 Superintendent Salary Survey 2022
	11.6 UPK Planning and Implementation Plan
	11.7 Negotiated Agreement - ECCOE
	Page 1
	Page 2

	11.8 Negotiated Agreement - CCESP


	6: 
	5: 
	1: 6.5.1

	4: 6.4
	2: 6.2
	5_1: 6.5.1
	3: 
	2: 6.3.2
	3: 
	1: 6.3.3.1



	11: 
	4_1: 11.4.1
	4_2: 11.4.2
	6: 11.6
	2: 11.2
	3: 11.3
	7: 11.8
	1: 11.1
	5: 11.5
	4: 11.4

	4: 
	3: 4.3
	1: 4.1
	2: 4.2

	5: 
	1: 5.1
	2: 5.2
	3: 5.3

	12: 
	1: 
	1: 12.1.1
	2: 12.1.2

	2: 12.2

	3: 
	1: 3.1

	7: 
	4: 7.4
	6: 7.6
	3: 
	2: 6.3.2


	Special Meeting 2: 
	0: Special Meeting 2.0

	Month of scheduled public meeting: 
	Original Declaration of Need for year: 2022-2023
	Revised Declaration of Need for year: 
	District CDS Code: 
	County CDS Code: 
	Day of scheduled public meeting: 
	Year of scheduled public meeting: 
	Expiration year for declaration: 
	Name of superintendent, board secretary, or designee: 
	Title of submitter: 
	Fax Number: 
	Telephone Number: 
	Date: 
	Mailing Address: 
	EMail Address: 
	Name of County: Colusa County Office of Education
	County CDS Code_2: 06-10066
	Name of State Agency: 
	Name of non-public school or non-public agency: 
	County of Location: 
	Name of District or Charter: 
	County Name: 
	8: 
	4: 8.4

	The Superintendent of the County Office of Education or the Director of the State Agency or the Director of the NPSNPA: 22
	the countys agencys or schools specified employment criteria for the positions listed on the attached form: 2023
	Submitted by Superintendent Director or Designee: Michael P. West
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_4: County Superintendent
	Name_2: (530) 458-8054
	Title_2: 
	Fax Number_2: 345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932
	Mailing Address_2: rwebb@ccoe.net
	Estimated Number Needed: 4
	undefined_5: 1
	List target languages for bilingual authorization: Spanish
	1: 4
	2: 
	Month the declaration was adopted: 05
	Day the declaration was adopted: 11
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDMultiple Subject: 1
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDSingle Subject: 1
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDSpecial Education: 5
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDTOTAL: 7
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow1: Physical Education
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow1: 1
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow2: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow2: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow3: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow3: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow4: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow4: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow5: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow5: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow6: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow6: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow7: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow7: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow8: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow8: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow9: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow9: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow10: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow10: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow11: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow11: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow12: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow12: 
	AUTHORIZATIONS FOR SINGLE SUBJECT LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS A separate page may be used if neededRow13: 
	ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDEDRow13: 
	Has your agency established a District Intern program: 
	If yes how many interns do you expect to have this year: 8
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 1: UMass Global, Chico State, National University, Sacramento State
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 2: 
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 3: 
	If no explain why you do not participate in an internship program 1: 
	If no explain why you do not participate in an internship program 2: 
	Yes box, confirm a district intern program established: Off
	No box, confirm a district intern program was not established: Yes
	Yes box, agency participates in intern program: Yes
	No box, agency does not participate in intern program: Off


